
 

1 

 

Meeting of the  
 

TOWER HAMLETS 
COUNCIL 

__________________________________ 
 

Wednesday, 21 June 2006 at 7.30 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
Council Chamber, 1st Floor, 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 

5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Tim Hogan, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4850, E-mail: tim.hogan@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

 



 
Chief Executive’s 
Directorate 
 
Democratic Renewal and Engagement 
Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 
Tel 020 7364 4850 
Fax 020 7364 3232 
 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of the London Borough of the 
Tower Hamlets to be held in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, 
MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG at 7.30 p.m. on 
WEDNESDAY, 21 JUNE 2006  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Christine Gilbert 
Chief Executive 
 



 

3 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 21 JUNE 2006 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting Members from 

voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  
 

Note from the Chief Executive 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members must declare any personal 
interests they have in any item on the agenda or as they arise during the course of the 
meeting.  Members must orally indicate to which item their interest relates.  If a Member has 
a personal interest he/she must also consider whether or not that interest is a prejudicial 
personal interest and take the necessary action.  When considering whether or not they 
have a declarable interest, Members should consult pages 173 to185 of the Council’s 
Constitution. Please note that all Members present at a Committee meeting (in whatever 
capacity) are required to declare any personal or prejudicial interests. 
 
A personal interest is, generally, one that would affect a Member (either directly or through 
a connection with a relevant person or organisation) more than other people in London, in 
respect of the item of business under consideration at the meeting.  If a member of the 
public, knowing all the relevant facts, would view a Member’s personal interest in the item 
under consideration as so substantial that it would appear likely to prejudice the Member’s 
judgement of the public interest, then the Member has a prejudicial personal interest. 
 
Consequences: 
 
• If a Member has a personal interest: he/she must declare the interest but can stay, 

speak and vote.  
 
• If the Member has prejudicial personal interest: he/she must declare the interest, 

cannot speak or vote on the item and must leave the room. 
 
When declaring an interest, Members are requested to specify the nature of the interest, the 
particular agenda item to which the interest relates and to also specify whether the interest 
is of a personal or personal and prejudicial nature.  This procedure is designed to assist the 
public’s understanding of the meeting and is also designed to enable a full entry to be made 
in the Statutory Register of Interests which is kept by the Head of Democratic Renewal and 
Engagement on behalf of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
 

3. MINUTES   
 
 To confirm as a correct record the proceedings of the unrestricted minutes of the Annual 

meeting of the Council held on 24th May, 2006.  (Attached) 
  
 



 
 

4. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, LEADER OF THE 
COUNCIL, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

 
5. TO RECEIVE ANY PETITIONS OR DEPUTATIONS   
 
 No requests to receive petitions have been received. 

 
Two deputation requests have been received. 
 
 

5 .1 A request to submit a deputation has been received from Ms. P. 
Cottage, Sivill House, Columbia Road, E2, on the subject of 
Housing Choice.   

 

 

5 .2 A request to submit a deputation has been received from Ms. L. 
Rogers, Columbia Road, E2, on the subject of Crossrail.   

 

 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 

 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 6. 
 

7. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
 
 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 

 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 7. 
 

8. REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNCIL'S COMMITTEES  
 

 Report of the Cabinet of 5th April 2006 
 

8 .1 Youth Justice Plan 2006-2007: Key Proposals   
 

37 - 116 

 Reports of the Cabinet of 7th June 2006 
 

8 .2 Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010 Year 6 (2006/2007) 
Revision   

 

117 - 200 

8 .3 The Council's Strategic Plan 2006 to 2011: Year 1 Implementation 
Plan (2006/7) & Best Value Performance Plan   

 

201 - 364 

 Report of the General Purposes Committee of 14th June 2006 
 

8 .4 Controlled Drinking Zone  (TO FOLLOW)   
 

 

9. REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  

 

 

9 .1 Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2005/2006   
 

365 - 384 

10. TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND QUESTIONS ON JOINT 
ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS  

 

 



 
 

10 .1 Joint Arrangements   
 

 

 No business under this heading to be considered. 
 
 
 

 

10 .2 External Organisations   
 

 

 No business under this heading to be considered. 
 
 
 

 

11. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 

 

 (A maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 
 
Five motions have been submitted. 
 

 

11 .1 Motion submitted by Councillor Phil Briscoe regarding crime 
reduction targets and Police Station provision in the Borough.   

 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Phil Briscoe 
Seconded: Councillor Shirley Houghton 
 
“This Council Notes: 
 

1. In the year 2005/2006, the Tower Hamlets targets on crime 
reduction were missed in each of the top 10 categories, including 
domestic burglaries, violent crime, racial incidents, street 
robberies and vehicle crimes. 

 
2. Neither the Tower Hamlets Council Community Plan 2006-2007, 

nor the Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2006-2011, make any 
mention of the existence or importance of Police Stations in the 
Borough. 

 
3. That aside from the 2 main Police Stations in the Borough (at 

Limehouse and Bethnal Green), there are a further 4 recognised 
police stations in Tower Hamlets (Isle of Dogs, Poplar, Brick 
Lane, Bow).  Out of a possible total weekly opening of 672 hours, 
these 4 stations currently open for only 133.5 hours per week 
(19.8%). 

 
4. That the number of hours when local residents can visit an active 

Police Station in Tower Hamlets is one of the lowest figures 
across London Boroughs.  In neighbouring Boroughs, Police 
Station opening hours are significantly longer in Newham, 
Hackney, Greenwich and Lewisham. 

 
5. The success of the residents of the Isle of Dogs and their 

campaign to change the opening hours of the Manchester Road 
Police Station via the Metropolitan Police Authority and to ensure 
that this facility is open in the evenings when residents need 
access. 

 
 

 



 
 
This Council resolves: 
 

1. To review the stated Living Safely objectives to include a 
reference to Police Stations and their importance in the fight 
against crime. 

 
2. To work with the Metropolitan Police and the Tower Hamlets 

Borough Police Commander to maximise the use of Police 
Stations to help counter crime and to reduce the fear of crime 
across the area. 

 
3. To undertake meaningful consultation through the Local Area 

Partnership network to work with local residents and establish 
expectations around Police Station opening hours and how they 
can be improved to counter local crime issues. 

 
4. To explore other possible options of sponsorship or partnership 

working to produce the resources to allow Police Stations to open 
for longer hours without detracting from frontline policing in the 
Borough.” 

 
 
 

11 .2 Motion submitted by Councillor Peter Golds regarding the Ideas 
Store Programme and other issues relating to libraries in the 
Borough.   

 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Peter Golds 
Seconded: Councillor Simon Rouse 
 
“This Council Notes: 
 

• The current Ideas Store Programme. 
• The closure of Limehouse library and Bancroft library. 
• Previous motions presented to this Council regarding Bethnal 

Green library and Blackwall and Cubitt Town library. 
• The £6,545 cost of the opening ceremony for the Canary Wharf 

Ideas Store, including costs for Gospel singers and Tango 
dancers. 

 
This Council Believes: 
 

• That the uncertainty governing existing libraries needs to be 
ended. 

• That the sale of historic public libraries should stop. 
• That the millions of pounds associated with the Ideas Store 

programme are an unacceptable use of Council taxpayers money. 
• That existing libraries are popular with residents and should be 

retained. 
 
This Council instructs: 
 

• That the Lead Member for Culture should make a clear and 
unequivocal statement as to the long term future of all libraries. 

• That the Lead Member for Culture should specifically confirm that 
Bethnal Green library and Blackwall and Cubitt Town library will 
remain open in their current premises and unaffected by any 

 



 
 

Ideas Store programme. 
• That the Ideas Store Programme be stopped and all budget 

allocated to re-investment in existing library provision.” 
 
 

11 .3 Motion submitted by Councillor Simon Rouse regarding the 
Calendar of Council meetings and constitutional changes, to 
improve democratic engagement.   

 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Simon Rouse 
Seconded: Councillor Tim Archer 
 
“This Council Notes: 
 

• The Calendar of Meetings for the 2006/7 Municipal Year. 
• That the aforementioned calendar was agreed at the Council 

meeting on 1st March prior to the election of the current Council. 
• That the current Council has a number of new members who 

have not had a chance to agree the Municipal Calendar. 
• That the Constitution actually notes the Annual Council to be the 

normal body to agree the Municipal calendar. 
• That the current calendar only provides for 5 meetings of the Full 

Council. 
• That the full Council meeting on 1st March passed a number of 

changes to the Council Constitution and that those changes were 
not subject to any discussion as a motion to ‘move to the vote’ 
was passed before any Council discussion. 

• That the amendments passed changed the time allocated to 
public questioning of the Council and motions presented by 
Members, as well as changes to Member access to information. 

 
This Council Believes: 
 

• That the new Members should have an opportunity to agree the 
Municipal calendar governing the new Council. 

• That 5 Council meetings a year is inadequate to conduct the 
Council’s business in a timely way whilst ensuring maximum 
public engagement. 

• That the Constitutional changes passed were of significance to 
the ability of the public and Members to exercise their right to 
express views and affect Council policy, as well as significantly 
altering Member access to information. 

 
This Council instructs: 
 

• That the Head of Democratic Renewal and Engagement table the 
Municipal calendar for formal agreement by the new Council at 
their meeting on 13th September. 

• That the calendar presented should include full Council meetings 
to be held in October, November, January, March and April. 

• That the constitutional changes passed on 1st May be revoked, 
pending a review by a cross-party constitutional working party. 
Pending the review, the constitution prior to the changes should 
be restated.” 

 
 

 



 
 

11 .4 Motion submitted by Councillor Oliur Rahman regarding the 
Housing Choice process   

 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Seconded:  
 
“In view of widespread concerns at the process and impact of Housing 
Choice, and serious allegations of malpractice and abuses in the 
conduct of Housing Choice ballots, we agree to listen to the case put by 
tenants and: 

• Stop the Housing Choice process 
• Conduct a full investigation into allegations concerning the 

conduct of Housing Choice consultation and balloting 
• Review available resources and assets, including regeneration 

funding, available to fund council housing repairs and 
improvements 

• Request a full study on the implications of the Audit Commission 
‘Financing council housing’ report (2005) recommendations of 
‘solutions for those authorities that currently rely heavily on the 
[council housing subsidy] system ‘by relieving the HRA of historic 
debt costs 

• Joint representations to government, with tenants, trade unions, 
and elected representatives, on the particular and acute needs of 
Tower Hamlets and the urgent need for direct investment in our 
council housing stock (the Fourth Option)”  

 
 

 

11 .5 Motion submitted by Councillor Tim Archer regarding the Housing 
Choice process   

 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Tim Archer 
Seconded: Councillor Simon Rouse 
 
“This Council Notes: 
 

• The 7 recent no votes against stock transfer. 
• The £5 million being spent by the Council on supporting the 

Housing Transfer process. 
• The £500 million required to bring the Council’s housing stock up 

to the Decent Homes Standard requirement by 2010. 
 
This Council Believes: 
 

• That the Housing Choice process has lost all credibility with local 
residents and voters. 

• That public money is being spent on a propaganda exercise. 
• That this Council has no effective contingency plan to deal with 

estates that do not transfer. 
• That the Housing Choice process has become overly politicised. 

 
This Council instructs: 
 

• That the Housing Choice programme be immediately suspended. 
• That a three-month review is conducted chaired by an 

independent party and involving local residents, to establish a 
plan to achieving the Decent Homes Standard.   

 



 
 
 
 

12. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

12 .1 Crossrail - Endorsement of the Submission of a Petition on the 
Additional Provisions - May 2006   

 

385 - 404 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 24 MAY 2006 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
The Mayor, Mr Doros Ullah in the chair. 

 
 

Members Present: 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Louise Alexander 
Councillor Anwara Ali 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor M. Shahid Ali 
Councillor Timothy Archer 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Rupert Bawden 
Councillor Lutfa Begum 
Councillor Philip Briscoe 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Shamim A. Chowdhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Rupert Eckhardt 
Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman 
Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Councillor Alexander Heslop 
Councillor Shirley Houghton 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
 

Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
Councillor Rania Khan 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Abdul Matin 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Fozol Miah 
Councillor Abdul Munim 
Councillor Timothy O'Flaherty 
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid 
Councillor Simon Rouse 
Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor Bill Turner 
Councillor Dulal Uddin 
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman 
 

 
 

1. TO ELECT A MAYOR OF THE BOROUGH TO HOLD OFFICE UNTIL THE 
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2007  
 
Mr Ullah addressed the meeting on his year in office during which time he had 
raised £55,000 for his charity – Crisis. 
 
Councillor Denise Jones responded on behalf of the Council. Councillors 
Rouse and Oliur Rahman also addressed the meeting on the Mayor’s year in 
office. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

2 

 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
and RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Shafiqul Haque of 18 Halliday House, Christian Street, 
London E1 1PA. be elected as Mayor of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets to hold office from 24th May, 2006 until the Annual Meeting of the 
Council in 2007. 
 

The Mayor, Councillor Shafiqul Haque in the chair. 
 
The Mayor then addressed the meeting and set out his proposed programme 
for the year, together with details of two charities he would be supporting 
during his mayoralty, Daneford Trust and Tower Hamlets Summer University. 
 
 

2. TO ELECT A DEPUTY MAYOR TO HOLD OFFICE UNTIL THE ANNUAL 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2007  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam  
 
RESOLVED  
 
That Councillor Ann Jackson of 34 Cardigan Road, London E3 5HU be   
elected as Deputy Mayor of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets to hold 
office from 24th May 2006   until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2007. 
 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence submitted. 
 
 

4. TO NOTE ANY DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no  declarations of interest made. 
 
 

5. MINUTES  
 
MINUTES: RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on Wednesday 1st March, 
2006 be confirmed as a correct record of the proceedings and the Mayor be 
authorised  to sign them. 
 
 

6. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE  
 

Page 2



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

3 

There were no announcements made. 
 
 
 

7. TO ELECT THE LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE OF THE 
COUNCIL  
 
 
Moved by Councillor Helal Abbas, Seconded by Councillor Ann Jackson and 
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Denise Jones be elected as Leader of the 
Council to hold office  until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2007.  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Salim Ullah and 
it was  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Sirajul Islam be elected Deputy Leader of the 
Council to hold office until the Annual Meeting of the Council in May 2007. 
 
 

8. TO CONSIDER THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS TO BE APPOINTED TO THE 
CABINET AND TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE CABINET  
 

 
The Chief Executive tabled a schedule which informed the Council of 
proposed appointment of cabinet members for the municipal year 2006/2007 
together with allocated portfolios.  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam  
 
‘That the Cabinet comprise 10 Members and those members with the 
allocated portfolios, as set out in the tabled schedule be appointed thereto’ 
 
Councillor Simon Rouse, Seconded by Councillor Peter Golds Moved an 
amendment in the following terms  
 
‘That the Cabinet be reduced to a membership of 9 by the aboltion of the post 
of Lead Member Culture  with the responsibilities arising absorbed  within the 
portfolio of the Lead Member Children’s Services and the resulting savings 
allocated to front-line services’.  
 
The Mayor put the amendment to the vote and there voted  
 
For – 7  
Against – 25  
Abstentions – 12  
 
The Mayor declared the amendment to be Lost.  
 
The Mayor put the substantive motion to the vote and there voted  
 

Page 3



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

4 

For – 26  
Against – 6  
Abstentions – 12  
 
The Mayor declared the substantive motion to be Carried and 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Cabinet comprise 10 Members and those Members with the 
allocated portfolios, as set out in the tabled scheduled be appointed thereto.   
  
For ease of reference the Members appointed to the Cabinet and their 
allocated portfolios are set out below 
 
Councillor Denise Jones - Leader of the Council  
Councillor Sirajul Islam - Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Helal U.Abbas - Lead Member, Children’s Services 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed - Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation 
  and Community Partnerships 
Councillor Anwara Ali - Lead Member, Equalities, Employment and Skills 
Councillor Abdul Asad - Lead Member, Older People and Health 
Councillor Abdal Ullah - Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
Councillor Josh Peck - Lead Member, Resources and Performance 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman - Lead Member, Culture 
Councillor Rupert Bawden - Lead Member, Housing and Development  
 

9. REVIEW OF PROPORTIONALITY AND APPOINTMENT TO 
COMMITTEES/PANELS OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Chief Executive tabled a report which reviewed proportionality as 
required by Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and 
which also informed the Council of the nominations received from the political 
groups on the Council for membership of committees/panels of the Authority 
for the Municipal Year 2006/2007 .  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam    
and 
 
Resolved 
 
 
1 That the Review of proportionality be noted. 
 
2 That the nominations to membership of Committees / Panels of the 
Authority agreed as per the tabled schedule. 
 
3 That the appointment of Committee/Panel Chairs agreed as per the 
attached schedule. 
 
4 That Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution to be amended to reflect changes 
to the size of Committees/ Panels of the Authority. 

Page 4



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

5 

 
 

10. APPOINTMENT OF POLITICAL ASSISTANTS  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
 
‘1 That the Council appoint political assistants in accordance with section 9 of 
the Local Government & Housing Act 1989; 
 
2 That in accordance with (1) above and having regard to the political balance 
on the Council, a full-time post be allocated to the Labour Group and provision 
from existing be used to create 2 part-time posts of 3.5 and 2.5 days a week 
for the Respect and Conservative Groups respectively.’ 
 
The motion was subject to an amendment by Councillor Oliur Rahman, 
Seconded by Councillor Objol Miah in the following terms - 
 
‘That full-time political assistants be appointed to assist the Labour and, 
Respect Groups on the Council and a part-time political assistant be 
appointed to assist the Conservative Group’  
 
The Mayor put the amendment to the vote and there voted for:- 
 
For – 12  
Against - 26  
Abstained – 0  
 
The Mayor declared the amendment to be Lost and he then put the 
substantive motion to the vote and there voted:- 
 
For - 32  
Against - 12  
Abstained - 0  
 
The Mayor declared the substantive motion to be Carried and 
 
Resolved 
 
1 That the Council appoint political assistants in accordance with Section 9 of 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989; 
 
2 That in accordance with ( 1) and having regard to the political balance on 
the Council, a full-time post be allocated to the Labour Group and provision 
from existing resources be used to create 2 part-time post of 3.5 and 2.5 days 
for the Respect and Conservative Groups respectively. 
 
 
 
 

11. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO THE ASSOCIATION OF 
LONDON GOVERNMENT  

Page 5



COUNCIL, 24/05/2006 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)
 

6 

 
The Chief Executive tabled a report which requested the Council to consider 
making nominations to a number of bodies of the Association of London 
Government The ALG had requested the Council to its nominations by 1st 
June which precluded consideration by the General Purposes Committee. 
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam  
 
“That the nominations to the Association of London Government’s panels and 
committees be agreed, as per the tabled schedule”. 
 
Moved as an amendment by Councillor Simon Rouse and Seconded by 
Councillor Peter Golds. 
 
‘That the nominations to the Association of London Government be made in 
accordance with the principles of proportionality’. 
 
The Mayor put the amendment to the vote and it was LOST. 
 
The Mayor then put the substantive motion to the vote and it was 
 
RESOLVED:  That the nominations to the Association of London 
Government’s panels and committees be agreed, as set out in the appendix. 
 
Close of meeting. 
 
There being on further business the Mayor thanked everyone for their 
contributions and attendance and closed the meeting ended at 8.25 pm.  
 
 
 
 
                                                                            Councillor Shafiqul Haque 
                                                                           Mayor                                                            
 
 
 
 

Page 6



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
1 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 ‘A
’ 

 
LO

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F 
TO

W
ER

 H
A

M
LE

TS
 

 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EM

B
ER

SH
IP

 2
00

6-
20

07
 

 
A

N
N

U
A

L 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 –
 2

4TH
 M

A
Y,

 2
00

6 
   

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(F

ou
r M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

on
e 

La
bo

ur
, o

ne
 R

es
pe

ct
, o

ne
 C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

an
d 

on
e 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 M
em

be
r 

  a
nd

 fi
ve

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t M

em
be

rs
) 

 La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

n 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
n 

C
on

se
rv

at
iv

e 
G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

n 
Li

be
ra

l D
em

oc
ra

t 
G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
n 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t M

em
be

rs
 

 C
llr

 A
le

x 
H

es
lo

p 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 R
of

iq
ue

 
   

   
   

   
   

  U
. A

hm
ed

) 
        

 C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
 

(D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

 
C

llr
 F

oz
ol

 M
ia

h 
&

 
C

llr
 D

ul
al

 U
dd

in
) 

 C
llr

 P
et

er
 G

ol
ds

 
 C

llr
 A

bd
ul

 M
at

in
  

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 S

te
ph

an
ie

   
   

   
   

   
  E

at
on

) 

 M
r S

. B
ai

ns
 

M
s.

 S
. B

ar
ry

 
M

r P
. O

’C
on

no
r 

S
is

te
r C

. F
ro

st
 

M
r M

. H
. R

ah
m

an
 

         

Page 7



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
2 

   
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(N

in
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il)
 

 La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
R

es
pe

ct
 G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
 C

llr
 R

of
iq

ue
 U

. A
hm

ed
 (C

ha
ir)

 
C

llr
 A

lib
or

 C
ho

ud
hu

ry
  

C
llr

 S
hi

ria
 K

ha
tu

n 
C

llr
 A

hm
ed

 O
m

er
 

C
llr

 A
le

x 
H

es
lo

p 
 (D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
C

llr
 M

. S
ha

hi
d 

A
li 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
llr

 A
. A

. S
ar

da
r)

 
              

 C
llr

 S
ha

m
im

 C
ho

ud
hu

ry
 

C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

 
C

llr
 A

hm
ed

 H
us

sa
in

 &
 

C
llr

 S
ha

he
d 

A
li)

 

 C
llr

 R
up

er
t E

ck
ha

rd
t 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 D

r. 
E

m
m

a 
Jo

ne
s)

 
                   

 C
llr

 T
im

 O
’F

la
he

rty
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 A

zi
zu

r R
ah

m
an

  
   

   
   

   
   

  K
ha

n)
 

Page 8



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
3 

 
O

VE
R

VI
EW

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
TI

N
Y 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(N

in
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il)
 

 La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 

de
pu

tie
s)

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 
de

pu
tie

s)
 

C
on

se
rv

at
iv

e 
G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 

de
pu

tie
s)

 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t 

G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

N
om

in
at

ed
/ 

C
o-

op
te

d 
M

em
be

rs
 

 C
llr

 M
ot

in
 U

z-
Za

m
an

 
(C

ha
ir)

 
C

llr
 S

hi
ria

 K
ha

tu
n 

C
llr

 C
la

ir 
H

aw
ki

ns
 

C
llr

 A
. A

. S
ar

da
r 

C
llr

 M
. A

bd
us

 S
al

iq
ue

 

 C
llr

 S
ha

hi
d 

A
li 

C
llr

 O
liu

r R
ah

m
an

 
 (D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
 

C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 H

us
sa

in
 

C
llr

 S
ha

m
im

 A
. 

C
ho

ud
hu

ry
 

C
llr

 F
oz

ol
 M

ia
h 

C
llr

 A
bj

ol
 M

ia
h)

 

 C
llr

 S
im

on
 R

ou
se

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 P
et

er
  

   
   

   
   

   
  G

ol
ds

) 
 

 C
llr

 S
te

ph
an

ie
 E

at
on

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 L
ou

is
e 

   
   

   
   

   
  A

le
xa

nd
er

) 

 M
r H

as
sa

n 
M

ue
nn

ud
di

n 
– 

M
us

lim
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
no

m
in

at
io

n 
 M

r D
an

ny
 M

cL
au

gh
lin

 –
R

om
an

 C
at

ho
lic

 D
io

ce
se

 o
f 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 n
om

in
at

io
n 

 P
ar

en
t G

ov
er

no
r n

om
in

at
io

n 
– 

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

w
ai

te
d 

  P
ar

en
t G

ov
er

no
r n

om
in

at
io

n 
– 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 a
w

ai
te

d 
 A

 n
om

in
at

io
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

C
hu

rc
h 

of
 E

ng
la

nd
 is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

w
ai

te
d  

     
  

Page 9



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
4 

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(S

ev
en

 M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
– 

To
 c

om
pr

is
e 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r, 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

, t
hr

ee
 M

aj
or

ity
 G

ro
up

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ne

 
R

es
pe

ct
, o

ne
 C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

an
d 

on
e 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 M
em

be
r 

 La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

  C
llr

 H
el

al
 U

. A
bb

as
 

C
llr

 M
. S

ha
hi

d 
A

li 
C

llr
 M

ar
c 

Fr
an

ci
s 

C
llr

 A
. A

. S
ar

da
r 

                 

  C
llr

 R
an

ia
 K

ha
n 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

 
C

llr
 O

liu
r R

ah
m

an
 

C
llr

 F
oz

ol
 M

ia
h 

C
llr

 A
bd

ul
 M

un
in

) 
                  

  C
llr

 P
et

er
 G

ol
ds

 
 

  N
o 

no
m

in
at

io
n 

 

Page 10



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
5 

 
ST

R
A

TE
G

IC
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(N

in
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

3 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 2
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ab

in
et

) 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 R
of

iq
ue

 U
. A

hm
ed

 (C
ha

ir)
 

C
llr

 O
hi

d 
A

hm
ed

 
C

llr
 R

up
er

t B
aw

de
n 

C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 O

m
er

 
C

llr
 A

lib
or

 C
ho

ud
hu

ry
 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

 
C

llr
 J

os
h 

P
ec

k 
&

 
C

llr
 C

ar
li 

H
ar

pe
r-

P
en

m
an

) 
              

 C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 H

us
sa

in
 

C
llr

 A
bj

ol
 M

ia
h 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
 

C
llr

 R
an

ia
 K

ha
n 

C
llr

 M
. M

am
un

 R
as

hi
d)

 

 C
llr

 R
up

er
t E

ck
ha

rd
t 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 S

im
on

 R
ou

se
) 

 C
llr

 L
ou

is
e 

A
le

xa
nd

er
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 S

te
ph

an
ie

 E
at

on
) 

 

Page 11



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
6 

  
O

LY
M

PI
C

S 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(N

in
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il)
 

 La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 R
of

iq
ue

 U
. A

hm
ed

 (C
ha

ir)
 

C
llr

 A
lib

or
 C

ho
ud

hu
ry

 
C

llr
 S

hi
ria

 K
ha

tu
n 

C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 O

m
er

 
C

llr
 A

le
x 

H
es

lo
p 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

C
llr

 M
. S

ha
hi

d 
A

li 
&

 
C

llr
 A

. A
. S

ar
da

r)
 

             

 C
llr

 D
ul

al
 U

dd
in

 
C

llr
 A

bd
ul

 M
un

in
 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

C
llr

 R
an

ia
 K

ha
n 

&
 

C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
) 

 C
llr

 P
et

er
 G

ol
ds

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 D
r. 

E
m

m
a 

Jo
ne

s)
 

 C
llr

 L
ou

is
e 

A
le

xa
nd

er
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 S

te
ph

an
ie

 E
at

on
) 

Page 12



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
7 

 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

PU
R

PO
SE

S 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il)

 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 M
ar

c 
Fr

an
ci

s 
(C

ha
ir)

 
C

ll 
M

. S
ha

hi
d 

A
li 

C
llr

 C
la

ir 
H

aw
ki

ns
 

C
llr

 M
ot

in
 U

z-
Za

m
an

 
 (D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 S
ha

fiq
ul

 H
aq

ue
) 

                  

 C
llr

 F
oz

ol
 M

ia
h 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 W

ai
se

ul
 Is

la
m

) 
 

 C
llr

 P
et

er
 G

ol
ds

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 P
hi

lip
 B

ris
co

e)
 

 C
llr

 R
aj

ib
 A

hm
ed

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 S
te

ph
an

ie
 E

at
on

) 

Page 13



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
8 

 
LI

C
EN

SI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(F
ift

ee
n 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il)
 

 La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 
de

pu
tie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 B
ill 

Tu
rn

er
 (C

ha
ir)

 
C

llr
 M

. S
ha

hi
d 

A
li 

C
llr

 M
ar

c 
Fr

an
ci

s 
C

llr
 A

le
x 

H
es

lo
p 

C
llr

 C
ar

li 
H

ap
er

-P
en

m
an

 
C

llr
 A

nn
 J

ac
ks

on
 

C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 O

m
er

 
C

llr
 M

. A
bd

us
 S

al
iq

ue
 

                

 C
llr

 M
. M

am
un

 R
as

hi
d 

C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
 

C
llr

 D
ul

al
 U

dd
in

 
  

 C
llr

 S
hi

rle
y 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
 

 C
llr

 P
hi

lip
 B

ris
co

e 
 

 C
llr

 R
aj

ib
 A

hm
ed

 
C

llr
 A

zi
zu

r R
ah

m
an

 K
ha

n 

Page 14



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
9 

 
PE

N
SI

O
N

S 
A

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il)

 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 O

m
er

 (C
ha

ir)
 

C
llr

 M
. S

ha
hi

d 
A

li 
C

llr
 M

ar
c 

Fr
an

ci
s 

C
llr

 C
la

ir 
H

aw
ki

ns
 

 (D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 A

nn
 J

ac
ks

on
) 

                 

 C
llr

 L
ut

fa
 B

eg
um

 
(D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
 

C
llr

 O
liu

r R
ah

m
an

 &
 

C
llr

 S
ha

he
d 

A
li)

 

 C
llr

 T
im

 A
rc

he
r  

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 S

hi
rle

y 
H

ou
gh

to
n)

 
 

 C
llr

 L
ou

is
e 

A
le

xa
nd

er
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 R

aj
ib

 A
hm

ed
) 

 

Page 15



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
10

 

 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il)

 
 La

bo
ur

 G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 

de
pu

tie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 M
. S

ha
hi

d 
A

li 
(C

ha
ir)

 
C

llr
 M

ar
c 

Fr
an

ci
s 

C
llr

 A
le

x 
H

es
lo

p 
C

llr
 C

ar
li 

H
ar

pe
r-

P
en

m
an

 
 (D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 A
lib

or
 C

ho
ud

hu
ry

) 
                

 C
llr

 R
an

ia
 K

ha
n 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

 
C

llr
 O

liu
r R

ah
m

an
 &

 
C

llr
 S

ha
he

d 
A

li)
 

 C
llr

 P
et

er
 G

ol
ds

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

P
hi

lip
 B

ris
co

e)
 

 C
llr

 R
aj

ib
 A

hm
ed

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 S
te

ph
an

ie
 E

at
on

) 

Page 16



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
11

 

 
A

PP
EA

LS
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(N
in

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il)

 
 La

bo
ur

 G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 

de
pu

tie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 S
al

im
 U

lla
h 

(C
ha

ir)
 

C
llr

 A
. A

. S
ar

da
r 

C
llr

 B
ill 

Tu
rn

er
 

C
llr

 S
ha

fiq
ul

 H
aq

ue
 

C
llr

 A
lib

or
 C

ho
ud

hu
ry

 
                 

 C
llr

 A
hm

ed
 H

us
sa

in
 

C
llr

 O
liu

r R
ah

m
an

 
 (D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
C

llr
 L

ut
fa

 B
eg

um
 

C
llr

 F
oz

ol
 M

ia
h 

C
llr

 S
ha

m
im

 A
. C

ho
ud

hu
ry

) 

 C
llr

 T
im

 A
rc

he
r  

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
S

im
on

 R
ou

se
) 

 

 C
llr

 A
bd

ul
 M

at
in

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 T
im

 O
’F

la
he

rty
) 

Page 17



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
12

 

 
H

EA
LT

H
 S

C
R

U
TI

N
Y 

PA
N

EL
 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il)

 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 M
. A

bd
us

 S
al

iq
ue

 (C
ha

ir)
  

C
llr

 M
. S

ha
hi

d 
A

li 
C

llr
 M

ar
c 

Fr
an

ci
s 

C
llr

 A
nn

 J
ac

ks
on

 
                    

 C
llr

 L
ut

fa
 B

eg
um

 
 (D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
C

llr
 S

ha
he

d 
A

li 
C

llr
 A

hm
ed

 H
us

sa
in

 
C

llr
 M

. M
am

un
 R

as
hi

d)
 

 C
llr

 D
r. 

E
m

m
a 

Jo
ne

s 
(D

ep
ut

y 
– 

C
llr

 T
im

 A
rc

he
r)

 

 C
llr

 T
im

 O
’F

la
he

rty
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

– 
C

llr
 A

zi
zu

r R
ah

m
an

  
   

   
   

   
   

  K
ha

n)
 

Page 18



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
13

 

  
PE

R
M

A
N

EN
T 

PL
A

C
EM

EN
TS

 P
A

N
EL

 
(T

o 
co

m
pr

is
e 

tw
o 

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

rs
, o

ne
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 C

ab
in

et
, t

hr
ee

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t P
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

e 
m

an
 a

nd
 o

ne
 w

om
an

, u
p 

to
 a

 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f t
en

 p
er

so
ns

) 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 A
bd

ul
 A

sa
d 

                 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

                       

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 

Page 19



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
14

 

  
FO

ST
ER

IN
G

 P
A

N
EL

 
(T

o 
co

m
pr

is
e 

tw
o 

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

rs
, o

ne
 e

le
ct

ed
 M

em
be

r a
nd

 fo
ur

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Pe
rs

on
s,

 u
p 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

en
 p

er
so

ns
) 

 La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 R
of

iq
ue

 U
. A

hm
ed

 
                    

 
 

 

 

Page 20



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
15

 

  
C

H
IL

D
R

EN
/A

D
U

LT
S 

(A
C

C
ES

S 
TO

 F
IL

ES
) P

A
N

EL
 

(T
o 

co
m

pr
is

e 
th

re
e 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il;
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

of
 w

ho
m

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 C

ab
in

et
 m

em
be

r)
 

 La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

 N
om

in
at

io
ns

 
(a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 
 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 R
of

iq
ue

 U
. A

hm
ed

 
C

llr
 A

bd
ul

 A
sa

d 
 (D

ep
ut

y 
- C

llr
 S

ha
fiq

ul
 H

aq
ue

) 
                  

 C
llr

 F
oz

ol
 M

ia
h 

 (D
ep

ut
ie

s 
– 

C
llr

 W
ai

se
ul

 Is
la

m
 &

 
C

llr
 M

. M
am

un
 R

as
hi

d)
 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

Page 21



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
16

 

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 F
O

R
U

M
 

(T
o 

co
m

pr
is

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
LE

A
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r, 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

) 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 H
el

al
 U

. A
bb

as
 - 

Le
ad

 
M

em
be

r, 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(to
 

31
.8

.0
6 

on
ly

) 
                   

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

  

Page 22



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

0\
6\

5\
AI

00
00

55
60

\M
in

ut
es

24
05

06
A

pp
A

0.
do

c 
17

 

 
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 A

D
VI

SO
R

Y 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 R

EL
IG

IO
U

S 
ED

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 (S
A

C
R

E)
 

(T
o 

co
m

pr
is

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

LE
A

) 
 La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
 N

om
in

at
io

ns
 

(a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

 

R
es

pe
ct

 G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
C

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

G
ro

up
 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

 (a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie

s)
 

Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc

ra
t G

ro
up

 
N

om
in

at
io

ns
 (a

nd
 d

ep
ut

ie
s)

 

 C
llr

 A
. A

. S
ar

da
r 

                   

 C
llr

 S
ha

m
im

 A
. C

ho
ud

hu
ry

 
 (D

ep
ut

ie
s 

– 
C

llr
 L

ut
fa

 B
eg

um
 

C
llr

 A
bj

ol
 M

ia
h 

C
llr

 R
an

ia
 K

ha
n)

 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\6\5\AI00005560\Minutes240506AppB0.doc  1 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
NOMINATIONS TO THE ALG PANELS AND COMMITTEES 2006/07 

 
Leaders Committee  Cllr Denise Jones 

Cllr Sirajul Islam (Deputy) 
 

Transport and Environment Committee  Cllr Abdal Ullah  
Cllr Shahid Ali (Deputy) 
Cllr Lutfur Rahman (Deputy) 
Cllr Carli Harper-Penman (Deputy) 
Cllr M. A. Salique (Deputy) 
 

Grants Committee  Cllr Ahmed Omer 
Cllr Ann Jackson (Deputy) 
Cllr Rofique U. Ahmed (Deputy) 
Cllr Marc Francis (Deputy) 
Cllr Salim Ullah (Deputy) 
 

Greater London Employment Forum  Cllr Sirajul Islam 
Cllr Josh Peck (Deputy) 
 

London Housing Unit Executive Committee Cllr Denise Jones 
Cllr Rupert Bawden (Deputy) 
 

London Housing Unit Executive Sub-Committee Cllr Rupert Bawden 
Cllr Alex Heslop (Deputy) 
 

Health and Social Care Forum Cllr Abdul Asad 
Cllr Ahmed Omer (Deputy) 
 

Housing Forum  Cllr Rupert Bawden  
Cllr Alex Heslop (Deputy) 
 

Culture and Tourism Forum  Cllr Lutfur Rahman 
Cllr Alibor Choudhury (Deputy) 
 

Crime and Public Protection Forum  Cllr Abdal Ullah 
Cllr Salim Ullah (Deputy) 
 

Economic Development Forum Cllr Ohid Ahmed 
Cllr Anwara Ali (Deputy) 
 

Children, Young People and Families Forum  Cllr Helal U Abbas 
Cllr Alibor Choudhury (Deputy) 
 

2012 Forum Cllr Ohid Ahmed 
Cllr Lutfur Rahman (Deputy) 
 

London Caribbean Partnership Group Cllr Ahmed Omer 
 

Page 25



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\6\5\AI00005560\Minutes240506AppB0.doc  2 

 
BME Councillors’ Network A forum to enable London’s Black, 

Asian and minority ethnic 
councillors to discuss issues of 
common concern open to all BM&E 
councillors 
 

Women Councillors’ Network A network for London’s women 
councillors to discuss issues of 
common concern, open to all 
women councillors 
 

London Irish Councillors Network A forum for all London councillors 
of Irish origin or background 
 

 

Page 26



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\5\AI00005512\DraftPUBLICQuestions2106060.doc 1 

 
  
  
 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2006 
 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 
REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF 

DEMOCRATIC RENEWAL 
AND ENGAGEMENT 

 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by members of the public 

for response by the appropriate Lead Member(s). Responses of Lead 
Members to the questions submitted will be tabled at the Council 
meeting on Wednesday 21st June, 2006. 

 
1.2 The Council’s Constitution provides a time limit of thirty minutes for this 

item. 
 
1.3 A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one brief 

supplementary question without notice to the Member who has replied 
to his or her original question.  A supplementary question must arise 
directly out of the original request or reply. 

 
1.4 Any question which cannot be dealt with during the thirty minutes 

allocated for public questions, either because of lack of time or 
because of non-attendance of the Member to whom it was put, will be 
dealt with by way of a written answer. 

 
1.5 Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on 

any question, but any Member of the Council may move, without 
discussion, that the matter raised by a question be referred for 
consideration to the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee or 
Sub-Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\5\AI00005512\DraftPUBLICQuestions2106060.doc 2 

2. QUESTIONS 
 

 The questions which have been submitted  are set out below. 
 

2.1 Question from Mr T. McGrenera, Devons Road, E3, to Councillor 
Sirajul Islam, Deputy  Leader of the Council 

 
 

"How many members of staff have been disciplined or dismissed 
following complaints by the public?" 

 
 
 
  
2.2 Question from Ms J. Iremonger Hughes Mansions, Vallance Road, 

E1, to Councillor Rupert Bawden, Lead Member for Development 
and Housing  

  
“Why is a private firm used to obtain the views of doctors, (an expensive 
method, with presumably qualified GP’S), i.e. to determine if a person 
should have priority on health grounds, depending on criteria which I feel 
should be disclosed to us, which it no doubt would be, if there is an 
appeal and the applicant’s GP is consulted?” 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 28



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 1 

 
 
 
 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 21ST JUNE, 2006 

 
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
AGENDA  ITEM NO. 7 

 
REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF 

DEMOCRATIC RENEWAL 
AND ENGAGEMENT 

 

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Set out overleaf are details of the questions submitted by Members of 

the Council for response by Members of the Executive.  Responses of 
Lead Members to the questions submitted will be tabled at the Council 
meeting on Wednesday 21st June, 2006. 

 
1.2 Questions are limited to one per Member per meeting, plus one 

supplementary question unless the Member has indicated that only a 
written reply is required and in these circumstances a supplementary 
question is not permitted. 

 
1.3 Oral responses are time limited to two minutes.  Supplementary 

questions and responses are also time limited to two minutes each. 
 
1.4 There is a time limit of thirty minutes for consideration of Members’ 

questions with no extension of time allowed and any question not dealt 
within this time will be dealt with by way of written responses.  The 
Mayor will decide the time allocated to each question. 

 
1.5 Members must confine their contributions to questions and answers 

and not make statements or attempt to debate. 
 
 
2. QUESTIONS 
 
 Set out overleaf are the questions which have been received. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 2 

2.1   Question from Councillor Alex Heslop to Councillor Ohid Ahmed, 
Lead Member for Regeneration, Localisation & Community 
Partnerships 

 
          “Would the Leader/Lead Member for Regeneration state what action 

the Council is currently taking to get a new supermarket into the vacant 
Safeways store on Roman Road?  Would the Leader/Lead Member for 
Regeneration also indicate what action the Council is taking to 
regenerate the Roman Road Market” 

 
 
2.2 Question from Councillor Rania Khan to Councillor Sirajul Islam, 

Deputy Leader 
 

“The Mayor of London has committed the GLA to becoming a Living 
Wage employer, as have Barclays and HSBC banks, KPMG and Queen 
Mary's College. What measures has the Council taken to ensure that its 
own employees and those employed by contractors providing services 
for the Council, are earning at least £7.05 an hour? Can officers prepare 
a detailed statement of the rates of pay of staff on contract to the Council 
(including street and office cleaners; home helps etc.), numbers of staff 
involved and the likely cost of implementing the Mayor's Living Wage by 
April 2007 across the whole contract chain of the Council?” 

 
 
2.3  Question from Councillor Simon Rouse to Councillor Denise Jones, 

Leader of the Council 
 
“Can the Leader of the Council  outline her vision for the Council for the 
next four years and what she believes will be the key performance 
criteria by which the Council’s performance should be judged in the next 
12 months?” 

 
 
2.4  Question from Councillor Stephanie Eaton  to Councillor Abdul 

Asad, Lead Member for Older People and Health  
 
  “Health and social care are closely related, and a financial crisis on one 

side will have an impact on the other.  Given that the NHS deficit has 
more than doubled in the past year to £512 million, and all London 
Primary Care Trusts in balance are expected to contribute to a reduction 
of the London NHS deficit, what will be the impact on Council social 
services of the reduction in local health service budgets?” 

 
 
2.5   Question from Councillor Marc Francis  to Councillor Helal Abbas, 

Lead Member for Children’s Services  
 
   “To ask the Lead Member for children & young people, what steps the 

   council is taking to strengthen youth services in Bow?” 

Page 30



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 3 

2.6  Question from Councillor Ahmed Hussain to Councillor Helal Abbas, 
Lead Member for Children’s Services 

 
“The recent tensions between youth gangs at St Pauls Way School, and 
the subsequent serving of ASBOs on four young men, raise serious 
questions about the poor provision of youth services in my ward, and 
throughout the borough. 
When and where are youth services available in Mile End East?. 
What is the nature of these youth services and the facilities they 
provide? 
How often they are available?. 
Who provides them, how they are publicised and who has access to 
them?  
What after-school activities are available at St Paul's Way school and 
what plans are in place, from what date, for extending these?” 

 
 
2.7 Question from Councillor Shirley Houghton to Councillor Abdal 

Ullah,  Lead Member for Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
 

“In the light of the figures for 2005/2006 that show Tower Hamlets 
produced 3,588 tonnes of waste more than was forecast, while 
recycling 4,511 tonnes less than was forecast, will the lead member 
outline his plans for an emergency response and strategy to tackle the 
recycling crisis that, based on these figures, will result in the Borough’s 
2008/2009 recycling target being reached in 2092?" 

 
 
2.8  Question from Councillor Tim O’Flaherty to Councillor Ohid Ahmed, 

Lead Member for Regeneration, Localisation and Community 
Partnerships 

 
 “The Local Government Association Report Closer to People and 
Places published on May 22, 2006, and backed by the Leaders of all the 
political parties in local government, put forward proposals to enhance 
the role of local Councillors and put them at the heart of improving 
people’s lives and the places they live.  Does the Lead Member endorse 
this report and will he ensure that its key proposals are implemented?” 

Page 31



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 4 

2.9   Question from Councillor Carli Harper Penman to Councillor Abdal 
  Ullah, Lead Member for Cleaner, Safer, Greener 

 
“There are a number of taxi repair centres in the Borough, and 
particularly in the ward of Bethnal Green South.  Whilst these centres 
provide jobs and are important to our local economy, they can also 
cause nuisance to local people.  In a number of areas including (but not 
limited to) Cudworth St, Tapp St, Three Colts Lane and Birkbeck Street it 
is clear that garages are using the public highway as an extension of 
their workshop space; causing noise, traffic congestion and in some 
cases a danger to the public.  Additionally, residents in the vicinity of the 
streets mentioned have raised the issues of illegal parking, dumping of 
spare parts, the abandonment of scrap vehicles and the leaking of oil, 
grease and diesel onto the pavement and road areas.  What action can 
be taken to resolve this situation?” 

 
 
2.10 Question from Councillor Lutfa Begum to Councillor Sirajul Islam, 

Deputy Leader 
 

“Is the Council aware of the number of residents serving with the British 
or US army in Iraq, how many residents have been injured, or have 
refused to serve in this or other current theatres of military action?  What 
if any action is being taken to support local residents and families directly 
involved or affected?” 

 
 
2.11 Question from Councillor Phil Briscoe to Councillor Abdal Ullah, 

Lead Member for Cleaner, Greener, Safer 
 

"As the Council Action Plan and Performance Indicators make no 
reference to Police response times in the Borough, nor to the ease  
with which a crime can be reported by a member of the public, can the 
Lead Member set out his proposals for working with the Police to tackle 
the barriers (of time, distance, availability and perception) that cause 
many crimes in this Borough to go unreported?" 

 
 
2.12 Question from Councillor Rajib Ahmed to Councillor Rupert 

Bawden, Lead Member for Housing and Development   
 

“What is the Council’s position with respect to consultation with the 
traveller community living at Eleanor Street E3 about the proposed 
compulsory acquisition of this site by crossrail?” 

Page 32



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 5 

2.13 Question from Councillor Ahmed Omer to Councillor Abdul Asad, 
Lead Member for Older People and Health 

 
       “Please could the Lead Member inform the council of any decisions 

relating to the Future of the day centre at Mayfield House and on any 
further plans with regards to Adult Services provision for the Somali 
community?” 

 
 
2.14 Question from Councillor Oliur Rahman to Councillor Josh Peck, 

Lead Member for Performance and Resources 
 

         “How long has Dame Colet House been closed, is the Council incurring 
any costs as a result of the closure and what strategy does the Council 
have for the early re-opening of Dame Colet House?” 

 
 
2.15 Question from Councillor Rupert Eckhardt to Councillor Ohid 

Ahmed, Lead Member for Regeneration, Localisation & 
Community Partnerships 

 
“Could the Lead Member outline the following in relation to the 
Millennium Quarter Strategic Plan on the Isle of Dogs: 

 
• How much the plan cost to produce when it was first put together? 
• What the Council’s current view of the plan is in terms of its strategic 

importance and sustainability? 
• How the plan has been maintained and in particular public 

engagement in relation to any changes of zoning balance?” 
 
 
2.16  Question from Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan to Councillor Josh 

Peck, Lead Member for Resources and Performance 
 

“What is the current position with respect to the work of the Budget 
Scrutiny Group and, in particular, the results of the evaluation of the 
consultation process for the 2005/6 budget?” 

 
 
2.17 Question from Councillor Shiria Khatun to Councillor Lutfur 

Rahman, Lead Member for Culture 
 
        “Please would the Lead Member provide an update to the Council on the 

Chrisp Street Idea Store and the Idea Store Programme as a whole and 
in particular provide information on how the usage and levels of customer 
satisfaction with these facilities compares with their predecessors?” 

Page 33



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 6 

2.18 Question from Councillor Waisul Islam to Councillor Josh Peck, 
Lead Member for Performance and Resources 

 
“As money that belongs to and should be used to improve council homes 
and estates has been siphoned off to subsidise other projects in Tower 
Hamlets, can you give a breakdown of how much of the housing usable 
capital receipt and any other funds which were available for improving 
council housing, has been diverted to fund the Rich Mix Centre, showing 
funds diverted each financial year since 1996”. 

 
 
2.19 Question from Councillor Tim Archer to Councillor Rupert 

Bawden, Lead Member for Development & Housing 
 

“Can the Lead Member for Housing outline how much money is 
collected from Leaseholders towards the costs of local dog wardens?  
Can the Lead member also outline the total costs to the borough of dog 
warden facilities to the whole of Tower Hamlets and also for Tower 
Hamlets Council Housing Estates?” 
 
 

2.20  Question from Councillor Abdul Matin to Councillor Anwara Ali, 
Lead Member for Equalities, Employment and Skills 

 
“Could the Lead Member provide an indication as to when the Equalities 
Impact Assessments for year 3, 2004/2005 will be published on the 
Council’s website and can she give an assurance that the 
recommendations of reports published in years 1 and 2 have all been 
implemented?” 

 
 
2.21 Question from Councillor Clair Hawkins to Councillor Abdal Ullah, 

Lead Member for Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
 
   “What is the expected impact of the proposed Drinking Control Zone in 

the Museum Gardens vicinity and what other measures are being taken 
to reduce anti-social behaviour and crime in this area?” 

Page 34



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 7 

2.22 Question from Councillor Shahed Ali to Councillor Asad, Lead 
Member for Health and Older People 

 
“Councillor Asad stated on national television during the 2006 May 
council election campaign that the sale of Cheviot House, agreed by 
cabinet on 6th April 2006 was ONLY agreed in principle, but would not  
go ahead without further consultation with the community.  He defined 
this consultation to consist of some of the following measures: 
 
(a) Carry out extensive consultation with the local community, 

particularly with the local residents. 
 

 (b) Carry out consultation with Mulberry School for Girls inclusive of 
the staff and School Governors. 

 
 (c) Carry out consultation with local TRAs and voluntary community 

organisations. 
 

 (d) Carry out consultation with local religious groups and places of 
worship. 

 
 (e) Confirm the relocation of the one-stop-shop to ensure it is easily 

accessible by residents of this area. 
 
Would the Council and Councillor Asad confirm to this council, the above 
statements made to the electorate and that the cabinet decision of 6th 
April 2006 should not go ahead if findings of the above consultation are 
overwhelmingly against the disposal to East Homes Ltd for a proposed 
foyer scheme at Cheviot House?” 

 
 
2.23 Question from Councillor Emma Jones to Councillor Josh Peck, 

Leader Member for Performance and Resources 
 
“Can the Lead Member for Resources please outline the major benefits 
of the Council Accommodation strategy?” 

Page 35



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\5\AI00005513\DraftMembersQuestions210606AgendaItem70.doc 8 

2.24 Question from Councillor Alibor Choudhury to Councillor Rupert 
Bawden, Lead Member for Housing and Development   

 
  “Would the Lead Member please update the Council on the status of the 

Housing Choice Process as it relates to the Ocean Estate and Sanctuary 
Housing and the proposed timescale for the completion of the ballot 
process in this area ?” 

 
 
2.25 Question from Councillor Lutfa Begum to Councillor Anwara Ali, 

Lead Member for Employment, Equalities and Skills 
 
“In light of the business development at Canary Wharf and the city 
fringe, what factors lead to the very low employment rate in Tower 
Hamlets, affecting men and women?  What action is the Council 
proposing, and asking government to take, to address this?” 
 

Page 36



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\2\5\AI00005525\YJCabAT0.doc 
1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

05 APRIL 2006 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 05 April 2006. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
 
Councillor Michael Keith (Chair) (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Abdus Shukur (Vice-Chair) (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Education & Youth) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Social Services & Health) 
Councillor Richard Brooks  (Lead Member, Resources) 
Councillor David Edgar (Lead Member, Housing) 
Councillor Judith Gardiner  (Lead Member, Environment) 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque (Lead Member, Regeneration & Community 

Partnerships) 
Councillor Denise Jones (Lead Member, Culture) 
Councillor M Shahab Uddin  (Lead Member, Equalities & Social Inclusion) 
 
 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Timothy O'Flaherty 
 
*1. Youth Justice Plan 2006-2007: Key Proposals (CAB 195/056)  
 

We considered a report (cover report attached as Appendix A to this council report) 
which provided us with a final draft of the 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan for our 
endorsement as required under this Authority’s Budget and Policy Framework before 
consideration by Full Council. 

We were advised that this Authority is required by statute to produce an annual Youth 
Justice Plan, setting out how youth justice services are to be provided and funded. The 
Plan is completed to a template provided by the national Youth Justice Board. The plan 
is based around the 16 performance areas against which the Youth Offending Team is 
assessed. 

We were informed that in developing the Youth Justice Plan officers of this Authority 
had sought to focus on: 

• Local priorities for tackling youth offending; and 
• Areas for improvement as identified through last year’s Youth Offending Team 

inspection (Appendix C to the report before us) and benchmarking. 
 

We were informed that the following documents were appended to the report before us:- 
• Appendix A Draft Youth Justice Plan 
• Appendix B Draft Youth Justice Action Plan 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 37



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\2\5\AI00005525\YJCabAT0.doc 
2 

• Appendix C: 2005 Youth Offending Team Inspection Action Plan Summary 
 
Our Assistant Chief Executive, Ms Williams, in referring to paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 of 
the report before us, advised us that they were recommended to endorse the draft 
2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan 2006/2007 and draft Youth Justice Plan Delivery Plan, 
however an additional recommendation, required by this Authority’s Budget and Policy 
Framework, that we recommend full Council approve these plans had been omitted in 
error; and the recommendations required amendment accordingly: - 
 
We endorsed the draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan, attached at Appendix A to the 
report before us, reflecting the Local Area Partnership’s priorities for tackling youth 
offending in Tower Hamlets, and agreed that full Council be recommended to approve 
this Plan. 
 
We endorsed the draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan Delivery Plan, attached at 
Appendix B to the report before us, as the basis for improved performance in relation to 
reducing youth offending in Tower Hamlets, and agreed that full Council be 
recommended to approve this Plan. 
 
We noted the 2005 Youth Offending Team Inspection Plan summary attached at 
Appendix C to the report before us. 
 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. Approve the draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan, attached at Appendix A to the 

report (CAB 195/056) (Attached at Appendix A to this Council report). 
 
2. Approve the draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan Delivery Plan, attached at 

Appendix B to the report (CAB 195/056) (Attached at Appendix A to this 
Council report). 

 
Councillor Michael Keith 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 05/04/06  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 05/04/06. 

Page 38



 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
5th April 2006 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director: Ian Wilson, 
Corporate Director Social Services 
 
Originating officer(s): Stuart Johnson 
Service Manager, Youth Offending Team 
 

Title:  
 
Youth Justice Plan 2006 –2007: Key Proposals 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a final draft of the 2006/07 Youth Justice Plan (YJ Plan) for 

agreement by Cabinet. This is required under the Council’s Budget and Policy 
Framework before consideration by Overview and Scrutiny Committee, final 
consideration by Cabinet and the Full Council. The Council is required by 
statute to produce an annual YJ Plan, setting out how youth justice services are 
to be provided and funded. The Plan is completed to a template provided by the 
national Youth Justice Board (YJB).  

 
1.2 The plan is based around the 16 performance areas against which the Youth 

Offending Team (YOT) is assessed. In developing the plan we have sought to 
focus on: 
 Local priorities for tackling youth offending; and 
 Areas for improvement as identified through last year’s YOT inspection 

(Appendix C) and benchmarking. 
 
1.3 The following documents are attached: 

 Appendix A Draft YJ Plan 
 Appendix B Draft YJ Action Plan 
 Appendix C: 2005 YOT Inspection Action Plan Summary 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  

Brief description of “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder 
and address where open to inspection. 

Community Plan Year 5 – 2005-06 Alastair King x4981 
Strategic Plan 2005-06 Alastair King x4981 
Draft Strategic Children’s and Young 
People’s Plan 

Kevan Collins x4953 

Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy Olivia McLeod x0764 
Youth Justice Plan 2005/07 Stuart Johnson, ext. 1160 
 

Page 39



 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That:  

 
2.1 The draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan, attached at Appendix A, reflecting the 

Local Area Partnership’s priorities for tackling youth offending in Tower 
Hamlets, be endorsed 

 
2.2 The draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan Action Plan, attached at Appendix B, as 

the basis for improved performance in relation to reducing youth offending in 
Tower Hamlets, be endorsed. 

 
2.3 The 2005 Youth Offending Team Inspection Plan summary attached at 

Appendix C of this report be noted. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The YOT is a statutory multi-agency body set up in the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998. Its primary aim is to prevent offending by young people, and it has 
responsibility for the delivery of all sentences imposed by the youth court, as 
well as preventative and rehabilitative work with young people between the 
ages of 10 and 17. The YOT has jurisdiction over Tower Hamlets and the City 
of London and works with between 400 and 550 young people each year. The 
YOT is part of Crime Reduction Services and comprises 32 staff, including 
secondees from Social Services, Education, Police, Health, Probation and 
Connexions.   

 
3.2 The work of the YOT is overseen by a cross-agency YOT Management Board. 

This year, the YOT Management Board has formally become a fully 
accountable sub-group of the Living Safely CPAG. It has expanded its statutory 
remit beyond overseeing the direct work of the YOT to looking at the wider 
agenda of tackling youth offending, involving all areas of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership. This widening of scope is reflected in this year’s YJ Plan which 
seeks to align the planned work of the YOT with wider partnership work 
(including through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) and the Local 
Area Agreement (LAA)) on local priorities. The Management Board has also 
sought to ensure that the YOT’s priorities are reflected in wider service 
development, for example the re-tendering of the youth service contracts, and 
Children’s Service’s work on parents and families. 

 
3.3 The YOT’s priorities for action next year have been set following consideration 

of: 
 Areas for improvement identified by last year’s joint inspection of the YOT. 

This included strengthened performance management, victim and 
restorative justice work, and equality issues.  

Page 40



 

 Areas for improvement identified by assessment of performance. This 
highlights victim work, education, employment and training and over-use of 
custody (in addition to operational issues identified below). 

 Strategic Partnership priorities, in particular the LAA objectives and CYPP 
priority outcomes; and 

 Partnership priorities in tackling youth offending, as identified by Members in 
the discussion of last year’s YJ Plan, and through consultation on the YJ 
plan with CPAG, the YOT Management Board and more widely with 
partners, including the third sector, through YOT development sessions.  

 
3.4 Accordingly, the YOT Management Board has identified key priorities for the 

delivery plan as: 
 Early intervention 
 Strengthening families with a focus on parenting 
 Working with victims 
 Supporting partnership action on ASB and the government’s Respect 

agenda 
 Tackling disproportionate representation of some ethnic groups in the Youth 

Justice System – a new objective set this year by the YJB. 
 In addition, we will continue to develop the structures for planning, 

management, delivery and evaluation of work on this agenda to ensure the 
activity of the YOT is effectively coordinated with other partnership work, 
particularly around the CYPP. This includes responding to the “localisation 
agenda”: ensuring that services respond to local needs. 

 
3.5 The YJ Plan will contribute to the delivery of the following strategic objectives: 

 The CYPP priority outcomes, in particular: Staying Safe, Making a Positive 
Contribution and Achieving Economic Wellbeing 

 LAA priority outcomes, especially those of the Safer Stronger Communities 
block, in particular Reducing Youth Violence, Tacking ASB and the 
associated LPSA targets. 

 The Community and Strategic Plans 
 The Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy 

 
4. OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 
 
4.1 In 2005, the YOT was inspected and received a rating of ‘satisfactory’ with a 

‘good basis for future development’. A summary of inspection recommendations 
and action taken is attached below at Annex A. Where work is still outstanding 
this has been reflected in the YJ Plan. 

 
4.2 The performance of the YOT is measured annually against 20 key performance 

indicators (KPIs) set by the YJB. The table below gives a summary of: 
 YOT performance against KPI targets in 2004/05; and 
 The most up-to-date 2005/06 YOT performance data available which is from 

the first 3 quarters of 2005/06 (to December 2005). This gives performance 
against KPI targets and a new comparison with YOT family borough areas 
unavailable in 2004/05 

Page 41



 

 The ‘traffic lights’ in this table are allocated by the YJB on a points basis. 
 
4.3 The performance table highlights a number of strengths in our performance: 

 Indicative figures show that the focus on prevention in last year’s plan has 
paid off, with a reduction of first time entrants to the Youth Justice system of 
2.7%, above the national target of 2%  

 ‘Scored performance’, i.e. the total number of points scored, has increased 
from 2004/05 to 2005/06 (to date).  

 The number of red indicators has decreased from 2004/05 to 2005/06. 
 The borough’s performance is now better than the YOT family average 
 We have significantly improved performance against the parenting indicator 

and increased victim interventions, both priorities in last years plan. 
 The YOT performance level has been raised from 2 to 3 (of 5), above the 

family and London rating, and in line with the National average 
 
4.4 The table also illustrates the key areas for improvement, which have been 

addressed in the draft Delivery Plan attached at Appendix B. Specific areas of 
concern, where 2005/06 KPI results are either red or yellow and below family 
performance, are as follows: 
 Effective early intervention (Final warnings) 
 Use of remand and custodial sentences 
 Engagement of victims (Restorative processes) 
 Timely and effective assessment (Community Asset – Start) 
 Sentence planning (Pre-sentence reports and Detention and Training Order 

planning) 
 Accommodation 

 

Page 42



 

05/06 
accum to 
12/05

LBTH YOT Target LBTH YOT Target Family
1. Final Warnings Higher 73.24% 80% 77.4% 80% 84.89%
2. Use of remand Lower 40.40% 30% 50.63% 38% 51.28%
3. Custodial sentences Lower 5.56% 6% 7.33% 5% 6.25%
4. Restorative processes Higher 51.11% 75% 59.68% 75% 88.41%
5. Victim satisfaction Higher 96.30% 75% 85.71% 75% 94.44%
6. Parenting Higher 3.55% 10% 19.00% 10% 13.88%
7. Parental satisfaction Higher 100.00% 75% 100.00% 75% 98.95%
8. Community ASSET - Start Higher 98.20% 95% 91.11% 95% 94.43%
9. Community ASSET - End Higher 95.15% 95% 94.95% 95% 96.70%
10. Custodial ASSET - Start Higher 100.00% 95% 96.30% 95% 98.51%
11. Custodial ASSET - Transfer Higher 100.00% 95% 100.00% 95% 99.39%
12. Custodial ASSET - End Higher 100.00% 95% 100.00% 95% 100.00%
13. Pre-Sentence Reports Higher 74.11% 90% 78.15% 90% 87.48%
14. Detention and Training Order planning Higher 61.90% 95% 74.07% 95% 86.08%
15. Education, Training and Employment Higher 76.26% 90% 89.10% 90% 74.88%
16. Accommodation Higher 88.33% 95% 92.66% 95% 89.97%
17. CAMHS - Acute Higher 100.00% 95% 100.00% 95% 93.96%
18. CAMHS - Non Acute Higher 100.00% 95% 100.00% 95% 78.7%
19. Substance Misuse - Assessment Higher 100.00% 95% 86.05% 85% 88.13%
20. Substance Misuse - Intervention Higher 100.00% 95% 100.00% 85% 95.72%

Scored KPI performance Higher 47 58 57
KPI Performance % Higher 78.3% 77.3% 67.47%
EPQA Performance Higher n/a* 82.94% 73.14%
Overall Performance Level Higher n/a* Level 3 Level 2
Overall Performance % Higher n/a* 60.41% 56.97%

*New YJB Performance Framework from 1st April 2005

2004 / 05 05/06 accum to 12/05 *Key Performance Indicator Preferred 
Outcome

 
 
Key: Red   Amber  Green 
 
4.5 The YJB sets performance targets for YOTs on an annual basis. The targets set 

for next year have been reviewed to ensure they reflect our local objectives and 
in the case of the parenting KPI, a more ambitious target of 20% has been set 
locally to reflect the priority assigned to this in Tower Hamlets. 

 
5. DELIVERY PLAN PROPOSALS FOR COMMENT 
 
5.1 The most important section of the Youth Justice Plan is the Delivery Plan 

(attached as part of Appendix A). This is required to provide an overview of: 
 performance last year; and 
 how we will meet the KPI targets set by the YJB for 2006/07 

Underpinning the Delivery Plan is a detailed action plan (attached at Appendix 
B) setting out the activities the partnership will undertake under each of the 16 
YJB themes. These were developed by the YOT Management Board in 
consultation with internal and external partners and stakeholders (through a 
number of development sessions). 

 
5.2 The action plan includes priority actions for the YOT arising from the Race Audit 

Action Plan, which sets out activities to meet the new YJB objective to reduce 
disproportionate representation of ethnic groups in the youth justice system. We 

Page 43



 

have established a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group which will continue to 
meet to consider the actions the Police, Courts and Crown Prosecution can take 
in order to assist the YOT with this objective. 

  
5.3   Under each theme, Cabinet is requested to consider whether the proposed 

activities reflect the partnership’s priorities for tackling youth offending and are 
sufficient to deliver improved performance 

 
6.  OVERVIEW OF RESOURCING 
 
6.1 It is currently anticipated that all the delivery plan proposals listed above can be 

catered for within the 2006/07 budget of £1,785,539. However, actions where it 
is proposed that funding be obtained from the Stronger Communities Fund 
(SSCF), Borough Command Unit Fund (BCU) or Neighbourhood Renewal 
Fund, is dependent on the agreement of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 

 
6.2 The 2006/07 budget for the YOT consists of the following: 

 Police       £100,378 
 Probation      £40,080 
 Social Services     £298,771 
 Education      £93,705 
 Health       £59,125 
 Local Authority - Chief Executive’s Directorate £493,000 
 City of London      £9,000 
 Youth Justice Board (YJB)    £350,332 
 YJB Prevention                                                      £168,220 
 Resettlement and Aftercare Programme  £172,928 
 TOTAL:       £1,785,539 

 
7. TIMETABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF THE YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 
 
7.1   Following discussion by Cabinet, and subject to its approval, the timetable for 

submission is as follows: 
 Submission of draft to the YJB:  30th April 2006 
 Submission to Full Council:   June 2006 
 Submission of agreed version to YJB: June 2006 
 

7.2   The YJB has this year brought forward the timescale for the submission of this 
statutory plan to align it with the Children’s and Young People’s Plan and the 
Annual Performance Assessment. The revised timetable means that only three-
quarters of performance information will be available to inform planning. It also 
means that it will not be possible to secure Full Council’s agreement of the Plan 
in time for the YJB deadline. Accordingly, we have secured the YJB’s 
agreement that we may submit a draft plan by 30th April which will be subject to 
change by Full Council and submitted in its final form only after it has been 
agreed by that body. 

 

Page 44



 

8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
8.1        The draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan, attached at Appendix A, reflecting the 

Local Area Partnership’s priorities for tackling youth offending in Tower Hamlets 
be endorsed 
 

8.2 The draft 2006/2007 Youth Justice Plan Action Plan, attached at Appendix B as       
the basis for improved performance in relation to reducing youth offending in 
Tower Hamlets be endorsed. 

 
8.3 The 2005 Youth Offending Team Inspection Plan summary attached at 

Appendix C be noted. 
 
 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1 The Youth Justice Plan detailed in this report is to be funded from a number of 

sources such as central government grants and funding from partners. The 
Council’s contribution comes from a number of Directorate’s including Chief 
Executive’s; Social Services and Education and involves the funding of salaries, 
commissioning work, accommodation and office running costs. 

 
10.2 All funding sources are cash limited.  The Service must ensure that all funding 

streams are fully and correctly utilised in achieving the Plan.   
 
11. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 
 
11.1   This report is asking Cabinet to consider, comment and endorse the Youth 

Justice Plan for 2006/2007 and also asks for Cabinet to recommend the plan to 
Full Council. 

 
11.2   The Council is required by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to submit the Youth 

Justice Plan to the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales annually.  The 
Plan is prepared in accordance with a template provided by the Youth Justice 
Board and is prepared in partnership with the Police, Probation and Health 
Service. Further, as set out above, the Plan is required to go through the budget 
and policy framework procedure rules as set out in the Council's Constitution. 

 
12. ANTI-POVERTY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1   Evidence shows that young people from impoverished backgrounds are more 

likely to be both victims and perpetrators of youth justice. By ensuring effective 
partnership working between agencies to provide a holistic response to young 
people at risk, the Youth Justice Plan seeks to address that discrepancy.  

 
12.2   The Youth Justice Board recognise that nationally, black and minority ethnic 

(BME) children and young people continue to be disproportionately represented 
throughout the youth justice system. The YOT has undertaken a full Race Audit 

Page 45



 

to identify differences between the YOT cohort and the youth demographic of 
the Borough. This has identified over-representation by certain groups. A Race 
Audit Action Group has been set up to respond appropriately to this and this 
work has been incorporated into the attached draft 2006/07 Delivery Plan. 

 
12.3 Furthermore an Equalities Impact Assessment of the Partnership Crime and 

Drugs Reduction Strategy has been undertaken which has identified a number 
of activities which are incorporated in the action plan, including: 
 Production of a standard protocol to ensure appropriate race equality 

policies are in place when working in partnership with external organisations 
 Provision of gender appropriate support packages to truly reflect the 

offending rate of each gender group. 
 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
13.1   The Youth Justice Plan is not anticipated to have implications in this area. 
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
14.1 A number of risks to the delivery of the 2006/07 Youth Justice Plan have been 

identified, including loss of funding and failure to meet targets. As such, a risk 
analysis is to be undertaken on each action contained within the action plan, to 
be included in the next draft. 

 
15   EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
 
15.1   The process of developing the YJ Plan has included reviewing the current 

allocation of resources across the partnership to tackle youth crime. This has 
identified scope for streamlining and coordination which will result in more 
effective and efficient services. Example of how this has been included in the 
Delivery Plan include the proposal for a single parenting charter for the 
partnership and the alignment of assessment and referral processes, both of 
which avoid duplication and have the potential to deliver economies of scale. 

 
 
   

Page 46



 
 

 
1 

 
 

         TO
W

ER
 H

A
M

LE
TS

 a
nd

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LO

N
D

O
N

 
 Yo

ut
h 

Ju
st

ic
e 

Pl
an

 
  20

06
 –

 2
00

7 
 

Page 47



 
 

 
2 

 TA
B

LE
 O

F 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 

A
.  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
3 

B
. 

Lo
ca

l P
la

nn
in

g 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
8 

C
. 

D
riv

er
s 

of
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

10
 

C
.1

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
10

 
C

.2
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 Q
ua

lit
y 

S
ys

te
m

s 
12

 
C

.3
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

13
 

C
.4

 
P

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

21
 

C
.5

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 W

or
ki

ng
 

25
 

D
. 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 

28
 

E.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
45

 

F.
 

A
pp

en
di

ce
s 

47
 

 A
pp

en
di

ce
s 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

: 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l C
ha

rt
 

48
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

: 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

49
 

 

Page 48



 
 

 
3 

A
. 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
: 

Th
is

 y
ea

r, 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 h
as

 fo
rm

al
ly

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
fu

lly
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 s

ub
-g

ro
up

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (k

no
w

n 
lo

ca
lly

 a
s 

th
e 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
C

P
A

G
). 

It 
ha

s 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 it

s 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
m

it 
be

yo
nd

 o
ve

rs
ee

in
g 

th
e 

di
re

ct
 w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
Y

O
T,

 to
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

ge
nd

a 
of

 ta
ck

lin
g 

yo
ut

h 
of

fe
nd

in
g,

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
al

l a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. T

hi
s 

w
id

en
in

g 
of

 s
co

pe
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 Y
J 

P
la

n,
 w

hi
ch

 
se

ek
s 

to
 a

lig
n 

th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
w

ith
 w

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
on

 lo
ca

l p
rio

rit
ie

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

la
n 

(C
Y

P
P

) a
nd

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
))

. T
he

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
so

ug
ht

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
Y

O
T’

s 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 w

id
er

 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
re

-te
nd

er
in

g 
of

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s,

 a
nd

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

’s
 w

or
k 

on
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 fa

m
ili

es
. T

he
 L

oc
al

 
A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t h

as
 g

iv
en

 a
 s

tro
ng

 b
oo

st
 to

 th
is

 w
or

k 
by

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

is
su

es
 (s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 ta

ck
lin

g 
yo

ut
h 

vi
ol

en
ce

 a
nd

 d
ru

g 
pr

ev
en

tio
n)

 a
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

“S
af

er
 S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
” s

tra
nd

. 
Th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
fo

r 2
00

6/
07

 a
ss

es
se

s 
th

e 
Y

O
T’

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 2

00
5/

06
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

ls
 it

s 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t f

in
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

16
 p

rio
rit

y 
th

em
es

 s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 (Y
JB

). 
 T

he
 P

la
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
es

 th
e 

Y
O

T’
s 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

Y
J 

B
 la

st
 

D
ec

em
be

r. 
 2

00
5/

06
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
ye

ar
 o

f b
ot

h 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
Jo

in
t I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
ea

rly
 la

st
 y

ea
r, 

go
od

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

on
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
bo

th
 th

e 
ro

bu
st

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

, w
hi

ch
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 m
os

t o
th

er
 a

ct
io

ns
 in

 
th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n’
s 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n.

  T
he

 re
su

lts
 a

re
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 in
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (s

ee
 b

el
ow

). 
In

di
ca

tiv
e 

fig
ur

es
 s

ho
w

 th
at

 th
e 

fo
cu

s 
on

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

in
 la

st
 y

ea
r’s

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
pa

id
 o

ff,
 w

ith
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 fi
rs

t t
im

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 
of

 2
.7

%
, a

bo
ve

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l t

ar
ge

t o
f 2

%
. E

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 o

ur
 s

tre
ng

th
 in

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
w

or
k 

w
as

 re
ce

nt
ly

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 b

y 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
in

g 
aw

ar
de

d 
B

ea
co

n 
S

ta
tu

s 
fo

r i
ts

 w
or

k 
on

 e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n.
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 re

du
ce

d 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
in

 th
re

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 re
ci

di
vi

sm
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r, 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 o

f a
 

5%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
en

al
tie

s.
  T

he
 P

re
-C

ou
rt 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

 w
as

 o
nl

y 
tw

o 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 th
e 

Fi
rs

t T
ie

r p
en

al
ty

 ra
te

 w
as

 e
ve

n 
cl

os
er

 to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
ho

pe
fu

l t
ha

t o
ur

 e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

w
ill

 re
du

ce
 th

es
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

s 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
ffe

nc
es

 w
ith

 s
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 in
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

A
pr

il 
to

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
w

as
 8

22
.  

Th
e 

to
ta

l f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
10

50
 a

nd
 1

08
0 

(th
e 

20
04

/0
5 

to
ta

l w
as

 1
00

0)
, a

nd
 it

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 th

e 
sl

ig
ht

 u
pw

ar
d 

tre
nd

 o
f t

he
 la

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

. 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ith
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
A

pr
il 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5/

06
 w

as
 4

44
.  

Th
e 

to
ta

l f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 

be
 b

et
w

ee
n 

52
0 

an
d 

59
0 

(th
e 

20
04

/0
5 

to
ta

l w
as

 5
37

), 
an

d 
it 

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 th
e 

sl
ig

ht
 u

pw
ar

d 
tre

nd
 o

f t
he

 la
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
m

ay
 c

on
tin

ue
. 

Th
e 

da
ta

 re
po

rte
d 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s’
 p

la
ns

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
se

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

di
sc

ov
er

y 
of

 a
 re

po
rti

ng
 e

rr
or

 in
 th

e 
Y

ot
 d

at
ab

as
e.

  T
w

o 
ty

pe
s 

of
 o

ffe
nc

e 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
in

co
rr

ec
tly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 c

al
cu

la
tin

g 
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
ou

tc
om

es
.  

Th
e 

is
su

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

so
lv

ed
, a

nd
 th

e 
fig

ur
es

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

ch
ar

ts
 

ar
e 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 fi

gu
re

s.
 

 

Page 49



 
 

 
4 

O
ffe

nc
es

 w
ith

 S
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

O
ut

co
m

es

12
71

10
33

90
4

97
4

10
00

82
2

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6 

Ap
r-

D
ec

P
os

t-S
oc

so
ft 

U
pd

at
e

 
  

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ith
 S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
es

 b
y 

Ye
ar

67
1

55
8

48
7

52
2

53
7

44
4

0

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

80
0

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6 

Ap
r-D

ec

O
ffe

nd
er

s

 
 

Page 50



 
 

 
5 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
Th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 Y

O
T 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
’s

 (Y
JB

) k
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 is

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
, p

ro
vi

di
ng

: 
• 

Y
O

T 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
P

I t
ar

ge
ts

 in
 2

00
4/

05
; a

nd
 

• 
Th

e 
m

os
t u

p-
to

-d
at

e 
20

05
/0

6 
Y

O
T 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 fr

om
 th

e 
fir

st
 3

 q
ua

rte
rs

 o
f 2

00
5/

06
 (t

o 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5)

. T
hi

s 
gi

ve
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

P
I t

ar
ge

ts
 a

nd
 a

 n
ew

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 w

ith
 Y

O
T 

fa
m

ily
 b

or
ou

gh
 a

re
as

 - 
un

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 2
00

4/
05

 
• 

Th
e 

‘tr
af

fic
 li

gh
ts

’ p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Y
JB

 o
n 

a 
po

in
ts

 b
as

is
 

05
/0

6 
ac

cu
m

 to
 

12
/0

5
LB

TH
 Y

O
T

Ta
rg

et
LB

TH
 Y

O
T

Ta
rg

et
Fa

m
ily

1.
 F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

s
Hi

gh
er

73
.2

4%
80

%
77

.4
%

80
%

84
.8

9%
2.

 U
se

 o
f r

em
an

d
Lo

we
r

40
.4

0%
30

%
50

.6
3%

38
%

51
.2

8%
3.

 C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

Lo
we

r
5.

56
%

6%
7.

33
%

5%
6.

25
%

4.
 R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s

Hi
gh

er
51

.1
1%

75
%

59
.6

8%
75

%
88

.4
1%

5.
 V

ic
tim

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
Hi

gh
er

96
.3

0%
75

%
85

.7
1%

75
%

94
.4

4%
6.

 P
ar

en
tin

g
Hi

gh
er

3.
55

%
10

%
19

.0
0%

10
%

13
.8

8%
7.

 P
ar

en
ta

l s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
Hi

gh
er

10
0.

00
%

75
%

10
0.

00
%

75
%

98
.9

5%
8.

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

SS
ET

 - 
St

ar
t

Hi
gh

er
98

.2
0%

95
%

91
.1

1%
95

%
94

.4
3%

9.
 C

om
m

un
ity

 A
SS

ET
 - 

En
d

Hi
gh

er
95

.1
5%

95
%

94
.9

5%
95

%
96

.7
0%

10
. C

us
to

di
al

 A
SS

ET
 - 

St
ar

t
Hi

gh
er

10
0.

00
%

95
%

96
.3

0%
95

%
98

.5
1%

11
. C

us
to

di
al

 A
SS

ET
 - 

Tr
an

sf
er

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
95

%
99

.3
9%

12
. C

us
to

di
al

 A
SS

ET
 - 

En
d

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
13

. P
re

-S
en

te
nc

e 
Re

po
rts

Hi
gh

er
74

.1
1%

90
%

78
.1

5%
90

%
87

.4
8%

14
. D

et
en

tio
n 

an
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 O
rd

er
 p

la
nn

in
g

Hi
gh

er
61

.9
0%

95
%

74
.0

7%
95

%
86

.0
8%

15
. E

du
ca

tio
n,

 T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t
Hi

gh
er

76
.2

6%
90

%
89

.1
0%

90
%

74
.8

8%
16

. A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

Hi
gh

er
88

.3
3%

95
%

92
.6

6%
95

%
89

.9
7%

17
. C

AM
HS

 - 
Ac

ut
e

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
95

%
93

.9
6%

18
. C

AM
HS

 - 
No

n 
Ac

ut
e

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
95

%
78

.7
%

19
. S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

- A
ss

es
sm

en
t

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
86

.0
5%

85
%

88
.1

3%
20

. S
ub

st
an

ce
 M

is
us

e 
- I

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n

Hi
gh

er
10

0.
00

%
95

%
10

0.
00

%
85

%
95

.7
2%

Sc
or

ed
 K

PI
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Hi

gh
er

47
58

57
KP

I P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 %
Hi

gh
er

78
.3

%
77

.3
%

67
.4

7%
EP

Q
A 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
Hi

gh
er

n/
a*

82
.9

4%
73

.1
4%

O
ve

ra
ll 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 L

ev
el

Hi
gh

er
n/

a*
Le

ve
l 3

Le
ve

l 2
O

ve
ra

ll 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 %
Hi

gh
er

n/
a*

60
.4

1%
56

.9
7%

*N
ew

 Y
JB

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fro
m

 1
st

 A
pr

il 
20

05

20
04

 / 
05

05
/0

6 
ac

cu
m

 to
 1

2/
05

 *
Ke

y 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

co
m

e

 
 

Page 51



 
 

 
6 

Th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ta

bl
e 

hi
gh

lig
ht

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
tre

ng
th

s 
in

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

: 
 

‘S
co

re
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
’, 

i.e
. t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f p

oi
nt

s 
sc

or
ed

, h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 2

00
4/

05
 to

 2
00

5/
06

 (t
o 

da
te

). 
 

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

ed
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 2

00
4/

05
 to

 2
00

5/
06

. 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
r a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

vi
ct

im
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
, b

ot
h 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
in

 la
st

 y
ea

r’s
 p

la
n.

 
 

Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 n

ow
 b

et
te

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

fa
m

ily
 a

ve
ra

ge
. 

 
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 le

ve
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

ra
is

ed
 fr

om
 2

 to
 3

 (o
f 5

), 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
ra

tin
g,

 a
nd

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
. 

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
al

so
 il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 th
e 

dr
af

t D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n 

at
ta

ch
ed

 a
t A

pp
en

di
x 

B
. S

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
as

 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

, w
he

re
 2

00
5/

06
 K

P
I r

es
ul

ts
 a

re
 e

ith
er

 re
d 

or
 y

el
lo

w
 a

nd
 b

el
ow

 fa
m

ily
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ea
rly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

(F
in

al
 w

ar
ni

ng
s)

 
 

U
se

 o
f r

em
an

d 
an

d 
cu

st
od

ia
l s

en
te

nc
es

 
 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t o

f v
ic

tim
s 

(R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s)
 

 
Ti

m
el

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t (

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

 –
 S

ta
rt)

 
 

S
en

te
nc

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 (P

re
-s

en
te

nc
e 

re
po

rts
 a

nd
 D

et
en

tio
n 

an
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 O
rd

er
 p

la
nn

in
g)

 
 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 o

ur
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 th

e 
ra

tin
gs

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 fo
ur

 a
re

as
 to

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 (E
P

Q
A

) p
ro

ce
ss

.  
Th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

ur
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

ns
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 ra
tin

g 
of

 ‘3
’ f

or
 E

ar
ly

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n,

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t/ 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

/s
up

er
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 E
du

ca
tio

n/
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t; 

P
ar

en
tin

g 
ha

s 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
its

 h
ig

he
r 

ra
tin

g 
of

 ‘3
’. 

 In
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 R
es

et
tle

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 re

ce
iv

ed
 it

s 
in

iti
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t d

ur
in

g 
20

05
/0

6,
 w

e 
ar

e 
pr

ed
ic

tin
g 

an
 im

pr
ov

ed
 ra

tin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

R
es

et
tle

m
en

t s
tra

nd
 in

 th
is

 Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
P

la
n.

 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
ca

n 
be

 c
at

er
ed

 fo
r w

ith
in

 th
e 

20
06

/0
7 

bu
dg

et
 o

f £
2,

04
7,

27
6,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Y

JB
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
Fu

nd
. H

ow
ev

er
, a

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 fu

nd
in

g 
be

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 F

un
d 

(S
S

C
F)

, B
or

ou
gh

 
C

om
m

an
d 

U
ni

t F
un

d 
(B

C
U

) o
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 F
un

d,
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t o
f t

he
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

.  
 

Page 52



 
 

 
7 

K
ey

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 fo

r 2
00

6/
07

 

Th
e 

Y
O

T’
s 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r a
ct

io
n 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r h
av

e 
be

en
 s

et
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

: 
 

A
re

as
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 b

y 
la

st
 y

ea
r’s

 jo
in

t i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Y

O
T.

 T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 s

tre
ng

th
en

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
vi

ct
im

 a
nd

 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
ju

st
ic

e 
w

or
k,

 a
nd

 e
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es
.  

 
A

re
as

 fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 b
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. T
hi

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

as
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

is
su

es
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, v
ic

tim
 w

or
k,

 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 o
ve

r-
us

e 
of

 c
us

to
dy

 (i
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l i
ss

ue
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
be

lo
w

). 
 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

rio
rit

ie
s,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

LA
A

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 C

Y
P

P
 p

rio
rit

y 
ou

tc
om

es
; a

nd
 

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

in
 ta

ck
lin

g 
yo

ut
h 

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 M

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
 o

f l
as

t y
ea

r’s
 Y

J 
P

la
n,

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 

th
e 

Y
J 

pl
an

 w
ith

 C
P

A
G

, t
he

 Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

w
id

el
y 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r, 

th
ro

ug
h 

Y
O

T 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
se

ss
io

ns
. 

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, t
he

 Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 a

s:
 

 
E

ar
ly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

 
S

tre
ng

th
en

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
ith

 a
 fo

cu
s 

on
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 v

ic
tim

s 
 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 A
S

B
 a

nd
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t’s
 R

es
pe

ct
 a

ge
nd

a 
 

Ta
ck

lin
g 

di
sp

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
om

e 
et

hn
ic

 g
ro

up
s 

in
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

Ju
st

ic
e 

S
ys

te
m

 –
 a

 n
ew

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
se

t t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

JB
. 

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, w
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 w
or

k 
on

 th
is

 a
ge

nd
a 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 o
f t

he
 Y

O
T 

is
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
C

Y
P

P
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

“lo
ca

lis
at

io
n 

ag
en

da
”: 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
. 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
’s

 p
la

ns
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 Y
ou

th
 In

cl
us

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
 p

ar
en

ts
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
go

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Y
IS

P
 p

ro
ce

ss
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 A
S

B
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 
Th

e 
Y

J 
P

la
n,

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 1

6 
Y

JB
 th

em
es

, w
ill

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

: 
 

Th
e 

C
Y

P
P

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

, i
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

r: 
S

ta
yi

ng
 S

af
e,

 M
ak

in
g 

a 
P

os
iti

ve
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
an

d 
A

ch
ie

vi
ng

 E
co

no
m

ic
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
 

LA
A

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 th

os
e 

of
 th

e 
S

af
er

 S
tro

ng
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 b
lo

ck
, i

n 
pa

rti
cu

la
r R

ed
uc

in
g 

Y
ou

th
 V

io
le

nc
e,

 T
ac

ki
ng

 A
SB

 a
nd

 th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 L

P
S

A
 ta

rg
et

s.
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
ns

 
 

Th
e 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

ru
gs

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 

O
ve

ra
ll,

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 h

av
e 

ne
ve

r b
ee

n 
st

ro
ng

er
, a

nd
 w

e 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

th
at

 th
e 

Y
O

T’
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

en
ef

it 
fro

m
 th

e 
st

ro
ng

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
. 

Ia
n 

W
ils

on
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

nd
 C

ity
 o

f L
on

do
n 

YO
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

. 

Page 53



 
 

 
8 

B
. 

LO
C

A
L 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
 

 Lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 h

ow
 th

e 
rig

ht
 b

al
an

ce
 is

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 / 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y:

 

Th
e 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

Te
am

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

, w
hi

ch
 it

se
lf 

is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e.
 

Th
e 

C
R

S
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 fi

ve
 te

am
s,

 n
am

el
y:

 
• 

C
rim

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 U

ni
t; 

• 
A

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 C

on
tro

l U
ni

t; 
• 

D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e 
Te

am
; 

• 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
; a

nd
 

• 
D

ru
gs

 A
ct

io
n 

Te
am

. 

Th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.  
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
er

 s
er

ve
s 

on
 th

e 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 th

e 
D

A
T 

an
d 

A
S

B
 U

ni
t m

an
ag

er
s,

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 to

 y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

ca
n 

be
 re

co
nc

ile
d.

 
Li

nk
s 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 ju
st

ic
e 

ar
e 

en
su

re
d 

by
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir,
 T

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 C

rim
e 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

er
 b

ei
ng

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 L

iv
in

g 
S

af
el

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

, w
hi

ch
 a

ct
s 

as
 th

e 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r R
ed

uc
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 is

 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

’s
 w

or
k 

on
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 is
su

es
.  

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

er
 a

ls
o 

si
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

P
ro

lif
ic

 P
rio

rit
y 

O
ffe

nd
er

 (P
P

O
) 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ou
p,

 c
o-

ch
ai

rs
 th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 a

nd
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(C

R
S

) a
tte

nd
s 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l C
rim

in
al

 
Ju

st
ic

e 
B

oa
rd

 (L
C

JB
). 

Th
is

 p
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f t

he
 w

id
er

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fra

m
ew

or
k.

  T
he

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 b

rin
gs

 
to

ge
th

er
 a

ll 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 to

 a
cc

el
er

at
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ga
in

st
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 T
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

’s
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 fo
r 2

01
0,

 
an

d 
is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
.  

Th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ls

o 
pr

od
uc

es
 a

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 m

ee
t y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

’s
 n

ee
ds

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, e
ac

h 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 d
ev

el
op

s 
its

 o
w

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

.  
Th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

re
 m

irr
or

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n.
  T

he
 2

00
6/

07
 it

er
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
se

 p
la

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
, h

ea
lth

, e
du

ca
tio

n,
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

, w
hi

ch
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 in
 th

is
 p

la
n.

  C
or

e 
Y

O
T 

is
su

es
 a

re
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

 b
y 

th
e 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 (C
P

A
G

) 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

C
1 

be
lo

w
. 

Th
is

 y
ea

r, 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

’ L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t h

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r j
oi

ne
d-

up
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
is

su
es

 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

Y
O

T,
 w

hi
ch

 g
o 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
fo

ur
 s

tra
nd

s 
of

 th
e 

LA
A

. O
ut

co
m

es
 a

gr
ee

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 L

A
A

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, d
ev

el
op

 a
 “S

af
er

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

” t
o 

st
re

ng
th

en
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

to
 ta

ck
le

 y
ou

th
 v

io
le

nc
e 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 g
at

e,
 a

nd
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 C
le

an
er

 S
af

er
 T

ea
m

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

yo
ut

h 
w

or
ke

rs
) t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

jo
in

ed
 u

p,
 p

ro
bl

em
-s

ol
vi

ng
 re

sp
on

se
 a

t t
he

 lo
ca

l 
le

ve
l. 

A
s 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

, t
he

 Y
O

T 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
at

 e
ve

ry
 le

ve
l. 

Th
e 

Page 54



 
 

 
9 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 s

it 
on

 th
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
, a

nd
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

is
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
on

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
S

oc
ia

l I
nc

lu
si

on
 P

an
el

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ar
ea

 C
hi

ld
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

w
el

l r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
he

ad
 o

f t
he

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Tr
us

t p
ilo

t a
nd

 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
. T

he
 C

R
S

 S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
dr

af
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

la
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
is

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

on
 th

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

s 
fo

r t
he

 A
nn

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
S

ta
yi

ng
 S

af
e 

an
d 

M
ak

in
g 

a 
P

os
iti

ve
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n)
. 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
is

 a
ls

o 
cl

os
el

y 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

’s
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 R
es

pe
ct

 a
ge

nd
a,

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

om
et

im
es

 
co

nf
lic

tin
g 

ag
en

da
s 

ar
ou

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t a
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

ba
la

nc
ed

. 
      

Page 55



 
 

 
10

 

C
. 

D
R

IV
ER

S 
O

F 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
.1

 
G

O
VE

R
N

A
N

C
E 

A
N

D
 L

EA
D

ER
SH

IP
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

: 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

nd
 it

s 
pa

rtn
er

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

ite
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r a
ll 

th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r t

hi
s 

co
m

m
itm

en
t i

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n.

 T
hi

s 
en

vi
sa

ge
s 

th
at

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
by

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
: 

• 
A

 P
la

ce
 fo

r L
iv

in
g 

S
af

el
y 

• 
A

 P
la

ce
 fo

r L
iv

in
g 

W
el

l 
• 

A
 P

la
ce

 fo
r C

re
at

in
g 

an
d 

S
ha

rin
g 

P
ro

sp
er

ity
 

• 
A

 P
la

ce
 fo

r L
ea

rn
in

g,
 A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
 

• 
A

 P
la

ce
 fo

r E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Th

es
e 

fiv
e 

ke
y 

th
em

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
co

rn
er

st
on

e 
of

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 L

oc
al

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. I

t i
s 

th
es

e 
th

em
es

 th
at

 u
nd

er
pi

n 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
e 

al
l 

le
ve

ls
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. I
t i

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
th

at
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 s
et

s 
th

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 Y

O
T 

to
 m

ee
t b

ot
h 

na
tio

na
l a

nd
 lo

ca
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
Th

is
 y

ea
r, 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 h

as
 fo

rm
al

ly
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

fu
lly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 s
ub

-g
ro

up
 o

f t
he

 L
iv

in
g 

S
af

el
y 

C
P

A
G

. I
t h

as
 e

xp
an

de
d 

its
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

m
it 

be
yo

nd
 o

ve
rs

ee
in

g 
th

e 
di

re
ct

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
to

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 th

e 
w

id
er

 a
ge

nd
a 

of
 ta

ck
lin

g 
yo

ut
h 

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

al
l a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 T

ow
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. T

hi
s 

w
id

en
in

g 
of

 s
co

pe
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 Y
J 

P
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
ee

ks
 to

 a
lig

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

w
ith

 w
id

er
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

on
 lo

ca
l p

rio
rit

ie
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n 
(C

Y
P

P
) a

nd
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

LA
A

))
. T

he
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
so

ug
ht

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
Y

O
T’

s 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 w

id
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
re

-te
nd

er
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

s,
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
’s

 w
or

k 
on

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
es

. 
O

ur
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

vi
si

on
 fo

r t
he

 Y
O

T 
is

 th
at

, t
hr

ou
gh

 it
s 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

, i
t b

ec
om

es
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

in
 it

s 
de

liv
er

y,
 a

nd
 w

e 
pl

an
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 p
ai

re
d 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(L
AP

s)
 a

re
as

 (t
w

o 
in

 2
00

6/
07

). 
O

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 w

ill
 

be
 to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

 a
t t

he
 p

re
-c

ou
rt 

st
ag

e;
 ta

ck
le

 A
S

B
 jo

in
tly

 w
ith

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

s;
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 fa
m

ili
es

; 
su

pp
or

t v
ic

tim
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
eq

ua
l t

re
at

m
en

t r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 ra

ce
.  

W
e 

sh
al

l c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 o

f t
he

 Y
O

T 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
C

Y
P

P
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

“lo
ca

lis
at

io
n 

ag
en

da
”: 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
. 

In
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
In

sp
ec

tio
n’

s 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n,
 th

e 
YO

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

 s
tro

ng
er

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

oc
us

; t
he

 
B

oa
rd

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
 q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rt 

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, w

hi
ch

 le
ad

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
d 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
io

ns
.  

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 to

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
P

la
n,

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

its
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
ns

, k
ey

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. P
ar

tn
er

s 
al

so
 h

av
e 

ta
sk

s 
as

cr
ib

ed
 to

 th
em

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
, a

n 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 a

s 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

by
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

In
sp

ec
tio

n.
 

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 m
ak

in
g 

its
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
m

or
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

s 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
be

co
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

  I
n 

th
e 

m
ea

nt
im

e 
it 

w
ill

 

Page 56



 
 

 
11

 

se
ek

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

es
si

on
s 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
ru

n-
up

 to
 th

is
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 in

vo
lv

ed
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
pa

rtn
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r. 

 T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 L
on

do
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
ha

s 
ch

an
ge

d,
 w

ith
 a

 B
la

ck
/U

K
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 W

hi
te

/U
K

 m
em

be
r. 

 
 Ta

bl
e 

A
: C

om
po

si
tio

n 
of

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 
N

am
e 

A
ge

nc
y 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

Po
st

 in
 a

ge
nc

y 
Et

hn
ic

ity
 

G
en

de
r 

C
ha

ir:
 Ia

n 
W

ils
on

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

or
po

ra
te

 D
ire

ct
or

 
W

/U
K

 
M

 
C

hr
is

 C
ha

te
r 

Lo
nd

on
 P

ro
ba

tio
n 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
W

/U
K

 
M

 
D

al
 B

ab
u 

P
ol

ic
e 

C
hi

ef
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t 
A

si
an

/U
K

 
M

 
Sa

m
 V

ar
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 (P
C

T)
 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
W

/U
K

 
F 

St
ev

e 
Si

pp
le

 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 
W

/U
K

 
M

 
O

liv
ia

 M
cL

eo
d 

C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

W
/U

K
 

F 
Pe

te
r J

oy
ce

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

P
rin

ci
pa

l O
ffi

ce
r E

du
ca

tio
n 

S
oc

ia
l 

W
or

k 
 

W
/Ir

is
h 

M
 

Sh
ar

on
 D

av
id

so
n 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 L

on
do

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
, C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
/U

K
 

F 

R
ob

in
 C

al
le

nd
er

-S
m

ith
 

Th
am

es
 M

ag
is

tra
te

s 
C

ou
rt 

C
le

rk
 to

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 C

ou
rt 

W
/U

K
 

M
 

C
hr

is
 M

un
da

y 
P

ilo
t C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
W

/U
K

 
M

 
H

ea
th

er
 M

al
lin

de
r 

A
nt

i S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 C
on

tro
l U

ni
t 

P
rin

ci
pa

l I
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
 O

ffi
ce

r 
W

/U
K

 
F 

C
la

ire
 G

as
ki

n 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 T

ru
st

 
H

ea
d 

of
 N

ur
si

ng
 

W
/U

K
 

F 
C

hr
is

tin
e 

Th
or

nb
or

ro
w

 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

do
n 

P
ol

ic
e 

 
W

/U
K

 
F 

St
ua

rt
 J

oh
ns

on
 

Y
O

T 
H

ea
d 

of
 Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

W
/U

K
 

M
 

Page 57



 
 

 
12

 

C
.2

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

A
N

D
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

 S
YS

TE
M

S 
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 d

at
a 

qu
al

ity
: 

A
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

C
1 

ab
ov

e,
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 lo

ca
l t

ar
ge

ts
 s

its
 w

ith
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

.  
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 th
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 n
ow

 re
ce

iv
es

 q
ua

rte
rly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rts
 a

nd
 a

ct
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ny
 a

re
as

 o
f u

nd
er

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. T

hi
s 

is
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
at

 a
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

le
ve

l b
y 

th
e 

ro
le

 o
f L

iv
in

g 
S

af
el

y 
C

P
A

G
 in

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 w

hi
ch

 re
su

lts
 in

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

riv
e 

up
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r t
o 

al
lo

ca
te

 re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ee

tin
gs

 a
ls

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 a

pp
ra

is
al

s 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
st

at
is

tic
al

 re
tu

rn
s 

to
 th

e 
Y

JB
 a

nd
 Y

JB
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
ns

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

.  
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

 h
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 g
at

e 
ke

ep
in

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
an

d 
a 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
tim

el
y 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 P
re

-s
en

te
nc

e 
re

po
rts

 a
nd

 fo
r a

ss
es

si
ng

 A
S

S
E

T 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

.  
A

S
S

E
T 

ca
se

 a
ud

its
 a

re
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
. 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
es

e 
sy

st
em

s,
 a

pa
rt 

fro
m

 a
 s

lig
ht

ly
 lo

w
er

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 D
is

po
sa

ls
 a

nd
 C

us
to

dy
 S

ta
rt 

A
S

S
E

Ts
, w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
or

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ur
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
Y

JB
 K

P
I, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

at
 fo

r i
ni

tia
l t

ra
in

in
g 

pl
an

s.
 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
em

pl
oy

s 
an

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

of
fic

er
 w

ho
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r c

ol
la

tin
g,

 c
le

an
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
ys

in
g 

da
ta

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rti
ng

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. I
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
da

ta
, t

he
 Y

O
T 

ha
s 

be
ne

fit
ed

 fr
om

 w
or

k 
in

 C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r R
ed

uc
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 u

se
 d

at
a 

to
 in

fo
rm

 s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, a

nd
 d

riv
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

rim
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 re
po

rts
 a

re
 n

ow
 re

gu
la

rly
 p

ro
du

ce
d.

  
A

ll 
th

e 
st

af
f r

ec
ei

ve
 re

gu
la

r s
up

er
vi

si
on

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
an

 a
nn

ua
l a

pp
ra

is
al

, t
he

 g
oa

ls
 o

f w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
Y

JB
’s

 ta
rg

et
s;

 te
am

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 h
el

d 
w

ee
kl

y,
 w

ith
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 Y
O

T 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

ce
 a

 m
on

th
, a

nd
 o

ne
 m

ee
tin

g 
a 

m
on

th
 is

 d
ev

ot
ed

 to
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l p

ra
ct

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
Y

JB
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

is
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
t t

he
 w

ho
le

 Y
O

T 
m

on
th

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
.  

In
di

vi
du

al
 s

ta
ff 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
es

e 
sy

st
em

s.
 

       

Page 58



 
 

 
13

 

C
.3

 
R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

 
 C

3 
a 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

ng
es

 in
 re

so
ur

ce
s:

 

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
ca

n 
be

 c
at

er
ed

 fo
r w

ith
in

 th
e 

20
06

/0
7 

bu
dg

et
 o

f £
2,

04
7,

27
6,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Y

JB
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
Fu

nd
. H

ow
ev

er
, a

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 fu

nd
in

g 
be

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 F

un
d 

(S
S

C
F)

, B
or

ou
gh

 
C

om
m

an
d 

U
ni

t F
un

d 
(B

C
U

) o
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 F
un

d,
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t o
f t

he
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
Th

e 
Y

JB
 h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ou
r p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r t

he
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

Fu
nd

: 
 

£1
25

,3
84

 (£
62

,6
92

 x
 2

) f
or

 th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f Y

IP
s 

in
 tw

o 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 p
ai

re
d 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(L
A

P
) 

 
£4

2,
83

5 
to

 fu
nd

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt 
w

or
ke

r 
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 o

ur
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f R
es

et
tle

m
en

t a
nd

 A
fte

rc
ar

e 
P

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 
gr

an
t f

un
di

ng
 o

f £
17

2,
92

8.
 

Th
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

£2
0,

00
0 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
an

d 
m

ee
t t

he
 p

hy
si

ca
l h

ea
lth

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f Y

O
T 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
no

t 
ye

t 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
P

A
Y

P
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 t

ho
ug

h 
it 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

no
un

ce
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
am

al
ga

m
at

io
n 

of
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

to
 Y

ou
th

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

fu
nd

s.
 

             

Page 59



 
 

 
14

 

Ta
bl

e 
A

1:
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 2

00
6 

– 
20

07
 

  
C

or
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 

B
ud

ge
t e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 (£

) 
Pr

ev
en

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
67

5,
22

0 
PA

C
E 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
12

,0
00

 
Pr

e-
co

ur
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

12
0,

00
0 

C
ou

rt
-b

as
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
18

5,
86

8 
R

em
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

57
,0

00
 

C
om

m
un

ity
-b

as
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
25

5,
86

9 
Th

ro
ug

h 
ca

re
 / 

af
te

r c
ar

e 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
A

P)
 

24
7,

92
8 

O
th

er
 o

rd
er

s 
49

3,
39

1 
To

ta
l: 

2,
04

7,
27

6 
               

Page 60



 
 

 
15

 

Ta
bl

e 
A

2:
 Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 B

ud
ge

t F
in

an
ci

al
 Y

ea
r 2

00
6 

– 
20

07
 –

 S
ou

rc
es

 
  

A
ge

nc
y 

St
af

fin
g 

co
st

s 
(£

) 
Pa

ym
en

ts
 in

 k
in

d 
– 

re
ve

nu
e 

(£
) 

O
th

er
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 fu
nd

s 
(£

) 
To

ta
l (

£)
 

Po
lic

e 
94

,0
78

 
 

6,
30

0 
10

0,
37

8 
Pr

ob
at

io
n 

30
,0

80
 

 
10

,0
00

 
40

,0
80

 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
29

8,
77

1 
 

 
29

8,
77

1 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

93
,7

05
 

 
 

93
,7

05
 

H
ea

lth
 (f

ro
m

 T
ab

le
 A

2b
) 

34
,0

00
 

20
,0

00
 

5,
12

5 
59

,1
25

 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

C
hi

ef
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
 

31
1,

00
0 

18
2,

00
0 

 
49

3,
00

0 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
di

ng
 

(fr
om

 T
ab

le
 A

2a
) 

 
 

96
2,

21
7 

96
2,

21
7 

To
ta

l 
86

1,
63

4 
20

2,
00

0 
98

3,
64

2 
2,

04
7,

27
6 

 Ta
bl

e 
A

2a
: A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f i

nc
om

e 
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ou
rc

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 (£

) 
Si

ng
le

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
B

ud
ge

t 
N

il 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 F

un
di

ng
 

N
il 

Yo
ut

h 
Ju

st
ic

e 
B

oa
rd

  C
or

e 
YJ

B
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
31

2,
06

9 
16

8,
22

0 
 

O
th

er
 –

 C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
9,

00
0 

O
th

er
 - 

 R
es

et
tle

m
en

t a
nd

 A
fte

rc
ar

e 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

17
2,

92
8 

O
th

er
 - 

 S
SC

F 
10

0,
00

0 
O

th
er

 –
 N

R
F 

B
id

 L
A

P 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 Y

IP
 (t

o 
be

 c
on

fir
m

ed
) 

20
0,

00
0 

(to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
) 

Page 61



 
 

 
16

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ou
rc

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 (£

) 
To

ta
l (

fo
r i

nc
lu

si
on

 in
 T

ab
le

 A
2)

 
96

2,
21

7 
  Ta

bl
e 

A
2b

: H
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
s 

 
  

H
ea

lth
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n:

 F
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 (£
) 

So
ur

ce
 1

: P
C

T 
C

A
M

H
S 

St
af

f S
ec

on
dm

en
t 

34
,0

00
 

So
ur

ce
 2

: P
C

T 
Pr

im
ar

y 
H

ea
lth

 S
cr

en
in

g 
20

,0
00

 
So

ur
ce

 3
: P

C
T 

B
ud

ge
t C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

 5
,1

25
 

To
ta

l (
fo

r i
nc

lu
si

on
 in

 T
ab

le
 A

2)
 

59
,1

25
 

                

Page 62



 
 

 
17

 

  C
3 

b 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
M

E 
R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 m
ee

t s
pe

ci
al

is
t n

ee
ds

: 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r o

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ith

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
ar

e 
hi

gh
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. T

he
 B

or
ou

gh
-w

id
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 s

ub
st

an
ce

 m
is

us
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

– 
th

e 
la

rg
es

t o
f i

ts
 

ki
nd

 in
 L

on
do

n 
- w

en
t o

pe
ra

tio
na

l (
de

liv
er

ed
 b

y 
“L

ife
lin

e”
) a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 2

00
5 

an
d 

a 
lin

k 
w

or
ke

r i
s 

ba
se

d 
in

 th
e 

YO
T 

tw
o 

da
ys

 p
er

 w
ee

k.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

w
or

ke
r i

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

w
ho

 s
cr

ee
ns

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

ha
s 

a 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
E

as
t L

on
do

n 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 T

ru
st

, w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 c

ov
er

 fo
r t

he
 F

or
en

si
c 

A
do

le
sc

en
t C

om
m

un
ity

 
P

sy
ch

ia
tri

c 
N

ur
se

, a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fr

om
 C

A
M

H
S

 fo
r t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

to
 o

ffe
nd

in
g,

 a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 th

e 
Y

IS
P

. 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

up
po

rt 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 R

es
et

tle
m

en
t a

nd
 A

fte
rc

ar
e 

(R
A

P
) a

re
 n

ow
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fro
m

 n
ew

 Y
JB

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
Th

is
 p

rin
ci

pa
lly

 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 F
am

ily
 G

ro
up

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t o

f t
ra

in
ed

 v
ol

un
te

er
 m

en
to

rs
, b

ut
 a

ls
o 

ar
t t

he
ra

py
, f

irs
t a

id
 tr

ai
ni

ng
, d

ig
ita

l v
id

eo
 

w
or

k,
 a

nd
 fo

ot
ba

ll 
tra

in
in

g.
 

Y
O

T 
cl

ie
nt

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
on

st
itu

te
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
ho

se
 b

ei
ng

 g
iv

en
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

N
ew

 S
ta

rt 
w

hi
ch

 e
ng

ag
es

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

of
 d

ys
le

xi
a 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

is
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 c
la

rif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y;

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 “N
ew

 S
ta

rt”
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

“D
ys

pe
l” 

se
rv

ic
e.

 A
 li

te
ra

cy
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

vi
a 

G
A

P
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

W
or

k 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 w
ith

 L
E

A
P

 C
on

fro
nt

in
g 

C
on

fli
ct

, t
he

 L
E

A
, t

he
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Fu

nd
 a

nd
 S

ch
oo

ls
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
Ju

st
ic

e 
in

 S
ch

oo
ls

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 A

ls
o 

on
go

in
g 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f K

ey
 S

ki
lls

 4
 is

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

th
ei

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 to

 Y
O

T,
 a

nd
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
N

E
E

T 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
gs

, i
.e

. n
ew

 P
rin

ce
s 

Tr
us

t a
nd

 3
rd

 D
im

en
si

on
 M

us
ic

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
Th

e 
“P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

” s
tra

nd
 o

f “
P

ro
lif

ic
 a

nd
 O

th
er

 P
rio

rit
y 

O
ffe

nd
er

s”
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

br
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

ar
 o

n 
th

os
e 

at
 ri

sk
 o

f 
be

co
m

in
g 

pr
ol

ifi
c 

of
fe

nd
er

s,
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

, o
n 

av
er

ag
e,

 3
0 

P
P

O
s.

 
P

os
iti

ve
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
A

Y
P

) h
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

fu
nd

ed
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
8-

 1
8y

ea
r o

ld
s 

w
ith

 d
iv

er
si

on
ar

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

ac
cr

ed
ite

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 a
nd

 fu
rth

er
 b

id
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
om

in
g 

ye
ar

. 
Th

e 
Y

IS
P

 h
as

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

Y
O

T,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 S
um

m
er

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 (S

po
rts

, A
rts

, E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
C

ar
ee

rs
), 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Fu
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 ( 
S

pi
ta

lfi
el

ds
 Y

ou
ng

 F
ar

m
er

s 
C

lu
b,

 S
yd

ne
y 

C
yb

er
 C

lu
b)

, O
ld

 F
or

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

ho
lid

ay
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 a

fte
r-

sc
ho

ol
 c

lu
bs

), 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
os

iti
ve

 F
ut

ur
es

 (L
ey

to
n 

O
rie

nt
): 

D
ru

g 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
sp

or
ts

, H
ea

lth
 

Th
ro

ug
h 

S
ch

oo
l d

ru
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 J

un
io

r Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
y 

sc
he

m
es

 a
nd

 a
fte

r s
ch

oo
l c

lu
bs

, T
ol

er
an

ce
 in

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 (P

ee
r E

du
ca

tio
n 

W
or

ks
ho

ps
) a

nd
 tw

o 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
ar

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
po

si
tiv

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
 T

he
 Y

IS
P

 a
ls

o 
ac

ce
ss

es
 m

en
to

rin
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

S
H

A
A

TH
I 

m
en

to
rin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
ru

n 
by

 B
LY

D
A

 a
nd

 c
an

 re
fe

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
C

O
P

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
P

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

 tw
o 

ou
t o

f t
he

 fo
ur

 L
A

P
s.

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
w

or
ke

r s
ec

on
de

d 
to

 th
e 

Y
O

T,
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
lin

k 
P

A
 w

ith
 a

 le
ad

 fo
r g

an
g 

vi
ol

en
ce

 a
nd

 c
rim

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t s

up
po

rt.
 

Th
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t  
fo

r p
ar

en
tin

g 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 C
or

am
 fa

m
ili

es
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

fo
r 6

 g
ro

up
-w

or
k 

co
ur

se
s 

pe
r y

ea
r (

13
 s

es
si

on
s)

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 7

5 

Page 63



 
 

 
18

 

fa
m

ili
es

, a
nd

 in
di

vi
du

al
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r 8
0 

fa
m

ili
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r. 
 A

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt 

w
or

ke
r i

s 
to

 b
e 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 g
ro

w
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
pa

re
nt

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

A
B

C
s,

 re
pr

im
an

d 
ca

se
s 

re
fe

rr
ed

 b
y 

Y
O

T 
P

ol
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
, a

nd
 

Y
O

T 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f A
S

B
 c

as
es

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 fu
rth

er
 2

5 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

. Y
O

T 
cl

ie
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

ac
ce

ss
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

w
id

er
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 c
en

tre
. P

ar
en

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
LA

A
. 

Page 64



 
 

 
19

 

C
3 

c 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

Y 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 u

se
 o

f I
T 

as
 a

n 
en

ab
le

r t
o 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(c
ov

er
in

g 
se

cu
re

 e
m

ai
l, 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s,

 IT
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 IT

 e
na

bl
er

s,
 a

nd
 b

ar
rie

rs
 to

 IT
 u

se
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ov
er

co
m

e)
: 

A
fte

r p
la

yi
ng

 a
n 

ac
tiv

e 
ro

le
 in

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
se

cu
re

 e
-m

ai
l, 

in
 2

00
5/

06
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

se
cu

re
 e

-m
ai

l f
or

 th
e 

tra
ns

m
is

si
on

 o
f 

al
l p

la
ce

m
en

t a
le

rts
 fr

om
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

to
 th

e 
Y

JB
 P

la
ce

m
en

ts
 T

ea
m

.  
Th

e 
se

cu
re

 e
-m

ai
l s

ys
te

m
 is

 a
ls

o 
us

ed
 b

y 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 to

 s
en

d 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
en

te
nc

in
g 

hi
st

or
ie

s 
an

d 
AS

S
E

TS
 to

 o
th

er
 Y

O
Ts

.  
Th

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

 is
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 in
 

20
06

/0
7.

  A
ll 

st
af

f h
av

e 
be

en
 tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

ec
ur

e 
e-

m
ai

l. 
A

fte
r p

ilo
tin

g 
R

yo
ge

ns
 in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s,

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
ha

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sy

st
em

, r
e-

na
m

ed
 T

H
IS

ch
ild

.  
Th

e 
sy

st
em

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 

re
co

rd
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

r a
le

rts
 ra

is
ed

 b
y 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
w

ho
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
  A

le
rts

 a
re

 lo
gg

ed
 w

he
n 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

on
ce

rn
 th

at
 a

 c
hi

ld
 is

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 

of
fe

nd
in

g.
  W

he
n 

a 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

is
 re

ac
he

d,
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 n
ot

ifi
es

 a
 s

ys
te

m
 a

dm
in

is
tra

to
r t

o 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

e 
ca

se
 fo

r f
ur

th
er

 a
ct

io
n.

  A
ll 

st
af

f h
av

e 
be

en
 

tra
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
sy

st
em

. 
A

 n
ew

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 Y

O
T’

s 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

, Y
O

IS
, w

as
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 fe

w
 d

ay
s 

of
 th

e 
20

04
/0

5 
ye

ar
, a

nd
 in

 th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
ha

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
so

ftw
ar

e.
  I

n 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 le
tte

rs
 fu

nc
tio

n 
w

as
 m

ad
e 

liv
e,

 a
nd

 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ea
se

 o
f p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
le

tte
rs

 h
as

 im
pr

ov
ed

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 o

f p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s.
  T

he
 n

ew
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
s 

fo
r p

la
ce

m
en

t a
le

rts
 a

nd
 

po
st

-c
ou

rt 
re

po
rts

 h
av

e 
en

ab
le

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 s
ec

ur
e 

e-
m

ai
l. 

 T
he

 im
pr

ov
ed

 u
se

r i
nt

er
fa

ce
 fo

r A
S

S
E

TS
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 q
ui

ck
er

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 A

S
S

E
TS

, 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 v

er
si

on
 o

f Y
O

IS
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 fa
r f

ew
er

 c
om

pu
te

r c
ra

sh
es

 a
nd

 a
 c

on
se

qu
en

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f 
da

ta
.  

Th
is

 h
as

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 w

he
n 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

.  
Fu

rth
er

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 v

er
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f 2
00

6/
07

.  
A

ll 
st

af
f h

av
e 

be
en

 tr
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

, a
nd

 fu
rth

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

 n
ew

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 is
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 in
 

20
06

/0
7.

 
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

ha
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
tw

o 
P

C
s 

fo
r u

se
 b

y 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
.  

At
 p

re
se

nt
, t

he
se

 a
re

 u
se

d 
by

 th
e 

S
ub

st
an

ce
 M

is
us

e 
W

or
ke

r t
o 

al
lo

w
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 

ac
ce

ss
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

on
 th

e 
In

te
rn

et
 w

he
n 

ex
pl

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
da

ng
er

s 
of

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e.
 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 a

ll 
so

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

si
ne

ss
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

 b
y 

20
07

, t
he

 Y
O

T 
up

gr
ad

ed
 it

s 
P

C
s 

to
 

ru
n 

W
in

do
w

s 
XP

.  
Th

is
 u

pg
ra

de
 b

ro
ug

ht
 g

re
at

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

st
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
IC

T 
pl

at
fo

rm
, a

nd
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 fe
w

er
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

IC
T 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  T

hi
s 

ha
s 

tra
ns

la
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 in

to
 g

re
at

er
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 fo

r a
ll 

Y
O

T 
st

af
f. 

 T
he

 u
pg

ra
de

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
m

ad
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 fu
rth

er
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 th
e 

IC
T 

eq
ui

pm
en

t u
se

d 
by

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
its

 s
ta

ff,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 fi

rs
tly

 to
 u

se
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 fo
r r

em
ot

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

ne
tw

or
k,

 a
nd

 s
ec

on
dl

y 
to

 u
se

 
ha

nd
he

ld
 d

ev
ic

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 P

D
A

s.
 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 e

na
bl

in
g 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
pe

rip
at

et
ic

 w
or

ke
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

ne
tw

or
k 

fro
m

 re
m

ot
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 u
si

ng
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

.  
O

nc
e 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 p

ha
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

, p
ro

ba
bl

y 
ea

rly
 in

 2
00

6/
07

, t
he

 Y
O

T 
w

ill
 ta

lk
 to

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 
en

ab
lin

g 
th

em
 to

 li
nk

 re
m

ot
el

y 
to

 th
e 

Y
O

T’
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
. 

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 is
 a

ls
o 

be
in

g 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 Y

ou
th

 C
ou

rt.
  T

he
 Y

O
T 

ha
s 

in
 2

00
5/

06
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 u

se
d 

a 
re

m
ot

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
its

 c
as

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 a
t c

ou
rt.

  T
he

 u
se

 o
f b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
is

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

fa
st

er
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 n

et
w

or
k 

ac
ce

ss
 

in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
, t

he
re

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

 o
f Y

O
T 

st
af

f w
ho

 a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
t c

ou
rt.

 

Page 65



 
 

 
20

 

A
 n

um
be

r o
f P

D
A

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 b
y 

Y
O

T 
w

or
ke

rs
 in

 2
00

5/
06

, a
nd

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
ir 

us
e 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 2
00

6/
07

.  
Th

e 
ca

le
nd

ar
 fu

nc
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

th
e 

m
os

t u
se

d 
fe

at
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

P
D

A
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

fu
rth

er
 u

se
 o

f t
hi

s 
fu

nc
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

. 
V

id
eo

-c
on

fe
re

nc
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

se
d 

in
 2

00
5/

06
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 to
 m

ee
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 c

us
to

dy
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 tr
av

el
 to

 th
e 

Y
O

I. 
 T

he
 u

se
 

of
 th

is
 fa

ci
lit

y,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 N

ew
ha

m
 Y

O
T,

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 2

00
6/

07
. 

Th
e 

ch
ie

f b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 IC
T 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e:

 u
se

r a
pt

itu
de

; B
or

ou
gh

 IC
T 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t c

on
st

ra
in

ts
; d

ra
w

ba
ck

s 
of

 th
e 

YO
IS

 c
as

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

; a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

st
ra

in
ts

.  
R

eg
ul

ar
 fo

rm
al

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
of

fic
er

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
us

er
 s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
ar

ity
 w

ith
 IC

T 
sy

st
em

s.
  A

 g
oo

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
ha

s 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 IC

T 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
bu

t t
he

 
sp

ee
d 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
s 

is
 a

 m
aj

or
 c

on
st

ra
in

t. 
Th

e 
ne

xt
 u

pg
ra

de
 o

f t
he

 Y
O

IS
 s

ys
te

m
 p

ro
m

is
es

 to
 in

tro
du

ce
 m

or
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
m

od
er

n 
W

in
do

w
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

oo
ls

, a
nd

 th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

us
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ys
te

m
.  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 n

ew
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
uc

h 
as

 P
D

A
s,

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
   

Page 66



 
 

 
21

 

C
.4

 
PE

O
PL

E 
A

N
D

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
TI

O
N

 
 C

4 
a 

W
O

R
K

FO
R

C
E 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

  
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 a

nd
 s

ta
ff 

in
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
un

de
r c

on
tr

ac
t: 

 
Th

e 
Th

am
es

 In
te

ns
iv

e 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 S

ur
ve

ill
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
co

ns
or

tiu
m

, o
f w

hi
ch

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 is

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
is

 to
 re

vi
ew

 it
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
w

ith
 Y

A
P

 U
K

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
er

 a
ga

in
st

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

, i
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
07

. 
W

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

cr
ui

tin
g 

st
af

f f
or

 th
e 

tw
o 

Y
IP

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 C

3 
ab

ov
e,

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

am
ily

 
su

pp
or

t w
or

ke
r w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 fr
om

 C
or

am
 F

am
ili

es
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
r. 

 
N

in
e 

R
A

P
 v

ol
un

te
er

 m
en

to
rs

 a
re

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

tra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rth
er

 s
ev

en
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
cr

ee
ne

d 
fo

r s
ui

ta
bi

lit
y.

 T
he

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

m
en

to
rs

 to
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
kn

ow
n 

to
 h

av
e 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
m

is
us

e 
or

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s.
 T

he
 v

ol
un

te
er

 m
en

to
r t

ra
in

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

 w
ill

 b
e 

at
 B

-T
ec

h 
le

ve
l t

hr
ee

 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

n 
in

 m
en

to
rin

g,
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

by
 R

P
S

 R
ai

ne
r. 

V
ol

un
te

er
s 

al
so

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

er
ve

 o
n 

th
e 

R
ef

er
ra

l O
rd

er
 P

an
el

s.
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Y
JB

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 
Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ha

ve
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 th
e 

R
A

P
 C

o-
or

di
na

to
r a

nd
 th

e 
R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
Ju

st
ic

e 
w

or
ke

r o
n 

fix
ed

 te
rm

 c
on

ta
ct

s,
 a

nd
 w

ill
 s

ho
rtl

y 
be

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

fo
r t

w
o 

se
ni

or
 p

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 c

as
ew

or
ke

rs
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 te

am
. 

       

Page 67



 
 

 
22

 

Ta
bl

e 
A

3:
 S

ta
ff 

in
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 (b

y 
he

ad
co

un
t) 

Pl
ea

se
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
tw

o 
To

ta
ls

 a
re

 th
e 

sa
m

e,
 a

nd
 th

at
 a

ll 
da

ta
 e

nt
er

ed
 h

er
e 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
at

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 T
he

m
is

 
 

 
M

an
ag

er
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
M

an
ag

er
s 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

Se
ni

or
 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 
(F

T)
 

Se
ni

or
 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 
(P

T)
 

Pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 
(F

T)
 

Pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 
(P

T)
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Se
ss

io
na

l 
St

ud
en

ts
/ 

tr
ai

ne
es

 
Vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

To
ta

l 

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
1 

3
0

0
4

0
4

0
0

0 
12

 

Fi
xe

d 
Te

rm
  

0 
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

2
0 

5 

Se
co

nd
ee

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

0 
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
0 

5 

Se
co

nd
ee

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
0 

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0 
1 

Se
co

nd
ee

 P
ol

ic
e 

0 
0

0
0

2
0

1
0

0
0 

3 

Se
co

nd
ee

 H
ea

lth
 

0 
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0 

1 

Se
co

nd
ee

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
0 

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0 
1 

Se
co

nd
ee

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

0 
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
0 

2 

Se
co

nd
ee

  O
th

er
 

0 
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0 

1 

O
ut

so
ur

ce
d 

 
0 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0 
0 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 

0 
0

0
0

3
0

4
13

0
37

 
57

 

Va
ca

nt
 

0 
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0 

2 

TO
TA

L 
1 

3
3

0
21

1
9

13
2

37
 

90
 

G
en

de
r/E

th
ni

ci
ty

 
 

 
 

W
hi

te
 M

al
e 

1 
1

0
0

5
0

1
1

1
6 

16
 

B
la

ck
 M

al
e 

0 
0

0
0

3
0

1
7

0
0 

11
 

A
si

an
 M

al
e 

0 
0

1
0

3
1

1
2

0
6 

14
 

M
ix

ed
 R

ac
e 

M
al

e 
0 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1 
0 

C
hi

ne
se

/O
th

er
 M

al
e 

0 
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0 

1 

W
hi

te
 F

em
al

e 
0 

1
0

0
6

0
2

1
1

12
 

23
 

B
la

ck
 F

em
al

e 
0 

1
0

0
0

0
2

1
0

1 
5 

A
si

an
 F

em
al

e 
0 

0
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

5 
7 

M
ix

ed
 R

ac
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

0 
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
4 

6 

C
hi

ne
se

/O
th

er
 F

em
al

e 
0 

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

2 
4 

TO
TA

L 
1 

3
1

0
21

1
9

13
2

37
 

88
 

 

Page 68



 
 

 
23

 

C
4 

b 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f w

or
kf

or
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
an

d 
st

af
f i

n 
ou

ts
ou

rc
e 

ag
en

ci
es

: 
V

ol
un

te
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 –
 s

ee
 S

ec
tio

n 
C

4a
 a

bo
ve

 
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 

A
ct

io
n 

Pr
ev

en
t O

ffe
nd

in
g 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 T

H
IS

 C
H

IL
D

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
In

te
rv

en
e 

Ea
rly

 
N

o 
tra

in
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 
IS

SP
 

N
o 

tra
in

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
.  

 
R

ed
uc

e 
U

se
 o

f C
us

to
dy

 
C

ou
rt 

G
oo

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ro

up
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 m
on

th
ly

 te
am

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
se

ss
io

n.
 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 S
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g 
on

 C
rim

in
al

 J
us

tic
e 

Ac
t a

nd
 it

s 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

n 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

, a
nd

   
   

   
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

'P
at

hw
ay

' g
ro

up
 w

or
k 

is
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
R

ed
uc

e 
R

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
he

ld
 m

on
th

ly
 a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
te

am
 m

ee
tin

g 
cy

cl
e.

 
S

ta
ff 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
tra

in
ed

 in
 a

 n
ew

 v
io

le
nc

e 
gr

ou
p-

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t a

nd
 e

na
bl

in
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

P
at

hw
ay

s 
gr

ou
p-

w
or

k 
re

fre
sh

er
 

Sw
ift

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 J

us
tic

e 
B

en
ch

 m
ar

ki
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
En

su
re

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
&

 R
ig

or
ou

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 g

ro
up

 w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
.  

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
he

ld
 m

on
th

ly
 a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
te

am
 m

ee
tin

g 
cy

cl
e 

ET
E 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

ot
iv

at
io

na
l i

nt
er

vi
ew

in
g 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
is

 g
ro

up
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
em

 
to

 d
ea

l e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 d
is

af
fe

ct
ed

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
Su

pp
or

t A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

V
ol

un
te

er
 M

en
to

r t
ra

in
in

g 
(B

-T
ec

h 
le

ve
l t

hr
ee

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
in

 m
en

to
rin

g 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 R
P

S
 

R
ai

ne
r)

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r Y
O

T 
st

af
f t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 n

ew
 B

or
ou

gh
 T

ie
r 2

 In
iti

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t t
oo

l 
Su

pp
or

t A
cc

es
s 

to
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ol

l o
ut

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 a

ll 
Y

O
T 

ca
se

 w
or

ke
rs

 - 
C

A
M

H
S,

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff;

 th
e 

C
A

M
H

S
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
co

ur
se

 is
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 T

he
 A

do
le

sc
en

t F
or

en
si

c 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
sy

ch
ia

tri
c 

N
ur

se
 is

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 a
n 

M
S

C
 c

ou
rs

e 
in

 th
e 

P
sy

ch
od

yn
am

ic
s 

of
 

H
um

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Su
pp

or
t A

cc
es

s 
to

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
N

o 
tra

in
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 

Page 69



 
 

 
24

 

Su
pp

or
t R

es
et

tle
m

en
t i

nt
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f v
ol

un
te

er
s 

un
de

r R
A

P
 –

 s
ee

 u
nd

er
 S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

Su
pp

or
t P

ar
en

tin
g 

In
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 p
ar

en
ta

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t/A

S
S

E
T 

au
di

t i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 re

su
lt 

in
 re

fe
rr

al
 o

f p
ar

en
t f

or
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Pr

ov
id

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

R
J 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
N

o 
tra

in
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 
En

su
re

 E
qu

al
 T

re
at

m
en

t r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 R

ac
e 

N
o 

tra
in

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 

     

Page 70



 
 

 
25

 

C
.5

 
 P

A
R

TN
ER

SH
IP

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 c

on
fli

ct
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s:
  

Th
e 

Th
am

es
 IS

S
P

 c
on

so
rti

um
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

Ts
 o

f T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
, I

sl
in

gt
on

, H
ac

kn
ey

 a
nd

 C
am

de
n 

(a
s 

le
ad

 A
ut

ho
rit

y)
.  

Th
e 

co
ns

or
tiu

m
 is

 to
 re

vi
ew

 it
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 Y
A

P
 U

K
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

ga
in

st
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
, i

n 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

07
.  

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
IS

S
P

 p
ro

vi
de

r i
s 

fu
lly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 
Ta

ct
ic

al
 G

ro
up

. 
Th

is
 y

ea
r s

aw
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f t
he

 P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 T

ac
tic

al
 G

ro
up

 w
hi

ch
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 3

0 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 p
ro

lif
ic

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e.
 

Th
e 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 g
ro

up
 m

ee
ts

 m
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 c
om

pr
is

es
 th

e 
YO

T,
 P

ol
ic

e,
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 Y
A

P
 U

K
, A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 C

on
tro

l 
U

ni
t a

nd
 th

e 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

. W
e 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g 

in
 2

00
6/

07
 to

 b
ui

ld
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t i
n 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
pr

ol
ifi

c 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 
in

iti
at

iv
e.

 

Th
e 

Y
IS

P
 is

 w
el

l g
ov

er
ne

d 
by

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

, 
sc

re
en

in
g 

re
fe

rr
al

s,
 s

ha
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 
ov

er
se

ei
ng

 th
e 

te
am

s 
w

or
k.

 D
ire

ct
ly

 r
el

at
ed

 is
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
S

oc
ia

l I
nc

lu
si

on
 P

an
el

, w
ith

 Y
O

T 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

 Y
IP

s 
to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

du
rin

g 
20

06
/0

7 
w

ill
 f

ee
d 

in
to

 t
he

 Y
IS

P
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

ut
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 l

oc
al

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 t
ea

m
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
w

e 
ge

t 
th

e 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

id
er

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

ag
en

da
. 

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

er
 a

tte
nd

s 
th

e 
C

A
M

H
S

 F
or

en
si

c 
gr

ou
p,

 a
nd

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 Y
IS

P
 c

lie
nt

s 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 to
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
em

en
t t

he
 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
Fo

re
ns

ic
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 N

ur
se

 w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. T

he
 Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
er

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f N
ur

si
ng

 a
t t

he
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t o
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 Y

O
T 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 
R

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
(n

ow
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

tre
ng

th
en

ed
 

an
d 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

re
m

an
de

d 
to

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
fin

al
is

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6;

 s
ta

ff 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
of

 e
ac

h 
ag

en
cy

. 
A

 c
le

ar
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 fo
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

by
 th

e 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 C

on
tro

l U
ni

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
  A

 m
aj

or
 a

re
a 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ro

un
d 

A
S

B
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
. T

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 h

as
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

its
 u

se
 o

f A
B

C
s 

an
d 

A
S

B
O

s 
as

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
to

ol
s.

  A
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

s 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

in
 a

ll 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 is
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 fo

r a
n 

A
S

B
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
on

 a
 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

, a
nd

 fo
r a

ny
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 A
B

C
, A

S
B

O
 o

r A
S

B
 in

ju
nc

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
as

se
ss

ed
 fo

r v
ol

un
ta

ry
 o

r 
st

at
ut

or
y 

(in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f I
nd

iv
id

ua
l S

up
po

rt 
O

rd
er

s)
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n.
  

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 Y

ou
th

 C
ou

rt 
se

nt
en

ce
rs

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

fig
ur

es
 b

y 
et

hn
ic

ity
 fo

r T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
IS

S
P

 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
in

 re
ga

rd
 to

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
po

si
ng

 a
 s

er
io

us
 ri

sk
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
er

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
th

e 
M

ul
ti-

A
ge

nc
y 

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
P

an
el

. 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
S

af
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

ol
ic

e 
te

am
s,

 w
ho

 n
ow

 c
ov

er
 e

ve
ry

 w
ar

d 
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

, h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
IS

SP
 o

r i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
to

 o
ffe

nd
in

g.
 

C
le

ar
 re

po
rti

ng
 li

ne
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 s
ec

on
de

es
 to

 th
e 

te
am

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d,
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 

Page 71



 
 

 
26

 

pa
rtn

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
V

ic
tim

 S
up

po
rt,

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 T
ru

st
, a

nd
 C

or
am

 F
am

ili
es

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f p

ar
en

tin
g 

w
or

k.
  

Th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
(d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

“L
ife

lin
e”

) w
en

t o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 2

00
5 

an
d 

a 
lin

k 
w

or
ke

r i
s 

ba
se

d 
in

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
tw

o 
da

ys
 p

er
 w

ee
k.

 In
 2

00
6/

07
 w

e 
sh

al
l d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

st
ro

ng
 li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
th

is
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 e

m
be

d 
th

e 
ne

w
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
is

 n
ew

 p
ro

vi
de

r. 
 

In
 a

ll 
th

e 
Y

O
T’

s 
w

or
k 

w
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 th

ird
 s

ec
to

r p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 w

el
l p

la
ce

d 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 F
or

 
ex

am
pl

e,
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
yo

ut
h 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 fr
om

 lo
ca

l o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

B
ric

k 
La

ne
 Y

ou
th

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(B
LY

D
A

) 
an

d 
D

oc
kl

an
ds

 O
ut

re
ac

h;
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 fr
om

 C
or

am
 F

am
ili

es
; a

nd
 v

ic
tim

 w
or

k 
fro

m
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

’ V
ic

tim
 S

up
po

rt.
 W

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 

of
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Y

IS
P

 a
nd

 o
ur

 re
pa

ra
tio

n 
w

or
k 

in
cl

ud
es

 tw
o 

fu
nd

ed
 s

ch
em

es
 w

ith
 C

ity
 fa

rm
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. 

                     

Page 72



 
 

 
27

 

 
        

D
EL

IV
ER

Y 
PL

A
N

 
  

Page 73



 
 

 
28

 

D
. 

D
EL

IV
ER

Y 
PL

A
N

 

PR
EV

EN
T 

O
FF

EN
D

IN
G

 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
  

La
st

 y
ea

r’s
 p

la
n 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
an

d 
th

is
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 th
e 

2.
7%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
irs

t t
im

e 
en

tra
nt

s.
 A

 k
ey

 fa
ct

or
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 Y
ou

th
 In

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

S
up

po
rt 

P
an

el
, w

hi
ch

 o
ve

rs
ee

s 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

10
 a

nd
 1

6,
 w

ho
 a

re
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 o
ffe

nd
in

g,
 b

ut
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

no
t y

et
 e

nt
er

ed
 th

e 
fo

rm
al

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

, a
nd

 w
ho

 e
ng

ag
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

ily
. T

hi
s 

ye
ar

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
 

to
ok

 1
17

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
fro

m
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
ou

rc
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

, p
ol

ic
e,

 A
S

B
 te

am
, s

ch
oo

ls
, t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

se
lf-

re
fe

rr
al

s 
by

 
pa

re
nt

s.
 O

f t
ho

se
 re

fe
rr

ed
, o

nl
y 

20
 d

ec
lin

ed
 to

 e
ng

ag
e,

 a
nd

 to
 d

at
e 

on
ly

 4
 h

av
e 

go
ne

 o
n 

to
 e

nt
er

 th
e 

fo
rm

al
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

S
ys

te
m

 (3
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

Fi
na

l W
ar

ni
ng

s,
 a

nd
 o

ne
 p

er
so

n 
w

as
 g

iv
en

 a
 R

ef
er

ra
l O

rd
er

). 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 th

is
 s

uc
ce

ss
, i

t i
s 

pl
an

ne
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
 w

ill
 fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

 it
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 ri
sk

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 A

S
B

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

re
pr

im
an

ds
. T

he
 Y

IS
P

 w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
al

on
gs

id
e 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r p

ro
vi

de
rs

, o
n 

th
e 

w
id

er
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

ag
en

da
. 

Th
e 

ke
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t f

or
 n

ex
t y

ea
r i

s 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 Y
ou

th
 In

cl
us

io
n 

P
an

el
s,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

50
 m

os
t a

t r
is

k 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 e
ac

h 
pa

ire
d 

LA
P

 a
re

a.
 W

e 
w

er
e 

no
t 

ab
le

 t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
Y

IP
s 

as
 p

la
nn

ed
 la

st
 y

ea
r 

du
e 

to
 a

 d
el

ay
 in

 Y
JB

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

fu
nd

s,
 b

ut
 t

he
 Y

JB
 h

as
 n

ow
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ou
r 

pr
op

os
al

 t
o 

us
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

-a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 f

un
di

ng
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

Y
IP

s 
in

 t
w

o 
of

 t
he

 f
ou

r 
pa

ire
d 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(L
A

P
s)

 in
 t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

re
ce

iv
e 

fu
nd

s 
of

 £
62

,6
92

 fr
om

 th
e 

gr
an

t, 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 r
ol

lin
g 

ou
t Y

IP
s 

to
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

tw
o 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P
 a

re
as

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

pi
lo

t a
nd

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

fu
nd

in
g.

 M
at

ch
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r 
to

 e
qu

ip
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 Y
JB

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, i

s 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

. W
e 

pr
op

os
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
Y

IP
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

 p
ar

t o
f l

oc
al

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 te
am

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

ge
t t

he
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
id

er
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y 
ag

en
da

. 

Th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
e 

ar
e 

pr
og

re
ss

in
g 

w
id

er
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

to
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
w

or
k 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

ai
ns

tre
am

 
yo

ut
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 A

no
th

er
 k

ey
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
ag

en
da

 is
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
, a

nd
 

w
e 

se
t o

ut
 h

ow
 w

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 Y

JB
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
gr

an
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
ha

t u
nd

er
 th

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

th
em

e.
  

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

 
 

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

r  
A

dj
us

te
d 

Ta
rg

et
1  

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
r 

A
ct

ua
l  

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
r C

ha
ng

e 

N
um

be
r o

f f
irs

t t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 in

to
 th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 

2%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

on
 0

4/
05

 
ba

se
lin

e 
= 

39
2 

22
3 

21
7 

-2
.6

9%
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

1  A
na

ly
si

s 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
05

/0
6 

ta
rg

et
 h

as
 s

ho
w

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 d
ev

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 w
as

 n
ot

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 fi

rs
t t

im
e 

en
tra

nt
s.

  B
y 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
re

tro
sp

ec
tiv

el
y 

to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 p
er

io
d 

of
 0

4/
05

, a
 m

or
e 

re
al

is
tic

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f f
irs

t t
im

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
ca

n 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

Page 74



 
 

 
29

 

IN
TE

R
VE

N
E 

EA
R

LY
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

Th
e 

Y
O

T’
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 w
ith

 fi
na

l w
ar

ni
ng

s 
(K

P
I 2

) h
as

 n
ot

 im
pr

ov
ed

 a
s 

m
uc

h 
as

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r, 

al
th

ou
gh

 o
ur

 E
P

Q
A

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 fu

lly
 im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 a

nd
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t E
P

Q
A

 ra
tin

g 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 o

f w
or

k 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 g
oo

d 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 T
he

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 7
7.

4%
, w

hi
le

 u
nd

er
 ta

rg
et

, i
s 

ho
w

ev
er

 a
 w

el
co

m
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
20

04
/0

5 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 7

3%
. A

ll 
w

ar
ni

ng
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
t t

he
 Y

O
T 

pr
em

is
es

 b
y 

of
fic

er
s 

fu
lly

 tr
ai

ne
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 re

st
or

at
iv

e 
w

ar
ni

ng
s.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 le
ad

in
g 

on
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 
fin

al
 w

ar
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 ra
is

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 
Th

e 
ke

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
ct

io
n 

fro
m

 la
st

 y
ea

r’s
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 A

 m
aj

or
 a

re
a 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ro

un
d 

A
S

B
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

. T
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 h
as

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
its

 u
se

 o
f A

B
C

s 
an

d 
A

S
B

O
s 

as
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

to
ol

s.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 s

et
 a

nd
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

a 
lo

ca
l t

ar
ge

t 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
t l

ea
st

 5
0%

 o
f y

ou
th

 A
B

C
s 

an
d 

A
S

B
O

s 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Y
IS

P
. A

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 p
ro

to
co

l i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
th

at
 re

qu
ire

s 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

in
 a

ll 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 is
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 fo

r a
n 

A
S

B
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
on

 a
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n,

 a
nd

 fo
r 

an
y 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

n 
A

B
C

, A
S

B
O

 o
r A

S
B

 in
ju

nc
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r v

ol
un

ta
ry

 o
r s

ta
tu

to
ry

 (i
n 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

up
po

rt 
O

rd
er

s)
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n.
  

In
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
 w

e 
sh

al
l w

or
k 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

ro
to

co
ls

 a
nd

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 d
iv

er
si

on
ar

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

on
 F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

s.
 T

he
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
. T

he
 Y

O
T 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

’s
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

 e
ve

ry
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 A
B

C
 o

r 
A

S
B

O
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

os
e 

on
 re

pr
im

an
ds

. W
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 In
di

vi
du

al
 S

up
po

rt 
O

rd
er

 a
nd

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
.  

   Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

:  
 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
r A

ct
ua

l 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

r %
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 

(N
ew

 K
PI

)
EP

Q
A

 2
00

3 
ra

tin
g

EP
Q

A
 2

00
5 

re
su

lt 
Fi

na
l W

ar
ni

ng
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
n 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

48
 

77
.4

2%
 

80
%

 
10

0%
 

2 
3 

   

Page 75



 
 

 
30

 

PR
O

VI
D

E 
IN

TE
N

SI
VE

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

SU
PE

R
VI

SI
O

N
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f l
as

t y
ea

r w
as

 th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 ta
ct

ic
al

 g
ro

up
, w

hi
ch

 w
or

ks
 w

ith
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 3
0 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
at

 
an

y 
tim

e.
 T

he
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 g

ro
up

 m
ee

ts
 m

on
th

ly
 a

nd
 c

om
pr

is
es

 th
e 

Y
O

T,
 P

ol
ic

e,
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 Y
A

P
 U

K
 (I

nt
en

si
ve

 S
up

er
vi

si
on

 
an

d 
S

ur
ve

ill
an

ce
-IS

S
P

 p
ro

vi
de

r)
 A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 C

on
tro

l U
ni

t a
nd

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
. W

e 
ar

e 
se

ek
in

g 
th

is
 y

ea
r t

o 
bu

ild
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

pr
ol

ifi
c 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 in

iti
at

iv
e.

 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
 a

 p
ar

t o
f T

ha
m

es
 In

te
ns

iv
e 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 S
ur

ve
ill

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

co
ns

or
tiu

m
, w

ith
 C

am
de

n 
as

 le
ad

 a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 a

nd
 H

ac
kn

ey
 a

nd
 

Is
lin

gt
on

 a
s 

pa
rtn

er
s.

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 ta

rg
et

 n
um

be
r o

f s
ta

rts
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r A
pr

il 
to

 D
ec

em
be

r w
as

 1
8 

w
ith

 1
7 

st
ar

ts
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 O
f 2

0 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 c
as

es
 in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d,
 1

2 
w

er
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
, a

 ra
te

 o
f 6

0%
. A

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 fo

rm
al

 re
vi

ew
s 

w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

iti
al

 fa
m

ily
 te

am
 m

ee
tin

gs
, 

3 
an

d 
6 

m
on

th
ly

 re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
re

vi
ew

s.
 A

ct
io

ns
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

IS
S

P
 o

ut
pu

ts
 a

nd
 li

nk
ag

es
 to

 Y
O

T 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
; t

he
 fo

rm
at

 
of

 g
ro

up
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 o

f Y
A

P
 a

dv
oc

at
es

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
op

er
at

io
na

l m
an

ag
er

 is
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

, a
s 

is
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 b
ai

l I
SS

P
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
rts

. 
Th

e 
co

ns
or

tiu
m

 is
 to

 re
vi

ew
 it

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 Y

A
P

 U
K

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
er

 a
ga

in
st

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

, i
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
07

.  
Th

e 
Y

O
T 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

IS
S

P
 p

ro
vi

de
r i

s 
fu

lly
 e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 T

ac
tic

al
 G

ro
up

.  
 

               

Page 76



 
 

 
31

 

R
ED

U
C

E 
R

E-
O

FF
EN

D
IN

G
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
re

du
ce

d 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
in

 th
re

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 re
ci

di
vi

sm
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 2

00
4/

05
 (s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

B
), 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 
a 

5%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 P
en

al
tie

s.
  T

he
 P

re
-C

ou
rt 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

 w
as

 o
nl

y 
tw

o 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 th
e 

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er
 p

en
al

ty
 ra

te
 w

as
 e

ve
n 

cl
os

er
 to

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
.  

W
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

al
 c

oh
or

t, 
w

ho
se

 re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

w
as

 1
00

%
, i

t i
s 

im
po

rta
nt

 to
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 th
is

 w
as

 
on

ly
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f f
ou

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
ho

pe
fu

l t
ha

t o
ur

 e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

po
st

-c
us

to
di

al
 s

up
po

rt 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
A

P
 w

ill
 re

du
ce

 th
es

e 
re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

s 
fu

rth
er

 n
ex

t y
ea

r. 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 o

n 
la

st
 y

ea
r’s

 a
ct

io
ns

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ca
se

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

, e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

re
 li

nk
ed

 to
 c

rim
in

og
en

ic
 ri

sk
 fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t i
s 

m
on

ito
re

d 
du

rin
g 

ro
ut

in
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

ev
er

y 
th

re
e 

to
 fo

ur
 w

ee
ks

. F
ut

ur
e 

E
P

Q
A

 e
xe

rc
is

es
 a

re
 to

 in
vo

lv
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 to
 a

 g
re

at
er

 
de

gr
ee

, a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
he

ld
 m

on
th

ly
 a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
te

am
 m

ee
tin

g 
cy

cl
e.

   
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r i
ni

tia
l c

on
ta

ct
s 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 R
ef

er
ra

l O
rd

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rd
er

s 
ar

e 
on

ly
 b

ei
ng

 m
et

 in
 3

0%
 a

nd
 5

7%
 

ca
se

s 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y;
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t c
on

ta
ct

s 
ar

e 
at

 lo
w

er
 le

ve
ls

 fo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 O
rd

er
s 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r R

ef
er

ra
l O

rd
er

s.
 C

lo
se

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
in

tro
du

ce
d.

 
A

 m
ul

ti-
fa

ce
te

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 2
00

6/
07

 to
 re

du
ce

 re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

- i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

ju
st

ic
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 a
nd

 v
ar

ie
d 

gr
ou

p 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
ffe

nd
er

s.
 T

he
se

 a
ct

io
ns

 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 c
on

ta
ct

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. T

he
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 fa

st
er

 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 b
re

ac
he

s,
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 A
B

C
s 

an
d 

A
S

B
O

s,
 th

e 
IS

S
P

 y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 g

ro
up

 (s
ee

 D
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

ab
ov

e)
 w

ill
 a

ll 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

is
 K

P
I. 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

:  
 R

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

s 
fo

r t
he

 2
00

3 
co

ho
rt

 a
fte

r 2
4 

m
on

th
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

20
02

 c
oh

or
t a

fte
r 2

4 
m

on
th

s 
 

05
/0

6 
A

ct
ua

l %
 

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
 

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 %
 

Pr
e-

C
ou

rt
 

32
.7

3 
30

.2
3 

31
.0

8 
Fi

rs
t T

ie
r P

en
al

tie
s 

61
.4

0 
59

.8
9 

58
.3

3 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
en

al
tie

s 
69

.7
0 

76
.7

3 
66

.2
1 

C
us

to
dy

 
10

0 
95

 
95

 
 N

ot
e:

 

Page 77



 
 

 
32

 

Th
e 

da
ta

 in
cl

ud
es

 re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

by
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 o
ve

r 1
8.

  

R
ED

U
C

E 
TH

E 
U

SE
 O

F 
C

U
ST

O
D

Y 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

: 
Th

e 
N

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r b

ai
l s

up
er

vi
si

on
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
et

, a
lth

ou
gh

 n
um

be
rs

 a
re

 lo
w

, i
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

di
sa

pp
oi

nt
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f c

us
to

di
al

 
re

m
an

ds
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
04

/0
5 

le
ve

l o
f 4

0.
4%

 w
hi

ch
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

cl
os

e 
to

 th
e 

04
/0

5 
ta

rg
et

. A
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
at

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
cu

st
od

ia
l s

en
te

nc
es

 (7
.3

%
 fr

om
 6

%
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
04

/0
5 

ta
rg

et
 le

ve
l) 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 m

et
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

. 
W

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 th
is

 ta
rg

et
 in

 la
st

 y
ea

rs
 p

la
n,

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 th
e 

co
ur

t g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
gr

ou
p 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d,
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
w

ith
 m

ag
is

tra
te

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

an
d 

se
ss

io
ns

 o
n 

cu
st

od
ia

l r
em

an
ds

 a
nd

 s
en

te
nc

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
el

d.
 T

he
 P

ro
ba

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 to

 s
up

pl
y 

a 
ha

lf 
da

ys
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
C

rim
in

al
 J

us
tic

e 
A

ct
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

n 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

 to
 p

ra
ct

iti
on

er
s 

in
 la

te
 A

pr
il.

 C
as

ew
or

ke
rs

 h
av

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 u

se
 

“P
at

hw
ay

” a
nd

 “T
ee

nt
al

k”
, a

nd
 .l

im
ite

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 e
m

be
dd

in
g 

“P
at

hw
ay

” g
ro

up
-w

or
k 

in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

In
 2

00
6/

07
 w

e 
w

ill
 a

im
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 re

m
an

d 
fo

r s
en

te
nc

er
s,

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 b
y 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
an

d 
re

fin
in

g 
th

e 
B

ai
l S

up
po

rt 
sc

he
m

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 ta
rg

et
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
at

 th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

; e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 re
m

an
d 

fo
st

er
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h;
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

in
g 

a 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
m

an
de

d 
to

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n.

 Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

er
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
ll 

ca
se

s 
w

he
re

 a
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

e 
is

 im
po

se
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
Y

O
T’

s 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f n
on

 c
us

to
di

al
 o

pt
io

ns
. W

e 
pl

an
 to

 a
 m

or
e 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
w

ith
 s

en
te

nc
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ll 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 c
us

to
dy

 a
nd

 th
ei

r e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s,
 a

nd
 th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 th
ei

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 u
si

ng
 th

os
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

. 
 . D

at
a:

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 S

ec
ur

e 
R

em
an

ds
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
R

em
an

ds
 (e

xc
l. 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 a

nd
 u

nc
on

di
tio

na
l r

em
an

ds
)  

  
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
 

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

Se
cu

re
 R

em
an

ds
 

40
 

51
.2

8%
 

38
%

 
30

%
 

 D
at

a:
 P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 C
us

to
di

al
 S

en
te

nc
es

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ll 

se
nt

en
ce

s  
  

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l %

 
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 %

C
us

to
di

al
 S

en
te

nc
es

 
31

 
7.

33
%

 
5%

 
5%

 

Page 78



 
 

 
33

 

 
EN

SU
R

E 
TH

E 
SW

IF
T 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

JU
ST

IC
E 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

20
05

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
tim

el
y 

pr
e-

se
nt

en
ce

 re
po

rts
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

, t
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t n

ot
ed

 in
 th

e 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f l
as

t 
ye

ar
’s

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d,

 w
ith

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 ri
si

ng
 fr

om
 7

4.
1%

 to
 8

4%
. T

he
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

P
Y

O
 re

po
rts

 is
 a

 re
al

 c
on

ce
rn

. 
A

ct
io

ns
 in

 la
st

 y
ea

rs
 P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
in

 re
po

rt 
w

rit
in

g 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

m
ag

is
tra

te
s’

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 a

 n
ew

 g
at

e-
ke

ep
in

g 
fo

rm
 fo

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 re

po
rts

 is
 to

 b
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d.
 

In
 2

00
6/

07
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
its

 re
gu

la
r r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

gr
ou

p 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
et

te
r e

ng
ag

e 
th

e 
C

rim
in

al
 

Ju
st

ic
e 

S
ys

te
m

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

yo
ut

h 
cr

im
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

sw
ift

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 ju
st

ic
e.

  T
he

 Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
 w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

on
 

P
er

si
st

en
t Y

ou
ng

 O
ffe

nd
er

s,
 c

he
ck

in
g 

th
e 

pr
e-

se
nt

en
ce

 re
po

rt 
(P

S
R

) p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

w
ith

 to
p 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
Y

O
Ts

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

P
S

R
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r o

w
n 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 le

ve
l. 

  D
at

a:
 9

0%
 o

f P
re

-S
en

te
nc

e 
re

po
rt

s 
fo

r P
YO

s 
ar

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
0 

da
ys

, a
nd

 9
0%

 o
f P

re
-S

en
te

nc
e 

re
po

rt
s 

fo
r g

en
er

al
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
ar

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
5 

da
ys

. 
 K

PI
: 0

5/
06

 a
ct

ua
l a

nd
 %

 a
ga

in
st

 ta
rg

et
 

05
/0

6 
¾

 
Ye

ar
 A

ct
ua

l 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l %

 
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 %

Pr
e-

Se
nt

en
ce

 R
ep

or
ts

 fo
r P

YO
s 

32
 

59
.3

8%
 

90
%

 
90

%
 

Pr
e-

Se
nt

en
ce

 R
ep

or
ts

 fo
r g

en
er

al
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
88

 
84

.0
9%

 
90

%
 

90
%

 

        

Page 79



 
 

 
34

 

EN
FO

R
C

EM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 E
N

A
B

LI
N

G
 C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
Th

is
 is

 a
 n

ew
 th

em
e 

fo
r 2

00
6/

07
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
aw

ai
tin

g 
fu

rth
er

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
Y

JB
 o

n 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r Y
O

Ts
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 h
ig

h 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

am
on

g 
ou

r c
as

el
oa

d 
w

ho
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
y 

fa
ile

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
ir 

or
de

r, 
w

ith
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
A

ud
it 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
a 

br
ea

ch
 le

ve
l o

f 8
8%

. W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 b
re

ac
h 

ac
tio

n.
  

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 re

vi
ew

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

ur
ts

 fo
r b

re
ac

h 
m

at
te

rs
 to

 b
e 

lis
te

d 
as

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t D

el
iv

er
y 

B
oa

rd
’s

 m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f b

re
ac

he
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 ra

ce
 a

ud
it.

 T
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 in

iti
at

iv
e,

 w
e 

ar
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
nd

 s
ur

ve
ill

an
ce

 o
n 

pe
rs

is
te

nt
 o

ffe
nd

er
, a

nd
 w

e 
al

re
ad

y 
re

fe
r a

ll 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
IS

S
P

 a
nd

 A
S

B
O

s 
to

 lo
ca

l S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 T
ea

m
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t. 
                  

Page 80



 
 

 
35

 

EN
SU

R
E 

EF
FE

C
TI

VE
 A

N
D

 R
IG

O
R

O
U

S 
A

SS
ES

SM
EN

T 
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

A
pa

rt 
fro

m
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
is

po
sa

l a
nd

 C
us

to
dy

 s
ta

rt 
A

ss
et

s,
 w

he
re

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

lig
ht

ly
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 in
 2

00
4/

05
, w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
or

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
ou

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

Y
JB

 K
P

I. 
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f A
S

S
E

T 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

an
d 

In
iti

al
 

S
up

er
vi

so
ry

 P
la

ns
 h

av
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 m
on

ito
re

d 
re

gu
la

rly
; t

he
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f a

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r, 

ha
s 

al
so

 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
an

y 
A

ss
et

 tr
ig

ge
re

d 
R

is
k 

of
 S

er
io

us
 H

ar
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
fla

gg
ed

 u
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
er

 fo
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ee

tin
g.

 
W

hi
le

 w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

e 
10

0%
 ta

rg
et

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 In
iti

al
 T

ra
in

in
g 

P
la

ns
, t

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t –
 7

4.
1%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

61
.9

%
 in

 2
00

4/
05

.  
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 c

on
st

an
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

is
 a

re
a 

si
nc

e 
20

02
.  

O
ur

 p
la

n 
to

 a
gr

ee
 a

 p
ro

to
co

l w
ith

 th
e 

se
cu

re
 e

st
at

e 
fo

r d
ra

w
in

g 
up

 in
iti

al
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

 w
ith

in
 n

at
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 w
ill

 fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 2

00
6/

07
. 

P
la

ns
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

gr
ou

p 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
(s

ee
 D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
ab

ov
e 

fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g 

re
-

of
fe

nd
in

g)
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
.  

Th
e 

Y
O

T 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r a

nd
 re

po
rt 

on
 a

 q
ua

rte
rly

 b
as

is
 th

e 
A

S
S

E
T 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

 to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 a
lig

n 
th

e 
YO

T 
A

S
S

E
T 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

‘C
om

m
on

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k’
 a

nd
 to

 a
do

pt
 

th
e 

‘L
ea

d 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l’ 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ho
lis

tic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

di
ffe

re
nt

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

  D
at

a:
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 1

00
%

 o
f a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fo

r c
om

m
un

ity
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 a
re

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

t b
ot

h 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 c
lo

su
re

 s
ta

ge
s.

 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
is

po
sa

ls
 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l %

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
 

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 %
EP

Q
A

: 0
3 

ra
tin

g
EP

Q
A

: 0
5 

re
su

lt 

St
ar

t A
ss

et
 

20
5 

91
.1

1%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

2 
3 

(to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
) 

C
lo

si
ng

 A
ss

et
 

18
8 

94
.9

5%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 
 

         

Page 81



 
 

 
36

 

D
at

a:
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 1

00
%

 o
f a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fo

r c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 a
re

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

t b
ot

h 
tr

an
sf

er
 a

nd
 c

lo
su

re
 s

ta
ge

s.
 

 C
us

to
di

al
 S

en
te

nc
es

 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

 
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

EP
Q

A
: 0

3 
ra

tin
g

EP
Q

A
: 0

5 
re

su
lt 

St
ar

t A
ss

et
 

26
 

96
.3

%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 A
ss

et
 

23
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

 
C

lo
si

ng
 A

ss
et

 
14

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 
 

 D
at

a:
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
in

iti
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 d

ra
w

n 
up

 w
ith

in
 1

0 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

of
 s

en
te

nc
es

 b
ei

ng
 p

as
se

d.
 

  
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

 
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

EP
Q

A
: 0

3 
ra

tin
g

EP
Q

A
: 0

5 
re

su
lt 

In
iti

al
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Pl
an

s 
26

 
73

.0
8%

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

                

Page 82



 
 

 
37

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
YO

U
N

G
 P

EO
PL

E 
EN

G
A

G
IN

G
 IN

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 A
N

D
 E

M
PL

O
YM

EN
T 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

K
P

I t
ar

ge
t (

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 in

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

ir 
or

de
r)

 h
as

 im
pr

ov
ed

 fr
om

 8
8.

3%
 in

 2
00

4-
5 

to
 8

9.
1%

 in
 2

00
5-

6,
 ju

st
 s

ho
rt 

of
 th

e 
90

%
 ta

rg
et

; t
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t s

co
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
si

nc
e 

20
01

. 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
ag

ai
ns

t a
ll 

th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 la

st
 y

ea
rs

 Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
P

la
n.

 T
he

 p
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

is
 u

nd
er

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
LE

A
 a

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
, p

rio
r t

o 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

 E
P

Q
A

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 o
ng

oi
ng

 m
on

ito
rin

g,
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 Y
O

T 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
P

os
iti

ve
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
A

Y
P

) a
nd

 s
um

m
er

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 c

ou
rs

es
. T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ro

ll 
ou

t o
f 

th
e 

N
R

F 
fu

nd
ed

 T
H

 C
ol

le
ge

 “S
te

p 
up

” c
ou

rs
e 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
re

- E
2E

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r 1

6+
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 
W

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 w

ith
 L

E
A

P
 C

on
fro

nt
in

g 
C

on
fli

ct
, L

E
A

, t
he

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Fu
nd

 a
nd

 S
ch

oo
ls

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

Ju
st

ic
e 

in
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 A
ls

o 
on

go
in

g 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f K
ey

 S
ki

lls
 4

 is
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

ei
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 to
 Y

O
T,

 a
nd

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

N
E

E
T 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

gs
, i

.e
. n

ew
 P

rin
ce

s 
Tr

us
t a

nd
 3

rd
 D

im
en

si
on

 M
us

ic
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

In
 2

00
6/

07
 it

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
ov

er
 1

6s
’ t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s,

 th
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 S
ki

lls
 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
ew

 S
ta

rt,
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ar
t t

im
e 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

w
or

ke
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

.  
W

e 
al

so
 a

im
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
P

A
 fo

r e
ve

ry
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

rs
on

 o
n 

th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 li

st
.  

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
of

 d
ys

le
xi

a 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 c

la
rif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 “N

ew
 S

ta
rt”

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
“D

ys
pe

l” 
se

rv
ic

e.
 A

 li
te

ra
cy

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
vi

a 
th

e 
G

A
P

 p
ro

je
ct

, a
nd

 S
ha

nn
on

 T
ru

st
 p

ee
r s

up
po

rt 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
fro

m
 IS

S
P

 a
nd

 m
en

to
rs

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
A

P
 

sc
he

m
e.

 
A

pp
ra

is
al

s 
of

 Y
O

T 
se

co
nd

ed
 s

ta
ff,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

se
co

nd
ee

s,
 a

re
 n

ow
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
jo

in
tly

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
 a

ge
nc

y.
  T

ra
in

in
g 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 E

TE
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 in
 2

00
6/

07
 –

 m
ot

iv
at

io
na

l a
nd

 in
te

rv
ie

w
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
em

 to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 d

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

.  
W

e 
sh

al
l a

ls
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 g
oo

d 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

  
  Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
  

 Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 s
up

er
vi

se
d 

by
 th

e 
YO

T 
ar

e 
in

 E
TE

 a
t t

he
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
ei

r o
rd

er
s.

 
 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l %

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

EP
Q

A
: 0

3 
ra

tin
g

EP
Q

A
: 0

5 
re

su
lt 

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
21

0 
89

.0
5%

 
90

%
 

90
%

 
1 

3 

 

Page 83



 
 

 
38

 

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
A

C
C

ES
S 

TO
 A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TI

O
N

 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

: i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 p

as
t y

ea
r, 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

of
 p

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
: 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

K
P

I h
as

 im
pr

ov
ed

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n,
 fr

om
 8

8%
 in

 2
00

4/
05

 to
 9

2%
 in

 
20

05
-6

, t
ho

ug
h 

th
is

 is
 s

til
l s

ho
rt 

of
 th

e 
10

0%
 ta

rg
et

. 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 tw
o 

pl
ac

es
 in

 a
 h

os
te

l c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 v

ia
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 “S
up

po
rti

ng
 p

eo
pl

e”
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

er
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 th

e 
pa

st
 y

ea
r, 

an
d 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
cc

up
ie

d,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

in
va

lu
ab

le
 lo

ca
l r

es
ou

rc
e.

 T
he

 s
up

po
rt 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
os

e 
pl

ac
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 J

un
e 

20
06

. 
P

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f r

em
an

d 
fo

st
er

in
g 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6,
 a

nd
 in

te
rim

 s
po

t p
ur

ch
as

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il.
 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 Y

O
T 

ha
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 w

id
e 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e.

  A
 p

ro
to

co
l i

s 
to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
m

an
de

d 
in

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
  T

he
 ro

le
 o

f t
he

 Y
O

T 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
of

fic
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
te

am
 a

nd
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 k

ey
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

to
 o

ffe
r c

on
si

st
en

t s
up

po
rt 

to
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 o
ffe

re
d 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
. 

   Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

 
 A

 n
am

ed
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
of

fic
er

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l %

 
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 %

Yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

20
2 

92
.6

6%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

     

Page 84



 
 

 
39

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
A

C
C

ES
S 

TO
 M

EN
TA

L 
H

EA
LT

H
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
K

P
I i

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 s

tro
ng

 w
ith

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
fo

r b
ot

h 
ac

ut
e 

an
d 

no
n 

ac
ut

e 
ca

se
s 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
a 

10
0%

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 a
 ta

rg
et

 
of

 9
5%

 o
f c

as
es

 re
fe

rr
ed

 w
ith

in
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s.
  I

n 
20

06
/0

7 
w

e 
sh

al
l w

or
k 

w
ith

 C
A

M
H

S
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

is
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

fo
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

A
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 T
ru

st
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

ov
er

 in
 th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

Y
O

T 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 n

ur
se

 a
nd

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

fo
r Y

IS
P

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
to

 C
A

M
H

S
, m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 

an
d 

th
e 

C
A

M
H

S
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
co

ur
se

 is
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  

Th
e 

E
P

Q
A

 p
ro

ce
ss

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 a
re

as
 fo

r q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
ah

ea
d 

of
 s

ch
ed

ul
e,

 a
nd

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6.

  H
ea

lth
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 a
pp

ra
is

al
s 

of
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

se
co

nd
ed

 h
ea

lth
 

w
or

ke
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
jo

in
tly

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

he
al

th
 in

 2
00

6/
07

. 
Th

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 2

0k
 re

so
ur

ce
 to

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 p

rim
ar

y 
he

al
th

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 to

 Y
O

T 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s,

 w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 o
f 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

nd
 ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

by
 th

at
 g

ro
up

. 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
 

 R
ef

er
 to

 C
A

H
M

S 
fo

r a
ss

es
sm

en
t: 

w
ith

in
 5

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
fo

r a
cu

te
 c

as
es

; w
ith

in
 1

5 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

fo
r n

on
-a

cu
te

 c
as

es
 

 
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
 

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

A
cu

te
 c

as
es

 
1 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
N

on
-a

cu
te

 c
as

es
 

30
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
       

Page 85



 
 

 
40

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
A

C
C

ES
S 

TO
 S

U
B

ST
A

N
C

E 
M

IS
U

SE
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

: i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 p

as
t y

ea
r, 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 K
PI

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

of
 p

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
: 

Ta
rg

et
s 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
is

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
br

oa
dl

y 
m

et
, a

nd
 th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
ne

fit
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r d
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 s

ub
st

an
ce

 m
is

us
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
un

de
r t

he
 R

es
et

tle
m

en
t a

nd
 A

fte
rc

ar
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(R
A

P
). 

Th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

(d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
“L

ife
lin

e”
) w

en
t o

pe
ra

tio
na

l a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 2
00

5 
an

d 
a 

lin
k 

w
or

ke
r i

s 
ba

se
d 

in
 th

e 
YO

T 
tw

o 
da

ys
 p

er
 w

ee
k.

 In
 

20
06

/0
7 

w
e 

sh
al

l d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
st

ro
ng

 li
nk

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 e
m

be
d 

th
e 

ne
w

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

is
 n

ew
 

pr
ov

id
er

. 
N

in
e 

R
A

P
 v

ol
un

te
er

 m
en

to
rs

 a
re

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

tra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rth
er

 s
ev

en
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
cr

ee
ne

d 
fo

r s
ui

ta
bi

lit
y,

 fa
m

ily
 g

ro
up

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 h
av

e 
no

t t
ak

en
 

pl
ac

e 
as

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
an

d 
th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f R

A
P

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

 b
ei

ng
 re

vi
ew

ed
. T

he
re

 h
av

e 
on

ly
 b

ee
n 

a 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r o
f c

as
es

 w
he

re
 n

am
ed

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 re
le

as
e 

fro
m

 c
us

to
dy

, e
ng

ag
in

g 
su

pp
or

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
an

d 
Li

fe
lin

e.
 G

oo
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r r

ef
er

ra
l t

o 
Ti

er
 3

 a
nd

 4
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

vi
a 

Li
fe

lin
e 

an
d 

C
A

M
H

S
. T

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r Y

O
T 

st
af

f t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 
ne

w
 B

or
ou

gh
 T

ie
r 2

 In
iti

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t t
oo

l i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 u
nd

er
 w

ay
, t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

ns
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

A
S

S
E

T 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 (s

ee
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n 

ab
ov

e)
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

he
lp

 u
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 1

00
%

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 fo

r s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
in

 2
00

6/
07

. 
W

e 
sh

al
l e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 ti

er
 3

 o
r 4

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
ne

ed
s 

ar
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 R

A
P

. 
   Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
 

  
05

/0
6 

¾
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
 

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 %
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

Sc
re

en
in

g 
(n

um
be

r o
f s

ta
rt

 A
ss

et
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
) 

22
0 

91
.2

9%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 d

ay
s 

37
 

86
.0

5 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
Ea

rly
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 

35
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 

   

Page 86



 
 

 
41

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
R

ES
ET

TL
EM

EN
T 

IN
TO

 T
H

E 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
E

ns
ur

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

cu
st

od
ia

l s
en

te
nc

e,
 s

o 
th

at
 n

ee
ds

 c
an

 b
y 

m
et

 in
 a

 d
yn

am
ic

 w
ay

, i
s 

ke
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
on

 th
is

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r a
ss

es
sm

en
t (

vi
a 

A
ss

et
) o

f t
ho

se
 in

 c
us

to
dy

 w
as

 g
en

er
al

ly
 s

tro
ng

, w
ith

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r t

he
 m

id
dl

e 
an

d 
en

d 
st

ag
es

, a
nd

 ju
st

 s
ho

rt 
fo

r t
he

 s
ta

rt 
A

ss
et

. A
lth

ou
gh

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 D
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 O

rd
er

 (D
TO

) P
la

nn
in

g 
K

P
I i

m
pr

ov
ed

 fr
om

 
61

%
 in

 2
00

4-
5 

to
 7

4%
 la

st
 y

ea
r, 

it 
re

m
ai

ns
 s

ho
rt 

of
 th

e 
10

0%
 ta

rg
et

, a
nd

 th
e 

E
P

Q
A

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

is
 la

rg
el

y 
fo

cu
ss

ed
 o

n 
cr

ea
tin

g 
m

or
e 

fo
rm

al
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 c
us

to
di

al
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

se
nt

en
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g.
 Y

O
T 

w
or

ke
rs

 h
av

e,
 o

n 
th

e 
w

ho
le

, m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

re
gu

la
r 

co
nt

ac
t w

ith
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
D

TO
, w

hi
le

 in
 th

e 
Y

O
I a

nd
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
tim

e 
fra

m
es

. 
N

in
e 

R
A

P
 v

ol
un

te
er

 m
en

to
rs

, w
ho

 w
ill

 s
up

po
rt 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

tra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rth
er

 g
ro

up
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
sc

re
en

ed
 

A
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 a

im
 to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 w

or
k 

by
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
R

A
P

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
sc

re
en

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 R
A

P
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 e
xi

t s
tra

te
gi

es
 fo

r t
ho

se
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

on
 th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 li
st

. 
      Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
 

 EP
Q

A
: 0

5 
ra

tin
g 

 
2 

EP
Q

A
: 0

7 
ta

rg
et

 
3 

     

Page 87



 
 

 
42

 

PR
O

VI
D

E 
EF

FE
C

TI
VE

 R
ES

TO
R

A
TI

VE
 J

U
ST

IC
E 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

W
or

k 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

vi
ct

im
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f a

 R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

Ju
st

ic
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
or

, a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

K
P

I h
as

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 fr

om
 5

1%
 to

 5
9%

, a
lth

ou
gh

 is
 s

til
l s

ho
rt 

of
 th

e 
75

%
 ta

rg
et

. T
he

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f v
ic

tim
s 

w
ho

 d
id

 e
ng

ag
e 

an
d 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

as
 s

tro
ng

: 
85

%
, a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 7

5%
. 

Th
e 

R
J 

fo
ru

m
 h

as
 m

et
 re

gu
la

rly
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

, Y
O

T 
po

lic
e 

of
fic

er
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
in

g 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
Fi

na
l W

ar
ni

ng
s 

an
d 

a 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 u
se

 o
f R

J 
in

 
an

ti-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 J

un
e 

20
06

. F
ou

r n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 re

pa
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 2

06
/0

7,
 w

ith
 w

or
k 

to
 li

nk
 

th
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
do

 to
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

af
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 T

ea
m

s.
  

A
lth

ou
gh

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r c
on

ta
ct

in
g 

vi
ct

im
s 

an
d 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

ei
r n

ee
ds

, f
ur

th
er

 w
or

k 
is

 to
 b

e 
do

ne
 in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

em
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f o

ffe
nd

er
s’

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. A

dd
iti

on
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r v
ic

tim
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

vi
ct

im
s 

an
d 

w
itn

es
se

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 
   D

at
a:

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 7
5%

 o
f v

ic
tim

s 
of

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

ar
e 

of
fe

re
d 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 a

 re
st

or
at

iv
e 

pr
oc

es
s;

 a
nd

 th
at

 7
5%

 o
f v

ic
tim

s 
w

ho
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

  
05

/0
6 

¾
 

Ye
ar

 A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

 
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

EP
Q

A
: 0

4 
ra

tin
g 

EP
Q

A
: 0

5 
re

su
lt 

Vi
ct

im
s 

of
fe

re
d 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

74
 

59
.6

8%
 

75
%

 
75

%
 

 
 

Vi
ct

im
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

6 
85

.7
1%

 
75

%
 

75
%

 
 

 

      

Page 88



 
 

 
43

 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
PA

R
EN

TI
N

G
 IN

TE
R

VE
N

TI
O

N
S 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
: i

nc
lu

di
ng

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 p
as

t y
ea

r, 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
s 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 E
PQ

A
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

ns
, a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
of

 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
: 

Th
e 

E
P

Q
A

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

w
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t r

at
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

K
P

I t
ar

ge
t o

f 1
0%

. A
s 

a 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
a 

ne
w

 lo
ca

l 
ta

rg
et

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

t o
f 1

5%
 fo

r t
he

 c
om

in
g 

ye
ar

, t
o 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

is
 w

or
k 

by
 th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. T
he

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
n 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
w

as
 fl

ag
ge

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

as
 a

 ri
sk

 fa
ct

or
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 in

tro
du

ci
ng

 a
 m

or
e 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 re

fe
rr

al
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r p
ar

en
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t. 
A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, w

e 
ar

e 
us

in
g 

th
e 

Y
JB

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

gr
an

t t
o 

bu
ild

 c
ap

ac
ity

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a,

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 2

5 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 b
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
Fa

m
ily

 S
up

po
rt 

w
or

ke
r t

o 
jo

in
 th

e 
C

or
am

 F
am

ily
 T

ea
m

 a
t t

he
 M

ar
y 

H
ug

he
s 

C
en

tre
, c

os
tin

g 
£4

2,
83

5 
(2

5.
4%

 o
f t

ot
al

 g
ra

nt
). 

Th
is

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
m

ee
t g

ro
w

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r p

ar
en

t s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

A
B

C
s,

 re
pr

im
an

d 
ca

se
s 

re
fe

rr
ed

 b
y 

Y
O

T 
P

ol
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

Y
IS

P
, a

nd
 Y

O
T 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
f A

S
B

 c
as

es
. P

ar
en

tin
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 tr
ig

ge
re

d 
by

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 T

ac
tic

al
 G

ro
up

. 
Th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 fo
r t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

st
ag

es
 o

f e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
by

 a
nt

i s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

, p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
an

d 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, t
ho

ug
h 

m
or

e 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

O
rd

er
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

vi
a 

Y
O

T 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
rts

. T
hi

s 
w

as
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 b

ot
h 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
Y

IS
P

 re
fe

rr
al

s.
 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f p

ar
en

ta
l a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 h

as
 ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

 o
f p

ar
en

ts
 h

as
 

sh
ow

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 re

su
lts

. W
ith

in
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
 A

ss
et

 a
ud

it 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 is
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

an
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 re
su

lt 
in

 
re

fe
rr

al
 fo

r p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 
A

 b
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

se
am

le
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

 
fro

m
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 c

ris
is

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n.

 
  Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 K

PI
 

  
05

/0
6 

¾
 

Ye
ar

 A
ct

ua
l 

05
/0

6 
¾

 Y
ea

r 
A

ct
ua

l %
05

/0
6 

Ta
rg

et
 %

 
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 %

EP
Q

A
: 0

4 
ra

tin
g 

EP
Q

A
: 

05
 re

su
lt 

N
um

be
r o

f I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 

21
 

10
.5

%
 

10
%

 
10

%
 

3 
3 

Sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 

9 
10

0%
 

75
%

 
75

%
 

 
 

  

Page 89



 
 

 
44

 

EN
SU

R
E 

EQ
U

A
L 

TR
EA

TM
EN

T 
R

EG
A

R
D

LE
SS

 O
F 

R
A

C
E 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
: i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 p

as
t y

ea
r, 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 la
st

 y
ea

r’s
 ra

ce
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
, a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 a
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
:  

 
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

ra
ce

 a
ud

it 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f l
as

t y
ea

rs
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n,
 a

 m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 ra
ce

 a
ud

it 
st

ra
te

gy
 g

ro
up

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 
ex

pl
or

e 
in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

th
e 

is
su

es
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 d
is

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
om

e 
et

hn
ic

 g
ro

up
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

sy
st

em
, a

nd
 to

 
pr

op
os

e 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

im
ba

la
nc

e.
 T

he
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e,

 s
en

te
nc

er
s,

 C
ro

w
n 

P
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

Y
ou

th
 b

ra
nc

h,
 th

e 
C

le
rk

 to
 T

ha
m

es
 Y

ou
th

 
C

ou
rt 

an
d 

Y
O

T 
st

af
f. 

Th
e 

ra
ce

 a
ud

it 
w

as
 ru

n 
fo

r 1
st
 O

ct
ob

er
20

03
 to

 3
0th

 S
ep

t 2
00

4,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 re

 ru
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 fo
r t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 y

ea
r t

o 
ex

pl
or

e 
w

he
th

er
 

is
su

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

ra
is

ed
 fo

r d
iff

er
en

t e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

ps
 w

er
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 o

ve
r t

he
 p

er
io

d,
 th

is
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 u
s 

re
m

ov
in

g 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 is

su
es

 fr
om

 o
ur

 
pr

io
rit

y 
lis

t. 
Th

e 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
d 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
em

 fo
r t

he
 Y

O
T 

on
ly

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

. 
Th

e 
gr

ou
p 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ee
t t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
y 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 Y

O
T 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

. O
ng

oi
ng

 a
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 Y

O
T 

ar
e 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 a
pp

en
di

x.
 

       

Page 90



 
 

 
45

 

E.
 

R
EV

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

PP
R

O
VA

L 

 Ta
bl

e 
B

: S
ch

ed
ul

e 
fo

r r
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

la
n:

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 d
at

e 
R

ev
ie

w
er

 
 1st

 J
un

e 
St

ua
rt

 J
oh

ns
on

 
 30

 O
ct

ob
er

 
 St

ua
rt

 J
oh

ns
on

 
 13

. D
ec

em
be

r 
St

ua
rt

 J
oh

ns
on

 

  
 

 

Page 91



 
 

 
46

 

Ta
bl

e 
C

: S
ig

na
tu

re
 o

f a
pp

ro
va

l  
   

N
am

e 
O

f C
hi

ef
 

O
ffi

ce
r 

Si
gn

at
ur

e 
D

at
e 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

O
f T

he
 L

oc
al

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

C
hr

is
tin

e 
G

ilb
er

t 
 

 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
K

ev
an

 C
ol

lin
s 

 
 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
 

A
lw

yn
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

 
 

Po
lic

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

ar
k 

Si
m

m
on

s 
 

 
Pr

ob
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
hr

is
 C

ha
te

r 
 

 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

Ia
n 

W
ils

on
 

 
 

O
th

er
 

Pa
rt

ne
r(

s)
 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 

Lo
nd

on
 

Je
nn

y 
G

oo
da

ll 
 

 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
Po

lic
e 

Fr
an

k 
A

rm
st

ro
ng

 
 

 
            

Page 92



 
 

 
47

 

F.
 

A
PP

EN
D

IC
ES

 

P
le

as
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 a
pp

en
di

xe
s:

  

• 
O

rg
 c

ha
rt 

 

• 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

 
   

Page 93



 
 

 
48

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

:  
O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
C

H
A

R
T 

 

H
EA

D
 O

F 
YO

U
TH

 O
FF

EN
D

IN
G

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
er

 (1
) 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
er

 (1
) 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
er

 (1
) 

A
dm

in
is

tra
to

rs
 (5

.5
) 

D
IV

ER
SI

O
N

 T
EA

M
 

P
ol

ic
e 

(2
) 

Y
ou

th
 w

or
ke

r (
1)

 
Te

ac
he

r (
1)

 
C

P
N

 (1
) 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

(1
.5

) 
S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

w
or

ke
r (

1.
3)

 
R

ep
ar

at
io

n 
W

or
ke

r (
1)

 
Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
S

up
po

rt 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Y

IS
P

 W
or

ke
rs

 (5
)  

C
O

U
R

T 
TE

A
M

 
 S

en
io

r P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 (1
)

S
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 (2

) 
R

ef
er

ra
l O

rd
er

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

r (
1)

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
1)

SU
PE

R
VI

SI
O

N
 T

EA
M

 
 R

A
P

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

r (
1)

 
S

en
io

r P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 (1
) 

S
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 (3

) 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
r (

1)
 

Page 94



 
 

 
49

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 B

:  
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
EA

SU
R

ES
 

K
PI

s 
B

el
ow

 p
le

as
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 d

at
a 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 K

P
Is

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

th
em

es
.  

 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

  
20

04
/0

5 
ou

ttu
rn

 
20

05
/0

6 
A

pr
-D

ec
 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

06
/0

7 
Ta

rg
et

 

Pr
ev

en
t o

ffe
nd

in
g 

(ta
rg

et
 s

in
ce

 0
5/

06
): 

R
ed

uc
e 

ye
ar

 o
n 

ye
ar

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
irs

t t
im

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 b
y 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

or
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 Y

IS
P

 o
r o

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e-
ba

se
d 

ta
rg

et
ed

 m
ea

ns
 o

f i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

os
e 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 p

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
as

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
by

 
us

in
g 

O
N

S
E

T 
or

 o
th

er
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

ns
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

 
22

3 
N

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

Pr
ev

en
t O

ffe
nd

in
g 

(o
ld

 ta
rg

et
): 

A
t l

ea
st

 2
00

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
ed

 fo
r s

up
po

rt 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r  

 
10

5 
N

E
W

 T
AR

G
ET

 
 

In
te

rv
en

e 
ea

rly
 (n

ew
 ta

rg
et

): 
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 a
 fi

na
l w

ar
ni

ng
 a

re
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
if:

 
- t

he
ir 

A
ss

et
 s

co
re

 is
 g

re
at

er
 o

r e
qu

al
 to

 1
2,

 o
r 

- t
he

re
 a

re
 a

ny
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

of
 ri

sk
 o

f s
er

io
us

 h
ar

m
 to

 o
th

er
s,

 o
r 

- t
he

ir 
sc

or
e 

is
 le

ss
 th

an
 1

2 
bu

t a
ny

 s
ec

tio
ns

 s
co

re
 4

 
 

 
 

10
0 

In
te

rv
en

e 
ea

rly
 (o

ld
 ta

rg
et

): 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 8

0%
 o

f a
ll 

fin
al

 w
ar

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
 

73
%

 
77

.4
2%

 
 

R
ed

uc
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g:

 

A
ch

ie
ve

 a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

by
 5

%
 in

 2
00

6-
07

, w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

20
02

-0
3 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

co
ho

rt,
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

fo
ur

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

: 

 

20
02

/0
3 

co
ho

rt
 

%
 re

of
fe

nd
in

g 
af

te
r 2

4 
m

on
th

s:
 

20
03

/0
4 

co
ho

rt
 

%
 re

of
fe

nd
in

g 
af

te
r 2

4 
m

on
th

s 
(if

 a
va

ila
bl

e)
: 

20
04

/5
 c

oh
or

t %
 

re
of

fe
nd

in
g 

af
te

r 2
4 

m
on

th
s:

 

P
re

-c
ou

rt 
31

.8
2%

 
32

.7
3%

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 5

%
 

Page 95



 
 

 
50

 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
  

20
04

/0
5 

ou
ttu

rn
 

20
05

/0
6 

A
pr

-D
ec

 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 

Fi
rs

t t
ie

r p
en

al
tie

s 
 

63
.0

4%
 

61
.4

0%
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 5
%

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 p

en
al

tie
s 

 
80

.7
7%

 
69

.7
0%

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 5

%
 

C
us

to
dy

  
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 5

%
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 c

us
to

dy
 (s

ec
ur

e 
re

m
an

ds
): 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
em

an
ds

 to
 th

e 
se

cu
re

 e
st

at
e 

(a
s 

a 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
re

m
an

d 
ep

is
od

es
 e

xc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

di
tio

na
l /

 u
nc

on
di

tio
na

l b
ai

l) 
to

 3
0%

 
40

.4
%

 
51

.2
8%

 
 30

%
 

 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 c

us
to

dy
 (c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
): 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 a
s 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

co
ur

t d
is

po
sa

ls
 to

 5
%

 
5.

75
%

 
7.

33
%

 
R

ed
uc

e 
to

 5
%

 

En
su

re
 th

e 
sw

ift
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 ju
st

ic
e:

  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 9
0%

 o
f p

re
-s

en
te

nc
e 

re
po

rts
 a

re
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 fo

r P
YO

s 
 

60
%

 
59

.3
8%

 
90

%
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 9
0%

 o
f p

re
-s

en
te

nc
e 

re
po

rts
 a

re
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

5 
da

ys
 fo

r g
en

er
al

 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

 
79

.2
7%

 
84

.0
9%

 
90

%
 

En
su

re
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

rig
or

ou
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 d
is

po
sa

ls
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

ta
ge

  
96

.8
1%

 
91

.1
1%

 
10

0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 d
is

po
sa

ls
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t c

lo
su

re
 

st
ag

e 
 

93
.3

3%
 

94
.9

5%
 

10
0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

ta
ge

  
10

0%
 

96
.3

%
 

10
0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t t

ra
ns

fe
r 

st
ag

e 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t c

lo
su

re
 

st
ag

e 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

in
iti

al
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

 fo
r D

TO
s 

ar
e 

dr
aw

n 
up

 w
ith

in
 1

0 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

of
 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
be

in
g 

pa
ss

ed
  

61
.9

%
 

73
.0

8%
 

10
0 

Page 96



 
 

 
51

 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
  

20
04

/0
5 

ou
ttu

rn
 

20
05

/0
6 

A
pr

-D
ec

 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 

Su
pp

or
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

en
ga

gi
ng

 in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t: 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 9
0%

 o
f y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 s

up
er

vi
se

d 
by

 th
e 

Y
ot

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 in

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t  
76

.2
6%

 
89

.0
5%

 
90

 

Su
pp

or
t a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n:

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

Y
ot

s 
ha

ve
 a

 n
am

ed
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
of

fic
er

 a
nd

 th
at

 1
00

%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 fi
na

l w
ar

ni
ng

s 
w

ith
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n,
 re

le
va

nt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 p

en
al

tie
s 

or
 

on
 re

le
as

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
se

cu
re

 e
st

at
e 

ha
ve

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
to

 g
o 

to
  

86
.6

1%
 

92
.6

6%
 

10
0 

Su
pp

or
t a

cc
es

s 
to

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
by

 A
S

S
E

T 
as

 m
an

ife
st

in
g 

ac
ut

e 
m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

ar
e 

re
fe

rre
d 

by
 Y

O
Ts

 to
 th

e 
C

A
M

H
S 

fo
r a

 fo
rm

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 w

ith
in

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
of

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 re
fe

rr
al

 w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 th

ei
r 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
a 

tie
r 3

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t  

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
by

 A
S

S
E

T 
as

 m
an

ife
st

in
g 

no
n-

ac
ut

e 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ar
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
fo

r a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
by

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 C

A
M

H
S

 ti
er

 (1
-3

) c
om

m
en

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 1

5 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0 

Su
pp

or
t a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
se

rv
ic

es
: 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 s
cr

ee
ne

d 
fo

r s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
96

.8
1%

 
91

.2
9%

 
10

0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
s 

re
ce

iv
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
ith

in
 5

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

10
0%

 
86

.0
5%

 
10

0 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

ea
rly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

tre
at

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 

re
qu

ire
 w

ith
in

 1
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
:  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 7
5%

 o
f v

ic
tim

s 
of

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 Y

ot
s 

ar
e 

of
fe

re
d 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 a

 re
st

or
at

iv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

 
51

.1
1%

 
59

.6
8%

 
75

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 7
5%

 o
f v

ic
tim

s 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
 

96
.3

%
 

85
.7

1%
 

75
 

Su
pp

or
t p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

:  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 1
0%

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 fi

na
l w

ar
ni

ng
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
or

 a
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 d

is
po

sa
l r

ec
ei

ve
 a

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
2%

 
10

.5
0%

 
10

%
 (L

oc
al

 
Ta

rg
et

 1
5%

 

Page 97



 
 

 
52

 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
  

20
04

/0
5 

ou
ttu

rn
 

20
05

/0
6 

A
pr

-D
ec

 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
06

/0
7 

Ta
rg

et
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 7
5 

%
 o

f p
ar

en
ts

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 a
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

 
N

/a
 

10
0%

 
75

 

En
su

re
 e

qu
al

 tr
ea

tm
en

t r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 ra

ce
 (n

ew
 ta

rg
et

): 
 

Y
ot

s 
m

us
t d

el
iv

er
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

ct
iv

ity
 th

at
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 re

du
ce

s 
lo

ca
l d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
by

 e
th

ni
ci

ty
 in

 
re

co
rd

ed
 c

on
vi

ct
io

n 
ra

te
s,

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

 
 

 

En
su

re
 e

qu
al

 tr
ea

tm
en

t r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 ra

ce
 (o

ld
 ta

rg
et

): 
 

A
ll 

Y
O

Ts
 to

 h
av

e 
an

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ny
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
et

hn
ic

 
co

m
po

si
tio

n 
of

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
on

 a
ll 

pr
e-

co
ur

t a
nd

 p
os

t-c
ou

rt 
di

sp
os

al
s 

an
d 

th
e 

et
hn

ic
 

co
m

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 is
 re

du
ce

d 
ye

ar
-o

n-
ye

ar
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

N
E

W
 T

AR
G

ET
 

Page 98



 
 

 
53

 

 EP
Q

A
 

 Th
em

e 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
  

In
iti

al
 s

co
re

  
Pr

ed
ic

te
d 

sc
or

e 
 

A
ct

ua
l s

co
re

 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n:

 p
os

t 0
7 

 
 

 
Ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n:
 F

in
al

 w
ar

ni
ng

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 
2 

3 
3 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n:
 IS

S
P

 p
os

t 0
7 

 
 

 

M
an

ag
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r c
us

to
dy

: R
em

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 0

6 
– 

08
 

 
 

 

Sw
ift

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 ju

st
ic

e:
 p

os
t 0

7 
 

 
 

 

R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

ju
st

ic
e 

an
d 

vi
ct

im
s:

 p
os

t 0
7 

 
 

 

R
ac

e 
(n

/a
) 

 
 

 

R
ec

id
iv

is
m

 (n
/a

) 
 

 
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 
2 

3 
2 

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

1 
2 

3 

Su
bs

ta
nc

e 
m

is
us

e:
  0

6 
– 

08
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 

M
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

: 0
5 

– 
07

  
2 

3 
 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

(n
/a

) 
 

 
 

R
es

et
tle

m
en

t 
2 

3 
 

Pa
re

nt
in

g 
3 

3 
3 

 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

1.
1

P
ilo

t t
w

o 
Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 (Y

IP
s)

 
in

 tw
o 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P
 a

re
as

, e
ng

ag
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t 

at
 ri

sk
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 e

ac
h 

lo
ca

tio
n 

in
 

co
ns

tru
ct

iv
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

*

Y
JB

, P
A

Y
P

, 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s,
 Y

ou
th

 
S

er
vi

ce
, [

N
R

F]
 -b

id
 

fo
r £

36
3k

 n
ew

 
re

so
ur

ce

Y
IP

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

an
d 

on
go

in
g

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

M
an

ag
er

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ay

S
ta

ff 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

by
 J

ul
y

Y
IP

s 
op

er
at

io
na

l b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
  A

ug
us

t
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

07

50
 a

t r
is

k 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
pi

lo
t a

re
a,

 
of

 w
ho

m
 7

5%
 a

re
 e

ng
ag

ed
 

in
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
ou

tc
om

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
re

du
ce

d 
of

fe
nd

in
g)

 fo
r 

ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

S
te

ve
 S

ip
pl

e/
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

1.
2

D
ev

el
op

 u
se

 o
f T

H
IS

 C
H

IL
D

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 ri
sk

Y
O

T 
co

re
 b

ud
ge

t

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 Y
O

T 
st

af
f t

ra
in

ed
 in

 a
nd

 u
si

ng
 

TH
IS

 C
H

IL
D

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
ro

ce
ss

, w
ith

 re
po

rt 
to

 Y
O

T 
M

B
 

by
 J

an
 2

00
7

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

pu
t o

f Y
O

T 
ca

se
s 

in
to

 T
H

IS
 C

H
IL

D

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 
ris

k

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

/C
hr

is
 M

un
da

y

1.
3

M
on

ito
r p

ol
ic

e 
‘M

er
lin

’ s
ys

te
m

 fo
r c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t y
ou

ng
er

 c
hi

ld
re

n
P

ol
ic

e

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

fe
rr

al
, w

ith
 li

nk
e 

to
 T

H
IS

 C
H

IL
D

, i
n 

A
pr

il 
06 C

on
fir

m
 p

ro
to

co
l b

et
w

ee
n 

po
lic

e 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

s 
by

 M
ay

 2
00

6

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 e

ar
ly

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
fe

rr
al

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
t r

is
k

In
cr

ea
se

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 ri
sk

Ja
ne

 E
as

to
n/

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

1.
4

In
cr

ea
se

 s
up

po
rt 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

t e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
st

ag
e 

(s
ee

 a
ls

o 
2.

4 
an

d 
15

.2
)

Y
JB

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

gr
an

t

E
ns

ur
e 

pa
re

nt
al

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

   
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 C

or
am

 fa
m

ily
 

su
pp

or
t w

or
ke

r  
A

pr
il 

20
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
M

on
ito

r n
um

be
r o

f r
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 C
or

am
 o

f 
pa

re
nt

s 
of

 A
B

C
s,

 A
S

B
O

s 
an

d 
FW

s 
(Q

ua
rte

rly
)

M
or

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

sk
ill

s

A
ch

ie
ve

 s
tre

tc
he

d 
lo

ca
l 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 1
5%

 Y
O

T 
ca

se
s 

 h
av

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/L

ou
an

n 
P

ria
m

1.
5

D
ev

el
op

 Y
IS

P
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 c
om

m
itt

in
g 

A
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 
th

os
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

pr
im

an
ds

Y
IS

P
 c

or
e 

bu
dg

et
/N

R
F

E
st

ab
lis

h 
re

fe
rr

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 w
ith

 A
S

B
 

C
on

tro
l U

ni
t a

nd
 Y

ot
 p

ol
ic

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Q
ua

rte
rly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f A

S
B

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 re

pr
im

an
ds

 c
om

in
g 

to
 

Y
IS

P

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

t-r
is

k 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 
Y

IS
P

R
ed

uc
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

1.
6

W
id

en
 Y

O
T'

s 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 - 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t a
nd

 m
ai

ns
tre

am
 y

ou
th

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

C
or

e 
pa

rtn
er

s 
bu

dg
et

s

A
gr

ee
 w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
ss

es
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e

M
or

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 e

xp
os

ed
 

to
 c

rim
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
   

   
   

   
   

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

w
or

ki
ng

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 A
S

B
 a

nd
 

yo
ut

h 
cr

im
e

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/S

te
ve

 S
ip

pl
e

1.
 P

re
ve

nt
 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

1

Page 101



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

1.
7

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 C
hi

ll 
O

ut
 Z

on
es

, 
ar

ou
nd

 a
ll 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 S
af

er
 S

ch
oo

ls
 O

ffi
ce

r.

C
or

e 
pa

rtn
er

 
bu

dg
et

s,
 b

id
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

S
S

C
F/

B
C

U

Id
en

tif
y 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
s 

by
 0

1/
05

/0
6.

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
ch

oo
l t

ea
m

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
an

d 
be

ha
vi

ou
r p

la
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

01
/0

5/
06

.
In

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
pr

od
uc

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
sc

ho
ol

 b
y 

01
/0

5/
06

.
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
f e

ac
h 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 0
1/

06
/0

6.
W

ee
kl

y 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
re

. 
'b

eh
av

io
ur

' a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.

Fo
rm

at
io

n 
of

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

s 
w

ith
 a

cc
om

pa
ny

in
g 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

in
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s.

 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 d
is

or
de

r i
n 

an
d 

ar
ou

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s.

Y
ou

th
 o

n 
yo

ut
h 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 2
%

 (L
A

A
)

Ja
ne

 E
as

to
n/

Li
z 

V
ic

ke
rie

 o
r K

er
ri 

M
ar

in
er

2.
1

R
ef

er
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 to
 

th
e 

Y
IS

P
 fo

r a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f s
ui

ta
bi

lit
y

P
ol

ic
e

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 re
fe

rr
al

 ro
ut

e 
in

 
A

pr
il 

20
06

C
on

fir
m

 p
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

Y
IS

P
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

t-r
is

k 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 
Y

IS
P

E
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
w

ith
 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s

Ja
ne

 E
as

to
n/

M
oh

am
m

ed
 

S
ha

ha
za

n

2.
2

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
n 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n

P
ol

ic
e

R
ev

ie
w

 F
W

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 c
on

fir
m

 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Q
ua

rte
rly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 J
ul

y,
 

O
ct

ob
er

 0
6,

 a
nd

 J
an

ua
ry

, A
pr

il 
07

 w
ith

 
re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 F
W

A
ch

ie
ve

 Y
JB

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 in

 8
0%

 o
f 

Fi
na

l W
ar

ni
ng

s
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m
/J

an
e 

E
as

to
n

2.
3

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 ri
sk

 a
nd

 a
lig

n 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
S

up
po

rt 
P

an
el

 w
ith

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l 

In
cl

us
io

n 
P

an
el

Y
O

T 
C

or
e,

 b
id

 fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
S

S
C

F/
B

C
U

A
ny

 n
ew

 re
so

ur
ce

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
06

A
gr

ee
 re

fe
rr

al
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
by

 
M

ay
 0

6
R

ev
ie

w
 ro

le
 o

f Y
IS

P
 a

nd
 S

IP
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 b

y 
M

ay
 0

6

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 e
ng

ag
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

Y
IS

P
 (t

o 
be

 c
on

fir
m

ed
)

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
ou

tc
om

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
re

du
ce

d 
of

fe
nd

in
g)

 fo
r 

ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/L

iz
 V

ic
ke

rie

2.
4

In
cr

ea
se

 s
up

po
rt 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

t e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
st

ag
e 

(S
ee

 a
ls

o 
1.

4 
an

d 
15

.2
)

Y
JB

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

G
ra

nt

E
ns

ur
e 

pa
re

nt
al

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

   
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 C

or
am

 fa
m

ily
 

su
pp

or
t w

or
ke

r  
A

pr
il 

20
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
M

on
ito

r n
um

be
r o

f r
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 C
or

am
 o

f 
pa

re
nt

s 
of

 A
B

C
s,

 A
S

B
O

s 
an

d 
FW

s 

M
or

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

sk
ill

s

A
ch

ie
ve

 s
tre

tc
he

d 
lo

ca
l 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 1
5%

 Y
O

T 
ca

se
s 

 h
av

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

2.
5

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
's

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

n 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

 e
ve

ry
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

rs
on

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

n 
A

B
C

, A
S

B
O

 a
nd

 
re

pr
im

an
ds

Y
IS

P
 fu

nd
in

g

M
on

ito
r t

ha
t a

ll 
ca

se
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
re

fe
rr

ed
 

to
 Y

IS
P

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 n

um
be

r o
f A

B
C

, 
A

S
B

O
 a

nd
 re

pr
im

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 
an

d 
w

ith
ou

t i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 A
S

B
 a

nd
 

yo
ut

h 
cr

im
e

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

2.
6

E
ns

ur
e 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
si

bl
in

gs
 o

f o
ffe

nd
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
fa

m
ily

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

S
IP

C
or

e 
pa

rtn
er

s 
bu

dg
et

s

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
si

bl
in

gs
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6

R
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 S
IP

/Y
IS

P
 re

fe
rr

al
 p

ro
to

co
l b

y 
Ju

n 
20

06

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

si
bl

in
gs

 o
f 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 ri
sk

 
fa

ct
or

s

R
ed

uc
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/L

iz
 V

ic
ke

rie

2.
 In

te
rv

en
e 

Ea
rly

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

2

Page 102



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

2.
7

P
ol

ic
e 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 C
om

m
un

ity
 O

rie
nt

ed
 

P
ol

ic
in

g 
(C

O
P

) p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r a

t-r
is

k 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le

P
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
, b

id
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

fro
m

 S
S

C
F/

B
C

U

M
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 J
un

 2
00

6
4 

co
ur

se
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6
C

ou
rs

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6

40
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

po
si

tiv
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

C
O

P

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r t
ar

ge
t 

gr
ou

p 
C

hr
is

 M
cN

am
ar

a

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

3

Page 103



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

3.
1

D
ev

el
op

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 fo

r e
ve

ry
 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
 o

n 
th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 li
st

 
an

d 
en

su
re

 a
dd

ed
 v

al
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
&

D
 

ta
ct

ic
al

 g
ro

up
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
Y

O
T 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 
fo

r t
ha

t c
lie

nt
 g

ro
up

 

C
or

e 
pa

rtn
er

 b
ud

ge
ts

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 ta

ct
ic

al
 g

ro
up

 in
 p

la
ce

 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

g 
m

on
th

ly
, w

ith
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 

ag
en

ci
es

 e
ng

ag
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r a

ll 
yo

un
g 

P
P

O
s 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
Le

ad
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
yo

un
g 

P
P

O
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

A
t l

ea
st

 2
0 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
ny

 o
ne

 ti
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
P

&
D

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
ou

tc
om

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
re

du
ce

d 
of

fe
nd

in
g)

 fo
r 

ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
 / 

Je
an

ni
e 

H
ag

ge
rty

3.
2

R
ev

ie
w

 c
on

tra
ct

 fo
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f t

he
 In

te
ns

iv
e 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 S
ur

ve
ill

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(IS
S

P
) i

n 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 C
am

de
n,

 Is
lin

gt
on

 
&

 H
ac

kn
ey

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d

Y
JB

 g
ra

nt
R

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 Y

O
T 

M
B

 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 in

 p
la

ce
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

IS
S

P
 

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
 / 

P
au

la
 W

ill
ia

m
s

3.
3

Fu
lly

 e
ng

ag
e 

th
e 

IS
S

P
 p

ro
vi

de
r i

n 
th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 

an
d 

D
et

er
 T

ac
tic

al
 G

ro
up

Y
JB

 g
ra

nt
IS

S
P

 p
ro

vi
de

r r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

P
&

D
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06

Im
pr

ov
ed

 in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

, s
up

er
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 
su

rv
ei

lla
nc

e 
of

 th
is

 g
ro

up

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

pe
rs

is
te

nt
 o

ffe
nd

er
s

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

3.
4

P
ro

vi
de

 re
gu

la
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

to
 S

af
er

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 T
ea

m
s 

on
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
IS

S
P

Y
O

T/
P

ol
ic

e

P
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
P

&
D

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 - 
on

go
in

g

In
cr

ea
se

d 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f 
IS

S
P

 to
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

su
rv

ei
lle

nc
e 

ac
tiv

ity

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

rv
ei

lla
nc

e 
of

 p
er

si
se

nt
 o

ffe
nd

er
s

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
 / 

C
hr

is
 M

cN
am

ar
a

3.
5

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

to
co

l w
ith

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 fo

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
un

is
hm

en
t a

nd
 re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
s

Y
O

T/
P

ro
ba

tio
n

P
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l b

y 
M

ay
 

20
06

E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 te

am
 le

ad
er

 - 
on

go
in

g

P
ro

to
co

l
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

ur
ve

ill
an

ce
 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t o

f 
C

P
R

O
s

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
 / 

C
hr

is
 C

ha
te

r

3.
6

In
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 s

tra
te

gy
, 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
th

is
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

 
P

ar
tn

er
 c

or
e 

bu
dg

et
s

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 ta

ct
ic

al
 g

ro
up

 in
 p

la
ce

 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

g 
m

on
th

ly
, w

ith
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 

ag
en

ci
es

 e
ng

ag
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
  M

on
ito

r 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f o
ffe

nd
er

s 
be

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d

In
cr

ea
se

d 
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
nd

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
ou

tc
om

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
re

du
ce

d 
of

fe
nd

in
g)

 fo
r 

ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/J

ea
nn

ie
 H

ag
ge

rty

3.
7

Id
en

tif
y 

lin
k 

m
an

ag
er

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
Y

O
T 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
w

or
ke

r 
P

ro
ba

tio
n

Li
nk

 m
an

ag
er

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
R

eg
ul

ar
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06

R
eg

ul
ar

 c
on

ta
ct

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Y

O
T 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
w

or
ke

r a
nd

 
pr

ob
at

io
n

S
tre

ng
th

en
ed

 li
nk

 
be

tw
ee

n 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

pr
ob

at
io

n
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

 / 
C

hr
is

 C
ha

te
r

3.
8

R
ev

ie
w

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r g
ro

up
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 

of
 IS

S
P

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 b

y 
Y

O
T 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

m
an

ag
er

Y
JB

 g
ra

nt
Li

nk
 in

 w
ith

 IS
S

P
 c

on
tra

ct
 re

vi
ew

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6
M

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 a
dv

oc
at

es
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

IS
S

P
 

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s

3.
9

R
ev

ie
w

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 B
ai

l I
S

S
P

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

to
 C

ou
rts

Y
JB

 g
ra

nt
M

on
ito

r r
ev

is
ed

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 

fo
ra

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

rts
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
o 

f B
ai

l I
S

S
P

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
us

to
di

al
 

re
m

an
ds

S
tu

ar
t j

oh
ns

on
/M

ic
k 

re
id

/ 

3.
 P

ro
vi

de
 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
Su

pe
rv

is
io

n

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

4

Page 104



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

4.
1

S
up

po
rt 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
’s

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
n 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

to
 e

ve
ry

 y
ou

ng
 p

er
so

n 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
 A

B
C

 o
r A

S
B

O
 

C
or

e 
Y

O
T,

 b
id

 fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
S

S
C

F/
B

C
U

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 re
fe

rr
al

 p
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

by
 

M
ay

 2
00

6
R

eg
ul

ar
 re

vi
ew

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

y 
A

S
B

A
G

 (q
ua

rte
rly

)

E
ve

ry
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

on
 a

n 
A

B
C

 o
r A

S
B

O
 re

ce
iv

ei
ng

 a
n 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

R
ed

uc
ed

 A
S

B
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

by
 ta

rg
et

 g
ro

up
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m
/S

te
ve

 S
ip

pl
e

4.
2

Im
pl

em
en

t a
 g

ro
up

-w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s.

 
In

cl
ud

in
g 

C
og

ni
tiv

e/
B

eh
av

io
ur

al
, v

ic
tim

 
aw

ar
en

es
s,

 a
nd

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
r g

ro
up

s

S
S

D
/C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s/

P
ro

ba
tio

n/
P

ol
ic

e
R

ep
or

t r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 g

ro
up

 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

R
ed

uc
e 

re
ci

di
vi

sm
 K

P
I

Y
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s

4.
3

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e-

ba
se

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
“P

at
hw

ay
s”

 a
nd

 “T
ee

nt
al

k”
 (c

og
ni

tiv
e 

/ 
be

ha
vi

ou
ra

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e)

 s
up

er
vi

so
ry

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es

Y
JB

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

R
ev

ie
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ja

n 
20

07
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 g
ro

up
 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
Im

pr
ov

ed
 re

ci
di

vi
sm

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

Y
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s

4.
4

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 m
on

th
ly

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 te

am
 m

ee
tin

g 
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

gr
ea

te
r i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t o

f p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 
in

 
E

P
Q

A
 e

xe
rc

is
es

Y
O

T 
co

re
 b

ud
ge

t

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
to

 te
am

 m
ee

tin
g 

ag
en

da
s 

   
 

Li
nk

 in
 w

ith
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 (s

ee
 'r

ed
uc

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
' 

ac
tio

ns
 a

bo
ve

) 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

st
af

f c
om

pe
te

nc
e

R
ed

uc
ed

 re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

ra
te

 
Y

O
T 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l m

an
ag

er
s

4.
5

M
on

ito
r m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r c

on
ta

ct
s 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 O
rd

er
s 

ag
ai

ns
t N

at
io

na
l 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

Y
O

T 
co

re
 b

ud
ge

t

B
ui

ld
 in

to
 ro

ut
in

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  Q

ua
rte

rly
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 re
po

rts
 to

 Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
gr

ou
p.

M
or

e 
co

nt
ac

ts
 h

el
d 

w
ith

in
 

N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
rd

s
R

ed
uc

ed
 re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
 

P
au

la
 W

ill
ia

m
s/

M
ic

k 
R

ei
d

4.
4

E
st

ab
lis

h 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

ed
 P

ol
ic

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 Y
O

T 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
rr

es
ta

bl
e 

m
at

te
rs

.
Y

O
T/

P
ol

ic
e

P
ro

to
co

l i
n 

pl
ac

e 
M

ay
 2

00
6

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
w

ith
 re

po
rts

 to
 Y

O
T 

M
B

 - 
on

go
in

g
Fa

st
er

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 b

re
ac

h
Im

pr
ov

ed
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t

Ja
ne

 E
as

to
n 

/ L
ou

an
n 

P
ria

m

4.
6

In
cr

ea
se

 P
ol

ic
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 fo
r P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 

D
et

er
 

P
ol

ic
e 

co
re

, b
id

 fo
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 S

S
C

F/
B

C
U

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

 to
 li

nk
 w

ith
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
Le

ad
 Y

O
T 

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l m

an
ag

er
 fo

r P
&

D
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

rv
ei

lle
nc

e,
 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

fo
r 

P
&

D
 s

ch
em

e

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
su

rv
ei

lle
nc

e 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f 

pe
rs

is
te

nt
 y

ou
ng

 
of

fe
nd

er
s

Je
an

ni
e 

H
ag

ge
rty

4.
 R

ed
uc

e 
re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

5

Page 105



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

5.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 re
fin

e 
th

e 
ba

il 
su

pp
or

t s
ch

em
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
 it

 a
t t

he
 m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
gr

ou
ps

Y
JB

C
ur

re
nt

 s
ch

em
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

 0
6

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

ns
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 J
ul

 
20

06
B

et
te

r t
ar

ge
te

d 
ba

il 
su

pp
or

t
R

ed
uc

e 
cu

st
od

ia
l 

re
m

an
ds

M
ic

k 
R

ei
d

5.
2

E
st

ab
lis

h 
re

m
an

d 
fo

st
er

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
in

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 s
oc

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s

S
S

D
/C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s

In
te

rim
 s

po
t p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
Fi

rs
t p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l b
y 

S
ep

t 
20

06

P
ro

vi
de

 3
 p

la
ce

s 
in

 re
m

an
d 

fo
st

er
in

g
R

ed
uc

e 
cu

st
od

ia
l 

re
m

an
ds

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/A

nn
 G

ol
ds

m
ith

5.
3

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

ca
se

s 
w

he
re

 a
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

e 
is

 im
po

se
d

C
hi

ef
 e

xe
cu

tiv
es

P
ro

to
co

l f
or

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 re
vi

ew
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
O

ut
co

m
e 

of
 re

vi
ew

s 
m

on
ito

re
d,

 w
ith

 
ac

tio
n 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, b
y 

te
am

 le
ad

er
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 re

vi
ew

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 Y

O
T 

by
 

D
ec

 2
00

6

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

cu
st

od
ia

l s
en

te
nc

e
R

ed
uc

e 
cu

st
od

ia
l 

se
nt

en
ce

s
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d/
 P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s

5.
4

A
gr

ee
 a

 p
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

m
an

de
d 

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n

Y
O

T/
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

un
 2

00
6

R
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

D
ec

 2
00

6
Jo

in
t p

ro
to

co
l i

m
pl

em
en

te
d

Im
pr

ov
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 L

A
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/A

nn
 G

ol
ds

m
ith

5.
5

P
rc

tit
io

ne
r S

ta
ff 

tra
in

in
g:

  o
n 

C
rim

in
al

 u
st

ic
e 

A
ct

 a
nd

 it
s 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

en
te

nc
in

g,
 a

nd
   

   
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

'P
at

hw
ay

' g
ro

up
 w

or
k 

is
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 
in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

Y
ot

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t

B
ui

ld
 in

to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
   

   
   

   
S

ta
ff 

re
ce

iv
e 

tra
in

in
g 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
on

gr
ua

nc
y 

ra
te

 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 

cu
st

od
y

Y
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s

5.
6

Y
O

T 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 m
ag

is
tra

te
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
re

m
an

ds
 to

 C
us

to
dy

, C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 c
us

to
dy

Y
O

T

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

P
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 to

 m
ag

is
tra

te
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

 2
00

6
C

us
to

dy
 ra

te
s 

m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 Y
O

T 
M

B
 w

ith
 

re
m

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

In
cr

ea
se

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 c

ou
rts

 o
n 

se
nt

en
ci

ng
 

R
ed

uc
e 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
re

m
an

ds
 a

nd
 s

en
te

nc
es

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/M

ic
k 

R
ei

d/
 R

ob
in

 
C

al
le

nd
er

 S
m

ith

5.
 R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 C
us

to
dy

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

6

Page 106



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

6.
1

D
ev

el
op

 u
se

 o
f B

or
ou

gh
 C

rim
in

al
 J

us
tic

e 
G

ro
up

 a
s 

fo
ru

m
 fo

r p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

is
su

es
 

C
R

S
/Y

O
T

O
ng

oi
ng

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 g

ro
up

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
at

 
gr

ou
p 

- q
ua

rte
rly

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t m
ee

tin
gs

B
et

te
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t o
f 

C
JS

 in
 m

ee
tin

g 
yo

ut
h 

cr
im

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, i
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

r P
Y

O
 p

le
dg

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

br
ea

ch
 

O
liv

ia
 M

cL
eo

d/
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

6.
2

Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
 to

 re
vi

ew
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
P

er
si

st
en

t Y
ou

ng
 

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
(P

Y
O

) t
ar

ge
t (

to
 g

et
 fr

om
 a

rr
es

t t
o 

se
nt

en
ce

 in
 7

1 
da

ys
 o

r l
es

s)
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r 

ba
si

s,
 w

ith
 re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry

C
R

S
/Y

O
T

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nn

ua
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 A
pr

il 
th

en
 

on
go

in
g

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
at

 
se

ni
or

 le
ve

l

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

 P
S

R
 K

P
I

Ia
n 

W
ils

on
/S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

6.
3

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 w
ith

 to
p 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
Y

O
Ts

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

pr
e-

se
nt

en
ce

 re
po

rt 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s
C

R
S

/Y
O

T
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
by

 A
pr

il/
20

06
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 b

y 
M

ay
 0

6
Im

pr
ov

ed
 P

S
R

s
Im

pr
ov

ed
 ti

m
el

in
es

s 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 re

po
rts

 
to

 c
ou

rt
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d

6.
4

In
flu

en
ce

 c
ou

rt 
to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
br

ea
ch

 li
st

in
gs

C
or

e 
Y

O
T 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

pr
il 

20
06

P
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 c
ou

rt 
by

 J
un

 2
00

6
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
br

ea
ch

 c
as

es
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

of
 C

ou
rt 

O
rd

er
s

M
ic

k 
R

ei
d/

R
ob

in
 C

al
le

nd
er

 S
m

ith

7.
1

Im
pl

em
en

t Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t (
w

he
n 

is
su

ed
)

Y
JB

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
in

 fo
ur

 
w

ee
ks

 o
f i

ss
ue

 o
f g

ui
da

nc
e

Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

ke
pt

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

 - 
on

go
in

g

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t
R

ed
uc

e 
of

fe
nd

in
g

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

7.
2

M
on

ito
r m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 b
re

ac
h 

ac
tio

n 
, a

ga
in

st
 N

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

Y
O

T 
co

re
 b

ud
ge

t

B
ui

ld
 in

to
 ro

ut
in

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  Q

ua
rte

rly
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 re
po

rts
 to

 Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
gr

ou
p

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

R
ed

uc
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g

Y
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s

7.
3

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

fe
r a

ll 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
IS

S
P

, 
A

S
B

O
s,

 A
B

C
s 

to
 lo

ca
l s

af
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

te
am

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t

Y
O

T/
P

ol
ic

e

P
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
P

&
D

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 - 
on

go
in

g

In
cr

ea
se

d 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
su

rv
ei

lle
nc

e 
ac

tiv
ity

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t, 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
of

fe
nd

in
g

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/J

ea
nn

ie
 H

ag
ge

rty
/ E

7.
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

an
d 

En
ab

le
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

6.
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
sw

ift
 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 

Ju
st

ic
e

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

7

Page 107



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

7.
4

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 D

et
er

 in
iti

at
iv

e,
 

bu
ild

 u
p 

P
ol

ic
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

nd
 s

ur
ve

ill
an

ce
 o

f P
Y

O
s

P
ol

ic
e 

A
gr

ee
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
.E

5 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
on

ito
r e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t r

ec
or

ds
 o

f P
Y

O
s

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

R
ed

uc
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g

Je
an

ni
e 

H
ag

ge
rty

/S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

7.
5

R
ev

ie
w

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

ur
t f

or
 

br
ea

ch
 m

at
te

rs
 to

 b
e 

lis
te

d 
as

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 n

at
io

na
l E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t d

el
iv

er
y 

bo
ar

d 
m

ea
su

re

Y
JB

C
ou

rt 
re

vi
ew

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

 C
ou

rt 
O

rd
er

s
R

ob
in

 C
al

le
nd

er
-S

m
ith

8.
1

A
lig

n 
Y

O
T 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

ith
 C

om
m

on
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 
"L

ea
d 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l" 
ap

pr
oa

ch
Y

O
T 

co
re

 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 C
A

F/
LP

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
C

A
F 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 A

S
S

E
T 

by
 D

ec
 2

00
6

Le
ad

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 in

 m
ul

ti-

C
A

F/
LP

 u
se

d 
in

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 c
om

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
T

Im
pr

ov
ed

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 y
ou

ng
 

of
fe

nd
er

s
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

8.
2

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 w
ith

 th
e 

se
cu

re
 e

st
at

e 
fo

r 
dr

aw
in

g 
up

 in
iti

al
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

 w
ith

in
 n

at
io

na
l 

st
an

da
rd

s 
Y

JB
P

ro
to

co
l a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 M
ay

 
20

06
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 a
gr

ee
d

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d 
/ P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s

8.
3

Im
pl

em
en

t E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 (E

P
Q

A
) i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n

Y
JB

E
P

Q
A

 p
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

in
 fo

ur
 w

ee
ks

 o
f 

is
su

e 
of

 g
ui

da
nc

e
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rts

 o
n 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t b
oa

rd

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d 
/ P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s

8.
4

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
A

ss
et

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

 re
po

rti
ng

 to
 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
Y

JB
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rts

 to
 Y

O
T 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

bo
ar

d 
w

ith
 re

m
id

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 A
S

S
E

T 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

/P
et

er
 B

ul
le

n

9.
1

Fo
cu

s 
on

 o
ve

r 1
6'

s 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s,

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
S

ki
lls

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
ew

 S
ta

rt

Y
JB

/E
du

ca
tio

n/
C

on
n

ex
io

ns

P
ro

fil
e 

th
os

e 
no

t i
n 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

.  
Li

st
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
m

on
th

ly
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Y
O

T 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

w
or

ke
r t

o 
pr

of
ile

 c
as

es
 q

ua
rte

rly
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

ns
t K

P
I

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

9.
2

P
ro

vi
de

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
P

A
 fo

r e
ve

ry
 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 
D

et
er

 li
st

C
on

ne
xi

on
s

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 C

on
ne

xt
io

ns
 P

A
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

by
 

A
pr

il 
20

06
D

ire
ct

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 u

p 
to

 1
5 

P
&

D
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 fr
om

 M
ay

 2
00

6

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

P
&

D
 

of
fe

nd
er

s.
P

re
ve

nt
 p

ro
lif

ic
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
of

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
S

te
ve

 S
ip

pl
e

9.
3

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

ot
iv

at
io

na
l i

nt
er

vi
ew

in
g 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
is

 g
ro

up
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
em

 to
 d

ea
l e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 d

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

Y
JB

M
ot

iv
ia

tio
na

l t
ra

in
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 

20
06

S
tre

ng
th

en
ed

 s
ta

ff 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

's
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
E

TE

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

in
 E

TE
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

8.
En

su
re

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

rig
or

ou
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t

9.
 S

up
po

rt
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
in

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

8

Page 108



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

9.
4

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

of
fe

re
d 

is
 fi

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s
R

ev
ie

w
 a

ga
in

st
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
. F

ou
r n

ew
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ay

S
tre

ng
th

en
ed

 ra
ng

e 
 a

nd
 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f p

ro
vi

de
rs

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m
/Ia

n 
S

ua
tt

9.
5

S
co

pe
 p

ee
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r Y
O

T 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r
R

ep
or

t t
o 

Y
O

T 
M

B
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t
Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

pe
er

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
te

er
 w

or
k

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

9

Page 109



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

10
.1

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
of

fic
er

 a
t t

he
 Y

O
T 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
te

am

Y
JB

A
na

ly
se

 n
ee

d 
by

 M
ay

06
In

cr
ea

se
 ra

ng
e 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

by
 x

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d

10
.2

 C
72

S
S

D
/C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

cIn
te

rim
 s

po
t p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
Fi

rs
t p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l b
y 

S
ep

t 
20

06

P
ro

vi
de

 3
 p

la
ce

s 
in

 re
m

an
d 

fo
st

er
in

g
R

ed
uc

e 
re

m
an

ds
 in

 
cu

st
od

y
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

/A
nn

 G
ol

ds
m

ith

10
.3

A
gr

ee
 a

 p
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
T 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

m
an

de
d 

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
(S

ee
 a

ls
o 

ac
tio

n 
5.

4 
ab

ov
e)

Y
O

T/
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

cP
ro

to
co

l a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

un
 2

00
6

R
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

D
ec

 2
00

6
Jo

in
t p

ro
to

co
l i

m
pl

em
en

te
d

Im
pr

ov
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 L

A
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on
/A

nn
 G

ol
ds

m
ith

10
.4

W
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 a

 k
ey

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
er

 to
 o

ffe
r a

 c
on

si
st

en
t s

up
po

rt 
to

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

ffe
re

d 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
le

ve
ls

 

Y
JB

 / 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e
R

ev
ie

w
 s

up
po

rt 
ne

ed
s 

si
x 

m
on

th
s 

in
to

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 J
un

e 
06

S
tre

ng
th

en
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d

11
.1

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
cu

rr
en

t e
xc

el
le

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

fo
r a

ss
es

sm
en

t
Y

O
T/

C
A

M
H

S
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rts

 to
 Y

O
T 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

bo
ar

d 
w

ith
 re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

S
us

ta
in

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
n 

tim
es

ca
le

s
A

ch
ie

ve
 K

P
I

C
la

ire
 G

as
ki

n/
M

ar
ia

 M
cm

ill
an

11
.2

R
ol

l o
ut

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 a

ll 
Y

O
T 

ca
se

 
w

or
ke

rs
Y

O
T/

C
A

M
H

S
A

ll 
st

af
f t

ra
in

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 0

6
3 

m
on

th
ly

 re
fre

sh
er

 c
ou

rs
es

 fo
r n

ew
 s

ta
ff

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f s
ta

ff 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 
is

su
es

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
C

la
ire

 G
as

ki
n/

M
ar

ia
 M

cm
ill

an

11
.3

Im
pl

em
en

t w
ith

 H
ea

lth
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 fo
r t

he
 jo

in
t 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f s

ec
on

de
d 

he
al

th
 w

or
ke

rs
Y

O
T/

C
A

M
H

S
R

ev
is

ed
 C

A
M

H
S

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

Jo
in

t a
pp

ra
is

al
s 

ro
ut

in
el

y 
he

ld
S

ta
ff 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 h
ea

lth
 

lin
ks

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d

C
la

ire
 G

as
ki

n/
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

11
.4

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

by
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
sc

re
en

in
g 

fo
r Y

O
T 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s
P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t

P
ro

je
ct

 b
rie

f c
on

fir
m

ed
 a

nd
 w

or
ke

r 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

M
ap

pi
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

et
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ga
ps

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
n 

20
06

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 D

ec
 

20
06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ta

ke
-u

p 
by

 y
ou

ng
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
of

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 

ca
re

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 p

rim
ar

y 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
by

 Y
O

T 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

R
ed

uc
e 

po
or

 h
ea

lth
 a

s 
a 

ris
k 

fa
ct

or
 in

 o
ffe

nd
in

g

S
am

 V
ar

le
y

11
.5

Im
pl

em
en

t E
P

Q
A

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
P

C
T/

LA
Im

pl
em

en
t b

y 
A

pr
il 

06
R

ev
ie

w
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 b

y 
D

ec
 2

00
6

Im
pr

ov
ed

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

up
po

rt
A

ch
ie

ve
 le

ve
l 3

 E
P

Q
A

 
ra

tin
g

C
la

ire
 G

as
ki

n 
/ L

ou
an

n 
P

ria
m

10
. S

up
po

rt
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n

11
. S

up
po

rt
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

10

Page 110



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

12
.1

E
st

ab
lis

h 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

st
ro

ng
 li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

T 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

w
ly

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

Li
fe

 L
in

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
's

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
se

rv
ic

e
Y

JB
Li

nk
 w

or
ke

r i
nd

uc
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
06

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 d

ru
gs

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r Y
O

T 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

 / 
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

12
.2

E
m

be
d 

ne
w

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

Li
fe

lin
e 

Y
JB

Tr
ai

n 
al

l Y
O

T 
st

af
f i

n 
ne

w
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
to

ol
 b

y 
M

ay
 0

6

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 d

ru
gs

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r Y
O

T 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. I

m
pr

ov
ed

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

12
.3

R
ef

er
 a

ll 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 ti

er
 3

 o
r 4

 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

ne
ed

s 
to

 re
se

ttl
em

en
t a

nd
 

af
te

rc
ar

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
(R

A
P

) s
ch

em
es

Y
JB

M
on

ito
r q

ua
rte

rly
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
06

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 d

ru
gs

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r Y
O

T 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 R
A

P

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s/
M

ic
k 

R
ei

d

12
. S

up
po

rt
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

se
rv

ic
es

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

11

Page 111



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

13
.1

Im
pl

em
en

t n
at

io
na

l g
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r R
A

P
 s

ch
em

e
Y

JB
R

A
P

 S
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

re
vi

ew
 J

un
e 

06
S

tre
ng

th
en

ed
 R

A
P

 s
ch

em
e,

 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 

na
tio

na
l g

ui
de

lin
es

R
ed

uc
ed

 re
of

fe
nd

in
g

P
au

la
 W

ill
ia

m
s

13
.2

S
cr

ee
n 

al
l y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 c

us
to

dy
 fo

r 
su

ita
bi

lit
y 

fo
r R

A
P

 re
fe

rr
al

 
Y

JB
M

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r w

ee
kl

y 
re

po
rts

 to
 R

A
P

 c
o-

or
di

na
to

r o
n 

th
os

e 
gi

ve
n 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
Im

pr
ov

ed
 ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 R
A

P
R

ed
uc

ed
 re

of
fe

nd
in

g
P

et
er

 B
ul

le
n

13
.3

D
ev

el
op

 R
A

P
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

su
ch

 a
s 

e.
g.

 th
e 

 'W
or

ld
 C

up
 C

oo
k'

 s
ch

em
e

Y
JB

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 M

on
ito

r e
ffe

cIn
cr

ea
se

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 R

A
P

 a
nd

 
ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 R
A

P
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

R
ed

uc
ed

 re
of

fe
nd

in
g

P
au

la
 W

ill
ia

m
s

13
.4

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ex
it 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r e

ve
ry

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
rs

on
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
en

t a
nd

 d
et

er
 li

st
P

ol
ic

e 
/ Y

O
T 

/ 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 e
xi

t s
tra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r 

ev
er

y 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 o

n 
th

e 
lis

t b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 m
on

th
ly

 b
y 

P
&

D
 ta

ct
ic

al
 g

ro
up

S
tre

ng
th

en
ed

 P
&

D
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

a
R

ed
uc

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

/J
ea

nn
ie

 H
ag

ge
rty

14
.1

Im
pl

em
en

t a
nd

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 re

st
or

at
iv

e 
ju

st
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
Y

JB
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f R
J 

gr
ou

p
R

ep
or

t t
o 

Y
O

T 
M

B
 b

y 
D

ec
 2

00
6

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 R
J 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t K
P

I
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

14
.2

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 re

st
or

at
iv

e 
ju

st
ic

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
to

 b
rin

g 
ho

m
e 

to
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

ir 
ac

tio
ns

 
C

or
e 

bu
dg

et

R
J 

S
tra

te
gy

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 A
B

C
s 

an
d 

A
S

B
O

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

R
J 

S
tra

te
gy

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 A
S

B
R

J 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

on
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
ba

si
s

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 o
f R

J 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 Y

O
T 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
20

07

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 R
J 

in
 

de
liv

er
in

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
  i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

A
S

B

In
cr

ea
se

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

ju
st

ic
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
vi

ct
im

s 
by

 1
0%

P
al

vi
nd

er
 K

ai
nt

h/
Ja

ne
 E

as
to

n

14
.3

Im
pr

ov
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r f

ee
di

ng
 b

ac
k 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 v

ic
tim

s 
ab

ou
t t

he
 y

ou
ng

 
of

fe
nd

er
's

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em

C
or

e 
bu

dg
et

D
ev

el
op

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

pa
ss

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

 to
 

R
J 

te
am

   
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

ce
ss

 J
un

e 
20

06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

ic
tim

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

R
J

In
cr

ea
se

d 
vi

ct
im

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
d 

in
 

K
P

I
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

14
.4

In
tro

du
ce

 fo
ur

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 re

pa
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 a
nd

 li
nk

ed
 to

 
lo

ca
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

C
or

e 
bu

dg
et

R
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r l
in

ki
ng

 re
pa

ra
tio

n 
to

 
LA

P
/S

N
T 

pr
io

rit
ie

s
D

ev
el

op
 p

ub
lic

ity
 s

tra
te

gy
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6

In
tro

du
ce

 4
 n

ew
 re

pa
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

co
m

m
un

ity
 re

pa
ra

tio
n

R
ed

uc
ed

 re
of

fe
nd

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
pe

rc
ep

tio
n 

Lo
ua

nn
 P

ria
m

14
. P

ro
vi

de
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
Ju

st
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

13
. S

up
po

rt
 

re
se

ttl
em

en
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

12

Page 112



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

14
.5

Im
pr

ov
e 

re
lu

ct
an

t w
itn

es
s 

su
pp

or
t

Y
JB

R
ev

ie
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 fr
om

 V
ic

tim
 s

up
po

rt 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

ic
tim

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

R
J

In
cr

ea
se

d 
vi

ct
im

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
d 

in
 

K
P

I
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

15
.1

W
or

k 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 

lo
ca

l p
ar

en
tin

g 
ch

ar
te

r a
nd

 b
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
hi

ch
 d

el
iv

er
s 

a 
se

am
le

ss
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fro
m

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 c
ris

is
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n

C
R

S
/C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s

D
ra

ft 
ch

ar
te

r c
irc

ul
at

ed
 to

 re
le

va
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

sM
or

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
eG

re
at

er
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

C
hr

is
 M

un
da

y/
S

ar
ah

 G
al

e

15
.2

D
el

iv
er

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 c

as
es

 c
om

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
T 

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 th
ro

ug
h 

Y
IS

P
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

A
S

B
 

ca
se

s 

Y
JB

 C
or

e,
 Y

JB
 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n

A
dd

iti
on

al
 m

em
be

r o
f s

ta
ff 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
to

 
C

or
am

 F
am

ily
 te

am
 b

y 
en

d 
A

pr
il 

20
06

R
ev

is
ed

 S
LA

 w
ith

 C
or

um
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 2
5 

ca
se

s 
ta

ki
ng

 u
p 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
su

pp
or

t

A
ch

ie
ve

 s
tre

tc
he

d 
lo

ca
l 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 1
5%

 Y
O

T 
ca

se
s 

 h
av

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

15
.3

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
C

or
e 

Y
O

T 

S
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

- 
on

go
in

g

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 A

 
m

or
e 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 re

fe
rr

al
 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r p

ar
en

tin
g 

su
pp

or
t

In
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 to

 1
5%

 o
f 

ca
se

s
Lo

ua
nn

 P
ria

m

15
.4

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

n 
A

ss
et

 c
as

e 
au

di
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f 

pa
re

nt
in

g
Y

JB
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
fu

nd
C

om
pl

et
e 

au
di

t b
y 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
6

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 D

ec
 

20
06

B
et

te
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

ga
p 

an
al

ys
is

 w
ith

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

In
cr

ea
se

 to
 1

5%
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 Y
O

T 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 th

at
 

in
vo

lv
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g

M
ic

k 
R

ei
d/

P
au

la
 W

ill
ia

m
s

15
.5

S
en

io
r l

ea
d 

of
fic

er
 fo

r p
ar

en
tin

g 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d
Y

O
T

A
ss

ig
n 

ro
le

 to
 S

en
io

r P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 J
un

e 
06

In
cr

ea
se

d 
fo

cu
s 

on
 

pa
re

nt
in

g
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

ns
t K

P
I

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

15
.6

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

w
hy

 fa
m

ily
 g

ro
up

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
re

 
no

t b
ei

ng
 c

om
pl

et
ed

Y
JB

R
ep

or
t t

o 
S

M
T 

by
  M

ay
 2

00
6

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 fa
m

ily
 

gr
ou

p 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s
B

et
te

r e
ng

ag
em

en
t o

f 
fa

m
ili

es
P

au
la

 W
ill

ia
m

s

16
.1

Im
pl

em
en

t a
nd

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 ra
ce

 a
ud

it 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 ra

ce
 a

ud
it 

st
ra

te
gy

 
gr

ou
p

Y
JB

R
ev

is
ed

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 Y

J 
P

la
n 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n 

gr
ou

p 
to

 re
vi

ew
 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
on

tly
 w

ith
 re

po
rt 

to
 Y

O
T 

M
B

 b
y 

D
ec

 2
00

6 

A
gr

ee
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
P

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rt 
to

 Y
O

T 
M

B

R
ed

uc
e 

di
sp

ro
po

rti
on

al
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 B
M

E
 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 

Ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em

S
tu

ar
t J

oh
ns

on

16
.2

Im
pl

em
en

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 b
y 

et
hn

ic
 g

ro
up

 o
f b

re
ac

he
s 

of
 

or
de

rs
Y

JB
B

re
ac

h 
an

al
ys

is
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6

Im
pr

ov
ed

, m
or

e 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

R
ed

uc
e 

of
fe

nd
in

g
S

tu
ar

t J
oh

ns
on

15
. S

up
po

rt
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
In

te
rv

en
tio

ns

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

13

Page 113



A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7

N
o.

O
ut

pu
t

A
ct

iv
ity

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
O

ut
co

m
e

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
K

ey
 M

ile
st

on
e/

s 

16
.3

Im
pl

em
en

t t
ar

ge
te

d 
B

ai
l S

up
po

rt 
P

ac
ka

ge
s 

fo
r b

la
ck

 a
nd

 b
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 
da

ng
er

 o
f r

em
an

d 
in

to
 c

us
to

dy
Y

JB
To

 b
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
by

 M
ay

 2
00

6

Q
ua

rte
rly

 a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 re
m

an
ds

 in
to

 
cu

st
od

y 
fo

r B
la

ck
 a

nd
 B

la
ck

 
B

rit
is

h 
gr

ou
p

R
ed

uc
e 

di
sp

ro
po

rti
on

al
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 B
la

ck
 

an
d 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h 
gr

ou
p 

in
 th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

sy
st

em

M
ic

k 
R

ei
d

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
D

R
A

FT
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7
P

ag
e 

14

Page 114



 

APPENDIX C 
 
 
YOUTH OFFENDING TEAM INSPECTION 2005: SUMMARY OF KEY 
RECOMMENDATION AND ACTION TAKEN 
 

Inspection recommendation Action to date 

1. Strengthened performance 
management 

 Quarterly performance reporting to 
YOT Management Board 

 YOT Management Board made 
formally accountable to LS CPAG 

 Strategic vision for the YOT 
agreed by Management Board 

2. Staff appraisal system put in 
place, appraisals of seconded 
staff done jointly 

 Completed with the exception of 
      Health (reviewing procedures) 

3. Quality of Asset, Reviews and 
Initial Supervisory Plans 
Improved 

 Completed and ongoing monitoring

4. Risk of harm assessments 
conducted on relevant cases 
and reviewed 

 Completed and ongoing for new 
cases 

 Risk management meetings for 
“risk of serious harm” cases. 

5. Risk register put in place for 
risk concern and risk aware 
cases 

 Risk register in place 
 

6. Actions from Race Equality 
Impact Assessment regularly 
reviewed 

 Race audit action group 
established with partners Nov 05 

 Race Actions reviewed for YJ Plan 
2006-7 

7. Individual and group 
interventions continue to be 
developed 

 Group-work programme 
established 

 Violence focused group-work for 
2006 

8. Victim and restorative justice 
work developed 

 Restorative Justice improvement 
Plan in place. Quarterly meetings 
to monitor 

 RJ Co-ordinator in post  
9. Community Punishment and 

Rehabilitation Orders  
protocol developed 

 Not completed. Included in YJ Plan 
2006/07 Delivery Plan as action 
number 3.5 

10. Identify link manager to 
support seconded probation 
worker 

 Not completed. Included in draft 
2006/07 Delivery Plan as action 
number 3.7 

11. Police pass information on 
final warnings and children 
and young people committing 
crime promptly to the YOT 

 Arrangements in place 
 Police Officers seconded to YOT  

administer final warnings. 
 Police admin worker in YOT 

Page 115



 

Inspection recommendation Action to date 

12. Increased support for the 
dyslexia worker is given by 
Education 

 The provision and funding of 
dyslexia support services to the 
YOT has been reviewed and 
clarified by the Education 
Authority. Young people are 
referred to Newstart to access 
“Dyspel” services. Gap project 
provides literacy support. 

Where work is outstanding this have been picked up in the draft 2006/07 Youth Justice 
Plan Action Plan, attached as Appendix B.  
 

Page 116



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\5\AI00005527\THCttyPlanCabAT0.doc 
1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

07 JUNE 2006 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 07 June 2006. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
 
Councillor Denise Jones (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Helal Abbas  (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Anwara Ali  (Lead Member, Equalities, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Older People and Health) 
Councillor Rupert Bawden (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Lead Member, Culture) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Louise Alexander  (Scrutiny Lead Member, Learning Achievement & 

Leisure) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Scrutiny Lead Member, Learning, Achievement and 

Leisure) 
Councillor Shamim A. Chowdhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Timothy O'Flaherty 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid 
Councillor Simon Rouse  (Scrutiny Lead Member, Excellent Public Services) 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman  (Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
 
*1. Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010 Year 6 (2006/2007) Revision              

(CAB 008/067)  
 

We considered a report (cover report attached as Appendix A to this council report) 
which informed us that: - 

• The report before us set out through its appendix – the revised Community Plan 
for 2002 – 2010. 

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 117



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\5\AI00005527\THCttyPlanCabAT0.doc 
2 

• The Community Plan for Year 6 comprised: 
o A report on the progress and milestones achieved during 2005 – 06 (Year 

5 of the plan). 
o The priorities and specific targets on which we will be concentrating for the 

sixth year of the plan – the year to April 2007. 
o A summary of the outturns for the use of the Neighbourhood Renewal 

Fund (NRF) in 2004-06 (subject to final confirmation in the closure of the 
accounts in June 2006). 

o The process and priorities agreed by the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
Management Group for the allocation of the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund 
in 2006 – 2008. 

 
• We had considered the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 

(2006/2007) Revision at its meeting held on 5th April 2006.  We endorsed these 
initial policy framework proposals and agreed to refer them to this Authority’s 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee for consideration and advice, in accordance 
with the requirements of Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 
contained within this Authority’s Constitution, prior to its recent amendment. 

 
• This Authority’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee would give consideration to the 

Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006/2007) Revision at its 
meeting to be held on 6th June 2006.  This committee would report to us, at our 
meeting to be held on 7th June 2006, in respect of its deliberations and the 
advice / comments of the Committee would be tabled for our consideration. 

 
• We were required by the Authority’s Constitution, as amended, to take account 

of the views of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, before submitting 
recommendations to full Council as appropriate. 

 
We were advised this Authority’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at their meeting 
held on 6th June 2006, had welcomed the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: 
Year 6 (2006-07) revision; no matters were raised which gave rise to advice and 
comment and the contents of the Plan were therefore noted.   

 
 

We endorsed the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) revision, 
attached at Appendix 1 to the report before us and agreed that full Council be 
recommended to approve the Plan, subject to necessary and appropriate amendments 
to ensure that the plan is accurate, coherent and reflects the views of Members. 
 
We agreed that our Chief Executive should be authorised to make appropriate and 
necessary amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-
07) in advance of final publication. 

Page 118



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\5\AI00005527\THCttyPlanCabAT0.doc 
3 

We noted the outturn figures for the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) for 2004-
2006, and agreed that our Chief Executive and our Corporate Directors be authorised 
to agree and implement proposals for the use of NRF in 2006-2008, which have been 
developed and evaluated through the process described in Appendix 2 to the report 
before us. 
 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. Approve the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) 

revision, attached at Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 008/067) (Attached at 
Appendix A to this Council report), subject to necessary and appropriate 
amendments to ensure that the plan is accurate, coherent and reflects the views 
of Members. 

 
2. Agree that the Chief Executive be authorised to make appropriate and 

necessary amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 
(2006-07) in advance of final publication. 

 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Denise Jones 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 07/06/06  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 07/06/06. 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97) 

List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 

Brief description of  “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 

The Community Plan to 2010  
Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: 
Year 6 (2006/2007) Revision 
 
 
Cabinet draft minutes 05/04/06 
Agenda item 10.1 Cabinet Agenda (05/04/06) 

Alastair King       020 7364 4981 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG  
 
Angus Taylor ext. 4333 

 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 

Date: 
 
7th June 2006 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
Chief Executive  
 
Originating officer(s) Alastair King, Head 
of Policy and Partnership x 4981 

Title:  
Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 
(2006 – 07) Revision 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
  
1.1 This report sets out – through its appendix – the revised Community Plan for 2002 – 

2010. The Community Plan for Year 6 comprises: 
• a report on the progress and milestones achieved during 2005 – 06 (Year 5 of the 

plan) 
• the priorities and specific targets on which we will be concentrating for the sixth year 

of the plan – the year to April 2007 
• a summary of the outturns for the use of the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) in 

2004-06 (subject to final confirmation in the closure of the accounts in June 2006) 
• the process and priorities agreed by the Tower Hamlets Partnership Management 

Group for the allocation of the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund in 2006 - 2008 
  
1.2 The Cabinet considered the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 

(2006/2007) Revision at its meeting held on 5th April 2006.  Cabinet endorsed these 
initial policy framework proposals and agreed to refer them to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration and advice, in accordance with the requirements of Budget 
and Policy Framework Procedure Rules contained within the Authority’s Constitution, 
prior to its recent amendment.  

   
1.3 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee will give consideration to the Tower Hamlets 

Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006/2007) Revision at its meeting to be held on 6th 
June 2006.  The Committee will report to the Cabinet, to be held on 7th June 2006, in 
respect of its deliberations. The advice / comments of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee will be tabled at the Cabinet meeting for Member’s consideration.  

 

   
1.4 Cabinet is then required by the Authority’s Constitution, as amended, to take account of 

the views of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, before submitting recommendations to 
full Council as appropriate. 

 

Page 121



 2

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 That the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) revision, attached at 

Appendix 1 to the report, be endorsed and that full Council be recommended to approve 
the Plan, subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plan is 
accurate, coherent and reflects the views of Members. 

  
2.2 That the Chief Executive be authorised to make appropriate and necessary amendments 

to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) in advance of final 
publication. 

  
2.3 That Cabinet note the outturn figures for the NRF for 2004-06, and agree that the Chief 

Executive and Corporate Directors be authorised to agree and implement proposals for 
the use of NRF in 2006-2008, which have been developed and evaluated through the 
process described in Appendix 2. 

  
3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 The Local Government Act, 2000, places on local authorities a duty to prepare 

“community strategies” for promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of their areas.  

  
3.2 The Community Plan to 2010 is the borough’s community strategy. The Council has a 

leading role in developing and reviewing the Community Plan and, indeed, has a 
statutory responsibility for Its preparation and agreement through the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership. It must be agreed by Full Council, in accordance with the requirements of 
the LBTH Constitution. 

  
3.3 The Community Plan is reviewed annually – in consultation with all key stakeholders 

through the Tower Hamlets Partnership – with progress reported on and revised 
objectives and targets set out for each new year. The Partnership Management Group 
oversees the preparation of the Community Plan for Year 6 (2006 – 2007), and the 
proposed draft is presented in the attached Appendix 1. 

  
3.4 Some amendments to the detail of the Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) will 

be necessary as additional information becomes available before final publication, 
particularly with regard to outcome figures and new targets for Performance Indicators. 
However, any amendments will not materially affect the key objectives and activities set 
out in the plan. The authority to make such amendments as are appropriate and 
necessary needs therefore to be delegated to the Chief Executive. 

  
3.5 It is a government requirement that decisions on the allocation for the NRF be agreed 

through Local Strategic Partnerships – the Tower Hamlets Partnership in the case of 
Tower Hamlets. The broad allocation framework for 2004-06 was agreed through the 
Partnership and endorsed by Council through the respective budget processes for those 
years. The Partnership has agreed a similar allocation framework for the period 2006-08. 

  
3.6 The figures reported in Appendix 2 for expenditure in 2004-06 are subject to final 

Page 122



 3

ratification at the closure of the accounts. They reflect the allocation that was agreed by 
the Partnership and confirm full spend on the agreed priorities. 

  
3.7 While decisions about the allocation of NRF must be agreed by the Local Strategic 

Partnership, the Council is the Accountable Body for the Fund. The Council therefore 
needs to ensure that the framework and process for its allocation will result in all NRF 
initiatives being commissioned and accounted for in accordance with Council’s financial 
regulations, and that its responsibilities as Accountable Body are effectively fulfilled.  

  
3.8 The Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) revision, as part of the 

Authority’s Policy Framework, is a matter which is reserved to full Council for decision 
under the provisions of Article 4 of the Authority’s Constitution, as amended, and as 
recommended by the Secretary of State. 

  
3.9 The process for development of the Authority’s Policy Framework (see Section 4 below) 

requires publication of initial policy framework proposals and the referral of these to the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee for consideration and advice. 

  
3.10 The Cabinet considered initial policy framework proposals comprising the Tower 

Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) revision, at its meeting held on 5th 
April 2006. The Cabinet endorsed the proposals and referred them to the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee for consideration and advice. Cabinet also agreed that the Chief 
Executive be requested to ensure that the report to be submitted for Cabinet 
consideration recommending the final version of the Community Plan 2006/2007 sets 
out the process and priorities for the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund in 2006/2007. 

  
3.11 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee will give consideration to the Tower Hamlets 

Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) revision at its meeting to be held on 6th June 
2006.  The Committee will report to the Cabinet, to be held on 7th June 2006, in respect 
of its deliberations.  

  
3.12 The Cabinet is required by the Authority’s Constitution, as amended, to take account of 

the views of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, before submitting recommendations to 
full Council as appropriate. 

  
4. BUDGET & POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES 
  
4.1 The Authority’s Constitution, Part 4 – Rules of Procedure, Section 4.3 - Budget and 

Policy Framework Procedure Rules, as amended, sets out the process for the 
development of the Budget and Policy Framework, as defined by Article 4 of the 
Constitution. 

  
4.2 Paragraph 2.1 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules  

• Require the referral of initial policy proposals to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

• Require notification of the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
referral of such Policy Framework proposals. 

• Provide that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives 20 working days to 
respond to this consultation. 

Page 123



 4

  
4.3 Paragraph 2.1.4 of these procedure rules requires the Executive (the Cabinet) to take 

account of the views of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee before submitting 
recommendations to full Council as appropriate. 

  
4.4 Paragraph 2.1.5 makes provision for full Council to consider the proposals of the Cabinet 

and to subsequently adopt them, amend them, refer them back to Cabinet for further 
consideration or to substitute its own proposals in their place. 

  
5. REPORT  
  
5.1 
 
 

The Community Plan Year 6 provides a report on progress in Year 5 of the Community 
Plan, identifying what was actually achieved in 2005 – 2006. It also details the priorities 
and specific targets on which the Tower Hamlets Partnership intends to concentrate for 
Year 6 of the plan – the year to April 2007. 

  
5.2 It is proposed that the final plan should be approved by the Tower Hamlets Partnership 

Management Group and published by the end of June 2006. 
  
5.3 The Tower Hamlets Partnership Management Group will ensure that the Community 

Plan continues to be reviewed regularly, with progress reports and new annual targets 
published annually.  

  
5.4 In response to the requests from the 5th April Cabinet, Appendix 2 sets out the process 

and priorities for the allocation of the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund in 2006/2007. 
  
6 CONSULTATION 
  
 Consultation on the priorities for the Community Plan and neighbourhood renewal has 

been extensive, ranging across all of key partners through the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership and through Directorates’ service planning arrangements. This has been 
channelled primarily through the development over the past 12 months of the borough’s 
Local Area Agreement.  

  
7. COMMENTS OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
  
7.1 This year's Community Plan sets out local priorities and specific targets for the year 

ahead for the Council and its key partners. The plan sets out a framework for allocating 
and directing financial resources both for the year ahead and the medium term, so that 
resources are aligned with priorities. 

  
7.2 Provision exists within the Chief Executive’s Directorate Budget for the costs of 

publishing the document. 
  
7.3 The report also reports the provisional outturn for the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund for 

2004/06 and sets out arrangements for agreeing the use and allocation of grant in 
2006/08 

  
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 

Page 124



 5

  
8.1. Section 4(1) of the Local Government Act 2000 imposes a duty on local authorities to 

prepare a community strategy for "promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of their area." 

  
8.2 Under section 4(2) a local authority has the power to modify the community strategy to 

reflect changes in local needs. In preparing or modifying its community strategy, a local 
authority must consult and seek the participation "of such persons as they consider 
appropriate" and have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 

  
8.3 Article 4 of the Council's Constitution provides that the Community Strategy forms part of 

the Council’s policy framework which must be approved by full Council.  The process for 
developing the framework contained in Rule 2 of the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules provides that recommendations to Council shall be submitted by 
Cabinet which shall have taken account of the responses received to the consultation 
and the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  This report facilitates 
compliance with the procedure. 

  
9. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS  
  
9.1 Equal opportunities are central to the community plan and to the power to promote and 

improve well-being. In seeking to make Tower Hamlets a place to live safely and well, a 
place for creating and sharing prosperity, a place for learning, achievement and 
enjoyment and a place for excellent public services, accessible to all, the community 
plan aims to fulfil the Council's stated vision of improving the quality of life for all who live 
and work in Tower Hamlets. 

  
10. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 The Community Plan and neighbourhood renewal strategy is the key vehicle for 

delivering the inclusive vision of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. It specifically seeks to 
ensure that minimum standards of life quality are achieved for all communities in the 
borough. 

  
11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
  
11.1 The Community Plan explicitly embraces objectives, activities and milestones that are 

consistent with the council's policies in this area. 
  
12. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
12.1 The Community Plan provides a clear, public statement of the Tower Hamlets 

Partnership’s strategic priorities. It also sets out the key performance indicators, targets 
and milestones against which the performance of the public services – including Council 
services – can be assessed.  

  
12.2 Since the Community Plan is reflected in the service plans and resource allocation of all 

the service providers in the borough, financial and other services risks within the council 
are carried by individual Directorates. However, failure to achieve the substantive goals 

Page 125



 6

of the Community Plan would place the reputation of the Council at risk, both locally and 
nationally. These partnership risks are managed through the processed set out in the 
Council’s Partnership Risk Management framework. 

  
12.3 The risks associated with the NRF are assessed and challenged by a rigorous appraisal 

process for each NRF funded initiative and managed through the NRF Programme 
Management and Accountabilities Framework. The NRF is also one of the risk priorities 
monitored through the Chief Executive’s Directorate Risk Register. 

  
  
Appendices: 
• Appendix 1: Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 (2006-07) 

revision 
 
• Appendix 2: Neighbourhood Renewal Fund: outturns for 2004-06 and 

priorities, processes and accountabilities for 2006-08 

Page 126



 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tower Hamlets Partnership 
 
The Community Plan 
2006-2007  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Community Plan to 2010: Year 6 2006-2007 

Page 127



 1

 
Contents 
 
Introduction  2 

A better place for living safely  14 

A better place for living well  22 

A better place for creating and sharing prosperity  31 

A better place for learning, achievement and leisure  36 

A better place for excellent public services  44 

Involving local people and making our partnership work  55 

Local Area Action Plans   57 

Local Area Partnerships contacts list  63 

Local Management Team contacts list  64 

Partnership Management Group members   64 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



 2

Introduction 
 
The Community Plan is a plan for the future of Tower Hamlets. It describes the kind of 
place that the people who live and work here want it to be, and thousands of people 
have contributed to developing its vision. The Community Plan belongs to the 
community.  
 
Everyone – residents, voluntary and community organisations, and businesses, as well 
as the large public service providers like the Council, Police, Health Services and 
JobCentre plus – has a part to play in making sure that we achieve the real and 
sustainable improvements in the quality of life that local people deserve. 
 
The first Community Plan for Tower Hamlets was launched in May 2001, setting out a 
vision for the future of Tower Hamlets to 2010. We promised that our progress towards 
that vision would be reported annually, along with a list of immediate priorities to be 
tackled during the following year. 
 
This document reports on our progress in Year 5, identifying what was actually achieved 
in 2005 – 2006, and detailing the priorities and specific targets we will be concentrating 
on for the sixth year of the plan – the year to April 2007. 
 
The production of this year’s revised Community Plan has been overseen by the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership Management Group, which is part of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership – see pages 53 to 55. Both residents and service providers have contributed 
to the review through their participation in the Local Area Partnerships and Community 
Plan Action Groups that form the other two strands of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 
The review has been based on hard evidence from a wide range of sources, and as well 
as focusing on local priorities, has taken into account emerging national and regional 
priorities, such as the government’s Sustainable Communities and Respect agendas 
and the Olympic preparations. 
 
Local Area Partnership (LAP) Action Plans 
LAP Action Plans set out targeted programmes for improvement in each of the 
borough’s Local Area Partnership (LAP) areas – see pages 55 to 58. These 
programmes reflect Community Plan priorities at a local level, and reports on the 
highlights of their impact are integrated into the present document. Full details of the 
plans are available on the website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/partnership. 
 
Improving today: our progress last year 
 
The report on last year’s progress describes our achievements, which have been 
considerable. We have not tried to include everything that was achieved: rather, we 
have concentrated on some of the highlights. 
 
We are encouraged by the progress we are making together towards our shared aim of 
improving the quality of life for everyone living and working in the borough. Even so, all 
service providers recognise that there is still much to do and all are committed to 
increasing the pace of improvement. 

Page 129



 3

 
Every year, we carry out an independent survey of residents in Tower Hamlets to find 
out what people think about the quality of life in the borough and about the services 
provided. This year, 73% of residents – 5% more than last year and 8% more than two 
years ago – thought that Tower Hamlets was a place where people from different 
backgrounds got on well together. Despite the potential for distrust and suspicion 
associated with recent international events, almost three-quarters of you still feel our 
different communities get on well. This confirms the positive value of a borough so rich 
in cultural diversity. 
 
Many more of you than last year (up 7% to 64%) think that the public services are doing 
a good job. 67% feel that the Council is doing a good job (3% more than last year and 
10% more than two years ago). We compare well with the rest of London, where the 
average is 64%. Eight per cent more of you than last year think that policing is excellent 
or good, and five per cent more that health services are excellent or good.  These views 
of improving services are generally shared by communities across the borough. Also, 
10% more of you feel that we are doing a better job than a year ago, 11% more that 
your concerns are listened to, and 8% more that services respond quickly when asked 
for help. 5% more feel that the area’s services are efficient and well run – that’s 12% 
more than two years ago. 
 
While residents’ perceptions of our public services compare favourably – on almost 
every count – with those in other areas of London, too many of you are still not positive 
about the quality of services. Local service providers recognise this and are determined 
to accelerate the rate of improvement. 
 
As in most other areas of the country, crime continues to be a major concern for 
residents: identified as a main concern by 49% of you. This is 4% more than last year 
but still 5% fewer than two years ago, and the level of concern is lower than in the rest of 
London. In fact, we have had considerable success in reducing crime levels over the 
past few years. We are encouraged by this, but recognise that it is still a long way from 
being satisfactory, and tackling crime and antisocial behaviour remains one of our top 
priorities. Fewer residents are concerned about the level of Council Tax in Tower 
Hamlets: unlike most other areas, we have not increased the rate this year, and we have 
one of the lowest levels in London. Litter is another major concern for local residents, 
more so than for residents in other areas of London. Again, we are working hard on this, 
and the past year has seen some real improvements in the cleanliness of our streets, 
and we are determined to continue making the borough’s streets more welcoming and 
attractive. More people this year have expressed concern about the lack of jobs for local 
people. We share this concern: although many jobs are coming into the area, too few of 
them are going to local people. Working with local employers and helping local people to 
achieve and develop the skills needed to access the growing job opportunities in the 
area is a key priority for the Partnership over the coming years. 
 
Here are some examples of our achievements: 
 
• Overall crime fell by more than 7.1%, last year, making this the third successive year 

of crime reduction in the borough. Violent crime fell – common assault particularly 
sharply – as did the number of incidents of serious vandalism and arson.  

Page 130



 4

 
• We have further strengthened the police presence in the borough by introducing 

Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) in every ward, and we now have a local CCTV 
control centre. A Behaviour Change Project aimed at young people at risk of 
offending has helped reduce the number of first time entrants into the youth justice 
system. Eighteen drug supply addresses were closed – an increase of 50% on last 
year – and the proportion of adult drug-using offenders accessing treatment services 
has risen to 75%. While we have made significant progress here, reducing crime 
remains a top concern for you, and we are committed to driving improvement further. 

 
• Our streets are cleaner and we are making the physical environment more attractive 

and sustainable. Over 1300 fixed penalty notices were issued for littering and 
dumping, with nearly 100 prosecution summonses. Local people have also been 
involved in improving the environment, with over 70 volunteers recruited through the 
year to be Enviro-Champions for their area. Doorstep recycling is now available to 
over 90% of properties, and our Cleaner, Safer Tower Hamlets campaign has been 
encouraging local people to play their part in keeping the borough clean. 

 
• Over 1,000 affordable new homes have been built in the last year, and 19 more 

empty properties brought back into use. A total of £28 million has been invested in 
council housing stock, helping to improve housing conditions across the sector. 
Increasing the supply of affordable homes and improving the standards of existing 
ones remains a real challenge for the borough, however, and these continue to be 
key priorities for us. 

 
• Access to health and social care services has been significantly improved, with the 

maximum waiting times reduced to 13 weeks for outpatient appointments and 6 
months for routine surgery. All Tower Hamlets residents are now also able to obtain 
a GP appointment within 48 hours, and longer opening hours are becoming available 
in a growing number of local practices. Our social services was rated one of the top 
two in the country for looking after vulnerable adults and older people who need 
care, retaining three star status for the second year running. 

 
• We have introduced and extended a range of initiatives to empower people to 

improve and manage their own health. Provisional figures show that over 4,500 local 
people have been helped to quit smoking, and 16 Expert Patient courses helped 
people with chronic illnesses to manage their condition. 40 young people participated 
in a Changing Lifestyle programme to reduce youth obesity, and over 100 youth 
workers were trained to help young people better understand sex and relationships.  

 
• We are helping more local people into work. In the last six months of the year, the 

number of young people claiming Job Seekers Allowance fell by nearly 10%, while 
190 residents secured jobs with the Barts and London Hospital Trust. Nonetheless, 
helping local people get ready for the jobs available in the borough remains one of 
our top priorities for action in the coming year.  

 
• Our services for young people in the borough are recognised as excellent. We were 

one of only three areas in the country – and the only inner-city area – to achieve the 
highest rating (grade 4) for Children and Young People’s Services. Our schools 

Page 131



 5

continue to improve and have gained national recognition for their excellence and 
local pupils have continued to improve results across all age groups. But too few of 
our children and young people are going on to further and higher education, and too 
few are benefiting from local employment opportunities. Further developing routes 
into employment, training and further education, and raising the aspirations of our 
young people, are therefore key priorities for 2006. 

 
• We have continued to improve the range and quality of arts and leisure facilities. The 

award winning new Idea Store at Whitechapel is attracting over 50,000 visitors per 
month, for instance, and there are now two major, new, high quality sporting facilities 
for local people at York Hall and Mile End Stadium. 

 
Shaping tomorrow: the Community Plan themes 
 
The Community Plan is about shaping the future of the borough, so that all communities 
benefit from improved social, economic and environmental well-being. This document 
highlights last year’s achievements against the Community Plan themes. It also sets out 
our priorities and targets for April 2006 to April 2007.  
 
Our Community Plan seeks to make Tower Hamlets by 2010: 
 
A Better Place for Living Safely – reducing crime, making people feel safer and 
creating a more secure and cleaner environment; 
 
A Better Place for Living Well – improving housing, health and social care and 
promoting healthy living; 
 
A Better Place for Creating and Sharing Prosperity – bringing investment into the 
borough and ensuring that all our residents and businesses are in a position to benefit 
from, and contribute to, growing economic prosperity; 
 
A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure – raising educational 
aspirations, expectations and achievement, providing the widest range of arts and 
leisure opportunities for all and celebrating the rich cultural diversity of our communities; 
 
A Better Place for Excellent Public Services – improving public services for local 
people to make sure they represent good value for money and are provided in ways that 
meet local needs. 
 
Neighbourhood Renewal 
 
Achieving the goals of the Community Plan is especially important in Tower Hamlets, 
which – despite the developments around Canary Wharf and the city – remains one of 
the most deprived boroughs in the country. Although progress has been dramatic in 
many areas over recent years, we remain determined to accelerate improvement even 
further: local people deserve no less. The level of deprivation in the borough is borne out 
by the government’s 2004 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), which confirms Tower 
Hamlets as one of the most deprived areas of the country on a basket of indicators 
covering income, employment, health and disability, education, skills and training, 

Page 132



 6

barriers to housing and services, crime and the living environment. Most local authorities 
have just one or two deprived areas. Tower Hamlets is unusual in that deprivation is 
spread across the whole borough. 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership shares the government’s commitment to bringing about 
real improvements in the quality of life for people living in deprivation, and to closing the 
gap between the poorest and richest areas. We aim to make sure that the overall quality 
of life in the borough reaches no less – and we hope a great deal more – than the 
minimum standard in key areas like job opportunities, housing, education, and crime 
levels. 
 
As part of its drive to tackle the difficulties in deprived areas and bring about their 
renewal, the government has given the country’s most deprived local authority areas a 
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF). Tower Hamlets received £23.9 million in NRF for 
the period April 2001 to March 2004 and £31.8 million for 2004 – 2006. We have a 
further £30.9 million for 2006-08. The NRF is being used to accelerate improvement by 
ensuring that service providers and local people work together to target efforts where 
the need is greatest. 
 
To bring about real, lasting improvements, it is essential that public services, voluntary 
and community groups, businesses and residents plan and work together, with a clear, 
agreed approach towards tackling local residents’ main concerns. The Tower Hamlets 
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy has been designed by the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
to make sure that services really do work together more effectively to produce 
measurable improvements in housing, health, employment, crime and education. 
 
Because deprivation in Tower Hamlets is spread across the whole borough, our 
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy takes account of the different needs of local 
neighbourhoods – and the views of residents in those neighbourhoods – but it also 
works across the whole of the borough, tackling the themes and priorities agreed 
through our community planning process. The Community Plan themes therefore 
provide a framework for our Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy, endorsed by all 
stakeholders through the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 
 
Cutting across these themes, however, residents in all areas of the borough have 
identified the need to focus attention on children and young people. People in all areas 
and all communities – including young people themselves – have emphasised the need 
to help children and young people play a positive role in their communities. They also 
want to see us respond effectively to those who are involved in, or at risk of involvement 
in, antisocial behaviour and crime. Because of this, our Community Plan and 
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy focus closely on the development of approaches to 
tackle youth issues. 
 
The NRF helps us to achieve some of the Community Plan’s aims, by acting as a lever 
for change: providing money for new initiatives and enabling us to solve problems 
creatively. But it is only by carefully looking at the way in which all the resources 
available are used – money, time, expertise, energy and ideas – that real, lasting 
improvements will be achieved. The Tower Hamlets Partnership will be working hard to 
make sure that this happens. 

Page 133



 7

 
Copies of the Tower Hamlets Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy are available on the 
Council’s website (www.towerhamlets.gov.uk) or by calling 020 7364 4470. 
 
Both the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy and the Community Plan are about 
improving the lives and life chances of everyone living and working in the borough. 
Because the goals of the Strategy and the Plan are so closely linked, the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership Management Group monitor and report back on progress on 
the two together. 
 
Tower Hamlets Regeneration Strategy  
 
The Strategy focuses primarily on people, employment and the local economy. Central 
to the Strategy is building on the borough's key asset of diversity, characterised by its 
residents, individual places and businesses. In particular, it draws on the unique global 
reach of Tower Hamlets’ communities and economy. 
  
The Strategy represents a major shift in how the Partnership positions itself in terms of a 
wider regional agenda for London. At the heart of this is the key role the borough will 
play in London’s economy over the next 10 years. The rationale for this approach is to 
persuade decision-makers and public / private investors that they are buying into a 
coherent picture of the future, with Tower Hamlets as the key economic driver and 
centre for the Thames Gateway. 
  
Tower Hamlets’ economy is already one of the largest and most productive of any local 
authority area in the country. A fundamental objective of the Strategy is to ensure that 
these strengths are harnessed for the benefit of existing communities in the borough. In 
particular, this means ensuring that local people can access job opportunities and that a 
21st century social infrastructure for all communities is in place to support continued 
development (affordable homes, health, community and leisure facilities, open spaces 
and high quality buildings). 
  
The Strategy identifies four key priorities that are intended to provide a framework for 
guiding action over the next ten years. These are to: 
• develop the economy to create wealth, business and employment for local residents 
• develop people to help local residents find jobs and succeed in the knowledge-driven 

economy 
• develop places which combine a healthy environment with enjoyable open spaces, a 

well-designed mix of homes and business premises, good-quality services and 
excellent public transport 

• develop marketing to promote the transformation of Tower Hamlets into a global city-
district and attract ongoing public and private investment 

  
These priorities are also reflected in the work that the Council is doing with the other 
Olympic boroughs (Newham, Hackney, Waltham Forest and Greenwich) to ensure that 
the 2012 games deliver maximum benefits for the residents and businesses of Tower 
Hamlets. In particular the Council is seeking to create supply chains to enable local 
businesses to continue to expand and develop, increasing job opportunities for local 
residents.  The five Olympic boroughs are establishing a joint job brokerage team to 

Page 134



 8

assist local residents to access jobs created by the Olympics and the wider regeneration 
of the Thames Gateway. 
  
Copies of the Tower Hamlets Regeneration Strategy are available on the Council’s 
website (www.towerhamlets.gov.uk) or by calling 020 7364 5367. 
 
The Local Development Framework: spatial planning  

Tower Hamlets is at the heart of the Mayor’s London Plan. We are being asked to 
deliver more houses and jobs than anywhere else, leading the transformation of the 
East End. We are also a key partner in the major regional development of the Thames 
Gateway, and the government is committed to ensuring that these developments – 
which will take place over the next ten years and beyond – create sustainable and 
balanced communities. It is an exciting time for the borough, full of change and 
opportunity.  

We are revising the planning framework set out in the 1998 Unitary Development Plan 
(UDP), to reflect the nature of the important decisions we will need to make about how 
we use the borough’s land. The new document will be called the Local Development 
Framework (LDF) and it interprets the vision and priorities set out in the Community Plan 
into a spatial strategy which will direct change and growth to areas where it is best 
managed and best meets the needs of the wider community. Specifically, the Local 
Development Framework will provide the basis for planning decisions over the next ten 
years, and will therefore be very important to help us to achieve our Community Plan 
goals. 

For example, the way in which land is used and buildings are designed to prevent and 
discourage crime and antisocial behaviour can help to make the borough a Better Place 
for Living Safely. The provision of more and better quality housing – including affordable 
homes, the location of health centres, and the reduction of pollution will all contribute to 
making Tower Hamlets a Better Place for Living Well. 

Careful planning and development in the borough will bring new job opportunities for 
local people and ensure that there is ample, accessible provision for education and for 
arts and leisure activities.  
 
The views expressed by local people during our extensive consultation in 2005 are 
being taken into account in re-shaping the LDF, and a revised draft will be published 
later this year for further consultation and for a final view from the government. Your 
views are important, so look out for event posters over the next few months letting you 
know how to get involved.  
 
Information is also available on the Council’s website (www.towerhamlets.gov.uk) or by 
calling 020 7364 5367. 
 
Sustainable Communities 
 
The major redevelopment that has been taking place in Tower Hamlets and in its 
neighbouring boroughs is set to continue for some years. This presents a challenge for 

Page 135



 9

us all. The government has recognised this challenge in its 5-Year Sustainable 
Communities Plan: People, Places and Prosperity, and sustainable development is 
central to the new planning system. Indeed, there is a statutory duty on local authorities 
to ensure that their decisions contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership is determined, through the community planning 
process, to promote and support the development of communities that will stand the test 
of time, and to create places where people want to live, places that enable them to meet 
their aspirations and potential. 
 
Improving Health and Well-being  
 
One example of this is the Partnership’s innovative and far-reaching strategy for 
improving the health and well-being of the community. Designed to empower people to 
take more control over their own health and well-being needs, it will mean services 
providing housing, leisure, education, health and social care for local people – including 
voluntary sector services – working together with local communities in new ways. It will 
mean a wider range of services being provided in the same premises making them 
much more accessible to you. 
 
The priorities to be addressed through the strategy over the next ten years reflect your 
views. We will: 
• reduce inequalities in health and well-being, through a focus on coronary heart 

disease, cancer, and sexual health, and on smoking, obesity and drug misuse 
• improve the experience of people who use our services 
• provide integrated and more localised services that are no less than excellent 
• promoting independence, choice and control by service users 
• use resources effectively and efficiently, sharing costs across organisations, so that 

tax payers get value for money 
 
Local Area Agreement (LAA)  
 
As promised in last year’s Community Plan, the Partnership has during the course of the 
year negotiated and agreed a Local Area Agreement (LAA) with central government.  
The action priorities set out in the LAA were arrived at through extensive consultation 
through the Partnership, and are firmly linked to the Community Plan themes. These 
provide the foundation for the strategic priorities set out in this document. The LAA 
priorities will, through implementation of the Community Plan, drive an ambitious, 
annually-refreshed programme of action for the period 2006-2009. The full LAA can be 
found on the Council’s website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 
The broad uniting themes of the LAA, which provide a focus for the whole Partnership, 
are that it will:  
 
Be ambitious 
The high levels of deprivation in the borough will not be used to excuse poor 
performance. We see the diversity of the borough as a strength and we expect the very 
best for all our communities. We will build on the positive opportunities available to those 
communities from investment in the ‘new City’ at Canary Wharf, the Thames Gateway, 
the Olympics and Paralympics. The latter, and particularly the potential for using the 

Page 136



 10

Olympic branding, offer unique vehicles for engaging and uniting our communities. Our 
LAA will use the build-up to the Olympics, along with our continuing focus on arts and 
cultural activities, to help achieve this, particularly through the promotion of healthy living 
and increased engagement in physical and sporting activities. 
 
Build inclusive, cohesive and sustainable communities through investment in 
children and young people 
The borough is facing uniquely rapid economic growth and physical change, and it has a 
rapidly growing, ethnically diverse population with a high proportion of young people. 
The risk of polarisation and fragmentation in this context is high. Ensuring that our young 
people are equipped both to access the opportunities from this growth and to make a 
positive contribution to the well-being of the borough is key to the development of a 
community that is cohesive and sustainable. This will be supported through the 
implementation of our Children and Young People’s Plan. 
 
Strengthen community engagement and user participation to effect change: 
“Making it Local“ and “Making it Personal” 
Although the priorities identified for the LAA are common across the borough, our ward 
and LAP profiles show that the different areas within the borough face different 
challenges. In addition, the achievement of improved outcomes will require the effective 
and efficient targeting of resources, which, in turn, demands good quality information 
about the needs of individuals as well as communities that can be tracked through and 
followed up over an extended period of time. Reflecting our Community Plan’s Excellent 
Public Services priorities, our LAA will therefore build on our existing work in 
implementing local management and LAP Action Plans and developing targeted and 
user-focused services. This focus is also intended to empower local people in the 
borough, enabling them to help shape the services they receive, to exercise a degree of 
choice, develop a greater sense of personal control over their lives and to make a 
positive contribution as citizens. 
    
The four ‘blocks’ that form the government’s national framework for LAAs are consistent 
with our Community Plan priorities (see chart below), and the development of the 
borough’s LAA has therefore been a natural extension of our Partnership work: it will 
enable us to focus fully on the things that really matter to local people and to find new 
ways of working together to accelerate improvement. 
 

Links between Community Plan themes and LAA Blocks 
 

Community Plan theme  LAA Block 
Living Safely  Safer and Stronger Communities 

Living well  Healthier Communities and Older People 

Creating and Sharing Prosperity  Economic Development and Enterprise 

Learning, Achievement and Leisure  Children and Young People 
Cross-cutting themes 

• Making it personal 
• Making it Local 

• Excellent Public Services 

All blocks 
linked to 

one another

Page 137



 11

 
LAA Structure 
Our priority outcomes are organised under each of the four LAA blocks, with clear links 
to our Community Plan framework: 
 

Our LAA Priorities 

Safer and 
Stronger 
Communities 

Building Safer, Cleaner, Greener Communities 
• Reduced overall crime and increased public reassurance, with a 

particular focus on violent crime, antisocial behaviour, and the 
harm caused by illegal drugs 

• Cleaner, greener and safer public spaces 
 
Building Stronger Communities 
• Increased participation in local consultation and decision-making 
• Increased community cohesion and inclusion 
• Increased volunteering 
• Strengthened capacity of the Third Sector to deliver quality 

services and increase participation and involvement 
• Providing public services through the Third Sector which are 

excellent 
Healthier 
Communities 
& Older 
People 

• Increased life expectancy  
• Improved quality of affordable housing provision 
• Enhanced and increased options for access to quality affordable 

housing 

Economic 
Development 
& Enterprise 

• Significantly improved overall employment rate, and reduced 
difference between the local employment rate and the overall 
employment rate for England 

• Increased employment for targeted groups 
• Appropriate inward investment attracted to the borough, making 

use of local labour resources 
• Growth and sustainability of enterprise and small business 

Children & 
Young People 

• Increased skills for employment 
• Improved quality of parental involvement 
• Improved health and levels of physical activity 

Cross-cutting • Making it local 
• Making it personal 

 
These priority outcomes, which have been developed and agreed by the Partnership, 
also address the mandatory outcomes set out in the government guidance. Indicators 
and targets to help measure our progress in achieving these mandatory outcomes are 
integrated into our overall outcome framework. In addition, the 12 targets agreed for our 
Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA), negotiated for 2005-08, sit within the LAA and 
form its most stretching targets: achieving these specific targets will bring a significant 
financial reward for the borough, enabling additional investment to improve the quality of 
life for local people.  
 

Page 138



 12

Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 
 
The focus on children and young people in the Local Area Agreement is consistent with 
the Partnership’s response to the Children Act 2004, and the launch of Every Child 
Matters. Improving outcomes for children and young people lies at the heart of the vision 
in the Community Plan to improve the quality of life for everyone who lives and works 
here. The Tower Hamlets Partnership has the highest aspirations for our children and 
young people, and has over the past year invested a considerable time developing a 
Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP): Aiming High Together. 
 
The key objectives of Aiming High Together are both reflected in the Community Plan 
and build on and extend it. It signals a new phase in how we deliver services for children 
and young people, and it brings together in one place the most important actions we 
plan to take to make sure that services work together and that they make a difference to 
the lives of all children and young people, including those who are the most vulnerable.  
 
Older people 
 
The Council has also, over the past year, led a Partnership-wide review of the way in 
which local services are experienced by older people. The aim of the review has been to 
ensure that the Partnership has a strategic approach to older people as citizens, which 
goes beyond health and social care and which covers the areas that older people say 
are most important. The review will be concluded shortly, and will lead to some specific 
recommendations for actions to improve the quality of life for older people. The 
emerging findings are nonetheless reflected in this document. 
 
And finally 
 
The Community Plan sets out a vision for the borough to 2010. It also sets out a process 
for getting there. This document and the plans within it make some clear commitments 
against which our success can be judged, and it should help local people to see the real 
difference being made. 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership will ensure that residents are informed about progress 
and asked about their views, and, more importantly, it will ensure that the plan is 
implemented. Working together, in partnership, we can make the vision a reality. 
 
 
Christine Gilbert  Mark Simmons  Alwen Williams 
Chief Executive  Borough Commander Chief Executive 
Tower Hamlets Council     Tower Hamlets PCT 
 
On behalf of the Tower Hamlets Partnership Management Group 
 
This revised version of the Community Plan, along with the versions for the three 
previous years, can be found on the Tower Hamlets website 
(www.towerhamlets.gov.uk). It is also available in Braille, tape or large print by calling 
020 8430 3040 
 

Page 139



 13

For further information about the Community Plan contact: 
 
Alastair King 
Tower Hamlets Council 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
Telephone: 020 7364 4981 
Email: towerhamletspartnership@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



 14

A better place for living safely: 
crime, antisocial behaviour, the environment 
 
Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 

• be a safer and more peaceful place, with less crime and anti-social behaviour, in 
particular: less violent crime and domestic violence, fewer robberies and property 
crimes, reduced drug-related offending and less racial harassment and other hate 
crime 

• see a 20% reduction in crime by 2008, with further reductions to 2010 
• be a place where people say they feel safer and less concerned about crime and 

antisocial behaviour 
 
The challenge 
Crime and anti-social behaviour are major concerns for local people. Substance abuse 
is a driver of crime and needs to be tackled. Too many of our young people are at risk of 
becoming involved in crime and antisocial behaviour, either as victims or perpetrators. 
 
Tackling crime and antisocial behaviour is a top priority for local people and therefore for 
the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 
 
What you want 

• to feel safe when you go out, whether during the day or at night 
• well lit streets, police officers on patrol and CCTV cameras 
• to prevent the spread of gang culture amongst groups of our young people 
• better ways to tackle the drugs that are a serious menace to our children and a 

blight on the environment 
• more constructive opportunities for our young people 

 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues  

• provide more local high visibility patrolling 
• improve monitoring of CCTV that is already installed 
• improve security in parks and children’s play areas  
• improve lighting and design for community safety 
• improve access to drug misuse treatments 
• improve existing venues for youth activities 
• open schools up to deliver youth work and improve connections between parents, 

youth and youth workers 
• provide safe places and summer activities for young people 
• find new ways to involve young people more positively 
• create a ‘youth partnership’ 
• develop ‘role models’ for children and young people 
• encourage ‘responsible neighbour’ schemes 
• provide support for sex workers to reduce prostitution 

 
 
 

Page 141



 15

Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 
• build a stronger and safer community 
• prevent crime 
• bring more offenders to justice 

 

What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 

Did we achieve it? 
 

Reduce total crime by 5%, 
violent crime by 5%, motor 
vehicle crime by 12%, and 
theft from the person by 5%, 
while containing current 
levels of burglary 
 
 

In part. In terms of the ‘top ten’ crime categories, despite 
a small drop in offences we did not manage to achieve 
our target of a 5% reduction. However, across all 
categories of crime the total number of offences fell by 
7.1%, making this the third successive year of crime 
reduction in Tower Hamlets 
 
For specific offences, success has been mixed. Violent 
crime fell by 6.1% – with common assault down 39%. 
Vehicle crime fell too, but burglary rates increased – 
although they remain below the levels of 3 years ago.  
 
Results for theft from the person were also mixed - with 
a 3% fall in snatch offences but a significant increase in 
pick pocketing  

Reduce the proportion of 
residents citing crime as a 
key concern by 5 
percentage points  

No, although there is a clear overall trend of reduction in 
fear of crime over the past 5 years 

Provide enhanced security 
to 120 vulnerable victims of 
crime  

Yes. We are currently providing enhanced security to 
120 vulnerable victims of crime in partnership with Age 
Concern 

Provide a witness support 
service to support 120 
vulnerable witnesses 
through the court process  

Yes. We have met this target in partnership with Victim 
Support 

Develop a facial recognition 
system to assist in 
apprehending known 
offenders  

Yes. The Aurora Facial Recognition (CCTV System) has 
been successfully installed 

Launch a local CCTV 
control centre  

Yes. The CCTV control centre opened in March 2006 

Increase the number of 
young people accessing 
drug treatment services by a 
further 3%   

Yes. This target has been met and substantially 
exceeded 

Page 142



 16

Increase the proportion of 
adult drug-using offenders 
who access drug treatment 
services by 6% to 75% 

Yes. This target has been exceeded and performance 
continues to improve 

Increase by 50% the 
number of drug supply 
addresses closed  

Yes. This target has been successfully met, with 18 drug 
supply addresses closed in 2005/6 

Launch a local drug service 
dedicated to the needs of 
women and black and 
minority ethnic communities  

In part. This service has been commissioned and is due 
to be operational in August 2006 

Increase the use of 
Antisocial Behaviour Orders 
(ASBOs) and Acceptable 
Behaviour Contracts (ABCs) 
in serious cases of 
antisocial behaviour to 170 
in total  

Not quite, although the 159 ASBOs and ABCs we did 
achieve is one and a half times more than last year 

Reduce the incidence of 
serious vandalism by 5% 
and non-accidental fires by 
2%, and reduce the 
proportion of calls to the 
Police relating to disorder by 
10% 

Mostly. Serious vandalism fell by over 20%, and 
provisional figures indicate that we exceeded our target 
on non-accidental fires, but we did not achieve the 
targeted reduction in the proportion of calls to the Police 
relating to disorder 

Launch a Joint Investigation 
and Enforcement Team for 
antisocial behaviour  

Yes. Police officers are now located with the ASB 
Control Unit, forming a joint enforcement and 
investigation team 

Carry out a programme of 
fire prevention 
improvements on 10 estates 
across the borough 

Mostly, London Fire Brigade worked in partnership with 
housing officers to reduce fire risks on a number of 
estates 

Reduce crimes involving 
firearms by 5% 

No. Crimes involving guns actually increased, although 
gun crime in the borough remains relatively rare 

Increase detection rates 
where the perpetrator also 
receives some penalty: for 
rape to 25% (from 21%); 
domestic violence to 27% 
(from 21%); racially 
motivated crimes to 20% 
(from 17%); and 
homophobic crimes to 20% 
(from 9%)  

Mostly. The 34.5% sanctioned detection rate for 
domestic violence is the best performance in inner 
London. We also achieved our targets for racially 
motivated crimes and for rape detection, which improved 
to 32%. We narrowly missed our target for homophobic 
crime 

Page 143



 17

Implement our Behaviour 
Change Project, targeting a 
minimum of 20 young 
people at risk of offending  

Yes. The Youth Inclusion and Support Panel have 
developed interventions to engage young people at risk 
of offending, and of the 117 engaged only 4 went on to 
enter the youth justice system 

Reduce first time entry to 
the youth justice system by 
2%  

Yes.  In 2005-06, first time entry to the youth justice 
system fell by 2.14% 
 

Launch a Youth Inclusion 
Project in 2 areas in the 
borough  

Due to delay in Youth Justice Board funding, this was 
not delivered. However, there are two YIPS planned for 
the coming year 

Increase to 75% the 
proportion of victims of 
youth crime offered the 
opportunity to participate in  
restorative justice 

Not quite: the final figure was 69.5% 

Involve 90% of young 
offenders in education, 
training or employment  

Yes 

Develop further local crime 
reduction initiatives in 
partnership with local 
communities in each of the 
LAP areas  

Yes. Safer Neighbourhood Teams are operational in all 
wards and are working through multi-agency Safer 
Neighbourhood Action Groups to tackle priorities 
identified by local people. We’ve also delivered 
DrugStoppers and intergenerational initiatives on 
targeted estates across the borough 

Launch a mobile contact 
resource to be used in 
promoting crime reduction 
initiatives in the community  

Yes. The contact centre was publicly launched at the 
Brick Lane Festival in September and is working across 
the borough 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 
 reduce overall crime, with a particular focus on acquisitive crime, youth crime and 

violent crime 
 create safer and stronger communities by reducing the impact of antisocial behaviour 

and drugs on the community 
 
What we promise to do in 
2006–2007 Our Targets? To: 

Reduce overall crime 
through a focus on burglary, 
robbery and vehicle crime 

• Reduce the overall crime rate by 8% – which would 
mean a fall of almost 20% over the last three years 

• Reduce personal and commercial robberies by 17% 
• Begin a 2-year partnership environmental overhaul of 

3 hotspot areas to reduce key crime types 

Page 144



 18

Reduce violent crime, 
through a focus on youth 
violent crime and domestic 
violence  

• Reduce violent crime (common assault plus Actual 
Bodily Harm / Grievous Bodily Harm) by 11% 

• Reduce the length of time domestic violence is 
experienced before it is reported to a specialist 
agency by 3% against the 2004/05 baseline  

• Establish multiagency Chill Out Zones around a 
minimum of 4 secondary schools, to reduce youth-
on-youth violence 

Improve the quality of life by 
reducing anti-social 
behaviour  

• Reduce the percentage of residents who view as "a 
very big problem” youths hanging around on the 
streets (from 50% in 2003/4 to 41%) and people 
using or dealing drugs (from 53% in 2003/4 to 44%)   

• Reduce the number of criminal damage offences by 
7% 

• Reduce deliberate secondary fires to 5.75 per 1000 – 
a reduction of 7% since 2004/5 

Reduce the impact of drugs 
on the community  

• Increase the number of young people under 18 who 
access drug treatment by 8% - which would mean an 
increase of nearly 50% since 2003/04  

• Close 24 drug addresses – an increase of 33% on 
last year 

• Implement a comprehensive Drugs Prevention 
Strategy 

• Establish a drugs detoxification programme and a 
dedicated women’s service within the borough 

• Expand our Drugs Intervention Programme by 
testing everyone arrested for a trigger offence, and 
requiring assessment for all those testing positive 

 
 
Improving the environment 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 
• have a more pleasant, welcoming and sustainable environment 
 
The challenge 
Traffic congestion, car parking, pollution and poorly designed urban spaces are 
problems across the capital that put lives at risk and damage people’s health. And they 
contribute to the ecological damage of the planet. Solutions will require co-operation 
across the whole of the city. We are also throwing away more every year. Litter, fly 
tipping and other environmental pollution are common problems across London, and are 
compounded by population growth and property development that increase risks to 
public health and safety. Working together we can tackle these problems. 
 
What you want 
• less litter and dog mess and fewer abandoned cars on streets and estates 
• better public transport 
• less traffic congestion and pollution 

Page 145



 19

• more/better open and green spaces 
• cleaner air 
• an improved image for the area, with a cleaner and more welcoming environment, 

and better facilities 
 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues 
• make better use of vacant buildings 
• involve residents more in the planning of local development and provide better, more 

accessible information about planned developments  
• engage young people in environmental projects 
• identify buildings to attract youth 
• make more use of the river for transport 
 
Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 

• improve the cleanliness and quality of the environment and take firm action against 
poor land maintenance  

• improve the cleanliness of the streets and take firm action against illegal dumping 
• make the roads safer for everyone 

 
What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 

Did we achieve it? 
 

Publish a revised 
environmental statement 
demonstrating our 
commitment to a 
sustainable environment 

No. The statement will now be incorporated into a 
broader Environmental Strategy, which is currently 
under development 

Reduce the proportion of the 
borough that has 
unacceptable levels of litter 
and detritus by 2%, and be 
among the best London 
authorities on measures of 
environmental cleanliness 

No. At 23% overall, there was a 1% increase in the 
measurement for litter and detritus levels in the borough. 
However, this was against a 3% point increase across 
London, and the borough remains in the top 6 in the 
Capital Standards group. 
 
During the year the Council rolled out a Cleaner Safer 
Tower Hamlets campaign, introduced LAP-dedicated 
environmental teams, and negotiated new street 
cleansing contracts. This has contributed to better-than-
targeted improvements in streets and commercial areas, 
but overall performance was impacted by poor results on 
industrial land 

Increase the number of fixed 
penalty notices for littering 
and dumping to 1100 

Yes. 1,332 notices and 96 prosecution summonses 
were issued, bringing people to account for their 
antisocial actions 

Launch a Fast Food Litter 
Strategy to reduce the 
amount of fast food litter on 
our streets 

In part. The focus on fast food litter has been integrated 
into a broader anti-litter campaign, which will tackle litter 
problems through improved enforcement, awareness 
raising and education campaigns, and the provision of 
on-street recycling bins 

Page 146



 20

Recruit at least 24 
volunteers from all LAP 
areas to be Enviro-
Champions for their area 

Yes. Over 70 volunteers were recruited during the year 

Be in the top category 
across London for low 
graffiti and fly-posting levels 

In part. Both graffiti and flyposting levels fell by 5%, and 
we are now amongst the top half of authorities in the 
Capital Standards group for graffiti. However, we will 
need to further improve flyposting in the borough's highly 
urbanised environment. 

Ensure 100% coverage of 
residential households for 
doorstep recycling services 
(reaching another 30,000 
homes) 

Not quite. We now serve 91.5% of properties, and we 
are working hard to overcome some legal access and 
permission challenges 

Run a marketing 
programme and hold 
awareness-raising events to 
increase participation 

Yes. This included the launch of the It’s So Easy and 
Cleaner Safer Tower Hamlets campaigns, and work with 
faith organisations to help reach our different faith 
communities 

Organise young people’s 
environmental action events 
involving a minimum of 80 
children and young people 

Yes – through our Waste Awareness Programme 

Introduce a further three 20 
mph zones, bringing the 
borough’s total to 28 

Almost. Two 20mph zones (Narrow Street and Spindrift 
Ave) were completed, and one (Teviot Estate) is still 
under construction following a period of consultation 

Make sure that the number 
of people killed or seriously 
injured on our roads is 
reduced by at least 2 in the 
coming year 

Yes. The number of people killed or seriously injured in 
the borough fell from 139 to 133 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 
 

• improve the cleanliness and quality of the environment and our open spaces 
• increase recycling in the borough 
• make the roads safer for everyone 

 
What we promise to do in 
2006–2007 Our Targets? To: 

Improve the cleanliness of 
the borough   

• To reduce proportion of relevant land and highways 
assessed as having combined deposits of litter and 
detritus from 23% to 16% 

Improve recycling  • To increase the proportion of household waste sent 
by the authority for recycling from 8.8% to 18%  

• Introduce a kerbside collection service for food waste 
& garden waste in the autumn of 2006 

Page 147



 21

Improve road safety  • To reduce the number of adults and children killed or 
seriously injured on roads from 133 to 121  

• Continue to promote road safety programmes, 
including providing Junior Citizen Scheme safety 
training for 1000 year 6 pupils, extending the Junior 
road safety officer scheme to additional 3 schools, 
completing one Home Zone and two 20mph Zones. 

Improve open spaces  • To increase the proportion of people who think that 
parks, playgrounds and open spaces are good, very 
good or excellent in the Annual Residents’ Survey 
from 46% to 50%  

• Incorporate measures to design out crime in 
consultation with the LAPs by implementing anti-
crime design measures in 5 parks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



 22

A better place for living well  
housing, health and social care, and promoting healthy living 
 
Improving housing, health and social care 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 

• have good quality affordable housing available for more people, with social housing 
reaching good standards 

• support healthier communities, with quicker and more convenient access to local 
modern primary and community based health services 

• ensure that no one waits more than 18 weeks from GP referral to hospital treatment 
• reduce inequalities in health outcomes by 10%, as measured by infant mortality and 

life expectancy at birth 
• reduce mortality rates from heart disease by at least 40% and from cancer by at 

least 20%, for people under 75 
• have no primary care premises below acceptable standards 
• provide seamless health and social care provision for older people and other adults 

who need support 
• provide health and social care services for young people from all Children’s Centres 

and from 50% of schools. 
• reduce mortality rates from suicide and undetermined injury by at least 20% 

 
The challenges 
Major redevelopment in parts of the borough has forced up prices and rental costs, 
making affordable homes hard to find. Much of the Council’s stock is in need of major 
repair and resources are stretched. Overall, the stock is reducing through the Right-to- 
Buy and there is a limited amount of land available for building. The people of Tower 
Hamlets have poorer health levels than the average for London, with shorter life 
expectancy and high relatively high levels of coronary disease, cancer and diabetes.  
We need to ensure that our housing, health and social care services rise to these 
challenges and are able to meet the needs of a population that is set to rise rapidly. 
 
What you want 

• a better supply of affordable housing so that you can continue to live here, close to 
other family members 

• public housing to be well maintained 
• streets and estates kept cleaner, tidier and free from antisocial behaviour 
• action to reduce homelessness 
• shorter waiting times for appointments to see health professionals 
• better co-ordination between health, social services and community health and care 

providers 
• encouragement of healthy living styles 
• better care, especially for children, young people, older people and those who need 

support 
 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues 

• use neighbourhood wardens 
• provide leisure facilities within housing estates 

Page 149



 23

• provide internet access for homes – and the means to use it 
• provide community leisure clubs 
• provide meeting places where mothers can gather 
• explore self-build and shared ownership 
• provide more facilities for families  
• make more use of complementary medicine 
• bring doctors to neighbourhood centres to conduct surgeries 
• increase inter-agency co-operation and provide more services in one place 
• promote healthy lifestyles 
• provide places where carers can take people for whom they provide community 

care 
• take more services and advice into the community 
• concentrate on improving recruitment and retention of medical professionals 
• develop generic carer provision 

 
Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 
• invest to achieve decent homes 
• improve access to affordable homes and improved housing conditions 
• improve the quality of private sector housing stock 
• provide support for vulnerable adults’ housing and accommodation needs 
• improve arrangements for the homeless 
• reduce inequalities in health, enabling people to live longer and healthier lives 
• improve the experience of those who use our services, especially those who need 

them most 
• increase the choice of services available to local people 
• enable all our residents to lead independent lives 
 
Improving housing 
 
What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 

Did we achieve it?  
 

Bring at least 10 empty ‘non 
decent’ private properties 
back into use by March 
2008 

Yes. 20 homes were made fit and returned to use 

Complete at least 600 
affordable new homes 

Yes. A total of 1057 affordable new homes were 
completed – over 70% more than our target 

Agree with our partner 
authorities how many new 
homes in the East London 
area are to be offered to 
Tower Hamlets residents 

Yes – through the East London Sub Regional 
Nominations Agreement 

Invest a minimum of £24 
million in council housing 
stock 

Yes. £28 million was spent on improving housing stock 
last year 

Page 150



 24

Ensure government funding 
is in place for stock transfers 
where necessary 

Yes. Any gap funding required to ensure that schemes 
can be completed is agreed with ODPM before each 
transfer is finalised 

Agree decent homes targets 
for Housing Choice 
Registered Social Landlords 

Yes. These targets are agreed with RSLs as part of the 
stock transfer process 

Provide rent deposits to 200 
households to help them 
find homes in the private 
sector 

Yes. 212 households received rent deposits and were 
rehoused into the private sector 

Increase the percentage of 
homeless assessments 
carried out within 33 working 
days to 85% 

Yes – 86% of all assessments were completed within 33 
days 

 
Improving health and social care 
 
What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 Did we achieve it?  

Enable at least 100 disabled 
people to stay in their own 
homes through the use of 
the Disabled Facilities Grant 

Yes. 129 Disabled Facilities Grants were approved 
during the year 

Complete 100% of 
Supporting People reviews, 
to help shape better 
services for vulnerable 
people 

Yes. A total of 76 reviews were completed 

Hold at least 4 health-
related play sessions at Mile 
End Park Play Pavilion 

Yes. 4 sessions took place in the Children’s Play 
Pavilion, focusing on Breast Feeding, Baby Massage, 
Weaning, and Child Psychology 

Make the Changing 
Lifestyles programme 
available to 40 children with 
clinical obesity 

Yes. 2 courses were held – one for 8-11year olds and 
one for 12-16 year olds – with 40 children attending 

Develop and promote a 
stop-smoking drop-in 
service in each Local Area 
Partnership to reach our 
target of helping over 4,670 
people to quit smoking by 
2006 

Not entirely. Only 4 LAP areas chose to develop these 
services, but clinics took place in each of these. 
However in the three years up to March 2006 4790 
people stopped smoking as a result of using local 
smoking cessation services, exceeding the target of 
4670 

Undertake preparatory work 
to develop a screening 
programme for bowel 
cancer 

Yes. A bowel cancer screening lead has been identified 
within the PCT Public Health Department, and is working 
with the wider Strategic Health Authority-led 
implementation group 

Page 151



 25

Increase the uptake of 
breast screening (currently 
50%) to the national target 
of 70% by establishing and 
publicising a mobile breast 
screening service 

No. Technical difficulties meant that the pilot service 
could not be up and running until April, but we expect 
this to make an impact next year. This will complement 
the educational sessions by specialist health advocates 
and the Breast Care Nurse in GP practices and out in 
the community 

Increase the uptake of 
cervical screening (currently 
75%) to 80%, targeting 
black and ethnic minority 
communities in particular 

No, but we worked with 11 GP practices with the lowest 
uptake of cervical screening.  Specialist advocates 
(Sylheti and Somali speaking) contacted approximately 
14,000 women with about 10-15% attending for 
screening. There was an average increase in the uptake 
of screening of 4.3% in the participating practices 
 
We were also one of the first London boroughs to 
convert to a new cervical smear processing technique, 
which should help to reduce the proportion of 
inadequate slides and, in the longer run, help to 
increase uptake 

Make the mobile unit and 
the mammography room at 
Mile End Hospital 
operational 

Not quite. Technical difficulties have resulted in a delay 
– but we expect the mobile unit to be operational by 
summer 2006 

Provide regular education 
sessions for GPs on the 
symptoms, treatment and 
referral processes for the 
most common forms of 
cancer 

No. Training has prioritised support to help GPs meet 
their 2-week waiting targets to make sure that local 
people have quicker access to health services 

Run at least 1 Expert 
Patient course in each Local 
Area Partnership to enable 
patients with chronic 
illnesses to manage their 
conditions more effectively 

Yes. A total of 16 courses (9 in English and 7 in other 
community languages) were run in all 8 LAPs 
 

Double the capacity of the 
retinal screening 
programme, ensuring early 
detection of diabetic 
retinopathy, to a minimum of 
80% of people with diabetes 
by 2006, and 100% by 2008 

Yes. 9400 appointments for retinal screening were 
offered last year, meeting the 80% target; we are on 
course for 100% by 2008 

Make sure all patients 
registered with chronic, 
obstructive pulmonary 
disease have bi-annual GP 
check-ups 

Yes. Information recorded for GP practices confirms our 
good performance 

Page 152



 26

Establish a Breathe Easy 
support group 

Yes. The group has met bi-monthly for over 6 months 

Recruit 6 more mental 
health support workers, 2 
more psychologists, 2 new 
community development 
workers to work with black 
and minority ethnic 
communities, and a 
specialist GP, making a 
significant difference to the 
quality of services for people 
with mental health needs 

Yes. All of these posts were filled by November 2005 

Produce a directory of 
mental health services, to 
be available at all GP 
surgeries and One Stop 
Shops as well as on-line 

Yes.  A directory of mental health services has been 
available online since October 2005. It has also been 
translated into Bengali and Somali and is available on 
CD 

Increase the percentage of 
young children immunised 
for measles, mumps and 
rubella (currently 59%) to 
the national target of 80% 

Figures for the year are not yet available because of 
technical problems with a new computer system. 
Provisional GP figures for the second half of the year 
indicate that 64% of young children received the full 
course of MMR. Work has taken place with all GP 
practices to raise awareness about the poor uptake of 
the MMR vaccination 

Increase the proportion of 
women who start breast 
feeding by 2% each year 

Yes. This has been achieved through a series of 
initiatives including: 
- provision of a breastfeeding co-ordinator working in 

Children's Centres  
- breastfeeding training for health visitors and 

midwives 
- data collection improvements in the maternity unit in 

the Barts and the London Trust 
- community based initiatives, such as drop in 

sessions and parenting classes, run through 
voluntary and community sector partners  

- making breastfeeding literature more accessible for 
antenatal and postnatal women 

Recruit 5 trainers, to 
specialise in sex and 
relationship education in 
secondary schools 

No. This was not developed – rather, training was 
provided for 9 secondary school teachers and over 60 
volunteers 

Provide youth workers with 
additional training to deal 
with sexual health issues 

Yes. 113 youth workers were trained to deliver Sex and 
Relationship Education. Two youth workers from each 
youth service club in each LAP areas were also trained 

Page 153



 27

Progress plans to open 2 
new integrated primary care 
resource centres, providing: 
(i) a centre for independent 
living for people with 
physical and sensory 
disabilities on the St 
Clement’s site; (ii) borough-
wide services for children 
and young people on the 
Queen Elizabeth Hospital 
site 

Yes. 
- St Clement’s is being progressed, though more slowly 
than anticipated due to a number of complex planning 
and heritage issues 
 
- The Queen Elizabeth outline business case has been 
formally approved and development work is expected to 
begin by autumn 2006 on a new primary care and social 
care centre. Borough-wide children’s services are being 
progressed through other channels 

Open new healthcare 
facilities in Devenport 
Street, Harford Street, the 
Barkantine Estate and 
Bartlett Park 

Mostly. Harford  Street, Barkentine and Devenport Street 
(renamed Cable Street) all began construction this year. 
However, Bartlett Park was withdrawn as further work 
demonstrated it was no longer fit for future population 
projections 

Ensure that all Tower 
Hamlets residents can 
obtain an appointment with 
a GP within 48 hours and a 
practice nurse within 24 
hours 

Yes. From October 2005 onwards, all Tower Hamlets 
residents could be sure of an appointment with a GP 
within 48 hours or a primary care professional within 24 
hours 

Reduce the maximum 
waiting time to 13 weeks for 
a new outpatient 
appointment with a 
consultant, and to 6 months 
for routine surgery, by 
December 2005 

Yes. Both of these promises were delivered 

Enable patients and GPs to 
book hospital appointments 
at a time and place 
convenient to the patient 

Yes. For some time now patients have been offered the 
opportunity to choose an appointment date and time that 
is convenient to them.  There are systems in place that 
enable patients to choose from a list of 4-5 hospitals 
when their GP makes a referral. Work is ongoing to roll 
out an electronic system to book hospital appointments 
from GP surgeries 

Open at least 8 Children’s 
Centres (one in each Local 
Area Partnership) providing 
joint health, social care and 
education services 

Yes. 9 Children’s Centres were open from 1st  April 2006 

Complete at least 85% of 
statements of Special 
Educational Needs with 
health and social care input 
within 18 weeks 

Yes. Our targets for completing Statements of Special 
Educational Needs were met 

Page 154



 28

Make sure that at least 85% 
of children in public care 
have an annual health 
review and dental check, 
rising to 90% by 2007 

Yes. Both of these targets have been met 

Implement the Single 
Assessment Process for 
Older People to ensure that 
needs are assessed and 
met more quickly and 
efficiently 

Yes. The Single Assessment Process was implemented 
through the involvement of 400 staff across the PCT, 
East London and The City Mental Health Trust, Barts 
and the London Trust and Tower Hamlets Social 
Services 

Ensure that at least 100 
disabled people participate 
in the Direct Payments 
Scheme 

Yes. This target has been met 

Open a Centre for Mental 
Health at Mile End in 
January 2006 to replace St 
Clement’s Hospital, 
providing a new in-patient 
facility enabling patients, 
especially women, to be 
treated with greater privacy, 
dignity and respect 

No. Delays have meant postponement of the completion 
date for this centre to December 2006 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 

• improve the quality of housing provision in the borough 
• improve access to affordable homes and improved housing conditions 
• improve access to quality healthcare services for key client groups, including 

people with long-term conditions and people with mental health needs 
• improve the health and well-being of young children and older people 
• reduce teenage pregnancy   
 

Improving housing 
 
What we promise to do in 
2006–2007 Our Targets? To: 

Improve the quality of 
housing provision 
 
 
 

• Develop a 'Quality Framework' for all social housing 
stock. 

• Provide assistance to 25% of vulnerable 
households to help address fuel poverty 

• Bring back into use 17 private rented properties         
Provide suitable 
accommodation for more 
residents 

• Re-house 200 overcrowded families 
• Improve access to appropriate housing for disabled 

applicants 
 

Page 155



 29

Improving health and social care 
 
What we promise to do in 
2006–2007 Our Targets? To: 

Improve access to local 
healthcare services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Continue to design, plan or build 10 new primary 
health care centres 

• Open a new primary care centre at Cable Street, 
and complete a major extension of the St Stephen's 
Healthcare Centre 

• Provide increased surgery hours in over half of all 
GP practices in the borough, and in at least one 
practice in every LAP area  

• Provide an additional mobile dental unit to ensure 
improved access to dental care in every LAP area 

• Increase uptake of the Pharmacy First scheme for 
minor aliments by 6% 

Improve the health & well 
being of older people and 
the wider community 
 

• Create 4 Linkage Plus networks, providing local 
services and activities for older people 

• Help 1755 people to quit smoking 

Provide more support for 
people with long term 
conditions and their carers 

• Provide 27 Expert Patient Courses for people with 
specific health conditions 

• Ensure that at least 75% of those suffering with 
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease have 
access to diagnosis and monitoring through the 
spirometery service 

• Ensure that at least 433 high intensity users are 
effectively case managed 

Improve services for people 
with mental health needs 

• Appoint 2 mental health community development 
workers to improve access to and uptake of mental 
health services by the people from black and 
minority ethnic communities 

• Provide a team of 20 Support Time Advice and 
Recovery workers (STARs) across the Local 
Authority, PCT and Mental Health Trust, to support 
people with mild to moderate depression, with at 
least 50% of those involved from BME communities 

• Provide a consultant psychiatrist within primary 
care services to improve services for people 
suffering from depression 

Improve the health of young 
children 
 
 
 

• Provide co-ordinated health, early education and 
social care services for young children and their 
families through 15 Children’s centres 

• Provide a range of healthy eating and physical 
activity initiatives to reduce obesity in children 

Page 156



 30

Reduce teenage pregnancy 
 
 
 

• Increase the provision of sex and relationship 
education in schools and improve the sexual 
healthcare for our most vulnerable children and 
young people (such as those in public care and 
young offenders) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



 31

A better place for creating and sharing prosperity 
 
Improving investment and access to jobs and reducing poverty 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 

• be confirmed as a major international centre for business and trade 
• be a place of increased prosperity across all communities 
• have more jobs available locally, and a higher proportion of local people in those 

jobs 
• have strong community involvement in neighbourhood planning and service 

provision 
• have a higher standard of living for all its communities 
• be widely recognised for its success as a richly diverse community of communities 
• be seen by the majority of its residents as a place of increasing well-being 
• have reduced the gap between the local unemployment rate and the inner London 

average  
 

The challenge 
Tower Hamlets is one of the most deprived areas of the country. Massive regeneration 
of the Docklands and City fringes has brought real benefits, but many of these have still 
not spread to local people. Unemployment in the borough has fallen but remains much 
higher than the London average. Over 100,000 new jobs are forecast for the area over 
the next 10 years as a result of the Mayor’s London Plan and we need to make sure that 
local people have the skills and confidence required to access them. 
 
What you want 

• local people to gain more from the regeneration that is taking place 
• local unemployment to be reduced 
• more businesses to re-locate to the area and to stay here 
• better training for local people to get jobs, in Tower Hamlets or further afield 
• a local workforce that more genuinely reflects the diversity of local communities 
• reliable and affordable child care so more parents and carers can take advantage 

of job opportunities 
• the sense of community in Tower Hamlets to be built on and celebrated, and 

different communities brought together more 
• to be listened to properly and to be more involved in decisions that affect you 
• increased capacity for making improvements in your own neighbourhood areas 
• available premises at a reasonable cost 

 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues 

• involve residents more in development planning 
• improve the street markets 
• improve benefit checks, enabling people to claim entitlement 
• improve communication between the Council and voluntary organisations 
• provide community owned workspace for small and start-up businesses 
• improve support for local young people to get into employment 
• improve the information available on groups working in different areas 
• develop facilities and centres for use by the community 

Page 158



 32

 
Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 

• reduce unemployment rates for young people 
• develop employment opportunities in the health sector 
• support people facing acute or multiple barriers to work 
• promote clear and co-ordinated support to small and medium sized businesses 
• maximise the benefits to local people of the major redevelopment planned for the 

area through the emerging Local Development Framework 
• further develop the role of the Third Sector in Creating and Sharing Prosperity  

 
What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 Did we achieve it?  

Implement the borough’s 
Regeneration Strategy  

Yes. The year 1-3 programme has commenced and 
progress reports will be available by July 2006 

Establish a borough-wide 
multi-agency delivery team 
that supports young job 
seekers in securing and 
maintaining employment  

Yes. A joint team has been in operation since May 2005 

Reduce by 10% the number 
of unemployed people aged 
18-25 

Just about. Over the last 6 months the number 18-25 
claimants fell by 9.6% 

Advertise and promote 300 
entry-level jobs associated 
with Barts and the London 
Hospital Trust to local 
people, and place 275 local 
people into these jobs 

No. 190 local residents secured jobs with Barts and the 
London Hospital Trust – this is below target due to 
changes at the Trust and a delay in beginning the new 
programme 

Increase the take-up of 
welfare benefits through an 
advertising campaign 
targeting working tax credit 
and other benefits  

Yes. The campaign included regular features in East 
End Life, information packs provided at key locations 
across the borough, and outreach advice in 10 GP 
surgeries and other venues across the borough 

Produce an information 
leaflet on accessing finance 
and debt advice services in 
the borough 

Yes. Debt advice leaflets and a self-help pack were 
produced, including a Where to Go for Advice leaflet 
 

Develop 6 hubs of 
community provision, based 
in the voluntary sector, 
offering a range of services 
and progression routes into 
job-training and 
employment. 500 clients to 
complete personal action 
plans – over 50% of which 
result in employment, further 

Yes.  6 hubs have been developed at:   
- East London Advanced Technology Training 
- Limehouse 
- City Gateway 
- Bromley by Bow Centre 
- LACoST 
- HARCA 
 
These hubs offer a programme of activities for local 
people, and over 1,103 people had completed personal 

Page 159



 33

or higher education, or 
engagement in voluntary 
activity 

action plans by March 2006. Of these, over 50% are 
now in employment (96), further or higher education 
(419) or engaged in voluntary activity (70)  

Produce a revised business 
development guide with key 
partners 

Yes. 'A Guide to Business Support Agencies in Tower 
Hamlets' was revised, with details of organisations that 
can provide free or subsidised expert advice in the 
areas of business start up, business planning, 
marketing and finance, and possible access to finance 
in the form of loans or grants 
 
- Additionally Open4Funding, an online resource with 
information about funding opportunities, has been 
available through the Council's website since 
September 

Produce draft Area Action 
Plans and undertake a 12 
week period of consultation 
with local people in Autumn 
2005 

Yes. A series of workshops and events for local people 
in the final 3 months of 2005 produced over 5000 
comments which are now being used to shape a revised 
Local Development Framework 

Review the borough's Third 
Sector Strategy 

No. Participation in the Treasury's Local Area Pathfinder 
project, due to be completed in July 2006, has delayed 
completion of the final strategy and action plan 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 

• increase employment rates, especially amongst young people 
• ensure that local people and the local economy are in a position to maximise the 

benefits of the 2012 Olympics 
• increase employment opportunities in key growth sectors such as finance, health, 

hospitality and tourism 
• promote clear and co-ordinated support to small and medium sized businesses, 

including social enterprises 
• maximise the benefits to local people of the major redevelopment planned for the 

area through the emerging Local Development Framework 
• improve financial inclusion by increasing access to financial advice and services. 

 
What we promise to do in 
2006–2007 Our Targets? To: 

Increase employment rates 
of local residents by 
providing co-ordinated 
targeted support, in 
particular to young people. 

• Support 375 local young people into jobs through the 
Employment Consortium job brokerage programme 

• Provide a Welcome Host and Welcome to East 
London training package of customer care for at least 
75 job seekers and young people still at school, to 
increase information and raise aspirations 

• Run 6 employer events for young people to raise the 
profile and understanding of growth sectors of 
employment and how to access them  

• Provide internships and specialised tailored training 

Page 160



 34

programmes with a range of employers in the local 
growth areas of hospitality, leisure, travel and 
tourism, health and finance  

• Increase the number of jobs accessed by residents in 
different LAP areas through Community Hubs 

Implement an Employment 
and Training Framework to 
ensure that local 
residents/businesses are 
able to access opportunities 
arising from the Olympic 
and Paralympic games. 

• Introduce a job brokerage and business support 
team – across the 5 Olympic host boroughs – to help 
local residents access employment arising from the 
Olympics, and local businesses to secure contracts 
arising from the development of the Games 

Promote the borough as the 
premier hospitality and 
leisure venue for the 
Olympic Games, helping the 
hospitality, leisure, travel 
and tourism sectors to 
expand and support the 
growth of smaller niche 
retail, restaurant and 
hospitality businesses 

• Expand the coverage of the borough’s Venue Guide, 
increase internet-based promotion and advertising, 
and run ‘familiarisation’ trips for global agents 

Provide targeted support to 
young people aged 18-24 to 
reduce youth unemployment 

• Introduce a Skills Ladder employment programme, 
helping 60 people into jobs  

• Secure 25 more internship programmes with 
employers to help young people access employment 
and continue job brokerage activities with young 
people to achieve our target of getting at least 550 
young people into sustainable employment by 2008 

Increase the supply of 
employment opportunities in 
key sectors promoted 
directly through the 
Employment Consortium  

• Recruit local people to 75% of all entry level 
vacancies at Barts and the London NHS Trust 

• Secure more entry level jobs in growth sectors such 
as finance, hospitality and tourism 

Encourage more growth and 
sustainability of local 
businesses 

• Open a Business Excellence Centre in the west of 
the borough to encourage and support local business 

As part of the Local 
Development Framework, 
revise Area Action Plans for 
Leaside, City Fringe and Isle 
of Dogs and consult on a 
Central Area Action Plan 

• Submit Area Action Plans for further consultation and 
to the Secretary of State for independent examination

Improve access to 
affordable banking and 
credit facilities 

• Develop information  leaflets  on budgeting,  
borrowing and access to affordable credit 

Page 161



 35

Support Financial 
Awareness / Literacy 
programmes 

• Deliver 8 money-wise information and training 
sessions in local community venues 

Improve access to 
debt/money advice services 
for low income families 

• Promote debt self-help packs and introduce a new 
debt advice outreach service  

Improve links and referrals 
between those services 
offering debt advice and 
those helping people to 
improve their employability 

• Train 120 front line staff in problem debt 
identification 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162



 36

A better place for learning, achievement and leisure 
Improving learning and achievement, and improving access to 
leisure activities and the arts 
 
Improving learning and achievement 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 

• be a place where most children in most schools are achieving at least as well as or 
even better than the national average 

• provide an inclusive learning and social environment in which education is valued 
and all children and young people can feel safe and can flourish 

• be a technology-rich learning environment providing world-wide links 
• have excellent and affordable facilities for children from 0 – 5 years 
• provide comprehensive further and higher education and lifelong learning 

opportunities and increase the number of people taking them up 
• have at least 85% of 5-16 year olds taking part in at least 2 hours of physical and 

sports activities a week 
 
The challenge 
Enormous improvements in recent years mean that our schools are now among the 
fastest improving in the country. But there is still a lot more to do to ensure that our 
children and young people get the education they deserve and achieve to national 
standards so they can compete for jobs on an equal footing. 
 
What you want 

• children to flourish at school, to achieve good exam results and to be free from 
bullying 

• a culture in which education and achievement are valued for themselves and are 
seen as creating opportunities for all 

• education, training and work experience opportunities that are available throughout 
life and from a range of providers 

• enough good teachers for our schools 
• more support and better information for parents 
• more positive involvement with young people 
• young people to leave school with the skills and aspirations necessary to find 

success in employment 
• provision of clear pathways in learning, to support continuity in education and 

training, but also to ensure that those returning to learning have easy access to 
education 

• affordable childcare for all those who need it  
•  learning that takes place in high quality accommodation  

 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues 

• get local people into schools to explain their concerns and get young people to visit 
local businesses, community organisations and groups 

• join up various groups working with young people 
• hold youth events which are fun 

Page 163



 37

• bring the generations together – provide joint leisure facilities for the use of older 
people during the day and young people during the evening 

• improve connections between parents, young people and youth workers 
• open schools up to the community 
• develop information points for young people 
• improve co-ordination of youth services 
• use secondary schools for evening classes for the local community 
• have drop-in centres for parents needing help with behaviour management 

 
Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 

• increase attainment   
• widen participation in learning, sport and youth activities 
• improve access  
• improve quality and increase choice    
• run a programme of arts and leisure activities targeting children’s social skills and 

educational development 
• encourage participation in arts and leisure activities and support community 

cohesion 
• improve the quality of local libraries and extend our Idea Stores Programme 

 
What we said we would do 
in 2005 – 2006 Did we achieve it?  

Increase the attendance rate 
in primary schools to 95% in 
2005-06, and reach the 
national average by 2007 
 

Almost. The annual attendance rate was 93.9%, a slight 
decrease of 0.1% on the previous year. However, 
between 2000 and 2004, primary attendance in Tower 
Hamlets has moved from 2% below to 0.6% below the 
national average. We have now reached the average for 
inner London, and are within 0.1% of the average for all 
London boroughs  

Ensure that 82% of children 
achieve level 4 in Maths and 
English tests at age 11, 
rising to 85% in 2007 

No. 69% of pupils achieved level 4 in English and Maths 
in 2005. Although we did not meet our target, 
performance is now only 1% below the national average 

Ensure that the percentage 
of pupils who achieve the 
expected level at age 14 
increases in the summer 
2005 to: English – 71%; 
maths – 71%; Science – 
68% 

No. However, we did achieve a 10% improvement in 
English at Key Stage 3 and a 3% improvement in 
maths. This is three times the national improvement 
rate. Science results were 52%, up 3% on 2004 

Ensure at least 49% of 
pupils achieve 5 or more A*-
C grades at GCSE in 
summer 2005, and that 93% 
achieve 5 A*-G grades, 
including English and maths 

Nearly. The target for 5 A*-Cs was exceeded by almost 
2% with 50.8% of pupils achieving these levels in 
summer 2005   
 
We were a little short of our target for 5A*-Gs including 
English and maths, with 87.1% of pupils reaching this 
level 

Page 164



 38

Agree a new 14-19 strategy 
that will improve 
opportunities for all 14-19 
year olds in the borough 

Yes. The DfES approved our 14-19 post-inspection 
action plan without amendment, and we have now 
established one of the first Education Improvement 
Partnerships (EIPs) to co-ordinate and improve the 14-
19 offer to Tower Hamlet’s students 

Increase the percentage of 
pupils staying on post-16 to 
80% 

Yes. Overall 82.6% of the 2005 cohort moved into 
education or training, and 78.6% took up fulltime post-
16 education programmes 

Improve post-16 retention 
rates: level 3 courses to 
93%; level 2 courses to 90% 

In part. Overall retention rates over the first year of post-
16 study were 82% (down 5%). However, retention 
rates for the second year of study were 94% for Level 3 
and 100% for Level 2 

Increase the Average Point 
Score per student from 
160.9 to 190 per entry by 
2005 

Yes. The Average Point Score (APS) per student 
achieved in 2005 was 204.2 

Reduce the number of 
young people not in 
education, employment or 
training (NEET) to 9.3% 

No. In March 2006, the number young people not in 
education, employment or training was 13.5% 

Engage 27% of the youth 
population in Tower Hamlets 
aged 13-19 in youth work 
activities; there will be 
recorded evidence of the 
activities of at least 60% of 
these 

Just about. Over 33% of 13-19 year olds in Tower 
Hamlets engaged in youth work activities and 57% of 
these achieved a recorded outcome from their work 
 
 

Ensure that 90% of all youth 
work sessions are graded 
satisfactory or better by 
Ofsted 

No. 80% of these sessions were graded at this standard 
through a peer inspection process. All projects have 
improvement plans in place to ensure that improvement 
is accelerated 

Improve the quality of youth 
service accommodation by 
developing and refurbishing 
7 buildings by 2006 

Not quite. Limehouse, Good Shepherd Mission, St 
Hilda's and the Attlee Foundation are all complete along 
with Whitechapel, so we are just two off the target.  The 
Davenant, Weavers and St Andrews are all due for 
completion in June/July 2006 

Ensure that 75% of schools 
deliver at least 2 hours of PE 
per week 

Final figures for 2005/6 will not be available until July, 
but we are confident that the steps we have taken – 
including 16 School Sport Co-ordinators working with all 
primary schools – will ensure that this ambitious national 
target will be met 

Implement the Youth 
Participation Strategy so that 
young people are 
represented on the 
Partnership Management 
Group and all LAP steering 

Yes. The Tower Hamlets Youth Partnership currently 
involves over 100 young people a year in decision-
making activities. Young people are also engaged 
through Local Youth Partnerships covering all LAP are. 
Some young people from these are involved in LAP 
steering groups, and two young people are represented 

Page 165



 39

groups on the Partnership Manager Group 
Maintain participation rates 
at the very high level 
achieved last year, and 
improve the retention rate of 
adult learners by 20% 

No – this target proved too ambitious. However,  an 
increase of 10% was achieved, and there was also a 
4% increase in lifelong learning enrolments 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 
 
• help young people develop skills for employment 
• improve the achievement of adult learners 
• enable parents to play a key role in the achievement of their children  
• increase participation in physical activities and improve health levels amongst young 

people 
 
What we promise to do in 
2006 –2007 Our Targets? To: 

Help young people develop 
the skills necessary for them 
to move into employment 

• Ensure that  84% of primary school pupils achieve 
level 4 in mathematics and English tests at age 11 in 
summer 2006, rising to 85% in summer 2007 

• Increase the percentage of secondary pupils 
achieving Level 5 in both English and mathematics at 
age 14 to 57% in summer 2006, rising to 61% in 
summer 2007  

• Increase the percentage of secondary pupils earning 
5 or more GCSEs at grades A* to C, including 
English and mathematics, to 34% in summer 2006, 
rising to 39% in summer 2007 

• Increase the A level average points score to 229 in 
summer 2006, rising to 247 in summer 2007 

• Reduce the number of young people age 16 to 18 not 
in education, employment or training to 11.5% in 
November 2006, falling to 8.2% in November 2007 

• Increase the take up of play, culture and leisure 
activities by young people and their families 

Improve the achievement of 
adult learners 

• Achieve a minimum level of 75% adult learner 
retention by June 2007 

Improve the quality of 
parental involvement: 

• Increase the attendance rate in primary schools to 
94.8% and secondary schools to 92.9% in summer 
2006, rising to 95% and 93% in summer 2007  

• Reduce unauthorised absence rates in primary 
schools to 1.1% and secondary schools to 2.2% in 
summer 2006, falling to 0.95% and 1.9% in summer 
2007 

• Increase the number of parents participating in family 
learning programmes to 1600 

Improve the health and 
levels of physical activity of 

• Increase the percentage of primary school age pupils 
having 2 or more hours of exercise each week to 

Page 166



 40

young people 80% 
• Reduce the percentage of 11 to 15 year old pupils 

who smoke regularly to 9% by 2008  
• Reduce the percentage of teenage conceptions from 

1998 baseline to 36 conceptions per 1000 by 2006 
• Reduce the level of obesity amongst year 6 pupils to 

23% or less 
• Reduce the prevalence of overweight year 6 pupils to 

38% or less 
Provide high quality places 
to go and exciting things to 
do, that meet the needs of 
young people aged 13 to 19 
 

• Engage 29% of the 13-19 population in youth work 
activities 

• Ensure that 30% of young people regularly attending 
youth projects achieve accredited outcomes from 
their involvement 

• Provide planned programmes of detached and 
mobile youth work in 24 estates 

• Involve at least 100 young people in community 
decision-making through the Tower Hamlets Youth 
Partnership and 4 Local Youth Partnerships 

• Increase the number of volunteering opportunities for 
the age group to 700 

 
 
Improving access to leisure activities and the arts 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 
• have excellent arts and leisure facilities which are readily accessible to – and used 

by – both local people and visitors 
• be a centre for the celebration of arts from all communities 
• have free open access play provision available in every ward 
• have a network of Idea Stores operating across the borough  
• have all Idea Stores open 7 days per week for 71 hours, and have increased the 

number of library visitors to 2.1 million, from just over 1 million now 
• increase the amount of public open space managed by the voluntary and community 

sector by 5% 
• recycle all public open space green waste 
 
The challenge 
You see sporting, artistic and cultural activities as essential to the well-being of the 
community, encouraging healthy lifestyles, creativity and social contact. However, there 
remains a need to encourage the local people to take advantage of the wide range of 
leisure and cultural activities in the borough, and creative thinking is required to 
maximise the use of available open space.  
 
What you want 
• a choice of good quality arts and leisure facilities near to where you live, that are 

affordable and accessible and that take account of different needs 
• arts and leisure events that celebrate the borough’s cultural diversity 

Page 167



 41

 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle these issues 
• provide more meeting places where people can gather 
• provide leisure facilities within housing estates 
• provide community leisure clubs with affordable access to leisure facilities 
• advertise arts and leisure provision 
• develop provision for girls and women 
• increase access to ICT facilities for young people 
 
Our priorities for 2005–2006 were to: 
• run a programme of arts and leisure activities targeting children’s social skills and 

educational development 
• encourage participation in cultural and leisure activities and support community 

cohesion   
• improve the quality of local libraries and extend our Idea Stores Programme 
 
What we said we would do 

in 2005 – 2006 Did we achieve it?  

Introduce new youth 
provision in Mile End Park 
that targets 11-17 year olds 
and includes an outreach 
centre, adventure space and 
supervised activities, all 
located within the 
Connexions Centre in the 
Park 

Yes. Youth outreach began operating in the park from 
September 2006. Provision includes cycling, 
orienteering and canoeing on the canal. A purpose-built 
base for the provision is under construction and will be 
ready in August 2006 

Roll out a football 
development programme for 
7-11 year olds, with 10 
schools participating 

Yes. Achieved and surpassed: almost 20 schools and 
over 2,500 students have participated 

Increase the number of 
under-16s registered with 
libraries from 29.4% to at 
least 30% 

Yes. 

Hold a minimum of 800 arts-
based workshops for young 
people across the borough 
by March 2006 

Yes. A total of 1,005 arts-based workshops for young 
people were held, that focused on raising attainment 
and were delivered through the Out of School Hours 
Arts programme 

Launch a ‘Bookstart’ 
initiative, providing all babies 
and toddlers from new-born 
to 48 months with 2 free 
books; they will also be 
invited, through their 
families, to join the library 
and take part in a 
programme of family 

Yes. Over 6,600 Bookstart packs were distributed 
during the year 

Page 168



 42

learning events 
Agree and implement a 
cultural strategy action plan 
by October 2005 

No. The completion date is now December 2006 

Introduce a new football 
league, centred on the new 
football pitches and 
changing facilities at Meath 
Gardens 

Yes 

Engage a minimum of 40 
children and their families 
within the Healthy Lifestyles 
programme 

Yes. Two courses were held, one for 8-11 year olds  
and one for 12-16 year olds, with 40 children attending 

Support a minimum of 56 
festivals and events across 
the borough 

Yes. A record 78 festivals and events were held across 
the borough 

Run a health programme, 
involving at least 50 women, 
tackling heart-related 
illnesses at Whitechapel 
Sports Centre 

Yes. A health programme for women was successfully 
run, and involved 55 participants 
 

Open the following new 
facilities: 
- new fitness facilities at 

York Hall in June 2005;  
- Mile End Stadium in 

January 2006;  
- sports facilities at 

Langdon Park in 
January 2006 

In part. 
• New fitness facilities at York Hall were opened and 

the Mile End Stadium was launched in February 
2006 

• There have been some delays in developing the 
sports facilities at Langdon Park, but this should now 
be complete by May 2006 

Open the Whitechapel Idea 
Store in September 2005 

Yes. Achieved and exceeded.  Whitechapel Idea Store 
opened on 22 September, and average visitor numbers 
have been around 53,500 per month 

Open 7 library services for 
more than 45 hours per 
week by the end of the year, 
2 of them for 71 hours (7 
days) per week: 5 of them 
for 7 days per week by 2007 

Yes. There are now 4 Idea Stores (Bow, Chrisp Street, 
Whitechapel and Canary Wharf), each open 71 hours a 
week. In addition, Bethnal Green, Cubitt Town and 
Watney Market Libraries are open for more than 45 
hours per week 

Increase the number of 
visitors to local libraries and 
lifelong learning facilities 
from 1.3 million last year to 
1.6 million 

Yes. Libraries and Idea Stores visits reached a high of 
1.61 million visitors 

Prepare an Open Space 
Strategy for the borough, 
consistent with the Local 

Yes. This is now ready for implementation 

Page 169



 43

Development Framework, to 
address the social and 
environmental issues that 
are of concern to local 
people 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 
• increase the use of library and leisure facilities, to help develop improved social skills 

amongst our young people 
• encourage all Tower Hamlets residents to become involved in arts and leisure 

activities 
 
What we promise to do in 
2006 –2007 Our Targets? To: 

Improve the level of social 
skills amongst young people 
via arts and leisure activities 
 

• Increase the percentage of under-16s registering with 
local libraries to 31% 

• Hold at least  450 arts-based workshops for young 
people 

• Increase the number of young people under 16 using 
Tower Hamlets leisure centres by 10,000 

Encourage involvement in 
cultural and leisure activities 
by Tower Hamlets residents 
of all ages 
 

• Support a minimum of  65 festivals and  events 
across the borough 

• Increase the number of visitors to the Ideas Stores 
and other library services to 2.1 million 

• Increase the number of users of Tower Hamlets 
leisure centres  by 100,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



 44

A better place for excellent public services 
 
Improving public services 
 
By 2010 Tower Hamlets will: 

• be amongst the best performing areas identified as neighbourhood renewal areas 
• have services that are recognised by the majority of residents as responsive, 

effective and good value 
• be an area in which all communities are assured, at the very least, of a minimum 

standard in the quality of their lives 
• provide information about service functions and availability that is recognised as 

clear and widely available 
• be a place where services can be accessed at users’ convenience, using a variety 

of means, including personal contact and information and communications 
technology 

• have significantly improved access to all public areas and services for people with 
disabilities or sensory impairment 

• have services provided by a workforce that better reflects the local community 
 
The challenge 
You have a right to high quality public services at times and in ways that are more 
convenient to you. For some local people, they are difficult to access, and information 
about them is often limited and sometimes confusing. High quality, responsive and 
flexible public services will be essential if the development proposed for East London in 
the Mayor’s London Plan is to benefit all our communities. 
 
What you want 

• services that provide a choice for you, can be accessed in a variety of ways, but 
which still provide the personal contact and responsiveness you value 

• services that work together in a co-ordinated way, and which are available when 
and where you want them 

• staff who are really well informed and trained to understand and respond to the 
needs of the communities they work with 

• better information about all services that is easy to understand 
 
Some things you suggest we could do to tackle the issues 

• provide more opportunities for local people to help shape local services 
• hold ‘listening days’ to hear what local people have to say 
• explore the use of radio and TV to communicate with local people 
• improve access to the internet and encourage take-up 
• take services and advice to the community - in convenient places 
• find new ways to engage young people 
• make more use of existing local facilities, such as supermarkets, health centres, 

schools 
• improve communications between the Council and voluntary organisations 
• provide a 24-hour multi-agency Helpline 

Page 171



 45

 
Our priorities for 2005 – 2006 were to: 
• improve the quality of services in meeting local needs 
• ensure that the Tower Hamlets Partnership operates to the highest equality 

standards 
• continue to strengthen community cohesion and increase the participation and 

engagement of local people, including young people, in delivering improvements in 
the quality of life in the area 

 
What we said we 
would do in 2005 – 
2006 

Did we achieve it? 

At least maintain the 
Council's position as 
the third best 
performing area in inner 
London on a basket of 
performance indicators 
(the Tower Hamlets 
Index) and improve our 
position compared with 
other London and 
metropolitan boroughs 

Yes. In 2004/05 the Council’s performance against a basket of 
indicators improved to 13th in Greater London (from 14th in 
2003/04). Figures for 2005/06 will be available later in the 
year.  
 
We have also been one of the few local authorities able to 
keep Council Tax at last year’s level – evidence of the strength 
of our financial management and commitment to providing 
high quality value for money services to local people 

Ensure that Tower 
Hamlets Council 
maintains its rating as a 
good and improving 
local authority in 
government 
inspections, and 
achieves an excellent 
rating as soon as the 
framework allows 

Yes. The Council maintained its good rating in the 2005 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment and continues to 
improve: 3 stars (out of 4) were awarded for performance and 
3 stars for improving well.  
 
In addition, the council was one of only three in the country to 
achieve the highest rating (grade 4) for children and young 
people’s services, while our social services was rated one of 
the top two in the country for looking after vulnerable adults 
and older people who need care.  
 
The PCT also performed strongly, improving – from 0 stars in 
2004 – to a 2 star rating (mostly high levels of performance) 
on Healthcare Commission ratings, while Barts and the 
London retained its 2 star rating for hospitals 

Increase year on year 
the proportion of local 
people who agree that 
the council, police and 
health service are doing 
a good job 

Yes. The proportion of local people who think local public 
services are doing a good job has continued to rise overall. In 
February 2006, 67% of residents felt that the Council was 
doing a good job (up 3% last year and 10% in 2 years), and 
3% higher than the London average) 
 
The proportion agreeing that local policing is good, very good 
or excellent rose 8% to 42% (although this remains 6% below 
the London average); the equivalent figure for local health 
services rose by 5% to 58% (2% above London) 

Page 172



 46

Establish a clear 
framework for the 
borough’s approach to 
local management in 
the light of the 
government’s 5-year 
plan for sustainable 
communities 

Yes. The Partnership has negotiated an ambitious Local Area 
Agreement (LAA) with government, setting out our agreed 
priorities for the next 3 years. The agreement promises further 
development of our approach to the empowerment of local 
communities, building on the success of the Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams 

Deliver and develop 
Local Area Action 
Plans, showing year on 
year improvements in 
the quality of life in 
different LAP areas  

Yes. LAP Action Plans for 2006/07 are already in place ready 
for implementation: one of the actions already having a 
marked impact on the quality of life for local people is the 
introduction of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams in every ward 
 

Increase the 
satisfaction with local 
services of people in all 
LAP areas, with year on 
year improvements 

Yes. The most recent Annual Residents Survey showed an 
increase in residents’ satisfaction with almost all local services 
except refuse collection – although this is equal to the London 
average  
 
Satisfaction with services in individual LAPs also increased, 
particularly on recycling, local health services and libraries  
 
There were particular improvements in individual LAPs for 
services that were less well regarded last year, such as repair 
of roads and pavements in LAP 6 (up 36%), services for 
young people in LAP 7 (up 28%) and parks, playgrounds and 
open spaces in LAP 8 (up 21%) 

Review commissioning 
of services through the 
third sector 

Underway, as part of a broader review of the borough’s Third 
Sector strategy; and the Partnership is working with HM 
Treasury as a Pathfinder on a national research project on 
commissioning 
 
External challenge of the Council Third Sector Commissioning 
Code of Practice has also been undertaken and a revised 
code produced 

Implement fully all 
initiatives funded by 
LPSA reward grant 

Yes. £2 million of the reward grant received from the 
government for successful LPSA performance was spent on 
real improvements in each of the 8 LAP areas 

Ensure that we are on 
course to achieve our 
ambitious Round 2 
LPSA targets 

Yes. Services across the Partnership are focused on 
delivering our priority targets 

Complete negotiations 
of a Local Area 
Agreement with 
government by March 
2006 

Yes. Negotiation of the borough’s Local Area Agreement with 
government is complete: this will help drive new and 
innovative ways of working to accelerate improvement 

Establish the leadership Yes. The Partnership has, through the Excellent Public 

Page 173



 47

role of the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership in 
developing Children's 
Services 

Services CPAG, taken a leadership role for Children’s 
Services by acting as the Children’s Trust for the borough: the 
excellent work of local partners in this area is recognised in 
the award to the Council of prestigious Beacon status for Early 
Intervention for Children at Risk 

Agree and implement a 
first Children and 
Young People's Plan by 
April 2006 

Yes. An ambitious Children and Young People’s Plan, agreed 
after extensive consultation, is now in place, which the 
Partnership is confident will lead to improved outcomes for our 
children and young people 

Increase the proportion 
of the public service 
workforces that are 
from black and minority 
ethnic communities 

Yes. Provisional figures show that the proportion of the 
Council’s workforce from minority ethnic communities 
increased to 41.17% at the end of 2005/06, up from 37.21% in 
2004/05 
 
In addition, almost half (49.5%) of the workforce of the Tower 
Hamlets PCT are from BME communities 
 
As at April 2006, 10% of local police officers and 33% of police 
staff were from BME communities. This compares very 
favourably with London-wide averages of 7% for police officers 
and 22% for staff 

Provide evidence, year 
on year, that more 
people from black and 
minority ethnic 
communities are 
employed at 
management level in 
local services 

No, provisional figures show that the proportion of senior 
managers in the Council from minority ethnic communities 
decreased to 14.29% at the end of 2005/06, compared with 
16.43% the previous year 
 
Although we did not achieve an increase, the Council is still 
performing significantly above the London average of 12.37% 
 
At Tower Hamlets PCT, the ‘THRIVE’ network (Tower 
Hamlets: Respecting Individuals, Valuing Equality) has 
supported a BME Advanced Leadership Course, designed to 
help staff from a diversity of backgrounds to reach their 
potential by supporting their professional development 

Increase the range of 
ways in which members 
of black and minority 
ethnic communities can 
have their say 

Yes. A number of initiatives are helping to ensure black and 
minority ethnic communities can better influence local 
services: 
• the Women into Public Life project focused especially on 

women from different BME networks 
• targeted focus groups, comprised predominantly of 

members of the Bangladeshi community, have been drawn 
from the residents panel 

• a training course on ‘accessing hidden communities’ has 
been provided to services to enable them to access BME 
communities more easily 

Increase the response 
rates of targeted 
communities to 

We have targeted improved response rates from BME groups 
and from women thorough focus group activities and through a 
successful Women into Public Life project  

Page 174



 48

consultation  
We have also purchased a survey software tool, which will 
help standardise equalities monitoring and enable us to 
analyse responses and strengthen our baseline data 

Launch the Disable Go 
website, with 
information about 
access to the borough’s 
public buildings 

Yes. The Disabled Go website, which provides information 
about access to the borough’s public buildings, was brought 
on line at the end of October. A public launch and publicity 
campaign is scheduled for next year to increase its use 

Increase the 
percentage of local 
authority buildings 
which are accessible to 
disabled people to 45% 
from 40% last year 

Yes – and this will be increased further in the coming year  

Implement the 
Council’s Disability 
Employment Strategy 
and agree with other 
major service providers 
a common set of 
principles to encourage 
increased employment 
of disabled people 

Yes. The Council achieved a score of 84% in the Employers’ 
Forum on Disability’s Standard compared to a public sector 
average of 59% 
 
The Council also hosted a seminar for the Employers’ Forum 
to raise awareness of the new duty to promote disability 
equality 
 

Provide clear evidence 
of increased take-up of 
employment by 
disabled people 

Yes. Provisional figures show that the proportion of the 
Council’s workforce who are disabled increased to 4.66% from 
3.91% at the end of 2004/5 
 
'Two Ticks' Positive About Disabled People accreditation was 
also retained following inspection by Job Centre Plus 
 
The Partnership also continued to fund the Tower Project, a 
local initiative designed to increase take-up of employment by 
disabled people. In 2005/06, the Tower Project successfully 
helped a total of 40 disabled job-seekers into sustainable 
employment 

Extend the language 
service to other 
statutory and third 
sector partners by 
November 2005  

Yes. Schools and Third Sector organisations now have access 
to the Council’s language service, and discussions are 
continuing with other statutory providers such as the PCT 

Agree a strategy and 
action plan for older 
people 

Yes. A major review of older people’s needs and services has 
been carried out, with extensive involvement from older people 
themselves. This is almost complete, and will inform a revised 
strategy that ensures older people are recognised and 
engaged as citizens 

Agree a framework for 
the borough’s response 

Yes. The borough’s Local Area Agreement (LAA), negotiated 
with government over the past year, provides an action 

Page 175



 49

to the Sustainable 
Communities Plan, 
ensuring the 
participation of local 
people and the delivery 
of improved outcomes 

framework through which local people can participate in the 
delivery of our Community Plan goals and ensures that there 
is a sustainable sense of community  

Develop the 
Community 
Empowerment 
Network's role in 
enabling excluded 
communities to 
participate 

Yes. The Community Empowerment Network has worked 
through the Partnership to develop an action plan to increase 
the engagement of hard-to-reach groups 
 
The Community Empowerment Network’s role is also 
embedded in Local Area Agreement targets and delivery 
strategy for community engagement 

Agree and implement a 
framework for 
promoting active 
citizenship through 
increased voluntary 
activity 

Yes. A framework for increasing voluntary activity has been 
agreed and incorporated into the delivery strategy for Safer, 
Stronger, Communities within the LAA 

Increase attendance at 
LAPs to over 4250, with 
40% from black and 
minority ethnic 
communities, 1000 
under 25, and 90% 
rating the events as 
‘good’ or ‘very good’ 

Yes. 4489 people attended LAPS in 2005-06, with 54% from 
black and minority ethnic communities and 1,772 under 25. 
92% of attendees rated the events good or very good 

Increase the number of 
people who have heard 
of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership to 40% 

Yes. Awareness of the Tower Hamlets Partnership in the 
2005/06 Annual Residents Survey was 42% 

Demonstrate clear 
evidence of improved 
consultation and 
involvement 

Yes. A Consultation Toolkit for services is in place, to help 
them improve consultation with local people and communities. 
A staff training programme in consultation is also now in place 
 
The proportion of local people saying they felt more able to 
influence decisions rose by 9% this year 

Ensure that all 
consultations are 
planned and published 
in our consultation 
calendar 

Yes. A Consultation Calendar is now available on the 
Council’s website (www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/consultation) for 
the public to view, showing the main consultation activities to 
be carried out during the year. Over 100 consultations are 
listed on the calendar  

Improve the quality of 
questionnaire surveys 

Yes. Over 40 staff completed training that was provided to 
improve the quality of questionnaire surveys. All staff also 
have access to software which will improve the quality of 
questionnaires 

Provide feedback on all Yes. All major consultations use a variety of communication 

Page 176



 50

major consultations tools, including East End Life, the Council website and 
individual letters and summaries to let people know how 
consultation has impacted on decisions 
 
The findings of major consultations (Budget, Local 
Development Framework, Older People as Citizens etc) are all 
fed back through East End Life and posted on the 
Consultation Calendar 

Publish an Involvement 
Strategy by July 2005, 
with full implementation 
by April 2006, to help 
encourage young 
people to get involved 
in democracy 
 
 
 

Mostly. Although a formal Involvement Strategy was not 
published, a number of initiatives have successfully helped 
engage young people in the democratic process. 36 young 
people were involved in the Build Your Own Politician (BYOP) 
project, and over 350 young people took part in Local 
Democracy Week activities 
 
Feedback from young people also led to the ‘Cotchin with the 
Councillors’ initiative, which helped increase contact between 
young people and Councillors through a series of borough-
wide Youth Partnership meetings 

Raise awareness of 
democracy among 
young people through a 
programme of events in 
secondary schools 

Yes. A programme to raise awareness of democracy among 
young people in schools has been developed, and is expected 
to run in secondary schools from May 2006 

Increase the 
participation of young 
people in training 
programmes designed 
to meet their needs 

Yes. 130 young people have participated in Partnership 
training programmes designed to meet their needs and 
support the local community. This has involved peer worker, 
team leader, community mentor and art activist courses 
 
300 young people have also completed accredited Peer Work 
programmes, tailored to their needs, to equip them with 
specific life-skills 

Show increased 
satisfaction from young 
people with the way 
they are involved in 
planning services 

No. The percentage of young people saying that they felt 
involved in decision-making remained at the same level 
 
However, a survey of the Youth Community Service did show 
increased satisfaction from young people over last year 

Run and evaluate a 
series of Public Life 
events 

No. The People in Public Life events were delayed to follow 
the local elections, and are now scheduled for the 2nd week of 
July 

Increase the number of 
women involved as 
councillors, governors 
and in other areas of 
public life 

Yes. A range of actions helped to increase the number of 
women involved in public life, including consultation events 
held at 9 key locations in the borough and the publication of a 
brochure on how to participate in public life 
 
The outreach work was targeted to reach 250 women, 
including 134 from BME backgrounds (54 Bangladeshi).  246 
Women registered their interest in knowing more about getting 

Page 177



 51

involved, and approximately 25 have taken up posts in public 
life roles to date 

Run at least two events 
to celebrate the 
borough’s Beacon 
awards for Promoting 
Racial Equality and 
Getting Closer to 
Communities and to 
share our good practice 
with other local 
authority areas 

Yes. An Open Day to demonstrate the borough’s good 
practice in Getting Closer to Communities was held in 
September, attracting 28 attendees from 20 local authorities; 
93% of evaluations of the day rated it as ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ 
 
A similar event in November, to showcase the borough’s good 
practice in Promoting Racial Equality, attracted 58 people from 
37 local authorities 

Establish a learning 
and development 
programme to 
encourage leadership 
amongst the different 
strands of the 
Partnership 

Yes. A programme of learning and development for the 
Partnership has included at least 12 events encompassing all 
strands of the Tower Hamlets Partnership 

 
Our priorities for the next year, to: 
 

• improve the effectiveness and efficiency of local services 
• provide services that are responsive to local needs and views 
• extend the ways in which local people are empowered to contribute to the quality of 

life in the area 
• ensure that Tower Hamlets is a thriving, cohesive and engaged community 
• achieve high standards of equality and access 

 
What we promise to do in 2006–
2007 Our Targets? To: 

Make further improvements to the 
efficiency and effectiveness of local 
public services by: 
 
• working through the borough’s 

Local Area Agreement to achieve 
ambitious targets in the areas of: 
- safer, stronger communities 
- children and young people 
- healthier communities and 

older people 
- economic development and 

enterprise 
 

 
 
 
 
• Achieve all targets in our Local Area 

Agreement 
• Be confirmed by external inspection as 

amongst the best performing areas for local 
public services 

• Ensure that the borough’s Council Tax 
remains amongst the lowest five in London 

• Increase the number of people who agree 
that local public services are efficient and 
well-run (above the London average) 

Provide services that are responsive 
to local needs and views by: 
 

 
 
 

Page 178



 52

• using local management to further 
improve the responsiveness of 
services to different areas of the 
borough 

• continuing to work with local 
people to deliver action plans – 
supported by the investment of £4 
million – that are responsive to 
their needs and views  

• developing a Local Information 
System to help provide clear and 
transparent information on 
activities and performance at local 
level 

• developing a strategy for One 
Stop Shops, enabling local people 
to access a range of services 
more easily 

• involving local people in the 
continued development of the 
Safer Neighbourhood Teams 

 

• Improve satisfaction with services in the 
different parts of the borough, with 
satisfaction in no single LAP area being 
more than 10% below the borough average 

• Show a clear impact from these action 
plans on the quality of life in each LAP area 

• have a Local Information System, accessed 
though the  Council’s website, which is well-
used 

• Agree an accommodation strategy that will 
lead to an improvement in One Stop Shop 
Services over the next two years 

• Pilot the introduction of Super Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams to further improve 
the responsiveness of services to local 
needs 

Extend the ways in which local people 
are empowered to contribute to the 
quality of life in the area by: 
 
• involving local people more in 

planning and delivering services 
• providing better information about 

services and increase the ways in 
which it can be accessed 

• exploring ways in which local 
people can have more choice in 
the way in which public services 
are offered 

• improving communication between 
service providers so that people 
receiving those services feel that 
they have been listened to and 
understood 

• putting in place an action plan to 
empower older people as citizens 

• supporting the engagement of 
young people through the 
borough’s Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
• Increase residents’ satisfaction ratings for 

Council, police and health services 
• Increase the number of people who feel 

their concerns are listened to (above the 
average for London) 

• Increase the number of people who feel 
they are involved in decision-making (above 
the average for London) 

• Increase the number of older people who 
agree that local Public Services are doing a 
good job 

• Achieve, in the Annual Performance 
Assessment, the highest possible rating for 
Children and Young People’s Services 

Ensure that Tower Hamlets is a  

Page 179



 53

thriving, cohesive and engaged 
community by: 
 
• working with the Community 

Empowerment Network in 
reaching excluded communities  

• engaging more people in LAP 
events 

• developing a programme to 
increase the level of volunteer 
activity in the borough 

• promoting the borough’s 
reputation as a good place for 
different communities to live 
together 

 
  

 
 
 
• Increase the  number of people – in all 

areas of the borough and in all ethnic 
communities – agreeing that Tower 
Hamlets is a place where people from 
different backgrounds get on well 

• Increase the number of residents who think 
Tower Hamlets is a place where people 
respect ethnic differences 

• Increase attendance at LAPs to 5,000, with 
40% from all black and minority ethnic 
communities and 15% under 25, and with 
95% rating the events as ‘good’ or ‘very 
good’ 

• Increase the number of people who have 
heard of the Tower Hamlets Partnership to 
50% 

• Increase the number of local residents who 
engage in volunteering 

• Increase the number of young (16-24) 
volunteers 

• Increase the number of people taking part 
in leadership training and community 
development opportunities   

Achieve high standards of equality 
and access by: 
 
• recruiting more local people into 

jobs in the major public services, 
so that the workforce providing 
those services reflects the 
community as a whole 

• developing initiatives to support 
the progression of BME staff into 
management roles 

• improving access to services for 
those with physical and sensory 
disabilities 

• improving employment 
opportunities for disabled people 

 

 
 
 
• Increase the proportion of the public service 

workforces who are from black and minority 
ethnic (BME) communities 

• Have more people from BME communities 
employed at management level in local 
services 

• Ensure that the percentage in any single 
ethnic community who feel the Council, 
police, or health service are doing a good 
job is no more than 10% below the borough 
average  

• re-launch Disabled Go, an on-line guide to 
access information on 1,000 buildings in 
Tower Hamlets 

• Increase the percentage of local authority 
buildings which are accessible to disabled 
people to 55% from 45% last year 

• Have a minimum of 5 disabled parking bays 
in the vicinity of each retained local 
authority office building 

Page 180



 54

• Increase the take-up of employment by 
disabled people 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



 55

Involving local people  
and making our partnership work 
 
Development of the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership oversees the Community Plan and is responsible for 
making sure that we all work together to achieve its goals and so improve the quality of 
life for local people.  
 
There are three strands to the Partnership: 
 
There are eight Local Area Partnerships (LAPs), which work hard to involve Tower 
Hamlets residents. The LAPs engage local people in considering ideas on how to 
improve things in their area, and ways in which they can influence the delivery of 
services there. They also provide the chance to scrutinise service performance to 
ensure that standards are met and promises kept. 
 
There is a Community Plan Action Group (CPAG) for each of the key themes in the 
Community Plan. These groups are made up of key service providers, including 
members from the Community Empowerment Network. Their remit is to speed up 
progress, by delivering joined-up services in line with the priorities agreed with local 
people. The CPAGs listen to the LAPs, and use their views to help determine the best 
way to improve mainstream services more quickly. Each CPAG is charged with 
delivering the promises set out in the relevant part of this plan. 
 
The Partnership Management Group (PMG) involves residents, young people, faith 
members, Community Plan Action Group chairs, local councillors and representatives 
from the major service providers, businesses, voluntary and community sectors. It is a 
small strategic group with responsibility for delivering the overall strategy and ensuring 
that plans are fulfilled. 
 
All members of the LAP steering groups, CPAGs and PMG are required to sign a 
Partnership Charter demonstrating their commitment to agreed ways of working. 
 
 Launched in 2001, the growing strength of the Tower Hamlets Partnership has been 
recognised nationally as well as locally.  It was one of a small number of Partnerships 
awarded a ‘green’ traffic light – the highest level of accreditation – in its annual 
performance management review by Government Office for London (GOL). The 
Partnership was commended in particular for its ambitions to accelerate improvement, 
its inclusiveness and its focus on delivery outcomes. In addition, building on the 
Municipal Journal award for Community Leadership Achievement of the Year in 2004, 
the work of the Partnership was key to the achievement of five prestigious Beacon 
awards over the past four years. Previous Beacon awards have included awards for 
Community Cohesion, Getting Closer to Communities and Promoting Racial Equality, 
while the success of the Partnership in creating strong engagement from the community 
was a key factor leading to the borough’s latest Beacon award for Early Intervention for 
Children at Risk. 
 

Page 182



 56

The Partnership reviews its operations each year to make sure it is working effectively 
and efficiently towards its goals. In our latest review, we have identified some key areas 
for further development. We need to: 
• continue to strengthen community leadership so that all local communities benefit 

from the major development planned for the area  
• further develop community engagement and increase participation in local 

consultation and decision making 
• improve communications so that local people fully appreciate and support the 

Partnership’s goals and achievements and understand how they can be involved in 
influencing decisions and contribute to an improved quality of life in the borough  

• further develop our support for community cohesion, by helping local voluntary and 
community organisations play a bigger part in bringing people together, and by giving 
young people a stronger voice 

• strengthen the use of local knowledge and local data so that resources are used 
efficiently to bring about real and visible improvements in local areas 

• help all partners to learn from each other by sharing information about good practice 
and about what works 

 
Engaging local people 
The Community Plan is important. It is a statement of what the Partnership is committed 
to achieving. But it is not just a statement.  It is a process – a process through which we 
all work together to deliver real change on the ground. It is the major public service 
providers who will deliver most of the activities that will achieve the goals and priorities 
set out in the Community Plan. But they cannot do this without the support of residents – 
by helping to keep our streets and estates safe and clean, by making sure that our 
children attend school, by trying to lead healthy lifestyles, and by trying to make a 
positive contribution to the community. 
 
A key priority for the Partnership is to engage more people and more communities in 
shaping the future of the borough, to build on the benefits that our rich diversity brings 
and to ensure that diversity of need in the borough is addressed. This engagement will 
only happen if residents feel that their views are genuinely heard and, where possible, 
acted on. The Tower Hamlets Partnership will be at the centre of this process, and the 
Partnership Management Group remains determined to develop more creative and more 
interesting ways of engaging local people, especially through the Local Area 
Partnerships. 
 
We do not expect to engage people just through written documents, questionnaires and 
public meetings – although these will still play a part. We will still be using East End Life, 
and we will be using local websites – like the Council’s and those of other partners. We 
will be using newsletters, leaflets, posters and exhibitions. We will be using direct mail 
and focus groups. But, more importantly, we will also be engaging with people at 
markets and supermarkets, at health centres, through pensioners’ clubs, youth clubs, 
schools, children’s centres and parents’ centres, as well as through fairs,  festivals and 
other borough events – in short, wherever and however is most convenient for you. 
 
We will continue to  involve people by  concentrating on the issues that concern local 
people most – such as reducing crime and antisocial behaviour, making our streets 

Page 183



 57

cleaner and safer and creating more opportunities for young people – and by showing 
that working together can make a difference. 
 
Further development of this approach to local management is key to achieving our goal 
of empowering local people by enabling them to help shape local services and make a 
positive contribution as citizens. 
 
Through LAP steering groups, for example, local people already have a direct role in 
overseeing the Safer Neighbourhoods teams, which have been established in every 
ward of the borough. We will be building on the success of this initiative by developing 
multi-agency neighbourhood teams and local problem-solving groups, able to deliver a 
locally co-ordinated response to issues such as community safety, youth provision, and 
the physical environment. 
 
The Local Area Action Plans, which are described in the next section, provide a 
concrete example of the way in which residents in different parts of the borough and 
from different communities are able to contribute to solutions to local problems. 
 
LOCAL AREA PARTNERSHIP ACTION PLANS 
 
Local Area Partnership (LAP) action plans have been developed for each LAP area of 
the borough. The plans provide some clear pledges for improvement, which service 
providers and local people are working on together to improve the quality of life in each 
LAP area. Each LAP Action Plan identifies three key priorities – four in the case of the 
larger LAP 1 – for the relevant LAP area. These are linked to Community Plan priorities, 
along with some of the actions that will be taken to deliver those priorities and some of 
the outcomes that people in the area should expect. Full details of the LAP Action Plans 
can be found on the Partnership’s website: www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/partnership. 
 
The table on the following page summarises the priorities for each LAP area. 
 
 
 

Page 184



 
58

 

LA
P 

A
re

a 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

20
05

/0
6,

 to
: 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
20

06
/0

7:
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

e 
LA

P 
1 

B
et

hn
al

 G
re

en
 

N
or

th
; 

M
ile

 E
nd

/G
lo

be
 

To
w

n;
 

W
ea

ve
rs

 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 n
ew

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f 

lo
ca

l d
el

iv
er

y 
 2.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 3 
M

ak
e 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r l

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 4.
 E

ns
ur

e 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
re

 c
on

su
lte

d 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

ed
 

w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t d
ec

is
io

ns
 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 fu

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 c

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 n
ew

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f 

lo
ca

l d
el

iv
er

y 
 2.

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

be
tte

r t
ar

ge
tin

g 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
  

 3.
 M

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

cr
im

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t  

 4.
 P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 L
A

P
 1

 a
s 

a 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r 

cr
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

sh
ar

in
g 

pr
os

pe
rit

y 
 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Li

vi
ng

 W
el

l 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 

Le
is

ur
e 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
 

LA
P 

2 
B

et
hn

al
 G

re
en

 
S

ou
th

; 
S

pi
ta

lfi
el

ds
 / 

B
an

gl
at

ow
n 

 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

LA
P

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 2.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

 3.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

1.
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
 2.

E
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

oc
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

 3.
 H

ea
lth

ie
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 –

 y
ou

ng
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
Li

vi
ng

 S
af

el
y 

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 

Le
is

ur
e 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

LA
P 

3 
S

t D
un

st
an

’s
 / 

S
te

pn
ey

 
G

re
en

; W
hi

te
ch

ap
el

 
 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 
 2.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, a
nd

 c
le

an
er

, 
sa

fe
r s

tre
et

s 
an

d 
es

ta
te

s 
 3.

 In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 

1.
 H

ea
lth

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 h

ea
lth

ie
r l

iv
in

g 
 2.

 Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
- p

at
hw

ay
s 

to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 3.
 Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t –

 
cl

ea
ne

r, 
sa

fe
r  

 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l  

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
Li

vi
ng

 S
af

el
y 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 
Le

is
ur

e 
  

Page 185



 
59

 

LA
P 

A
re

a 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

20
05

/0
6,

 to
: 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
20

06
/0

7:
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

e 
LA

P 
4 

S
t. 

K
at

ha
rin

e’
s/

 
W

ap
pi

ng
; S

ha
dw

el
l 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
he

al
th

ie
r l

iv
in

g,
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 fo
r w

om
en

 a
nd

 g
irl

s 
 2.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

yo
ut

h 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

 3.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

oc
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
st

re
et

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

1.
 H

ea
lth

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 h

ea
lth

ie
r l

iv
in

g 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 fo
r w

om
en

 
 2.

 C
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

 a
n 

em
ph

as
is

 
on

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

to
 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 3.
 Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t –

 
cl

ea
ne

r, 
sa

fe
r  

 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

re
at

in
g 

an
d 

S
ha

rin
g 

P
ro

sp
er

ity
 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 

LA
P 

5 
B

ow
 E

as
t; 

B
ow

 W
es

t 
 

1.
 M

ak
e 

th
e 

R
om

an
 R

oa
d 

ar
ea

 a
 s

af
er

 
an

d 
m

or
e 

in
vi

tin
g 

pl
ac

e,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 a
t 

ni
gh

t 
 2.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 
 3.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 in
 V

ic
to

ria
 P

ar
k 

1.
 B

et
te

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 

 2.
 B

et
te

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 

 3.
 R

ed
uc

in
g 

cr
im

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 
Le

is
ur

e 
E

xc
el

le
nt

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
 

LA
P 

6 
B

ro
m

le
y 

by
 B

ow
; 

M
ile

 E
nd

 E
as

t 
 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

 2.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 3.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 

1.
 Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
to

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

ity
 

 2.
 Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 (w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 e

m
ph

as
is

 to
 

pr
im

ar
y 

ca
re

) 
 3.

 R
ed

uc
in

g 
cr

im
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
Li

vi
ng

 W
el

l 
Li

vi
ng

 S
af

el
y 

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 

Le
is

ur
e 

  

Page 186



 
60

 

LA
P 

A
re

a 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

20
05

/0
6,

 to
: 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
20

06
/0

7:
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

e 
LA

P 
7 

E
as

t I
nd

ia
 a

nd
 

La
ns

bu
ry

; 
Li

m
eh

ou
se

 
 

1.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

lif
el

on
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 w
ith

 a
n 

em
ph

as
is

 
on

 y
ou

th
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 2.
 In

cr
ea

se
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

m
on

gs
t 

di
ffe

re
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

 3.
 P

ro
m

ot
e 

he
al

th
y 

liv
in

g 
fo

r a
ll 

1.
 E

du
ca

tio
n,

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 fa
m

ily
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
 2.

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

y 
liv

in
g 

fo
r a

ll 
 3.

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 o

f y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 
Le

is
ur

e 
Li

vi
ng

 W
el

l 
C

re
at

in
g 

an
d 

S
ha

rin
g 

P
ro

sp
er

ity
 

 

LA
P 

8 
B

la
ck

w
al

l /
 C

ub
itt

 
To

w
n;

 
M

ill
w

al
l 

 

1 
R

ai
se

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 h
ea

lth
y 

liv
in

g 
fo

r a
ll 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

dv
ic

e,
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 c

an
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
 2.

 M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ou
r e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 re
si

st
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 3.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
lif

el
on

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

fu
ll 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 to

 c
om

ba
t 

un
de

ra
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 

1.
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
y 

liv
in

g 
 

 2.
 Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
to

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
in

to
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 3.
 L

iv
ea

bi
lit

y 
– 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
an

t t
o 

liv
e 

 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 

Le
is

ur
e 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

  

Page 187



 61

Some achievements in 2005-06 
Probably the single, most important achievement of the LAP action plans was the 
accelerated rollout of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) to every single ward in 
the borough. Achieved through partnership working between local people in the LAPs 
and partners in the Living Safely CPAG – particularly the police and the Council – the 
SNTs have contributed to a reduction in crime of over 7%. Local people have been 
instrumental in setting the SNTs’ community policing priorities to ensure that the issues 
they are concerned and care about are addressed.  
 
Another significant success has been the partnership work between the LAPs and the 
Living Well CPAG – mainly through the Primary Care Trust (PCT) – to tackle health 
issues. The mobile dental service has been well received by patients across the 
borough, delivering 790 patient check ups, over 170 treatment sessions and 300 
referrals to NHS dentists. The first year of our programme to extend the hours which 
GPs' surgeries are open, to help make their services more accessible to local people, 
has also been a success. Eighteen GP practices - with at least one in every LAP – 
extended their opening times, well ahead of our original target of ten. Two surgeries 
opened before 8am whilst others stayed open after 6.30pm; some opened Saturday 
mornings, whilst one stayed open until 4.30pm on Saturday afternoons. We anticipate 
that 25 practices across the borough will be participating in the scheme by March 2007. 
 
The LAP Action Plans have led to the provision of Parent Information Points in 40 
schools in the borough, through which parents can access a whole range of different 
information. The Claim the Max sessions have been particularly successful in increasing 
the understanding of parents on how best to access benefits advice and personal 
financial management.  
 
Priorities for 2006-2008 
LAPs have identified  particular needs to be addressed and outcomes to be achieved for 
their areas which form their priorities over the next two years. More details of these – 
and what we will be doing about them – can be found in the Action Plans for individual 
LAPs on the Partnership website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/partnership. All these 
activities are intended to contribute to the achievement of Community Plan, Local Area 
Agreement and floor targets. 
 
Common priorities for action in 2006-07 and 2007-08 
Some of the specific priorities, common to all LAPs, which local people have said they 
wish to see addressed are: 
 
• health and healthier living  
• young people, in particular, improving their employment prospects 
• the quality of the environment. 
 
In response to this, by March 2007, all LAP areas will have: 
• extended GP opening hours at one or more local surgeries 
• a New Start Plus programme, helping more young people enter education, 

employment or training 
• at least one green space improved in their area. 
 

Page 188



 62

All of these actions are intended to improve the quality of life in your area, and to ensure 
that Tower Hamlets as a whole is a thriving and cohesive community of communities in 
which people enjoy living and working.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 189



 63

LAP Area Contacts List  
 

LAP Area Councillors Partnership Support 
Officer 

LAP 1 
Bethnal Green 
North; Mile End / 
Globe Town; 
Weavers 

Mohammed Abdus Salique (Bethnal Green North)  
Azizur Rahman Khan (Bethnal Green North) 
Stephanie Eaton (Bethnal Green North) 
Rofique Uddin Ahmed (Mile End / Globe Town) 
Clair Hawkins (Mile End / Globe Town) 
Bill Turner (Mile End / Globe Town) 
Louise Alexander (Weavers) 
Abdul Matin (Weavers) 
Tim O’Flaherty (Weavers) 

Masoom Chowdhury  
020 7364 4515 
masoom.chowdury@t
owerhamlets.gov.uk 

LAP 2 
Bethnal Green 
South; Spitalfields 
/ Banglatown 

Carli Harper-Penman (Bethnal Green South) 
Sirajul Islam (Bethnal Green South)  
Salim Ullah (Bethnal Green South) 
Helal Uddin Abbas (Spitalfields / Banglatown) 
Lutfur Rahman (Spitalfields / Banglatown) 
Fozol Miah (Spitalfields / Banglatown) 

Masoom Chowdhury  
020 7364 4515 
masoom.chowdury@t
owerhamlets.gov.uk 

LAP 3 
St Dunstan’s / 
Stepney Green ; 
Whitechapel 
 

Oliur Rahman (St Dunstan’s / Stepney Green) 
Alibor Choudhury (St Dunstan’s / Stepney Green) 
Abdal Ullah (St Dunstan’s / Stepney Green) 
Shahed Ali (Whitechapel) 
Waiseul Islam (Whitechapel) 
Abdul Asad (Whitechapel ) 

Abdirahman Adan 
020 7364 4133 
abdirahman.adan@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 
 

LAP 4 
St. Katharines 
/Wapping; 
Shadwell 

Shafiqul Haque (St. Katharine’s /Wapping) 
Denise Jones (St. Katharine’s /Wapping) 
Emma Louise Jones (St. Katharine’s /Wapping) 
Shamim Ahmed Chowdhury (Shadwell) 
Abjol Miah (Shadwell) 
Mohammed Mamun Rashid (Shadwell) 

Abdirahman Adan 
020 7364 4133 
abdirahman.adan@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

LAP 5 
Bow East; Bow 
West 

Marc Francis (Bow East) 
Alexander Heslop (Bow East) 
Ahmed Adam Omer (Bow East) 
Anwara Ali (Bow West) 
Ann Jackson (Bow West) 
Joshua Peck (Bow West)  

Rachel Salmon 
020 7364 4585 
rachel.salmon@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

LAP 6 
Bromley by Bow ; 
Mile End East 

Abdul Aziz Sardar (Bromley by Bow) 
Rania Khan (Bromley by Bow) 
Mohammed Abdul Munim (Bromley by Bow) 
Rupert Bawden (Mile End East) 
Ahmed Hussain (Mile End East) 
Motin Uz-Zaman (Mile End East) 

Rachel Salmon 
020 7364 4585 
rachel.salmon@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

LAP 7 
East India and 
Lansbury ; 
Limehouse 

Ohid Ahmed (East India / Lansbury) 
Shiria Khatun (East India / Lansbury) 
Rajib Ahmed (East India / Lansbury) 
Mohammed Shahid Ali (Limehouse) 
Lutfa Begum (Limehouse) 
Dulal Uddin (Limehouse) 

Maryam Parveen 
020 7364 5252 
maryam.parveen@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

Page 190



 64

LAP 8 
Blackwall / Cubitt 
Town ; Millwall 

Timothy Archer (Blackwall / Cubitt Town) 
Philip Briscoe (Blackwall / Cubitt Town) 
Peter Golds (Blackwall / Cubitt Town) 
Rupert Eckhardt (Millwall) 
Shirley Houghton (Millwall) 
Simon Rouse (Millwall) 

Maryam Parveen 
020 7364 5252 
maryam.parveen@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
Local Management Team Contacts List 
 
LAP 
Area Area Director  Neighbourhood Manager Development Support 

Officer  

1 Saheed Ullah 
020 7364 3170 

Louise Vallace – BG West 
Vacancy – BG East N/A 

2 Saheed Ullah Guy Stevenson  N/A 

3 Keith Willliams 
020 7364 4329 N/A Joyce Archbold 

Abdul Habib Hoque 

4 Keith Williams N/A Abdul Habib Hoque 
Joyce Archbold 

5 Shazia Hussain 
020 7364 4212 N/A N/A 

6 Shazia Hussain Suzanne Wolfe 
Babu Bhattacherjee N/A 

7 William Roberts 
020 7364 4375 

Tracey Fletcher 
Keren Miller N/A 

8 Willliam Roberts N/A N/A 

 
 
Tower Hamlets Partnership Management Group – list of members 2006 
 

Constituent 
Organisation / 

Group 
Name Position 

Resident Abdal Ullah Resident 

Resident Andrew Mahoney Resident 

Resident Crissy Townsend Resident 

Page 191



 65

Resident Arif Miah Resident 

Council Member Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Lead Member, Regeneration & 

Community Partnerships, Tower 
Hamlets Council 

Council Member Councillor Denise Jones Leader, Tower Hamlets Council 

Minority Political 
Group John Griffiths Member of Minority Political Group 

Voluntary & 
Community 

Groups 
Tony Uwadiale Member of Tower Hamlets Community 

Empowerment Network 

Voluntary & 
Community 

Groups 
Sheikh Aliur Rahman Member of Tower Hamlets Community 

Empowerment Network 

Business 
(large) Chris Gallop 

Regional Commercial Officer, EMEA 
Global Sourcing / Corporate Real Estate 

& Services  
Business 
(small and 
medium) 

Aziz Choudhury Chair, Spitalfields Small Business 
Association 

Faith 
Communities Hira Islam Secretary General, Council of Mosques 

Faith 
Communities Martin Webb Borough Dean's Network 

Young People Hannah Ibrahim  Youth Participation Development Group 

Young People Mourash Ali Youth Participation Development Group 

Housing Forum Adrian Greenwood Chair, Tower Hamlets Housing Forum 

Council Officer Christine Gilbert 
 Chief Executive, Tower Hamlets Council 

Police  Mark Simmons Borough Commander, Metropolitan 
Police 

Primary Care 
Trust Alwen Williams Chief Executive, Tower Hamlets Primary 

Care Trust 

Chair - CPAG 
Living Safely 

Mark Simmons/ 
Christine Gilbert 

Borough Commander/ 
Chief Executive 

Chair- CPAG 
Creating & 

Sharing 
Prosperity 

Liam Kane 
Chief Executive 

East London Business Alliance 
 

Page 192



 66

Chair - CPAG 
Learning 

Achievement & 
Leisure 

Mike Tyler Director, Tower Hamlets Education 
Business Partnership 

Chair - CPAG 
Living Well Stephen O’Brien Chair, Tower Hamlets Primary Care 

Trust 

GOL (observer) Ana Cavilla Government Office for London 

 

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

APPENDIX 2 
 
NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUND (NRF): OUTTURNS FOR 2004-06 AND 
PRIORITIES, PROCESSES AND ACCOUNTABILITIES FOR 2006-08 
 
Summary 
 
• Section 1 of this paper provides a summary of the Neighbourhood Renewal 

Fund (NRF) out-turns for 2004/5 and 2005/6 (covering the two-year Treasury 
Spending Review allocation for NRF) 

 
• Section 2 sets out the process and priorities for the allocation of the NRF for 

the two-year period 2006-08. It summarises a framework that will enable the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership to begin delivery of its 2006-08 programme for 
neighbourhood renewal from June 2006, and that will ensure that the 
arrangements for commissioning using the NRF, and for its monitoring and 
reporting, are appropriate and sound. 

 
1. NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUND (NRF) 2004 – 2006: SUMMARY 
 
Framework for allocation 2004 – 06 

 
The total NRF available for the period was: 

Year £’000 
2004/5 13,640 
2005/6 18,180 
Total 31,820 

 
The framework agreed by the Partnership for it was as follows: 

  2004/5 
£’000 

2005/6 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Focus 1 Development of centrally co-ordinated 
local management to deliver 
improvements through Local Area Action 
Plans 

4,500
inc.

500 per 
LAP

4,500 
inc. 

500 per 
LAP 

9,000

Focus 2 Co-ordinated cross-borough work 
focusing on progress towards targets 
(including hotspots) 

7,775 11,860 19,635

Focus 3 Capacity building and development 
support across the Partnership 
(Partnership Support Team, 
communications, engagement and 
consultation, training, monitoring and 
evaluation, programme management of 
NRF initiatives) 

1,365 1,820 3,185

Total 13,640 18,180 31,820

Page 195



 2

In addition, in order to reduce the risk of slippage identified within Year 1, and to 
ensure maximum spend overall, a 15% over-programming element was agreed, 
spread over the two years. 
 
Actual Spend for 2005 – 06 
 
Final details of the actual spend will be confirmed on closure of the accounts in 
June 2006, but present indications are that the final spend profile is as follows: 

  2004/5 
Actual 

2005/6 
Provisional 

Total 
Provisional

Focus 1 Development of centrally 
co-ordinated local 
management to deliver 
improvements through 
Local Area Action Plans 

£3,342,484 £4,884,536 £8,227,020

Focus 2 Co-ordinated cross-
borough work focusing on 
progress towards targets 
(including hotspots) 

£9,733,864 £11,615,018 £21,348,882

Focus 3 Capacity building and 
development support 
across the Partnership 

£705,789 £1,377,904 £2,083,693

Total £13,782,537 £17,877,458 £31,659,595
 
For Focus 2, CPAGs were asked to commission activities to deliver agreed 
Community Plan and Neighbourhood Renewal outcomes. All proposals arising 
through this process were then subject to a rigorous appraisal process, including 
independent, external assessment and consideration by an Appraisal Panel.  
 
The breakdown of expenditure and activity area for Focus 2 was as follows: 
 

 2004/5 
Actual 

2005/6 
Provisional 

Total 
Provisional 

Living Safely 
 

£2,122,462 £3,110,595 £5,233,057

Living Well 
 

£3,789,604 £2,317,584
£6,107,188

Creating and Sharing 
Prosperity 

£1,308,239 £3,109,341
£4,417,580

Learning Achievement 
and Leisure 

£2,513,559 £3,077,498
£5,591,057

Total £9,733,864 £11,615,018 £21,348,882
 
 
 
 

Page 196



 3

Some headline activities 
Living Safely 
• Roll out of Safer Neighbourhoods Teams 
• Development of in-borough CCTV control room 
• Mobile police contact unit 
• Challenging ASB programme 
 
Living Well 
• Advocacy services for A&E 
• PhysioDirect 
• GP refurbishment 
• Chronic disease management 
• Expert patients 
• Mobile breast screening 
• Community-based spirometry 
• New Residents Project 
• Single Assessment process for older people 
• Enhanced homecare 
• Smoking cessation 
• School health programme 
• Healthwatch 
• Decent neighbourhoods programme 
 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
 
• Access to Job Entry 
• Targeting Recurrent Unemployment 
• Progression Routes from Community-based Provision 
• Social enterprise programme 
 
Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
• Cultural and leisure programme for young people 
• Out of school learning programme 
• Extended youth services 
• Building and refurbishments at Weavers; Davenant; Good Shepherd; St. 

Hilda’s; Attlee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 197



 4

2. ALLOCATION OF NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUND (NRF) 2006 – 
2008 

 
Framework for allocation 
 
The Partnership agreed that the broad framework for the allocation of NRF 
should remain the same as in previous years, adjusted, however, to take into 
account the priorities agreed through the borough’s Local Area Agreement (LAA). 
 
One of the freedoms allowed under the terms of the Local Area Agreement is the 
ability to ‘pool’, into a single budget, the NRF and the Neighbourhood Element of 
the Safer Stronger Communities Fund. Since the intentions underlying each of 
these funding streams are consistent with our approach to neighbourhood 
renewal, it is sensible to do so. This means that the total amount to be allocated 
through the allocation framework is as follows: 
 
Year NRF (£m) Neigh 

Element  (£m)
Total (£m) 

2006/7 16.36 1.032 17.392 
2007/8 14.54 0.825 15.365 
Total 30.90 1.857 32.757 
 
The broad framework agreed for NRF 2006-2008 is therefore as follows: 
 

  2006/7 
(£m) 

2007/8 
(£m) 

Total 
(£m) 

Focus 1 The development of centrally 
co-ordinated local management 
to deliver improvements through 
Local Area Action Plans 

4.5 4.5 9.0

Focus 2 Co-ordinated cross-borough 
work focusing on supporting 
achievement of LAA priority 
outcomes (particularly those 
mandatory for neighbourhood 
renewal areas)  

11.252 9.415 20.667

Focus 3 Capacity building and 
development support across the 
Partnership 

1.64 1.45 3.09

 Total 17.392 15.365 32.757
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 198



 5

Accountabilities and Programme Management 
 
A detailed framework setting out the accountabilities and programme 
management arrangements has been agreed through the Excellent Public 
Services CPAG. The full framework is available from Alastair King (x4981), but 
the key elements are summarised below. 
 
Essentially, the framework aims to ensure that there are clear lines of 
responsibility for all elements of the programme, and that the Council’s 
responsibilities as the Accountable Body for NRF are fully met. 
 
Commissioning proposals for use of NRF 
• All proposals for the use of NRF must be agreed at the development stage 

both by the relevant CPAG Chair and by the Chief Officer / Director of an 
agreed Sponsoring Agency (the sponsoring agency would be either one of 
the statutory public services or an umbrella voluntary sector organisation with 
recognised accountable body status). 

• Proposals will be prepared by an agreed delivery agency, in accordance with 
the agreed criteria for the use of NRF, and must be signed off by the CPAG 
Chair and Chief Officer of the sponsoring agency. 

• As in previous years, all proposals are subject to a rigorous appraisal process, 
including independent, external assessment and consideration by an 
Appraisal Panel overseen by the Partnership Management Group. 

• Each agreed proposal will be subject to a SLA 
 
Programme Management 
• Day to day responsibility for the management and coordination of the 

programme, and for the issuing and monitoring of SLAs, will be carried out by 
a NRF Operations Unit – a Programme Manager with additional support as 
necessary – responsible to the Council’s lead officer for accountable body 
functions. 

• Each CPAG has identified a Programme Support Manager to ensure that its 
programme in effectively managed and progress reported to the CPAG, the 
sponsoring agency and the NRF Operations Unit. 

• The Programme Manager and Programme Support Managers will report to a 
NRF Programme Board, with responsibility for ensuring that the programme is 
effectively managed and monitored. 

 
Monitoring 
• Quarterly monitoring and reports of progress against financial and activity 

milestone and against targets will be collected and collated through he NRF 
Operations Unit 

 
Reporting Arrangements 
The NRF Programme Board will ensure that the reporting arrangements set out 
in the following table are adhered to. 

Page 199



 6

 
Level of 
impact 

Reporting process Responsibility Timescales 

Progress and 
impact of 
individual 
initiatives to 
support NRS 
 

• Individual initiative monitoring reports to: 
- Sponsoring Agency 
- NRF Operations Unit 

 
 
• Collated progress reports and risk 

assessments on individual initiatives 
prepared by NRF Operations Unit to: 
- NRF Programme Board 
- Chief Officers 
- CPAG chairs 
- Chair of Partnership 

 
• Completed summary reports to: 

- PMG 
 
• Overall summary report to: 

-     wider Partnership 
 

• Lead Officer for 
Delivery Agency  

• CPAG Programme 
Support Managers 

 
• NRF Programme 

Board   
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Head of Partnership 

Support Team 
 
• Head of Partnership 

Support Team 
 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 

Collective 
impact of 
initiatives on 
LAA and floor 
targets 
 

Evaluation report, including summary of 
monitoring outcomes and impact on LAA and 
floor targets, prepared by NRF Operations Unit, 
to: 

- PMG 
- Cabinet   
- Wider Partnership 

• Chairs of CPAGs 
report to PMG 

 
• NRF Programme 

Board report to 
Cabinet 

 
• Head of Partnership 

Support Team 
reports to wider 
Partnership 

6 months to end Sept 
(report October / 
November) 
 
Annual (report April / 
May)  
 
 
 
 

Overall 
impact of 
NRS 
initiatives 
 

• Evaluation reports prepared (as agreed) by 
external agency working with NRF 
Operations Unit, to: 
- NRF  Programme Board 
- PMG Evaluation Group 
- Relevant CPAG 
- Wider Partnership 

 
• Final Evaluation Reports (as agreed) to: 

wider Partnership 
 
 
• Case studies 

Lead officer for NRF 
Operations Unit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead officer for NRF 
Operations Unit 
 
 
Head of Partnership 
Support Team 

To be specified 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To be specified 
 
 
 
To be specified 

 
 

Page 200



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\5\AI00005528\StratPlanCab0.doc 
1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

07 JUNE 2006 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 07 June 2006. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
 
Councillor Denise Jones (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Helal Abbas  (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Anwara Ali  (Lead Member, Equalities, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Older People and Health) 
Councillor Rupert Bawden (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Lead Member, Culture) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Louise Alexander  (Scrutiny Lead Member, Learning Achievement & 

Leisure) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Scrutiny Lead Member, Learning, Achievement and 

Leisure) 
Councillor Shamim A. Chowdhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Timothy O'Flaherty 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid 
Councillor Simon Rouse  (Scrutiny Lead Member, Excellent Public Services) 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman  (Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
 
 
*1. The Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan (2006/7) 

and Best Value Performance Plan (CAB 009/067)  
 

We considered a report (cover report attached as Appendix A to this council report) 
which: - 

Agenda Item 8.3

Page 201



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\5\AI00005528\StratPlanCab0.doc 
2 

• Provided a framework for a new strategic plan for the Council for the period 2006-
11, and an Implementation Plan for Year 1 (2006 – 2007), and also included the 
Best Value Performance Plan. 

 
• Constituted a draft of the final Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation 

Plan (2006/7) and Best Value Performance Plan for our consideration. 
 

• Informed us that the advice / comments of this Authority’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, in relation to this Budget and Policy Framework matter, would be 
circulated for our consideration at our meeting, to be held on 7th June 2006. 

 
• Informed us that in accordance with this Authority’s Budget and Policy Framework 

set out within its constitution, as amended, distribution of the report 20 days prior 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting, held on 6th June 2006, has 
provided an additional opportunity for Members of this Authority to provide written 
comments to the originating officer of the report before us. 

 
• The final, integrated document (Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 

Implementation Plan (2006/7) and Best Value Performance Plan) would, subject 
to our agreement, be submitted to Full Council, for consideration, on 21st June 
2006. 

 
We considered the advice and comments of our Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in 
respect of the report before us, detailed in a paper presented to us for our 
consideration, by our Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Uz 
Zaman. 
 
Our Chief Executive, Ms Gilbert, in introducing the report before us Informed us that 
the proposed Strategic Plan spanned a 5 year period, in contrast to the 4 year span of 
the previous Plan, and the contents were fundamental to the work of this Authority. 
 
Our Chief Executive, Ms Gilbert, at the request of our Chair, responded to the matters 
raised by our Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on 6th June 2006 as follows: - 
 
Paragraph 1 
The finalised version of the Strategic Plan 2006-2011 would indicate more clearly how 
past challenges in delivering the outcomes within the Strategic Plan 2002-2006 had 
informed and influenced actions, targets and milestones proposed for the new 
Strategic Plan. 
 
Paragraph 2 
The report and appendices before us, comprising the Strategic Plan and BVPP, did set 
out the priority outcomes, for the Authority, in the five year period and a related basket 
of indicators (the Tower Hamlets Index) which were monitored very closely.  However 
the detail regarding this might not be readily apparent, and greater clarity would be 
given to this in the finalised document. 

Page 202



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\5\AI00005528\StratPlanCab0.doc 
3 

Paragraph 3 
Officers of this Authority had intended rates of progress should be appropriately 
profiled across the full five years of the Strategic Plan and BVPP. Our Chief Executive 
and our other Corporate Directors would re-examine the profiling of the targets to 
ensure an appropriate rate of progress. 
 
Paragraph 4 
An appendix to the Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan Annual Report set out detailed 
explanations for instances where the Authority’s performance was 10% or more below 
the Best Value Performance Indicator target. 
 
Our Chief Executive, Ms Gilbert, concluded by indicating that Officers of this Authority 
would endeavour to accommodate, if appropriate, the advice and comments of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee as the Strategic Plan progressed towards 
publication. 
 
 
We endorsed the Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan 
(2006/7) and Best Value Performance Plan and agreed that full Council be 
recommended to approve these Plans, attached at Appendix 1 and 2 to the report 
before us, subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plan is 
accurate, coherent and reflects the views of Members. 

 
We agreed that our Chief Executive should be authorised to make appropriate and 
necessary amendments to the Strategic Plan 2006-2011 Year 1 and Best Value 
Performance Plan (2006/2007) in advance of final publication and requested that these 
amendments include appropriate accommodation of the advice and comments of our 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee detailed in the paper presented to us for our 
consideration, by our Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. Approve the Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan 

(2006/7) and Best Value Performance Plan, attached at Appendix 1 and 2 to the 
report (CAB 009/067) (Attached at Appendix A to this Council report), 
subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plan is 
accurate, coherent and reflects the views of Members. 

 
2. Authorise the Chief Executive to make appropriate and necessary amendments 

to the Strategic Plan 2006-2011 Year 1 and Best Value Performance Plan 
(2006/2007) in advance of final publication; and that these amendments include 
appropriate accommodation of the advice and comments of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee circulated at the meeting of the Cabinet held on 7th June 
2006. 

 
 
 

Councillor Denise Jones 
Chair of the Cabinet 

Page 203



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\5\AI00005528\StratPlanCab0.doc 
4 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 07/06/06  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 07/06/06. 

Page 204



 
Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97) 

List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 

Brief description of  “background 
papers” 

Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 

• The Community Plan to 2010: Year 5 
• The Council's Strategic Plan for 2002 

– 2006: Year 4 

Alastair King       020 7364 4981 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG  

 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
7th June 2006 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
Chief Executive  
 
Originating officer(s)  
Alastair King, Head of Policy and 
Partnership x 4981  
Louise Russell, Head of Partnership 
Performance and Information 

Title:  
The Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: 
Year 1 Implementation Plan (2006/7) & Best Value 
Performance Plan 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
  

 
1.1 This report provides a framework for a new strategic plan for the Council for the 

period 2006-11, and an Implementation Plan for Year 1 (2006 – 2007). It also includes 
the Best Value Performance Plan. 
 
The report constitutes a draft of the final plan to be presented to Cabinet on 7th June. 
The advice / comments of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at the 
Cabinet meeting for Members’ consideration. 
 
Under the revised Budget and Policy Framework, distribution of the report 20 days 
prior to the O&S meeting has provided an additional opportunity for Members to 
provide written comments to the originating officer. 
 
The final, integrated document will be brought to Full Council on 21st June. 

  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
  
2.1 That the Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan (2006/7) 

& Best Value Performance Plan be endorsed and that full Council be recommended 
to approve these Plans, attached at Appendix 1 and 2 to this report, subject to 
necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plan is accurate, coherent 
and reflects the views of Members. 

  

Page 205



 2

2.2 That the Chief Executive be authorised to make appropriate and necessary 
amendments to the Strategic Plan 2006-2011 Year 1 and BVPP (2006/2007) in 
advance of final publication. 

  
3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan is the Council’s core planning document, setting out the 

Council's vision for Tower Hamlets, and providing the strategic planning framework 
through which the Council aims to meet local priorities as agreed through the 
community planning process required under the Local Government Act 2000. The 
Strategic Plan provides an over-arching strategic plan linking the service plans of 
each Directorate of the corporate structure to broader corporate goals. It incorporates 
all elements of the Council’s response to the Corporate Performance Assessment. 

  
3.2 The Council’s first Strategic Plan covered the period from April 2002 – March 2006, 

and was updated annually to incorporate an implementation plan for each of the 
intervening years. The Strategic Plan proposed in this report constitutes a new plan 
for the period April 2006 – March 2011, with an implementation plan for Year 1, 
setting out key objectives and activities for the year April 2006 – March 2007, along 
with targets and progress milestones to support effective monitoring and evaluation. 

  
3.3 As in previous years, the Strategic Plan and Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) will 

be brought together into a single document by the end of June 2006 – once the 
information needed to meet the statutory requirements of the BVPP is available. This 
supports rationalisation of our planning processes and ensuring consistency. 

  
3.4 Some amendments to the detail of the Strategic Plan will be necessary as additional 

information becomes available before final publication, particularly with regard to 
outcome figures and new targets for the Performance Indicators. However, these will 
not materially affect the key activities set out in the plan. 
 
The Year 1 Implementation Plan and the Council’s Best Value Performance Plan 
(BVPP) will be integrated into a single revision of the Strategic Plan, incorporating an 
Annual Report on how we performed against the final year of the Strategic Plan 2002-
06. It is a statutory requirement for the BVPP to be published by 30 June 2006.  The 
BVPP is included at appendix 2. 

  
4. BUDGET & POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE & PROCESS 
  
4.1 The Authority’s Constitution, Part 4 - Rules of Procedure, Section 4.3 - Budget and 

Policy Framework Procedure Rules, as amended, sets out the process for the 
development of the Budget and Policy Framework, as defined by Article 4 of the 
Constitution. 

  
4.2 The Council's Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan (2006/7) & 

Best Value Performance Plan, as part of the Authority’s Policy Framework, is a matter 
which is reserved to full Council for decision under the provisions of Article 4 of the 
Authority’s Constitution, as amended, and as recommended by the Secretary of State.

  

Page 206



 3

4.3 Paragraph 2.1 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules  
• Require the Executive (Cabinet) to publicise a timetable for making proposals to 

full Council for the adoption of any plan that forms part of the Budget and Policy 
Framework and arrangements for consultation after publication of the initial 
proposals. 

• Require the notification of the Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee of any such 
proposals and the referral of these proposals to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

• Provide that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives 20 working days to 
respond to this consultation. 

  
4.4 Paragraph 2.1.4 of these procedure rules requires the Executive (the Cabinet) to take 

account of the views of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee before submitting 
recommendations to full Council as appropriate. 

  
4.5 Paragraph 2.1.5 makes provision for full Council to consider the proposals of the 

Cabinet and to subsequently adopt them, amend them, refer them back to Cabinet for 
further consideration or to substitute its own proposals in their place. 

  
4.6 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee gave consideration to the Council's Strategic 

Plan 2006 – 2011: Year 1 Implementation Plan (2006/7) & Best Value Performance 
Plan at its meeting on 6th June 2006.  The Committee will report to the Cabinet, to be 
held on 7th June 2006, in respect of its deliberations. The views of the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at the Cabinet meeting.  

  
4.7 The Executive (the Cabinet) is asked to take account of the views of the Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee before submitting recommendations to full Council as 
appropriate. 

  
5. REPORT  
  
5.1 
 

Appendix 1 comprises the outline framework for the Council’s Strategic Plan to 2011 
and an Implementation Plan for Year 1 (April 2006 – March 2007). 

  
5.2 The Implementation Plan is an action plan for the period April 2006 – March 2007, 

with most activities and targets reflecting that timescale. 
  
5.3 The Plan also highlights the key performance indicators for our priorities, current 

performance levels, comparisons with London and national benchmarks and targets 
for improvement. These will be updated as information becomes available after the 
end of March 2006, prior to publication by the statutory deadline of 30th June. 

  
 These indicators and targets represent a mixture of national and local targets, most of 

which are also identified in the Council’s Best Value Performance Plan and the 
borough’s Local Area Agreement (LAA) 2006 – 09 and Local Public Service 
Agreement (Local PSA) 2005 – 08. 

  
5.4 The Council's Strategic Plan is Member-led, reflects community needs, involves and 

informs staff, and is set within the Council’s contribution to partnerships and other joint 

Page 207



 4

initiatives. In addition to the Community Plan, many other statutory and local plans will 
both inform and be informed by the Strategic Plan. These include, for example, the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan, the 
Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy, the Housing Investment Programme Strategy, 
the Improving Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Children and Young People’s Plan, 
the emerging Local Development Framework and the Regeneration Strategy, and 
many others. 

  
5.5 The Council will use the Strategic Plan as a vehicle for monitoring and reviewing 

Council-wide performance and ensure that future decisions are informed by results. 
Corporate Planning and review processes will identify competing demands that may 
arise between different service priorities in order to ensure that corporate aims and 
objectives can be implemented. 

  
5.6 Appendix 2 comprises an evaluative Annual Report on progress against the Strategic 

Plan, and incorporates the statutorily required Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP). 
It will form an Annex to the coming year’s Strategic Plan. 
 
The Best Value Performance Plan sets out our 2005/06 performance against all 
BVPIs, LPSA targets and other local indicators. As required by statute, it lists targets 
for all indicators for 2006/07, 2007/08 and 2008/09.  In addition, it provides 
explanatory commentary of reasons for us failing or exceeding targets by 10% or 
more. It also includes summary information on financial performance in 2005/6. 

  
6. CONSULTATION 
  
6.1 Consultation on the Strategic Plan has been extensive and on-going during the year, 

undertaken through a range of mechanisms. These have included: 
• engagement of all key stakeholders through the Tower Hamlets Partnership in 

developing priorities for the Community Plan and Local Area Agreement 
• a wide-ranging consultation on budget priorities, foci for improvement and Council 

Tax 
• the Annual Residents Survey 
• LAP-based focus groups 
• Various consultations through the Tower Hamlets Residents Panel 
• service consultations and user networks through individual Directorates 
 
The outcomes of these processes are reflected in the Strategic Plan. 

  
7. COMMENTS OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
  
7.1 This report seeks approval to the Strategic Plan and its implementation for the year 

ahead.  The plan sets out the framework for allocating and directing financial 
resources both for the year ahead and the medium term, so that resources are 
aligned with priorities. 

  
7.2 This year’s plan was developed in tandem with the 2006/07 revenue budgets and 

capital programme, and medium-term financial projections. The strategic planning 
goals are taken into account in setting these financial plans and the priorities outlined 

Page 208



 5

in this document are reflected within them. 
  
7.3 The plan also includes a number of activities to maintain and further improve the 

quality of the authority's financial management and use of resources. Without sound 
financial management the achievement of the authority's strategic priorities would be 
hampered.  

  
7.4 Provision exists within the Chief Executive’s Directorate Budget for the costs of 

publishing the document. 
  
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
  
8.1 The Council’s Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) which is appended to the 

Strategic Plan forms part of the Policy Framework and is required to be approved by 
full Council. 

  
8.2 Section 6 Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council to prepare a BVPP for 

each year in accordance with regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State.  A summary of the BVPP for 2006/07 must be published by 31 March 2006 and 
the full plan by 30 June 2006. 

  
8.3 The Strategic Plan is not required by statute to be approved by Council which has 

discretion in that behalf. 
  
9. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
9.1 Equalities considerations are central to the inclusive vision of the Council and its 

partners in the Tower Hamlets Partnership and their promotion and support are fully 
reflected in the Strategic Plan. In seeking to make Tower Hamlets a place for living 
safely and well, a place for creating and sharing prosperity, a place for learning, 
achievement and enjoyment and a place for excellent public services, accessible to 
all, the Strategic Plan aims to fulfil the Council's stated vision of improving the quality 
of life for all who live and work in Tower Hamlets. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment on the Plan completed in January 2005 confirmed 
the comprehensive focus on equalities issues in the strategic planning process, and 
its recommendations for monitoring of a broader range of equalities indicators are 
reflected in the proposed Plan.  

  
10 ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 The Strategic Plan is the Council’s key vehicle for delivering the inclusive vision of the 

Council and its partners and reflects the borough’s Community Plan and strategy for 
neighbourhood renewal, which is intended to make sure that minimum standards of 
life quality are achieved for all communities in the borough. 

  
11 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
  
11.1 While there are no specific implications, the strategic plan embodies objectives, 

Page 209



 6

activities and milestones that are consistent with the council's policies in this area. 
  
12 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
12.1 The Strategic Plan provides a clear, public statement of the Council’s strategic 

priorities, which fully reflect the views of the Tower Hamlets Partnership, including 
local residents. The Plan also sets out the key performance indicators, targets and 
milestones against which the Council’s performance can be assessed. 

  
12.2 Since the Strategic Plan is reflected in the service plans and resource allocation of all 

Directorates, financial and other services risks are carried by individual Directorates. 
These are reflected in the Council-wide and Directorate risk registers. 

  
Appendices: 
• Appendix 1: Council’s Strategic Plan 2006 – 2011: outline framework and 

implementation plan 
• Appendix 2: Best Value Performance Plan and Annual Report 
 

Page 210



To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 C

ou
nc

il 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 2
00

6-
20

11
 

 Ye
ar

 1
 2

00
6 

- 2
00

7 
 C

on
te

nt
s 

 
 S

ec
tio

n 
1 

 
 

 
 

O
ur

 V
is

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

 
 

 S
ec

tio
n 

2 
 

 
 

O
ur

 C
or

e 
V

al
ue

s 
 

 
 

 
 

3 
 

 
S

ec
tio

n 
3 

 
 

 
A

n 
A

ge
nd

a 
fo

r A
ct

io
n:

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
R

ol
e 

 
 

4 
 

 
 

S
ec

tio
n 

4 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
on

te
xt

 fo
r O

ur
 P

rio
rit

ie
s  

 
 

 
6 

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 

 
 

 
8 

 S
ec

tio
n 

6 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
K

ey
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

 
 

 
 

11
 

 
 

 
S

ec
tio

n 
7 

 
 

 
 

M
ea

su
rin

g 
ou

r P
ro

gr
es

s 
 

 
 

 
12

 
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

 
 

 
Y

ea
r 1

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
(2

00
6 

– 
20

07
) 

 
 

 
14

 
 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
  

 
 

 
 

15
 

 
Li

vi
ng

 W
el

l 
 

 
 

 
 

26
 

 
C

re
at

in
g 

an
d 

S
ha

rin
g 

P
ro

sp
er

ity
 

 
 

39
 

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
  

 
45

 
 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
 

55
 

 
 S

ec
tio

n 
9 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

 
 

78
 

 
 S

ec
tio

n 
10

 
 

 
 

U
se

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

81
 

 
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

 
 

 
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

88
 

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

 
 

 
Li

st
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
rs

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 

 
 

A
bb

re
vi

at
io

ns
  

 
 

  

Page 211



 
 

1 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Vi

si
on

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 fo
r e

ve
ry

on
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

s 
an

d 
w

or
ks

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
 W

ha
t t

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
 C

ou
nc

il 
th

at
 is

: 
• 

re
le

nt
le

ss
ly

 s
er

vi
ng

 a
ll 

its
 c

iti
ze

ns
 

• 
na

tio
na

lly
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
s 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
be

st
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

co
un

try
 

 O
ur

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

  
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
Th

em
e 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r 2
00

6 
– 

20
11

 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
1.

 
A

 c
le

an
er

, g
re

en
er

, s
af

er
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l 

2.
 

D
ec

en
t h

om
es

 in
 d

ec
en

t n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

3.
 

H
ea

lth
ie

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

  
4.

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
sh

ar
in

g 
pr

os
pe

rit
y 

5.
 

S
ec

ur
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

6.
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 
7.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t 
8.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 s

po
rti

ng
, l

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

9.
 

E
ffi

ci
en

t a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

10
. 

Lo
ca

lly
 fo

cu
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

m
po

w
er

in
g 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

11
. 

S
tro

ng
er

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
co

he
si

ve
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

12
. 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
qu

al
ity

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 

 O
ur

 C
or

e 
Va

lu
es

 
i. 

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
 re

su
lts

  
ii.

 
V

al
ui

ng
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
iii

. 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
iv

. 
E

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 o
th

er
s 

 

Page 212



 
 

2 

1.
 O

ur
 V

is
io

n 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 v

is
io

n 
is

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

. T
hi

s 
in

vo
lv

es
 h

el
pi

ng
 to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
th

riv
in

g,
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 w

hi
ch

 p
eo

pl
e 

fe
el

 a
t e

as
e 

w
ith

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

, h
av

e 
go

od
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

a 
hi

gh
er

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 li
vi

ng
 a

nd
 g

oo
d 

he
al

th
, a

nd
 e

nj
oy

 a
 s

af
e 

an
d 

an
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

 Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t s
et

s 
ou

t a
 s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 fo

r Y
ea

r 1
 o

f o
ur

 s
ec

on
d 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n,

 c
ov

er
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

20
06

 –
 2

01
1,

 th
ro

ug
h 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

te
nd

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 it
s 

vi
si

on
. I

t s
up

er
se

de
s 

th
e 

fir
st

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 ra

n 
fro

m
 2

00
2 

– 
20

06
, r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
th

e 
in

co
m

in
g 

of
 a

 n
ew

 p
ol

iti
ca

l 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

lo
ca

l e
le

ct
io

ns
. 

 Th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

ta
ke

s 
as

 it
s 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
he

 p
rio

rit
y 

th
em

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n.

 T
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 c
ov

er
s 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 –
 A

pr
il 

20
07

, Y
ea

r 1
.  

 
 Th

e 
vi

si
on

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

al
on

e:
 it

 n
ee

ds
 th

e 
ac

tiv
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 a
 s

ta
ke

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

a 
vi

si
on

 th
at

 is
 s

ha
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

Lo
ca

l S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 –

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

– 
w

hi
ch

 c
om

pr
is

es
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, b
us

in
es

se
s,

 fa
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r. 

In
 2

00
5/

6,
 th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

LA
A

) f
or

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

06
 –

 2
00

9.
 T

he
 fu

ll 
LA

A
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t w

w
w

.to
w

er
ha

m
le

ts
.g

ov
.u

k .
 T

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

LA
A

 w
er

e 
ar

riv
ed

 a
t t

hr
ou

gh
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, a
nd

 a
re

 fi
rm

ly
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
th

em
es

 (s
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
be

lo
w

). 
Th

es
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

fo
un

da
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t  
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pl

ay
ed

 a
 le

ad
in

g 
ro

le
 in

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 it

s 
sh

ar
ed

 v
is

io
n.

 It
 h

as
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 le

gi
tim

ac
y 

in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
th

is
 lo

ca
l l

ea
d,

 p
ar

tly
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 m
an

da
te

 g
iv

en
 b

y 
its

 d
em

oc
ra

tic
 b

as
e:

 u
lti

m
at

el
y,

 it
 is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 to
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ba

llo
t b

ox
. W

e 
us

e 
th

is
 d

em
oc

ra
tic

 m
an

da
te

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 o

ur
 v

is
io

n 
is

 a
n 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
on

e,
 w

hi
ch

 re
ac

he
s 

ou
t t

o 
al

l l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e,
 s

us
ta

in
s 

an
d 

ce
le

br
at

es
 d

iv
er

si
ty

, a
nd

 
w

hi
ch

 s
ee

ks
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 s

uc
ce

ss
 a

re
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 fr

om
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

             

Page 213



 
 

3 

2.
  O

ur
 c

or
e 

va
lu

es
 

 i. 
A

ch
ie

vi
ng

 re
su

lts
  

W
e 

ar
e 

pa
ss

io
na

te
 a

bo
ut

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

e 
be

st
 fo

r o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  
 W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
be

 th
e 

be
st

 in
 th

e 
co

un
try

 a
t w

ha
t w

e 
do

 a
nd

 k
ee

p 
ge

tti
ng

 b
et

te
r 

an
d 

be
tte

r, 
m

ov
in

g 
be

yo
nd

 e
xc

el
le

nc
e.

 W
e 

ac
tiv

el
y 

en
su

re
 w

e 
ac

hi
ev

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 in
 e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
w

e 
do

. 
 ii.

 
Va

lu
in

g 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 is

 a
t t

he
 h

ea
rt 

of
 w

ha
t w

e 
do

 a
nd

 h
ow

 w
e 

do
 it

.  
It 

is
 b

ui
lt 

in
to

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
, c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t, 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 o
ur

 
cu

st
om

er
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f s
ta

ff.
  

 W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 h

av
in

g 
a 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 th

at
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 
de

liv
er

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 iii
. 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

re
su

lts
, 

w
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

en
ga

ge
 p

os
iti

ve
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s,

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, 

ou
r 

st
af

f 
an

d 
ou

r 
pa

rtn
er

s.
 W

e 
ne

ed
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 iv

. 
En

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

s 
W

e 
ar

e 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
  W

e 
ta

ke
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r o

ur
 o

w
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 s
ha

re
 o

ur
 le

an
in

g 
w

ith
 o

th
er

s.
 

                     

Page 214



 
 

4 

3.
 A

n 
A

ge
nd

a 
fo

r A
ct

io
n:

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
R

ol
e 

 In
 s

ee
ki

ng
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

el
l a

w
ar

e 
th

at
 it

 c
an

 a
ch

ie
ve

 li
ttl

e 
by

 it
se

lf.
 T

he
 a

ge
nd

a 
m

us
t b

e 
on

e 
th

at
 is

 
sh

ar
ed

 a
nd

 a
 m

aj
or

 w
ay

 o
f d

oi
ng

 th
is

 is
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
le

ad
 ro

le
 to

 p
la

y 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 in
: 

• 
bu

ild
in

g 
lo

ca
l v

is
io

n 
an

d 
di

re
ct

io
n 

• 
en

ab
lin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

• 
se

cu
rin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

• 
en

su
rin

g 
eq

ui
ty

, a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

in
cl

us
io

n 
• 

m
an

ag
in

g 
co

nf
lic

t a
nd

 c
om

pe
tin

g 
de

m
an

ds
 

• 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
be

st
 u

se
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 

• 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 q

ua
lit

y.
 

 E
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ro

le
s 

is
 e

xp
lo

re
d 

in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
be

lo
w

. 
 O

ur
 ro

le
: b

ui
ld

in
g 

lo
ca

l v
is

io
n 

an
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 s

ta
tu

s 
as

 a
 d

em
oc

ra
tic

al
ly

 e
le

ct
ed

 b
od

y,
 w

ith
 c

le
ar

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r d

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y,
 p

la
ce

s 
it 

in
 a

 k
ey

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 le

ad
 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 lo

ca
l v

is
io

n 
an

d 
in

 jo
in

in
g 

up
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

t l
oc

al
 le

ve
l. 

Th
is

 v
is

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ge
nd

a 
w

hi
le

 a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

re
ta

in
in

g 
a 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

di
m

en
si

on
 re

la
te

d 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 in

te
re

st
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 th
is

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 ro

le
 w

ill
 h

in
ge

 o
n 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 to

 w
hi

ch
 it

 
lis

te
ns

 to
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 to

 w
hi

ch
 it

 ta
ke

s 
ac

tio
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

at
 v

is
io

n,
 b

ot
h 

by
 it

se
lf 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. T
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 a
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

vi
si

on
 a

dd
s 

va
lu

e 
to

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 is
 a

t t
he

 h
ea

rt 
of

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

. 
 O

ur
 ro

le
: e

na
bl

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
A

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l d

em
oc

ra
tic

al
ly

 e
le

ct
ed

 b
od

y,
 it

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ta

ke
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 in
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
se

 a
re

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 th
at

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

s 
co

he
re

nt
 a

nd
 fa

ir.
 A

 w
ho

le
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

an
d 

ne
tw

or
ks

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 in

vo
lv

e 
us

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

 th
es

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s.

 T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
in

 th
ei

r w
ar

ds
, t

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
os

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Te

na
nt

s 
C

om
pa

ct
 G

ro
up

 o
n 

ho
us

in
g 

is
su

es
. 

 O
ur

 ro
le

: s
ec

ur
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

In
 s

ee
ki

ng
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 s

tri
vi

ng
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. T

hi
s 

en
ta

ils
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
 a

t a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 tr

an
sl

at
in

g 
th

es
e 

in
to

 a
m

bi
tio

ns
 fo

r c
ha

ng
e.

 T
hi

s 
so

rt 
of

 v
is

io
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

ac
ce

le
ra

tin
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
si

m
pl

y 
st

ea
dy

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
n 

do
 th

is
 m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

flu
en

ci
ng

 a
nd

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
 T

he
se

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
m

us
t b

e 
ab

ou
t m

or
e 

th
an

 g
oo

d 
in

te
nt

io
ns

 –
 th

ey
 m

us
t i

nv
ol

ve
 a

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 b
et

te
r o

ut
co

m
es

 to
o.

 It
 a

im
s 

to
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y 
m

ak
in

g 
th

os
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 d
ire

ct
ly

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

am
on

gs
t t

he
 v

er
y 

be
st

 in
 th

e 
co

un
try

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

al
so

 h
as

 a
 c

en
tra

l r
ol

e 
to

 p
la

y 
in

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 in
 fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 ‘j
oi

ne
d-

up
’ s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ge
nc

ie
s.

 

Page 215



 
 

5 

 O
ur

 ro
le

: e
ns

ur
in

g 
eq

ui
ty

, a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

in
cl

us
io

n 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pl

ac
es

 g
re

at
 im

po
rta

nc
e 

on
 s

oc
ia

l c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
in

cl
us

io
n.

 T
he

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 a
dd

s 
im

m
ea

su
ra

bl
y 

to
 th

e 
ric

h 
an

d 
vi

go
ro

us
 

cu
ltu

ra
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 li
vi

ng
 in

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
. I

t a
ls

o 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 re

sp
on

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 to
 ta

ke
 a

 le
ad

 
in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

ll 
gr

ou
ps

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 th
riv

e 
al

on
gs

id
e 

on
e 

an
ot

he
r a

nd
 h

av
e 

eq
ua

l a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

co
m

m
itm

en
t t

o 
se

rv
in

g 
al

l t
he

 p
eo

pl
e 

of
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 m
ea

ns
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

its
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

ai
r s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r a
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

. T
he

se
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
is

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
, o

r m
ar

gi
na

lis
ed

, a
nd

 th
at

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 

su
pp

or
te

d.
 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 a

ll 
gr

ou
ps

 h
av

e 
eq

ua
l a

cc
es

s 
to

, c
an

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

, a
nd

 b
en

ef
it 

fro
m

, t
he

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
. 

 O
ur

 ro
le

: m
an

ag
in

g 
co

nf
lic

t a
nd

 c
om

pe
tin

g 
de

m
an

ds
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
ro

le
 in

 e
m

ph
as

is
in

g 
th

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

in
te

re
st

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 

ea
si

ng
 te

ns
io

ns
 a

nd
 re

so
lv

in
g 

co
nf

lic
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
ris

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

s,
 g

ro
up

s 
or

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 d

iff
er

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 It

 a
ls

o 
in

vo
lv

es
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f c

om
pe

tin
g 

de
m

an
ds

 fo
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 ta
ki

ng
 d

iff
ic

ul
t d

ec
is

io
ns

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 w

he
n 

co
ns

en
su

s 
is

 n
ot

 e
as

ily
 re

ac
he

d.
 

 O
ur

 ro
le

: m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 
A

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 c

ha
nn

el
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 s
tre

am
s 

in
to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

an
 im

po
rta

nt
 ro

le
 in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y,

 a
nd

 th
at

 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

, f
ro

m
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ta
ge

 th
ro

ug
h 

to
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
W

hi
le

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
ov

id
es

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
di

re
ct

ly
, i

t a
ls

o 
co

m
m

is
si

on
s 

m
an

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, o

fte
n 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ca
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
cr

uc
ia

l r
ol

e 
to

 p
la

y 
in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

ha
ve

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 a

nd
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f b
es

t v
al

ue
. 

 O
ur

 ro
le

: a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

fo
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 q

ua
lit

y 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
r t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 It

 m
us

t t
he

re
fo

re
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ar
e 

se
t a

nd
 th

at
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
tro

l s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

nd
 in

di
re

ct
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

 p
ar

ts
 o

f i
ts

 s
er

vi
ce

. T
hi

s 
is

 d
on

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

in
 a

ct
iv

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s.

 
         

Page 216



 
 

6 

4.
 T

he
 C

on
te

xt
 fo

r o
ur

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
 To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
 a

 d
is

tin
ct

 a
nd

 u
ni

qu
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

– 
as

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 s

ur
ve

ys
 a

nd
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s 
– 

m
os

t p
eo

pl
e 

sa
y 

th
ey

 li
ke

 li
vi

ng
 h

er
e.

 T
he

y 
fin

d 
it 

an
 e

xc
iti

ng
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 im
m

en
se

 v
ar

ie
ty

 a
nd

 a
 s

tro
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

pi
rit

. B
ut

, a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ta
tis

tic
s,

 it
 is

 a
ls

o 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 
ar

ea
s 

in
 th

e 
co

un
try

, a
nd

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 fa
ce

s 
m

or
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 th

an
 m

os
t –

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
us

t b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
if 

w
e 

ar
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

 
be

tte
r p

la
ce

 to
 li

ve
 a

nd
 w

or
k.

 M
ee

tin
g 

th
es

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 n
ee

ds
 fo

cu
s.

 M
or

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 if

 w
e 

co
nc

en
tra

te
 o

n 
do

in
g 

a 
fe

w
 th

in
gs

 w
el

l, 
an

d 
th

is
 

m
ea

ns
 s

et
tin

g 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
hi

ch
 ta

ck
le

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 n
ee

ds
. 

 O
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ov

er
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 p

er
io

d.
 T

he
y 

w
er

e 
sh

ap
ed

 in
iti

al
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
fir

st
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

– 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

to
 2

01
0,

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 la

un
ch

ed
 in

 M
ay

 2
00

1.
 W

hi
le

 re
ta

in
in

g 
its

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 v
is

io
n,

 th
is

 fi
rs

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

fin
ed

 a
nd

 m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

an
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
lo

ca
l v

ie
w

s.
 T

he
 la

te
st

 v
er

si
on

, d
oc

um
en

tin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 2

00
5 

– 
20

06
 a

nd
 s

et
tin

g 
ou

t n
ew

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 2

00
6 

– 
20

07
, h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 o
ur

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 y

ea
r a

nd
 b

y 
vi

ew
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
by

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. R
es

id
en

ts
, v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

th
ei

r s
ay

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

. 
 O

ne
 o

f t
he

 s
tro

ng
es

t m
es

sa
ge

s 
co

m
in

g 
fro

m
 re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

of
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 fo

cu
s 

at
te

nt
io

n 
on

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
 m

or
e 

he
av

ily
 in

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. T

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

s,
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

na
bl

er
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
– 

fro
m

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y,
 p

riv
at

e,
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
rs

 –
 a

re
 a

dd
in

g 
th

ei
r k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

w
ith

in
 a

 n
at

io
na

l c
on

te
xt

. S
ta

tis
tic

al
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
at

io
na

l 
an

d 
lo

ca
l s

ou
rc

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
na

ly
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 o

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

– 
an

d 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 to

 ta
ck

le
 th

em
 –

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ha

rd
 e

vi
de

nc
e.

 
Th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

, i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pl

ay
s 

a 
ke

y 
ro

le
, h

as
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ov

er
si

gh
t o

f t
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 it
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 in
 a

 w
ay

 th
at

 b
et

te
r i

nf
or

m
s 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

m
us

t a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

 p
ow

er
fu

l r
eg

io
na

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l i
nf

lu
en

ce
s 

on
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 T
he

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 o

f t
he

 M
ay

or
 o

f 
Lo

nd
on

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
 T

he
 M

ay
or

's
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

in
g,

 e
m

br
ac

in
g 

th
e 

po
lic

e,
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

fir
e 

an
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
, r

eg
en

er
at

io
n,

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s,

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
ffa

irs
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 c
on

ce
rn

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 L

on
do

n 
to

 th
e 

w
id

er
 w

or
ld

. T
he

 M
ay

or
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
ct

 (1
99

9)
 to

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 –
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
– 

a 
se

t o
f s

tra
te

gi
es

 fo
r L

on
do

n 
co

ve
rin

g 
tra

ns
po

rt,
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 la
nd

 u
se

, e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 c

ul
tu

re
, a

nd
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

, a
m

bi
en

t n
oi

se
, w

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l a
nd

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
. E

ac
h 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 h

as
 a

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 lo
ca

l 
pl

an
s 

in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 s
tra

te
gi

es
. A

 m
aj

or
 re

gi
on

al
 d

riv
er

 fo
r c

ha
ng

e 
is

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
la

ce
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 in
 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l r
ol

e 
lin

ki
ng

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

th
e 

re
gi

on
s 

to
 E

ur
op

e.
 T

he
 b

or
ou

gh
’s

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n 
ar

e 
se

en
 a

s 
im

po
rta

nt
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 fo
r p

ro
vi

di
ng

 lo
ca

l v
is

io
n 

w
hi

ls
t s

up
po

rti
ng

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 T
ha

m
es

 G
at

ew
ay

. A
nd

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 o

f 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 a
nd

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
ha

ve
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t, 

sh
ar

ed
 s

ta
ke

 in
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 to

 s
ta

ge
 th

e 
O

ly
m

pi
c 

G
am

es
 fo

r 2
01

2 
in

 
Lo

nd
on

: a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 fo

cu
s 

in
 o

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 2

00
6-

11
.  

 N
at

io
na

l p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s,
 to

o,
 in

ev
ita

bl
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 a

nd
 it

 is
 ri

gh
t t

ha
t t

he
y 

do
 s

o.
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as
 in

 
th

e 
co

un
try

, a
nd

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 b
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
he

re
 is

 s
til

l w
or

se
 th

an
 in

 m
os

t o
th

er
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
. A

lth
ou

gh
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ra

m
at

ic
 in

 m
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

ov
er

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, j
ob

 p
ro

sp
ec

ts
 fo

r l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
w

or
se

 th
an

 in
 o

th
er

 a
re

as
 o

f L
on

do
n,

 th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
is

 
po

or
er

, o
ve

ra
ll 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t s

til
l r

em
ai

ns
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 in

 k
ey

 a
re

as
, t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 to

o 
of

te
n 

be
lo

w
 d

ec
en

t 

Page 217



 
 

7 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 a

nd
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

re
m

ai
n 

at
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
. T

he
se

 a
re

 a
ll 

cr
uc

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 lo

ca
lly

. T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

to
 c

lo
se

 th
e 

ga
p 

in
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
et

w
ee

n 
de

pr
iv

ed
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 it

s 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

re
ne

w
al

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 is
 o

ne
 o

f 8
8 

de
pr

iv
ed

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 h
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 h
el

p 
ac

ce
le

ra
te

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 to

 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ha

ve
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 th

ei
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

en
 w

or
ki

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

w
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 h
el

p 
de

ve
lo

p 
– 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
– 

a 
lo

ca
l N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

, t
o 

de
liv

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

ou
tc

om
es

 in
 jo

bs
, e

du
ca

tio
n,

 h
ea

lth
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

in
 th

e 
ne

ed
ie

st
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
. 

                                

Page 218



 
 

8 

5.
  L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
) 

 Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
LA

A
, n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
in

 2
00

5/
6 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

w
ill

 d
riv

e 
an

 a
m

bi
tio

us
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t 3
 y

ea
rs

 o
f t

he
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n.
 T

he
 b

ro
ad

 u
ni

tin
g 

th
em

es
 o

f t
he

 L
AA

, w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fo
cu

s 
fo

r a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
re

 th
at

 it
 

w
ill

:  
 B

e 
am

bi
tio

us
 

Th
e 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 e
xc

us
e 

po
or

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. W
e 

se
e 

th
e 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 a

s 
a 

st
re

ng
th

 a
nd

 w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 th

e 
ve

ry
 b

es
t f

or
 a

ll 
ou

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

. W
e 

w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
th

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

os
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 fr
om

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
‘n

ew
 

C
ity

’ a
t C

an
ar

y 
W

ha
rf,

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
, t

he
 O

ly
m

pi
cs

 a
nd

 P
ar

al
ym

pi
cs

. T
he

 la
tte

r, 
an

d 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
O

ly
m

pi
c 

br
an

di
ng

, 
of

fe
r u

ni
qu

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 fo

r e
ng

ag
in

g 
an

d 
un

iti
ng

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. O
ur

 L
A

A
 w

ill
 u

se
 th

e 
bu

ild
-u

p 
to

 th
e 

O
ly

m
pi

cs
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 fo

cu
s 

on
 a

rts
 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

, t
o 

he
lp

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 h
ea

lth
y 

liv
in

g 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 s

po
rti

ng
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 
 B

ui
ld

 in
cl

us
iv

e,
 c

oh
es

iv
e 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 fa

ci
ng

 u
ni

qu
el

y 
ra

pi
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l c
ha

ng
e,

 a
nd

 it
 h

as
 a

 ra
pi

dl
y 

gr
ow

in
g,

 e
th

ni
ca

lly
 d

iv
er

se
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 T
he

 ri
sk

 o
f p

ol
ar

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

fra
gm

en
ta

tio
n 

in
 th

is
 c

on
te

xt
 is

 h
ig

h.
 E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 o
ur

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
eq

ui
pp

ed
 b

ot
h 

to
 

ac
ce

ss
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fro

m
 th

is
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 to

 m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 is

 k
ey

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 th
at

 is
 c

oh
es

iv
e 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

la
n.

 
 St

re
ng

th
en

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 u
se

r p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
to

 e
ffe

ct
 c

ha
ng

e:
 “

M
ak

in
g 

it 
Lo

ca
l“

 a
nd

 “
M

ak
in

g 
it 

Pe
rs

on
al

” 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r t
he

 L
A

A
 a

re
 c

om
m

on
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 o

ur
 w

ar
d 

an
d 

LA
P

 p
ro

fil
es

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 a

re
as

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
fa

ce
 d

iff
er

en
t c

ha
lle

ng
es

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f i
m

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 

w
hi

ch
, i

n 
tu

rn
, d

em
an

ds
 g

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
tra

ck
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

ov
er

 a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e.

 R
ef

le
ct

in
g 

th
e 

Ex
ce

lle
nt

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 o
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n,

 o
ur

 L
A

A
 w

ill
 th

er
ef

or
e 

bu
ild

 o
n 

ou
r e

xi
st

in
g 

w
or

k 
in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

lo
ca

l m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 L

A
P

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

ns
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

nd
 u

se
r-

fo
cu

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
hi

s 
fo

cu
s 

is
 a

ls
o 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

em
po

w
er

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 e

na
bl

in
g 

th
em

 to
 h

el
p 

sh
ap

e 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e,
 to

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
a 

de
gr

ee
 o

f c
ho

ic
e,

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 g

re
at

er
 s

en
se

 
of

 p
er

so
na

l c
on

tro
l o

ve
r t

he
ir 

liv
es

 a
nd

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
as

 c
iti

ze
ns

. 
 Th

e 
fo

ur
 ‘b

lo
ck

s’
 th

at
 fo

rm
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t’s
 n

at
io

na
l f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r L
A

A
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 o

ur
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
(s

ee
 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
), 

an
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 L

A
A

 h
as

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

en
 a

 n
at

ur
al

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f o
ur

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k:
 it

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

us
 to

 fo
cu

s 
fu

lly
 

on
 th

e 
th

in
gs

 th
at

 re
al

ly
 m

at
te

r t
o 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

to
 fi

nd
 n

ew
 w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 to

 a
cc

el
er

at
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

Page 219



 
 

9 

 
Li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

es
 a

nd
 L

A
A

 B
lo

ck
s 

                 Th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r o
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 th

en
, i

s 
se

t b
y 

th
e 

th
em

es
 o

f o
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ee
ks

 to
 m

ak
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
: 

 
• 

A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r L
iv

in
g 

Sa
fe

ly
 –

 re
du

ci
ng

 c
rim

e,
 m

ak
in

g 
pe

op
le

 fe
el

 s
af

er
 a

nd
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

se
cu

re
 a

nd
 c

le
an

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 • 

A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r L
iv

in
g 

W
el

l –
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ho
us

in
g,

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
y 

liv
in

g.
 

 • 
A

 B
et

te
r P

la
ce

 fo
r C

re
at

in
g 

an
d 

Sh
ar

in
g 

Pr
os

pe
rit

y 
– 

br
in

gi
ng

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 a
ll 

ou
r r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
re

 in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 b

en
ef

it 
fro

m
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 g

ro
w

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ro

sp
er

ity
. 

 • 
A

 B
et

te
r P

la
ce

 fo
r L

ea
rn

in
g,

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 –
 ra

is
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l a
sp

ira
tio

ns
, e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t, 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
w

id
es

t r
an

ge
 o

f c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r a

ll 
an

d 
ce

le
br

at
in

g 
th

e 
ric

h 
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
 • 

A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

ey
 re

pr
es

en
t g

oo
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 

an
d 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 w

ay
s 

th
at

 m
ee

t l
oc

al
 n

ee
ds

. 
 W

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 s
et

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

bu
t r

ea
lis

tic
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e,

 w
hi

ch
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
cr

iti
ca

l a
re

as
 th

at
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

a 
la

st
in

g 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

to
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

lif
e 

ch
an

ce
s.

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

e 
 

LA
A

 B
lo

ck
 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
 

S
af

er
 a

nd
 S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

Li
vi

ng
 w

el
l 

 
H

ea
lth

ie
r C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

e 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

C
ro

ss
-th

em
es

 
• 

M
ak

in
g 

it 
pe

rs
on

al
 

• 
M

ak
in

g 
it 

Lo
ca

l 
• 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

All blocks linked to 
one another 

Page 220



 
 

10
 

LA
A

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

O
ur

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
re

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 u

nd
er

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 L
A

A
 b

lo
ck

s,
 w

ith
 c

le
ar

 li
nk

s 
to

 o
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k:
 

 
O

ur
 L

A
A

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 

S
af

er
 a

nd
 

S
tro

ng
er

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
S

af
er

, C
le

an
er

, G
re

en
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
• 

R
ed

uc
ed

 o
ve

ra
ll 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pu
bl

ic
 re

as
su

ra
nc

e,
 w

ith
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 fo

cu
s 

on
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
e,

 a
nt

is
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r, 
an

d 
th

e 
ha

rm
 c

au
se

d 
by

 il
le

ga
l d

ru
gs

 
• 

C
le

an
er

, g
re

en
er

 a
nd

 s
af

er
 p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
s 

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 lo

ca
l c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
in

cl
us

io
n 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rin
g 

• 
S

tre
ng

th
en

ed
 c

ap
ac

ity
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r t

o 
de

liv
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
• 

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Th

ird
 S

ec
to

r w
hi

ch
 a

re
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
H

ea
lth

ie
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 &
 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
  

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
• 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r a
cc

es
s 

to
 q

ua
lit

y 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

• 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ve
ra

ll 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t r
at

e,
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t r
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t r
at

e 
fo

r E
ng

la
nd

 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t f
or

 ta
rg

et
ed

 g
ro

up
s 

• 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

w
ar

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
ttr

ac
te

d 
to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 m
ak

in
g 

us
e 

of
 lo

ca
l l

ab
ou

r r
es

ou
rc

es
 

• 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 o
f e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
an

d 
sm

al
l b

us
in

es
s 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

sk
ill

s 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
• 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 p

ar
en

ta
l i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 le
ve

ls
 o

f p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 

C
ro

ss
-c

ut
tin

g 
• 

M
ak

in
g 

it 
lo

ca
l 

• 
M

ak
in

g 
it 

pe
rs

on
al

 
        

Page 221



 
 

11
 

6.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

12
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
to

 A
pr

il 
20

11
, w

hi
ch

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t: 
 

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Th
em

e 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 2

00
6 

– 
20

11
 

Li
vi

ng
 S

af
el

y 
1.

 
A

 c
le

an
er

, g
re

en
er

, s
af

er
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 

Li
vi

ng
 W

el
l 

2.
 

D
ec

en
t h

om
es

 in
 d

ec
en

t n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

3.
 

H
ea

lth
ie

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

  
4.

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

 

C
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 
5.

 
S

ec
ur

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
6.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 
7.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t 
8.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 s

po
rti

ng
, l

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

9.
 

E
ffi

ci
en

t a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

10
. L

oc
al

ly
 fo

cu
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

m
po

w
er

in
g 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

11
. S

tro
ng

er
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

co
he

si
ve

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
12

. I
m

pr
ov

ed
 e

qu
al

ity
 o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
 Th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n 
sp

ec
ifi

es
 th

e 
ke

y 
ta

rg
et

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ex

pe
ct

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
ga

in
st

 th
es

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
11

. I
t a

ls
o 

se
ts

 o
ut

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
P

la
n,

 w
ith

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ile
st

on
es

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
, a

lth
ou

gh
, s

in
ce

 w
or

k 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

lw
ay

s 
fo

llo
w

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 c

yc
le

, s
om

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
m

ay
 o

ve
rla

p 
in

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ye
ar

. E
du

ca
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
la

n 
fo

r a
n 

ac
ad

em
ic

 
ye

ar
, s

o 
it 

is
 s

en
si

bl
e 

fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

of
 m

an
y 

of
 th

ei
r a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 A
ug

us
t. 

              

Page 222



 
 

12
 

7.
 M

ea
su

rin
g 

O
ur

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
 

 Th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 In

de
x 

O
ur

 s
uc

ce
ss

 in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 o
ur

 1
2 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
is

 m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
in

di
ca

to
r. 

Th
is

 is
 a

 c
om

po
si

te
 in

de
x 

– 
Th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 In
de

x 
– 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 a

 
ba

sk
et

 o
f k

ey
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

12
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 In
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

fo
cu

s 
on

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l c

om
pa

ris
on

s 
th

e 
ba

sk
et

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
nl

y 
th

os
e 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
at

io
na

lly
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
.  

Th
e 

In
de

x 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 h

ow
 o

ur
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 ra
te

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t c

om
pa

re
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
at

 th
re

e 
le

ve
ls

: 
 • 

In
ne

r L
on

do
n 

– 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 1
2 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 m
ak

in
g 

up
 th

e 
In

ne
r L

on
do

n 
A

re
a1   

• 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
– 

ag
ai

ns
t a

ll 
32

 C
ou

nc
ils

 m
ak

in
g 

up
 th

e 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
A

re
a 

• 
N

at
io

na
l –

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ll 

Lo
nd

on
 a

nd
 m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
 O

ur
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

. 
 O

ur
 C

ur
re

nt
 P

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 T

ar
ge

ts
 

B
y 

20
11

, T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 C

ou
nc

il 
in

te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

de
x 

• 
In

ne
r L

on
do

n 
– 

To
p 

2 
(o

ut
 o

f 1
2)

 
• 

G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

– 
To

p 
6 

(o
ut

 o
f 3

2)
 

• 
N

at
io

na
l –

 T
op

 2
5%

 o
f L

on
do

n 
an

d 
m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
 C

ur
re

nt
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 R
an

ki
ng

 
 

A
ga

in
st

: 
20

04
-0

5 
(B

as
el

in
e)

 
Ta

rg
et

 P
os

iti
on

 
(A

pr
il 

20
11

) 

In
ne

r L
on

do
n 

 
5 

2nd
 o

r h
ig

he
r 

or
 h

ig
he

r 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
(th

e 
lo

w
er

 th
e 

be
tte

r)
 

13
 

6t
h 

 
or

 h
ig

he
r 

N
at

io
na

l 
(th

e 
lo

w
er

 th
e 

be
tte

r)
 

40
th

 

pe
rc

en
til

e 
25

th
  

or
 h

ig
he

r 
 Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 L

on
do

n 
To

 h
el

p 
en

su
re

 w
e 

re
ac

h 
ou

r a
m

bi
tio

us
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r b
ei

ng
 a

m
on

gs
t t

he
 b

es
t-p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
Lo

nd
on

 c
ou

nc
ils

, w
e 

ha
ve

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l m

ea
su

re
 fo

r 
as

se
ss

in
g 

ou
r r

el
at

iv
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. T

hi
s 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 is

 ra
nk

ed
 in

 th
e 

be
st

 2
5%

, a
nd

 a
ls

o 
on

 th
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

1  T
he

 C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
is

 e
xc

lu
de

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 th
is

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 

Page 223



 
 

13
 

nu
m

be
r w

he
re

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 a

m
on

gs
t t

he
 w

ea
ke

st
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

ho
w

s 
ho

w
 w

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 in

 2
00

4/
5 

(th
e 

la
te

st
 y

ea
r f

or
 w

hi
ch

 fi
gu

re
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
va

ila
bl

e)
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
32

 o
th

er
 L

on
do

n 
au

th
or

iti
es

. 
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 in

: 
 

1s
t q

ua
rti

le
 (t

op
 2

5%
) f

or
 L

on
do

n 
(to

p 
8 

ou
t o

f 3
2)

 
29

%
 

2nd
 q

ua
rti

le
 fo

r L
on

do
n 

 
(r

an
ke

d 
fro

m
 9

-1
6th

 o
ut

 o
f 3

2)
  

17
%

 

3rd
 q

ua
rti

le
 fo

r L
on

do
n 

 
(r

an
ke

d 
fro

m
 1

7th
 to

 2
4th

 o
ut

 o
f 3

2)
 

20
%

 

4th
 q

ua
rti

le
 fo

r L
on

do
n 

(lo
w

es
t 2

5%
) 

(r
an

ke
d 

fro
m

 2
5th

 to
 3

2nd
 o

ut
 o

f 3
2)

 
34

%
 

 O
ve

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

of
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n 
w

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
 

Y
ea

r 
%

 in
 T

op
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 

%
 in

 B
ot

to
m

 2
 

qu
ar

til
es

 
20

05
/0

6 
35

%
 

45
%

 

20
06

/0
7 

45
%

 
35

%
 

20
07

/0
8 

55
%

 
25

%
 

20
08

/0
9 

65
%

 
15

%
 

20
09

/1
0 

75
%

 
5%

 
           

Page 224



 
 

14
 

8.
  Y

ea
r 1

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

: A
pr

il 
20

06
 –

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

 E
ac

h 
ye

ar
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

od
uc

es
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

, o
r a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
, t

o 
su

pp
or

t d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 g

oa
ls

 o
f t

he
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n.
 T

he
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
fiv

e 
th

em
es

 o
f t

he
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
an

d,
 w

ith
in

 e
ac

h,
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 to
 b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
in

 th
e 

fo
rth

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

go
al

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s.
 T

he
 k

ey
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 b

e 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

os
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

re
 s

um
m

ar
is

ed
 a

nd
 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ile

st
on

es
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

so
 th

at
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ca
n 

be
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
te

d.
 

 E
ac

h 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 b

eg
in

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

et
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r t
ha

t a
re

a.
 

 Th
es

e 
ar

e 
th

e 
ke

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

w
ill

 m
ea

su
re

 o
ur

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
tw

el
ve

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
6.

 T
he

se
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 re

pr
es

en
t a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 lo

ca
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s,
 m

os
t o

f w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t a

nd
 L

oc
al

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 e

ac
h 

ca
se

. 
 Th

es
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

‘b
as

ke
t’ 

fro
m

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

m
po

si
te

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 In

de
x 

is
 d

er
iv

ed
, e

na
bl

in
g 

us
 to

 ju
dg

e 
ou

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ag
ai

ns
t a

 s
in

gl
e 

in
di

ca
to

r. 
 Th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

us
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
se

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

11
. 

                       

Page 225



 
 

15
 

LI
VI

N
G

 S
A

FE
LY

: T
H

I I
N

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 2
00

6-
20

10
 

 A
 s

af
er

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
  

 Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 
N

um
be

r o
f v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

 (c
om

m
on

 a
ss

au
lt 

pl
us

 
A

B
H

/G
B

H
) (

LP
S

A
 / 

LA
A

 p
rim

ar
y)

 
49

12
43

79
41

63
38

53
37

37
36

25
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ho
 v

ie
w

 a
s 

a 
“v

er
y 

bi
g 

pr
ob

le
m

” t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
is

su
es

: (
LP

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

a)
 

Y
ou

th
s 

ha
ng

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
st

re
et

s 
b)

 
G

ra
ffi

ti 
an

d 
ot

he
r d

el
ib

er
at

e 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

r v
eh

ic
le

s 
c)

 
P

eo
pl

e 
us

in
g 

or
 d

ea
lin

g 
dr

ug
s 

d)
 

P
eo

pl
e 

be
in

g 
dr

un
k 

or
 ro

w
dy

 in
 p

ub
lic

 p
la

ce
s 

a)
 

50
%

 
b)

 
47

%
 

c)
 

53
%

 
d)

 
31

%
 

 (2
00

3/
4)

 

a)
 

41
%

 
b)

 
38

%
 

c)
 

44
%

 
d)

 
26

%
 

a)
 

38
%

 
b)

 
35

%
 

c)
 

41
%

 
d)

 
23

%
 

a)
 

35
%

 
b)

 
32

%
 

c)
 

38
%

 
d)

 
20

%
 

a)
 

32
%

 
b)

 
29

%
 

c)
 

35
%

 
d)

 
19

%
 

a)
 

29
%

 
b)

 
26

%
 

c)
 

32
%

 
d)

 
18

%
 

N
um

be
r o

f a
du

lts
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ki
lle

d 
or

 s
er

io
us

ly
 

in
ju

re
d 

on
 th

e 
ro

ad
s 

(L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

13
3

12
1

11
4

11
1

10
8

10
5 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
un

de
r 1

8 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

tre
at

m
en

t (
LP

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

41
5

44
8

48
1

49
5

51
0

52
5 

R
ed

uc
ed

 o
ve

ra
ll 

cr
im

e 
ra

te
 fr

om
 2

00
3/

4 
ba

se
lin

e 
(=

 2
2,

63
6 

in
ci

de
nt

s)
 - 

to
ta

l B
C

S
 c

om
pa

ra
to

r 
of

fe
nc

es
  

20
,2

81
 

in
ci

de
nt

s
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 1

0.
4%

 
on

 2
00

3/
4 

ba
se

lin
e)

 

18
,5

85
 

in
ci

de
nt

s
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 1

7.
9%

 
on

 2
00

3/
4 

ba
se

lin
e)

18
,1

09
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 2

0%
 o

n 
20

03
/4

 
ba

se
lin

e)

17
,0

90
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 2

4.
5%

 
on

 2
00

3/
4 

ba
se

lin
e)

16
,5

24
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 2

7%
 o

n 
20

03
/4

 
ba

se
lin

e)

16
,0

72
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
(R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 2

9%
 o

n 
20

03
/4

 
ba

se
lin

e)
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 y
ou

th
-o

n-
yo

ut
h 

vi
ol

en
t c

rim
e 

(w
he

re
 

vi
ct

im
 is

 u
nd

er
 1

9 
an

d 
ac

cu
se

d 
is

 u
nd

er
 1

9 
or

 
su

sp
ec

t i
s 

th
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

 u
nd

er
 1

9 
(L

A
A

 s
ec

on
da

ry
) 

59
3 

in
ci

de
nt

s
58

1 
in

ci
de

nt
s

57
0 

in
ci

de
nt

s
55

8 
in

ci
de

nt
s

54
7 

in
ci

de
nt

s
53

6 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

A
 s

af
er

 T
ow

er
 

H
am

le
ts

 

R
ed

uc
ed

 le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

is
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
it 

is
 in

iti
al

ly
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 a
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t a
ge

nc
y:

 %
 re

du
ct

io
n 

si
nc

e 
20

04
/5

 
ba

se
lin

e 
(4

.7
 y

ea
rs

) 

N
/A

*

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 3
%

 o
n 

20
04

/5
 

ba
se

lin
e

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 6
%

 o
n 

20
04

/5
 

ba
se

lin
e

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 9
%

 o
n 

20
04

/5
 

ba
se

lin
e

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 1
1%

 o
n 

20
04

/5
 

ba
se

lin
e

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 1
2%

 o
n 

20
04

/5
 

ba
se

lin
e 

 *T
ar

ge
ts

 fo
r t

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
20

04
/5

 b
as

el
in

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
. D

at
a 

on
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 fr

om
 

20
06

/7
 o

nw
ar

d 
  

 

Page 226



 
 

16
 

A
 c

le
an

er
, g

re
en

er
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 
 Pr

io
rit

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

  
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
05

/6
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

th
at

 is
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f l

itt
er

 a
nd

 
de

tri
tu

s 
(B

V
P

I 1
99

) (
LP

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

23
%

 
16

%
12

%
11

%
11

%
10

%
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f a

nt
is

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
: 

re
du

ce
d 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

w
ho

 v
ie

w
 

ru
bb

is
h 

an
d 

lit
te

r l
yi

ng
 a

ro
un

d 
as

 “a
 v

er
y 

se
rio

us
 

pr
ob

le
m

” (
LP

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 s

ec
on

da
ry

) 

29
%

26
%

23
%

20
%

19
%

18
%

 

%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

as
ke

d 
w

ho
 th

in
k 

th
at

 p
ar

ks
, 

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

ar
e 

go
od

, v
er

y 
go

od
 

or
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
46

%
50

%
52

%
54

%
56

%
58

%
 

A
 c

le
an

er
, 

gr
ee

ne
r 

To
w

er
 

H
am

le
ts

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 re

cy
cl

ed
 (L

A
A

 
pr

im
ar

y)
 

8.
8%

 
18

%
22

%
24

%
30

%
31

%
 

                     

Page 227



 
 

17
 

LI
VI

N
G

 S
A

FE
LY

: I
M

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 2
00

6/
7 

 
 A

 s
af

er
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

  
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 re
du

ce
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

O
liv

ia
 M

cL
eo

d,
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

, t
hr

ou
gh

 
C

rim
es

 A
ga

in
st

 P
ro

pe
rty

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
, t

o 
re

du
ce

 a
cq

ui
si

tiv
e 

cr
im

e 
 • 

Ta
rg

et
 h

ar
de

n 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 

    • 
R

ai
se

 p
ub

lic
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
ar

ou
nd

 
pr

ev
en

tin
g 

cr
im

e 
     • 

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 C

C
TV

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
br

in
g 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
to

 ju
st

ic
e 

  • 
Ta

rg
et

 th
e 

m
os

t p
ro

lif
ic

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
fo

r 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 a

ct
io

n 
 

• 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f C
rim

es
 A

ga
in

st
 P

ro
pe

rty
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 
• 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 w

ith
 re

gu
la

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 to
 L

S
 C

P
A

G
 

 • 
In

iti
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 a

t 
C

A
P

A
G

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 

• 
Ta

rg
et

 H
ar

de
ni

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

er
 in

 p
os

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
Fu

ll 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 in

fo
rm

 n
ex

t y
ea

r's
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r t
ra

in
in

g 
ca

re
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ff 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6.

 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 a

t l
ea

st
 1

4 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

w
at

ch
 

co
or

di
na

to
rs

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

at
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 s

tu
de

nt
 e

ve
nt

 e
ac

h 
te

rm
  

• 
A

rti
cl

es
 p

la
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 - 
on

go
in

g 
 • 

O
ut

co
m

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 C

C
TV

 d
ep

lo
ym

en
t c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

C
o-

lo
ca

te
d 

m
ul

tia
ge

nc
y 

te
am

, w
ith

 tw
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ai

ns
tre

am
ed

 
po

lic
e 

of
fic

er
s,

 m
ak

in
g 

4 
in

 to
ta

l, 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

P
P

O
, w

ith
 e

ac
h 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

P
O

 s
ch

em
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
2.

 
To

 re
du

ce
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
e,

 
w

ith
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 y
ou

th
 a

nd
 

do
m

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
O

liv
ia

 M
cL

eo
d,

 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

, t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

V
io

le
nt

 C
rim

e 
A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

, t
o 

re
du

ce
 

vi
ol

en
t c

rim
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
G

B
H

, A
B

H
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
on

 a
ss

au
lt 

 

• 
Q

ua
rtl

er
y 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
f V

io
le

nt
 C

rim
e 

A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

, w
ith

 re
gu

la
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
 to

 L
S

 C
P

A
G

 
  

Page 228



 
 

18
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
• 

R
ed

uc
e 

yo
ut

h 
vi

ol
en

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
S

af
er

 
S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 H

ea
lth

y 
C

ho
ic

es
, S

af
e 

C
ho

ic
es

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
        • 

R
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 to
le

ra
nc

e 
of

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
   • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
io

n 
to

 
su

pp
or

t v
ic

tim
s 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

         • 
R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f d

om
es

tic
 

vi
ol

en
ce

 o
n 

ch
ild

re
n 

     • 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 

ut
ili

sa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

V
io

le
nc

e 
O

ffe
nd

er
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

by
 Y

O
T 

st
af

f 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

S
af

er
 S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 te

am
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f e
ac

h 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
sc

ho
ol

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t 
20

06
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

H
ea

lth
y 

C
ho

ic
es

, S
af

e 
C

ho
ic

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 g

ro
up

 a
nd

 
ap

po
in

t P
H

S
E

 S
en

io
r M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 d

ru
gs

 w
or

ke
r b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f c

ur
ric

ul
um

 m
at

er
ia

l 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
t l

ea
st

 2
5 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 (s
ta

lls
 o

r c
om

m
un

ity
 

ev
en

ts
) b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

S
ch

oo
ls

-b
as

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
R

eg
ul

ar
 re

po
rts

 to
 L

S
 C

P
A

G
 

 
• 

C
on

ve
ne

 m
on

th
ly

 m
ee

tin
gs

 o
f t

he
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

af
et

y 
pa

ne
l 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f c
as

es
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

af
et

y 
pa

ne
l b

y 
at

 le
as

t 1
0%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 2
00

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
P

ro
du

ce
 u

pd
at

ed
 D

V
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

ire
ct

or
y 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
10

%
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

om
el

es
s 

ca
se

s 
pr

ev
en

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

S
an

ct
ua

ry
 S

ch
em

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
M

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 D

V
 p

er
pe

tra
to

rs
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 6

 p
er

so
na

l s
af

et
y 

co
ur

se
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 re
la

un
ch

 D
V

 a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f N

C
H

 B
ar

ik
a 

pr
oj

ec
t w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
V

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 o
f c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

D
V

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
  

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f y
ou

th
 w

or
ke

rs
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6.
 

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
. 

 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

vi
ew

s 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Page 229



 
 

19
 

3.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

nt
i-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 w

hi
ch

 A
S

B
 h

as
 o

n 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 o

f o
ur

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

O
liv

ia
 M

cL
eo

d,
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

, t
hr

ou
gh

 
A

S
B

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
, t

o 
re

du
ce

 A
S

B
 

  • 
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 jo
in

ed
-u

p 
lo

ca
l a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

pr
ev

en
tin

g 
A

S
B

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 S
up

er
 

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 T
ea

m
s 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 s
ha

re
d 

se
t o

fA
S

B
 m

in
im

um
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

ith
 R

S
Ls

 
 • 

S
tre

ng
th

en
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

ga
in

st
 A

S
B

 
            • 

R
ed

uc
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

 

• 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f A
nt

is
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

, w
ith

 re
gu

la
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
 to

 L
S

 C
P

A
G

  
 • 

P
ilo

t S
up

er
 S

af
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 T

ea
m

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

 w
ith

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
   • 

S
ha

re
d 

A
S

B
 s

et
 o

f m
in

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 a

t l
ea

st
 5

 
R

S
Ls

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 

 • 
A

t l
ea

st
 1

 ta
rg

et
ed

 g
ra

ffi
ti 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 e

ac
h 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P
 a

re
a 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

A
nt

i-a
rs

on
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 a

t l
ea

st
 e

ac
h 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P
 a

re
a 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f A

S
B

O
s 

(fr
om

 8
0 

to
 9

0)
, A

B
C

s 
(fr

om
 9

0 
to

 
10

5)
 a

nd
 A

S
B

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
ju

nc
tio

ns
 (f

ro
m

 1
0 

to
 2

0)
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 to
 a

t l
ea

st
 6

5%
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
th

s 
on

 A
B

C
s 

an
d 

A
S

B
O

s 
w

ho
 a

cc
es

s 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pa

ck
 to

 1
00

%
 o

f t
ho

se
 s

ig
ni

ng
 A

B
C

s 
by

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

In
tro

du
ce

 p
ro

to
co

l o
n 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 A

S
B

 c
as

es
 –

 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

"T
ac

kl
in

g 
Fe

ar
 o

f C
rim

e"
 S

ub
-g

ro
up

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
A

gr
ee

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

E
va

lu
at

e 
im

pa
ct

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

4.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 

m
is

us
e 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

cr
im

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tre
at

m
en

t, 
pr

ev
en

tio
n,

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
O

liv
ia

 M
cL

eo
d,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
tre

at
m

en
t u

pt
ak

e 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ua
tio

n 
fo

r d
ru

g 
us

er
s 

    • 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 d
ru

g 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 m
ee

t l
oc

al
 n

ee
ds

, t
hr

ou
gh

 
a 

ne
w

 d
is

cr
et

e 
w

om
en

’s
 d

ru
g 

• 
Ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 d
ru

g 
tre

at
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
0%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 
• 

70
%

 o
f d

ru
g 

m
is

us
in

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
dr

ug
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
Te

st
in

g 
on

 a
rr

es
t f

or
 a

ll 
el

ig
ib

le
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

 • 
N

ew
 w

om
en

’s
 d

ru
g 

tre
at

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 fu
lly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
06

 
• 

D
et

ox
ifi

ca
tio

n 
un

it 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

Page 230



 
 

20
 

tre
at

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 a

 lo
ca

l d
et

ox
ifi

ca
tio

n 
un

it 
 • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f d

ru
g 

tre
at

m
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 

    • 
D

el
iv

er
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
ea

rly
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
 • 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

f 
dr

ug
 m

is
us

e 
       • 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

w
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
to

 ta
ck

le
 d

ru
gs

 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
de

al
in

g 
 

   • 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 A
ug

us
t 

20
06

 
• 

S
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 to

 b
e 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 a

ll 
le

ve
ls

 o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
lc

oh
ol

 m
is

us
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
 • 

30
0 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t t

ra
in

in
g 

in
 E

ar
ly

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

iti
al

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
tre

at
m

en
t i

nc
re

as
ed

 b
y 

10
%

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
 • 

N
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 fo
ru

m
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
of

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

in
g 

pa
re

nt
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

10
0 

ch
ild

re
n 

of
 s

ub
st

an
ce

 m
is

us
in

g 
pa

re
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

su
pp

or
t b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

C
om

m
un

ity
 fo

ru
m

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
30

 c
om

m
un

ity
 d

ru
g 

an
d 

ad
di

ct
io

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
D

ru
gS

to
pp

er
s 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 a
t l

ea
st

 e
ac

h 
pa

ire
d 

LA
P

 a
re

a 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
D

ru
gs

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

A
t l

ea
st

 2
4 

dr
ug

 s
up

pl
y 

cl
os

ur
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

5.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

co
he

si
on

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
O

liv
ia

 M
cL

eo
d,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

, t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

R
ac

e 
an

d 
H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
In

te
ra

ge
nc

y 
Fo

ru
m

, t
o 

pr
ev

en
t a

nd
 re

du
ce

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

co
he

si
on

 
 • 

R
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e,

 
in

cr
ea

se
 re

po
rti

ng
 a

nd
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 to
 it

 

• 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f R
ac

e 
an

d 
H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
In

te
ra

ge
nc

y 
Fo

ru
m

 
• 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
, w

ith
 re

gu
la

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 L
S

 
C

P
A

G
 

• 
A

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

m
op

ho
bi

c 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

ha
te

 c
rim

e,
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 R
H

IA
F 

 • 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

24
 H

ou
r F

re
ep

ho
ne

 H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

re
po

rti
ng

 li
ne

 a
s 

an
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
– 

w
ith

 a
t l

ea
st

 a
 5

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 

in
 re

po
rts

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

Page 231



 
 

21
 

   

• 
H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
ac

ro
ss

 b
or

ou
gh

 to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 re

po
rti

ng
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

S
up

po
rt 

th
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
re

la
un

ch
 o

f t
he

 L
G

B
T 

Fo
ru

m
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

6.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

rs
: O

liv
ia

 M
cL

eo
d,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 

• 
P

ilo
t Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

t r
is

k 
 

    • 
C

on
ve

ne
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 

D
et

er
 ta

ct
ic

al
 g

ro
up

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 th

e 
m

os
t p

ro
lif

ic
 y

ou
ng

 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

 • 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

pa
re

nt
s 

in
 

ta
ck

lin
g 

yo
ut

h 
cr

im
e 

 
  • 

S
tre

ng
th

en
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 

be
tw

ee
n 

yo
ut

h 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
ge

ne
ric

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
    • 

Fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
vi

ct
im

s 
of

 y
ou

th
 c

rim
e 

    • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 
to

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
di

sp
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 s

om
e 

m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 

• 
Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 p

ilo
ts

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 in

 2
 p

ai
re

d-
LA

P
 

ar
ea

s 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6,

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
50

 a
t r

is
k 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 

ea
ch

 lo
ca

tio
n 

 
• 

E
xi

t i
nt

er
vi

ew
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 8
0%

 o
f c

as
es

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6,
 

w
ith

 b
i-a

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f o

ut
co

m
es

 to
 in

fo
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
 • 

P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 ta

ct
ic

al
 g

ro
up

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
g 

m
on

th
ly

, 
w

ith
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

en
ga

ge
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

  
• 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r a

ll 
yo

un
g 

P
P

O
s 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
, w

ith
 re

gu
la

r s
um

m
ar

y 
re

po
rts

 to
 L

S
 C

P
A

G
 

 • 
Lo

ca
l p

ar
en

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

P
ar

en
tin

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
0%

 o
f c

as
es

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 (6

-m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rts
 to

 L
S

 
C

P
A

G
) 

 • 
Y

O
T 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 re
vi

ew
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
 

• 
P

ro
to

co
l o

n 
a)

 ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
b)

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

m
an

de
d 

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

 • 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 re
st

or
at

iv
e 

ju
st

ic
e 

w
or

ke
r i

n 
pl

ac
e 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 7

5%
 o

f v
ic

tim
s 

of
 y

ou
th

 c
rim

e 
ar

e 
of

fe
re

d 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 a
 re

st
or

at
iv

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

nd
 th

at
 7

5%
 

of
 v

ic
tim

s 
w

ho
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
M

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 R

ac
e 

A
ud

it 
S

tra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

R
ac

e 
A

ud
it 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Y
O

T 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

Page 232



 
 

22
 

• 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r B
M

E
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

7.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
sa

fe
ty

 o
n 

es
ta

te
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Te
rr

y 
D

am
ia

no
, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 R
en

ew
al

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
(H

ou
si

ng
) 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 a

n 
ag

re
ed

 w
or

ks
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
to

 c
ou

nc
il 

ho
m

es
 a

nd
 

es
ta

te
 c

om
m

un
al

 a
re

as
 

 • 
U

se
 th

e 
H

om
e 

R
ep

ai
r G

ra
nt

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
on

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 o

f 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ho

m
e 

ow
ne

rs
 

• 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

A
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 3
00

 h
om

es
 to

 b
en

ef
it 

fro
m

 s
ec

ur
ity

 w
or

ks
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

A
pp

ro
ve

 6
0 

ho
m

e 
re

pa
ir 

gr
an

ts
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 0

6 
• 

12
5 

H
om

e 
R

ep
ai

r G
ra

nt
s 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 re
si

de
nt

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
8.

 
To

 m
ak

e 
st

re
et

s,
 p

ub
lic

 
ar

ea
s,

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 a
nd

 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

s 
sa

fe
r 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 P
al

m
er

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 C
ul

tu
re

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
  

• 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 to
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

s 
 

     • 
E

xt
en

d 
sa

fe
r r

ou
te

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

 
 • 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
de

si
gn

 o
ut

 c
rim

e 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
LA

P
S

  
 • 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 w

id
er

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 re
du

ce
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti 

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 in
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

  
 • 

W
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

e,
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

A
nt

i C
rim

e 
P

la
n 

fo
r t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
’s

 M
ar

ke
ts

 to
 

ta
ck

le
 th

e 
sa

le
 o

f c
ou

nt
er

fe
it 

go
od

s,
 

ill
eg

al
 tr

ad
in

g,
 a

ss
au

lts
, a

nt
is

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r a

nd
 th

ef
t. 

• 
Ju

ni
or

 C
iti

ze
n 

S
ch

em
e 

sa
fe

ty
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 1
00

0 
ye

ar
 6

 p
up

ils
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
Ju

ni
or

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

of
fic

er
 s

ch
em

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 3
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  
• 

60
+ 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r 3
 e

ld
er

s 
gr

ou
ps

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

15
 n

ew
 s

ch
oo

l t
ra

ve
l p

la
ns

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 w
ith

 5
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
A

nt
i c

rim
e 

de
si

gn
 m

ea
su

re
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 5

 p
ar

ks
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

  • 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

, w
ith

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
ac

tio
ns

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
fe

el
in

g 
un

sa
fe

 o
r v

er
y 

un
sa

fe
 in

 p
ar

ks
 re

du
ce

d 
fro

m
 1

3%
 to

 1
1%

 (K
M

C
 s

ur
ve

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7)
  

 • 
M

ar
ke

ts
 P

la
n 

fin
al

is
ed

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 w

ith
 2

0 
jo

in
t m

ar
ke

ts
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

     

Page 233



 
 

23
 

A
 c

le
an

er
, g

re
en

er
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

  
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

K
ey

 A
ct

iv
ity

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 M

ile
st

on
e 

1.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
of

 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

st
re

et
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
es

ta
te

s 
an

d 
pa

rk
s.

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Jo

hn
 P

al
m

er
, 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

ul
tu

re
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

  

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 ta

ck
le

 
E

nv
iro

cr
im

e 
 

       

• 
N

um
be

r o
f f

ix
ed

 p
en

al
ty

 n
ot

ic
es

 fo
r t

ra
de

 a
nd

 fa
st

 fo
od

 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 1

,0
35

 to
 2

,5
00

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 w
ith

 1
,2

50
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
To

 is
su

e 
10

0 
fix

ed
 p

en
al

ty
 n

ot
ic

es
 fo

r d
um

pi
ng

 o
f 

do
m

es
tic

 w
as

te
 u

nd
er

 n
ew

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

po
w

er
s,

 w
ith

 3
0 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
15

0 
pr

iv
at

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

as
si

st
ed

 w
ith

 g
ra

ffi
ti 

an
d 

fly
po

st
in

g 
re

m
ov

al
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 3

00
 

as
si

st
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

2.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 
w

as
te

 in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 P
al

m
er

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 C
ul

tu
re

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 D

ra
ft 

W
as

te
 S

tra
te

gy
 in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f n

ew
 

D
E

FR
A

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

 • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

lo
-r

is
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
     • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fu
rn

itu
re

 re
-u

se
 

sc
he

m
e 

• 
D

ra
ft 

W
as

te
 S

tra
te

gy
 to

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
by

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
fo

r l
o-

ris
e 

an
d 

bu
lk

in
g 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

re
vi

se
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

In
vi

ta
tio

ns
 to

 te
nd

er
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

• 
Te

nd
er

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

A
w

ar
d 

of
 c

on
tra

ct
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

• 
C

on
tra

ct
 m

ob
ili

sa
tio

n 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 

 • 
C

om
pl

et
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 fo
r s

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 
fu

rn
itu

re
 fr

om
 b

ul
ky

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

by
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
pr

of
ile

 a
nd

 ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
Fi

na
lis

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 is
su

e 
of

 re
us

e 
cr

ed
its

 to
 

ou
r r

eu
se

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
  

3.
 

To
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Ia

n 
B

ro
w

n,
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

ul
tu

re
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ve
hi

cl
e 

fle
et

 
    

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
em

is
si

on
s 

le
ve

ls
 fr

om
 c

ur
re

nt
 fl

ee
t b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
06

 
• 

Id
en

tif
y 

no
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

R
ep

la
ce

 o
r u

nd
er

ta
ke

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ll 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

A
ll 

fle
et

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
to

 b
e 

‘L
ow

 E
m

is
si

on
 Z

on
e’

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 

Page 234



 
 

24
 

  • 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 T

ow
er

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

an
d 

Lo
nd

on
 re

gi
on

al
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

 • 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
-C

ha
m

pi
on

s 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
  

 • 
D

ra
ft 

w
or

k 
pl

an
s 

fo
r A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
Ju

ni
or

 E
nv

iro
-C

ha
m

pi
on

 S
ch

em
e 

la
un

ch
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
4.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
R

ay
 G

er
la

ch
, 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

ul
tu

re
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pa
rk

s 
ne

tw
or

k 
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 B
or

ou
gh

 T
re

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 G

re
en

 G
rid

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 
th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

G
re

en
 G

rid
  

 • 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
la

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
t k

ey
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

th
e 

st
re

et
 s

ce
ne

 g
en

er
al

ly
.  

    • 
In

tro
du

ce
 tr

af
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
m

ot
or

 v
eh

ic
le

 J
ou

rn
ey

s 
an

d 
to

 
co

m
pl

em
en

t t
he

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 s
ch

em
e 

• 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 h

ab
ita

ts
 im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 5
 p

ar
ks

 o
r o

th
er

 
co

un
ci

l o
r p

ar
tn

er
 o

w
ne

d 
si

te
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

 • 
C

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

Tr
ee

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 

06
, w

ith
 2

50
 n

ew
 tr

ee
s 

pl
an

te
d 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

 • 
G

re
en

 G
rid

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
  

  • 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 R
om

an
 R

oa
d 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 S
tre

et
sc

en
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 B

et
hn

al
 G

re
en

 R
oa

d 
H

ol
is

tic
 C

or
rid

or
 

re
vi

ew
 s

tu
dy

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

ph
as

e 
1 

w
or

ks
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 P
op

la
r H

ig
hs

tre
et

 S
tre

et
sc

en
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
 • 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 L

in
co

ln
 H

om
e 

Zo
ne

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 2
0m

ph
 Z

on
e 

at
 C

am
br

id
ge

 H
ea

th
 R

oa
d 

/ V
al

la
nc

e 
R

oa
d 

/ T
hr

ee
 C

ol
ts

 L
an

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 2

0m
ph

 Z
on

e 
at

 C
he

sh
ire

 S
tre

et
 / 

V
al

la
nc

e 
R

oa
d 

/ C
om

m
er

ci
al

 S
tre

et
 / 

W
hi

te
ch

ap
el

 
R

oa
d 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
5.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ub
lic

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ay

 G
er

la
ch

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 C
ul

tu
re

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f p
ar

ks
 

  • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

 

• 
E

xi
st

in
g 

G
re

en
 F

la
gs

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

su
bm

is
si

on
 fo

r 1
 

ne
w

 fl
ag

 fo
r j

ud
gi

ng
 in

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

 • 
A

t l
ea

st
 1

 p
ar

k 
im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 e
ac

h 
LA

P
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
  

Page 235



 
 

25
 

• 
Le

t t
he

 H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l G
ro

un
ds

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
C

on
tra

ct
 

• 
C

ab
in

et
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f a
w

ar
d 

of
 c

on
tra

ct
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
• 

C
on

tra
ct

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
                                    

Page 236



 
 

26
 

LI
VI

N
G

 W
EL

L:
 T

H
I I

N
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 
FO

R
 2

00
6-

20
10

 
 D

ec
en

t h
om

es
 in

 d
ec

en
t n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
 Pr

io
rit

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

  
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
05

/6
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

N
um

be
r o

f e
m

pt
y 

pr
iv

at
e-

se
ct

or
 d

w
el

lin
g 

br
ou

gh
t b

ac
k 

in
to

 u
se

 (L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

20
17

17
17

17
17

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f n
on

-d
ec

en
t 

ho
m

es
 (B

V
18

4b
) 

27
.2

8%
7.

98
%

39
.1

2%
1.

52
%

N
/A

N
/A

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

ur
ge

nt
 re

pa
irs

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
im

e 
lim

its
 (c

ur
re

nt
 

TH
I1

0)
 

94
.5

5%
96

%
96

.5
%

97
%

97
.2

%
97

.5
%

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 re
-le

t t
im

e 
fo

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
(d

ay
s)

  (
B

V
21

2 
ne

w
 d

ef
in

iti
on

) 
36

 d
ay

s
35

.5
 d

ay
s

35
 d

ay
s

34
.5

 d
ay

s
34

 d
ay

s
33

.5
 d

ay
s 

D
ec

en
t h

om
es

 in
 

de
ce

nt
 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 re
pa

irs
 s

er
vi

ce
 

82
.5

%
83

%
84

%
85

%
86

%
87

%
 

  H
ea

lth
ie

r C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 Pr

io
rit

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

  
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
05

/6
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

P
re

va
le

nc
e 

of
  (

a)
 o

be
si

ty
 (b

) o
ve

rw
ei

gh
t i

n 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 y
ea

r 7
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

(L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

20
01

 
ba

se
lin

e 
=

(a
) 

20
%

*
(b

) 
33

%
*

(a
) 

23
%

(b
) 

38
%

(a
) 

22
%

(b
) 

35
%

(a
) 

21
%

(b
) 

35
%

N
/A

N
/A

 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 1

1-
15

 y
ea

r o
ld

s 
w

ho
 

sm
ok

e 
re

gu
la

rly
 (L

A
A

 p
rim

ar
y)

 

20
01

 
ba

se
lin

e 
= 

12
%

*
11

%
9%

8%
N

/A
N

/A
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
%

 o
f p

rim
ar

y 
ag

e 
pu

pi
ls

 h
av

in
g 

2 
ho

ur
s 

+ 
P

E
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

(L
A

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

60
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

 

H
ea

lth
ie

r 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 te

en
ag

e 
co

nc
ep

tio
ns

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 
19

98
 b

as
el

in
e 

(L
A

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 [1

99
8 

ba
se

lin
e 

= 
57

.8
 c

on
ce

pt
io

n 
pe

r 1
00

0 
fe

m
al

es
 a

ge
d 

15
-1

7]
 

25
%

 (2
00

4)
39

%
43

%
47

%
N

/A
N

/A
 

 *T
ar

ge
ts

 fo
r t

he
se

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
01

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l t
re

nd
s.

 D
at

a 
on

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 fr
om

 2
00

6/
7 

on
w

ar
ds

 

Page 237



 
 

27
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 

 Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 
A

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

in
 b

ed
 a

nd
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
 (B

V
18

3a
) 

4.
8 

w
ee

ks
4.

5 
w

ee
ks

4 
w

ee
ks

3.
5 

w
ee

ks
3 

w
ee

ks
3 

w
ee

ks
 

O
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 6

5 
or

 o
ve

r a
dm

itt
ed

 o
n 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t b

as
is

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

r 
nu

rs
in

g 
ca

re
 (p

er
 1

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n)

 
10

8.
1

85
80

75
75

75
 

A
du

lt 
an

d 
ol

de
r c

lie
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

ho
se

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

(D
40

) 
71

%
80

%
90

%
90

%
90

%
90

%
 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
in

te
ns

iv
e 

ho
m

e 
ca

re
 p

er
 

1,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ag
ed

 6
5 

or
 o

ve
r (

B
V

P
I 5

3 
/ C

28
) 

38
.6

 
38

38
38

38
38

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ca
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 th

at
 w

er
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. (
B

V
P

I 1
62

) 
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

w
ith

 th
re

e 
or

 m
or

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
(s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r)

 (B
V

P
I 4

9)
 

11
.4

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r, 

le
av

in
g 

ca
re

 
ag

ed
 1

6 
or

 o
ve

r w
ith

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
 G

C
S

E
 a

t g
ra

de
 A

-G
 

or
 a

 G
N

V
Q

. (
B

V
P

I 5
0 

/ C
F/

A
2)

 
54

.3
%

68
%

70
%

72
%

74
%

76
%

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 b
en

ef
its

 c
la

im
s 

 - 
 h

ou
si

ng
 

(B
V

78
a)

 
33

.7
9 

da
ys

 
31

 d
ay

s
30

 d
ay

s
29

 d
ay

s
28

.5
 d

ay
s

28
 d

ay
s 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

 

%
 o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 ra
tin

g 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 “v
er

y 
go

od
” o

r “
ex

ce
lle

nt
” (

D
52

) 
60

.3
%

65
%

65
%

80
%

80
%

80
%

 

 *D
at

a 
fo

r t
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
on

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
cl

os
e 

of
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r. 

Ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 2

00
6/

7 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
fe

r t
o 

re
su

lts
 d

ue
 in

 s
um

m
er

 2
00

6.
 

         

Page 238



 
 

28
 

LI
VI

N
G

 W
EL

L:
 IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 2
00

6/
7 

 
 D

ec
en

t h
om

es
 in

 d
ec

en
t n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
ec

en
t h

om
es

 a
nd

 
de

ce
nt

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
rs

: 
Ja

ck
ie

 O
du

no
ye

  
 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 re

pa
ir 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

or
ks

 to
 c

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 
es

ta
te

s 
• 

In
iti

at
e 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
or

ks
 to

 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
       • 

C
on

tin
ue

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
ho

ic
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
 fr

am
ew

or
ks

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 (L

A
A

) 
 

• 
In

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

• 
£2

2.
5m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

C
on

ta
ct

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f t
ar

ge
te

d 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

by
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

17
 e

m
pt

y 
ho

m
es

 b
ro

ug
ht

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
de

ce
nt

 h
om

es
 

st
an

da
rd

 a
nd

 re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 u

se
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
(L

S
P

A
 

ta
rg

et
)  

• 
25

 H
ou

se
pr

ou
d 

G
ra

nt
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
eq

ui
ty

 
re

le
as

e 
lo

an
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 H
ou

se
pr

ou
d 

S
ch

em
e 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
 • 

P
la

ns
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 d
ec

en
t h

om
es

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r s
to

ck
 

tra
ns

fe
rr

in
g 

in
 0

6/
07

 a
gr

ee
d 

at
 d

at
e 

of
 tr

an
sf

er
 

• 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 tr

ac
k 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 
de

ce
nt

 h
om

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 

 • 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
au

di
t a

nd
 m

ap
pi

ng
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 in
te

rim
 m

ap
pi

ng
 c

om
pl

et
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
• 

A
re

as
 fo

r f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 in
iti

al
 

sc
oo

pi
ng

 a
gr

ee
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
• 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

w
eb

si
te

 ru
nn

in
g 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 to
 R

S
L 

Fo
ru

m
  

2.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

rs
: 

Ja
ck

ie
 O

du
no

ye
  

 

• 
U

se
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 H

ou
si

ng
 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
G

ra
nt

 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ne
w

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

 • 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r R
en

ew
al

 a
nd

 
E

m
pt

y 
P

ro
pe

rty
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 

• 
P

ar
tn

er
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 e
na

bl
ed

 to
 

cr
ea

te
 1

03
5 

ne
w

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  • 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 E
m

pt
y 

P
ro

pe
rty

 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

30
0 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 v

ac
an

t d
w

el
lin

gs
 re

tu
rn

ed
 in

to
 

Page 239



 
 

29
 

  • 
In

tro
du

ce
 ta

rg
et

ed
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 to
 ta

ck
le

 u
nd

er
-

oc
cu

pa
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r e

xi
st

in
g 

te
na

nt
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 
to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

di
ng

 
   • 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 p

an
-L

on
do

n 
le

tti
ng

s 
po

lic
y 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
 h

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
m

od
el

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
O

pt
io

ns
 fo

r A
cc

es
s 

to
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
(L

A
A

) 
 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n 
/ d

em
ol

is
he

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 u
nd

er
-o

cc
up

at
io

n 
pa

ym
en

t s
ch

em
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
10

5 
le

tti
ng

s 
to

 u
nd

er
 - 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

• 
M

in
im

um
 o

f 2
00

 o
ve

rc
ro

w
de

d 
C

om
m

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 

R
eg

is
te

r t
en

an
ts

 re
-h

ou
se

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

cu
rr

en
t l

et
tin

gs
 p

ol
ic

y 
by

 M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 
• 

D
ec

is
io

n 
m

ad
e 

on
 b

id
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 p
an

 –
Lo

nd
on

 c
ho

ic
e 

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 • 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ho
m

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

m
od

el
s 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 in
te

rim
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 
• 

P
ot

en
tia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r p
ilo

t s
ch

em
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 in
iti

al
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
w

ith
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
R

S
Ls

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

an
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 re
po

rts
 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

R
S

L 
fo

ru
m

 
3.

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 h

ou
si

ng
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

rs
: 

M
au

re
en

 M
cE

le
ne

y 
          

• 
S

up
po

rt 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
si

de
nt

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 

w
id

er
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Te

na
nt

 C
om

pa
ct

. 
   • 

C
on

tin
ue

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
la

ns
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
        

• 
R

e-
la

un
ch

 o
f A

re
a 

R
es

id
en

t P
an

el
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

R
es

id
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

• 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

om
pa

ct
 G

ro
up

 c
on

st
itu

tio
n 

re
vi

se
d 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

 • 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 D
ire

ct
 D

eb
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r: 

- R
en

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 
- H

om
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
S

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 B
A

C
s 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
be

ne
fit

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

• 
P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r o

n-
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

• 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

fo
r t

ra
ns

la
tio

n 
an

d 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 

Page 240



 
 

30
 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 c

on
tra

ct
or

s 
an

d 
te

na
nt

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

ve
 re

pa
irs

 s
er

vi
ce

  
    • 

R
ev

ie
w

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 W

ar
m

th
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 w

ar
m

th
 s

er
vi

ce
 

• 
Jo

in
t s

er
vi

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
cu

st
om

er
 c

ar
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 c

on
tra

ct
or

s 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

C
or

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

gr
ou

p 
to

 m
on

ito
r c

om
m

un
al

 re
pa

irs
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 8

3%
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 fo
r r

ep
ai

rs
 s

er
vi

ce
 

 • 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

to
 2

5%
 o

f v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 

to
 h

el
p 

ad
dr

es
s 

fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

                           

Page 241



 
 

31
 

H
ea

lth
ie

r C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

K
ey

 A
ct

iv
ity

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 M

ile
st

on
e 

1.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

  
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
H

el
en

 J
en

ne
r, 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
    

• 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

H
ea

lth
y 

E
at

in
g 

in
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
ls

  
 • 

R
ed

uc
e 

pr
e-

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
od

 le
ve

ls
 to

 5
%

 o
f m

en
u 

ch
oi

ce
 in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
 • 

P
ro

vi
de

 2
 x

 w
ei

gh
t m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
(8

-1
6)

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 c
lin

ic
al

ly
 o

be
se

 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
  

• 
H

ea
lth

y 
E

at
in

g 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

ev
en

ts
 h

el
d 

in
 a

ll 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
ls

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
 • 

A
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 p

re
-p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
od

 in
 s

ch
oo

l 
m

en
us

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

1 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
2 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
40

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
07

 
2.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f 
ad

ul
ts

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 c

or
on

ar
y 

he
ar

t 
di

se
as

e 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
R

ay
 G

er
la

ch
, 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 C
ul

tu
re

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 G

P
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

re
fe

rr
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 
• 

E
xe

rc
is

e 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

un
de

rw
ay

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
50

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
pe

r q
ua

rte
r 

(2
00

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7)

  
• 

N
ew

 b
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

to
 b

eg
in

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

%
 o

f p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 m

ea
su

ra
bl

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

bl
oo

d 
pr

es
su

re
 a

nd
/o

r b
od

y 
m

as
s 

in
de

x 
 

• 
N

ew
 b

as
el

in
e 

da
ta

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
to

 b
eg

in
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
%

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 w

ho
 ta

ke
 u

p 
a 

H
ea

lth
y 

Li
vi

ng
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
at

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

’s
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s 
              

Page 242



 
 

32
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
  

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 d
el

iv
er

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e,

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

, t
im

el
y 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

du
lt 

ca
re

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r a
 d

iv
er

se
 

co
m

m
un

ity
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 G
ol

du
p,

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
S

tre
ng

th
en

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
al

l P
A

F 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 is
 in

 th
e 

to
p 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 b

an
d 

fo
r 2

00
6/

7 
 

• 
R

el
oc

at
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t d

el
iv

er
y 

 
 

• 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 B
M

E
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

vi
a 

m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
am

pa
ig

n 

• 
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

al
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 b

y 
en

d 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

 • 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
  

• 
C

am
pa

ig
n 

la
un

ch
ed

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 B
M

E
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 re

fle
ct

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pr
of

ile
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

  
2.

 
To

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 

ch
oi

ce
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 G
ol

du
p,

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 S
in

gl
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
 (S

A
P

) 
an

d 
un

ifi
ed

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 

   
• 

In
te

gr
at

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
ac

ro
ss

 h
ea

lth
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

on
 a

 lo
ca

lit
y 

ba
si

s 
 

• 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f C
en

tre
 fo

r I
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
Li

vi
ng

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

re
so

ur
ce

 c
en

tre
 

 
• 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
pl

an
s 

fo
r f

irs
t t

hr
ee

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 
re

so
ur

ce
 c

en
tre

s,
 c

o-
lo

ca
tin

g 
he

al
th

, s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e,

 
an

d 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
 

• 
S

A
P

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
S

A
P

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 a
ll 

ot
he

r s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

 
• 

M
od

el
 fo

r i
nt

eg
ra

te
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

 
• 

O
ut

lin
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e 
on

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ce
nt

re
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

 
  

• 
S

ite
s 

an
d 

al
l n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
pp

ro
va

ls
 s

ec
ur

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

3.
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 b

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

as
 ‘j

oi
ne

d 
up

’ a
cr

os
s 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 G
ol

du
p,

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t L

on
g 

Te
rm

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 S

tra
te

gy
 jo

in
tly

 
w

ith
 T

H
P

C
T 

an
d 

B
LT

 
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 m

or
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
liv

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 in

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 

• 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r h
om

e 
ca

re
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 
st

af
f c

om
pl

et
e 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
10

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rte
d 

liv
in

g 
un

its
 b

ro
ug

ht
 o

n 
st

re
am

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 

Page 243



 
 

33
 

4.
 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

be
tw

ee
n 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 G
ol

du
p,

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
w

ith
 

K
ev

an
 C

ol
lin

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 o

n 
tra

ns
iti

on
s 

to
 

ad
ul

th
oo

d 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

an
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 / 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

to
 e

m
be

d 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
w

ith
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
E

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
on

 tr
an

si
tio

ns
 to

 a
du

lth
oo

d 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

an
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 / 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
re

vi
se

d 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 

5.
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lts
 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

ei
r c

om
m

un
ity

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Jo

hn
 G

ol
du

p,
 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
E

xt
en

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

  
• 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

as
 C

iti
ze

ns
  

• 
10

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 (M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
ba

se
lin

e)
 o

n 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 w

ith
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

an
d 

/ 
or

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

kn
ow

n 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
A

s 
pe

r a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
 

6.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ta
rg

et
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lts
 a

nd
 

un
iv

er
sa

l p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Jo

hn
 G

ol
du

p,
 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
U

pd
at

e 
al

l c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
, j

oi
nt

ly
 w

ith
 

N
H

S
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 to
 re

fle
ct

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

, 
up

da
te

d 
ne

ed
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
in

 n
at

io
na

l p
ol

ic
y 

– 
e.

g.
 W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
 o

n 
ou

t o
f 

ho
sp

ita
l c

ar
e 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

a 
P

at
ie

nt
 L

ed
 

N
H

S
 

• 
P

ro
je

ct
 p

la
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

R
ev

is
ed

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 re
le

va
nt

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
B

oa
rd

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

7.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
an

d 
m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
rs

: 
V

er
no

n 
S

im
ps

on
, D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

R
en

ew
al

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

  

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
20

05
-0

8 
        • 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 5

0%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
liv

in
g 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
by

 2
01

0 
  

• 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
 to

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

B
oa

rd
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 

20
07

  
• 

N
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 3

%
 re

vo
lv

in
g-

do
or

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
M

in
im

um
 o

f 3
00

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
ca

se
s 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
  

• 
20

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

nt
 d

ep
os

its
 fo

r p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

M
in

im
um

 o
f 8

50
 p

er
m

an
en

t h
om

es
 le

t t
o 

ho
m

el
es

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 2

50
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
S

ix
 m

on
th

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 

Page 244



 
 

34
 

 • 
S

us
ta

in
 a

nd
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

-
re

la
te

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
      • 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f S
he

lte
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
  

  • 
Ta

rg
et

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f D

is
ab

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 

re
m

ai
n 

liv
in

g 
in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ho

m
es

 

 
• 

M
in

im
um

 o
f 8

0%
 o

f S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

liv
in

g 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
• 

M
in

im
um

 o
f 3

0%
 S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
to

 
ha

ve
 a

 p
la

nn
ed

 m
ov

e 
fro

m
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 li
vi

ng
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
S

ix
 m

on
th

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
B

od
y 

 • 
O

pt
io

ns
 re

po
rt 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
   

 • 
£6

00
,0

00
 D

is
ab

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

s 
in

ve
st

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l t

en
ur

es
 re

vi
ew

ed
 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
A

cc
es

si
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

eg
is

te
r l

au
nc

he
d 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

8.
 

To
 m

ax
im

is
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ec

ur
ity

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

dv
ic

e 
to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ic

ha
el

 K
ea

tin
g 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
   

• 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

w
el

fa
re

 b
en

ef
it 

an
d 

ta
x 

cr
ed

it 
ta

ke
 u

p 
in

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 k
ey

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
pa

rtn
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bi
lin

gu
al

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r f

or
m

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
 • 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 li

te
ra

cy
, a

cc
es

s 
to

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 b
an

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
re

di
t f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 a
nd

 to
 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

ed
 d

eb
t a

dv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

   • 
P

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
at

 k
ey

 p
la

ce
s 

on
 

W
or

ki
ng

 T
ax

 C
re

di
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ch

ild
ca

re
 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

  
 • 

M
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
sp

ee
d 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
cl

ai
m

s 
 

• 
Ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 p
en

si
on

 c
re

di
t, 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

vi
ng

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 

an
d 

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

llo
w

an
ce

, p
lu

s 
ke

y 
in

 w
or

k 
be

ne
fit

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 ta

x 
cr

ed
its

 a
nd

, c
hi

ld
 ta

x 
cr

ed
it,

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 £

6m
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

P
ub

lic
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
fin

an
ci

al
 

lit
er

ac
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

N
ew

  o
ut

re
ac

h 
de

bt
 a

dv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
6 

fin
an

ci
al

 li
te

ra
cy

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r  
20

06
 

 • 
A

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

n 
on

 T
ax

 C
re

di
t h

el
d 

in
 

ev
er

y 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
  • 

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 n
ew

 b
en

ef
its

 c
la

im
s 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 3

1 
 d

ay
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

Page 245



 
 

35
 

 
• 

C
om

pl
et

e 
w

or
kf

lo
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 o

n 
th

e 
D

IP
 a

nd
 

w
or

kf
lo

w
 s

ys
te

m
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t 0
6 

9.
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
pa

re
nt

s 
w

ho
 w

is
h 

to
 re

tu
rn

 to
 w

or
k 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

H
el

en
 J

en
ne

r, 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
A

ud
it 

cu
rr

en
t c

hi
ld

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 p
la

n 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 
  

• 
R

ev
is

ed
 p

la
n 

fo
r c

hi
ld

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 

                              

Page 246



 
 

36
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

K
ey

 A
ct

iv
ity

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 M

ile
st

on
e 

1.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e,
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
H

el
en

 J
en

ne
r 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
en

tre
s 

an
d 

E
xt

en
de

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n.

 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

 h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

ed
 s

ch
oo

ls
 w

ith
 a

 y
ea

r o
n 

ye
ar

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

of
fe

re
d 

 • 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

 
 • 

In
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
lo

ca
l n

et
w

or
k 

of
 4

0 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

pe
er

 le
d 

ad
vi

se
rs

  

• 
P

la
ns

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

  • 
A

t l
ea

st
 8

5%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r h
av

e 
an

nu
al

 
he

al
th

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
en

ta
l c

he
ck

s 
on

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

, r
ev

ie
w

ed
 q

ua
rte

rly
 

 • 
22

5 
da

ys
 C

A
M

H
S

 in
pu

t i
nt

o 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

to
 o

th
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
se

tti
ng

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

  • 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 

2.
 

To
 in

te
gr

at
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 
sh

ar
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

H
el

en
 J

en
ne

r 

• 
B

ui
ld

 o
n 

pi
lo

t w
or

k 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 h
ea

lth
 v

is
ito

rs
, s

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 
C

om
m

on
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r t
he

 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

 • 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 n

ee
d 

at
 ri

sk
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
by

 b
et

te
r 

sc
re

en
in

g 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

pi
lo

t a
ct

iv
ity

 o
n 

C
om

m
on

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
   • 

5%
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 n
ee

d 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 
3.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

to
 

bl
ac

k 
an

d 
m

in
or

ity
 e

th
ni

c 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
eq

ua
lly

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

, r
es

po
ns

iv
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 a
ll 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

S
er

vi
ce

 H
ea

d 
-  

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

• 
C

ar
ry

 o
ut

 E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fo

r a
ll 

m
aj

or
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

no
va

tio
ns

, w
ith

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

  
 • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
pr

iv
at

el
y 

fo
st

er
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
fro

m
 e

th
ni

c 
m

in
or

iti
es

 b
y 

vi
si

tin
g 

an
d 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

es
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 th
is

 w
or

k 
 

 • 
S

up
po

rt 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 fa

ith
 g

ro
up

s 
in

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

• 
6 

m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
es

 
   • 

S
up

po
rt 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 4

0 
pr

iv
at

el
y 

fo
st

er
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
by

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

   • 
M

on
ito

r a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t w
ith

 A
C

P
C

  

Page 247



 
 

37
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fa
ith

 g
ro

up
s 

to
 th

e 
A

C
P

C
 

an
d 

ne
w

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

4.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 h

av
e 

eq
ua

l 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 e
nj

oy
 a

nd
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

S
er

vi
ce

 H
ea

d 
-  

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 o

n 
tra

ns
iti

on
s 

to
 

ad
ul

th
oo

d 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

an
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 / 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

 

• 
E

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
on

 tr
an

si
tio

ns
 to

 a
du

lth
oo

d 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

an
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 / 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
re

vi
se

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

 

5.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 c

hi
ld

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

w
or

k.
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

 K
ev

an
 C

ol
lin

s 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
Lo

ca
l S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
B

oa
rd

 
 

• 
R

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

on
 ro

le
 a

nd
 

fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
, w

ith
 re

vi
ew

s 
of

 c
hi

ld
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ca

se
s 

at
 1

00
%

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 
 

6.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
 S

er
vi

ce
 H

ea
d 

-  
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

us
in

g 
th

e 
‘T

H
IS

 C
hi

ld
’ [

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
s]

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 b

et
te

r t
ra

ck
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 

• 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 s
up

po
rt 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

07
 

7.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
lif

e 
ch

an
ce

s 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

ar
e.

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
S

er
vi

ce
 H

ea
d 

-  
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 

• 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 p
ub

lic
 c

ar
e 

ha
ve

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, s

ta
bl

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ca
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

in
g,

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

tiv
e 

tra
ck

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
su

pp
or

t p
ac

ka
ge

s 
to

 th
os

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f 

m
ul

tip
le

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 b
ul

ly
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 d
is

se
m

in
at

e 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
 • 

M
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r a

re
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
hi

gh
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

, a
nd

 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
se

tti
ng

 th
ei

r o
w

n 

• 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
th

re
e 

or
 m

or
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 re

du
ce

d 
to

 
10

%
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

    • 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

  • 
M

on
th

ly
 re

po
rts

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f P

E
P

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
  

Page 248



 
 

38
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 ta
rg

et
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
th

ei
r 

P
er

so
na

l E
du

ca
tio

n 
P

la
ns

 
  • 

Ta
rg

et
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

up
po

rt 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
tu

iti
on

 p
la

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
ny

 g
ap

s 
in

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
ch

ild
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r m
ay

 h
av

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

  

• 
G

C
S

E
  A

-G
 a

tta
in

m
en

t i
nc

re
as

ed
 to

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 
aw

ar
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

68
%

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r b
y 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

6 
 • 

R
ed

uc
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
fro

m
 s

ch
oo

l 
to

 4
.5

%
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

                               

Page 249



 
 

39
 

C
R

EA
TI

N
G

 &
 S

H
A

R
IN

G
 P

R
O

SP
ER

IT
Y:

 T
H

I I
N

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 2
00

6-
20

10
 

 Se
cu

rin
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

  
 Pr

io
rit

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

  
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
05

/6
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

35
.0

0%
60

%
60

%
60

%
60

%
60

%
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 

8 
w

ee
ks

 
78

.5
6%

80
.2

5%
80

.5
%

81
%

81
.2

5%
81

.5
%

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

 
85

.3
5%

88
.2

5%
88

.3
%

88
.5

%
88

.7
5%

89
%

 

N
um

be
r o

f b
us

in
es

se
s 

/ s
oc

ia
l e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 a

ss
is

te
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
  

N
/A

25
40

60
80

80
 

Se
cu

rin
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

W
or

th
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

s 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

£4
m

£4
.5

m
£6

m
£7

m
N

/A
N

/A
 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t  

 Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 
%

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 a
ge

d 
15

-1
8 

no
t i

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r t

ra
in

in
g 

(L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y 
to

 2
00

8)
* 

13
.5

%
11

.5
%

8.
2%

7.
5 

%
7.

0%
6.

0%
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 2
4 

an
d 

un
de

r i
n 

re
ce

ip
t o

f J
ob

se
ek

er
s 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 (a

nd
 n

ot
 o

n 
N

ew
 

D
ea

l) 
he

lp
ed

 in
to

 p
ai

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f o

ve
r 1

6 
ho

ur
s 

a 
w

ee
k 

fo
r 1

3 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
w

ee
ks

 o
r m

or
e 

(L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

10
0

20
0

25
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

ge
d 

18
-

25
 c

la
im

in
g 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t-r
el

at
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 
20

.6
%

16
.5

%
16

.0
%

15
.0

%
14

.0
%

13
.0

%
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 c
la

im
in

g 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 b

en
ef

its
  

8.
5%

8.
3%

8.
2%

8.
0%

7.
9%

7.
8%

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
lo

ca
l 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

pp
ly

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

in
 

ke
y 

gr
ow

th
 s

ec
to

rs
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

 d
ire

ct
ly

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t C
on

so
rti

um
 

12
72

13
50

14
00

14
50

15
00

15
00

 

 *D
at

a 
fo

r t
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
co

lla
te

d 
af

te
r t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 y

ea
r. 

Ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 2

00
6/

7 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
fe

r t
o 

re
su

lts
 d

ue
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6.
 

Page 250



 
 

40
 

C
R

EA
TI

N
G

 &
 S

H
A

R
IN

G
 P

R
O

SP
ER

IT
Y:

 IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 2

00
6/

7 
 

 Se
cu

rin
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

K
ey

 a
ct

iv
ity

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 M

ile
st

on
es

 
1.

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

an
d 

so
ci

al
ly

 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

O
w

en
 W

ha
lle

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

      • 
D

ev
el

op
 C

en
tra

l A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

  • 
M

ak
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 o

n 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
R

ev
is

ed
 L

on
do

n 
P

la
n 

E
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
in

 P
ub

lic
 a

nd
 th

e 
G

LA
’s

 D
ra

ft 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Fr
am

ew
or

ks
 

• 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t, 

C
or

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tro
l d

oc
um

en
t, 

W
as

te
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
an

d 
th

re
e 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 to
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
 fo

r i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

• 
A

nn
ua

l M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

et
ur

n 
fo

r 2
00

6/
7 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
C

on
su

lt 
on

 C
en

tra
l A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 
op

tio
ns

 b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

G
iv

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 to

 L
on

do
n 

P
la

n 
E

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

in
 P

ub
lic

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

 
• 

M
ak

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 o
n 

Lo
w

er
 L

ea
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
C

ity
 

Fr
in

ge
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 A

re
a 

P
la

nn
in

g 
Fr

am
ew

or
ks

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 
2.

 
To

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ba
se

d 
ar

ea
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r b

or
ou

gh
 re

si
de

nt
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

O
w

en
 W

ha
lle

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 in

te
re

st
s 

in
 s

ha
pi

ng
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f C

ro
ss

ra
il,

 
D

oc
kl

an
ds

 L
ig

ht
 R

ai
lw

ay
 a

nd
 E

as
t L

on
do

n 
Li

ne
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

   • 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

O
ly

m
pi

cs
 D

el
iv

er
y 

A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 

G
LA

 a
nd

 L
on

do
n 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 O

ly
m

pi
cs

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
 • 

W
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 p
riv

at
e 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

se
ct

or
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r k

ey
 s

ite
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 

• 
C

or
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 to
 H

ou
se

 o
f C

om
m

on
s 

S
el

ec
t 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
po

si
tio

n 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

on
 th

e 
D

LR
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

W
or

ks
 

O
rd

er
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 L

an
gd

on
 P

ar
k 

D
LR

 s
ta

tio
n 

to
 

co
m

m
en

ce
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 • 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

tra
ns

iti
on

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r O
ly

m
pi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

to
 O

ly
m

pi
c 

D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

   • 
In

te
rim

 p
la

nn
in

g 
gu

id
el

in
es

 a
do

pt
ed

 fo
r 

- 
B

ro
m

le
y 

by
 B

ow
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

- 
W

hi
te

ch
ap

el
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

Page 251



 
 

41
 

- 
A

ld
ga

te
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
M

as
te

rp
la

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

iti
at

ed
 

- 
To

ba
cc

o 
D

oc
k/

 N
ew

s 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

 
- 

W
at

ne
y 

S
tre

et
/ S

ha
dw

el
l –

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r: 
- 

W
oo

d 
W

ha
rf 

- S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

- 
B

is
ho

ps
ga

te
 G

oo
ds

 Y
ar

d 
- D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

- 
S

t. 
K

at
ha

rin
e’

s 
D

oc
k-

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
3.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
 o

f 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l a
nd

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tro
l p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ic
ha

el
 K

ie
ly

, 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
Tr

an
sf

er
 h

is
to

ric
al

 c
as

e 
fil

es
 o

n 
to

 c
om

pu
te

r 
ba

se
d 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l 

    • 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 fl

ex
ib

le
 w

or
ki

ng
 

          • 
In

cr
ea

se
 u

se
 o

f e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
  • 

In
tro

du
ce

 n
ew

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

on
tro

l a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t i

ss
ue

s 

• 
S

co
pi

ng
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 L

an
d 

C
ha

rg
es

 d
ig

iti
sa

tio
n 

fin
al

is
ed

 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

10
0%

 o
f n

ew
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
ig

iti
se

d 
on

 re
ce

ip
t 

– 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

A
ll 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

eg
is

te
r d

ec
is

io
n 

no
tic

es
 s

ca
nn

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

Ta
bl

et
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 fo
r u

se
 b

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
in

sp
ec

to
rs

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

tu
rn

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
: 

- 
60

%
 B

V
10

9a
 (m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
) 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

- 
O

ve
r 8

0%
 B

V
10

9b
 (m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
) 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

  
- 

O
ve

r 8
8%

 B
V

10
9c

 (o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

) 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
  

- 
B

V
 1

11
 (s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
) t

o 
sh

ow
 a

t l
ea

st
 a

 1
0%

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

n 
en

ha
nc

ed
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r a
ll 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

10
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 
st

an
da

rd
 o

f t
he

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t f
un

ct
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 u
ph

el
d 

- M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

4.
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
bu

si
ne

ss
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ne

tw
or

ki
ng

 
• 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ev
en

t 
ce

nt
re

 fo
r a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

• 
P

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 b
us

in
es

s 
m

en
to

r p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 

Page 252



 
 

42
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

E
m

m
a 

P
et

er
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 R

en
ew

al
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
  • 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 d

et
ai

le
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
 • 

U
pd

at
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
of

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 

• 
A

ss
is

t 2
5 

lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s/

 e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

In
iti

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

  • 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 la

bo
ur

 m
ar

ke
t b

ul
le

tin
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 
• 

A
nn

ua
l p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
 fo

r t
he

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
  L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t  
– 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
5.

 
To

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
ke

y 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

se
ct

or
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

E
m

m
a 

P
et

er
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 R

en
ew

al
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 s

ec
to

r s
up

pl
y 

ch
ai

ns
 a

nd
 re

la
te

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 ta

rg
et

in
g 

H
LT

T 
an

d 
B

us
in

es
s 

to
 B

us
in

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
  

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
£0

.5
m

 th
e 

w
or

th
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

s 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s,
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

6.
 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 to
 k

ey
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
E

m
m

a 
P

et
er

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 R
en

ew
al

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

ve
ys

 k
ey

 m
es

sa
ge

s 
to

 a
ll 

ou
rs

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

to
ur

is
m

 a
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 
 • 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
’s

 a
nd

 E
as

t L
on

do
n’

s 
of

fe
r f

or
 b

us
in

es
s 

to
ur

is
m

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

, 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

, c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
nd

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
s 

m
ar

ke
ts

 

• 
Li

br
ar

y 
of

 d
ig

ita
l i

m
ag

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
l 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

D
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 

  • 
15

%
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f b
us

in
es

s 
to

ur
is

m
 

en
qu

iri
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
5%

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

o.
 o

f m
aj

or
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 / 

ev
en

ts
 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 in

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

7.
 

To
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
en

te
rp

ris
in

g 
th

ird
 

se
ct

or
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

C
hr

is
 H

ol
m

e,
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 R
en

ew
al

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
S

up
po

rt 
en

tre
pr

en
eu

ria
l a

ct
iv

ity
 a

m
on

gs
t t

he
 

lo
ca

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

 • 
S

up
po

rt 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 R

ic
h 

M
ix

 
C

en
tre

 a
s 

a 
fla

gs
hi

p 
pr

oj
ec

t l
in

ke
d 

to
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

in
du

st
rie

s 

• 
19

 s
oc

ia
l e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 s

up
po

rte
d 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
R

ev
en

ue
 s

up
po

rt 
ag

re
em

en
t f

in
al

is
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 

• 
C

en
tre

 fu
lly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
8.

 
To

 h
ar

ne
ss

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
 

by
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

C
hr

is
 H

ol
m

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
E

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ut
ili

sa
tio

n 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

P
la

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

• 
O

ve
r 3

0 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 s

up
po

rte
d 

to
 

de
liv

er
 k

ey
 C

re
at

in
g 

&
 S

ha
rin

g 
P

ro
sp

er
ity

 o
ut

co
m

es
 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 0

6 
• 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 S
R

B
6 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
Jo

in
t E

ur
op

ea
n/

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
 s

up
po

rte
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

 

Page 253



 
 

43
 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t  

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
K

ey
 a

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

es
 

1.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
tra

ns
iti

on
 fr

om
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 w
or

k 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
y 

D
ur

ki
n,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
/im

pr
ov

e 
ca

re
er

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
by

 m
or

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 li
nk

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 k

ey
 g

ro
w

th
 s

ec
to

rs
 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
 m

or
e 

in
te

rn
sh

ip
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 w

ith
 k

ey
 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
fo

r s
ch

oo
l l

ea
ve

rs
 

 • 
C

on
tin

ue
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

tra
ck

in
g 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

e 
16

 a
nd

 1
7 

 
 • 

P
ro

vi
de

 e
ve

ry
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

w
ith

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 ra
ng

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s:

 D
ev

el
op

 
co

m
pa

tib
le

 d
at

ab
as

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 fu

rth
er

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 1

4-
19

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
to

 c
ar

ee
rs

 in
 k

ey
 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
as

 

• 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t e

ve
nt

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 0

7 
 

• 
Jo

in
t a

nn
ua

l p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt,

 in
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, s
ho

w
s 

75
 p

up
ils

 
ta

ki
ng

 p
ar

t i
n 

em
pl

oy
er

-le
d 

ca
re

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 - 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

In
te

rn
sh

ip
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 w

ith
 k

ey
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 

 
• 

R
ep

or
t f

ro
m

 F
ut

ur
es

 o
n 

16
 a

nd
 1

7 
ye

ar
 o

ld
 d

es
tin

at
io

n 
 

su
rv

ey
s 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 re
po

rt 
on

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 d

at
a 

ba
se

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6,

 w
ith

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r d
at

a 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

by
 2

00
8 

 
• 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

• 
S

ki
lls

m
at

ch
 S

ki
lls

la
dd

er
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 fo
r 

N
E

E
T 

gr
ou

p 
- 3

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 fo
r 6

0 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 
 • 

N
ew

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

ad
em

y 
op

en
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

2.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 c

om
pe

te
 fo

r 
jo

bs
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

S
ue

 H
in

ds
, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 R
en

ew
al

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 C

P
A

G
/C

on
so

rti
um

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
m

od
el

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
de

liv
er

y 
 • 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 tr

an
si

tio
na

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 

ke
y 

gr
ow

th
 s

ec
to

rs
 

 • 
S

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

ot
he

r 4
 H

os
t O

ly
m

pi
c 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 2
 y

ea
r p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
-le

d 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 e
m

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 o

f l
oc

al
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
– 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 • 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t e
ve

nt
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 0

6 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

t t
he

 n
ew

 C
an

ar
y 

W
ha

rf 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
en

tre
 

 • 
LE

TF
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 L

D
A

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

5 
bo

ro
ug

h 
jo

b 
br

ok
er

ag
e 

te
am

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 

op
er

at
io

na
l b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

Page 254



 
 

44
 

3.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t f
or

 ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

s 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
S

ue
 H

in
ds

, 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 g

ro
w

th
 s

ec
to

rs
 to

 
m

ax
im

is
e 

jo
b 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r l

oc
al

 re
si

de
nt

s 
  • 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 p

ilo
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
P

C
T 

an
d 

Jo
b 

C
en

tre
 P

lu
s,

 fo
r c

lie
nt

s 
on

 
in

ca
pa

ci
ty

 b
en

ef
it 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 re

tu
rn

 to
 w

or
k 

• 
S

ki
lls

m
at

ch
 a

ss
is

t 6
00

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

U
nd

er
 2

5 
JS

A
 c

lie
nt

s 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 5
50

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 

                               

Page 255



 
 

45
 

LE
A

R
N

IN
G

, A
C

H
IE

VE
M

EN
T 

&
 L

EI
SU

R
E:

 T
H

I I
N

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 2
00

6-
20

10
 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l a
tta

in
m

en
t  

 Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
up

ils
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 5
 o

r m
or

e 
G

C
S

E
s 

at
 g

ra
de

 A
-C

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
M

at
hs

 (L
P

S
A

 / 
LA

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
* 

30
%

34
%

39
%

42
%

47
%

49
%

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 A
-L

ev
el

 p
oi

nt
s 

sc
or

e 
pe

r s
tu

de
nt

 in
 T

ow
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 (L

P
S

A
 / 

LA
A

 p
rim

ar
y)

* 
20

4.
2

22
9

24
7

27
9

28
5

31
0 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

up
ils

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 le

ve
l 5

 in
 b

ot
h 

E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
at

 K
ey

 S
ta

ge
 3

 (L
A

A
 

pr
im

ar
y)

* 
52

%
57

%
61

%
69

%
70

%
71

%
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ve

ra
ll 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 ra

te
s 

(L
A

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
* 

a)
 

P
rim

ar
y 

 
b)

 
S

ec
on

da
ry

 

a)
 

93
.9

%
b)

 
92

.6
%

a)
 

94
.8

%
b)

 
92

.9
%

a)
 

95
%

b)
 

93
%

a)
 

95
.5

%
b)

 
93

.5
%

a)
 

96
%

b)
 

94
%

a)
 

96
%

 
b)

 
94

%
 

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 a
bs

en
ce

 (L
A

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
* 

a)
 

P
rim

ar
y 

b)
 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 

a)
 

1.
2%

b)
 

2.
4%

a)
 

1.
1%

b)
 

2.
2%

a)
 

0.
95

%
b)

 
1.

9%
 

a)
 

0.
8%

b)
 

1.
6%

a)
 

0.
7%

b)
 

1.
4%

a)
 

0.
65

%
 

b)
 1

.3
%

 
K

S
2:

 %
 L

ev
el

 4
 o

r a
bo

ve
 (E

ng
lis

h)
* 

77
%

84
%

85
%

85
.7

%
86

.2
%

86
.7

%
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
at

ta
in

m
en

t 

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 u
se

rs
 w

ith
  

a)
 

pr
im

ar
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
b)

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
 

a)
 

39
%

b)
 

35
%

a)
 

40
%

b)
 

36
%

a)
 

44
%

b)
 

41
%

a)
 

47
%

b)
 

46
%

a)
 

50
%

b)
 

50
%

a)
 

53
%

 
b)

 
55

%
 

 *D
at

a 
fo

r t
he

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 is
 o

nl
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

cl
os

e 
of

 th
e 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r. 
Ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 2
00

6/
7 

th
er

ef
or

e 
re

fe
r t

o 
re

su
lts

 d
ue

 in
 s

um
m

er
 2

00
6.

 
           

Page 256



 
 

46
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 s

po
rt

in
g,

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 Pr

io
rit

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

  
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
05

/6
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

N
um

be
r o

f u
nd

er
 1

6s
 w

ho
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

e 
us

er
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Id
ea

 S
to

re
s 

an
d 

lib
ra

rie
s 

(L
P

S
A

) 
14

,0
08

17
,8

00
19

,2
72

19
,4

65
19

,6
59

19
,8

56
 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f l
ib

ra
ry

 it
em

s 
is

su
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

 1
6s

 
(L

P
S

A
) 

27
9,

60
7

29
8,

30
4

31
7,

00
0

32
0,

17
0

32
3,

37
2

32
6,

60
5 

N
um

be
r o

f u
nd

er
 1

6s
 re

gu
la

rly
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

st
ud

y 
su

pp
or

t s
es

si
on

s 
(L

P
S

A
) 

46
9

49
2

51
7

54
3

57
0

59
9 

N
um

be
r o

f u
nd

er
 1

9s
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
a 

co
ur

se
 in

 Id
ea

 
S

to
re

s,
 li

br
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
en

tre
s 

(L
P

S
A

) 
1,

06
5

1,
40

0
1,

46
4

1,
47

9
1,

49
3

1,
50

8 

N
um

be
r o

f l
ib

ra
ry

 v
is

its
/ 1

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

7,
70

9
9,

77
5

9,
88

1
9,

88
4

 9
,9

02
9,

93
3 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 s

po
rt

in
g,

 
le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
as

ke
d 

w
ho

 th
in

k 
th

at
 le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
sp

or
ts

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
go

od
, v

er
y 

go
od

 o
r 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 (A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 S
ur

ve
y)

 
39

%
45

%
48

%
51

%
54

%
57

%
 

                    

Page 257



 
 

47
 

LE
A

R
N

IN
G

, A
C

H
IE

VE
M

EN
T 

&
 L

EI
SU

R
E:

 IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 2

00
6/

7 
 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l a
tta

in
m

en
t  

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 p
re

-
sc

ho
ol

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 to

 g
iv

e 
ev

er
y 

ch
ild

 th
e 

be
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
st

ar
t i

n 
lif

e 
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

H
el

en
 J

en
ne

r, 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

  

• 
E

xt
en

d 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 e

ar
ly

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 th

ro
ug

h 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

ne
tw

or
ks

 
 • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 in
 e

ar
ly

 la
ng

ua
ge

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 a

nd
 e

m
ot

io
na

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
 • 

In
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r o

f p
ar

en
ts

 re
tu

rn
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
    • 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 o
f h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
  

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f  
al

l p
ar

en
ts

 in
 

w
or

k 
or

 s
ee

ki
ng

 w
or

k 

• 
15

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
en

tre
s 

op
en

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

07
   

• 
92

%
 o

f t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r o

ld
s 

at
te

nd
in

g 
ea

rly
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
 • 

‘E
xc

el
le

nc
e 

in
 L

an
gu

ag
e’

 p
ro

je
ct

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 a
 fu

rth
er

 
th

re
e 

pl
ay

 g
ro

up
s 

(p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

rt 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6)
 

  • 
Jo

b 
C

en
tre

 P
lu

s 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 a

ll 
S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

en
tre

s 
by

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
 

• 
6 

ch
ild

ca
re

 ta
x 

cr
ed

it 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

ns
 fo

r 
ch

ild
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 h
el

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

 • 
A

ud
it 

of
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 q
ua

lit
y 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
  

2.
 

To
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 ra
is

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ta

rg
et

ed
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Te
rr

y 
P

ar
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
Th

ro
ug

h 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
 ta

rg
et

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 th
os

e 
pu

pi
ls

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 n

ot
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 le
ve

l 4
 in

 b
ot

h 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
m

at
he

m
at

ic
s 

by
 a

ge
 1

1 
 

  • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 p
ee

r l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

fo
r 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

• 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r 

Y
5 

pu
pi

ls
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

• 
A

gr
ee

d 
w

or
kp

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r a

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 
20

06
 

 • 
A

ll 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 p
ee

r 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

k 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 

3.
 

To
 a

cc
el

er
at

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

in
 a

tta
in

m
en

t w
ith

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 3
 a

nd
 

E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
at

 
G

C
S

E
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Te
rr

y 
P

ar
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
Th

ro
ug

h 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
ta

rg
et

 p
up

ils
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 n
ot

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

le
ve

l 5
 in

 E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
by

 
ag

e 
14

, a
nd

 th
os

e 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f n

ot
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 A
-C

 
gr

ad
es

 in
 E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
m

at
he

m
at

ic
s,

 b
ut

 w
ho

se
 

pr
io

r a
tta

in
m

en
t s

ug
ge

st
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 th

is
  

 

• 
G

oo
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 a
nn

ua
l t

ar
ge

ts
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 

m
id

-y
ea

r p
re

di
ct

io
n 

co
lle

ct
ed

 fr
om

 s
ch

oo
ls

 fo
r y

ea
r 9

 
an

d 
ye

ar
 1

1 
(D

ec
em

be
r-

Fe
br

ua
ry

 a
nn

ua
lly

) 
• 

In
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r y
ea

r 7
 p

up
ils

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
le

ve
l 5

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 3
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 

20
06

 

Page 258



 
 

48
 

4.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f p
os

t-1
6 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Te

rr
y 

P
ar

ki
n,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

an
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (E
IP

) i
nv

ol
vi

ng
 a

ll 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 C

ol
le

ge
, a

nd
 th

e 
LS

C
LE

 a
nd

 H
E

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
 • 

Th
ro

ug
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

E
B

P
  i

nc
re

as
e 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

an
d 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
 • 

To
 p

ilo
t, 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
fE

S
 a

nd
 L

S
C

LE
 s

up
po

rt,
 o

ne
 

or
 m

or
e 

ne
w

  d
ip

lo
m

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 w

or
k-

ba
se

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
is

si
on

 n
ew

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
t l

ev
el

 1
 o

r l
ow

er
 p

os
t 1

6 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 L

D
D

 

• 
E

IP
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
C

om
m

on
 b

or
ou

gh
 1

6-
19

  p
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
  • 

A
ll 

14
-1

9 
pu

pi
ls

 o
ffe

re
d 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
  • 

V
oc

at
io

na
l a

re
a(

s)
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  • 
P

re
-e

nt
ry

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 Y
ou

th
 a

nd
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

on
tra

ct
or

s 
fro

m
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
an

d 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 th

e 
LS

C
LE

 b
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7 

5.
 

To
 e

nr
ic

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

ra
is

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

at
ta

in
m

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f a
 

pe
rs

on
al

is
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
le

ar
ni

ng
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Te
rr

y 
P

ar
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

  

• 
E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
l S

tra
te

gy
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

  • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r f

am
ili

es
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

re
n 

so
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, a

nd
 h

ow
 th

ey
 m

ig
ht

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
• 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

us
e 

m
ad

e 
of

  p
ro

vi
si

on
 m

ap
pi

ng
 &

 
P

up
il 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t T
ra

ck
er

 (P
A

T)
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 
at

ta
in

m
en

t a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rs

on
al

is
ed

 p
la

nn
in

g 
  • 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 A

rts
 a

nd
 M

us
ic

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 la

un
ch

ed
 

• 
C

or
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 e

xt
en

de
d 

sc
ho

ol
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

st
ar

te
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

Ta
rg

et
s 

se
t f

or
 v

is
its

 to
 c

ul
tu

ra
l e

ve
nt

s 
by

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

  • 
B

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6,

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 u
si

ng
 b

ot
h 

P
A

T 
(o

r e
qu

iv
al

en
t) 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
oo

ls
 to

 
ev

al
ua

te
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 n

am
ed

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
 

 • 
H

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 p

er
ip

at
et

ic
 m

us
ic

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
pu

pi
ls

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

6.
 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e 

an
d 

ea
rly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

w
or

k 
to

 ra
is

e 
at

ta
in

m
en

t a
nd

 re
du

ce
 le

ve
ls

 
of

 d
is

af
fe

ct
io

n 
  C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
H

el
en

 J
en

ne
r, 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 D

fE
S

 S
oc

ia
l a

nd
 E

m
ot

io
na

l 
A

sp
ec

ts
 o

f L
ea

rn
in

g 
(S

E
A

L)
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
r i

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
 • 

E
ns

ur
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
m

ap
pi

ng
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

, w
id

er
 e

xt
en

de
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

on
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 re

fe
rr

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 

• 
S

E
A

L 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 in

 2
0 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

pi
lo

te
d 

in
 2

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ch
oo

ls
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r  

20
06

  
• 

S
E

A
L 

ex
te

nd
ed

  t
o 

a 
20

 fu
rth

er
 s

ch
oo

ls
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
07

  
 • 

S
up

po
rt 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r t

ho
se

 s
ch

oo
ls

 n
ot

 
us

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  
• 

To
ol

ki
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r s

ch
oo

ls
 o

n 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

Page 259



 
 

49
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
  • 

R
ev

ie
w

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 P
as

to
ra

l S
up

po
rt 

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 (P
S

P
) f

or
 p

up
ils

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 

pe
rm

an
en

t e
xc

lu
si

on
 

 • 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
di

ss
em

in
at

e 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 ra
te

s 
of

 re
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
 • 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

te
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
an

d 
ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

pu
pi

ls
  

 • 
Ta

rg
et

 th
os

e 
di

sa
ffe

ct
ed

 w
ith

 s
ch

oo
l p

re
-1

6,
 

E
B

D
 p

os
t-1

6 
an

d 
th

os
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 a

s 
A

S
D

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
os

e 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

4A
*-

C
 b

ut
 n

ot
 E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
M

at
hs

 a
t C

+ 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 P
S

P
s 

of
 a

ll 
pu

pi
ls

 w
ith

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

5 
da

ys
 e

xc
lu

si
on

 c
om

pl
et

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r  
20

06
 

 • 
R

e-
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
B

E
H

A
V

E
 m

on
th

ly
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r 
 • 

B
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
di

ss
em

in
at

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
B

E
H

A
V

E
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r, 
w

ith
 re

po
rt 

fo
r e

ac
h 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 

   • 
C

ur
ric

ul
um

 a
ud

it 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 n
ew

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 

7.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 li

fe
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

y 
D

ur
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

h 
a 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r a
ll 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
 • 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
‘H

ea
r b

y 
R

ig
ht

’ n
at

io
na

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f i
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t 

• 
A

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t o

n 
im

pa
ct

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
an

d 
au

di
t o

f S
ch

oo
ls

’ C
ou

nc
ils

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

A
ud

it 
of

 "H
ea

r B
y 

R
ig

ht
" s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 

8.
 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

oh
es

io
n 

am
on

gs
t 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
 T

er
ry

 P
ar

ki
n,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

     

• 
D

is
se

m
in

at
e 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r n

ew
ly

 
ar

riv
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
as

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
an

gu
ag

e 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
 • 

S
tre

ng
th

en
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 fa
ith

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 b

y 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
In

te
r-

fa
ith

 
Fo

ru
m

. 
 • 

E
nc

ou
ra

ge
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
ex

ch
an

ge
s 

by
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
th

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
sc

ho
ol

, 

• 
Fi

rs
t L

an
gu

ag
e 

(L
1)

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r E
A

L 
ch

ild
re

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 a

ll 
K

ey
 S

ta
ge

s,
 w

ith
 1

00
%

 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

. 
 • 

P
ilo

t o
ne

 in
te

r-
fa

ith
 fo

ru
m

 e
ve

nt
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
    • 

P
ilo

t e
xc

ha
ng

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
ne

 s
ch

oo
l, 

on
e 

yo
ut

h 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 o
ne

 fa
ith

 g
ro

up
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

Page 260



 
 

50
 

          

yo
ut

h 
w

or
k 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
et

tin
gs

 
 • 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
et

tin
gs

 to
  c

om
ba

t 
ra

ci
sm

 a
nd

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s 
of

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

or
y 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
by

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 th

e 
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g 
pa

ck
ag

es
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l 6

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 s

tra
nd

s 
 • 

D
is

tri
bu

te
 s

um
m

ar
y 

gu
id

el
in

es
 o

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

ra
ci

st
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

to
 a

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
se

tti
ng

s 

  • 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 1
5 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

5 
se

tti
ng

s 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
an

d 
50

%
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  • 
A

ll 
ra

ci
st

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

po
rte

d 
as

 th
ey

 o
cc

ur
  b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
06

, w
ith

 te
rm

ly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

sc
ho

ol
 in

 J
ul

y 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

9.
 

To
 e

xt
en

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t i
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

la
w

 a
bi

di
ng

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

y 
D

ur
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

ct
io

n 
by

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

ir 
ow

n 
pl

an
s 

fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ct

io
n 

 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 
ad

m
in

is
te

r t
he

 Y
ou

th
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

Fu
nd

 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 4

00
 to

 7
00

 in
 2

00
6 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 m
ill

en
ni

um
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
  

   • 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

06
  

• 
Fi

rs
t g

ra
nt

 c
al

l f
or

 s
um

m
er

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
  

• 
A

ll 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

  
10

. 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
10

-1
9 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

y 
D

ur
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
  

• 
B

rin
g 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

in
-h

ou
se

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

oo
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 lo
ca

l t
ea

m
s 

   • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f a

dv
ic

e,
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 o

r d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

• 
A

ll 
P

er
so

na
l A

dv
is

er
s 

se
co

nd
ed

 to
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 a

nd
 T

U
P

E
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

iti
at

ed
 

• 
U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
fu

nd
s 

pa
id

 d
ire

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

   
 • 

Tw
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ta

ff 
fu

nd
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

un
re

st
ric

te
d 

fu
nd

s 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
xt

ra
 s

up
po

rt 
is

 g
iv

en
 to

 e
ac

h 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 L

D
D

, f
ro

m
 s

um
m

er
 h

al
f-t

er
m

, a
fte

r t
he

 
S

ec
tio

n 
14

0 
re

vi
ew

, t
o 

en
su

re
 p

os
iti

ve
 o

ut
co

m
es

 
11

. 
To

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

en
ta

l 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t i
n 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
le

ar
ni

ng
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

H
el

en
 J

en
ne

r, 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
en

ta
l a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 
se

rv
ic

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

t k
ey

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
po

in
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 P

ar
en

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

oi
nt

 
  • 

S
up

po
rt 

sc
ho

ol
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 th
ey

 c
an

 h
el

p 

• 
P

ar
en

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

oi
nt

 s
es

si
on

s 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

en
tre

s 
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

P
IP

 s
es

si
on

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

 s
ch

oo
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

 • 
A

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
of

fe
re

d 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

de
liv

er
 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
-fo

cu
se

d 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 

Page 261



 
 

51
 

th
ei

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 le
ar

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
so

ci
al

ly
 a

nd
 

em
ot

io
na

lly
 

 • 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 p

ar
en

ts
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
m

 a
nd

 th
at

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ei

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
ac

hi
ev

e 
in

 a
n 

in
cl

us
iv

e,
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

  
 

• 
W

or
ks

ho
p 

pa
ck

ag
es

 ta
ke

n 
up

 b
y 

15
 s

ch
oo

ls
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

 • 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

sk
ill

s 
ta

st
er

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 U

ni
t  

 
S

tre
ng

th
en

in
g 

Fa
m

ili
es

 m
od

el
 

• 
Te

rm
ly

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

P
ar

en
ts

’ P
an

el
 u

se
d 

in
 a

t l
ea

st
 5

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
s,

 w
ith

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 
ac

tio
n 

ta
ke

n 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

12
. 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 p

la
ce

s 
to

 g
o 

an
d 

ex
ci

tin
g 

th
in

gs
 to

 d
o 

th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

y 
D

ur
ki

n,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
Y

ou
th

 w
or

k 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 1

3-
19

 y
ea

r o
ld

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ov

er
 4

0 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
ed

 y
ou

th
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
  • 

R
ap

id
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Te
am

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
w

or
k 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 y

ou
th

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
an

ti-
so

ci
al

 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

 • 
N

ew
 S

ta
rt 

pr
oj

ec
t e

xp
an

de
d 

to
 o

ffe
r m

or
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

no
t i

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t  
  • 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 re

vi
ew

 th
ei

r b
or

ou
gh

 
–w

id
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r t
he

ir 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
 

• 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

 c
on

tra
ct

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 re

-c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

 
• 

29
%

 o
f t

he
 1

3-
19

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

in
 y

ou
th

 
w

or
k 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
P

la
nn

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 o

f d
et

ac
he

d 
an

d 
m

ob
ile

 y
ou

th
 

w
or

k 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 2
4 

es
ta

te
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

• 
Te

rm
ly

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
he

d.
 

 • 
25

0 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 s

up
po

rte
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 
sm

oo
th

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
fro

m
 p

re
-p

os
t 1

6 
an

d 
re

m
ai

n 
in

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 to

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
07

, w
ith

 6
0%

 ta
rg

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

4 
Lo

ca
l Y

ou
th

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h-
w

id
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 Y

ou
th

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

ov
er

 1
00

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7,

 w
ith

 tw
o 

ac
tiv

e 
by

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
• 

P
ilo

t w
ith

 ID
eA

 b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
        

Page 262



 
 

52
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 s

po
rt

in
g,

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

K
ey

 A
ct

iv
ity

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 M

ile
st

on
e 

1.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

le
is

ur
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
R

ay
 G

er
la

ch
, 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 C
ul

tu
re

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

  

• 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

 e
xi

st
in

g 
Tu

rk
is

h 
ba

th
s,

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

, c
ha

ng
in

g 
ro

om
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f n
ew

 
cr

èc
he

 a
t Y

or
k 

H
al

l  
 • 

O
bt

ai
n 

qu
al

ity
 a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

fo
r m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s 
  

• 
W

or
ks

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
  

   • 
Q

ue
st

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 1

 le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

, w
ith

 fo
rm

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

an
d 

Q
ue

st
 A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7,
 b

rin
gi

ng
 th

e 
to

ta
l 

to
 3

 le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
s 

2.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ay

 G
er

la
ch

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
V

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

P
la

n 
     • 

D
el

iv
er

 m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 k
in

d 
vi

a 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 
fe

st
iv

al
s 

fo
r p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 C

ity
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 
E

M
E

P
 fo

r t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ph
as

e 
of

 a
 tw

o 
ye

ar
 

pr
oj

ec
t m

ea
su

rin
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 im
pa

ct
 o

f 
fe

st
iv

al
s 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 re

la
te

d 
S

M
E

 s
up

po
rt 

 • 
S

up
po

rt 
lo

ca
l f

ilm
 m

ak
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
E

R
D

F 
pr

oj
ec

t 
Fi

lm
 L

on
do

n 
B

ur
sa

ry
 S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
sh

ow
 c

as
e 

lo
ca

lly
-b

as
ed

 fi
lm

 ta
le

nt
 v

ia
 th

e 
E

as
t 

E
nd

 F
ilm

 F
es

tiv
al

 

• 
B

as
e 

lin
e 

st
ud

y 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
• 

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

 V
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
P

la
n 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 v
ol

un
te

er
 g

ro
up

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

as
si

st
ed

 in
 p

ar
ks

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 1
0 

to
 1

5 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

 • 
£4

0,
00

0 
of

 m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 k
in

d 
de

liv
er

ed
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 fi
na

l r
ep

or
t b

y 
C

ity
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
  • 

Fi
lm

 F
es

tiv
al

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
06

  
• 

4 
ne

w
 s

ho
rt 

fil
m

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

3.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rts
 

ba
se

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ay

 G
er

la
ch

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 y
ou

th
 a

rts
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 
• 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 4
20

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
55

0 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

4.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 
Id

ea
 S

to
re

, l
ib

ra
ry

 a
nd

 li
fe

lo
ng

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 Id

ea
 S

to
re

 s
tra

te
gy

 in
 li

gh
t o

f o
pe

ni
ng

 
fir

st
 4

 Id
ea

 S
to

re
s;

 re
vi

ew
 p

la
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 B

et
hn

al
 G

re
en

, W
ap

pi
ng

/S
ha

dw
el

l 

• 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 b
y 

au
tu

m
n 

20
06

 
  

Page 263



 
 

53
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ay

 G
er

la
ch

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

an
d 

Is
le

 o
f D

og
s 

 • 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
in

 L
ife

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 2

00
6/

7 
 • 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 s

ki
lls

 
at

 N
V

Q
 le

ve
l 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
 

  • 
D

el
iv

er
 a

 ta
rg

et
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 u

nd
er

 1
6s

 li
br

ar
y 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

  • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

an
d 

fle
xi

bl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 c

ou
rs

es
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t n

ew
 le

ar
ne

rs
 

an
d 

w
id

en
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

 • 
In

cr
ea

se
 a

nd
 w

id
en

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

Id
ea

 S
to

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 

 • 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 Id
ea

 S
to

re
s 

to
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

n 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

cu
ltu

re
 in

 T
ow

er
 

H
am

le
ts

  

  • 
E

ns
ur

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 le
ve

l o
f 7

5%
 re

te
nt

io
n 

in
 li

fe
lo

ng
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 2
00

6/
7 

 • 
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 c

ou
rs

es
 to

 u
ps

ki
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 le
ve

l 2
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

In
te

rim
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

ak
e 

up
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 
 • 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

in
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 
be

co
m

in
g 

ac
tiv

e 
us

er
s 

of
 li

br
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 Id
ea

 
S

to
re

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

m
on

th
ly

  
 • 

Id
en

tif
y 

ba
se

lin
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

by
 k

ey
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
  • 

Id
en

tif
y 

ba
se

lin
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

by
 k

ey
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
 • 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

f I
de

a 
S

to
re

s 
to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 S
M

E
s 

by
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
• 

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 Id
ea

 S
to

re
s 

ta
rg

et
ed

 a
t s

up
po

rti
ng

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
ad

vi
ce

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 S

M
E

s 
fro

m
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

5.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

sp
or

t a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
  

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ay

 G
er

la
ch

, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ew

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
t l

ei
su

re
 c

en
tre

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

 
    • 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 S

ch
oo

l S
po

rt 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 

• 
50

+ 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
• 

W
om

en
 a

nd
 g

irl
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
10

0,
00

0 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

is
its

 to
 L

ei
su

re
 c

en
tre

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 
 • 

50
%

 o
f s

ch
oo

ls
 o

ffe
rin

g 
2 

ho
ur

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

po
rti

ng
 

ac
tiv

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
sc

ho
ol

s 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
  

Page 264



 
 

54
 

P
E

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
l s

po
rt 

fo
r a

t l
ea

st
 tw

o 
ho

ur
s 

pe
r 

w
ee

k,
 p

er
 c

hi
ld

, i
n 

an
d 

ou
t o

f s
ch

oo
l 

 • 
S

up
po

rt 
sp

or
ts

 c
lu

bs
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

co
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 
  • 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 fo

ot
ba

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

7-
11

s 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 F

oo
tb

al
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
en

tre
  

 • 
D

el
iv

er
 a

 L
ea

rn
 to

 S
w

im
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r s
ch

oo
ls

 
   • 

O
rg

an
is

e 
te

am
 e

nt
rie

s 
fro

m
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
 fo

r 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 Y
ou

th
 G

am
es

  
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
pl

ay
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 

M
ile

 E
nd

 P
ar

k 
  • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 q
ua

lit
y 

pl
ay

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 jo
in

 s
ch

em
es

 w
ith

 a
bl

e 
bo

di
ed

 p
ee

rs
 a

nd
 s

ib
lin

gs
  

   • 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fin

al
is

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6,

 w
ith

 
6 

cl
ub

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
 

• 
10

,0
00

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 h
av

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

d 
in

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

by
 M

ar
ch

 0
7 

 • 
3,

00
0 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s 

in
 fo

ot
ba

ll 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, 

w
ith

 3
,0

00
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
an

d 
a 

fu
rth

er
 

3,
00

0 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
35

0 
pu

pi
ls

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 2

5m
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, w
ith

 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 3

50
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

a 
fu

rth
er

 3
50

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

6 
te

am
s 

en
te

re
d 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 

  • 
N

ew
 p

la
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t p
ur

ch
as

ed
 a

nd
 in

st
al

le
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
4 

ne
w

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
pl

ay
 s

es
si

on
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

 • 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

up
er

vi
se

d 
ou

t-o
f-s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 p

la
y 

sc
he

m
es

 a
ud

ite
d 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
A

cc
es

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

           

Page 265



 
 

55
 

EX
C

EL
LE

N
T 

PU
B

LI
C

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
: T

H
I I

N
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 
FO

R
 2

00
6-

20
10

 
 Ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

; L
oc

al
ly

 fo
cu

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 e
m

po
w

er
in

g 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e;
 S

tr
on

ge
r a

nd
 m

or
e 

co
he

si
ve

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

; I
m

pr
ov

ed
 

eq
ua

lit
y 

of
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 

 Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 

B
ud

ge
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
  

£3
60

K
 

un
de

rs
pe

nd

N
il 

- 
B

al
an

ce
d 

B
ud

ge
t

N
il 

- 
B

al
an

ce
d 

B
ud

ge
t

N
il 

- 
B

al
an

ce
d 

B
ud

ge
t

N
il 

- 
B

al
an

ce
d 

B
ud

ge
t

N
il 

- 
B

al
an

ce
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

C
P

A
 U

se
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 In

di
ca

to
r 

 (a
) O

ve
ra

ll 
sc

or
e 

(b
) V

FM
 s

co
re

 
a)

 
3 

 
b)

 
2 

a)
 

3 
 

b)
 

3 
a)

 
4 

 
b)

 
3 

a)
 

4 
 

b)
 

3 
a)

 
4 

 
b)

 
3 

a)
 

4 
 

b)
 

3 
%

 G
er

sh
on

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

 
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
“p

ro
vi

de
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 fo

r t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

I 
pa

y”
 

37
%

39
%

42
%

45
%

48
%

51
%

 

P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
/ s

hi
fts

 lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 
9.

8
8.

5
7.

75
7.

50
7.

25
7.

00
 

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 

P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f u
nd

is
pu

te
d 

in
vo

ic
es

 p
ai

d 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 in
vo

ic
es

 p
ai

d 
in

 ti
m

e 
94

.2
%

95
%

96
%

97
%

97
%

97
%

 

                 

Page 266



 
 

56
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 2
00

5/
6 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

(a
) 

67
%

70
%

73
%

76
%

78
%

80
%

 
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 a
gr

ee
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 d
oi

ng
 a

 g
oo

d 
jo

b:
 

(a
) 

B
or

ou
gh

 a
ve

ra
ge

  
(b

) 
G

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e 

an
d 

th
e 

LA
P

 
ar

ea
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

w
es

t 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 

(b
) 

A
ve

 =
 6

7%
 

M
in

 =
 5

5%
 (L

A
P

 2
/4

) 
G

ap
 =

 1
2%

 

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e 

%
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 fe

el
 th

at
 th

ey
 

ca
n 

in
flu

en
ce

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
ei

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a 

(L
A

A
 p

rim
ar

y)
 

54
%

60
%

(L
A

A
 5

1%
)

65
%

(L
A

A
 5

3%
)

70
%

(L
A

A
 5

5%
)

75
%

80
%

 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
at

te
nd

in
g 

LA
P

 e
ve

nt
s 

(L
A

A
 s

ec
on

da
ry

) 
44

89
50

00
(L

A
A

 4
50

0)
52

50
(L

A
A

 4
75

0)
55

00
(L

A
A

 5
00

0)
57

50
60

00
 

%
 o

f t
el

ep
ho

ne
s 

an
sw

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 P

ro
m

is
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
69

%
75

%
77

%
79

%
80

%
80

%
 

%
 o

f l
et

te
rs

 re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 P

ro
m

is
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
77

%
90

%
90

%
90

%
90

%
90

%
 

%
 o

f c
al

ls
 h

an
dl

ed
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

al
l 

C
en

tre
s 

38
%

40
%

45
%

47
%

49
%

50
%

 

Lo
ca

lly
 

fo
cu

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
em

po
w

er
in

g 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e;
 

%
 o

f c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ha
nd

le
d 

w
ith

in
 

ta
rg

et
 –

 S
ta

ge
 1

 
60

%
75

%
77

%
79

%
80

%
80

%
 

              

Page 267



 
 

57
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 2
00

5/
6 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
06

/7
  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
07

/8
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
08

/9
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
09

/1
0 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

(a
) 

73
%

75
%

(L
A

A
 7

1%
)

77
%

(L
A

A
 7

3%
)

79
%

(L
A

A
 7

5%
)

81
%

83
%

 

%
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 fe

el
 th

at
 T

ow
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 is

 a
 p

la
ce

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 c

an
 g

et
 

on
 w

el
l t

og
et

he
r: 

 
 a)

 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

b)
 

G
ap

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
bo

ro
ug

h 
av

er
ag

e 
an

d 
th

e 
LA

P
 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
w

es
t 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

(b
) 

A
ve

 =
 7

3%
 

M
in

 =
 6

7%
 (L

A
P

 4
) 

G
ap

 =
 6

%
  

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e

N
o 

LA
P

 to
 

fa
ll 

10
%

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e 

St
ro

ng
er

 a
nd

 
m

or
e 

co
he

si
ve

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ts

 a
t L

A
P

 
ev

en
ts

 w
ho

 a
re

 fr
om

 ta
rg

et
ed

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
: 

a)
 

B
M

E
 re

si
de

nt
s 

 
b)

 
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
 re

si
de

nt
s 

 
c)

 
S

om
al

i r
es

id
en

ts
 

d)
 

Y
ou

ng
 re

si
de

nt
s 

(1
6-

25
) 

a)
 

54
%

  
b)

 
N

/A
 (n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r)

 
c)

 
N

/A
 (n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r)

 
d)

 
N

/A
 (n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r)

 

a)
 

48
%

1  
b)

 
33

%
2  

c)
 

5%
3  

d)
 

15
%

4  

a)
 

48
%

 
b)

 
33

%
 

c)
 

5%
 

d)
 

15
%

 

a)
 

48
%

 
b)

 
33

%
 

c)
 

5%
 

d)
 

15
%

 

a)
 

48
%

 
b)

 
33

%
 

c)
 

5%
 

d)
 

15
%

 

a)
 

48
%

 
b)

 
33

%
 

c)
 

5%
 

d)
 

15
%

 

  Pr
io

rit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

  
Ta

rg
et

 
20

07
/8

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

08
/9

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

09
/1

0 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

10
/1

1 
A

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

: p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

p 
5%

 e
ar

ne
rs

 th
at

 a
re

 fr
om

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
14

.2
9%

16
.0

%
18

.0
%

21
.0

%
24

.0
%

28
.0

%
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
eq

ua
lit

y 
of

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
A

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

: p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

p 
5%

 e
ar

ne
rs

 th
at

 a
re

 w
om

en
 

48
.6

6%
49

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
 

        
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

1  T
ar

ge
t s

et
 to

 re
fle

ct
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

em
og

ra
ph

y 
(b

as
ed

 o
n 

to
ta

l %
 B

M
E

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

  -
 2

00
1 

C
en

su
s)

  
2  T

ar
ge

t s
et

 to
 re

fle
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
em

og
ra

ph
y 

(b
as

ed
 o

n 
to

ta
l %

 B
an

gl
ad

es
hi

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 - 
20

01
 C

en
su

s)
 

3  T
ar

ge
t s

et
 to

 re
fle

ct
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

em
og

ra
ph

y 
(b

as
ed

 o
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 s
iz

e 
of

 lo
ca

l S
om

al
i p

op
ul

at
io

n 
- a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
re

se
ar

ch
 e

st
im

at
es

) 
4  T

ar
ge

t s
et

 to
 re

fle
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
em

og
ra

ph
y 

(b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 1

6-
25

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 - 
G

LA
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 fo

r m
id

-2
00

6)
 

Page 268



 
 

58
 

EX
C

EL
LE

N
T 

PU
B

LI
C

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
: I

M
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 2

00
6/

7 
 

  E
ffi

ci
en

t a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
  

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t  
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
A

la
st

ai
r K

in
g,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
C

o-
or

di
na

te
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

• 
O

ve
rs

ee
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

on
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
R

en
ew

al
 2

00
6-

20
08

 (r
ep

ea
te

d 
tw

ic
e)

 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 m

ile
st

on
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
ar

ge
ts

 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
LA

A
 a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
re

ed
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(Q
ua

rte
rly

 a
nd

 6
-m

on
th

ly
) 

 

2.
 

To
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 h
ig

h 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

  
cu

ltu
re

 b
y 

in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
D

ev
or

a 
W

ol
fs

on
, 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 C

or
e 

V
al

ue
s 

an
d 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

   
• 

E
m

be
d 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f I
nv

es
to

rs
 in

 P
eo

pl
e 

C
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
IiP

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
   • 

C
on

du
ct

 a
 s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 to

 m
ea

su
re

 s
ta

ff’
s 

vi
ew

s 
on

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
 c

or
po

ra
te

  l
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

    

• 
C

or
e 

V
al

ue
s 

an
d 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 H
R

 a
nd

 O
D

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 C

or
e 

V
al

ue
s 

an
d 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
by

 m
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

 
 

• 
IiP

 re
po

rts
 to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 C

ha
ng

e 
Te

am
 in

 M
ay

 a
nd

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

he
al

th
 c

he
ck

s 
on

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
 

• 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t f
or

 Ii
P

 le
ve

l 2
 c

om
pl

et
e 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 
 • 

S
ec

on
d 

st
af

f s
ur

ve
y 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
by

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
, 

w
ith

 re
su

lts
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 
• 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
af

f s
ur

ve
y 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 
C

C
T 

in
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

 
 • 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
  

• 
M

en
u 

of
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
ta

ff 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t n
ee

ds
 a

t a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

 
• 

N
ew

 m
an

ag
em

en
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 

by
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
07

 
3.

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 c
or

po
ra

te
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 C

ha
rte

rm
ar

k 
 

 
• 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 C
ha

rte
rm

ar
k 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
C

M
T 

by
 e

nd
  o

f 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

Page 269



 
 

59
 

C
ou

nc
il 

 
• 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 jo

in
t e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

  E
FQ

M
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

ac
ro

ss
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

an
d 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

di
re

ct
or

at
e 

 • 
E

m
be

d 
ne

w
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
 

 
• 

Jo
in

t e
va

lu
at

io
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6.
 

• 
P

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 2
00

6/
7 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

  • 
P

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

er
s 

to
 h

av
e 

 b
ee

n 
 tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 n
ew

 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
  b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

re
po

rti
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
4.

 
To

 c
ha

m
pi

on
 fu

rth
er

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

 th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Lo

ui
se

 R
us

se
ll,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

or
k 

 
 • 

D
is

se
m

in
at

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

Pr
oc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 a

nd
 u

se
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 • 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 te
am

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

er
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 fo
cu

s 
on

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
, v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 a
nd

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 • 

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
ith

 it
s 

pa
rtn

er
s 

      • 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 p
la

n 
an

d 
N

R
S

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 

LA
A

 ta
rg

et
s 

 
  • 

In
tro

du
ce

 a
 w

eb
-b

as
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
ys

te
m

 
(E

xc
el

si
s 

– 
on

-li
ne

) 

• 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 a

nd
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
i-m

on
th

ly
 b

y 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 G

ro
up

 
 • 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

ro
ce

ss
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
na

ly
si

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 

3 
ke

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

  • 
P

ee
r r

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 a

na
ly

si
s 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 C

M
T 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  • 
Jo

in
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r L

A
A

 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
 

• 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 
w

ith
 D

ire
ct

or
at

es
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
06

, 
w

ith
 re

vi
ew

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  
• 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 c
le

ar
 s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

B
V

P
I A

ud
it 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

6 
m

on
th

ly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

by
 E

P
S

 C
P

A
G

, w
ith

 a
nn

ua
l 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
G

O
L,

 in
di

ca
tin

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 fl

oo
r 

ta
rg

et
s,

 L
A

A
 p

rio
rit

y 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 ta
rg

et
s 

• 
W

ar
d 

da
ta

 re
po

rt 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

an
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 s
ho

w
s 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
LA

P
 

 • 
O

n-
lin

e 
ro

ll-
ou

t c
om

m
en

ce
d 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
, w

ith
 

pr
og

re
ss

 re
vi

ew
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

by
 

Page 270



 
 

60
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
5.

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

yn
am

ic
, 

ou
tw

ar
d-

fa
ci

ng
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

fu
nc

tio
n 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ic

ha
el

 K
ea

tin
g,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
pu

t i
nt

o 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

w
or

k 
an

d 
pi

lo
t m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 L

A
A

s 
 

 • 
Fu

rth
er

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 th

e 
H

ea
lth

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
fu

nc
tio

n 
       • 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 o

ne
 p

ie
ce

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l S

cr
ut

in
y 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 
 • 

S
tre

ng
th

en
 th

e 
ro

le
 o

f f
ai

th
 a

nd
 p

ar
en

t g
ov

er
no

r 
co

-o
pt

ee
s 

an
d 

ap
po

in
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
 • 

R
ai

se
 th

e 
pr

of
ile

 o
f O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
w

ith
 

M
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

• 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
 q

ua
rte

rly
 

  • 
In

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 h

ea
lth

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 fo
ur

-
ye

ar
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

ta
ck

lin
g 

he
al

th
 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

(a
gr

ee
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6)
  

• 
Jo

in
t w

or
k 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 L

B
 N

ew
ha

m
 a

nd
 H

ac
kn

ey
 

H
ea

lth
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 to

 c
on

si
de

r p
la

ns
 o

f E
as

t 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ity

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 T
ru

st
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
06

 
 • 

A
gr

ee
d 

vi
a 

A
LG

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

(J
ul

y 
20

06
) a

nd
 fi

rs
t 

st
ag

e 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
 • 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
e 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
sh

ow
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 li
nk

s 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 v

ia
 c

o-
op

te
d 

an
d 

ap
po

in
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 

(M
ar

ch
 2

00
7)

 
 • 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 a
rti

cl
es

 in
 E

E
L 

an
d 

S
ta

ff 
B

rie
fin

g 
an

d 
m

on
th

ly
 p

ie
ce

s 
in

 M
em

be
rs

 B
ul

le
tin

 
6.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

A
la

n 
Fi

nc
h,

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 in
te

gr
at

e 
ca

pi
ta

l a
nd

 re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
ke

 fu
ll 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
of

 P
ru

de
nt

ia
l 

B
or

ro
w

in
g 

 
 • 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 

lin
k 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 
ag

en
da

  
 • 

A
cc

el
er

at
e 

th
e 

tim
et

ab
le

 fo
r c

lo
su

re
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s 
    • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 

• 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 ti
m

et
ab

le
 fo

r r
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l b

ud
ge

t 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

• 
C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r 2

00
7/

08
 –

 2
00

9/
10

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 • 

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r i
nt

eg
ra

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 b

y 
M

ay
 

20
06

 
  • 

D
ra

ft 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 2
00

5/
06

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
by

 e
nd

 J
un

e 
20

06
  

• 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 u

se
rs

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
ei

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r S
um

m
ar

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
 • 

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

fo
r f

in
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 re
vi

se
d 

Page 271



 
 

61
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

                  • 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 
st

oc
k 

tra
ns

fe
r o

n 
th

e 
de

bt
 p

or
tfo

lio
 in

to
 th

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

  
 • 

Im
pl

em
en

t n
ew

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

    

an
d 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 a

ud
it 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

A
ud

ito
r’s

 ju
dg

em
en

t f
or

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

sh
ow

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
sc

or
e 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t i

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

fro
m

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 C

ha
rt 

of
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

by
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
ge

r a
nd

 o
th

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ys
te

m
s 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
S

ta
nd

ar
di

se
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

• 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 fo

r p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

on
th

ly
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

po
rts

 w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f m
on

th
 e

nd
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6,

 w
ith

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 if

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 th

in
ki

ng
 o

n 
W

or
ld

 C
la

ss
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 a

do
pt

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 o

f 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ea

su
re

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

 • 
Im

pa
ct

 a
na

ly
se

d 
an

d 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

to
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

  • 
M

an
ag

em
en

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
po

rtf
ol

io
  i

n 
pl

ac
e 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

 
• 

N
ew

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
an

d 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r i
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t i
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 to

 L
G

P
S

 a
ss

es
se

d 
an

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
tim

et
ab

le
 

7.
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 in
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

A
la

n 
Fi

nc
h,

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 / 
un

it 
co

st
s 

    

• 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
/ r

ep
or

tin
g 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

un
it 

co
st

 d
at

a 
by

 m
ea

ns
 o

f a
 u

ni
t c

os
ts

 in
de

x 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f h
ig

h 
co

st
 a

re
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

 

Page 272



 
 

62
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

ta
rg

et
s 

     • 
E

m
be

d 
a 

cu
ltu

re
 o

f v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 in

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

 
  • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 in

 c
ap

ita
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
de

ci
si

on
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
vi

se
d 

op
tio

n 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l 

sy
st

em
s 

  • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
cr

ed
ito

r 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 
 

• 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f £

8.
0m

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
or

 3
 y

ea
rs

 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

20
07

/0
8 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

06
 

• 
K

ee
p 

un
de

r r
ev

ie
w

 w
or

k 
by

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l C
en

tre
 o

f 
E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

 • 
In

st
itu

te
 a

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
em

be
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ta

rg
et

s 
in

to
 m

an
ag

er
s 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t R
ev

ie
w

s 
(J

un
e 

20
06

) 
 • 

O
pt

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l s
ys

te
m

 fo
r a

ll 
ne

w
 m

aj
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
 R

et
ur

n 
on

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 m
od

el
 fo

r u
se

 in
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

IT
 s

ys
te

m
s 

(J
ul

y 
20

06
) 

 • 
P

ilo
t d

oc
um

en
t i

m
ag

in
g 

an
d 

au
to

m
at

ed
 w

or
kf

lo
w

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

re
di

to
r i

nv
oi

ce
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
(O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

)  
8.

 
To

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

 o
f 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t  
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
H

ea
d 

of
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t, 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 m

an
ua

l 
       • 

R
e-

fo
cu

s 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t U
ni

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

or
e 

pr
o-

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
  

  • 
Fu

rth
er

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

ca
rd

s 
an

d 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
 to

 re
du

ce
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

sm
al

l p
ur

ch
as

es
 

 

• 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t A

dv
oc

ac
y 

H
an

db
oo

k 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
06

 
• 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t A
dv

oc
ac

y 
Te

am
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

, w
or

ki
ng

 jo
in

tly
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
s 

• 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t R

ul
es

 a
ga

in
st

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
• 

Im
pl

em
en

t c
ha

ng
e 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

 • 
R

e-
fo

cu
se

d 
C

en
tra

l P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t U
ni

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
ag

re
ed

 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
10

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
dv

oc
ac

y 
fo

ru
m

s 
he

ld
 in

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

(w
ith

 5
 h

el
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6)
 

 • 
V

al
ue

 o
f p

ur
ch

as
e 

ca
rd

s 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 
7.

5%
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

V
al

ue
 o

f p
ur

ch
as

e 
ca

rd
s 

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 

15
%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 

Page 273



 
 

63
 

     • 
Id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 fu
rth

er
 e

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
di

re
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 o

n-
lin

e 
re

qu
is

iti
on

in
g 

 • 
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

rth
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r s
tra

te
gi

c 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
  

       • 
E

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 ‘G

at
ew

ay
’ r

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

• 
V

al
ue

 o
f M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 7

.5
%

 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

V
al

ue
 o

f M
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
5%

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
 • 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

  • 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
up

pl
ie

r a
nd

 s
pe

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
C

ou
nc

il 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 L
on

do
n 

C
en

tre
 o

f E
xc

el
le

nc
e 

ex
em

pl
ar

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

O
pt

im
um

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t r
ou

te
s 

fo
r k

ey
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 

• 
Fu

rth
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r j
oi

nt
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t w

ith
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
A

ll 
pl

an
ne

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t t
o 

be
 c

la
ss

ifi
ed

 fo
r s

tra
te

gi
c 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

by
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

 
• 

C
or

po
ra

te
 p

ee
r r

ev
ie

w
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
fo

r 1
00

%
 o

f 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
• 

‘G
at

ew
ay

’ c
rit

er
ia

 fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

9.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

R
ic

ha
rd

 E
lli

s,
 C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 fu

rth
er

 e
m

be
d 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 • 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

an
el

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
   • 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
hi

st
le

-b
lo

w
in

g 
po

lic
y 

• 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
yc

le
 re

po
rti

ng
 to

 C
M

T 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

P
an

el
 in

 A
pr

il,
 J

ul
y,

 N
ov

em
be

r a
nd

 J
an

ua
ry

 
 • 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 re

vi
ew

 o
f R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t –

 
re

po
rt 

du
e 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
Te

rm
s 

of
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r A

ud
it 

P
an

el
 re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 

20
06

 
 • 

W
hi

st
le

-b
lo

w
in

g 
po

lic
y 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 re
-s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 

A
ud

it 
P

an
el

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 

10
. T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

 

• 
S

ic
kn

es
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

ts
 to

 C
M

T 
in

 J
un

e,
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r a

nd
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

sh
ow

s 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

ic
kn

es
s.

 

Page 274



 
 

64
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

       • 
D

el
iv

er
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

    • 
E

m
be

d 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 
  

• 
M

on
ito

r t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 A
tte

nd
an

ce
 S

tra
te

gy
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

th
ro

ug
h 

se
ek

in
g 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f s
ic

kn
es

s 
an

d 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ca
se

s 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
bs

en
ce

 re
po

rti
ng

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6.

 
• 

D
el

iv
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 m

an
ag

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

20
06

/7
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 • 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 to
 C

M
T 

Ju
ne

 a
nd

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

m
ot

io
ns

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

du
rin

g 
20

06
/7

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
nu

al
 h

ea
lth

 fa
ir 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 • 

R
ep

or
ts

 to
 C

M
T 

on
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 F
le

xi
bl

e 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 in
 J

un
e 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

im
pa

ct
 o

f i
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 m
en

u 
of

 fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 
po

lic
ie

s 
• 

Fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 b
e 

re
gu

la
rly

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
is

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
M

an
ag

er
s’

 
B

rie
fin

g 
an

d 
P

ul
lin

g 
To

ge
th

er
. A

rti
cl

es
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
on

 a
 b

i-m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
11

. T
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 H

R
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

  
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

um
an

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
In

tro
du

ce
 a

 n
ew

 H
R

 S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
   • 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r e
ng

ag
in

g 
ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff 

  • 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 n
ew

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
N

ew
 H

R
 S

tra
te

gy
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6,

 w
ith

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 to
 C

M
T 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

H
R

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
07

 
 • 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

M
T 

ou
tli

ni
ng

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 
20

06
 

• 
S

tra
te

gy
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 • 

N
ew

 s
tra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rts
 to

 C
M

T 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
an

d 
H

R
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
by

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
 

12
. T

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 n
ew

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Ji

m
 R

ob
er

ts
, C

hi
ef

 

• 
P

ub
lis

h 
th

e 
IC

T 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r 2
00

6-
10

 to
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
s.

  
 • 

In
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

, 
ho

m
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 s
tra

te
gi

es
, 

• 
IC

T 
S

tra
te

gy
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
• 

C
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r I
C

T 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 

 • 
M

ov
es

 to
 A

nc
ho

ra
ge

 H
ou

se
 s

up
po

rte
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

ag
re

ed
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 

Page 275



 
 

65
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

de
liv

er
 a

 m
od

er
n,

 in
no

va
tiv

e,
 ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 fl
ex

ib
le

 
IC

T 
w

or
ki

ng
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 te

le
ph

on
y.

  
    • 

C
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

IC
T 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

m
ee

ts
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

its
 re

si
de

nt
s 

by
 s

ee
ki

ng
 a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
, 

dr
iv

in
g 

do
w

n 
co

st
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

re
si

lie
nc

e.
 

            • 
IC

T 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
s 

on
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 m

ee
tin

gs
 it

s 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 
 • 

In
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

us
to

m
er

 A
cc

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
to

 re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

vi
a 

th
e 

in
te

rn
et

 a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
in

tra
ne

t f
or

 in
te

rn
al

 c
us

to
m

er
s,

 
si

m
pl

ify
in

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

tra
ns

ac
tio

na
l c

ap
ab

ili
ty

. 
   • 

IC
T 

to
 a

tta
in

 a
 h

ig
he

r p
ro

fil
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 

tim
et

ab
le

 fo
r 0

6/
07

 
• 

A
ll 

ot
he

r m
ov

es
 s

up
po

rte
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 

• 
R

ol
l-o

ut
 o

f u
pg

ra
de

d 
de

sk
to

p 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
. 

 • 
N

ew
 IC

T 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l r

e-
al

ig
nm

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

 
• 

In
te

rn
al

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

K
ey

 IC
T 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

• 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 IS

O
 2

70
01

 (B
S

77
99

) f
or

 
IC

T 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
an

d 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 
by

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

7 
 

• 
In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 a

ud
it 

ch
ec

k 
on

 IS
O

/IE
C

 2
00

00
 fo

r I
C

T 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
an

d 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7.

 
• 

Id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 w

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s 
to

 h
ar

ne
ss

 G
er

sh
on

 s
av

in
gs

 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

‘B
ui

ld
in

g 
S

ch
oo

ls
 

fo
r t

he
 F

ut
ur

e’
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
  • 

D
ev

el
op

 S
M

S
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
C

M
S

 (C
on

te
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
) p

ro
cu

re
d 

by
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
• 

B
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r t

he
 in

tra
ne

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l 

cu
rr

en
t L

ot
us

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 
• 

U
se

 o
f v

id
eo

cl
ip

s 
en

ab
le

d 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t b

y 
M

ay
 

20
06

  
 • 

IC
T 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 a
tte

nd
 d

ire
ct

or
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Page 276



 
 

66
 

as
 re

sp
ec

te
d 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pa

rtn
er

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
tra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
cl

ea
r b

en
ef

it 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
 • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 s

pe
ed

 o
f r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
by

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

tri
ev

al
 fr

om
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

in
ci

pa
l b

us
in

es
s 

sy
st

em
s 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 b

y 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
• 

IC
T 

bu
si

ne
ss

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

ex
pe

rti
se

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t b

y 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
to

ol
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

13
. T

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

nd
 p

ur
po

se
fu

l 
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
S

ar
a 

W
illi

am
s,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
U

se
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f m

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 m

ed
ia

 to
 k

ee
p 

st
af

f i
nf

or
m

ed
 

  • 
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

st
af

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

vi
si

on
 

th
ro

ug
h:

 
- 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r t

ea
m

 a
nd

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 ro
le

s 
in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

em
 

- 
in

du
ct

io
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

br
ie

fin
gs

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

, t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 s

ta
ff 

fe
el

 v
al

ue
d 

- 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 m
an

ag
er

s’
 c

om
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 s

ta
ff 

fe
el

 li
st

en
ed

 to
 

• 
P

ul
lin

g 
To

ge
th

er
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

m
on

th
ly

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f i

nt
ra

ne
t w

ith
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 to

 re
in

vi
go

ra
te

 it
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
S

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 (2

00
5 

ba
se

lin
es

) s
ho

w
s:

 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
ey

 a
re

 k
ep

t w
el

l 
in

fo
rm

ed
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

(fr
om

 6
0%

 in
 2

00
5)

 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

ho
w

 th
ei

r r
ol

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 c

ou
nc

il 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
(fr

om
 

83
%

) 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 fe
el

 m
ot

iv
at

ed
 in

 th
ei

r j
ob

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

(fr
om

 6
2%

) 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
ei

r m
an

ag
er

 li
st

en
s 

to
 th

em
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

(fr
om

 7
9%

)  

14
. T

o 
en

su
re

 th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Ia
n 

B
ro

w
n,

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
C

om
pl

et
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
ls

 
ag

re
ed

 O
ffi

ce
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

        • 
D

ev
el

op
 E

ne
rg

y 
U

se
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

ns
 fo

r a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 n

ot
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 A
 ra

tin
gs

 
in

 b
ot

h 
ca

rb
on

 a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

ca
te

go
rie

s 

• 
IT

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ov
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
• 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

ul
tu

re
 m

ov
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 m
ov

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

A
du

lt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

m
ov

ed
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

m
ov

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

• 
25

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 w

or
k 

st
at

io
ns

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ab
ov

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

• 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r O
ne

 S
to

p 
S

ho
ps

 b
as

ed
 

on
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t A
ge

nd
a 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
 • 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

ns
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

• 
E

ne
rg

y 
us

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
15

. T
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 a

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
• 

P
ap

er
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
Tr

us
t a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 

Page 277



 
 

67
 

Tr
us

t i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
en

su
rin

g 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
K

ev
an

 C
ol

lin
s,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

     • 
Im

pl
em

en
t C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n 
     • 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 

ag
re

ed
 a

t P
M

G
 (A

pr
il 

20
06

) 
• 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

G
ro

up
 to

 m
ee

t f
ou

r t
im

es
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

Lo
ca

l S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
06

  
 • 

C
Y

P
P

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

• 
La

un
ch

 e
ve

nt
 fo

r C
Y

P
P

 in
 J

un
e/

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
• 

C
Y

P
P

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
m

on
ito

re
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 th
ro

ug
h 

C
Y

P
S

P
 g

ro
up

  
• 

C
Y

P
P

 u
pd

at
ed

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 • 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6)
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

16
. T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r t
o 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
 in

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

  
ex

ce
lle

nt
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ic
ha

el
 K

ea
tin

g,
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Th
ird

 S
ec

to
r S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

  • 
R

ev
ie

w
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

 T
ow

er
 

H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 th
e 

ro
ll 

ou
t t

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

C
od

e 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
 • 

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ok

er
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r l
oc

al
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 e
na

bl
in

g 
th

em
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r d

iv
er

se
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

 

• 
O

ut
co

m
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

Tr
ea

su
ry

’s
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
P

at
hf

in
de

r 
ar

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 w

ith
 re

po
rt 

to
 

C
ab

in
et

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
To

w
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 m

ai
ns

tre
am

 g
ra

nt
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

• 
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ai

ns
tre

am
 g

ra
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
        

Page 278



 
 

68
 

Lo
ca

lly
 fo

cu
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

m
po

w
er

in
g 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

et
te

r r
ef

le
ct

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e’

s 
ne

ed
s 

 
 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

H
ea

th
er

 W
hi

te
, 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 ro

bu
st

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

to
 m

ea
su

rin
g 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f l
oc

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t: 
- 

de
ve

lo
p 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

  
- 

ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f  
LA

P
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

 
   • 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 lo

ca
l f

oc
us

 fo
r t

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 L
A

A
 

an
d 

its
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 
lo

ca
lis

at
io

n 
ag

en
da

 
 

• 
R

eg
ul

ar
 re

po
rts

 o
n 

lo
ca

l m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
E

P
S

 C
P

A
G

  
• 

2 
ca

se
 s

tu
di

es
 p

er
 y

ea
r f

ro
m

 e
ac

h 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 L

A
P

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r, 

w
ith

 a
t l

ea
st

 
ha

lf 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 
• 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

se
t o

f n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
  • 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 re
po

rts
 to

 L
A

P
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
s 

on
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 N
R

F 
fu

nd
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 L
A

P
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

• 
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t t

im
es

ca
le

 
2.

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 re

lia
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 in
fo

rm
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Lo

ui
se

 R
us

se
ll,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

  

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 L

oc
al

 In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

S
ys

te
m

 (L
IS

) 
    • 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

co
m

pe
nd

iu
m

 o
f w

ar
d-

ba
se

d 
da

ta
 

  • 
O

ve
rs

ee
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 re
si

de
nt

s’
 

vi
ew

s 
da

ta
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
   • 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 w

or
k 

to
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

tre
nd

s 
in

 
lo

ca
l p

op
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

to
 in

fo
rm

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

de
ci

si
on

s 

• 
Lo

ca
l I

nt
el

lig
en

ce
 S

ys
te

m
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

• 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
ac

ro
ss

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6)
 

• 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 re

gu
la

r u
se

 b
y 

ke
y 

pa
rtn

er
s 

(D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
) 

 • 
W

ar
d 

da
ta

 re
po

rt 
up

da
te

d 
si

x-
m

on
th

ly
 (J

un
e,

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6)

  
 • 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 S
ur

ve
y 

re
su

lts
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
se

m
in

at
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
• 

B
V

P
I S

ur
ve

y 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

re
su

lts
 a

na
ly

se
d 

an
d 

di
ss

em
in

at
ed

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
tre

nd
s 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
• 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 b
et

te
r-

in
fo

rm
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

tre
nd

 d
at

a 
 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6  
 

3.
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
r 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

 

• 
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

du
ct

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r n

ew
ly

 e
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 re
-e

le
ct

ed
 M

em
be

rs
 

 

• 
 In

iti
al

 m
od

ul
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6.
  

• 
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 m
od

ul
es

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 

Page 279



 
 

69
 

C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

Ti
m

 R
ev

el
l, 

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 M

em
be

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
or

 2
00

6-
07

 
    • 

E
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
ro

le
 o

f M
em

be
rs

 in
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

        • 
S

us
ta

in
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 q

ua
lit

y 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

rs
 th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f e
nq

ui
rie

s 

 • 
C

om
pu

ls
or

y 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 M

em
be

rs
 b

y 
en

d 
of

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

• 
Fu

ll 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 c
irc

ul
at

ed
 to

 a
ll 

M
em

be
rs

 
by

 e
nd

 o
f  

A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

• 
Lo

nd
on

 M
em

be
r D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

ha
rte

r a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t w
eb

 p
ag

es
 fo

r a
ll 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

, w
ith

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t w

eb
 p

ag
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
06

; r
ev

ie
w

ed
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
H

it-
ra

te
 o

n 
M

em
be

rs
’ I

nt
ra

ne
t p

ag
es

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
(m

ea
su

re
d 

m
on

th
ly

) 
• 

E
-c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 in

tro
du

ce
d 

fo
r r

eg
ul

ar
 

co
m

m
un

iq
ué

s 
vi

a 
e-

m
ai

l l
in

ks
 to

 th
e 

In
tra

ne
t b

y 
A

ug
us

t 
20

06
 

  • 
M

on
th

ly
 re

po
rts

 to
 M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 C

M
T 

on
 e

nq
ui

ry
 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 m

on
th

ly
 re

sp
on

se
 ra

te
 

4.
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ub
lic

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
Ti

m
 R

ev
el

l  
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
  

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 e

xt
en

d 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 d

em
oc

ra
cy

, 
lin

ke
d 

to
 th

e 
ci

tiz
en

sh
ip

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

de
m

oc
ra

cy
 w

ee
k 

 
 • 

C
re

at
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r m

or
e 

di
re

ct
 c

on
ta

ct
 

be
tw

ee
n 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

 
  • 

U
se

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 in

fo
rm

 p
ro

po
se

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 to

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s,

 a
nd

 c
an

va
ss

 v
ie

w
s 

on
 

w
eb

-c
as

tin
g,

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n,
 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

 • 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P
la

n 
 

• 
8 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ev
en

ts
 fo

r Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
on

 B
ui

ld
 Y

ou
r 

O
w

n 
P

ol
iti

ci
an

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
   • 

Tw
o 

ev
en

ts
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
rs

 in
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 fo

ru
m

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 
  • 

2 
fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
 ru

n 
by

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t/D

em
oc

ra
tic

 R
en

ew
al

 a
nd

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t, 

w
ith

 re
po

rts
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 C
M

T 
by

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
  • 

N
ew

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 in
 p

la
ce

, m
ak

in
g 

Page 280



 
 

70
 

       • 
E

xt
en

d 
‘P

eo
pl

e 
in

to
 P

ub
lic

 L
ife

’ e
ve

nt
 to

 L
A

P
s 

  
  • 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
su

pp
or

t 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 v

ot
e,

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
B

M
E

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

 
 • 

In
tro

du
ce

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 re
gu

la
r c

an
va

ss
in

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
m

or
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
, 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
 

• 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
n 

re
-p

os
iti

on
ed

 w
ith

 g
re

at
er

 p
ro

m
in

en
ce

 
on

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
 

• 
H

it 
ra

te
 o

n 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
0%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
07

  
 • 

P
eo

pl
e 

in
to

 P
ub

lic
 L

ife
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 2
 L

A
P

s 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
   

 • 
20

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

fo
rm

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
t e

ac
h 

pu
bl

ic
 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ev
en

t  
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 ro

lli
ng

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f d

iff
ic

ul
t a

re
as

 to
 c

an
va

ss
 c

om
pl

et
e 

by
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6.
  

• 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 v

is
its

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

an
d 

vi
si

ts
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

7 
5.

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
S

ar
a 

W
illi

am
s,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t b

ra
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 s

ig
na

ge
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 re
co

gn
is

ed
. 

 • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 m
or

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 c
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 E
as

t E
nd

 L
ife

 a
s 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
im

ar
y 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 c
ha

nn
el

 
   • 

Im
pr

ov
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l v

ia
 th

e 
pr

es
s 

an
d 

m
ed

ia
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 ro
bu

st
 re

pu
ta

tio
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 c

ris
is

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

  • 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

an
 In

te
r-

ag
en

cy
 F

or
um

 fo
r 

• 
G

at
ew

ay
 s

ig
na

ge
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
un

de
rw

ay
 fr

om
 M

ay
 

20
06

 w
ith

 m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 b
ra

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
by

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 g
ui

de
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 fu

nc
tio

n 
co

un
ci

l w
id

e 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
R

ev
is

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 n
ew

 e
di

to
ria

l p
ol

ic
y,

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
re

de
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
; r

ea
de

rs
 fe

el
 b

et
te

r i
nf

or
m

ed
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

th
an

 n
on

 re
ad

er
s 

(IC
M

 s
ur

ve
y 

20
07

) 
 • 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 th
in

k 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ke

ep
s 

th
em

 in
fo

rm
ed

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
(A

nn
ua

l R
es

id
en

ts
 S

ur
ve

y)
 

• 
M

on
th

ly
 b

rie
fin

gs
 fo

r B
en

ga
li 

pr
es

s 
an

d 
fo

r o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

m
ed

ia
 

 • 
In

te
r-

ag
en

cy
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 fo
r C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

Page 281



 
 

71
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 
pa

rtn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 b

or
ou

gh
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 p

la
n 

 • 
R

e-
E

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
, t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
an

nu
al

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 p
la

n,
  s

tre
ng

th
en

 jo
in

t 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 w

or
k 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
gu

id
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
 

op
er

at
in

g 
fro

m
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6;
 b

or
ou

gh
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

pl
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 L

S
P

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
  • 

C
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

  i
n 

pl
ac

e,
 

w
ith

 a
nn

ua
l  

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 p
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

 

6.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

C
la

ire
 S

ym
on

ds
, 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 C
or

po
ra

te
 C

us
to

m
er

 A
cc

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

st
om

er
  p

re
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 

de
m

an
ds

   
 • 

M
on

ito
r a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

us
to

m
er

 P
ro

m
is

e 
 • 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
in

te
rn

al
 ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
gr

ea
te

r n
um

be
r  

to
 ta

ke
 u

p 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

ch
an

ne
ls

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

  s
tra

te
gi

c 
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
ha

nd
lin

g 
of

 fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 e

nq
ui

re
s 

fo
r t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

 • 
In

tro
du

ce
 fu

rth
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
eb

si
te

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

it 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
pr

im
e 

ac
ce

ss
 c

ha
nn

el
 fo

r c
us

to
m

er
s 

 • 
Im

pl
em

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 
to

 C
om

m
en

ts
, C

om
pl

im
en

ts
 a

nd
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s.
 

 • 
Fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

ca
ll 

ce
nt

re
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

th
at

 
bu

ild
s 

on
 th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
ad

e 
in

 C
us

to
m

er
 

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
  • 

D
ev

el
op

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ar

e 
bu

ilt
 in

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

 

• 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

   • 
90

%
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

ac
hi

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  • 
R

ob
us

t m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 m

ea
su

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ta
ke

 u
p 

ag
re

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
 • 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
  • 

W
eb

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 C
on

te
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
 to

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 • 
M

ec
ha

ni
sm

 d
ev

is
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 ta

ke
n 

in
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6 

 • 
S

ui
ta

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r i

nt
eg

ra
tio

n 
in

to
 th

e 
C

al
l C

en
tre

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
• 

80
 %

 o
f p

ub
lic

 e
nq

ui
re

s 
re

so
lv

ed
 a

t f
irs

t p
oi

nt
 o

f 
co

nt
ac

t b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

07
 

 • 
M

ec
ha

ni
sm

 d
ev

is
ed

 to
 re

co
rd

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 
to

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

Page 282



 
 

72
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 • 
Im

pr
ov

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 c
ar

e 
to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 v

ia
 in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ar

e 
C

ar
d 

S
ch

em
e 

 

  • 
C

om
pl

et
e 

In
di

vi
du

al
 d

at
a 

ga
th

er
in

g 
fro

m
 c

ar
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

C
ar

e 
C

ar
d 

C
on

te
nt

 a
nd

 fo
rm

at
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

by
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
• 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 S

ta
ff 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
• 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

S
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

                            

Page 283



 
 

73
 

St
ro

ng
er

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
co

he
si

ve
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ic
ha

el
 K

ea
tin

g 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 b
rid

gi
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 p
ilo

t (
lin

ki
ng

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r)
 

 • 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n.
 

 • 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

• 
P

ilo
t a

gr
ee

d 
(J

un
e 

20
06

) a
nd

 re
vi

ew
ed

 (M
ar

ch
 2

00
7)

 
   • 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 e

ve
nt

s 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 re

vi
ew

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

   • 
A

do
pt

 n
at

io
na

l C
om

pa
ct

 C
od

e 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 B
la

ck
 W

om
en

’s
 fa

m
ily

 S
up

po
rt,

 V
ic

tim
 

S
up

po
rt 

an
d 

Is
la

nd
 A

dv
ic

e)
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r o

f 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 (b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7)

 
2.

 
To

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, 
en

su
rin

g 
bo

th
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l i

nt
eg

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
 C

on
ta

ct
: M

ar
ga

re
t L

ib
re

ri,
 C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
S

tro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

tra
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

LA
A

 
  • 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

am
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ro
us

t s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
N

R
F 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

  • 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

      

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

un
de

rw
ay

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 q

ua
rte

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 to

 E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

P
A

G
 

• 
6-

m
on

th
ly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 c
on

fir
m

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t a
gr

ee
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

 • 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rti

ng
 to

 L
A

P
s,

 C
P

A
G

s 
an

d 
P

M
G

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 N
R

F 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

• 
W

ar
d 

da
ta

 re
po

rt 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

an
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 s
ho

w
s 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
LA

P
 

• 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t a

gr
ee

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
an

nu
al

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

re
po

rt 
 • 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 s
tra

te
gy

 m
on

ito
re

d 
tw

ic
e 

ye
ar

ly
 b

y 
E

P
S

 C
P

A
G

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f N

ew
sl

et
te

r, 
e-

bu
lle

tin
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 c
om

pl
et

e 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
45

%
 o

f l
oc

al
 re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 h
ea

rd
 o

f t
he

 T
H

P
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
(A

nn
ua

l R
es

id
en

ts
 S

ur
ve

y)
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
LA

P
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 4

50
0 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
07

, w
ith

 ta
rg

et
s 

m
et

 fo
r 

Page 284



 
 

74
 

  • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 B

M
E

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
 

 • 
R

ev
is

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6,
 w

ith
 m

on
th

ly
 

up
da

te
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

e-
bu

lle
tin

 
• 

A
nn

ua
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t a

nd
 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 E

P
S

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

3.
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

cr
os

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

  
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

ffi
ce

r: 
C

la
ire

 S
ym

on
ds

, 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
(P

C
T,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 F
ire

 
B

rig
ad

e 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 F

or
um

) 
to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

an
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

  • 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ca

le
nd

ar
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
us

er
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 a

nd
 e

as
ily

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 w
or

kp
la

n 
fo

r t
he

 u
se

 
of

 th
e 

R
es

id
en

ts
' P

an
el

 
  • 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r s
ta

ff,
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e;
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 d
es

ig
n,

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
p 

m
od

er
at

io
n,

 ‘a
cc

es
si

ng
 h

id
de

n 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
’ 

an
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
to

ol
ki

t 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 E
P

S
 C

P
A

G
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

• 
C

as
e 

st
ud

y 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

 • 
K

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

on
 th

e 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

by
 J

un
e 

20
06

 
• 

‘H
its

’ t
o 

th
e 

si
te

 s
ho

w
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nc
re

as
e 

by
 M

ar
ch

 
20

07
 

 • 
W

or
kp

la
n 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 fr
om

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
• 

P
an

el
 m

em
be

rs
 c

on
su

lte
d 

on
 k

ey
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
no

 le
ss

 th
an

 3
 ti

m
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
 • 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 v
ia

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

or
po

ra
te

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 

            

Page 285



 
 

75
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
qu

al
ity

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

ity
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 M
ile

st
on

e 
1.

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

op
er

at
es

 to
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ic

ha
el

 K
ea

tin
g,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 

• 
P

ub
lis

h 
ne

w
 E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 o
n 

ra
ce

, f
ai

th
, 

ge
nd

er
, s

ex
ua

l o
rie

nt
at

io
n,

 a
ge

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
. 

 • 
M

on
ito

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 R

ac
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 
S

ch
em

e 
(2

00
5-

20
08

) t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

e 
on

 tr
ac

k 
or

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
 

  • 
P

ub
lis

h 
ne

w
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 E

qu
al

ity
 Im

pa
ct

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

rig
ou

r a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

 • 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

le
ve

l 5
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d.

 
 • 

P
ub

lis
h 

a 
G

en
de

r E
qu

al
ity

 S
ch

em
e 

– 
as

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

– 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 in
eq

ua
lit

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

en
 a

nd
 w

om
en

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

w
or

kp
la

ce
. 

 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
nd

 fu
lly

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

ge
, f

ai
th

 a
nd

 s
ex

ua
l 

or
ie

nt
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
at

 it
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 

• 
E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
   • 

S
ix

-m
on

th
ly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
co

nf
irm

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
ar

e 
on

 tr
ac

k.
 

• 
95

%
 o

f t
ar

ge
ts

 s
et

 in
 R

ac
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 S
ch

em
e 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
N

ew
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 E

qu
al

ity
 Im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

 • 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 c
on

fir
m

 L
ev

el
 5

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 
  • 

G
en

de
r e

qu
al

ity
 s

ch
em

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 
   • 

A
ll 

st
af

f r
ec

ei
ve

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 n

ew
 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

2.
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 it

 
en

ga
ge

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

ga
re

t L
ib

re
ri,

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
fro

m
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, s
up

po
rti

ng
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
ou

tc
om

es
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

S
tro

ng
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 s
tra

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
LA

A
 

• 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 s

ho
w

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
fro

m
 ta

rg
et

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

• 
S

el
f a

ss
es

sm
en

t r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
co

nf
irm

s 
th

at
 L

A
P

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

re
fle

ct
iv

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

3.
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t W

or
kf

or
ce

 to
 R

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tra
te

gy
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

• 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rt 
ag

ai
ns

t t
ar

ge
ts

 to
 C

M
T 

in
 M

ay
 a

nd
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6;
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
nd

 J
an

ua
ry

 

Page 286



 
 

76
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

  • 
M

ea
su

re
 g

en
de

r p
ay

 g
ap

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
qu

al
 P

ay
 P

ol
ic

y 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t a

nd
 

jo
b 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 

20
07

 
 • 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
3rd

 e
qu

al
 p

ay
 a

ud
it 

to
 C

M
T 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
  

4.
 

To
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
sc

ho
ol

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

H
el

en
 J

en
ne

r, 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

  

• 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
ac

ka
ge

 o
f i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

un
de

r-
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
gr

ou
ps

 in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

 • 
Im

pl
em

en
t i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
of

 B
M

E
 s

ta
ff 

in
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ro
le

s 

• 
P

ac
ka

ge
 o

f i
nc

en
tiv

es
 p

ub
lic

is
ed

 (J
ul

y 
20

06
) a

nd
 

ta
ke

n 
up

 b
y 

5 
S

om
al

i y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

is
hi

ng
 to

 tr
ai

n 
as

 te
ac

he
rs

 b
y 

(S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6)

 
 • 

C
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r B

M
E

 s
ta

ff 
(J

ul
y 

20
06

) a
nd

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
th

es
e 

(S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6)

   
• 

10
 B

M
E

 s
ta

ff 
ac

ce
ss

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 (M
ar

ch
 2

00
7)

 
5.

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 b

et
te

r 
m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
 in

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ic

ha
el

 K
ea

tin
g 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
 

• 
P

ub
lis

h 
a 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
co

ve
rin

g 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

ils
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

 • 
R

e-
la

un
ch

 D
is

ab
le

d 
G

o,
 a

n 
on

-li
ne

 g
ui

de
 to

 
ac

ce
ss

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 1

,0
00

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 T
ow

er
 

H
am

le
ts

 
 • 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

al
l p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 2

00
5 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
  

 • 
In

ve
st

 in
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
tin

g 
on

 th
os

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

at
 g

en
er

at
e 

th
e 

m
os

t p
ub

lic
 

ac
tiv

ity
  

• 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
ch

em
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

  • 
D

is
ab

le
d 

G
o 

re
-la

un
ch

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 
(th

is
 

re
-la

un
ch

 is
 o

ne
 y

ea
r o

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 la
un

ch
 in

 
20

05
/6

) 
 • 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

ch
em

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

• 
A

ll 
po

lic
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 • 
A

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 5

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

ys
 in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 
of

 e
ac

h 
m

aj
or

 re
ta

in
ed

 c
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
• 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 D

D
A

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 c

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
 fr

om
 

45
%

 to
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 5

5%
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

6.
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 a

s 
ac

tiv
e 

ci
tiz

en
s,

 w
ith

 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
as

 a
ll 

ot
he

r c
iti

ze
ns

 o
f 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
. 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 m
ea

su
re

 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 a

gr
ee

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 

• 
A

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

 
 

Page 287



 
 

77
 

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

Jo
hn

 G
ol

du
p,

 
A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
                                   

Page 288



 
 

78
 

9.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

P
la

nn
in

g 
is

 a
 m

aj
or

 th
re

ad
 ru

nn
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n.
 In

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

t h
as

 a
lw

ay
s 

be
en

 im
po

rta
nt

, b
ut

 n
ev

er
 m

or
e 

so
 in

 e
na

bl
in

g 
co

un
ci

ls
 to

 s
et

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

ie
s,

 tu
rn

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ci

si
on

s 
in

to
 a

ct
io

n,
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 b

es
t t

o 
al

lo
ca

te
 re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 re
vi

ew
 re

su
lts

 s
o 

th
at

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
fe

ed
s 

ba
ck

 in
to

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 It
 is

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fr
am

ew
or

k,
 w

ith
 e

xp
lic

it 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
pr

og
re

ss
, t

ha
t a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 –

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
in

 a
nd

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

– 
ca

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 e
xa

ct
ly

 w
ha

t g
oa

ls
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
ou

r 
pr

og
re

ss
. A

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
al

so
 re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f e
ac

h 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
its

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
te

am
s 

– 
an

d 
al

so
 o

f e
ac

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

 w
ith

in
 

th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 te

am
s 

– 
in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

os
e 

go
al

s,
 a

nd
 s

et
s 

ou
t h

ow
 o

ur
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
ju

dg
ed

. 
 Th

is
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

co
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

si
ts

 w
ith

in
 a

 b
ro

ad
 a

nd
 in

cl
us

iv
e 

ba
se

 fo
r t

he
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 c

om
pl

ex
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fa

ci
ng

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

 It
 is

 o
ne

 o
f a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 p

la
ns

, i
nt

er
co

nn
ec

te
d 

at
 d

iff
er

en
t l

ev
el

s,
 e

ac
h 

of
 w

hi
ch

 in
fo

rm
s 

th
e 

ot
he

r a
nd

 e
ac

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
fo

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

. T
he

 d
ia

gr
am

 b
el

ow
 il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
se

 p
la

ns
. I

t i
s 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 a
 b

rie
f e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 e

ac
h 

pl
an

. 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 p
la

n 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
of

 m
an

y 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

. T
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r b
et

te
r c

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

al
l t

he
 m

or
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 b
ec

au
se

 s
o 

m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
ro

ss
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s.

 B
ot

h 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

an
d 

th
at

 o
f 

ot
he

r a
ge

nc
ie

s 
– 

is
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 a
n 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 a
s 

en
vi

sa
ge

d 
by

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
ke

s 
th

e 
le

ad
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 c

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
an

d 
w

or
ks

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 it

s 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n,
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
. T

he
 P

la
n 

is
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
es

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
R

en
ew

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 

Page 289



 
 

79
 

  St
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n 
en

ab
le

s 
us

 to
 b

e 
cl

ea
re

r a
bo

ut
 o

ur
 p

ur
po

se
s,

 o
ur

 s
en

se
 o

f d
ire

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ou

r d
is

ci
pl

in
e 

in
 m

an
ag

in
g 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

e 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 m
ee

t n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 s

o 
w

e 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

ab
le

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

. T
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
is

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

ar
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n.

 
 Th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n 
is

 M
em

be
r-

le
d,

 re
fle

ct
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

, i
nv

ol
ve

s 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

s 
st

af
f, 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r j

oi
nt

 in
iti

at
iv

es
. M

an
y 

ot
he

r s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

la
ns

 b
ot

h 
in

fo
rm

 a
nd

 a
re

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n.

 T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

e,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tra
te

gy
, C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n,
 th

e 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
ru

gs
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

S
tra

te
gy

, t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Page 290



 
 

80
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

S
tra

te
gy

, t
he

 Im
pr

ov
in

g 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
, t

he
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n,
 th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
, a

nd
 m

an
y 

ot
he

rs
. 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 o
ur

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

is
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

up
da

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y.

 T
hi

s 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

in
co

rp
or

at
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n,

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
oc

um
en

t d
et

ai
lin

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

pl
an

s 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l P

la
ns

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
 a

nd
 lo

ng
er

-te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
tra

te
gi

es
 fo

r b
ot

h 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. F
in

an
ci

al
 

P
la

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r a
llo

ca
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 L
as

t y
ea

r, 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
ns

 w
er

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
og

et
he

r f
or

 th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
cy

cl
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 s

te
p 

in
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

flo
w

s 
fro

m
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

 Th
e 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f i

ts
 p

ro
pe

rty
 a

ss
et

s.
 It

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

st
at

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
pe

rty
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

nd
 th

e 
ai

m
s,

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

 fo
r l

an
d 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

as
se

ts
 o

ve
r a

 fi
ve

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d.

 
Th

e 
C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
ap

ita
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
or

re
sp

on
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

 Se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 
E

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
la

rg
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
its

 o
w

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n,

 th
ro

ug
h 

w
hi

ch
 it

 s
ee

ks
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

f t
he

 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n.
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
ns

 h
av

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 fo

rm
at

s 
bu

t a
ll 

sh
ow

 h
ow

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 to

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

Th
ey

 in
cl

ud
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ag
ai

ns
t w

hi
ch

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

ju
dg

ed
, a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 fe
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n.
 

 Te
am

 p
la

ns
 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l s

tru
ct

ur
es

 m
ad

e 
up

 o
f d

iff
er

en
t t

ea
m

s 
or

 s
ec

tio
ns

 fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 

E
ac

h 
te

am
 h

as
 it

s 
ow

n 
Te

am
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

ho
w

 it
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
go

al
s 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

cl
ea

r w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

A
s 

w
ith

 S
er

vi
ce

 p
la

ns
, t

ea
m

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

ju
dg

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
de

gr
ee

 to
 w

hi
ch

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

re
 m

et
 a

nd
 b

es
t v

al
ue

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

 Pe
rs

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 

E
ac

h 
m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 P

er
so

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n,

 th
ro

ug
h 

w
hi

ch
 s

/h
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

 h
ow

 th
ey

 in
te

nd
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 te
am

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
. P

er
so

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

 a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
tra

in
in

g 
or

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

r i
n 

fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
ei

r s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
to

 d
o 

th
ei

r j
ob

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
 P

er
so

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 re
gu

la
rly

 w
ith

 te
am

 o
r s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 a
re

 a
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
In

ve
st

or
s 

in
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

(Ii
P

). 
    

Page 291



 
 

81
 

10
. U

se
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 2
00

6/
07

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

sp
en

d 
ne

ar
ly

  £
1.

2 
bi

llio
n 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s.

 O
f t

hi
s,

 £
1,

08
5 

m
ill

io
n 

is
 re

ve
nu

e 
sp

en
di

ng
, a

nd
 £

82
 m

ill
io

n 
ca

pi
ta

l. 
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

op
er

at
es

 a
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
:- 

 
S

er
vi

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g 

is
 in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

 
Th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

re
 c

le
ar

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
 M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 P
la

n 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
is

 a
n 

im
po

rta
nt

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 W

hi
le

 m
an

y 
ke

y 
de

ci
si

on
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x,

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
be

 ta
ke

n 
an

nu
al

ly
, t

ho
se

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
se

t i
n 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f a
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ho

riz
on

.  
 W

e 
pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

ro
lli

ng
 t

hr
ee

-y
ea

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
n 

w
ith

 i
nd

ic
at

iv
e 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
of

 s
pe

nd
in

g,
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
gr

an
t 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

le
ve

ls
. 

Th
is

 p
la

n 
ta

ke
s 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 t

he
 is

su
es

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 F

in
an

ci
al

 C
on

te
xt

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

el
ow

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 c
ha

ng
es

, 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s,

 u
na

vo
id

ab
le

 
gr

ow
th

, i
nf

la
tio

n,
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 o
ur

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
S

er
vi

ce
 

P
la

ns
. T

he
 M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 P
la

n 
he

lp
s 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

nd
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r m

ov
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
to

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
   

  
 Th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

um
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
20

06
/0

7-
20

08
/0

9.
  F

ig
ur

es
 fo

r 2
00

7/
08

 a
nd

 2
00

8/
09

 a
re

 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
th

es
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f f

ut
ur

e 
bu

dg
et

 ro
un

ds
.  

            

Page 292



 
 

82
 

  
 

 M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TI
O

N
 

 
 

20
06

/0
7 

20
07

/0
8 

20
08

/0
9 

 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

 
 

 O
pe

ni
ng

 B
ud

ge
t R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

43
8,

84
8

26
7,

89
4

27
9,

18
6 

 
 

 T
ra

ns
fe

r o
f S

ch
oo

ls
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 D
ed

ic
at

ed
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

G
ra

nt
 

-1
83

,3
15

 

 In
fla

tio
n 

6,
15

2
6,

30
0

6,
70

0 
 O

th
er

 u
na

vo
id

ab
le

 b
ud

ge
t g

ro
w

th
  

12
,5

26
9,

51
4

9,
82

7 
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

  
-6

,3
17

-4
,5

22
-5

,4
11

 
 

 
 

18
,6

78
15

,8
14

16
,5

27
 

 
 

 B
ud

ge
t R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

26
7,

89
4

27
9,

18
6

29
0,

30
2 

 
 

 F
or

m
ul

a 
G

ra
nt

 
-2

05
,7

77
-2

13
,8

22
-2

22
,1

61
 

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Fu
nd

 S
ur

pl
us

 
-1

,9
05

-1
,5

98
-1

,1
51

 
 

 
 

60
,2

12
63

,7
66

66
,9

90
 

 
 

 In
di

ca
tiv

e 
B

an
d 

D
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
£7

97
.2

8
£8

16
.9

9
£8

37
.3

8 
 

 
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

0.
0%

2.
5%

2.
5%

 
 

 
  

 
 

 S
en

si
tiv

ity
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
06

/0
7 

B
ud

ge
t  

 
 

 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
 

 
£'

00
0 

 
£ 

 E
ffe

ct
 o

f: 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 F
or

m
ul

a 
G

ra
nt

 
2,

05
8 

 
27

.2
5 

 
 0

.5
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ay
 a

nd
 p

ric
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

 
1,

14
8 

 
15

.2
0 

 
 5

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 g

ro
w

th
  

54
3 

 
7.

19
 

Page 293



 
 

83
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
ai

m
 to

: 
• 

M
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 b
y 

se
cu

rin
g 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 fu

nd
in

g 
• 

O
pt

im
is

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t, 
de

liv
er

in
g 

B
es

t V
al

ue
, a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 

• 
R

ec
on

ci
le

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
de

m
an

ds
 p

la
ce

d 
on

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

pa
ye

rs
 

• 
A

lig
n 

ou
r s

pe
nd

in
g 

pl
an

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

ns
 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ew
ar

ds
hi

p 
of

 p
ub

lic
 m

on
ey

 
• 

C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r c

or
po

ra
te

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 2
.5

%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r A

he
ad

 
Th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

et
s 

ou
t o

ur
 e

st
im

at
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

sp
en

di
ng

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r 2

00
6/

07
. R

ev
en

ue
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 is

 th
e 

da
y-

to
-d

ay
 c

os
ts

 o
f r

un
ni

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

t f
or

 2
00

6/
07

6 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 (£

,0
00

) 
In

co
m

e 
(£

,0
00

) 
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
27

8,
00

6
24

5,
74

1
32

,2
65

 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
36

8,
65

3
36

0,
85

9
7,

79
4 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 
10

6,
01

6
10

6,
01

6
0 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
13

2,
76

5
19

,4
49

11
3,

31
6 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

ul
tu

re
 

84
,1

06
21

,3
46

62
,7

60
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
&

 O
th

er
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
98

,9
68

58
,6

69
40

,2
99

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al
 

17
,3

89
10

,8
75

6,
51

4 
To

ta
l 

1,
08

5,
90

3
82

2,
95

5
26

2,
94

8 
 Th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 n
ew

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s’

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6.
 B

ud
ge

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

or
ga

ni
se

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
is

.  
 C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l S

tra
te

gy
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r e
va

lu
at

in
g 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nt
en

si
ve

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

is
in

g 
ca

pi
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t. 

C
ap

ita
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

at
 o

ffe
r t

he
 m

os
t c

os
t-e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 C
lo

se
ly

 a
lig

ne
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ap
ita

l 
S

tra
te

gy
 is

 o
ur

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n,
 w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t o
ur

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f o
ur

 p
ro

pe
rty

 p
or

tfo
lio

 a
nd

 it
s 

ro
le

 in
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

 Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

ho
w

 c
ap

ita
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

th
em

es
.  

    

Page 294



 
 

84
 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
M

E 
20

06
/0

7-
 2

00
8/

09
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Th
em

e 
20

06
/0

7
£0

00
s

20
07

/0
8

£0
00

s
20

08
/0

9 
£0

00
s 

Fu
tu

re
 

ye
ar

s
To

ta
l 

Li
vi

ng
 s

af
el

y 
14

,7
00

14
,1

00
10

,6
40

 
11

,7
70

51
,2

10
Li

vi
ng

 w
el

l 
33

,8
51

22
,8

11
17

,5
16

 
74

,1
78

C
re

at
in

g 
&

 s
ha

rin
g 

pr
os

pe
rit

y 
1,

63
2

2,
60

3
 

4,
23

5
Le

ar
ni

ng
, a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t &

 le
is

ur
e 

17
,9

21
34

,3
00

15
,2

82
 

1,
10

1
68

,6
04

E
xc

el
le

nt
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
13

,6
90

9,
71

2
7,

26
3 

30
,6

65
TO

TA
L 

81
,7

94
83

,5
26

50
,7

01
 

12
,8

71
22

8,
89

2
 Fi

na
nc

ia
l C

on
te

xt
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fa
ce

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f m
aj

or
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
su

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 li

fe
tim

e 
of

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

yc
le

, a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
e 

ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 fi
na

nc
ia

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

To
ge

th
er

 th
es

e 
m

ea
n 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ag

en
da

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t f
or

 o
ur

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
. S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
. 

 C
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
in

an
ce

 S
ys

te
m

 
Th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t i
nt

ro
du

ce
d 

tw
o-

ye
ar

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 fo
r m

an
y 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
gr

an
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
G

ra
nt

, w
ith

 e
ffe

ct
 fr

om
 2

00
6/

07
, a

nd
 

an
no

un
ce

d 
th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

is
 to

 th
re

e-
ye

ar
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 e

ffe
ct

 fr
om

 2
00

8/
09

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
aj

or
 p

os
iti

ve
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
la

n 
ah

ea
d.

 A
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
G

ra
nt

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 a

ls
o 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
in

 2
00

6/
07

 w
er

e 
la

rg
el

y 
de

tri
m

en
ta

l t
o 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

. T
he

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

ha
se

d 
in

, b
ut

 w
ill

 le
ad

 to
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 g
ra

nt
 s

ha
re

 to
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d.

  
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 L

yo
ns

 In
qu

iry
 in

to
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

un
di

ng
 is

 e
xa

m
in

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
fo

rm
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 o
th

er
 fo

rm
s 

of
 lo

ca
l t

ax
at

io
n.

 T
he

se
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

ef
or

m
s 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 m
aj

or
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ce
s 

an
d 

fo
r l

oc
al

 ta
xp

ay
er

s.
 

 
Sp

en
di

ng
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

s 
pe

rio
di

c 
re

vi
ew

s 
of

 p
ub

lic
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
 la

st
 w

as
 in

 s
um

m
er

 2
00

4 
an

d 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
to

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 
Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r i
nc

re
as

es
 o

f t
ot

al
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t s
pe

nd
in

g 
of

 5
.4

%
 in

 2
00

5/
6,

 5
.5

%
 in

 2
00

6/
7 

an
d 

5,
1%

 in
 2

00
7/

8.
 T

he
se

 ra
te

s 
of

 in
cr

ea
se

 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 in
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 2
.5

%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

. F
or

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 th

is
 ta

rg
et

 e
qu

at
es

 to
 £

6.
5m

 p
er

 y
ea

r. 
 

 
Th

e 
ne

xt
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

 o
f 2

00
7.

 T
he

 C
ha

nc
el

lo
r o

f t
he

 E
xc

he
qu

er
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
m

or
e 

in
 d

ep
th

 
re

vi
ew

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

am
on

g 
ot

he
r t

hi
ng

s 
on

 fu
rth

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
, m

or
e 

re
sp

on
si

ve
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
di

ng
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
co

m
es

 fr
om

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f s
ou

rc
es

: o
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t o
f t

he
se

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
sa

le
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

as
se

ts
. F

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

is
 s

ou
rc

e 
is

 s
et

 to
 re

du
ce

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

, p
rin

ci
pa

lly
 d

ue
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 b

uy
 

Page 295



 
 

85
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ho
us

es
. T

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 c

ap
ita

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f t
hi

s,
 re

vi
si

tin
g 

its
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

 Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 th
e 

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 h

av
e 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
a 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
to

 ru
n 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

06
5–

 2
00

9.
 T

hi
s 

co
m

pr
is

es
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f k
ey

 s
tre

tc
h 

ta
rg

et
s,

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

rin
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
ew

ar
d 

gr
an

t f
un

di
ng

 o
f a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
[£

10
m

] t
o 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
fte

r 2
00

9.
 

 H
ou

si
ng

 C
ho

ic
e 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 d
ire

ct
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 t
w

o/
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
. 

Th
is

 h
as

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

, a
s 

it 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 re

sh
ap

e 
bo

th
 d

ire
ct

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 re
fle

ct
 lo

w
er

 le
ve

ls
 o

f a
ct

iv
ity

. 
 E-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

us
ed

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
‘in

ve
st

 to
 s

av
e’

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 fu
nd

 th
e 

fir
st

 tr
an

ch
e 

of
 it

s 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
. F

ur
th

er
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
IT

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
sy

st
em

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

te
p 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 A

ll 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

s 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 ta

ng
ib

le
 a

nd
 m

ea
su

ra
bl

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d/

or
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

. I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
cu

st
om

er
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 g

ai
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

ke
y 

dr
iv

er
s 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 IC

T 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
 

 O
ffi

ce
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 s
tra

te
gy

 fo
r 

th
e 

ra
tio

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 it
s 

of
fic

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

ill
 

re
qu

ire
 c

or
po

ra
te

 fu
nd

in
g 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

, a
nd

 th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 o
f  

de
liv

er
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 o
ng

oi
ng

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
av

in
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

e,
 s

 a
nd

 a
 m

or
e 

pr
od

uc
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f. 

 
 Ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

Va
lu

e 
fo

r M
on

ey
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t. 

Th
at

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
al

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 t
ow

ar
ds

 m
ax

im
is

in
g 

im
pa

ct
 i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.  
 Th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 a
 c

on
si

st
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

ar
y 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

re
al

is
e 

an
nu

al
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 g
ai

ns
, a

nd
 th

is
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s 
to

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

’ C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x,

 
be

in
g 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

w
es

t o
f a

ll 
33

 L
on

do
n 

co
un

ci
ls

. T
he

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
fo

cu
s 

on
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
 0

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 e

le
m

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

fo
r 2

00
6/

07
.. 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
fu

rth
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 in
 a

ll 
of

 it
s 

m
ai

n 
ar

ea
s 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
es

e 
in

to
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 

hu
m

an
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
&

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 t
ec

hn
ol

og
y,

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

 n
ew

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 e

.g
. s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
, b

us
in

es
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

re
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 P

rio
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l t

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

na
l e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  

Page 296



 
 

86
 

 Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

Th
e 

te
rm

 ‘p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t’ 
de

sc
rib

es
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 o
rg

an
is

in
g 

an
d 

ar
ra

ng
in

g 
th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
f g

oo
ds

 o
r s

er
vi

ce
s.

 A
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
vo

lv
e 

so
m

e 
fo

rm
 o

f p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t, 
be

 it
 c

on
tra

ct
in

g 
ou

t a
 w

ho
le

 fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
sm

al
l i

te
m

s 
of

 o
ffi

ce
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

in
-h

ou
se

 o
r 

ex
te

rn
al

ly
. 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

co
m

m
on

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

of
 g

oo
ds

 o
r s

er
vi

ce
s,

 to
 fu

rth
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
vi

si
on

, h
el

p 
ac

hi
ev

e 
its

 c
or

po
ra

te
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, a
nd

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 B

es
t V

al
ue

. I
t i

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l p
rin

ci
pl

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r b

es
t s

ui
te

d,
 w

he
th

er
 th

at
 b

e 
in

-h
ou

se
, o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, p
riv

at
e 

or
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
rs

. T
he

 S
tra

te
gy

 re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 e
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
be

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f c
rit

er
ia

. T
he

se
 a

re
: 

• 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

C
ha

lle
ng

e 
• 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

C
om

pe
tit

iv
en

es
s 

• 
Fu

tu
re

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

• 
M

ar
ke

t C
on

di
tio

ns
 

• 
R

is
k 

A
na

ly
si

s 
• 

Th
e 

Lo
ca

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

 W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
to

 m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t t

o 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ou
tc

om
es

. 
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f b
ot

h 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

th
re

at
s 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

its
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fir

m
ly

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
th

at
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
an

 e
ss

en
tia

l e
le

m
en

t o
f C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

ha
s 

a 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

ris
ks

 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 it

s 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s.

 T
he

 a
im

 is
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f s
tra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 in
 th

e 
m

os
t o

pt
im

um
 

w
ay

, r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
or

 ri
sk

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 im
pa

ct
 s

uc
ce

ss
.  

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
ek

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ris

k 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
re

si
du

al
 ri

sk
 c

om
m

en
su

ra
te

 w
ith

 it
s 

st
at

us
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 b

od
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

de
ci

de
 to

 ta
ke

 ri
sk

s 
in

 p
ur

su
it 

of
 it

s 
am

bi
tio

ns
 fo

r l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

he
re

 it
 h

as
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 ri

sk
s:

- 
• 

H
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
pe

rly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 
• 

W
ill

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 ta

ki
ng

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
 o

f l
ik

el
ih

oo
d 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 

• 
A

re
 ju

st
ifi

ed
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l b

en
ef

its
 a

cc
ru

in
g 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

  
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
fo

rm
al

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
its

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

R
is

ks
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

 p
ro

je
ct

 le
ve

l a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
. K

ey
 le

ga
l a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

is
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 in

 
re

po
rts

 s
ee

ki
ng

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

r a
pp

ro
va

l f
or

 a
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 ri
sk

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

re
 c

ap
tu

re
d 

in
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 ri
sk

 re
gi

st
er

 a
nd

 a
re

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ris
k-

re
po

rti
ng

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 T

he
 ri

sk
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 ri

sk
s 

is
 a

 k
ey

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
at

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
. 

Page 297



 
 

87
 

 Th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 a
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r t

ha
t i

de
nt

ifi
es

 th
e 

m
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ris

ks
. T

he
 re

gi
st

er
 c

on
ta

in
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f t
he

 
pr

in
ci

pa
l r

is
ks

 to
 th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f t

he
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 T
he

se
 a

re
: 

• 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
re

 in
he

re
nt

 in
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

f a
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

 - 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 b

us
in

es
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
, a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s;
 

• 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
ris

e 
fro

m
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

 - 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
Id

ea
 S

to
re

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e;
 a

nd
 

• 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
ris

e 
fro

m
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
 - 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

, t
he

 
IC

T/
eG

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f c
ha

ng
e.

 
 E

ac
h 

of
 th

es
e 

ris
ks

 is
 a

ss
es

se
d 

fo
r l

ik
el

ih
oo

d 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
ow

ne
r a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
ac

tio
ns

/c
on

tro
ls

. T
he

 re
gi

st
er

 is
 

up
da

te
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 o

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 re

po
rte

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 to

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
. E

ac
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 it

s 
ow

n 
re

gi
st

er
 o

f r
is

ks
 th

at
 

fe
ed

s 
in

to
 th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 In
 th

is
 w

ay
 s

en
io

r m
an

ag
er

s 
as

se
ss

 ri
sk

s,
 d

ev
el

op
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 a
 s

ys
te

m
at

ic
 m

an
ne

r. 
Th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l c
or

po
ra

te
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
                         

Page 298



 
 

88
 

11
. M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

la
n 

ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

at
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f l
ev

el
s.

 A
t D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
le

ve
l, 

it 
is

 s
ub

su
m

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

br
oa

de
r s

er
vi

ce
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
ul

tu
re

. A
t C

ou
nc

il 
le

ve
l, 

th
is

 p
la

n 
is

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 (C

M
T)

, C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 T

ow
er

 
H

am
le

ts
 In

de
x 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 is
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

 a
t t

w
o-

m
on

th
ly

 in
te

rv
al

s,
 w

hi
le

 tw
o 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

P
la

n,
 a

t 6
 m

on
th

s 
an

d 
at

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

to
 g

o 
to

 th
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. A

 m
or

e 
ev

al
ua

tiv
e 

A
nn

ua
l R

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 J
un

e 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n.

 
 H

ow
 w

ill
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
be

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t?

 
W

ho
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 it

 is
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t?
 

W
ho

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

re
po

rt
? 

D
at

es
 fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 

In
de

x 

  C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

s 

  C
ab

in
et

 

  Tw
o 

m
on

th
 ro

lli
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt,

 b
as

ed
 o

n:
 

• 
A

ct
iv

ity
 a

na
ly

si
s 

• 
D

at
a 

an
al

ys
is

 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

an
d 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
ep

or
ts

 

  C
M

T 
/ O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

  N
ov

em
be

r /
 D

ec
em

be
r 

an
d 

 
Ju

ne
 / 

Ju
ly

 
 

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t a
nd

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
 

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
 

 C
ab

in
et

 / 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 / 
Fu

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 

 A
nn

ua
lly

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
R

ep
or

t f
oc

us
in

g 
on

 
is

su
es

 w
ith

in
 th

em
es

 

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
  

 A
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
: T

he
 T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 In
de

x 
Th

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ill

 m
on

ito
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 li
nk

ed
 to

 o
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
7,

 o
n 

a 
ro

lli
ng

 b
as

is
. S

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 c
an

 u
se

fu
lly

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
on

 a
 tw

o 
or

 th
re

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

, b
ut

 o
th

er
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 G
C

S
E

 re
su

lts
, c

an
 

on
ly

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
. W

he
re

 th
is

 is
 th

e 
ca

se
, c

on
tri

bu
to

ry
 o

r u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 - 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 c
au

si
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 - 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

as
 in

te
rim

 p
ro

xy
 in

di
ca

to
rs

. 
  

Page 299



 
 

89
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

ab
in

et
’s

 2
-m

on
th

ly
 ro

lli
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e:

  
 A

 B
et

te
r P

la
ce

 F
or

 L
iv

in
g 

Sa
fe

ly
 

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 th
at

 a
re

 s
af

er
 

1.
 

 2.
 

 3.
 

N
um

be
r o

f v
io

le
nt

 c
rim

es
 (c

om
m

on
 a

ss
au

lt 
pl

us
 A

B
H

/G
B

H
) 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

un
de

r 1
8 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
tre

at
m

en
t 

 O
ve

ra
ll 

cr
im

e 
ra

te
 

LP
S

A
/L

A
A

  
 LP

S
A

/L
A

A
 

 LP
S

A
/L

A
A

 
 A

 c
le

an
er

 a
nd

 g
re

en
er

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 

4.
 

 5.
 

Th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f c

le
an

lin
es

s 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
st

re
et

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 re
cy

cl
ed

 

B
V

 1
99

a/
LP

S
A

/L
A

A
 

 B
V

 8
2a

 
 A

 B
et

te
r P

la
ce

 fo
r L

iv
in

g 
W

el
l  

 D
ec

en
t h

om
es

 in
 d

ec
en

t n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

6.
 

 7.
 

 8.
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

ur
ge

nt
 re

pa
irs

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t t

im
e 

lim
its

 
 A

ve
ra

ge
 re

-le
t t

im
e 

fo
r l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
dw

el
lin

gs
  

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

pa
irs

 s
er

vi
ce

 

N
at

io
na

l 
 B

V
21

2 
 Lo

ca
l  

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 O
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
A

du
lts

 
9.

 
 10

. 
  11

. 
 12

. 
 13

. 
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
in

 b
ed

 a
nd

 b
re

ak
fa

st
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
 N

um
be

r o
f s

up
po

rte
d 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 p

er
m

an
en

t r
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 n

ur
si

ng
 

ca
re

 
 A

du
lts

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
hi

ld
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ca

se
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
 S

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
 

B
V

 1
83

a 
 P

A
F 

C
27

 
  P

A
F 

D
40

 
 B

V
 1

62
 

 B
V

 4
9 

 

Page 300



 
 

90
 

14
. 

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 n
ew

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 c

la
im

s 
B

V
 7

8a
 

 A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r C
re

at
in

g 
a 

Sh
ar

in
g 

Pr
os

pe
rit

y 
 Se

cu
rin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

15
. 

 16
. 

 17
. 

 18
. 

N
um

be
r o

f b
us

in
es

se
s/

so
ci

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 a

ss
is

te
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

LA
A

 
 B

V
10

9a
 

 B
V

10
9b

 
 B

V
10

9c
 

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

19
. 

 20
. 

 21
. 

 22
. 

  23
. 

 

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
no

t i
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r t
ra

in
in

g 
(N

E
E

T)
 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 c
la

im
in

g 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 

 Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 2

4 
an

d 
un

de
r h

el
pe

d 
in

to
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

ge
d 

18
-2

5 
cl

ai
m

in
g 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t-r
el

at
ed

 
be

ne
fit

s 
 In

cr
ea

se
d 

su
pp

ly
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
in

 k
ey

 g
ro

w
th

 s
ec

to
rs

 p
ro

m
ot

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

th
ro

ug
h 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t C
on

so
rti

um
  

LA
A

/L
P

S
A

  
 Lo

ca
l 

 LA
A

/L
P

S
A

 
 Lo

ca
l 

  LA
A

 
 

 A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r L
ea

rn
in

g,
 A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
 

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

tta
in

m
en

t 
24

. 
 25

. 

S
ch

oo
l a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
) P

rim
ar

y 
b)

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 

 U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 s
ch

oo
l a

bs
en

ce
 

LA
A

  
 LA

A
 

 

Page 301



 
 

91
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 S

po
rt

in
g,

 L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 C
ul

tu
ra

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

26
. 

 27
. 

 28
. 

 29
. 

 30
. 

N
um

be
r o

f u
nd

er
 1

6s
 w

ho
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

e 
us

er
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Id
ea

 S
to

re
s 

an
d 

lib
ra

rie
s 

 To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f l
ib

ra
ry

 it
em

s 
is

su
es

 to
 u

nd
er

 1
6s

 
 N

um
be

r o
f u

nd
er

 1
6s

 re
gu

la
rly

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
st

ud
y 

su
pp

or
t s

es
si

on
s 

 N
um

be
r o

f u
nd

er
 1

9s
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
a 

co
ur

se
 in

 Id
ea

 S
to

re
s,

 li
br

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 c

en
tre

s 
 N

um
be

r o
f l

ib
ra

ry
 v

is
its

/1
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

LA
A

/L
P

S
A

  
 LA

A
/L

P
S

A
 

 LA
A

/L
P

S
A

 
 LA

A
/L

P
S

A
 

 C
P

A
  

 A
 B

et
te

r P
la

ce
 fo

r E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 Ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
31

. 
 32

. 
 33

. 

B
ud

ge
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

 P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
/ s

hi
fts

 lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

 P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f i
nv

oi
ce

s 
pa

id
 w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 

Lo
ca

l 
 B

V
 1

2 
 B

V
 8

 
 Lo

ca
lly

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
em

po
w

er
in

g 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
34

. 
 35

. 
 36

. 
 37

. 
 38

.  

N
um

be
r o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

LA
P

 e
ve

nt
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 te

le
ph

on
es

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 P

ro
m

is
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 le
tte

rs
 re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 P

ro
m

is
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
al

ls
 h

an
dl

ed
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

al
l C

en
tre

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 S
ta

ge
 1

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 ta
rg

et
 

LA
A

 
 Lo

ca
l 

 Lo
ca

l 
 Lo

ca
l 

 Lo
ca

l 
 St

ro
ng

er
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

co
he

si
ve

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
39

. 
LA

P
 a

tte
nd

ee
s 

fro
m

 ta
rg

et
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

Lo
ca

l 
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 e

qu
al

ity
 o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
40

. 
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

is
 c

om
m

un
ity

: p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

p 
ea

rn
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 w

om
en

 
 

B
V

 1
1a

 
 

Page 302



 
 

92
 

41
. 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

is
 c

om
m

un
ity

: p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

p 
ea

rn
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 fr

om
 m

in
or

ity
 

et
hn

ic
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
  

B
V

 1
1b

 
 

                           
         

Page 303



 
 

93
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

LI
ST

 O
F 

C
O

N
TA

C
T 

O
FF

IC
ER

S 
 N

am
e 

 
C

on
ta

ct
 

A
la

n 
 

Fi
nc

h 
02

0 
73

64
 4

91
5 

A
la

st
ai

r 
K

in
g 

02
0 

73
64

 4
98

1 
C

la
ire

  
S

ym
on

ds
 

02
0 

73
64

 0
83

9 
D

ev
or

a 
W

ol
fs

on
 

02
0 

73
64

 4
63

4 
E

m
m

a 
P

et
er

s 
02

0 
73

64
 4

24
7 

H
ea

th
er

 
W

hi
te

 
02

0 
73

64
 4

24
4 

H
el

en
 

Je
nn

er
 

02
0 

73
64

 3
11

4 
Ia

n 
 

B
ro

w
n 

02
0 

73
64

 4
24

0 
Ja

ck
ie

  
O

du
no

ye
 

02
0 

73
64

 7
52

2 
Ji

m
  

R
ob

er
ts

 
02

0 
73

64
 4

90
1 

Jo
hn

 
G

ol
du

p 
02

0 
73

64
 2

20
4 

Jo
hn

  
P

al
m

er
  

02
0 

73
64

 6
76

9 
K

ev
an

  
C

ol
lin

s 
02

0 
73

64
 4

95
3 

Lo
ui

se
  

R
us

se
ll 

02
0 

73
64

 3
18

6 
M

ar
ga

re
t 

Li
br

er
i 

02
0 

73
64

 4
47

0 
M

ar
y 

D
ur

ki
n 

02
0 

73
64

 4
37

3 
M

au
re

en
 

M
cE

le
ne

y 
02

0 
73

64
 7

13
4 

M
ic

ha
el

 
K

ea
tin

g 
02

0 
73

64
 3

18
3 

 
O

liv
ia

  
M

cL
eo

d 
02

0 
73

64
 0

76
4 

R
ay

 
G

er
la

ch
 

02
0 

73
64

 4
98

2 
R

ic
ha

rd
  

E
lli

s 
02

0 
73

64
 0

73
8 

S
ar

a 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

02
0 

73
64

 4
77

1 
S

ue
 

H
in

ds
 

02
0 

73
64

 4
93

6 
Te

rr
y 

P
ar

ki
n 

02
0 

73
64

 4
82

4 
Te

rr
y 

 
D

am
ia

no
 

02
0 

73
64

 2
86

9 
Ti

m
  

R
ev

el
l 

02
0 

73
64

 4
20

4 
V

er
no

n 
 

S
im

ps
on

 
02

0 
73

64
 7

10
7 

    

Page 304



 
 

94
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

B
B

R
EV

IA
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
B

H
-G

B
H

 
A

ct
ua

l B
od

ily
 H

ar
m

 –
 G

rie
vo

us
 B

od
ily

 H
ar

m
  

IiP
 

In
ve

st
or

s 
in

 P
eo

pl
e 

A
C

P
C

 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
IS

O
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
fo

r S
ta

nd
ar

di
za

tio
n 

A
S

B
 

A
nt

i S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 
JS

A
 

Jo
bs

ee
ke

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

 
A

S
D

 
A

ut
is

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

 D
is

or
de

rs
 

LA
A

  
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

B
A

C
s 

B
an

k 
A

cc
ou

nt
 C

re
di

t 
LA

P
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

B
LT

 
B

ar
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 T

ru
st

 
LD

A
 

Lo
nd

on
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
B

M
E

  
B

la
ck

 a
nd

 M
in

or
ity

 E
th

ni
c 

LD
D

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
B

V
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

LE
G

I 
Lo

ca
l E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
G

ro
w

th
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

B
V

P
I  

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
LE

TF
 

Lo
ca

l E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

C
A

M
H

S
 

C
hi

ld
 a

nd
 A

do
le

sc
en

t M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
LG

P
S

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

C
A

P
A

G
 

C
rim

es
 A

ga
in

st
 P

ov
er

ty
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 
LP

S
A

 
Lo

ca
l P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

C
C

T 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
ha

ng
e 

Te
am

  
LS

 C
P

A
G

 
Lo

ca
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

P
A

G
 

C
C

TV
 

C
lo

se
 C

irc
ui

t T
el

ev
is

io
n 

LS
C

LE
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 &
 S

ki
lls

 C
ou

nc
il 

Lo
nd

on
 E

as
t 

C
M

S
 

C
on

te
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
 

LS
P

 
Lo

ca
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
C

M
T 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
M

B
A

 
M

as
te

rs
 in

 B
us

in
es

s 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
P

A
G

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n 
A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 
N

C
H

 
N

at
io

na
l C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
H

om
e 

C
Y

P
P

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
P

la
n 

N
E

E
T 

N
ot

 in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r t

ra
in

in
g 

D
D

A
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
 

N
H

S
 

N
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
 

D
fE

S
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

S
ki

lls
 

N
R

F 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 F
un

d 
D

V
 

D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e 
P

A
F 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
E

A
L 

E
ng

lis
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
an

gu
ag

e 
P

A
T 

P
up

il 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t T

ra
ck

er
 

E
B

D
 

E
m

ot
io

na
l a

nd
 B

eh
av

io
ur

al
 D

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
P

C
T 

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t 

E
B

P
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
P

Is
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

E
E

L 
E

as
t E

nd
 L

ife
 

P
M

G
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
E

IP
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  
P

P
O

 
P

ro
lif

ic
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

y 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

E
M

E
P

 
E

th
ni

c 
M

in
or

ity
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 

P
S

P
 

P
er

so
na

l S
up

po
rt 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

E
P

S
 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

H
IA

F 
R

ac
e 

an
d 

H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

In
te

ra
ge

nc
y 

Fo
ru

m
 

E
P

S
 C

P
A

G
 

E
xc

el
le

nt
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

P
A

G
 

R
S

L 
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
d 

G
IS

 
G

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

S
ys

te
m

 
S

A
P

  
S

in
gl

e 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

 

Page 305



 
 

95
 

G
LA

  
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

S
E

A
L 

S
oc

ia
l a

nd
 E

m
ot

io
na

l A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f L

ea
rn

in
g 

H
E

 
H

ig
he

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
TH

P
C

T 
To

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t 

H
LT

T 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y,
 L

ei
su

re
, T

ra
ve

l &
 T

ou
ris

m
 

TU
P

E
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 fo
r u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
s 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

H
R

  
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

V
FM

 
V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

 
IC

T 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
Y

O
T 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

Te
am

 
 

Page 306



 

 
Appendix 2 

 
 

 
 

TOWER HAMLETS STRATEGIC 
PLAN ANNUAL REPORT  

 
YEAR 4 

2005-2006  
 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 
Introduction 
 
Part A Annual Report for Year 4 (2005-2006) 
 
Appendices  
 
1 Best Value Performance Indicators, outcomes and targets 
 
2 Significant Variances between targets and outcomes 
a) Improvement on target 
b) Below target 
 
3 Workforce Matters in Service Contracts 
 
Part B Strategic Plan 2006-11: Year 1 (2006-07) 
 
 
 

Page 307



 1

 
Introduction 

 
 
This document brings together in one place a clear statement of the priorities of Tower 
Hamlets Council, how well we are meeting those priorities and how we plan to improve 
services in the future. We are required by law to prepare a publication like this one which 
incorporates our Best Value Performance Plan but in order to produce something of 
value we have brought together a variety documents which were published separately: 
the Best Value Performance Plan, the Annual Report and our Strategic Plan. The 
present document therefore comprises a report on our achievements against the 
priorities and objectives for the Year 4 (2005/6) Strategic Plan and our Year 1 (2006/07) 
implementation plan for the new Strategic Plan, together with a number of Appendices 
which contain the detailed performance indicators and other information required.  
 
There are two main parts to the document: 
 
A. The Annual Report 2005 – 2006 (Year 4) provides a report on the progress made in 

2005 – 2006 (Year 4) towards the goals set out in the Council’s four year Strategic 
Plan 2002 – 2006. The Strategic Plan was monitored throughout 2005/06 against key 
activities, progress milestones and targets . 

 
Appendices (1 – 4) 

 
• Appendix 1 contains the achievements of the Council against all Best Value 

Performance Indicators for 2005 – 2006, along with targets for those 
indicators for the next three years. 

• Appendix 2 explains significant variances (i.e. greater than +/-10%) between 
targets and outcomes. 

• Appendix 3 provides a table showing our overall performance against a 
composite of Tower Hamlets Index performance indicators compared with 
other local authorities. 

• Appendix 4 provides the statutorily required information about workforce 
matters. 
 
 

B. The Strategic Plan Year 1 (2006 – 2007) sets out our corporate strategy and an 
action plan for Year 1 of our new Strategic Plan (2006 - 2011). This describes how 
the Council intends to achieve its vision, key priorities and targets and explains how 
progress towards them will be monitored and evaluated. 
 

 
 

Page 308



 2

 

 
PART A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YEAR 4 
(2005 – 2006)

Page 309



 3

Contents 
 
 
 
 

  

   
Part A Annual Report for Year 4 (2005 – 2006) 
 

 Page No 

1. Our Vision and Objectives 
 

 To be 
completed for 
final version 

2. Overall Performance: Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
 

  

3. Other achievements 
 

  

4. Performance against the Tower Hamlets Index 
 

  

5. Performance against Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) 
 

  

6. Performance against Community Plan Themes and Key Priorities 
 

  

• A Better Place for Living Safely  
Building Safer and Stronger Communities 

 

  

• A Better Place for Living Safely 
Improving the Environment  

 

  

• A Better Place For Living Well 
      More Homes of a Decent Standard 
 

  

• A Better Place For Living Well 
      Improving Outcomes for Vulnerable Children  and Adults 
 

  

• A Better Place for Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
      Developing the Local Economy 
 

  

• A Better Place for Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
Reducing Poverty 
 

  

• A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
      Improved Educational Attainment 
 

  

• A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
      Increased participation in Leisure and Cultural Activities 
 

  

• A Better Place for Excellent Public Services 
 
 

  

Page 310



 4

 
Annual Report For Year 4 (2005 – 2006) 
 
1. Our Vision and Objectives 
 
The Council's vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and working in 
Tower Hamlets.  This involves helping to create a thriving, achieving community in which 
people feel at ease with one another, learn and perform well and have positive 
employment prospects, experience a higher standard of living and good health, and 
enjoy a safe and an attractive environment together with a wide range of cultural and 
leisure opportunities. 
 
The strategy for delivering this vision was set out in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2002 – 
2006, which takes as its framework for development the priorities identified in the 
borough’s Community Plan. This has now been succeeded by the Strategic Plan 2006-
2011. The priorities remain which is to make Tower Hamlets by 2011: 
 
A Better Place for Living Safely – reducing crime, making people feel safer and 
creating a more secure and cleaner environment. 
 
A Better Place for Living Well – improving housing, health and social care and 
promoting healthy living. 
 
A Better Place for Creating and Sharing Prosperity – bringing investment into the 
borough and ensuring that all our residents and businesses are in a position to benefit 
from, and contribute to, growing economic prosperity. 
 
A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure – raising educational 
aspirations, expectations and achievement, providing the widest range of arts and 
leisure opportunities for all and celebrating the rich diversity of our communities. 
 
A Better Place for Excellent Public Services – improving public services for local 
people to make sure that they are of high quality, represent good value for money and 
are provided in ways that meet local needs. 
 
Within each of these areas we have set challenging but realistic targets for change, 
which focus on the critical areas that will make a lasting difference to people’s life 
chances. The Council identified 12 key priorities for the period to 2011: 
 

Community Plan Theme Priority Outcomes for 2006-2011 
Living Safely 1. A cleaner, greener, safer Tower Hamlets 

Living Well 
2. Decent homes in decent neighbourhoods 
3. Healthier communities  
4. Improved outcomes for vulnerable children and adults 

Creating and Sharing 
Prosperity 

5. Securing sustainable communities 
6. Increased local employment 

Learning, Achievement and 
Leisure 

7. Increased educational attainment 
8. Increased participation in sporting, leisure and cultural 

activities 

Excellent Public Services 

9. Efficient and effective services 
10. Locally focused services empowering local people 
11. Stronger and more cohesive communities 
12. Improved equality of opportunity 

Page 311



 5

 
2. Overall Performance:  Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) was introduced by the government in 
2002 as a way of supporting councils to deliver improvements in services to local 
people. CPA brought together existing information on service performance in each 
council with an assessment of its ability to improve. This was used by the Audit 
Commission to reach an annual overall judgement of whether a council was excellent, 
good, fair, weak, or poor. In December 2005 a new system of judgement was 
introduced. Tower Hamlets was rated as a 3-star authority (the star rating runs from 0-
stars being the worst to 4-star being the best) and was given a direction of travel 
judgement as improving well. The annual qualitative assessment of the Audit 
Commission of our performance for 2005 stated that:  
 
The Council has had another successful year. Significant progress has been 
made in improving how services are delivered. This is reflected in recently 
published inspection scores where both children's services and adult social care 
provision received the top score. The 2005 Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment concluded that the Council is improving well and demonstrating a 
three-star overall performance. 
 
Overall, we found that the Council was improving well with its community 
priorities having successfully reduced crime and health inequalities and improved 
educational attainment. The Local Strategic Partnership has received the highest 
rating, green, from the Government and 11 out of 13 Local Public Service 
Agreement targets have been delivered. The annual survey of residents showed 
that public satisfaction with the Council was rising, with improved satisfaction 
ratings for recycling, street cleaning and refuse 
collection. 
 
Improvements in services have also been acknowledged in recent annual 
assessments from regulators. The Council has also been awarded Beacon status 
in two areas, Getting Closer to the Community and Promoting Racial Equality. 
 
The Council has taken major steps to improve value for money and recognises 
the need to do more. This will be helped by the Council's strong performance 
management framework which is also driving forward the delivery of both the 
Community Plan and the Council's Strategic Plan. Arrangements for securing 
continuous improvement in corporate governance have also continued to be 
strengthened to support service delivery. 
 
Each major service area is scored on a scale of 1 to 4, where 1 is the lowest and 4 the 
highest. Education and social care are given more weight in reaching the overall service 
score than other areas because of their importance to local people.  Overall, our 
services were scored 3 out of 4. 

Page 312



 6

 
Individual Service scores 

Service  Rating 2002 Rating 2003 Rating 2004 Rating 2005 
Education 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 4 out of 4 
Social Care – children* 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 See above 

Social Care – adults  2 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 4 out of 4 
Environment 2 out of 4 1 out of 4 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 
Housing  3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 
Libraries and Leisure ** 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 
Benefits  4 out of 4 4 out of 4 4 out of 4 3 out of 4 
Use of resources  3 out of 4 3 out of 4 4 out of 4 3 out of 4 

 
*For 2005 Education and Social Care –Children were amalgamated into a new service block entitled 
Children’s Services 
** Now renamed Culture  
 
Corporate Assessment  
The Corporate Assessment looks at how the Council is performing and its capacity to 
improve. For Tower Hamlets this was last carried out in 2002. Independent inspectors 
spent two weeks inside the Council looking at all areas of its management and 
operation. Their report assessed Tower Hamlets as having a clear sense of direction, 
good political leadership, strong management and staff with a sense of clarity and 
purpose, and gave the Council a score of 3 out of 4. The report said: 
 
“...The Council’s objectives are clearly expressed and are widely owned … new methods 
of communication are helping to ensure that staff at all levels have a sense of clarity and 
purpose.”   
 
“Despite significant challenges, the Council is confident that its determination to work 
more closely with local people to accelerate improvement will enable it to become one of 
the best authorities in the country.” 
 
Tower Hamlets is scheduled to receive another corporate assessment in 2007/08.  
 

Page 313



 7

 
3. Key Achievements in 2005/06 
 
 
Local Area Agreement (LAA) 
 
In March 2006 the council learnt that the Tower Hamlets Partnership had been 
successful in its bid to enter into a Local Area Agreement (LAA) with the Government.  
The agreement reflects a new contract between the Tower Hamlets Partnership, 
represented through the Council, and central government for improving the delivery of 
key local priorities through stronger local leadership, enhanced levels of partnership 
working, and improved mechanisms for service planning and delivery. The LAA will offer 
freedoms from bureaucracy to allow accelerated achievement across the borough.  
 
The agreement sets out the outcomes for local people that the local community and 
central government want to see achieved over the period April 2006 to March 2009. 
These outcomes have been identified and agreed through the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership, involving all key local partners and stakeholders. Our proposed outcomes 
strike a balance between local and national priorities, and also reflect the impact of the 
major regional developments of the Thames Gateway and the Olympics. 
 
Our outcomes have been developed around the four blocks set out in the government 
guidance: 

• Safer, Stronger Communities 
• Healthier Communities & Older People 
• Economic Development & Enterprise 
• Children & Young People 

 
These blocks match well with the priorities set out in the Community Plan and actions 
that Council will undertake will meet objectives in both the Community Plan and the LAA.  
 
Social Services 
 
The Social Services Directorate has been awarded the highest star rating for the service 
by the Commission for Social Care Inspection and is the most successful service in the 
whole of England. The Inspecting body concluded that the council has ‘excellent’ 
prospects for the future in both adult and child categories. The inspection of our 
Children’s service confirmed that we were serving all children well and demonstrated 
excellent prospects for improvement.  
 
Beacon Council 
 
Following the award of Beacon status in 2003 for community cohesion, in 2004 for 
supporting social care workers and the double Beacon award for Getting Closer to 
Communities and Promoting Racial Equality in 2005, the Council was pleased to 
announce that the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister had granted the Council Beacon 
status for 2006 in the category of Early Intervention (Children at Risk)  
 
During the next 15 months the Council will produce a range of case study materials and 
undertake a number of activities designed to share our good practice with other local 
authorities. These will include workshops, open days, visits and exhibitions at national 
conferences. 
 
Annual Residents Survey 
 
The Council’s progress in continuing to improve services has led to increased 
satisfaction amongst our residents again this year.  The results of the Annual Residents’ 
Survey – undertaken during January/February this year – show that customer 

Page 314



 8

satisfaction has increased across the board.  Last year 64% of our residents thought the 
Council was doing a good job – this year this has increased to 67% - an increase of 10% 
over two years. In addition, 60% think the Council is efficient and well run (up from 55%) 
and 59% think we listen to the concerns of local residents (up from 48% last year).  In all 
these areas, our results are above the London average. 
 
Residents have noticed improvements in individual services too – 69% are satisfied with 
the recycling service compared to 58% last year; and 65% are satisfied with street 
lighting – up from 58% last year.  Some areas where we did less well last year have 
seen improvements – satisfaction with parks and open spaces is up from 39% to 46% 
and with libraries from 47% to 54%.  For parks and libraries, however, satisfaction is still 
below the London average and we need to continue our work to improve these services 
for local people. 
 
There is good news about community cohesion – those thinking that the borough is a 
place where people from different backgrounds get on well has gone up from 68% to 
73%, and 82% now think ethnic differences are respected in their area (up from 71%). 
 

Individual services ordered by satisfaction rating 
 
Brackets equal % change since last year 

% rating service good to excellent  Tower Hamlets London 
Refuse collection 73% (-5) 73% (+7) 
Recycling facilities    69% (+11)     63% (+10) 
Public transport    66% (+13)     66% (+14) 
Street lighting  65% (+7)             68% (+9) 
Street cleaning   59% (n/s)             52% (+9) 
Collection of Council Tax   59% (n/s)             58% (+5) 
Local health services  58% (+5)             56% (+9) 
Libraries  54% (+7)             61% (+5) 
Road and pavement repairs  47% (+9)             36% (+9) 
Parks playgrounds and open 
spaces 

 46% (+7)             58% (+10) 

Policing  42% (+8)             48% (+15) 
Primary education   39% (n/s)             39% (+7) 
Leisure and sports facilities   39% (n/s)             42% (+5) 
Adult education / evening classes   38% (n/s)             41% (+4) 
Secondary education  35% (+7)             33% (+9) 
Housing Benefit service  35% (+7)             20% (n/s) 
Nursery education   33% (n/s)             32% (+7) 
Council housing  31% (+8)             19% (+3) 
Social services   30% (n/s)             26% (+5) 
Services for young people 27% (+5) not asked 

 
 

Page 315



 9

 
4. Performance against the Tower Hamlets Index 
 
Our success in achieving our 12 priorities is measured by a single indicator.  This is a 
composite index – the Tower Hamlets Index – derived from a basket of nationally 
comparable indicators that cover our key priorities. The Index is used to show how our 
overall performance and rate of improvement compares with other local authorities at 
three levels: 
 

• Inner London – against the 12 boroughs making up the Inner London area 
• Greater London – against all 32 councils making up the Greater London area 
• National – against all other metropolitan authorities 

 
By 2006, Tower Hamlets Council intends to be performing at the following levels 
against the Tower Hamlets Performance Index 
 
• Inner London – Top 3 (out of 12) 
• Greater London – Top 25% (out of 32) 
• National – Top 33% of metropolitan authorities 
 
For 2004/05, the Council has now improved on its target of being in the top three 
performing authorities in inner London. Unfortunately the Council has dropped back to 
16th in Greater London and to the 41st percentile across all English authorities. The 
ranking for 2005/06 will be available once the comparative data becomes available.  
 
Tower Hamlets Ranking: 
 
Against: 2001 – 2002 2002 – 2003 2003 – 2004 2004 - 2005 Target 

Position 
(April 2006) 

Inner London  
(the lower the 
better) 

6th  5th 3rd  2nd 3rd or better 

Greater 
London 
(the lower the 
better) 

18th  14th 14th  16th 8th or better 

National 
(the lower the 
better) 

56th percentile 45th  
percentile 

32nd percentile 41st percentile 
 

33rd or better 

          
 

Page 316



 10

 
 
 
5. Performance against Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) 
 
The full list of BVPIs is set out in the Appendix to this report, along with:  
 

• the targets set for each indicator for 2005/06 upto 2008/09 
• the outcomes achieved for each year from 2002/03 to 2005/06 (where 

possible)  
 
We showed an improvement in 63% of Performance Indicators, which is comparable last 
year’s figure of improvement in 64% of indicators. There was decline in performance in 
only 23% of indicators with 22% of indicators remaining the same as last year.  
 
The proportion of indicators reaching target levels rose to 57%; this compares with 56% 
last year.  
 
The level of significance for the difference between the target set and the outcome 
achieved has been set at 10%.  A further appendix provides an analysis of the reasons 
for any variance beyond this level.  

Page 317



 11

6. Performance against Community Plan Themes and Key Priorities 
 
Performance in each of the 12 key priorities is closely monitored throughout the year. A 
selection of indicators are used for each priority to allow us to accurately measure our 
performance. The Council sets robust and challenging targets each year. The tables 
below indicate the targets for each indicator for this year, our actual achievement for this 
year and, for comparison, our achievement in the previous two years (where available).  
 
Our achievement is also compared against the London top quartile level of performance 
and the top quartile level for all English metropolitan authorities. The Council believes 
comparisons with these authorities give a fair picture as to whether we are accelerating 
improvement or merely beneficiaries of a general rise in performance. The top quartile 
level is important as the government has set guidance that all authorities should aim to 
achieve at this level wherever possible.  
 
The table also contains an overall performance colour code and a direction of travel 
indicator. This gives a quick overview for how we are doing for each indicator:  
 
 

Symbol Meaning 
 

GREEN 
 

A green background 
indicates that the target for 
2005/06 has been achieved 

RED 
A red background indicates 
that the target for 2005/06 
has not been achieved 

 This means performance 
has improved for the 
indicator compared to 
2004/05 

 This means performance 
has declined for the indicator 
compared to 2004/05 
 

 This means performance 
has stayed the same for the 
indicator compared to 
2004/05 

  
N/A in any cell means either the information was not collected at that time or a 
comparison cannot be made. This often occurs as the method of calculation for an 
indicator can change between years. Also, quartile information is not available for local 
indicators.  
 
Further information relating to performance against each key priority is contained in the 
text. 

Page 318



 12

 
 
A Better Place for Living Safely 
Building Safer and Stronger Communities 
 
Our strategic aim is to work with partners to build safe and harmonious communities in 
which crime is reduced and the fear of crime alleviated. 
 
How successful were we in increasing community safety? 
 
Our performance against the key priorities we set was as follows: 
 

Performance Indicators Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Number of young people 
accessing drug 
treatment interventions 
(THI 1) 
 

627 
 
 

739 508 313 
 
 
 
 

 N/A N/A 

Number of domestic 
burglaries per 1,000 
households 
(BV 126/THI 2) 
 

19.52 
 
 

18.50 23.02 18.50  N/A N/A 

Violent offences per 
1,000 population 
(THI 3) 
 

N/A N/A 46.65 46.07  N/A N/A 

Number of racial 
incidents recorded per 
100,000 population 
(BV 174/THI 4) 

243.20 237.18 286.55 275.24 There is no 
preferred 
direction 
for this 
indicator 

N/A N/A 

Number of street 
robberies 
(THI 6) 
 

11.00 
 

9.40 8.14 6.99  
 
 
 

N/A N/A 

Number of vehicle 
crimes per 1,000 
population 
(BV 128/THI 7) 

31.74 
 
 

25.56 25.24 22.44  N/A N/A 

 
 

 Burglary has increased 24% compared to last year and we have not met our end of 
year target of no increase in residential burglary. There were specific difficulties 
during July and August 2005 when the majority of police officers were on counter 
terrorism operations. Improvements planned to ensure reductions take place include 
investing a large amount of money to target hardened areas, which are identified as 
long term crime hotspots. These areas will then be transformed physically to make it 
more difficult to commit crimes in those areas. The new action plan will also continue 
to provide vulnerable properties with necessary security to prevent them from being 
burgled and we will also continue to do intensive patrolling of hotspot areas. 

 
 Operation Bull and Operation Trent continue to yield excellent results with regards to 

a reduction in violent offending. Violent crime has declined throughout the year with 
an average reduction of 3.89 offences per 1,000 population.  

 
 Anti social behaviour remains a high priority for the Council, Police and public. The 

Cabinet approved the Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and an internal improvement 
exercise has made an impact in the time taken to investigate and resolve reports of 

Page 319



 13

anti-social behaviour. Support is now offered to all victims of anti-social behaviour 
who have to attend court. The pilot drinking Control Zone was implemented in July 
and is currently being evaluated. Firework ASB programme developed with the 
Crime Reduction Unit and the resulting Partnership work has contributed to a 50% 
reduction in the number of fires around November the 5th. There has also been a 
62% reduction in malicious fires. 

 
 Commercial crime has been a focus for the Council. A RAID Control Initiative was 

established in June 2005. 30 potential premises were visited by crime prevention 
officers. The Brick Lane Steering Group (a partnership action group) has set up a 
Small Business Crime Initiative which aims to reduce overall crime in Brick Lane by 
30% over 18 months. 

 
 504 council homes have benefited from the installation or upgrade of door entry 

systems or CCTV. General lighting improvements to improve estate security have 
also been carried out. 

 

Page 320



 14

 
 
A Better Place for Living Safely 
Improving the Environment  
 
Our strategic aim is to ensure that, in partnership with others, we develop a cleaner, 
more secure, greener and more attractive borough in which to live and work. 
 
 
How successful were we in making our streets cleaner and safer? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance Indicators Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London Top 
Quartile 
2003/04 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2003/04 

Percentage of street lights 
not working as planned 
(THI 5) 
 

N/A N/A 3.96% 
 
 

5%  N/A N/A 

Standard of cleanliness of 
the borough’s streets 
(ENCAMS Index) 
(THI 8) 
 

34.08 
 
 

22.00 
 

20.00 20.00  N/A N/A 

Percentage of new reports 
of abandoned vehicles 
investigated within 24hrs 
of notification  
(THI 9a) 
 

N/A 
 
 

N/A 
 

91.80 
 
 

80.00  N/A N/A 

Percentage of abandoned 
vehicles removed within 24 
hours from the point 
at which the Authority is 
legally entitled to remove 
the vehicle 
(THI 9b) 

N/A N/A 92.60 80.00  N/A N/A 

Percentage of household 
waste recycled 
(BV 82A/THI35) 
 

5.09 7.34 8.81 14.00  14.30 8.83 

 
 

 October 2005 saw the successful implementation of the final phase of the doorstep 
recycling service, extending to a further 7,000 high-rise residential properties. Nearly 
all residents now have doorstep collections or communal collection systems. The 
range of materials collected was expanded to include plastic bottles and aerosols. An 
action plan for partnership working with Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) and 
Parks to co-ordinate waste collection and recycling was implemented from May 
2005.  

 
 The additional publicity from the ‘It’s so easy’ recycling campaign and the Cleaner 

Safer Tower Hamlets Campaign, (including a faith based outreach scheme and the 
introduction of an incentive scheme with 25 winners each month) has seen the 
amount of household waste recycled increase. While the Council has failed to meet 
its statutory recycling target of 18% for 2005/06, the expanded service, the raised 
profile through campaigning and proactive programmes planned for the coming year 
are projected to vastly improve recycling. The month-on-month recycling rate 

Page 321



 15

increased steadily since October and exceeded 10% for January, February and 
March 2006 

 
 The Environmental Education Plan was agreed by May 2005 and implemented from 

June 2005. This formed a key part of the Council’s Cleaner Safer Tower Hamlets 
campaign. A waste awareness programme was run for children and young people 
during the year. The outcome from the Cleaner, Safer Tower Hamlets campaign has 
been a noticeable reduction in the amount of litter and detritus on the highway as 
recorded in the ENCAMS survey – an independent assessment that takes place 
three times a year.  

 
 The Council has agreed an approach to private land consisting of implementation of 

the new Cleaner Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 and specifically the 
development of a partnership "eyesore register" of difficult-to-solve cleanliness 
issues on private land. This is also part of a new anti-litter campaign. Our approach 
to graffiti and flyposting on private property is covered by the Anti-graffiti and 
Flyposting Action Plan. Full operations for enforcement teams began in autumn 
2005, which meant less enforcement action was undertaken than anticipated. We 
have had support in removing flyposting since January 2006 from positive action by 
Offenders supervised under the "Payback" scheme. 

 
 The Abandoned Vehicles Service has consistently outperformed its target of 80% of 

all abandoned vehicle reports being investigated within 24 hours. 91% of all cars are 
investigated and 92% of all cars are removed within 24 hours of the expiry of the 
notice period. All front line street enforcement staff are now equipped with hand held 
PCs to enable mobile reporting and information access.  

Page 322



 16

 
 
 A Better Place for Living Well 
More Homes of a Decent Standard  
 
Our strategic aim is to ensure that all residents have a safe, decent and affordable home 
suitable to their needs.  
 
How successful were we in ensuring more homes of a decent standard? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance Indicators Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Decent Homes Standard 
(The proportion of 
homes non-decent 
(BV184a/ Local PSA) 

74.55 
 

77.50 
 
 

67.2 
 
 

74.08  30 43 

Number of empty private 
sector dwellings returned 
to occupation 
(BV 64) 

811 446 
 
 

291 
 

320  301.25 140.75 

Percentage of specified 
urgent repairs completed 
in government time limits 
(THI 10) 

93.90 
 

94.42 94.55 
 

95.00  N/A N/A 

Average re-let time for 
local authority dwellings 
(days) 
(THI 11) 

36.37 
 

 37.00 27.00 
 

33.00  N/A N/A 

Overcrowding in council 
stock (Reduction in no. 
of overcrowded 
households) 
(THI 12) 

130 
 
 

226 
 

252 
 
 

242  N/A N/A 

 
 

 
 The Housing Choice Programme has developed throughout 2005/06 with further 

estates voting to transfer to Registered Social Landlords. 1057 affordable new 
homes were completed in the borough during 2005/06. 291 empty private sector 
homes have been brought back into use while a further 19 non-decent homes have 
been made habitable and reused. Over £28 million was invested in housing 
improvements during 2005/06.  

 
 95.9% of urgent repairs have been completed on time. Performance measures and 

monitoring are now in place to monitor housing contractors. This will examine quality 
and performance. Re-let times of vacant properties have significantly improved 
during the year with performance improved by 28% and properties now re-let on 
average in under one month.  

 
 Over 25 estate improvement projects have been undertaken including renovation 

works to Robin Hood Gardens and upgrading Cleveland Estate 'kickabout' area.  
 

 The council approved 129 Disabled Facilities Grants during 2005/06. The Supporting 
People service was inspected by the Audit Commission in July 2005 who rated the 
service as Good with Excellent prospects for improvement.  

 

Page 323



 17

 There was a reduction of 31% in homelessness acceptances during 2005/06. 212 
households received a rent deposit and were successfully housed in the private 
sector.  86% of all homeless applications were processed within the target time of 33 
days. The number of homeless applications fell from 1709 in 2004/05 to 1456 in 
2005/06: the number of homeless acceptances fell from 1140 to 785: a reduction of 
355. 

Page 324



 18

 
 
A Better Place for Living Well 
Improved Outcomes for Vulnerable Children and Adults 
 
Our strategic aim is to promote independence through providing effective support in the 
community, and to protect children and promote their welfare, working in partnership 
with families and respecting the diversity of our community. 
 
How successful were we in improving outcomes for vulnerable children and 
adults? 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance 
Indicators 

Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Stability of children 
looked after (% of 
looked after children 
with 3 or more 
placements) 
(BV 49/THI 13) 

10.71 10.18 12.2 8.50  N/A N/A 

Reviews of child 
protection cases (%) 
(BV 162 / THI 14) 
 

100 
 
 

100 100 
 
 

100  100 100 

Adoptions of 
children looked after 
(percentage of total) 
(BV 163 / THI 15) 

8.10 
 
 

5.48 
 
 

8.72 8.00  6.7 9.4 
 

Number of 
admissions of 
supported residents 
aged 65 + to 
residential care 
(THI 16 PAF C26) 

117.00 117.20 105.3 100.00  N/A N/A 

Percentage of 
clients receiving a 
review  
(THI 17) 

77.48 
 
 

65.20 
 
 

67.97 75.00  N/A N/A 

 
 

 Social Services has been awarded the highest star rating for the service by the 
Commission for Social Care Inspection and is the most successful service in the 
whole of England. The Inspecting body concluded that the council has ‘excellent’ 
prospects for the future in both adult and child categories. The inspection of our 
Children’s service confirmed that we were serving all children well and demonstrated 
excellent prospects for improvement.  

 
Vulnerable Adults 
 

 Social Care – Adults was graded at the highest level – Level 4 – in the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment.  

 
 The Council is supporting more older people intensively at home but our resources 

face extra pressures from increasing levels of frailty and dependency within the 
ageing population.  Performance is in band 4 out of 5 in the Social Services 
Performance Assessment Framework (PAF) and the target is to improve 
performance to the top band next year. The Best Value Review of Older People’s 
Services has been ongoing throughout the year and will result in many key 
improvements being identified and addressed.  

Page 325



 19

 
 A full integration of health and social care planning for people with learning 

disabilities has been completed. 215 people with complex conditions have received 
intensive case management  

 
 Performance in occupational therapy has improved with most referrals responded to 

within timescales and 95% of equipment items delivered within seven days. 
 

 Training and standards for homecare staff have been undertaken with 33% of home 
care staff and 50% of daycare staff qualified to NVQ Level 2 by April 2006.  

 
 
Vulnerable Children 
 

 Children’s Services were scored at the highest level – Level 4 – in all aspects of the 
Annual Performance Assessment of Children’s Services, including in the Staying 
Safe and Being Healthy outcomes.  

 
 The Council appointed a Director of Children’s Services who began work in 

September 2005.  A Children and Young People’s Plan was published in draft and a 
major consultation took place. Planning for ensuring the children’s pathfinder is 
integrated into planning for Children’s Services has been completed and the ISA 
protocol has been implemented.   

 
 The implementation of the Common Assessment Framework is taking place. Pilot 

schemes have been successful and further integration is now underway. A training 
strategy is also being developed to underpin the strategy. A cross agency 
Safeguarding Board has been established in March 2006 to further co-ordinate the 
new requirements on child protection work. 

 
 The Disabled Children’s workstream has expanded residential respite care beds 

from 3 to 7. New staff have been recruited to work with hearing impaired children.  
 
 
 

Page 326



 20

 
A Better Place for Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
 
Our strategic aim is to ensure that all Tower Hamlets residents and businesses are in a 
position to benefit from, and contribute to, the economic prosperity that surrounds them. 
 
How successful were we in developing the local economy? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance Indicators Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England  
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

% of people claiming 
employment-related 
benefits 
(THI 18) 

9.10 
 
 

8.40 8.40 8.50  N/A N/A 

People under 25 coming 
off benefits and gaining 
sustainable employment  
(THI 19) 
 

N/A 17.80 20.60 17.29  N/A N/A 

% of major planning 
applications determined 
within 13 weeks 
(BV109a/THI 20a) 

60.00 
 
 

63.41 35.00 60.00  67.00 67.00 

% of minor planning 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 
(BV109b/THI 20b) 

70.31 79.57 78.56 80.00  78.95 75.12 

% of other planning 
applications determined 
within  8 weeks 
(BV109c/THI 20c) 

72.61 83.95 85.35 84.00  88.23 87.20 

 
 
 

 Unemployment levels among young people remains higher than the London 
average. However the figures are complicated by the continued increase in the 
Borough’s working-age population which has resulted in an increase in potential 
claimants. The Council’s Skillsmatch programme assisted 569 local residents into 
employment 05/06. The Skillsladder transitional employment programme 
commenced in 2005 and three programmes have been completed helping 60 under-
25’s into employment. 120 under-25s on Jobseekers Allowance have been helped 
into work during 2005/06. 

 
 The council is undertaking the formal transition from its Unitary Development Plan 

(UDP) to a Local Development Framework (LDF) as part of the revised planning 
legislation. Draft Area Action Plans for the Lower Lea, Isle of Dogs and City Fringe 
form part of the first phase of introducing formal “Local Development Documents”. 
Formal consultation was undertaken for 12 weeks.  As a result over 5,000 comments 
were received which are now being used to shape the revised LDF 

 
 In October 2005 the Council launched its Regeneration Strategy. This was followed 

by the launch of Canary Wharf Recruitment and Training Centre in February 2006. 
The Economic Development and Enterprise block of the new Local Area Agreement 
builds on the principles of increasing employment opportunities for young people 
outlined in the Regeneration Strategy. All new regeneration projects are subject to a 
rigorous appraisal using the Treasury’s “green book” methodology.  

Page 327



 21

 Tower Hamlets was successful in securing £3million of funding through the 
European Objective 2 Priority 1CED programme. The required levels of co-financing 
have been secured and a strategic approach put in place to deliver initiatives over 
the next two years.  

 
 Crossrail has been a major concern to residents and businesses in the borough. The 

submission of the Council’s parliamentary petition was delivered on time. 
Negotiations on the petition have resulted in positive changes to the Crossrail 
proposals, including the tunneling arrangements.  

 
 London was successful in its bid to secure the Olympic Games in 2012. This 

represents a tremendous opportunity for the borough. The Council is awaiting the 
main development strategy from the Olympic Delivery Authority and will seek to 
ensure the realisation of benefits for local people.  

 
 The Council successfully negotiated over concerns relating to the 3-car upgrade to 

the Docklands Light Railway. Enabling works commenced in February 2006 at 
Poplar with the main works commencing in April 2007 and programmed for 
completion by the end of 2009. Preparatory work has commenced on the East 
London Line Extension with the main works to commence in summer 2006. 

 
 There has been continued improvement in our performance for determination of 

‘other’ planning applications, and we exceeded our target of 84% (Government target 
80%).  79% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks, just short of the 
target of 80% (Government target 65%).  However, our performance in the 
determination of major applications (35% within 13 weeks) was significantly below 
our target for the year (60%.)  This was due to a very high proportion of 
determinations related to old cases, some of which have required detailed legal 
agreements, which have taken a long time to conclude.  The Council also deals with 
an increasing number of very large applications. Tower Hamlets makes up almost 
40% of London’s strategic applications according to figures provided by the Greater 
London Authority.  It is extremely difficult to determine these large applications within 
the target of 13 weeks due to the nature of consultation, referral and environmental 
impact assessment requirements. The improvement of performance in processing 
major applications is a key aspect of our improvement programme for 2006/7. 
 

Page 328



 22

 
 
How successful were we at reducing poverty? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 

 
Performance Indicators Outcome 

2003/04 
Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England  
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Average time to process 
benefits claims (days) 
(BV78a/ THI 21) 
 
 

41.72 
 
 

52.30 33.79 35.00  38.50 30.09 

Amount of additional 
benefit and tax credit 
take-up 
(THI 22) 
 
 

£2.928 
million 
 

£4.604 
million 

£5.688 
million  

£5.500 
million  

 N/A N/A 

 
 
 

 The value of benefit and tax credit take up increased by £5, 689, 000 by March 2006. 
2 welfare benefits awareness courses were delivered and welfare benefits advice is 
now provided in 8 GP surgeries across the borough.  

 
 The Credit Union office has been established in Chrisp Street and 500 accounts 

have been opened. A Debt Advice Forum established and a debt self-help pack and 
flyer was produced; 28 debt advisers were trained during the year.   

 
 The Council is making increased efforts to tackle benefit fraud through introducing 

the Verification Framework in 2005/06 and increasing the number of anti-fraud 
investigators. Prosecutions have risen some 300% since 2004/05.  

 

Page 329



 23

 
A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
Improved Educational Attainment 
 
Our strategic aim is to raise aspirations, expectations and achievement so that Tower 
Hamlets is a thriving learning community with rapidly improving schools and with 
education at the centre of community regeneration and social inclusion, and lifelong 
learning a reality to those living and working locally. 
 
How successful were we in improving educational attainment? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 

Performance Indicators Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England  
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

School absence level – 
Primary Schools 
(BV46) 
 

6.62 5.94 6.08 5.30  N/A N/A 

School absence level – 
Secondary Schools 
(BV45) 
 

8.24 7.62 7.42 7.30  N/A N/A 

Number of schools 
causing concern 
(THI 24) 
 

4 3 3 3  N/A N/A 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving 5 or more 
GCSEs at grade A-C 
(BV 38) 

42.67 47.95 50.8 49.0  56.2 51.5 

Percentage of children in 
public care leaving Year 
11 with 1 or more GCSE 
at grade A-G 
(BV50) 

54.00 60.00 54.76 68.00  56.0 56.0 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or 
better at Key Stage 2 in 
English   
(BV 41) 

73.99 77.07 77.4 83.0  80.0 78.3 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or 
better at Key Stage 2 in 
Maths  
(BV 40) 

71.38 74.81 75.9 83.0  77.0 76.8 

 
 Children’s Services were scored at the highest level – Level 4 – in all aspects of the 

Annual Performance Assessment of Children’s Services, including in the Enjoying 
and Achieving Outcome.   

 
 A target of 68% of all pupils at Key Stage 3 achieving a Level 5 or above was not 

met. English attainment was the most with an increase of 10% points to 67%. The 
Key Stage 3 strategy is now being expanded to give a clearer focus on improving 
teaching and learning across the 11-16 age-range. Key Stage 4 attainment 
measured in % achieving 5+ A*-C GCSEs in 2004 has shown sustained strong 
improvement over the past five years with 51% now achieving this standard – a 3% 
increase on 2004.  

 

Page 330



 24

 Children's attainment in English and Maths at Key Stage 2 continued to improve 
although we did not meet our challenging targets.  Improvement was particularly 
strong in Maths where Tower Hamlets results exceeded the national average 

 
 Two schools are currently placed in special measures. One school has recovered 

from serious weaknesses reducing the number to one.  
 

 The annual primary attendance rate for 2005 was 93.9%, a slight decrease of 0.1% 
on the previous year. This followed 5 years of improving attendance and closing the 
gap on the national average. In 2005 primary attendance was 0.6% less than the 
national average. Secondary attendance improved 0.2% in 2005 to reach 92.58%, 
which was 0.39% better than the national average. Attendance in the autumn term 
2005 indicated overall decreased attendance; register inspections and action plans 
in place for targeted schools. 

 
 The borough-wide Tower Hamlets Youth Partnership and four Local Youth 

Partnerships all now meet monthly. Over 100 young people are involved in decision-
making activities. Over 180 people completed courses in 2005/6 related to working 
with young people, ranging from the introduction to youth work through to VRQ level 
3. A new mobile vehicle was launched in March 2006 and has begun delivering 6-
week personal and social development programmes using music. A new facility 
opened in Whitechapel in November 2005. The building is being well used by local 
young people and their programme includes a successful young women's group. 

Page 331



 25

 
 
A Better Place for Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
Increased participation in Leisure and Cultural Activities 
To ensure, with other partners, that the widest range of arts and leisure opportunities 
and facilities are provided for the residents, workers and visitors of the borough, and that 
these are affordable and accessible. 
 
How successful were we in increasing participation in leisure and cultural 
activities?  
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance 
Indicators 

Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Number of visits to 
leisure centres 
(THI 25) 
 

945,966 983,833 1,175,000 992,500  N/A N/A 

Number of visits to 
council arts facilities 
(THI 26a) 
 

36,309 
 
 

30,522 43,817 35,000  N/A N/A 

Number of festivals 
and events attracting a 
diverse audience 
(THI 26b) 

47 56 78 57  N/A N/A 

Number of visits to 
Public Libraries per 
1,000 population 
(BV 117/THI 27) 

5,310.42 6,504.44 7,709.22 7,440.13  8360 5875 

 
 

 The Whitechapel Idea Store opened on 22 September. This has resulted in an 
approximately 400% increase in attendance compared to the previous levels at the 
Stepney and Whitechapel Libraries. 1,604 course enrolments were recorded at Idea 
Store Whitechapel for the council’s learning service. This success was followed by 
the opening of the Idea Store Canary Wharf on 16th March 2006. Initial data 
indicates another significant improvement in attendance and items borrowed 
compared to the libraries which were replaced.  

 
 The new Mile End Stadium and Leisure Centre was opened in January 2006. Leisure 

centre usage has increased to 1.2million visits for 2005/06 – an increase of some 
20%. The Subsidy per user reduced from £1.68 to £1.39 - a unit cost reduction of 
17%. This was primarily achieved by increasing usage beyond target levels. Online 
bookings for leisure centres went live in January 2006. 

 
 Mile End Park has been awarded Green Flag status. The Adventure Park phase 1 

opened in May 2005, with phase 2 by June 2005. 20% more mini family events were 
undertaken by March 2006.  Football in Mile End has proved successful with some 
22,000 participants during the course of the scheme.  

 
 The number of trees planted exceeded targets for 2005/06. 567 trees were planted. 

Schemes have included Victoria Park, Mile End Park, Archibald Place, Poplar Tree 
Project and Street Tree planting and replacement. 

 
 The number of people attending arts events across the borough has increased by 

30% in 2005/06. The Council developed the Urban Cultural Programme and arts 
related activities in conjunction with other neighbouring local authorities. The 

 

 

 

 

Page 332



 26

Raindance Festival in April expanded to include Newham and a new youth strand 
across three boroughs. The Black History Month programme of events covered three 
boroughs and included three Tower Hamlets-commissioned projects.  

Page 333



 27

 
 
A Better Place for Excellent Public Services 
 
To ensure, with other partners, that the widest range of arts and leisure opportunities 
and facilities are provided for the residents, workers and visitors of the borough, and that 
these are affordable and accessible. 
 
How successful were we in developing more effective staff and council services, 
improving equality of opportunity and increasing democratic participation and 
engagement? 
 
Our performance against the key targets we set was as follows: 
 

Performance 
Indicators 

Outcome 
2003/04 

Outcome 
2004/05 

Outcome 
2005/06 

Target 
2005/06 

 London 
Top 
Quartile 
2004/05 

England 
(Metropolitan) 
Top Quartile 
2004/05 

Proportion of working 
days /shifts lost due to 
sickness absence 
(BV 12/THI 28) 
 

11.74 10.80 9.79 9.00  7.92 8.78 

Percentage of top 5% 
earners that are from 
minority ethnic 
communities 
(BV 11b/THI 29 ) 
 

14.62 16.43 14.29 17  16.30 3.84 

Percentage of top 5% 
earners that are 
women 
(BV11a/THI 30) 
 

41.42 
 
 

44.41 
 
 

48.66 45  46.75 47.10 

Percentage of local 
authority employees 
from minority ethnic 
communities 
compared with the 
percentage of the 
economically active 
minority ethnic 
community population 
(BV 17a) 
 

36.60 37.21 41.17 38  35.3 5.7 

Speed of processing 
changes in 
circumstances (days) 
(BV 78b/THI 31) 
 

8.04 10.80 15.98 8.00  11.10 9.7 

Budget Performance 
(variance from 
planned) 
(THI 32) 
 

£35,000 £1.18 
million 

£360,000 
(Under 
spend) 

0  N/A N/A 

Percentage of 
undisputed invoices 
paid within 30 days 
(BV 8/THI 33) 

71.13 74.45 94.16 83  90.20 93.30 

Increased attendance 
at Local Area 
Partnership events 
(THI 34) 

3,500 
 
 

4,088 
 
 

4,489 4,250  N/A N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 334



 28

 
 
 
More effective staff 
 

 The Human Resources Strategy action plan has been implemented and a revised 
strategy agreed in January. The Council has also been taking steps to implement the 
Workforce Strategy and Development Plan. A particular focus has been the full 
implementation of the Homeworking Procedure. Hot-desking has been piloted from 
October 2005 and fully implemented in those services which have moved to 
Anchorage House in March 2006. 

 
 Work has progressed on the Corporate Induction Evaluation. All new starters are 

asked to complete an induction review form which is considered on a six-monthly 
basis to identify improvements required to the Council's Induction Procedure. The 
Council is shortly to undertake work on improving the effectiveness of its recruitment 
and induction processes.  

 
 Progress against our targets for a Workforce to Reflect the Community continue to 

exceed expectation. 41% of all staff employed by the Council are from an ethnic 
minority; an increase of 4% since last year. There has also been a narrowing of the 
gender pay gap from 6.46% to 5.24%. The Council is in the final stages of 
implementing a Single Status Agreement.  

 
 
More effective council services 
 

 The Customer Promise was launched in September 2005. A linked initiative of 
dedicated Council Hotlines was introduced which supports a callcentre approach for 
the Council’s high volume services. In addition a General Enquiry service was 
introduced to simplify and improve call handling. The Siebel Customer Relationship 
Management system is now used to record all service requests. Siebel has also 
been integrated to cover Members enquiries and corporate complaints. All Contact 
Centre staff have been trained and have passed Institute of Customer Service 
exams. The Council’s website has been assessed as complying with accessibility 
standards at Level A. Out of the other London council sites, only two others achieved 
A standard. 

 
 Efficiencies of £23.6m have been identified which exceeds the Government’s target 

for the Council. An Efficiency Board meets quarterly and has a programme of work to 
accelerate our progress in maximising value for money. A Continuous Improvement 
Programme and Service Improvement work is underway as a result of a Council-
wide self-assessment undertaken in Autumn 2005.  

 
 Electronic invoicing was introduced in February 06. Progress is being made in 

signing up additional suppliers to use the facility. The percentage of payments paid 
by BACS increased to 75% in Mar 06 compared to less than 30% at the start of the 
year. Approximately 90% of all invoices are now paid within the 30 day limit which 
represents a significant increase on previous performance.  

 
 The council has now achieved an effective maximum performance level for collection 

of business rates of 99.41%. Council tax collection levels have continued to improve 
and during the past year rose to 94.5%. Performance has improved from bottom 
quartile to median level for this indicator.   

 
 Improvements to our IT infrastructure have been made to support effective working 

and over 2,500 desktop computers have been upgraded. Home-working is being 
extended following a successful pilot. The first wave of moves to Anchorage House 

Page 335



 29

has been successfully accomplished and hot-desking arrangements established and 
supported.    

 
 The Annual Accounts were approved by the auditors without qualification. In the CPA 

Use of Resources assessment, the Council was judged as performing well with 
scores of 3 out of 4 for financial management, financial standing and internal control 
and performing adequately with scores of 2 out of 4 for value for money and financial 
reporting. 

 
Improving equality of opportunity 
 

 The Council has achieved National Equality Standard Level 5. The Council is only 
one of two authorities to reach this standard. Further work on validating this through 
external review will take place in 2006. The Tower Hamlets Access Group was 
relaunched on in November 2005 and a three-year work programme has been 
developed. The Council plans to produce a wide range of information both internally 
and externally relating to equalities including items on Disabled Go, International Day 
of the Disabled, the Disability Discrimination Act and Civil Partnership.  

 
 
Improving democratic participation and engagement 
 

 The Tower Hamlets Partnership has retained its highest-level ‘Green’ rating from the 
Government Office for London. Challenging targets were set for attendance at Tower 
Hamlets Local Area Partnership events. The overall attendance rate and attendance 
by ethnic minorities residents and under 25s exceeded targets. 92% of attendees 
expressed satisfaction with events. Awareness of the partnership amongst residents 
increased from 38% in March 2005 to 40% by March 2006 

 
 The action plan from the Consultation & involvement Best Value Review has 

produced significant improvements in the way the Council contacts and engages its 
residents. A web-accessible consultation calendar is now in place and its format and 
content are being enhanced across the Council and its partners.   

 
 The Council has developed its scrutiny role throughout the year. The Health Scrutiny 

Panel held two sessions with Hackney and Newham to consider the Annual 
Healthcheck declarations of East London and the City Mental Health Trust. The 
Health Scrutiny Panel was awarded £17,000 from the Centre for Public Scrutiny (one 
of nine authorities nationally) to develop work on the Choosing Health agenda. 
Scrutiny topics have also been driven by members. An analysis of Members' 
enquiries has been undertaken and a questionnaire sent to all councillors to inform 
the work programme, e.g. domestic violence was the subject of a Scrutiny review on 
the basis of member concern. 

 
 

Page 336



  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  
  
  
  
  
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 T

a
rg

e
ts

B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c
u

ti
v
e

s

B
V
0
0
2
a

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
ca

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fo

rm
s.

3
4

5
5

5
5

5
5

2
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
0
2
b

T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 R

a
ce

 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ch
e
m

e
 (

R
E
S
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
su

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

8
4
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
0
3

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

ci
ti
ze

n
s 

sa
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

3
5
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
0
 %

5
7
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
0
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
co

m
p
la

in
a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

a
n
d
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t

2
2
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

3
2
 %

3
2
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
0
8

C
E
0
3
8

T
H

I0
3
3

S
P
5
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
U

n
d
is

p
u
te

d
 I

n
v
o
ic

e
s 

P
a
id

 o
n
 T

im
e

7
0
.6

4
 %

7
1
.1

3
 %

7
4
.4

5
 %

9
4

.1
6

 %
8

3
 %

9
5
 %

9
6
 %

9
7
 %

9
0
.2

0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
0
9

C
E
0
3
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
co

u
n
ci

l 
ta

x
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
.

9
1
.8

1
 %

9
2
.5

 %
9
2
.5

8
 %

9
4

.5
0

 %
9

4
 %

9
6
 %

9
6
.2

5
 %

9
6
.5

0
 %

9
5
.8

5
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
1
0

C
E
0
3
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
n
-d

o
m

e
st

ic
 R

a
te

s 

C
o
lle

ct
e
d

9
8
.3

 %
9
9
.2

 %
9
9
.2

3
 %

9
9

.4
1

 %
9

9
.4

 %
9
9
.5

 %
9
9
.5

 %
9
9
.5

 %
9
8
.8

3
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
1
1
a

T
H

I0
3
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

  
th

a
t

a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
.

3
6
.5

7
 %

4
1
.4

2
 %

4
4
.4

1
 %

4
8

.6
6

 %
4

5
 %

4
9
 %

5
0
 %

5
0
 %

4
6
.7

5
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
1
1
b

T
H

I0
2
9

S
P
5
1
6

C
E
0
4
4
a

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
L
o
ca

l

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 e

th
n
ic

 

m
in

o
ri
ty

.

1
3
.4

2
 %

1
4
.6

2
 %

1
6
.4

3
 %

1
4

.2
9

 %
1

7
 %

1
6
 %

1
8
 %

2
1
 %

1
6
.3

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
1
1
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
p
 p

a
id

 5
%

 o
f 

st
a
ff

 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 (

e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
o
se

 

in
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

ch
o
o
ls

.)
  
[N

e
w

 P
I]

3
.5

8
 %

2
.4

5
 %

N
/
A

3
.5

 %
4
.5

 %
5
.5

 %
N

/A
W

H
IT

E
H

ig
h
e
r

6

B
V
0
1
2

T
H

I0
2
8

C
E
0
4
6
a

S
P
5
0
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s/

sh
if
ts

 l
o
st

 t
o
 

si
ck

n
e
ss

 a
b
se

n
ce

 p
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
.

1
0
.6

3
1
1
.7

4
1
0
.8

0
9

.7
9

9
.0

8
.5

7
.7

5
7
.5

7
.9

2
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
1
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

) 
a
s 

a
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

1
.2

7
 %

0
.5

9
 %

0
.3

3
 %

0
.4

1
 %

0
.3

 %
0
.2

 %
0
.1

8
 %

0
.1

6
 %

0
.1

7
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
1
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s 

re
ti
ri
n
g
 o

n
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s 

o
f 

ill
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

0
.0

8
 %

0
.2

9
 %

0
.2

0
 %

0
.3

0
 %

0
.1

0
 %

0
.1

0
 %

0
.1

0
 %

0
.1

 %
0
.2

0
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 337



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
1
6
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
st

a
ff

 d
e
cl

a
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

a
ti
o
n
 A

ct
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
,

3
.8

9
 %

3
.9

2
 %

3
.9

1
 %

4
.6

6
 %

4
.6

5
 %

4
.8

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

5
.2

0
 %

3
.9

6
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
1
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
co

n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 a
ct

iv
e
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
  
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

1
6
.1

9
 %

1
6
.1

9
 %

1
6
.2

0
 %

1
6

.2
0

 %
1
3
.7

9
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
1
7
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s 

fr
o
m

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
a
s 

a
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

3
5
.7

7
 %

3
6
.6

 %
3
7
.2

1
 %

4
1

.1
7

 %
3

8
 %

4
1
.5

 %
4
2
 %

4
2
.5

 %
3
5
.3

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
1
7
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
co

n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 a
ct

iv
e
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

in
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

4
2
.1

9
 %

4
2
.1

9
 %

4
2
.2

0
 %

4
2

.2
0

 %
3
4
.4

9
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
2
6

T
H

I0
0
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
st

ic
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e
s 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

s.

2
4
.2

9
1
9
.5

2
1
8
.5

0
2

2
.9

5
1

8
.5

0
1
8
.5

0
1
8
.5

0
1
8
.5

0
1
5
.9

0
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
1
2
7
a

C
E
0
1
2

T
H

I0
0
3

V
io

le
n
t 

cr
im

e
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

4
6

.6
5

4
6

.0
7

4
4
.2

4
4
3
.3

2
4
1
.6

1
N

/A
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
1
2
7
b

C
E
0
1
6

T
H

I0
0
6

R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

8
.1

1
6

.9
9

6
.9

9
6
.9

9
6
.9

9
N

/A
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
1
2
8

T
H

I0
0
7

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

4
2
.2

5
3
1
.7

4
2
5
.5

6
2

5
.2

3
2

2
.4

4
2
1
.5

0
1
8
.3

1
1
8
.3

1
1
5
.7

3
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
1
5
7

P
S
A
0
0
1

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ty
p
e
s 

o
f 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n
s 

th
a
t 

a
re

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 f

o
r 

e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
s 

a

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

y
p
e
s 

o
f 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n
s

th
a
t 

a
re

 l
e
g
a
lly

 p
e
rm

is
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
(D

e
le

te
d
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
)

5
1
.8

8
 %

6
0
.0

8
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

9
2
.2

4
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
7
4

T
H

I0
0
4

C
E
0
1
3

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ra
ci

a
l 
in

ci
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
co

rd
e
d
 b

y

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

1
6
0
.6

3
2
4
3
.2

0
2
3
7
.1

8
2

8
6

.5
5

2
7

5
.2

4
2
8
9

2
8
5

2
8
0

4
1
.0

0
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
7
5

C
E
0
1
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ra

ci
a
l 
in

ci
d
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

re
su

lt
e
d
 i
n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
ct

io
n
.

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
2
2
5

A
ct

io
n
s 

A
g
a
in

st
 D

o
m

e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

. 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
0

0
 %

N
/
A

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
6
a

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

sp
e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

o
ca

l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
ce

 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s.

  
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

£

1
,0

0
7

,4
6

3

N
/
A

£

1
,0

2
7
,6

1
2

£

1
,0

4
8
,1

6
4

£

1
,0

6
9
,1

2
7

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

o
n
ie

s 
sp

e
n
t 

o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
ce

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
a
s 

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s 

h
o
ld

in
g
 t

h
e
 

C
L
S
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 M

a
rk

 a
t 

‘G
e
n
e
ra

l 
H

e
lp

’ 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

9
1

 %
N

/
A

9
2
 %

9
3
 %

9
5
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 338



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
2
2
6
c

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

sp
e
n
t 

o
n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

G
u
id

a
n
ce

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s 

o
f 

h
o
u
si

n
g
, 

w
e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
su

m
e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

w
h
ic

h
 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 d

ir
e
ct

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

£

7
0

2
,5

0
0

N
/
A

£

6
8
0
,9

0
0

£

7
0
2
,9

0
0

£

7
1
6
,9

5
8

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

T
H

I0
0
1

C
E
0
1
7

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

1
8

a
cc

e
ss

in
g
 s

u
b
st

a
n
ce

 m
is

u
se

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
ts

 (
R
e
v
is

e
d
 P

I 
fo

r 
0
5
/0

6
)

4
1

5
3

1
3

4
4
8

4
8
1

4
9
5

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

T
H

I0
2
2

C
E
0
5
1

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

1
,2

4
5
,0

0
0

2
,9

2
8
,2

8
7

4
,6

0
4
,4

8
0

5
,6

8
8

,8
3

0
5

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

6
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
3
2

S
P
5
0
1

B
u
d
g
e
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

£

2
,1

0
0
,0

0
0

£
 3

5
,0

0
0

£

-1
,1

8
0
,0

0

£

-3
6

0
,0

0
0

£
 0

£
 0

£
 0

£
 0

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

6

T
H

I0
3
4

C
E
0
2
1

S
P
5
0
9

L
A
A
S
2
0
1
a

In
cr

e
a
se

d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ce

 a
t 

L
o
ca

l 
A
re

a
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
e
n
ts

1
,6

6
4

3
,5

0
0

4
,0

8
8

4
,4

8
9

4
,2

5
0

5
,0

0
0

5
,2

5
0

5
,5

0
0

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l

B
V
1
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s 

b
u
ilt

 o
n
 

p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
.

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
0
9
a

T
H

I0
2
0
a

C
P
A
0
2
6
a

S
P
3
0
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 

w
e
e
k
s.

4
6
.4

8
 %

6
0
.0

0
 %

5
8
.5

4
 %

3
5

.0
0

 %
6

0
 %

6
0
 %

6
0
 %

6
0
 %

6
7
.0

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
1
0
9
b

T
H

I0
2
0
b

C
P
A
0
2
6
b

S
P
3
0
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

in
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s.

 

5
4
.9

9
 %

7
0
.3

1
 %

7
9
.5

7
 %

7
8

.5
6

 %
8

0
 %

8
0
.2

5
 %

8
0
.5

 %
8
1
 %

7
8
.9

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
1
0
9
c

T
H

I0
2
0
c

C
P
A
0
2
6
c

S
P
3
0
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
  
8
 w

e
e
k
s.

 

5
6
.7

0
 %

7
2
.6

1
 %

8
3
.9

5
 %

8
5

.3
5

 %
8

4
.0

0
 %

8
8
.2

5
 %

8
8
.3

 %
8
8
.5

 %
8
8
.2

3
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
1
1

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

se
rv

ic
e
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d

5
1
.3

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
2
.0

0
 %

7
1
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
7
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
st

a
n
d
a
rd

 s
e
a
rc

h
e
s 

ca
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s.

6
9
.8

3
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

9
4

.4
2

 %
1

0
0

 %
1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
2
0
0
a

D
id

 t
h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
u
b
m

it

th
e
 L

o
ca

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
ch

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

b
y
 2

8
th

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 3

-y
e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
?

N
o

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

N
o
n
e

B
V
2
0
0
b

H
a
s 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 m
e
t 

th
e
 m

ile
st

o
n
e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

L
o
ca

l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
ch

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

se
ts

 o
u
t?

Y
e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

N
o
n
e

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 339



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
2
0
0
c

D
id

 t
h
e
 L

o
ca

l 
P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

p
u
b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
y

D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 l
a
st

 y
e
a
r?

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

N
o
n
e

B
V
2
0
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 a
llo

w
e
d
 a

g
a
in

st
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
fu

se
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s.

1
8
.8

 %
2

3
.5

 %
2

8
.0

 %
2
7
.0

 %
2
0
.0

 %
1
9
.0

 %
2
8
 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
2
0
5

S
co

re
 a

g
a
in

st
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
ck

lis
t.

9
4
.4

 %
1

0
0

 %
9

4
.4

4
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

9
4
.0

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
2
1
9
a

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s 

in
 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 -

 [
N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

5
0

5
1

5
1

5
1

5
1

N
/A

R
E
D

N
o
n
e

B
V
2
1
9
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
co

n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s 

in
 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

u
p
-t

o
d
a
te

 c
h
a
ra

ct
e
r 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
- 

[N
e
w

 

P
I]

N
/A

0
.0

0
 %

6
0

.0
0

 %
6
0
.0

0
 %

8
0
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0 %

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
1
9
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
co

n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s 

w
it
h
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 -

 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

0
.0

0
 %

6
0

.0
0

 %
6
0
.0

0
 %

8
0
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0 %

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

L
o
ca

l1
0
8

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 d

e
p
a
rt

u
re

s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
la

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

p
e
rm

is
si

o
n
s 

g
ra

n
te

d

0
.1

6
 %

0
.6

9
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.4

0
 %

2
.0

0
 %

2
.0

0
 %

2
.0

0
 %

T
b
c 

%
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

6

L
o
ca

l1
1
0

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

(w
e
e
k
s)

1
2
.4

0
1
1
.9

3
1
1
.3

8
1

2
.9

5
8

.0
8
.0

8
.0

T
b
c

N
/A

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

T
H

I0
1
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

 c
la

im
in

g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t-

re
la

te
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

1
1
.8

 %
9
.1

 %
8
.4

 %
8

.5
 %

8
.5

 %
8
.3

 %
8
.2

 %
8
.0

 %
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

6

T
H

I0
1
9

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

2
5
 c

la
im

in
g

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

1
7
.8

 %
2

0
.6

 %
1

7
.2

9
 %

1
6
.5

 %
1
6
.0

 %
1
5
.0

 %
N

/A
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n

B
V
0
3
8

P
S
A
0
0
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
 

a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C
S
E
s 

a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s 

A
*
- 

C
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

4
3
.6

3
 %

4
2
.6

7
 %

4
7
.9

5
 %

5
0

.8
 %

4
9

.0
 %

5
6
.0

 %
5
9
.0

 %
6
1
.0

 %
5
6
.2

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
3
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 5

 G
C
S
E
s 

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s 

A
*
- 

to
 G

 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s.
 

8
7
.7

6
 %

8
6
.2

7
 %

8
6
.8

0
 %

8
6

.6
 %

9
1

.6
 %

9
2
.7

 %
9
3
.5

 %
9
3
.7

 %
8
9
.3

 %
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
4
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 

4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
cs

 t
e
st

.

6
8
.2

0
 %

7
1
.3

8
 %

7
4
.8

1
 %

7
5

.9
 %

8
3

.0
 %

8
4
.0

 %
8
5
.0

 %
8
5
.3

 %
7
7
.0

 %
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 340



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
4
1

S
P
4
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 

4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 E
n
g
lis

h
 

te
st

.

7
0
.9

0
 %

7
3
.9

9
 %

7
7
.0

7
 %

7
7

.4
 %

8
3

.0
 %

8
4
.0

 %
8
5
.0

 %
8
5
.7

 %
8
0
.0

 %
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
4
3
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
st

a
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

sp
e
ci

a
l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 

w
e
e
k
s 

e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
  
th

o
se

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d
 b

y
" 

e
x
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 r

u
le

" 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 S

E
N

 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P
ra

ct
ic

e
.

8
9
.1

 %
7
3
.1

 %
9
9
.2

 %
1

0
0

.0
 %

1
0

0
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
4
3
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
st

a
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

sp
e
ci

a
l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 

w
e
e
k
s 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
o
se

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d
 b

y
" 

e
x
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 r

u
le

" 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 S

E
N

 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P
ra

ct
ic

e
.

3
.8

 %
9
.1

 %
8
0
.3

 %
9

4
.8

 %
8

5
.0

 %
9
7
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
1
0
0
.0

 %
9
2
.2

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
4
5

T
H

I0
2
3
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s 

m
is

se
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

to
ta

l 
a
b
se

n
ce

 i
n
 s

e
co

n
d
a
ry

 s
ch

o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

8
.8

7
 %

8
.2

4
 %

7
.6

2
 %

7
.4

2
 %

7
.3

0
 %

7
.1

0
 %

7
.0

0
 %

6
.5

0
 %

7
.4

6
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
4
6

T
H

I0
2
3
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s 

m
is

se
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

to
ta

l 
a
b
se

n
ce

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

7
.2

5
 %

6
.6

2
 %

5
.9

4
 %

6
.0

8
 %

5
.3

0
 %

5
.2

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

4
.5

0
 %

5
.7

1
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
1
8
1
a

L
P
S
A
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
st

 i
n
 

E
n
g
lis

h
.

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
3
.5

3
 %

5
7
.3

0
 %

6
6

.7
8

 %
7

1
.0

0
 %

7
2
.0

0
 %

7
3
.0

0
 %

7
6
.2

5
 %

7
6
.2

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
8
1
b

L
P
S
A
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
st

 i
n
 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
cs

.

4
9
.0

0
 %

5
4
.9

0
 %

5
8
.5

0
 %

6
1

.4
0

 %
7

1
.0

0
 %

7
2
.0

0
 %

7
3
.0

0
 %

7
6
.2

5
 %

7
6
.2

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
8
1
c

L
P
S
A
1
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
st

 i
n
 

S
ci

e
n
ce

.

4
3
.0

0
 %

4
5
.7

1
 %

4
9
.2

4
 %

5
2

.0
3

 %
6

8
.0

0
 %

6
9
.0

0
 %

7
1
.0

0
 %

7
1
.2

5
 %

6
8
.2

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
8
1
d

L
P
S
A
1
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
st

 i
n
 I

C
T

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t.

4
6
.7

3
 %

4
8
.2

7
 %

5
2

.5
1

 %
6

9
.0

0
 %

7
0
.0

0
 %

7
1
.0

0
 %

7
1
.2

5
 %

6
8
.3

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 341



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
1
9
4
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
  
o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
.

2
0
.5

2
 %

2
5
 %

2
0

 %
3

1
 %

3
2
 %

3
3
 %

3
3
.5

 %
2
8
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
1
9
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ch

ie
v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 i
n
 M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
cs

.

2
4
.1

7
 %

2
6
 %

2
8

 %
3

1
 %

3
2
 %

3
3
 %

3
3
.5

 %
3
3
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
2
2
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

 r
e
co

rd
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
. 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

5
5

 %
N

/
A

5
7
 %

6
0
 %

6
2
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

n
 a

cc
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
8

 %
N

/
A

2
2
 %

2
6
 %

3
0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
2
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

ca
re

 s
e
tt

in
g
s 

fu
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 a

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
4

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

2
0

 %
N

/
A

2
2
 %

2
5
 %

3
0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
2
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

ca
re

 s
e
tt

in
g
s 

fu
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 s
ta

ff
 

w
it
h
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 o
r 

p
o
st

 g
ra

d
u
a
te

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n
 t

e
a
ch

in
g
 o

r 
ch

ild
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

2
9

 %
N

/
A

3
2
 %

4
0
 %

4
5
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

L
o
ca

l0
0
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

to
ta

l 
p
la

ce
s 

in
 c

h
ild

re
n
s 

d
a
y

ca
re

 a
n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

sc
h
o
o
l 
cl

u
b
s

3
7
6
0

4
7
3
2

5
7

7
0

4
8

4
1

4
9
4
1

5
0
4
1

N
/A

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

L
o
ca

l0
0
3

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

e
a
rn

in
g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C
S
E
s 

a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s 

A
*
-C

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
cs

. 
(N

e
w

 l
o
ca

l 
P
I)

3
0

.2
 %

N
/
A

3
4
.0

 %
3
9
.0

 %
4
2
.0

 %
N

/A
W

H
IT

E
H

ig
h
e
r

L
o
ca

l0
3
7

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 G

C
S
E
/G

N
V
Q

 p
o
in

ts
 s

co
re

 o
f 

1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

3
7
.8

4
3
8
.1

2
4
1
.0

3
4

3
.2

4
4

3
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
4
7
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

L
o
ca

l0
4
2

E
n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

d
u
lt
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 c

o
u
rs

e
s

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 a

d
u
lt
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

4
5
.4

8
5
6
.1

9
7
3
.4

7
7

7
.6

5
7

6
.0

0
7
8
.0

0
7
9
.0

0
7
9
.4

0
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

L
o
ca

l1
5
8

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

h
o
u
rs

 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d

4
6
.3

5
 %

6
5
.7

1
 %

7
5
.9

6
 %

7
6

.6
3

 %
7

8
.0

0
 %

7
8
.1

0
 %

7
8
.2

0
 %

7
8
.3

0
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 342



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

L
o
ca

lK
7
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 t

e
st

 a
n
d
 

te
a
ch

e
r 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 

w
e
re

 a
ch

ie
v
e
d
: 

le
v
e
l 
tw

o
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 a

t 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 o

n
e

8
0
.4

7
 %

8
2
.7

0
 %

8
2
.3

0
 %

8
2

.3
3

 %
8

3
.0

0
 %

8
4
.0

0
 %

8
5
.0

0
 %

N
/A

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
2
4

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 c
a
u
si

n
g
 c

o
n
ce

rn
1
0
.0

0
4
.0

0
3

3
3

0
0

0
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

4

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

B
V
0
8
2
a
(i
)

T
H

I0
3
5

C
P
A
0
1
9
a

S
P
1
1
1

L
A
A
1
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
.

7
.3

5
 %

8
.8

2
 %

1
4

.0
0

 %
1
8
.0

0
 %

2
2
.0

0
 %

2
4
.0

0
 %

1
6
.9

7
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
8
2
a
(i
i)

T
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 

a
ri
si

n
g
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
. 
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

6
,9

7
8

.5
6

1
1

,4
9

0
.0

0
1
2
,0

9
9
.8

0
1
6
,4

5
5
.7

3
2
0
,1

4
1
.8

2
N

/A
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
8
2
b
(i
)

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 

se
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

co
m

p
o
st

in
g
 

o
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

b
y
 a

n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
st

io
n
.

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

1
.0

0
 %

2
.0

0
 %

3
.0

0
 %

5
.4

5
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
8
2
b
(i
i)

T
h
e
 t

o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 s

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

co
m

p
o
st

in
g
 o

r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

b
y
 a

n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
st

io
n
. 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

8
0
6
.6

5
1
,6

4
5
.5

7
2
,5

1
7
.7

3
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
8
2
c(

i)
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 a

ri
si

n
g
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 u

se
d
 t

o
 r

e
co

v
e
r 

h
e
a
t,

 p
o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
s.

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

4
9
.0

0
 %

3
7
.3

1
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
8
2
c(

ii)
T
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 a

ri
si

n
g
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

se
d
 t

o
 r

e
co

v
e
r 

h
e
a
t,

p
o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
s.

 [
N

e
w

P
I]

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,1

4
4
.0

0
4
1
,1

2
9
.0

0
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
8
2
d
(i
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 

a
ri
si

n
g
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
n
d
fi
lle

d
.

9
2
.6

6
 %

9
1

.1
8

 %
8

5
.0

0
 %

8
4
.0

0
 %

7
3
.0

0
 %

2
4
.0

0
 %

0
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
8
2
d
(i
i)

T
h
e
 t

o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 

a
ri
si

n
g
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
n
d
fi
lle

d
. 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

7
2

,1
0

5
.1

3
7

3
,3

4
3

.0
0

6
7
,7

5
8
.9

0
6
0
,0

6
3
.4

3
2
0
,1

4
3
.4

7
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
0
8
4
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

k
ilo

g
ra

m
s 

o
f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 

w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

3
7
9
.4

3
7

7
.9

3
7

0
.3

3
8
5
.4

3
9
3
.1

4
0
0
.9

3
9
6
.2

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
8
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

in
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

k
ilo

g
ra

m
s 

o
f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d

p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

-0
.2

8
2

.0
0

2
.0

0
2
.0

0
2
.0

0
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 343



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
8
6

C
o
st

 o
f 

w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

.
£
 3

0
.7

8
£
 4

9
.1

0
£
 6

6
.3

1
£

 1
0

0
.4

1
£

 5
8

.8
2

£
 7

5
.1

0
£
 7

5
.4

8
£
 7

5
.8

7
£
 3

8
.6

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
8
7

C
o
st

 o
f 

w
a
st

e
 d

is
p
o
sa

l 
p
e
r 

to
n
n
e
 f

o
r 

m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
st

e

£
 5

6
.9

4
£
 4

4
.7

4
£
 5

3
.8

4
£

 5
9

.8
4

£
 4

7
.0

7
£
 5

0
.9

8
£
 5

1
.7

7
£
 5

3
.6

3
£
 4

3
.0

9
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
8
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

le
a
n
lin

e
ss

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

a
re

a

5
1
.0

0
N

/
A

N
/
A

6
0
.0

0
5
7
.0

0
W

H
IT

E
H

ig
h
e
r

B
V
0
9
0
a

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll

6
2
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
9
.0

0
 %

7
6
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
9
0
b

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s

2
2
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

3
4
.0

0
 %

6
0
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
9
0
c

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

lo
ca

l 
ti
p

4
5
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

5
7
.0

0
 %

7
0
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
9
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
re

si
d
e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

re
a
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 k

e
rb

si
d
e

co
lle

ct
io

n
 o

f 
re

cy
cl

a
b
le

s

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
0
9
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
re

si
d
e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

re
a
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 k

e
rb

si
d
e

co
lle

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a
t 

le
a
st

 t
w

o
 r

e
cy

cl
a
b
le

s.

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

8
5

.0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
9
9
a
i

L
P
S
A
0
0
4

S
P
1
0
3

L
A
A
1
0
7

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 

in
ju

re
d
 (

K
S
I)

 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
lli

si
o
n
s.

1
3
9

1
3
9

1
3

3
1

3
5

1
2
1

1
1
4

1
1
1

1
2
3

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
9
9
a
ii

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 (

K
S
I)

 

in
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

-7
.9

5
 %

-4
.3

2
 %

-2
.8

8
 %

-1
.5

0
 %

-3
.0

5
 %

-3
.1

5
 %

-1
4
.1

7 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
9
9
a
iii

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 (

K
S
I)

 

in
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e
 

1
9
9
4
-9

8
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

-2
5
.5

1 %

-2
8

.7
2 %

-2
7

.6
5 %

-2
9
.8

0 %

-3
1
.9

4 %

-3
4
.0

8 %

-3
0
.3

9 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
9
9
b
i

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 (

a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6
 

y
e
a
rs

) 
k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 (

K
S
I)

 

in
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
lli

si
o
n

1
1

1
7

1
1

1
1

1
0

1
0

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
9
9
b
ii

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 (

a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6
 y

e
a
rs

) 
k
ill

e
d
 

o
r 

se
ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 (

K
S
I)

 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic

co
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

-8
.3

3
 %

5
4

.5
5

 %
0

.0
0

 %
-3

5
.2

9 %

-9
.0

9
 %

0
.0

0
 %

-2
4
.8

8 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
9
9
b
iii

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 k

ill
e
d
 o

r 
se

ri
o
u
sl

y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 

(K
S
I)

 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e

1
9
9
4
-9

8
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

-5
9
.8

5 %

-3
7

.9
6 %

-5
9

.8
5 %

-5
9
.8

5 %

-6
3
.5

0 %

-6
3
.5

0 %

-5
5
.6

3 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 344



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
9
9
ci

i
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

co
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

-2
.6

5
 %

-6
.5

4
 %

-0
.5

4
 %

-2
.1

0
 %

-1
.1

9
 %

-1
.4

7
 %

-9
.0

5
 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
9
9
ci

ii
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

co
lli

si
o
n
s 

si
n
ce

 t
h
e
 1

9
9
4
-9

8
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

-1
0
.2

3 %

-1
6

.1
0 %

-1
0

.7
2 %

-1
7
.8

6 %

-1
8
.8

3 %

-2
0
.0

1 %

-1
9
.5

5 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
1
0
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 o
r 

ro
a
d
 c

lo
su

re
 o

n
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

se
n
si

ti
v
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 p
e
r 

k
m

 o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 

se
n
si

ti
v
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

.

5
.7

7
8
.6

3
2
.5

1
.2

7
.5

0
6
.0

0
5
.5

0
5
.0

0
0
.2

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
1
1
8
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 u
se

rs
 w

h
o
 f

o
u
n
d
 

th
e
 b

o
o
k
 t

h
e
y
 w

a
n
te

d
 o

r 
re

se
rv

e
d
 i
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e

6
0
.6

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
7
.0

 %
6
7
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
8
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 u
se

rs
 w

h
o
 f

o
u
n
d
 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
y
 w

a
n
te

d
 o

r 

re
se

rv
e
d
 i
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e

6
7
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
7
.0

 %
6
7
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
8
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 u
se

rs
 s

a
ti
sf

ie
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
v
e
ra

ll

8
3
.6

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

8
9
.0

 %
8
9
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
9
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 s

p
o
rt

s/
le

is
u
re

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

4
4
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

5
0
.0

0
 %

4
9
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
9
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s

4
3
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
7
.0

0
 %

6
7
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
9
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 

m
u
se

u
m

s/
g
a
lle

ri
e
s

2
9
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

4
0
.0

0
 %

4
0
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
9
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
sf

ie
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
a
tr

e
s/

co
n
ce

rt
 h

a
lls

2
8
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

4
2
.0

0
 %

4
1
.5

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
1
9
e

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rk

s/
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
ce

s

5
7
.0

0
 %

N
/
A

N
/
A

6
5
.0

0
 %

7
3
.0

0
 %

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
1
5
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
u
ild

in
g
s 

in
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p
u
b
lic

 a
re

a
s 

a
re

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 t
o
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

2
2
.0

3
 %

2
8
.8

1
 %

3
8
.9

8
 %

5
4

.3
9

 %
3

6
 %

6
0
 %

7
0
 %

8
0
 %

4
6
.0

6
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
6
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
d
e
st

ri
a
n
 c

ro
ss

in
g
s 

w
it
h
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

.

8
7
.2

3
 %

8
8
.8

9
 %

9
6
.3

 %
1

0
0

 %
1

0
0

 %
1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
6
6
a

S
co

re
  
a
g
a
in

st
 a

 c
h
e
ck

lis
t 

o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 f

o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.

8
0
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
6
6
b

S
co

re
  
a
g
a
in

st
 a

 c
h
e
ck

lis
t 

o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 f

o
r 

tr
a
d
in

g
 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

s.

8
0
.0

0
 %

9
3
.3

3
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
8
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

ca
te

g
o
ry

 1
, 
1
a
 

a
n
d
 2

 f
o
o
tw

a
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 n
e
e
d
in

g
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t.

2
2
.6

2
 %

3
0
.8

0
 %

2
7
 %

1
0

.2
2

 %
2

0
.0

0
 %

1
0
.0

0
 %

1
5
 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 345



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
1
9
9
a

T
H

I0
0
8

L
P
S
A
0
0
3

S
P
1
0
8

L
A
A
1
0
5

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

(e
x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

th
a
t 

is
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 a

s 
h
a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

d
e
p
o
si

ts
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s 

th
a
t 

fa
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

cc
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l.
 [

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
]

3
4
.0

8
 %

2
2
.0

 %
2

3
.0

 %
2

0
.0

 %
1
6
.0

 %
1
2
.0

 %
1
1
.0

 %
2
0
.0

 %
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
1
9
9
b

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

(e
x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 u

n
a
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
re

 v
is

ib
le

. 
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
1

 %
1

7
 %

1
0
 %

9
 %

8
 %

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
1
9
9
c

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

(e
x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 u

n
a
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

fl
y
-p

o
st

in
g
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le
. 
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

7
 %

1
8

 %
6
 %

5
 %

4
 %

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
1
9
9
d

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
ci

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 i
n
 

to
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
ct

io
n
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 ‘
fl
y
-t

ip
p
in

g
’.
 [

N
e
w

 

P
I]

N
/A

3
1

2
1

1
N

/A
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
2
1
5
a

T
H

I0
0
5

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 

re
p
a
ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 f

a
u
lt
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 -
 n

o
n
 D

N
O

 -
  
[N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

3
.9

6
5

3
.7

5
3
.5

0
3
.2

5
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
2
1
5
b

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 

st
re

e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 f

a
u
lt
, 
w

h
e
re

 r
e
sp

o
n
se

 

ti
m

e
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

a
 D

N
O

  
-

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
3

1
3

1
2

1
1

1
0

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
2
1
6
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

‘s
it
e
s 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
co

n
ce

rn
’ 

(w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
),

 w
it
h
 

re
sp

e
ct

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
. 
[N

e
w

 

P
I]

N
/A

1
,9

9
8

2
0

1
,8

2
8

1
,6

4
8

1
,4

5
8

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

N
o
n
e

B
V
2
1
6
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
ci

d
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

re
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

la
n
d
 i
s 

n
e
ce

ss
a
ry

, 
a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

a
ll 

‘s
it
e
s 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
co

n
ce

rn
’.
  
[N

e
w

 

P
I]

N
/A

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

9
 %

1
0
 %

1
3
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

N
o
n
e

B
V
2
1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 i
n
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

im
e
  
- 

 [
N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
0

0
 %

9
0

 %
8
0
 %

9
0
 %

9
0
 %

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
1
8
a

T
H

I0
0
9
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

s 
o
f 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s 

in
v
e
st

ig
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

2
4
h
rs

 o
f 

n
o
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 -

 [
N

e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

9
1

.8
0

 %
8

0
.0

0
 %

9
2
.0

0
 %

9
3
.0

0
 %

9
3
.5

0
 %

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 346



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
2
1
8
b

T
H

I0
0
9
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

p
o
in

t 
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s 

le
g
a
lly

 

e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 -

 [
N

e
w

 

P
I]

N
/A

9
2

.6
0

 %
8

0
.0

0
 %

9
3
.0

0
 %

9
3
.5

0
 %

9
4
.0

0
 %

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
0

C
o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 a
g
a
in

st
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
- 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

1
3

1
6

1
9

1
8
.5

1
8
.5

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
2
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

p
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 
ro

a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 

st
ru

ct
u
ra

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 
[N

e
w

 P
I]

7
1
.8

4
 %

2
0

.8
0

 %
N

/
A

1
9
 %

1
7
 %

1
4
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
2
2
4
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
n
-p

ri
n
ci

p
a
l 

cl
a
ss

if
ie

d
 r

o
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
.

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

3
3

.0
4

 %
7

.5
 %

2
8
 %

2
4
 %

2
1
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
2
2
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
cl

a
ss

if
ie

d
 r

o
a
d
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 s
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 
[N

e
w

 P
I]

0
.4

1
 %

1
5

.3
9

 %
0

.3
8

 %
1
3
 %

1
1
 %

1
0
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

T
H

I0
2
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s 

to
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

9
4
4
,6

0
8

9
5
6
,3

3
9

9
8
3
,8

3
3

1
,2

3
6

,1
5

5
9

9
2

,5
0

0
1
,3

3
6
,0

0
0

1
,3

4
9
,3

6
0

1
,3

6
2
,8

5
0

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
2
6
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s 

to
 c

o
u
n
ci

l 
a
rt

s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

3
6
,3

0
9

3
0
,5

2
2

4
9

,4
5

0
3

5
,0

0
0

3
6
,0

0
0

3
6
,7

2
0

3
7
,4

5
4

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
2
6
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fe
st

iv
a
ls

 o
r 

cu
lt
u
ra

l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 o

r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 f

a
ci

lit
a
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
ra

ct
e
d
 a

 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

u
d
ie

n
ce

 o
f 

1
0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

4
7

5
6

7
8

5
7

6
5

6
6

6
7

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
2
7

C
P
A
0
1
0
c

S
P
4
1
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
y
si

ca
l 
v
is

it
s 

to
 p

u
b
lic

 

lib
ra

ry
 p

re
m

is
e
s 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

5
4
5
3
.0

0
5
3
1
0
.4

2
6
,5

0
4

7
,7

0
9

.2
2

7
,4

4
0

.1
3

9
,7

7
5

9
,8

8
1

9
,8

8
4

8
,3

6
0

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

H
o

u
s
in

g

B
V
0
6
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
u
n
fi
t 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
ct

o
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s 

m
a
d
e
 f

it
 o

r 
d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 a

s 
a
 

d
ir
e
ct

 r
e
su

lt
 o

f 
a
ct

io
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
(D

e
le

te
d
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
6
/0

7
)

2
.1

7
 %

5
.4

4
 %

5
.3

8
 %

4
.9

9
 %

5
.9

2
 %

4
.6

3
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
6
3

E
n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
cy

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P
 

ra
ti
n
g
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
w

n
e
d
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s.

4
7
.6

1
4
9

6
2

6
4

6
3

6
5

6
5

6
7

6
7

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
6
4

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
ct

o
r 

v
a
ca

n
t 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s 

th
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
tu

rn
e
d
 i
n
to

 

o
cc

u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 a

s 
a
 d

ir
e
ct

 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
a
ct

io
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

3
6
3
.0

0
8
1
1
.0

0
4
3
5
.0

0
2

9
3

.0
0

3
2

0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
3
0
1
.0

0
3
0
2
.0

0
3
0
1
.0

0
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
6
6
a

L
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
n
t 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

: 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

n
t 

co
lle

ct
e
d
.

9
6
.3

4
 %

9
6
.0

7
 %

9
5
.5

2
 %

9
6

.8
5

 %
9

6
.6

0
 %

9
7
.4

0
 %

9
7
.9

 %
9
8
.0

 %
9
7
.3

0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 347



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
6
6
b

C
P
A
0
0
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 

w
it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 s

e
v
e
n
 w

e
e
k
s 

o
f 

(g
ro

ss
)

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 
te

n
a
n
ts

.

N
/A

7
.0

7
 %

N
/
A

6
.6

0
 %

6
.5

0
 %

6
.4

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
0
6
6
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 i
n

a
rr

e
a
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 N

o
ti
ce

s 
S
e
e
k
in

g
 

P
o
ss

e
ss

io
n
 s

e
rv

e
d
.

N
/A

2
3

.8
8

 %
N

/
A

2
8
.0

0
 %

2
7
.0

0
 %

2
6
.0

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
0
6
6
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 

e
v
ic

te
d
 a

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

.

N
/A

0
 %

N
/
A

0
 %

0
 %

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
0
7
4
a

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 a

: 
 a

ll 

te
n
a
n
ts

5
3
.4

1
 %

5
2
.0

1
 %

5
2
.0

1
 %

5
7

.5
2

 %
7

0
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

7
1
.5

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
4
b

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
: 

w
it
h
 r

e
su

lt
s

fu
rt

h
e
r 

b
ro

k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
  
b
) 

b
la

ck
 a

n
d
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

.

4
7
.6

1
 %

4
9
.4

9
 %

4
9
.4

9
 %

5
4

.7
5

 %
7

0
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
7
.0

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
4
c

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
: 

w
it
h
 r

e
su

lt
s

fu
rt

h
e
r 

b
ro

k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
  
b
) 

n
o
n
-b

la
ck

 

a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

.

5
7
.4

3
 %

5
3
.1

7
 %

5
3
.1

7
 %

6
0

.4
4

 %
7

0
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

6
3
.0

0
 %

7
4
.0

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
5
a

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
: 

 a
: 

A
ll 

te
n
a
n
ts

4
9
.1

8
 %

4
9
.1

8
 %

4
4

.6
0

 %
6

6
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

6
0
.2

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
7
5
b

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
: 

 b
: 

b
la

ck
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 

te
n
a
n
ts

5
0
.6

0
 %

5
0
.6

0
 %

3
9

.8
1

 %
6

6
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
9
.7

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
7
5
c

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
f 

d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
: 

b
) 

n
o
n
-b

la
ck

 a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

.

4
8
.6

6
 %

4
8
.6

6
 %

4
9

.0
0

 %
6

6
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

5
1
.0

0
 %

6
1
.7

5
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
6
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

cl
a
im

a
n
ts

 v
is

it
e
d
, 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
se

lo
a
d
.

3
.1

1
6
.7

8
4

.8
6

3
7

.0
0

1
8
9
.5

3
1
9
3
.7

8
1
9
5
.1

9
2
6
4
.8

2
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 348



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
0
7
6
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
to

rs
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
se

lo
a
d
.

0
.1

7
0
.2

1
0

.2
5

0
.2

5
0
.3

7
0
.3

8
0
.3

9
0
.3

4
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
6
c

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s,

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
se

lo
a
d

1
3
.7

9
9
.5

9
1

6
.5

2
1

5
.0

0
2
4
.0

0
2
9
.0

0
3
4
.0

0
3
3
.0

2
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
6
d

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

se
cu

ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 s

a
n
ct

io
n
s,

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
se

lo
a
d
.

0
.5

1
0
.7

4
2

.4
0

1
.3

0
3
.2

5
4
.0

0
4
.5

0
3
.2

5
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
7
8
a

T
H

I0
2
1

S
P
2
1
8

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

in
g
 n

e
w

 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
ci

l 
ta

x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t

cl
a
im

s 
(d

a
y
s)

.

4
7
.0

3
4
1
.7

5
2
.3

3
3

.8
3

5
.0

3
1
.0

3
0
.0

2
9
.0

3
8
.5

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
0
7
8
b

T
H

I0
3
1

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

in
g
 

n
o
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 

o
f 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a
n
ce

,r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
ci

l 
ta

x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

cl
a
im

s 

(d
a
y
s)

.

6
.7

1
8
.0

1
0
.8

1
5

.9
8

.0
7
.7

7
.5

7
.2

1
1
.1

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
7
9
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
si

n
g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
ta

x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

ca
se

s 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

d
u
e
 w

a
s 

co
rr

e
ct

.

9
8
.4

1
 %

9
9
.2

4
 %

9
9
.8

0
 %

9
7

.6
0

 %
9

9
.8

0
 %

9
8
.0

0
 %

9
8
.2

5
 %

9
8
.5

0
 %

9
8
.0

0
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
7
9
b
(i
)

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 (
H

B
) 

re
co

v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

s 
a
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

B
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 r

e
co

v
e
ra

b
le

 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
.

[a
m

e
n
d
e
d
]

N
/A

6
2

.5
7

 %
N

/
A

6
4
.0

0
 %

6
4
.2

0
 %

6
4
.4

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
7
9
b
(i
i)

H
B
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
co

v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

p
e
ri
o
d
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

H
B
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 

d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

p
lu

s 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

H
B
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

3
9

.1
6

 %
N

/
A

3
9
.3

0
 %

3
9
.6

0
 %

3
9
.9

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
0
7
9
b
(i
ii)

B
e
n
e
fi
t 

(H
B
) 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

s 
a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

H
B
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 

d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
p
lu

s 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

H
B
 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 [

N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

6
.3

7
 %

N
/
A

1
5
.0

0
 %

1
5
.5

0
 %

1
6
.0

0
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

N
o
n
e

B
V
1
6
4

D
o
e
s 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 f

o
r 

R
a
ci

a
l 
E
q
u
a
lit

y
's

 c
o
d
e
 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 i
n
 r

e
n
te

d
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 a

n
d
 

fo
llo

w
 t

h
e
 G

o
o
d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
fo

r 

so
ci

a
l 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s 

o
n
 t

a
ck

lin
g
 h

a
ra

ss
m

e
n
t

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 i
n
T
a
ck

lin
g
 R

a
ci

a
l 
H

a
ra

ss
m

e
n
t:

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P
ra

ct
ic

e
 f

o
r 

S
o
ci

a
l 
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s?

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 349



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
1
8
3
a

S
P
2
1
0

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

st
a
y
 i
n
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 

b
re

a
k
fa

st
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

 h
o
m

e
le

ss
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 n
e
e
d
. 

1
1
.7

5
1
3

1
3

5
1

1
4
.5

4
.0

3
.5

5
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
1
8
3
b

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

st
a
y
 i
n
 h

o
st

e
l 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
cl

u
d
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

 h
o
m

e
le

ss
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
.

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

4

B
V
1
8
4
a

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
L
A
 h

o
m

e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
e
re

 n
o
n
-d

e
ce

n
t 

a
t 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
4
.

8
0
.0

1
 %

7
5
 %

7
8
 %

6
7

 %
7

4
 %

6
2
 %

6
4
 %

6
3
 %

3
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
1
8
4
b

S
P
2
0
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

n
o
n
-d

e
ce

n
t 

L
A
 h

o
m

e
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
4
 a

n
d
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
5
.

1
1
.5

7
 %

0
.3

 %
1
7
.8

 %
2

7
.3

 %
2

0
.5

 %
7
.9

 %
3
9
.0

 %
1
.5

 %
1
4
.9

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
2
0
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
le

e
p
in

g
 r

o
u
g
h
 o

n
 a

 

si
n
g
le

 n
ig

h
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

5
3

<
5

<
5

<
5

<
5

1
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
2
0
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
ild

re
n
  
o
r 

a
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

a
n
, 
p
la

ce
d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

h
o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t

fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

co
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e
a
r.

5
.5

3
 %

-3
.9

8
 %

-2
.5

0
 %

-2
.5

0
 %

-2
.5

0
 %

-2
.5

0
 %

5
.0

1
 %

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

B
V
2
1
2

S
P
2
0
4

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
-l
e
t 

lo
ca

l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o
u
si

n
g
. 
- 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

3
6

3
7

3
5

3
5

3
4

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

B
V
2
1
3

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
w

h
o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d

th
e
m

se
lv

e
s 

a
s 

h
o
m

e
le

ss
, 
w

h
o
 

a
p
p
ro

a
ch

e
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
h
o
u
si

n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
(s

),
 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

 h
o
u
si

n
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

ca
se

w
o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

e
so

lv
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

si
tu

a
ti
o
n
. 
- 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

7
1

4
N

/
A

6
0
5

6
1
0

6
1
5

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

H
ig

h
e
r

B
V
2
1
4

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
a
cc

e
p
te

d
 a

s 

st
a
tu

to
ri
ly

 h
o
m

e
le

ss
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 

a
cc

e
p
te

d
 a

s 
st

a
tu

to
ri
ly

 h
o
m

e
le

ss
 b

y
 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
st

 t
w

o
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
- 

[N
e
w

 P
I]

N
/A

0
.2

5
 %

N
/
A

0
.9

9
 %

0
.9

8
 %

0
.9

7
 %

N
/A

W
H

IT
E

L
o
w

e
r

T
H

I0
1
0

S
P
2
0
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
u
rg

e
n
t 

re
p
a
ir
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
 l
im

it
s

9
4
.5

0
 %

9
3
.9

0
 %

9
4
.4

2
 %

9
4

.5
5

 %
9

5
.0

0
 %

9
6
.0

 %
9
6
.5

 %
9
7
.0

 %
N

/A
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 350



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

T
H

I0
1
1

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
-l
e
t 

ti
m

e
s 

in
 l
o
ca

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s 

(d
a
y
s)

3
4
.3

3
3
6
.3

7
3
7
.0

0
2

7
.0

0
3

3
.0

0
N

/R
N

/R
N

/R
N

/A
G

R
E
E
N

L
o
w

e
r

5

T
H

I0
1
2
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

le
tt

in
g
s 

to
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

o
u
si

n
g
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

N
/A

2
5

2
2

4
0

2
5
5

N
/R

N
/R

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

T
H

I0
1
2
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

le
tt

in
g
s 

to
 u

n
d
e
ro

cc
u
p
y
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

o
u
si

n
g
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

N
/A

1
1

7
1

0
0

1
0
5

N
/R

N
/R

N
/A

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

B
V
0
4
9

T
H

I0
1
3

P
A
F
A
1

P
S
A
0
0
7

S
P
2
1
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
  
w

it
h
 t

h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

p
la

ce
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r

9
.9

7
 %

1
0
.7

1
 %

1
0
.9

4
 %

1
1

.3
8

 %
8

.5
0

 %
1
0
 %

1
0
 %

9
.5

 %
1
1
.1

9
 %

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

6

B
V
0
5
0

P
A
F
A
2

P
S
A
0
0
6

S
P
2
1
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r,

le
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h

a
t 

le
a
st

 1
 G

C
S
E
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

-G
 o

r 
a
 

G
N

V
Q

.

4
7
.0

6
 %

5
4
 %

5
8
 %

5
4

 %
6

8
 %

7
0
 %

7
2
 %

7
3
 %

5
6
 %

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

6

B
V
0
5
3

P
A
F
C
2
8

S
P
2
1
3

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
re

ce
iv

in
g
 

in
te

n
si

v
e
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
 o

r 
o
v
e
r.

2
9
.9

0
2
8
.8

6
3
0
.9

9
3

8
.5

8
3

4
.0

0
3
8
.0

0
3
8
.0

0
3
8
.0

0
2
3
.4

3
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
5
4

P
A
F
C
3
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 6

5
 o

r 

o
v
e
r 

h
e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
 o

r 
o
v
e
r.

1
8
4
.4

9
1
8
3
.0

3
1
7
3
.5

1
1

8
0

.1
8

1
7

5
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0
1
1
6
.2

5
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
0
5
6

P
A
F
D

5
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
it
e
m

s 
o
f 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

 a
n
d

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 7
 w

o
rk

in
g

d
a
y
s.

8
5
 %

7
8
 %

9
5

.5
5

 %
9

5
 %

9
5
 %

9
5
 %

9
5
 %

9
1
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
6
1

L
P
S
A
3
a

P
A
F
A
0
4

R
a
ti
o
  
o
f 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
se

 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

o
n
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 1

7
th

 y
e
a
r 

(a
g
e
d
 1

6
) 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 

1
9
, 
to

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s 
w

h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
.

4
5
.0

0
 %

6
1
.2

9
 %

0
.8

1
 %

0
.9

4
 %

0
.8

7
 %

0
.9

4
 %

0
.9

4
 %

0
.9

4
 %

0
.8

3
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
6
2

P
A
F
C
2
0

T
H

I0
1
4

S
P
2
1
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 c

a
se

s 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
t 

w
e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0

0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

1
0
0
 %

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

4

B
V
1
6
3

P
A
F
C
2
3

T
H

I0
1
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

5
.8

 %
8
.1

 %
5
.5

 %
8

.7
 %

8
.0

 %
9
.0

 %
9
.0

 %
9
.0

 %
6
.7

 %
G

R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
9
5

P
A
F
D

5
5

A
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 w
a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
s 

fo
r 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t

7
5
.9

 %
8
0
.2

 %
8

6
.0

 %
9

0
.0

 %
9
2
.0

 %
9
4
.0

 %
9
6
.0

 %
7
7
.1

 %
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 351



B
V

P
I

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
0

0
2

/
0

3
2

0
0

3
/
0

4
2

0
0

4
/
0

5
O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

0
5

/
0

6

2
0

0
6

/
0

7
2

0
0

7
/
0

8
2

0
0

8
/
0

9
L
o

n
d

o
n

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
4

/
0

5

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

B
V
1
9
6

P
A
F
D

5
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
lie

n
ts

 a
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

6
5
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
 a

 c
a
re

 p
a
ck

a
g
e
 i
s 

le
ss

 t
h
a
n
 o

r 
e
q
u
a
l 

to
 f

o
u
r 

w
e
e
k
s 

(t
h
a
t 

is
, 
2
8
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
y
s)

9
1
.9

 %
8
5
.9

 %
8

7
.8

 %
9

0
.0

 %
9
2
.0

 %
9
4
.0

 %
9
6
.0

 %
9
0
.5

 %
R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

B
V
1
9
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

to
 f

e
m

a
le

s 
a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
,

re
si

d
e
n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

re
a
, 
p
e
r 

th
o
u
sa

n
d
 

fe
m

a
le

s 
a
g
e
d
 1

5
-1

7
 r

e
si

d
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
, 
co

m
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

a
se

lin
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

1
9
9
8
.

-1
9
.6

 %
-2

5
.3

 %
-2

5
.3

 %
-3

0
.0

 %
-3

4
.1

 %
-3

8
.3

 %
-4

2
.5

 %
-1

1
.4

 %
R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

4

B
V
2
0
1

P
A
F
C
5
1

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s 

a
n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

re
ce

iv
in

g
 d

ir
e
ct

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

8
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

o
v
e
r.

 

7
2
2

4
9

9
6

7
0

1
3
0

1
6
0

1
9
0

8
1

G
R
E
E
N

H
ig

h
e
r

5

T
H

I0
1
6

P
A
F
C
2
6

S
P
2
1
1

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

su
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n
s 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ti
a
l 

a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
 o

r 
o
v
e
r.

9
6
.3

8
1
1
7
.0

0
1
1
7
.2

1
0

8
.1

1
0

0
8
5

8
0

7
5

7
4
.2

R
E
D

L
o
w

e
r

5

T
H

I0
1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
cl

ie
n
ts

 r
e
ce

iv
in

g
 a

 

re
v
ie

w

5
4
.8

4
 %

7
8
.0

0
 %

6
5
.2

0
 %

7
1

 %
7

5
 %

9
0
 %

9
0
 %

9
0
 %

N
/A

R
E
D

H
ig

h
e
r

5

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/
0

6
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

Page 352



BVPIs where performance is 10% or more above target 

BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV008

CE038

THI033

SP506

Percentage of Undisputed 

Invoices Paid on Time

Higher 13.45 Significant effort went into improving performance on payment of 

invoices during 05/06. Some of the measures introduced include: 

employment of temporary staff and a creation of a special team 

to clear the backlog of invoices.  Electronic invoicing and BACS 

were also introduced. The team's performance was continuously 

monitored by senior management and a presentation to the 

performance review team on performance improvement 

measures. A payments summit team which consists of two 

corporate directors was also set up to help monitor progress.

Monthly management information is also provided to Corporate 

Directors on their Directorates performance showing areas where 

the 30 day performance target have not been met.  All these 

measures have resulted in a significant improvement in 

performance.

BV043b Percentage of statements of 

special educational need prepared

within 18 weeks including those 

affected by" exceptions to the 

rule" under the SEN Code of 

Practice.

Higher 11.53 The change in working practices implemented in the SEN section 

two years ago, have continues to produce results in excess of 

those projected.  In light of this, future year targets have been 

changed to reflect the increased performance.

BV053

PAFC28

SP213

Number of households receiving 

intensive home care per 1000 

population aged 65 or over.

Higher 13.47 The number of households provided with intensive home care 

during the survey week increased from 558 in 2004 to 685 in 

2005.    This figure has been audited in detail and is correct.

There was also a reduction in the population estimates for older 

people living in Tower Hamlets produced by the ONS.   We have 

performed over our target due to a management focus on 

increasing the number of older people helped to live at home and 

reducing the number  of admissions to residential care.  There 

has been an increase in 2005-6 in the number of older people 

helped to live at home (BVPI54) and a decrease in the number of 

admissions of older people to residential care (THI 16).

BV076c Number of benefit fraud 

investigations, per 1,000 caseload

Higher 10.13 A range of management measures including the recruitment of 

more investigative staff improved performance.  Assistance and 

advice was sought from the Benefit Fraud Inspectorate who 

undertook a review of the service. 

BV076d Number of prosecutions and 

sanctions, per 1,000 caseload.

Higher 84.62 A range of management measures including the recruitment of 

more investigative staff improved performance.  Assistance and 

advice was sought from the Benefit Fraud Inspectorate who 

undertook a review of the service.

BV084b Percentage change from the 

previous financial year in the 

number of kilograms of household

waste collected per head of the 

population. [New PI]

Lower -114  Household waste growth for the borough was projected in the 

Municipal Waste Strategy as 3.5% per year due to 

affluence-related factors.  However, given the Council's continued 

improved performance in waste reduction and re-use, and 

enhanced waste education initiatives and resources, a 2% growth 

was set for BV84b.  2005/06 has seen a continued decrease in 

the household waste collected per head as a result of these 

activities.

BV099biii Percentage change in the number

of children killed or seriously 

injured (KSI) in road traffic 

collisions since the 1994-98 

average.

Lower -36.57 The Council continues with the implementation of its road safety 

programmes, including: the development of school travel plans in 

30 schools and associated traffic management measures on safer 

routes to school, junior road safety officer scheme extended to 20

primary schools, kerbcraft projects teaching children road safety 

skills benefiting 300 children, an expanded Junior Citizen Scheme 

Safety training undertaken in October that attracted 1,500 

children, and six new School Crossing Patrol officers (lollipop 

people) were taken on during the year.  In addition, we 

introduced two additional 20mph zones bringing the total to 20 

and one additional Home Zone bringing the total to eight.

Despite these actions, the Borough has seen an significant 

increase in the number of children killed/seriously injured from 11

to 17 this year.  While the Council is proactive in its road safety 

programmes, a small number of serious road incidents can 

adversely affect this BVPI given its small base figure.  Such low 

child KSI numbers are more prone to random fluctuation.

Appendix 2a

Page 353



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV100 Number of days of temporary 

traffic controls or road closure on 

traffic sensitive streets per km of 

traffic sensitive streets.

Lower -84 A planned programme of major road improvement works for the 

next few years funded from the Borough Spending Plan and by 

Transport for London saw this target set high in anticipation of 

road closures.  However, through efficient programming and 

improvement measures, the Council was not required to close as 

many major roads as originally projected.

BV156 Percentage of Authority buildings 

in which all public areas are 

suitable for and accessible to 

disabled people

Higher 51.08 In 2005/06, four buildings from the 2004/05 submission were 

deleted from the list due to service reviews and property disposals

and two compliant new builds (Whitechapel and Canary Wharf 

Idea Stores) added.  Targeted DDA works were carried out as 

originally foreseen in 2004/05, and in addition to the two new 

builds were completed in the year there was funding for additional

buildings to reach compliancy in 2005/06.  This means that 31 of 

57 applicable buildings (54.39%) were compliant to the meaning 

of the indicator.

BV183a

SP210

Average length of stay in bed and

breakfast accommodation of 

households which include 

dependent children or a pregnant 

woman and which are 

unintentionally homeless and in 

priority need. 

Lower -54.55 The definition of this indicator was amended following the targets 

being set.  The new definition excludes any time spent in bed and

breakfast prior to 1st April 2004, the date from which the 

Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation - England) Order 

2003 took effect.

BV184b

SP202

The percentage change in 

proportion of non-decent LA 

homes between 1 April 2004 and 

1 April 2005.

Higher 33.17 The nature ofthis indicator means that every property which is 

lost in the year in effect pushes the figure in BV184b higher, since

the denominator for the calculation stays the same both at the 

beginning and the end of the year, whereas the tendency for the 

numerator to reduce is affected not only by stock having been 

made decent but also by having been disposed, transferred or 

demolished.  The jump in the 2005/06 figure compared to last 

year therefore chiefly reflects the effect of the housing choice 

policy on this indicator - 332 council owned and managed 

properties were transferred in 2004/05 compared to 4,081 in 

2005/06 (plus a further 170 demolitions or other disposals).

BV187 Percentage length of category 1, 

1a and 2 footway network 

needing treatment.

Lower -48.9 Due to an extensive footway improvement programme 

undertaken in 2005/06, the final outturn figure was significantly 

lower than the previous year. Targets were set prior to the 

confirmation of the works programme, and has resulted in a 

2005/06 outturn that was better than anticipated.

BV197 Percentage change in the number

of conceptions to females aged 

under 18, resident in an area, per

thousand females aged 15-17 

resident in the area, compared 

with the baseline year of 1998.

Lower -15.67 Variance between outturn and target:  The Tower Hamlets 

teenage pregnancy strategy, lead by the PCT in partnership with 

the council, continues to perform well above the national average.

 Our teenage conception rate is significantly below the average 

for London.  We fell short of our target in for the 2004 conception

rate (which is the data this PI is based on), but initiatives have 

been put in place to further reduce the rate and meet the target 

of a 55% reduction in the conception rate by 2010. 

BV199b The proportion of relevant land 

and highways (expressed as a 

percentage) from which 

unacceptable levels of graffiti are 

visible. [New PI]

Lower -35.29 The Council continues to tackle enviro-crimes such as graffiti and 

flyposting and has seen a significant decline to 11% in 2005/06 

against the estimated baselines established by EnCams for the 

previous year (16%).  It is among the top half of the Capital 

Standards group for graffiti, and will look to improve this further 

with the Council's anti-graffiti & flyposting action plan in 2006/07.

BV199c The proportion of relevant land 

and highways (expressed as a 

percentage) from which 

unacceptable levels of fly-posting 

are visible. [New PI]

Lower -61.11 The Council continues to tackle enviro-crimes such as graffiti and 

flyposting and has seen a significant decline to 7% in 2005/06 

against the estimated baselines established by EnCams for the 

previous year (12%).  The Council's anti-graffiti & flyposting 

action plan in 2006/07 will be targeting specific hotspots to 

improve this score.

BV201

PAFC51

Number of adults and older 

people receiving direct payments 

per 100,000 population aged 18 

years or over. 

Higher 37.14 Under investigation

BV204 Percentage of appeals allowed 

against the authority’s decision to 

refuse planning applications.

Lower -16.07 Thorough working practices and adherence to adopted planning 

policies has meant that in 2004/2005 the Development Control 

Service has achieved a low percentage of appeals allowed against 

the Authority's decision to refuse planning permission. 

Appendix 2a

Page 354



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV215a

THI005

The average number of days 

taken to repair a street lighting 

fault, which is under the control 

of the local authority  - non DNO -

 [New PI]

Lower -20.8 This is a joint new BVPI shared between Housing and E&C 

introduced for 2005/06.  We are already performing at a very 

high level, therefore the margins for improvement are smaller.

BV217 Percentage of pollution control 

improvements to existing 

installations completed on time  - 

[New PI]

Higher 11.11  This is a new BVPI introduced for 2005/06.  In addition to 

changes in regulation and guidance which has excluded certain 

sites (that were originally included in the Environmental Health 

team's work programme), the Council has proactively managed 

the pollution control improvements (PPC) compliancy work - 

combining inspection and enforcement by officers with the use of 

consultants to ensure all sites have had PPC installations carried 

out on time.

BV218a

THI009a

Percentage of new reports of 

abandoned vehicles investigated 

within 24hrs of notification - [New

PI]

Higher 14.75 This is a joint new BVPI shared between Housing and E&C 

introduced for 2005/06.  We are already performing at a very 

high level, therefore the margins for improvement are smaller.

BV218b

THI009b

Percentage of abandoned vehicles

removed within 24 hours from the

point at which the Authority is 

legally entitled to remove the 

vehicle - [New PI]

Higher 15.75 See comments in above BV218a.

Local002 Number of total places in 

childrens day care and after 

school clubs

Higher 19.19 Schools offering childcare through extended schools programme

accounts for targeted expansion in this area.

Local108 The number of advertised 

departures from the statutory 

plan approved by the authority as

a percentage of total permissions 

granted

Lower -80 No planning applications for 'departure' proposals reached a point 

at which a decision was made.

THI001

CE017

The number of young people 

under 18 accessing substance 

misuse treatments (Revised PI for

05/06)

Higher 32.59 The target for 2005/06 has been met and exceeded, and 

subsequent years' targets have been revised to make them more 

stretching. This success is largely due to the successful 

implementation of the new LifeLine service. The sustained focus 

on this area is reflected in the Local Area Agreement, where this 

is a primary indicator. 

THI011 Average re-let times in local 

authority dwellings (days)

Lower -18.18 Results for 2005/06 show the best performance recorded within 

the last three years.  This improvement can be attributed to 

regular and close monitoring of the void and lettings processes. 

THI012b Number of lettings to 

underoccupying Common Housing

Register tenants

Higher 17 Our targets on lettings to overcrowded households and 

under-occupying households were both exceeded in 2005/06.

Close monitoring ensured that suitable homes were made 

available to overcrowded households in partnership with RSL's.

THI025 Number of visits to Leisure 

Centres

Higher 24.55 The Council has seen an over 20% increase in visitors to leisure 

centres over the previous year.  This can be attributed to the 

opening of the new Mile End Park Leisure Complex, as well as 

dedicated programmes aimed at encouraging participation in 

sports and leisure activities.

THI026a Number of visits to council arts 

facilities

Higher 41.29 Visits to arts centres has continued to surpass its annual target.

This can be attributed to the strong arts programmes s well as 

the wide range of festivals and other events delivered by the 

Council during the year.

THI026b Number of festivals or cultural 

events organised or otherwise 

facilitated by the Council which 

have attracted a diverse audience

of 100 or more

Higher 36.84 The Council continues to deliver and support a wide range of 

festivals and events in the Borough.  Additional one-off funding 

has meant that the 2005/06 target was exceeded by a wide 

margin.

Appendix 2a

Page 355



Page 356

This page is intentionally left blank



BVPIs where performance is 10% or more below target

BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV011b

THI029

SP516

CE044a

The percentage of the 

top 5% of Local 

Authority staff who are 

from an ethnic minority.

Higher -15.94 There has been a slight drop in the 05/06 outturn in this PI when compared to the last

reporting year. This is due overall to the volatile nature of this PI as the numbers 

involved are relatively small. There were also a number of resignations of senior 

officers including the Head of Equalities which has caused the drop in performance. 

The council recruited trainee graduates from the National Graduate Scheme, a number 

of whom are BMEs, and it is likely that these graduates attain senior positions in the 

council in the future.

BV014 Percentage of early 

retirements (excluding 

ill-health retirements) as 

a percentage of the total

workforce.

Lower 36.67 There were a number of early retirements that occurred at senior levels during 05/06 

due to council wide reorganisation. These have resulted in an increase in the number 

of employees who meet the criteria for this PI.

BV015 Percentage of employees

retiring on grounds of ill 

health as a percentage 

of the total workforce.

Lower 200 The increased management intervention / actions taken to reduce sickness absence 

has led to increase in referral to Occupational Health and subsequent ill-health 

retirements.

BV046

THI023

Percentage of half days 

missed due to total 

absence in primary 

schools maintained by 

the local education 

authority.

Lower 14.72 After two years of improvement within the top five in the country, a small fall in 

attendance was experienced (0.14%). This was particularly affected by a late change 

in the Eid-ul-Adha date, so that schools were closed on the wrong day.

BV049

THI013

PAFA1

PSA007

SP215

Percentage of children 

looked after at 31 March 

with three or more 

placements during the 

year

Lower 33.88  We have not been able to perform to target due to a number of looked after children 

having to be moved during the year.  Analysis of our looked after children indicates 

that we have a high proportion of children in the cohort for this indicator who have 

entered care as adolescents, and are therefore difficult to place in stable placements.

Over the coming year, strategies are being put in place to address the issue of 

placement stability, through a multi-agency foster care programme.  This includes the 

recruitment of specialist foster placements who are able to deal with 'difficult to place' 

children, 24 hour access to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services and the 

introduction of a new outreach team to prevent children coming into care.

BV050

PAFA2

PSA006

SP216

Percentage of children 

looked after,leaving care 

aged 16 or over with at 

least 1 GCSE at grade 

A-G or a GNVQ.

Higher -20.59 Target variance: This PI measures the percentage of children leaving care during the 

year who had achieved at least one GCSE or equivalent.  Due to the small number in 

the denominator (35), even small changes in the number achieving these qualifications

can have a significant effect on the PI value.  The variance between our outturn and 

target represents 5 children who did not acheive the relevant qualifications.

Unfortunately there were a disproportionately large number of children in the cohort 

for 2005-6 who were unable to sit exams.

BV062 Percentage of unfit 

private sector dwellings 

made fit or demolished 

as a direct result of 

action by the local 

authority. (Deleted from 

2006/07)

Higher -15.71 The Housing Act 2004 replaces the definition of 'unfitness' with the housing safety 

rating system (HHSRS), a more risk and hazard based approach.  Introduction of these

new arrangements impacted on officers abaility to meet the original target.  However, 

the result remains above the CPA upper threshold.  This indicator has been deleted for 

2006/07.

BV074a Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with the 

overall service provided 

by their landlord a:  all 

tenants

Higher -17.83 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  Whilst

an improvement in satisfaction was achieved improvement was not as much as 

originally expected.  This indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A

survey will be repeated later this year.

BV074b Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with the 

overall service provided 

by their landlord: with 

results further broken 

down by  b) black and 

minority ethnic tenants.

Higher -21.79 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  Whilst

an improvement in satisfaction was achieved improvement was not as much as 

originally expected.  This indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A

survey will be repeated later this year.

BV074c Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with the 

overall service provided 

by their landlord: with 

results further broken 

down by  b) non-black 

and minority ethnic 

tenants.

Higher -13.66 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  Whilst

an improvement in satisfaction was achieved improvement was not as much as 

originally expected.  This indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A

survey will be repeated later this year.

Appendix 2b

Page 357



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV075a Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with 

opportunities for 

participation in 

management

anddecision making in 

relation to housing 

services provided by 

their landlord:  a: All 

tenants

Higher -32.42 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  The 

results did not demonstrate an improvement as expected particularly as considerable 

efforts are made with Tenant Compact and tenant involvement with Major Works.  This

indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A survey will be repeated 

later this year.

BV075b Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with 

opportunities for 

participation in 

management

anddecision making in 

relation to housing 

services provided by 

their landlord:  b: black 

and minority ethnic 

tenants

Higher -39.68 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  The 

results did not demonstrate an improvement as expected particularly as considerable 

efforts are made with Tenant Compact and tenant involvement with Major Works.  This

indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A survey will be repeated 

later this year.

BV075c Satisfaction of tenants of

council housing with 

opportunities for 

participation in 

management anf 

decision making in 

relation to housing 

services provided by 

their landlord: b) 

non-black and minority 

ethnic tenants.

Higher -25.76 This three year survey was repeated last year in advance of BVPI requirements.  Whilst

an improvement was achieved improvement was not as much as originally expected.

This indicator is adjusted within the CPA for deprivation factors.  A survey will be 

repeated later this year.

BV076a Number of benefit 

claimants visited, per 

1,000 caseload.

Higher -86.86 Targets were set in anticipation of the introduction of the Verification Framework 

during 2005/06.  VF introduces targets for individual local authorities based on 

caseload visits, investigations and other benefitsactivity.  Full VF has been introduced 

from 1st April 2006 and targets have been set to reflect this.

BV078b

THI031

Average time for 

processing notifications 

of  changes of 

circumstance,relating to 

housing benefit and 

council tax benefit claims

(days).

Lower 98.75 This indicator has an amended definition.  Previously the calculation counted the 

average speed of processing all changes.  This has now been changed to look at 

changes calculated in writing. Also in 2004/05 Benefits migrated data to a new IT 

system and this lead to a backlog which carried through to the beginning of 2005/06.

BV082a

THI035

CPA019

SP111

LAA106

Percentage of household

waste which has been 

sent by the authority for 

recycling.

Higher -37 October 2005 saw the successful implementation of the final phase of the doorstep 

recycling service, extending to a further 7,000 high-rise residential properties. Nearly 

all residents now have doorstep collections or communal collection systems, while 

those not covered under this service have recycling centres close by. Officers are 

working with landlords and residents associations to extend doorstep or communal 

collections to these remaining properties. The range of materials collected was 

expanded to include plastic bottles and aerosols.   The additional publicity from the 

‘It’s so easy’ recycling campaign and the Cleaner Safer Tower Hamlets Campaign, 

(including a faith based outreach scheme, the introduction of an incentive scheme with

25 winners each month and direct contact with residents through a team of 

'doorsteppers') has seen the amount of household waste recycled increase significantly

(from 7.35% in 2004/05 to 8.82% for 2005/06). While the Council has failed to meet 

its statutory recycling target of 18% for 2005/06, the expanded service, the raised 

profile through campaigning and proactive programmes planned for the coming year 

are projected to vastly improve recycling. The month-on-month recycling rate 

increased steadily since October and exceeded 10% for January, February and March.

BV082a Total tonnage of 

household waste arisings

which have been sent by

the Authority for 

recycling.  [New PI]

Higher -39.26 See comment above in BV 82a(i)

Appendix 2b

Page 358



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV086 Cost of waste collection 

per household.

Lower 70.71 Costs have increased during 2005/06 due to significant increased investment via 

strategic plan growth allocations for cleansing and waste collection enhancements. The

2005/06 budget included one-off costs for specific enhancements.  In future, these 

enhancements will be contained in the new contracts in operation, which will mean 

signficant qualititave improvements at a reduced costs.

BV087 Cost of waste disposal 

per tonne for municipal 

waste

Lower 27.13 Costs have increased in 2005/06 due to significant increased investment via strategic 

plan growth allocations for waste disposal, and one-off step change investments have 

been undertaken to increase recycling %s which will level off in future years. In future,

new contracts that are now in operation reflect signficant qualititave improvements but

at reduced cost.

BV091b Percentage of 

households resident in 

the authority’s area 

served by kerbside 

collection of at least two 

recyclables.  [New PI]

Higher -15 In 2005/06, the Council cotinued to expand its service coverage to its residence, 

through doorstep and near-entry collection  of all least two recyclable materials.

However, negotiation for access to some private estates has taken longer than 

expected to achieve full 100% coverage. 

BV099a Percentage change in 

the number of people 

killed or seriously injured

(KSI) in road traffic 

collisions since the 

previous year.

Lower 50 See comments as above BV99ai.

BV099b Number of children 

(aged under 16 years) 

killed or seriously injured

(KSI) in road traffic 

collision

Lower 54.55 See comments in above BV99ai. However, despite these actions, the Borough has seen

an increase in the number of children killed/seriously injured from 11 to 17 this year.

While the Council is proactive in its road safety programme, a small number of serious 

road incidents can adversely affect this BVPI given the small base figure.  Such low 

child KSI numbers are more prone to random fluctuations.

BV099c Percentage change in 

the number of people 

slightly injured in road 

traffic collisions since the

previous year.

Lower 1111.11 See comments in above BV99ci.

BV099c Percentage change in 

the number of people 

slightly injured in road 

traffic collisions since the

1994-98 average.

Lower 50.19 See comments in above BV99ci.

BV109a

THI020

CPA026

SP301

Percentage of major 

planning applications 

determined within 13 

weeks.

Higher -41.67 There has unfortunately been a marked reduction in the proportion of major 

applications determined within 13 weeks, which will mean that our target of 60% will 

not be met.  The reasons for this are as follows: · Since the last report there has 

been a very high proportion of major determinations that relate to extremely old cases,

some of which have required detailed car-free and S106 agreements, which have taken

a long time to conclude.  We have been working in partnership with both internal and 

external legal services to ensure more effective negotiation of S106 agreements.

However this process has impacted on performance. · We are now dealing with an 

increasing number of very large applications. Tower Hamlets makes up almost 40% of 

London’s strategic applications according to figures provided by the Greater London 

Authority.  It is extremely difficult to determine these large applications within the 

target of 13 weeks due to the nature of consultation, referral and environmental 

impact assessment requirements.  We are one of a small number of local authorities 

working with English Partnerships to assess how very large applications can be 

managed so that they do not have a detrimental impact on efficiency of determinations

· There has been an unusually high level of staff turnover during the period 

November to January, as private sector companies have been more aggressive and 

competitive in the market.  Although we have undertaken a rigorous recruitment 

process there have been inevitable performance issues arising from hand-over and 

capacity building.

Appendix 2b

Page 359



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV126

THI002

Number of domestic 

burglaries per 1,000 

households.

Lower 24.05 Burglary has increased 24% from this time last year so we have not met our end of 

year target of no increase in residential burglary. Our performance is in the third 

quartile when compared with the rest of London.  The Partnership experienced 

difficulties in recovering from the spate of burglaries which took place in July and 

August when majority of officers were directed on to counter terrorism operations. 

However, the Partnership have worked extremely hard to bring the level of burglary 

down to 24% , as, burglary was up 31.7% a few months ago, and performance is now

on track to meet the 2006/07 target.   For this year the Partnership are planning major

changes in our approach to acquisitive crime. The action group are looking to invest a 

large amount of money to target harden areas, which are identified as long term crime

hotspots, in particular burglary hotspots. These areas will then be transformed 

physically to make it more difficult to commit crimes in those areas. The new action 

plan will also continue to provide vulnerable properties with necessary security to 

prevent them from being burgled and we will also continue the intensive patrolling of 

hotspot areas.

BV127b

CE016

THI006

Robberies per year, per 

1,000 population in the 

Local Authority area.

Lower 16.02 The target in this area has been missed by 1.15 incidents per 1,000 residents. When 

considered London-wide our performance was in the third quartile, and was ranked 

24th out of 32 authorities. However, robberies on business properties fell over 30% 

from 2004/05 following the introduction of anti-robbery security. Our performance is 

mainly due to a high number of incidents following July when a large number of 

officers were engaged in counter terrorism activities. Robbery is a hard crime to 

prevent as it requires a significant number of police on the streets in hotspots. 

Numbers of incidents fell after November following the introduction of Operation Raven

2. Robbery continues to be an area of key focus for 2006/07 with provision being 

made for anti-robbery patrols in the 2006/07 Crimes Against Property Action Group 

Action Plan. Also the extension of the Drugs Intervention Programme to target 

drug-using offenders will also impact on this crime which is often drug-fuelled.

BV128

THI007

Number of vehicle 

crimes per 1,000 

population.

Lower 12.43 We have not met out 2005/06 target by 2.8 incidents per 1,000 residents. Both theft 

of and theft from motor vehicles fell in the bottom quartile for London this year. 

Despite this there has been a visible trend of reduction in vehicle crime across the 

borough during the past 3 years, with the last quarter of 05/06 showing a noticeable 

drop. Vehicle crime remains a key priority as a high volume crime. Actions in the 

Crimes Against Property Action Plan related to persistent and prolific offenders, and to 

target hardening are anticipated to have a significant impact in this area.

BV181b

LPSA1b

Percentage of 14-year 

old pupils in schools 

maintained by the local 

education authority 

achieving Level 5 or 

above in the Key Stage 3

test in Mathematics.

Higher -13.52 Targets were set 2 years ago taking account of national expectations. Our 

improvement has been significantly higher than national rates (3x), but the gap with 

national results remains, although narrowing. Agreed interventions are in place in each

school, with additional support provided through Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF).

BV181c

LPSA1c

Percentage of 14-year 

old pupils in schools 

maintained by the local 

education authority 

achieving Level 5 or 

above in the Key Stage 3

test in Science.

Higher -23.49 Agreed interventions are in place in each school, with additional support provided 

through Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF). The ability to recruit and retain high 

quality science teachers remains a cause for concern. Resources from the Gatsby 

Foundation have been used to support teaching in this area.

BV181d

LPSA1d

Percentage of 14-year 

old pupils in schools 

maintained by the local 

education authority 

achieving Level 5 or 

above in the Key Stage 3

test in ICT assessment.

Higher -23.9 There is a lack of expertise in ICT teaching in many schools. Historically there have 

been vacancies in key positions but these have now been filled. In order to build 

capacity we have introduced a certified course for Heads of ICT that explores the 

necessary management skills. We are also focusing on making sure that all schools are

ready for the on line tests and that they use the opportunity for using the practice 

tests this summer. Please note that the figure quoted for 2005/06 is the DfES 

provisional teacher assessment data for 2005.  This quality of the data that the DfES 

has used to calculate this figure is not good.  Revised dataset, cleaned by the LA put 

the 2005/06 outturn at 55.64%. The DfES have been contacted regarding these data 

quality/validation issues.

BV194a Percentage  of pupils in 

schools maintained by 

the local education 

authority achieving level 

5 or above in Key Stage 

2 in English.

Higher -35.48 The target remains very challenging.  Our Gifted and Talented programme is beginning

to impact on this area.

Appendix 2b

Page 360



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

BV199a

THI008

LPSA00

SP108

LAA105

The proportion of 

relevant land and 

highways (expressed as 

a percentage) that is 

assessed as having 

combined deposits of 

litter and detritus that 

fall below an acceptable 

level. [amended]

Lower 15 Comments under review

BV199d The year-on-year 

reduction in total 

number of incidents and 

increase in total number 

of enforcement actions 

taken to deal with 

‘fly-tipping’. [New PI]

Lower 200 Reports of fly-tipping have significantly increased during the year due to the 

introduction of Council Hotlines and the "Use It Report It" campaign making it easier 

than in 2004/2005 for the public to report rubbish left in the wrong place at the wrong 

time.  Now any and all dumped rubbish is counted as a report of fly-tipping, even 

down to a black sack left by a litter bin.  At the same time the organisation of 

enforcement activities as part of the Street Management restructure took longer than 

anticipated during 2005.  The balance will be restored for 2006/2007 by the successful

enforcement activities of the LETS teams (which went fully operational in December 

2005) and the new street cleaning contract which started at the end of Feb 2006.

Both of these services are fully computerised and able to respond very fast by using 

the latest hand-held equipment connected in real time to the Customer Contact Centre.

BV203 Percentage change in 

the average number of 

families which include 

dependent children  or a 

pregnant woman, placed

in temporary 

accommodation under 

the homelessness 

legislation in the current 

financial year compared 

with the average from 

the previous year.

Lower 59.2 The council's alternative options scheme have proven to be more successful than 

expected.

BV220 Compliance against the 

Public Library Service 

Standards - [New PI]

Higher -18.75 The Council achieved compliance against the 6 of the 8 (applicable) Public Library 

Service Standards that were included in assessment for 2005/06, but was unable to 

meet all the PLSSs targeted.  Two points were awarded for each fully met standard, 

while PLSS 2 and PLSS 5 were within 5% of target and provided 0.5 points together, 

and a further 0.5 points to recognise progress from previous year awarded for an 

additional PLSS met this year.

BV224a Percentage of the 

non-principal classified 

road network where 

maintenance should be 

considered.  [New PI]

Lower 340.53 Due to a different method of surveying (SCANNER machine surveys) as a result of the 

new definition, by the LB of Hammersmith & Fulham, the results obtained in 2005/06 

vary significantly from previous years (which were based on visual surveys).  The 

historical results BV97 are therefore not comparable to BV224.  Targets that were set 

in the 2004/05 returns were improvements based on previous data on road condition 

by visual surveys, and are therefore different to the new data produced by SCANNER 

machine surveys.

BV224b Percentage of the 

unclassified road 

network where structural

maintenance should be 

considered. [New PI]

Lower 3950 Due to a different method of surveying (SCANNER machine surveys) as a result of the 

new definition, by the LB of Hammersmith & Fulham, the results obtained in 2005/06 

vary significantly from previous years (which were based on visual surveys).  The 

historical results BV97 are therefore not comparable to BV224.  Targets that were set 

in the 2004/05 returns were improvements based on previous data on road condition 

by visual surveys, and are therefore different to the new data produced by SCANNER 

machine surveys.

Local11 Average time taken to 

determine all planning 

applications (weeks)

Lower 61.87 The outturn for 2004/2005 sees a continuance of the steady improvement in average 

times taken to process all planning applications. However, there is still a small legacy 

of applications that have taken far beyond the statutory 8 weeks that continue to skew

results for BV110.

Appendix 2b

Page 361



BVPI Description Prefered

Outcome

 Variance Comments

THI019 Proportion of people 

under 25 claiming 

unemployment related 

benefits

Lower 19.14 This target has not been achieved for 2005/6. Nationally in the last year there has 

been slight increase in the claimant count unemployment rate overall and this has 

been reflected in labour market trends in Tower Hamlets. Tower Hamlets continues to 

have one of the highest claimant count unemployment rates in London amongst the 

16-24 year olds. Almost 30% of JSA claimants are in this age group and since April 05 

the claimant count unemployment rate has increased by 3 percentage points. Recently 

published labour force projections by the GLA confirm the continued growth in the 

borough's working age population. These projections also indicate that economic 

activity rates amongst the 16-24 year olds continue to be lower than the London 

average.  Reducing unemployment amongst this age group continues to be a priority 

for this council. The adopted Regeneration Strategy Action Plan identifies the need to 

improve the transition from education to work, improve resident's competitiveness and 

to increase access to employment for target groups such as the 16-24 year olds. 

Research completed in 2005/6 has also increased our understanding of the 

characteristics of claimants and patterns of recurrent unemployment. Key aspects of 

our local area agreements focus on employment issues. The council will continue to 

strive to seek a reduction in this high level of unemployment and will continue to set 

ambitious targets.

Appendix 2b

Page 362



 
APPENDIX 3 
 
Workforce Matters in Local Authority Service Contracts 
 
 
On 13th March 2003, the ODPM issued a statement on Staff Transfers in the 
Public Sector along with a Code of Practice. Tower Hamlets has embraced 
this and reviewed its contract letting procedures to ensure full compliance with 
the requirements under the new code of practice. The Council’s policy 
requires companies bidding for contracts to indicate whether TUPE applies in 
light of their tender and proposals for performance of the services.  
 
Where TUPE applies to a Contract, then the Instructions to Firms Tendering 
obligate the successful contractor to comply with the ODPM Guidance. The 
contract conditions also obligate the contractor to supply information in order 
for the Council to monitor the Contract, which would include the Contractor 
providing documentation to showing that it is complying with the ODPM 
Guidance. 
 
In addition, the Council requests (in the form of a Method Statement) how 
contractors will ensure that they will comply with the Guidance. The Method 
Statement forms part of the contractual terms and conditions so that if the 
Contractor fails to comply, then the Council could take legal action against the 
Contractor for breach. 
  

Page 363



Page 364

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item  
 
 

 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

 
Council Meeting 

 
Wednesday 21 June, 2006 

 
Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny 

 
Report of the Head of Research and Scrutiny 

 
 
 
1. Report 

 
1.1 Under the Council’s constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Committee must provide 

Council with an annual report that documents its activities over the past year. 
 

1.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered and approved its annual report at its 
meeting on 4 April 2006.  The annual report is enclosed with the agenda papers. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Council is asked to note the annual report from Overview and Scrutiny. 

 
 

3 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 
 

3.1 The annual report details the activities of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee over 
the past year.  This report does not have any significant financial implications. 

 
 
4 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 By virtue of Section 21 Local Government Act 2000 the Council has a duty to deliver 

effective and robust overview and scrutiny of the discharge of executive functions 
through the medium of one or more Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
4.2 Article 6 of the Constitution provides that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee must 

report annually to the Council on its work and this report fulfils that obligation. 
 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 365



Page 366

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
May 2006 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 367



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

2

Index 
 
 
 Page 
 
Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets 
 

3

 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Cllr Alan Amos, Chair 
 

5

 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity  
Cllr Julian Sharpe 
 

9

 
Learning Achievement and Leisure  
Cllr Louise Alexander  
 

10

 
Excellent Public Services 
Cllr Marian Williams  
 

12

 
Health 
Cllr Julia Mainwaring 
 

13

 
Living Safely  
Cllr Abdul Aziz Sardar 
 

15

 
Living Well  
Cllr Salim Ullah  
 

16

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 368



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

3

Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny looks at how the Council and its partners deliver services so that they 
meet local needs and contribute to the overall vision in the borough's Community Plan. It 
also monitors the decisions made by the Council's Cabinet to make sure that they are robust 
and provide good value for money. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny also has powers to review and scrutinise local health services and 
make recommendations to NHS bodies.  It can also consider other issues of concern to local 
people, including services provided by other organisations.   It then advises the Cabinet, 
Council and sometimes other partners, on how their policies and services can be improved. 
 
Membership 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee coordinates all Overview and Scrutiny work.  It has 
eight councillors reflecting the overall political balance of the Council during 2004/05.  There 
are five Labour councillors, two Liberal Democrat councillors and one Conservative 
councillor. 
  
As well as the councillors, there are five other people who sit on the Committee.  They have 
specific responsibilities for education.  There are two representatives appointed by the 
Anglican and Roman Catholic Dioceses. There are also two parent governors. Each of these 
representatives can contribute to any matters discussed by the Committee but they can only 
vote on education issues. The final member is a non-voting representative of the Muslim 
community for education issues.  The decision to have this position was a local one in 
recognition of the large Muslim community in the borough. 
  
Scrutiny Chair and Leads 
The Chair of the Committee in 2005/06 was Councillor Alan Amos. The Chair oversees the 
work programme of the committee as well as taking a lead on monitoring the Council's 
budget. 
 
There are six 'scrutiny leads': one for each of the themes in the Tower Hamlets Community 
Plan, with a further lead on health issues.  The Scrutiny Leads were: 
• Cllr Julian Sharpe (Labour) for “creating and sharing prosperity” focusing on bringing 

investment into the borough and ensuring residents and businesses benefit from 
growing economic prosperity  

• Cllr Louise Alexander (Liberal Democrat) for “learning, achievement and leisure” 
focusing on raising educational aspirations, expectations and achievement, providing 
a wide range of arts and leisure, and celebrating the diversity of the community 

• Cllr Marian Williams (Liberal Democrat) for “excellent public services” focusing on 
improving public services to make sure they represent good value for money and 
meet local needs 

• Cllr Julia Mainwaring (Labour) for “health” focusing on improving local health services 
and the co-ordination of different health service providers within the borough 

• Cllr Abdul Aziz Sardar (Labour) for “living safely” focusing on reducing crime, making 
people feel safer and creating a more secure and cleaner environment  

• Cllr Salim Ullah (Labour) for “living well” focusing on improving housing and social 
care  

 
The Scrutiny Leads actively promote the work of Overview and Scrutiny with residents, 
partners and other stakeholders.  They also pick up any relevant issues on behalf of the 
Committee as a whole and led the working groups within their theme. 

Page 369



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

4

What does Overview and Scrutiny do? 
The Committee:  
• looks at how the Council is performing by monitoring key strategies and plans 
• looks at the Council’s budget and how it uses its resources 
• sets up time-limited working groups to look at issues in depth and make proposals for 

change. Suggestions for topics may come from elected Members, full Council, the 
Cabinet or from local organisations and residents. 

• considers decisions made by the Cabinet that are ‘called in’.  This happens if there is 
concern about the decision or what information was considered 

• reviews briefly the reports that are going to Cabinet for decision and raises any 
concerns. 

 
Because the Committee has such a broad responsibility, it focuses on a number of key 
priorities each year.  These make up an annual work programme for each of the Scrutiny 
Leads.  For each area there is usually one in-depth review, as well as a number of shorter 
pieces of work.  
 
Health Scrutiny 
The Government has given local councils specific responsibilities to scrutinise health 
services. The Health Scrutiny Panel was set up to do this and can look at any matter about 
health services within the borough including hospital and GP services, health promotion and 
prevention.  This includes the way that health services are planned, how services are 
provided and how NHS organisations consult with local people.  
 
Under the Healthcare Commission's new Annual Healthcheck for all NHS trusts, the Health 
Scrutiny Panel can comment on local Trust's declarations against 24 Core Standards.  These 
cover seven areas: safety, clinical and cost effectiveness, governance, patient focus, 
accessible and responsive care, care environment and amenities and public health. There is 
also a duty on local health services to consult with the Health Scrutiny Panel if they are 
making substantial changes to services. 
 
Annual Report 
This report provides a brief summary of the work of Overview and Scrutiny in 2005/06. Each 
member of the Committee outlines the work that they have undertaken both in the reviews 
that they have led and also their work on the Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 370



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

5

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair 
Councillor Alan Amos 
 
 
This is the second year since we changed our arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny in 
Tower Hamlets.  Our arrangements include: 
• a single co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
• five Scrutiny Leads scrutinising the Community Plan themes and one for Health 

matters 
• pre-decision scrutiny of Cabinet reports 
• performance monitoring by considering the Tower Hamlets Index, Strategic Plan and 

Equalities Action Plan. 
• a more robust call-in procedure 
 
We agreed a challenging work programme in July 2005.  Despite the Scrutiny year being 
slightly shorter because of the local elections, I believe we have delivered on the majority of 
it. Over the year, we monitored our progress to make sure we remained on track to complete 
our work. 
 
Performance Monitoring 
We monitor the Tower Hamlets Index (THI) every two months and twice a year the Council’s 
Strategic Plan and Equalities Action Plan. As we are the only formal councillor forum that 
does this, we take this role seriously.  We believe this worked effectively and helped 
Overview and Scrutiny understand and comment on the wider performance of services: a 
key part of improving the quality of life of local people.  Next year we plan to strengthen our 
performance management by tracking the action taken to address Members’ comments and 
concerns. 
 
We also introduced a new session at Committee: the Scrutiny Spotlight.  All directorates and 
lead Members attended to discuss the performance and main challenges facing their 
services.  This included a discussion with the Leader and Chief Executive at the December 
meeting around the Strategic Plan and the challenges ahead for the Council and borough.  
This prompted considerable discussion, debate and questions from Committee Members.  
Although this worked reasonably well, I hope we can improve the discussion and debate 
among councillors, rather than with officers, next year.  
 
We also considered the Council’s annual Corporate Complaints report and noted the 
progress in the handling of complaints.  We agreed to monitor this every six months as we 
felt it was a critical issue and could usefully inform the Scrutiny work programme. 
 
We also received an update on the new Members’ Enquiries system.  All councillors were 
pleased to see the improved performance in responding to Members’ enquiries. I feel that 
this is an important aspect of representing constituents and timely responses are essential to 
the work of councillors.  We will receive an update every six months on the system and will 
be monitoring it closely. 
 

Page 371



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

6

Policy Framework 
Within the Council’s Policy and Budget Framework there are a number of key policy 
documents that set out how the Council will act. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
consider these before Council agrees them. We discussed the following Policy documents 
this year:  
 
• Tower Hamlets and City of London Youth Justice Plan 2005/06 

The Committee supported the Plan and noted the many improvements made and the 
more robust monitoring and evaluation.  We acknowledged the work done with 
parents, but felt that this needed to be given greater emphasis, as it was an essential 
part of our strategies to reduce offending and anti-social behaviour by young people. 
 

• Lifelong Learning Service Three Year Development Plan 2005-2008 
We welcomed the Plan and particularly the Education Directorate's positive proposals 
to address the low take up of the service by Bangladeshi residents and by men. The 
Committee also welcomed the proposals to improve the low skills base of the majority 
of the adult population of the borough so that we can all contribute to and share in the 
improving local economy.  

 
• Food Law Enforcement Plan 

We noted the step improvements in the service and supported the action to recruit 
local people as one of the ways of tackling the difficulty of recruiting Environmental 
Health officers nationwide. 
 

Scrutiny of the Budget 
We considered the Council’s budget at four of our meetings this year.   
 
In August we noted the substantially different financial climate that the Council was now 
moving into, with much greater pressure on resources, despite the significant service 
challenges ahead.  The Committee discussed and supported the Council's approach of 
planning on the basis of existing resources and seeking efficiency savings to manage 
budgetary pressures. The Committee noted that the Council’s budget setting processes and 
management were felt to be robust and effective by the Audit Commission.   
 
In October, we considered the interim budget report and were particularly concerned at the 
Government’s proposals on Grant Distribution and the negative impact this would have on 
the borough's overall support from Government. 

 
In January and February, we discussed the Revenue Budget for 2006/07.  We welcomed the 
improved final settlement figures for the borough but noted the significant charge on local 
people by the Mayor of London to pay for the Olympic Games.  In its budget, we sought 
assurance that the Council would use resources to increase recycling services for local 
people rather than pay Landfill Tax, wherever possible.  Cabinet reassured us that they 
would do this. 
 

Page 372



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

7

Pre-decision scrutiny 
We can submit issues of concern to Cabinet before it takes a decision.  I feel we have 
strengthened this over the year and commented on 23 Cabinet reports.  This included the 
reports on: 
• Regeneration Strategy  
• Rich Mix Cultural Centre (on 2 occasions) 
• Waste Collection and Street Collection Contract (on 2 occasions) 
• OFSTED Inspection Report of Youth and Community Services 
• Revised Alternative Dispute Resolution Scheme 
• Local Development Framework 
• Open Space Strategy 
 
Although our questions and concerns have not changed a Cabinet decision, they have 
provided further information and clarified the reasons for the decisions. More generally, pre-
decision scrutiny has encouraged and prompted debate in Cabinet on the reports.  This has 
been a really positive step in the role of Overview and Scrutiny and has made the Committee 
much more proactive in its work.  
 
Call-in 
The Committee has considered eight call-ins this year.  This is an increase from the four in 
2004/05.   The Call-ins considered by the Committee were: 
• Rich Mix Cultural Centre (two reports in Part Two business) 
• Waste collection and street cleansing contract 2005-2017 - Selection of Preferred 

Bidder (Part Two business) 
• Watney Market Underground Car Park Lease To Royal London Hospital 
• Revised Alternative Dispute Resolution Scheme 
• Development Brief on Furze Street 
• Open Space Strategy  
• Disposal of Bow Lock (Part Two business) 
 
The debate and discussion on call-ins was robust and rigorous at Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  We confirmed one decision (Watney Market Underground Car Park) with the 
Cabinet member agreeing to look at maintenance and consider further improvements.  We 
asked Cabinet to reconsider the other seven.  Although Cabinet reconfirmed its decision on 
all the call-ins, they took account of our comments.  For example, on the Alternative Dispute 
Resolution Scheme, they agreed to provide a plain English version of the scheme and 
clarified a number of issues including withholding of service charges, to keep the scheme 
under review and that Members should agree any significant policy changes. In January, 
Cabinet accepted some of the comments of the Committee on the Open Spaces Strategy 
and incorporated them into the Action Plan.  This included those around maintenance of 
horticultural standards and the importance of partnership working and involving local people 
in the care and maintenance of our open spaces. 
 
Co-opted and Appointed Representatives 
The Committee’s co-opted and appointed representatives made valuable contributions 
throughout the year not only at Overview and Scrutiny Committee, particularly when 
considering education issues, but also through our working groups on the Tower Hamlets 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) and school exclusions. They all 
have good links with local communities and bring a different perspective to the meetings. 
Next year we will look to connect the representatives into some of the wider structures such 
as Parent Governor Forums and the Interfaith Forum.  I believe this will strengthen further 
their role and contribution. 

Page 373



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

8

 
Improved communications 
We have significantly improved how and when we communicate with Members, Officers and 
the public in the last year.  Regular use has been made of the weekly Members Bulletin to 
keep members uptodate with the Committee, Health Scrutiny Panel and scrutiny reviews.  
We raised the profile of scrutiny among officers by making regular use of the Manager’s 
Briefing and the staff newsletter, Pulling Together.  This has ensured that Council Officers 
are well informed about the scrutiny work programme, upcoming reviews, review findings, 
and how they can assist Scrutiny Members and Officers when necessary.   
 
We have also made a concerted effort to communicate more with the public during 2005/6.  
We have used the Council’s newspaper Eastend Life, and our Scrutiny web pages to ensure 
Tower Hamlets residents are informed of the work scrutiny Members are undertaking.  We 
also encourage residents to participate in scrutiny reviews and suggest potential issues to 
scrutinise.  We will continue to prioritise how and when we communicate with residents so 
that they are aware of the scrutiny role and how it can improve local services. 
 
A Good Practice Example  
We introduced Challenge Sessions this year to give Members more opportunity to discuss 
policy development or challenge services in an informal setting. These were particularly 
productive and were recognised by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation as a good practice 
example of scrutiny in their publication ‘Frontline councillors and decision making’.  They felt 
that Challenge Sessions allowed members to ‘quickly check out the robustness of services 
and contribute to policy development to improve services’.  
 
Officer Training course 
In the last year, the Scrutiny Policy Team has run an internal training course "Overview and 
Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets" open to all officers.  This provides a better understanding of how 
Overview and Scrutiny works locally and its impact on service delivery and improvement.  
We feel this course has raised the profile of the Scrutiny across the Council and made 
officers aware of their role in supporting the Scrutiny work programme.  We will continue to 
offer this training course as part of the Corporate Training Programme. 
 
Checking out our progress 
Twice a year we monitor the recommendations we have made, not just those at committee 
but also those from our reviews and other investigations.  Services are asked to provide an 
update so we can see whether progress is being made.  The latest monitoring indicates that 
nearly all of our recommendations since July 2004 are being acted on or achieved.  Next 
year I hope we will revisit one or two of our reviews and consider their impact in more detail. 
 
We also held a session for all Scrutiny Leads that was valuable in identifying the common 
issues and challenges we face and suggestions to improve the way we work.  We will look to 
hold these meetings more regularly through the year.  We also held a Scrutiny Showcase in 
February where we heard about Overview and Scrutiny in Bracknell Forest.  This 
demonstrated that Member-led scrutiny can take a ward issue (in this case about abandoned 
and untaxed cars) and, through the scrutiny process, have significant impact across a 
borough. We had a useful and interesting discussion around this and in particular how to 
involve frontline councillors in Overview and Scrutiny in future years. 
 

Page 374



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

9

Conclusion 
Overall, I believe we have made further real progress in embedding scrutiny in Tower 
Hamlets.  The proposed "community calls for action" that are being proposed by Government 
will give scrutiny a more direct connection to local communities and their concerns and is 
something that I welcome.  I am sure this will provide a further catalyst to strengthening our 
Overview and Scrutiny process. 
 
 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity  
Cllr Julian Sharpe 
 
 
Tower Hamlets is facing unprecedented change and development and, as Scrutiny Lead for 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity, I wanted to focus on the way that local communities benefit 
from the development in the borough.  I looked at two issues: Planning Obligations (or S.106 
agreements) and the Barker Review (the Government's proposals for changing planning 
obligations in the future). 
 
Planning Obligations 
At our session on Planning Obligations, we were reassured that the Council has carried out 
extensive work to improve its policy and processes for these agreements and will continue to 
ensure transparency and accountability.  We particularly welcomed that all the agreements 
are now available on the Council's website. 
 
We wanted to see how local people could influence the type of projects that planning 
obligations supported in their areas and were pleased that there would be greater community 
involvement in the planning process, particularly through Local Area Partnerships.  This 
would help determine the priorities for key development sites in the borough 
 
We identified three areas for action: a member training and development session on what the 
changes would mean (held in November 2005), a further challenge session on the Barker 
Review and that the Council continues to strengthen community and member involvement in 
Area Action Plans and other planning documents that provide the context for achieving 
planning obligations.  
 
Barker Review 
Following the Barker Review into Affordable Housing, the Government announced proposals 
to scale back planning contributions to cover direct impacts and affordable housing only.  
They also suggested a Planning Gain Supplement that would be paid to Central Government 
with a share of the development gain given back to local councils. 
 
The Working Group backed the Council's concerns about these proposals because the 
impacts of development are always wider than an immediate site and can indirectly affect 
many people: traffic management and open space are good examples.  We felt that it was 
very important to capture the benefits locally, since it was local people that were likely to be 
most affected by any development.  
 
We also expressed our concern at the quantity and quality of affordable housing being built 
in the borough and felt that this was something that should be considered for a scrutiny 
review next year. 
 

Page 375



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

10

I took a keen interest in monitoring the Creating and Sharing Prosperity performance 
indicators in the Tower Hamlets Index.  A key issue raised last year was the late payment of 
invoices by the Council. I monitored this through the Tower Hamlets Index and am please to 
report that performance has improved significantly and will meet its target of 83% of 
undisputed invoices paid within 30 days.  I hope performance will continue to improve. 
  
Conclusion 
As Scrutiny Lead for Creating and Sharing Prosperity, I think we have looked at two priorities 
that are critical if our communities are to share in the benefits of the significant development 
throughout the borough.  
 
 
Learning Achievement and Leisure  
Cllr Louise Alexander  
 
 
The Learning, Achievement and Leisure theme covers a wide range of issues including play 
services, schools, lifelong learning, sports opportunities and access to the arts.  
 
Open Spaces 
I initially sought to review the implementation of the Open Spaces Strategy, and met with the 
Director of Environment and Culture and the Director of Housing. From these meetings, it 
became apparent that such a review would be too early, as the Open Spaces Strategy was 
still in development and had not yet been submitted to Cabinet.  The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee did, however, consider a call-in of the Open Spaces Strategy when it was 
submitted to Cabinet.  While this call-in was accepted unanimously by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet only went so far as to welcome the call-in, rather than accepting 
its suggestions.   Following Cabinet's consideration, information was circulated addressing 
some of the issues raised by the call-in, but as this did not address all the points raised I also 
had a further meeting with officers to pursue these issues.  I think the implementation of the 
Open Spaces Strategy should be part of the future work programme of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  
 
In initial interviews to find topics to review, I met with the Head of Access and Inclusion and 
the Early Years Co-ordinator.  They provided me with an overview of the Early Years service. 
I came to the conclusion that good progress was being made and that a scrutiny review 
would not add significant value.  This was confirmed to me by a number of awards in this 
area including a National Quality Award for the Children’s Information Service and a 
Surestart award for inclusive practice for the "birthday parties" that are run to enable many 
statutory and voluntary organisations to bring services to families in a fun environment. 
 
I commissioned a study of the number of children living in overcrowded conditions in different 
areas of the borough.  This showed that 63% live with a shortage of one room or more in 
their household, affecting their well-being, health and ability to study.   
 
School Exclusions 
The School Exclusions Scrutiny Panel examined recent trends in school exclusions and what 
action the Council and schools are taking to address this. We also considered the support 
available to schools, pupils and their families.   As part of the review we considered a number 
of case studies of school exclusion and visited a local school.  
 

Page 376



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

11

Although relatively short, the review was useful in considering the Council's approach and it 
was clear that prevention was the most effective way of reducing school exclusions.  We felt 
that the culture of the school was an important factor in encouraging good behaviour and 
were impressed with the impact that the Behaviour Improvement Programme (BIP) was 
having in our schools.  We were concerned that some schools opted out of accepting pupils 
that had previously been excluded and this placed extra pressure on those who did.  
Exclusions represented a costly and difficult intervention and we saw that early action helped 
avoid this and reduced the disruption to both schools and classrooms.  
 
From our review we identified a number of areas for action including: 
• the importance of monitoring exclusions data and responding quickly to new trends 
• the need for schools to involve parents in behaviour management 
• rolling out the BIP to all schools, particularly the Transition Worker project and Lead 

Professional and making sure that the lessons and improvements were shared across 
schools. 

 
Tower Hamlets Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education 
I led a challenge session with the Tower Hamlets Standing Advisory Council for Religious 
Education (SACRE).  The challenge session initially explained the brief of the SACRE, in 
advising the Council on religious education including teaching methods, materials and 
training for teachers.  This was particularly pertinent as our review followed the publication of 
a national Ofsted report on good practice.  The Panel: 
• welcomed the increasing numbers of student taking RE 
• stressed the need to promote the work of SACRE with parents, teachers and schools 
• raised concerns about the future monitoring arrangements for Religious Education 

(RE) 
 
We recognised the good work of the Tower Hamlets SACRE in securing the confidence of 
local faith communities and that it should be promoted more widely.  The session also 
promoted SACRE's understanding of the Council’s role, and accepted that the Council would 
be unable to pay for a post of RE Advisor since schools would not fund the post.  The 
Council did agree to fund the schemes of work for the new syllabus drawn up by the SACRE.  
The Panel also felt that the potential for joint work with neighbouring boroughs should also be 
explored.  The representatives from the SACRE felt it was a very good session and the 
Council accepted all of the recommendations of the Panel. 
 
Our Co-opted and Appointed Representatives 
Last year we highlighted the need to build on the skills and knowledge of the Committee’s 
co-opted and appointed representatives.  This year we undertook some specific work with 
the parent-governor representatives.  I worked with the Education service to agree a 
package of measures including: 
• involvement in the Director of Education's termly meeting with the Chairs of Governors 
• additional information from Governors Services 
• participating in the Member Development Programme 
• organising short briefing sessions every 2-3 months with Education services before the 

meetings of Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  These will start in 2006/07.  
 
At Overview and Scrutiny Committee, I was particularly active in using the pre-decision 
process to raise concerns with Cabinet before it took decisions. Our concerns did not change 
any of the decisions, though they did elicit more information about the reasons for decisions 
and the implications of different courses of action 
 

Page 377



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

12

I also received further information about the progress on the Scrutiny Youth Services Review 
that was undertaken in 2004/05.  This showed good progress in implementing the 
recommendations. I have also suggested that Overview and Scrutiny considers revisiting this 
review to look in detail at progress next year.  
 
Conclusion 
I was impressed with the dedication of the Education Department, who are turning around a 
difficult situation with regard to a population, the majority of whom are from deprived and 
overcrowded backgrounds.  
 
 
Excellent Public Services 
Cllr Marian Williams  
 
 
My role as Scrutiny Lead for Excellent Public Services is one of the most broad reaching, as 
it covers all Council services and those provided by our partners. 
 
A Partnership for Success 
This year’s Excellent Public Services Scrutiny Review focused on the role of ward councillors 
in the Tower Hamlets Partnership. I think this was very timely given the recent Government 
proposals for "community calls for action" and measures to enhance the community 
leadership role of ward councillors. 
 
The review considered the contribution of local councillors to the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
including the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs).  As part of this, we undertook a survey of 
councillors, partners and officers supporting the Partnership.  This showed that councillors 
bring real benefits to the Partnership including local knowledge and helping with community 
engagement.  We identified a number of challenges however, including how to develop the 
capacity, skills, expertise and knowledge of ward councillors. We agreed a number of 
suggestions to improve their contribution including a "job description" for councillors, 
monitoring the Local Area Agreement through LAP performance indicators, clarifying the 
accountability arrangements of the Area Directors and more support to councillors to develop 
their community leadership role. 
 
These issues are not unique to Tower Hamlets and apply to partnership working across the 
country. This should not deter us however, but encourage us to seek ambitious solutions that 
further make the Tower Hamlets Partnership a "partnership for success." 
 
The job description has already been agreed and is being used as part of the framework for 
the induction process for all councillors next year. I hope it will provide greater focus on the 
part that councillors can play in representing their constituents and holding local services to 
account. 
 
I had hoped to look at the impact that new Safer Neighbourhood Teams were having but it 
wasn't possible to achieve this.  Given the importance of crime and anti-social behaviour to 
local people, I suggest that this should be given priority for an early review in the Overview 
and Scrutiny work programme for 2006. 
 

Page 378



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

13

Access for Disabled People to Council Services 
I also monitored the progress in implementing previous Excellent Public Services reviews.  
This includes last year's review that looked at access for disabled people to public services.  
I am very pleased to say that most of the suggestions were not only agreed but have been 
implemented.  This includes for example, considerable changes to the Council's website to 
make it more accessible to disabled people. 
 
Conclusion 
Excellent Public Services cuts across all Council Directorates and many partners.  As the 
Scrutiny Lead, I raised and considered issues over a wide range of Council activity.   I think 
that the review around the Tower Hamlets Partnership lays important foundations for 
developing the leadership role of ward councillors, not only within the Partnership but also 
within the Council and local communities. 
 
 
Health 
Cllr Julia Mainwaring  
 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel undertakes the Council’s functions under the Health and Social 
Care Act, 2001.  As well as the councillors, the Panel co-opted representatives from the local 
PPI Forums to help promote partnership working and I would like to thank Mrs Kathleen 
Banks from the Barts and The London Patient and Public Involvement (PPI) Forum and Mr 
Nuruz Jaman from the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust PPI Forum for their contributions.  
I would also like to thank Councillor Khaled Khan who chaired the Panel from May 2005 until 
February 2006. 
 
Choosing Health 
Our major work this year was to look at the Government's Choosing Health agenda - one 
that marks a significant shift in giving health services a more preventative focus.  We chose 
to explore the implications for the Council, partners and local people through a case study of 
obesity services for young people.  This is a significant national and local issue: a recent 
House of Commons Select Committee predicting that it would soon take over from smoking 
as the number one health priority. 
 
We were successful in bidding for a national Health Scrutiny Action Learning project - one of 
only nine nationally.  The Panel ran focus groups with local people in two LAPs, as well as 
groups with young people and held an innovative breakfast seminar at the world renowned 
St John's Bread and Wine with service providers. We also held a session that focused on an 
innovative project - BEST - that takes a whole family approach to changing diet and activity 
levels. 
 
All the sessions were very positive and agreed on the importance of parents and schools in 
encouraging diet and exercise, the opportunities for promoting healthy lifestyles with the 
2012 Olympics and a range of suggestions that the Council and local health services could 
consider from using local images in promotional campaigns to action on fast food.  
 

Page 379



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

14

Our headline findings are that:  
• there needs to be a much more joined up approach to and the Local Area Agreement 

provides an excellent opportunity to consider how we do this. 
• much greater monitoring information is required to evaluate the impact of services and 

initiatives. 
• there are a wide range of agencies and organisations that can have an impact on 

health prevention: it is not just health services but the Council, major employers, 
voluntary and community organisations that have a significant role in creating the right 
conditions for tackling obesity. 

• long term sustainable funding for initiatives is vital. 
 
Our recommendations are being developed and will be submitted to Cabinet and NHS 
partners in the summer. 
 
The Annual Healthcheck 
The Panel now has an important new role in commenting on the local NHS trust declarations 
to the Healthcare Commission against 24 Core Standards.  These cover seven areas: safety, 
clinical and cost effectiveness, governance, patient focus, accessible and responsive care, 
care environment and amenities and public health.  The Panel met with all local trusts to 
consider their draft declarations in October 2005 and then again to look at their final 
declarations in March 2006.  I am glad to report that between the draft and final declarations 
all the trusts undertook significant action so that they could all declare that they were 
compliant with all 24 Core Standards. 
 
We raised issues around the use of interpreters and the ethnic monitoring of service users 
and again I am pleased that they all responded positively to our comments and are taking 
significant measures to address them. 
 
A new Strategic Health Authority for London 
The Panel was consulted about Government proposals to change the boundaries of the 
London Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusts.  We felt that it was very 
important that the PCTs matched up to local councils to promote partnership working and 
accountability.  We felt however, that one strategic health authority for London was a good 
way of rationalising the structure across London and connecting better into regional 
government such as the Mayor of London and Greater London Assembly. I am pleased to 
report that this is what the Government is considering implementing. 
 
We also received updates on the reviews from previous years.  Last year's review of sexual 
health services for young people showed good progress with the Council, PCT and others in 
adopting and implementing the recommendations.  We were concerned however that long 
term sustainable funding was still to be secured for some of the projects. 
 
Conclusion 
It has been another positive year for the Health Scrutiny Panel.  Not only have we conducted 
an ambitious review but responded flexibly to the major demands of the Annual Healthcheck 
process.  Next year we need to think further about deepening our relationship with the local 
NHS trusts.  Health inequalities is a significant issue within the borough and the Panel is 
considering adopting this as a `golden thread' through its work over the coming years. 
 
 

Page 380



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

15

Living Safely 
Cllr Abdul Aziz Sardar 
 
 
Living Safely covers two of the top priorities for local people - crime and the environment - 
and I have tried to reflect this in my work this year. 
 
Domestic Violence 
My main review this year was around domestic violence. We had two aims.  The first was to 
raise awareness of domestic violence and the impact that it has on victims and our 
communities. The second was to make recommendations about how the Council and other 
organisations can improve the support to victims of domestic violence.   
 
As part of this, we met with the Council's Domestic Violence Co-ordinator, a small group of 
service users and organisations that provide support to victims of domestic violence.  I would 
like to thank the five victims of domestic violence who attended and contributed to the 
second session of the working group. Their courage and willingness to talk openly about their 
experiences was moving for the members of the working group and officers present.  
 
As our report shows, we found that there had been significant progress in providing support 
to domestic violence victims by both the Council and its partners.    We identified a number of 
areas that could be improved and recommended that the Council should: 
• make sure our corporate policy and framework fits with the changing national good 

practice. 
• make it easier for victims to report domestic violence and receive support 
• improve information about services and the standards that can be expected. 
• do more work with the perpetrators of domestic violence to change their behaviour for 

agencies and organisations  
 
Cleaner Safer Places 
The Council's Best value Review of Cleaner Safer Places was discussed in detail at 
Committee in December.  We raised many issues particularly around recycling, waste 
collection and keeping the streets clean.  Although there has been good progress in putting 
the many aspects of the review into practice, we felt that further improvements were needed 
around recycling and the facilities available to keep the streets clean. 
 
I also used the pre-decision process to raise concerns about the waste collection contract 
and the selling of a plot of open land.   I think it is important that we continue to raise these 
concerns, so that Cabinet is aware of the views of councillors and local communities about 
their decisions. 
 
Conclusion 
It has been another good year on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee scrutinising Living 
Safely issues. Tackling difficult issues such as domestic violence, as well as issues that 
make the borough a cleaner safer place for local people.  Overall, I think we have made good 
progress and I particularly hope that the Council and its partners can improve further their 
domestic violence services. 
 
 

Page 381



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

16

Living Well  
Cllr Salim Ullah  
 
 
Living Well covers Social Services and Housing, both of which impact on many people in 
Tower Hamlets including some of our most vulnerable residents.   
 
Leaving Care 
I visited the Council's Leaving Care Service in September. The Leaving Care team helps 
young people in the Council’s care prepare for their independence, as well as support once 
they have left care. The service works closely with young people, their carers and social 
workers and helps young people pursue education or training, obtain employment and 
suitable housing.  It is a multi-disciplinary service for care-leavers aged between 16 and 25.  
It includes pathway advisors, specialist posts and an education centre based in Bow. I met 
with staff and service users and included a short presentation by trainees on how the service 
involved young people in developing and managing the service.  I was very impressed by the 
good work of the service.  Later in the year, I also received a briefing about the educational 
attainment of young people in the Council's care that highlighted their achievements and 
shows sustained progress. 
 
Older People's Commissioning Strategy 
I chaired a challenge session on the Council’s Older People’s Commissioning Strategy.  
Although this may sound technical and dry, it does have a real impact on the care and 
support offered to older people.  We heard about how services are increasing their focus on 
the needs and wishes of older people and their carers.  The Strategy was based on a 
partnership approach that brings older people, service providers, the Council and others with 
an interest in older people together to improve the care and support. 
 
We recognised the considerable progress made in recent years in commissioning services 
for older people.   We felt however, that the service must continue to promote a holistic 
approach to support and services for older people, maintain and develop the robust 
monitoring of services and provide further information to service users. 
 
Best Value of Sheltered Housing 
I have recently joined the Steering Group of the Best Value review of Sheltered Housing.  
This is comparing information about the cost and quality of sheltered housing in the borough, 
as well as looking at what we can learn from other councils, Registered Social Landlord and 
private sector providers. The Review will report back in June 2006.  
 
Conclusion 
The Living Well theme is an important one as it includes many of the most vulnerable people 
in our communities.  My work has shown that we have many excellent services, provided by 
the Council and its partners, that are working with local people to provide care and support 
that improves the quality of their life.  
 
 
 

Page 382



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2006 

17

Research and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets 
 
 
 
The Research and Scrutiny team works with councillors, officers and other partners to: 
 
• I dentify issues and good practice for exploration 
• M onitor and measure performance and data 
• P ublicise and disseminate information and research 
• R eview and scrutinise services and policies 
• O ffer practical and evidence based recommendations 
• V alue and seek the opinions of residents and stakeholders 
• E valuate and track progress of recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you want to find out more about Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets, please contact 
the Scrutiny Policy Team:  
 
 
Telephone: 0207 364 4873 
  0207 364 4636 
  0207 364 4767 
 
email:   scrutiny @towerhamlets.gov.uk 
web:   towerhamlets.gov.uk/scrutiny 

or write to: 
 
Scrutiny Policy Team 
4th Floor, Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London 
E14 2BG 
 

 

Page 383



Page 384

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

COUNCIL 
 

Date 
 
21 June 2006 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda Item No. 

Report of 
 
Director of Development & Renewal 
 
Originating Officer(s) 
 
Bob Bennett – Crossrail Project Director 
Owen Whalley – Head of Major Project 
Development 
 

Title 
 
CROSSRAIL: – Petition against 
the 2nd Additional Provisions of 
the Crossrail Bill, published May 
2006 
 
Wards: 
Mile End East 
Bow East 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report briefly updates Members in respect of the current situation on the 

Crossrail project and seeks authority for the Council to submit a second petition 
as set out in Appendix A to this report against the 2nd Additional Provisions to 
the Crossrail Bill published on 9 May 2006. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Council is recommended:- 
 
2.1  That in the judgement of the Council it is expedient for the Council to oppose the 

9 May 2006 Amendment of Provisions to the Crossrail Bill now being promoted 
in the present Session of Parliament. 

 
2.2  That by this resolution the Council consents to such opposition and thereby 

approves the submission and content of the petition against the second tranche 
of Additional Provisions to the Crossrail Bill as set out in Appendix A of this 
report. 

 
2.3  That all necessary steps be taken for the purpose of such opposition and for 

complying with the provisions of section 239 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
2.4  That the Corporate Director (Development and Renewal) be authorised to 

continue negotiations with the Crossrail team in relation to the issues in the 
second petition as set out in Appendix A to this report with a view to resolving 
the Authority’s objections to the Crossrail project and withdrawing in full or in 
part the second petition in the event of a successful outcome to the negotiations. 

 
2.5  That the Corporate director, (Development & Renewal), be authorised to 

negotiate and resolve matters arising consequential to the Authority’s objections 
to the Crossrail project insofar as the specific authority of the Council is not 
required. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (SECTION 97) 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS RFEPORT 
 

Brief Description of Background papers Tick if copies supplied for register If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

Crossrail published reports and papers.  Owen Whalley Ext.5227 

Agenda Item 12.1

Page 385



 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Crossrail project comprises a proposed new cross London railway running 

west-east through Central London and Tower Hamlets connecting directly with 
existing rail routes to Reading, Maidenhead and Heathrow airport in the west, 
and to Shenfield and Abbey Wood in the east. 

 
3.2 The central section of the proposed railway including Tower Hamlets will 

comprise new twin bore tunnels.  The tunnels will enter the borough from the 
west under Spitalfields towards Whitechapel where a new integrated station is 
proposed.  At a point under Stepney Green the route will fork.  One set of 
tunnels will continue to the northeast under Mile End Park and Bow before 
emerging at the surface at Pudding Mill Lane in the London Borough of 
Newham.  The other set of tunnels will head south-east-wards towards the Isle 
of Dogs where a new station is proposed.  On average the tunnels will be some 
30 – 35 metres below the surface. 

 
3.3 Two stations are proposed for the borough.  One at Whitechapel, linking with the 

existing London Underground station and one at the Isle of Dogs, just north of 
the Canary Wharf estate.  In addition to these stations, the tunnels will be 
connected to the surface by vertical shafts, in order to provide access, 
emergency escape routes or ventilation.  These shafts are located at 
approximately 1km intervals in order to meet current fire safety requirements.  
The promoters of Crossrail also originally proposed to use Hanbury Street in 
Spitalfields as one of the tunnel boring machine launch sites, but following a 
Ministerial announcement in March the tunnelling methodology has now been 
revised to eliminate the use of Hanbury Street for this purpose.  It is now 
proposed that the launch sites for the tunnels through the borough will be from 
Pudding Mill Lane and at the Limmo peninsula (both in the London Borough of 
Newham). 

 
3.4 Since the Crossrail proposals were first published for consultation early in 2004, 

the Council has supported the project in principle on the basis of the strategic 
benefits to be gained from the scheme both as an improvement to the existing 
public transport network and to stimulate the further regeneration of the borough 
and London as a whole.  This support has always been dependent on the 
provision of stations at Whitechapel and the Isle of Dogs.  The Council has 
consistently and strenuously sought to minimise and mitigate the environmental 
impacts that will arise from the construction of the railway. 

 
3.5 The Crossrail project is being promoted by the company known as Cross 

London Rail Links Limited (CLRL), which is a joint venture company owned by 
Transport for London (TfL) and the Department for Transport (DfT).  The project 
is being progressed through a Parliamentary Hybrid Bill procedure which means 
that any objections to the proposals are heard in the first instance by a Select 
Committee of the House of Commons.  The Crossrail Bill was published in 
February 2005 and full Council at it's meeting on the 2nd March 2005 authorised 
the submission of a petition against the Bill, which confirmed the Council's 
support in principle for the project, but set out a number of objections relating to 
the construction of the project.  The most significant objection to the Crossrail 
project was the proposed tunnelling methodology and its associated proposal to 
launch tunnel boring machines from a site from Hanbury Street in Spitalfields. 

 Page 386



3.6 The petition was submitted in September 2005 and was one of 358 eventually 
submitted to the House of Commons.  Petitions were submitted by local 
authorities affected by Crossrail together with a range of other public, private 
and voluntary organisations.  In all there were 84 petitions submitted from Tower 
Hamlets based individuals, organisations or agencies.  The House of Commons 
Select Committee started hearing the petitioners at the end of 2005 and is likely 
to have completed the main part of its work before the rise of Parliament for the 
summer recess.  The Council's petition was heard on the 7th June 2006. 

 
 
4. Current Situation 
 
4.1 The Council's original petition contained 96 clauses which dealt with 35 

individual objections to the Bill's proposals.  Notwithstanding the submission of 
the petition, the Council continued to negotiate with Crossrail in an attempt to 
resolve the Council's objections prior to the petition being heard by the Select 
Committee.  These negotiations have been extremely successful with the result 
that it was considered that only two of the Council's objections remained to be 
put before the Select Committee.  The most significant success in negotiation 
was the adoption by Crossrail of the Council's preferred end to end tunnel 
strategy which removed the need for a tunnelling site in Spitalfields.  It is 
proposed to prepare a full briefing to Members which will set out the outcome of 
negotiations on the original petition points. 

 
4.2 Since the deposit of the Crossrail Bill in February 2005, a number of revisions so 

the original bill proposals have been identified by Crossrail as being necessary 
either in response to design changes or as a response to petition objections.  
Where these revisions involve the acquisition or use of land outside the current 
limits of the Bill it is necessary for the Bill’s promoters (Crossrail) to make 
amendments through Additional Provisions to the Bill.  These amendments are 
submitted to Parliament and are subject to a petition period in the same way as 
the original Bill.  The first tranche of Additional Provisions, was published in 
January 2006 and, so far as the Borough was concerned, the most significant of 
these related to the proposals for Whitechapel Station.  The changes made to 
the station met a number of the Council's objections as set out in the original 
petition in that they provided for a better integrated station design.  Other 
matters had been raised in the Council’s original petition, and there was 
therefore no need for the Council to petition against these first revised 
proposals. 

 
 
5. Issues Raised by 2nd Additional Provisions  
 
5.1 Crossrail has recently published a second set of Additional Provisions as 

proposed further revisions to the existing Bill.  These include a number of new 
issues which will impact on the east of the Borough.  Since the original petition 
does not cover all the matters raised in these 2nd Additional Provisions, the 
Council needs to submit a fresh petition to protect its position before the Select 
Committee.  These Additional Provisions were published on the 9th May 2006 
and the Parliamentary deadline in lodging petitions was the 13 June 2006.  As 
this closing date was before the next meeting of the Council it was necessary to 
submit a second petition within the Parliamentary time-limit subject to approval 
of the Council.  If the Council do not wish to go ahead with the recommendation 
as set out in this report (at paragraph 2) then the petition can be withdrawn. 

 Page 387



5.2 This second set of Additional Provisions impact on two main areas of the 
borough:- 

 
1) Payne Road / Grove Hall Park / The Bow Quarter (Bow East)  - see Plan 1 

attached to this report. 
2) Eleanor Street / Bow Triangle (Mile End East);  -  see Plan 2 attached to this 

report. 
  
5.3. Payne Road / Grove Hall Park / The Bow Quarter 

Crossrail need to divert the existing Ham and Wick sewer to avoid a conflict with 
the proposed running tunnels in the Fairfield Road / Wrexham Road area of 
Bow.  The original proposal aligned the diverted sewer through LB Newham 
using a pumped system.   

 
5.4 The Additional Provisions now propose a shorter sewer diversion from the site 

currently occupied by the McDonalds restaurant in Payne Road (Bow Flyover) 
northward under Grove Hall Park to a site immediately south of the Manhattan 
Building which forms part of the Bow Quarter residential complex.  This would 
be a shorter tunnel and would eliminate the use of a pumped system.  The main 
impacts in the Borough are: - 

 
• McDonalds Restaurant:    Loss of restaurant, but other main impacts would 

arise from lorry movements and noise impacts which may affect adjoining 
uses on Payne and Fairfield Roads and pedestrian and cycle routes. 

• Grove Hall Park:  Proposed use of part of Park as a work site for 6 months 
and vehicular access to and from the site.  This will result in a loss of amenity 
both within the Park itself and to the occupiers of surrounding properties. 

• Manhattan Building, Bow Quarter;  The use of a vacant piece of railway land 
immediately to the south of this Grade II listed residential block as a work site 
is likely to cause significant noise impacts to residents.  

• Blackwall Tunnel:  The use of part of the Blackwall tunnel northern approach 
for night-time working has the potential to cause significant disruption on the 
A12 and adjoining highways. 

 
5.5 Eleanor Street 

Crossrail propose to use part of this site which currently provides the borough's 
only gypsy and traveller’s site for a ventilation shaft for the bored running 
tunnels.  This requires the relocation of the 20 travellers’ pitches. 
 

5.6 The Additional Provisions propose the acquisition of a larger area within the Bow 
Triangle to allow a single decant of the travellers on to a permanent new site.  
This proposal is very welcome to the Council and the travellers.  While details 
about design, noise mitigation etc. are still to be resolved, the Council supports 
the proposal subject to details of the acquisition procedures being resolved, and 
satisfactory noise mitigation being provided to the new travellers' site. 

 
6. Petition Against 2nd Additional Provisions. 
 
6.1 Following discussions with Council Officers, the Council's parliamentary agents 

drafted the Petition as set out in Appendix A to this report.  As was the case with 
the original petition, the Council will continue to negotiate on the points raised in Page 388



the petition in order to mitigate the adverse impact described in sections 5.2 to 
5.5 of the report above.  One of the difficulties the Council has faced in dealing 
with these new proposals is the lack of detailed justification for the changes 
made, the lack of information about the proposed construction programme and 
anticipated impacts.   

 
 
7. Implications For Sustainable Action For A Greener Environment 

7.1 The improvement of public transport capacity resulting from Crossrail is 
essential to ensuring future development on the Isle of Dogs and at Whitechapel 
can be effectively accessed primarily by public transport.  However, the loss of 
any part of Grove Hall Park is in an area of open space shortage should be 
minimised and avoided if at all possible.   

 
8. ANTI – POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The increase in transport capacity arising from the construction of Crossrail will 
support future growth in the Isle of Dogs and Whitechapel particularly and the 
borough as a whole, stimulating levels of economic activity and employment, 
thereby raising the economic and social welfare of those living and working in 
the area of influence.  The Council's original petition sought undertakings from 
Crossrail to ensure that local businesses and local people benefited from the 
Crossrail project.  Crossrail have provided such undertakings.  The revised 
proposals for the travellers’ site at Eleanor Street will benefit a particular 
disadvantaged group within the Tower Hamlets community. 

 
 
8. Equal Opportunities Implications 

8.1 In negotiations with Crossrail since the original petition was submitted, the 
Council has and is continuing to negotiate with Crossrail to ensure that equality 
issues are being properly addressed in the planning and implementation of the 
Crossrail project.  The decision by the Promoter to improve the Eleanor Street 
Travellers Site reprovision has positive equalities implications. 

 
9. Risk Assessment 

9.1 If negotiations with Crossrail and/or representations by the Council on these 2nd 
Additional Provisions to the Crossrail Bill during the Parliamentary process are 
not successful, then there may be significant short term local impacts, 
particularly in the eastern part of Bow as outlined above and detailed in petition 
which forma Appendix A to this report. 

 
 
10. Comments  of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

10.1  The report seeks full Council approval to agree petitioning of the second tranche 
of Additional Provisions to the Crossrail Bill.  Members are advised that the 
petitioning will have financial implications for the Council. 

10.2  In March 2005 Council agreed to petition the Crossrail bill. This has had a 
significant cost impact on the Authority through the need to fund consultation, 

Page 389



legal and specialist consultancy fees. These include Counsel representation and 
Parliamentary agents’ fees. The bill is not expected to receive Royal Assent until 
late 2007, but it has already been determined by the Parliamentary Select 
Committee that costs that are incurred in petitioning the Bill must be financed 
from the Council’s own resources. 

10.3  The cost of petitioning was identified as a budget pressure in the 2005/06 and 
2006/07 estimate reports, and only very limited budgetary provision currently 
exists to finance these costs. Between September 2004 and May 2006, the 
Development and Renewal Directorate has incurred in excess of £360,000 of 
Crossrail related expenditure on behalf of the Authority. To the end of March 
2006, £250,000 of costs were funded from compensatory savings identified 
within existing Development and Renewal budgets. A further £110,000 so far 
remains to be funded in 2006-07. 

10.4  At this stage it is not possible to provide an accurate assessment of the costs 
involved in this further representation, although they will be significantly lower 
than the £360,000 already incurred in preparing and presenting the original 
petition. 

10.5  The Council will continue to meet additional costs resulting from the 
implementation of Crossrail, following Royal Assent. The Council will however 
be able to apply to the Parliamentary Select Committee for funding to recover 
the implementation costs incurred, although at this stage this funding is not 
guaranteed. The likely additional expenditure involved is not known at present, 
but as the scheme progresses future reports to Committee will identify these 
costs and address the resulting resourcing implications. 

 
11. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
11.1  The Council has the power to oppose (or promote) local or personal Bills 

pursuant to Section 239 of the Local government Act 1972 (LGA 1972) 
 
11.2  If the Council accept the recommendation to oppose the 9 May 2006 

Amendment of Provisions to the Crossrail Bill by way of a second petition it will 
be necessary, in accordance with Section 239 LGA 1972, for a resolution of the 
Council to be passed by majority of the whole number of the members of the 
Council at a meeting held after a public notice of the meeting and its purpose 
has been advertised in a local newspaper. 

 
12. Conclusion 
 
12.1 As indicated in this report, during the last 6 months, Crossrail have made a 

number of important changes to the Bill's proposals which have benefited the 
Borough considerably.  The most significant of these changes has been the 
decision to adopt an end to end tunnelling strategy and the consequent 
elimination of the need for a tunnelling machine launch site in Spitalfields.  There 
have also been changes to the proposals for Whitechapel Station, and the 
revised proposals for Eleanor Street have also resulted from successful 
negotiation by the Council.  The Council also received satisfactory undertakings 
for Crossrail in respect to mitigation of impacts at construction sites in the 
Borough.  It is hoped that negotiations on the additional provisions will be 
equally successful, but in the meantime, the Council’s approval is sought to 
submit a second petition to protect the Council's formal position with regard to 
these proposals. Page 390



 
Pa

yn
e 

R
oa

d,
 G

ro
ve

 H
al

l P
ar

k,
 M

an
ha

tta
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g.
  P

ro
po

se
d 

W
or

k 
Si

te
s 

   
   

   
  P

la
n 

1  

Page 391



El
ea

no
r S

tr
ee

t. 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

W
or

k 
Si

te
.  

   
   

   
   

   
  P

la
n 

2 

 

Page 392



APPENDIX A 
 

Petition Against the Additional Provisions 
 
 
IN PARLIAMENT 
HOUSE OF COMMONS 
SESSION 2005-2006 
 
 
CROSSRAIL BILL 
 
P E T I T I O N 
 
Against the Additional Provisions – On Merits – Praying to be heard by Counsel, &c. 
 
TO THE HONOURABLE THE COMMONS OF THE UNITED KINGDOM OF GREAT 
BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IRELAND IN PARLIAMENT ASSEMBLED 
 
THE HUMBLE PETITION of: 
 
THE MAYOR AND THE BURGESSES OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS 
 
SHEWETH as follows:- 

1 A Bill (hereinafter referred to as the “the Bill”) has been introduced into and is now pending 

in your Honourable House intituled “A Bill to make provision for a railway transport system 

running from Maidenhead, in the County of Berkshire, and Heathrow Airport, in the London 

Borough of Hillingdon, through central London to Shenfield, in the County of Essex and 

Abbey Wood, in the London Borough of Greenwich; and for connected purposes.” 

2 The Bill is promoted by the Secretary of State for Transport (hereinafter called “the 

Promoter”). 

3 On 9 May 2006 the Promoter deposited certain amendments to the Bill, together with an 

additional Environmental Statement, revised plans and sections and a supplementary Book of 

Reference, collectively entitled “Amendment of Provisions May 2006” (hereinafter referred 

to as “the Additional Provisions”). 

4 Your Petitioners deposited a petition against the Bill in September 2005 (number 218).  It is 

respectfully submitted that the rights, interests and property of your Petitioners, and those 

who live and work in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Page 393



Borough”), are injuriously affected by the Additional Provisions, to which your Petitioners 

object for reasons, amongst others, hereinafter appearing. 

5 Your Petitioners would however, respectfully reserve their right to raise further issues and 

objections in the light of any additional relevant information received from the Promoter 

after the date of deposit of this Petition. 

Your Petitioners’ further concerns 

6 Your Petitioners seek undertakings and assurances from the Promoter as regards the 

management of construction work sites so as to prevent loss of, and access to, amenity and 

facilities to those who live and work in the Borough, during the construction period.  The 

physical area of each proposed work site should be kept to a minimum with the safety of the 

public, whether pedestrians or other road users, being of paramount importance and the 

period for which each site is required is also to be kept to a minimum.  

7 Your Petitioners submit that the nominated undertaker should provide detailed plans, method 

statements, work programmes, and schedules of deliveries (particularly abnormal deliveries) 

in relation to each work site, well in advance of the commencement of operations.  Your 

Petitioners should be notified well in advance of any alterations in methods of construction 

and construction operations, particularly in relation to site servicing and set up arrangements. 

8 It is clear that the construction sites associated with the Promoter’s scheme (whether in the 

Borough or beyond) will be centres to and from which large quantities of construction 

materials and equipment will be transported, together with staff.  There will also be the 

problem of removal of spoil from the working sites.  The matters which your Petitioners 

submit should be subject to their control in these respects are the routeing of lorries and other 

vehicles, control of impacts associated with construction vehicle holding areas, access to 

worksites, hours of operation, number of vehicle movements, size of vehicles and 

miscellaneous related matters.  Your Petitioners submit that the nominated undertaker should 

minimise the cumulative impact of lorry movements by properly managing, and keeping to a 

minimum, the number of such movements, using the strategic road network and confining 

movements to normal worksite hours.  

Page 394



9 Your Petitioners are concerned that it is not made clear how the Additional Provisions will 

interact with the Traffic Management Act 2004 (“TMA 2004”), and your Petitioners seek 

clarification and consultation on that issue.  Furthermore, as Highway and Traffic Authority 

for the Borough, and in order to fulfil its Network Management duty under TMA 2004, your 

Petitioners require that they must be fully involved on all proposals and consents to make 

temporary or permanent road closures and traffic diversions and changes to traffic flow, and 

about any physical alterations to the highway.  Overall, procedures and agreements should be 

put in place prior to undertaking of the works in order to take account of other highway and 

development activities within the Borough which would be concurrent with the Promoter’s 

works and to ensure proper highway management throughout the Borough. This is to be 

monitored jointly by your Petitioners and the nominated undertaker.  Where necessary, the 

routeing of lorries, cranes, delivery vehicles and other associated plant on local roads, 

including to and from construction vehicle holding areas, should be agreed with your 

Petitioners in advance of works, taking into account road safety, sensitive frontages, existing 

levels of traffic (including pedestrians and cyclists), traffic management and potential 

consequent traffic bottlenecks. All such measures should take proper account of the Health 

and Safety legislation for access to, egress from, and passing by of, construction site related 

premises, by both the public and construction site staff. 

10 Your Petitioners are also responsible for a number of important functions and under certain 

duties as regards listed buildings and conservation areas (e.g. in the vicinity of the Manhattan 

Building) pursuant to the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

Your Petitioners are concerned to minimise, as far as possible, the likely adverse impacts in 

this regard, of the proposals contained in the Additional Provisions, and to ensure that 

demolition is carried out only as a last resort.  In particular, your Petitioners are concerned 

about the impact of construction works and permanent new buildings on the setting of 

existing listed buildings, and require that all such new buildings should be designed 

sympathetically with special regard to their impact on neighbouring listed buildings and the 

setting of affected Conservation Areas. 

11 Your Petitioners are also concerned to ensure that, following the completion of any such 

works, any necessary reinstatement/redevelopment is carried out in sympathy with the 

surrounding area. Your Petitioners also need to be clear about the extent to which the 

Additional Provisions override existing legislation. 

Page 395



12 Accordingly, your Petitioners would respectfully suggest that the Bill should not be 

permitted to pass into law without the addition of a clause, or clauses, to ensure that (i) any 

reinstatement/redevelopment at Intervention Sites that is made necessary by the Promoter’s 

scheme project is carried out in a manner and style appropriate to the area in which it takes 

place, and shall be approved by your Petitioners, and (ii) the appropriate person or body 

responsible for securing compliance with that obligation (including compliance with any 

relevant provisions of the Promoter’s final codes of construction practice) is identified in the 

Bill. 

13 Your Petitioners have previously participated in discussions with the Promoter as a result of 

which the Promoter agreed to carry out an Equalities Impact Assessment of the Bill’s 

proposals. Your Petitioners are concerned that there is no evidence that such an assessment 

has been undertaken with respect to the Additional Provisions. Your Petitioners seek 

clarification that such an Equalities Impact Assessment has been performed and if it has not 

then it is respectfully submitted that the Promoter should complete the assessment at the 

earliest opportunity. 

Ham and Wick Sewer 

14 Your Petitioners would respectfully record their disappointment at the inadequacy of the 

Promoter’s efforts to consult with your Petitioners, and the wider public, on the inclusion of 

the revised proposals for the diversion of the Ham and Wick Sewer (hereinafter referred to as 

“the Sewer”), which now appear in the additional provisions. The Promoter has provided 

only limited opportunity for prior discussion and your Petitioners respectfully submit that the 

Promoter has failed to justify the specific proposals put forward including the need for any 

form of sewer between Payne Road and the Manhattan Building. The resultant information 

deficit has made it difficult for your Petitioners to respond properly to the Proposals. 

It is respectfully submitted that if the Promoters prove the requirement for the Sewer then 

they should enter in to consultation with your Petitioners in order to establish the best 

location for the Sewer taking in to account biodiversity residential amenity traffic access and 

the improvement programme that is already underway in Grove Hall Park. 

15 The proposals for the Sewer will lead to an increase in construction traffic. Your Petitioners 

respectfully submit that the Promoters should conduct a review of the construction routes 

Page 396



that are set out in the Environmental Statement once a location for the Sewer has been settled 

upon. It is submitted that when conducting this review the Promoter should seek to minimise 

the impact of construction works on the use of Grove Hall Park both in terms of the size of 

the construction site and the routing and management of construction traffic. The Promoters 

should also take in to account existing traffic regulations in particular the banned right turn 

from Bow Road in to Fairfield Road that will need to be reclassified if it is to be used for 

construction traffic. 

16 The works are at the very least likely to damage the aesthetics of the area and cause the loss 

of on street parking.  Even now, however, the Promoter accepts that 40 properties in 

Manhattan Building will suffer significant adverse noise impacts, both during the day and at 

night.  Your Petitioners humbly submit therefore that the Promoter should offer appropriate 

mitigation that may include noise insulation at those properties, and at any other properties 

(including those adjacent to the proposed Grove Hall Park worksite) which have been 

identified as being likely to suffer significant noise impacts. 

17 The proposals for the Sewer will lead inter alia to the loss of a central part of Grove Hall 

Park, which has been identified for use as a worksite, and a further nearby area of land, 

required to facilitate the two-way flow of construction traffic that the Promoter’s proposed 

works are expected to generate. Your Petitioners respectfully submit that, if these proposals 

are implemented, residents in the surrounding area will suffer significant adverse impacts, 

both in terms of noise and deleterious effects on visual amenity. 

18 In the meantime, your Petitioners have been working with the local community, and Leaside 

Regeneration to upgrade facilities at, and generally improve, Grove Hall Park.  In that 

connection, £25,000 has already been spent on a feasibility study for the desired 

improvements, the outcome of which was positive.   Accordingly, a further £180,000 has 

been identified for expenditure in 2006/07 on the necessary improvements.  However, the 

Promoter’s revised proposals for the diversion of the Sewer necessarily jeopardise the 

improvements, and any failure to complete them would represent a very significant 

disappointment to the local community. 

In particular, the Promoter’s proposals would blight the park for many years, delaying 

considerably the commencement of any works to enhance it.  The temporary land take 

required to bring those proposals to fruition, and the consequent disturbance, would be 

Page 397



significant.  Meanwhile, the permanent land take would limit the design options available to 

the Borough when improvements to the Park finally came to be made, and would also reduce 

the scope for future use of the Park as a whole, both by the local community and others. It is 

submitted that the Promoter should recompense your Petitioners for any abortive fees 

incurred in connection with the proposed improvements to the park and for any future loss of 

grant that may arise as a result of programme delays caused while construction of the Sewer 

takes place. It is submitted that the Promoters should also compensate your Petitioners for 

the temporary loss of the parts of Grove Hall Park that are to be used during construction of 

the Sewer and for the permanent loss of the part of the park that is to be used for the Sewer 

shaft. 

19 As for the proposed worksite at Payne Road, it is clear from the Additional Provisions that it 

will include part of the carriage way constituting Payne Road itself, and part of the adjacent 

footpath.  Traffic and pedestrian access will be maintained, however, and lorry movements 

are projected to peak at 60 per day, with a norm of 40 per day.  Accordingly, your Petitioners 

seek comprehensive details from the Promoter of the steps that it proposes to take to 

safeguard those who will continue to use either the cycle lane or the bus stop on Bow Road, 

as well as the pedestrians who will also continue to use that route. 

20 Your Petitioners respectfully submit that as a result of the Payne Road worksite the increase 

in lorry movements along Payne Road will lead to an increase in congestion at the junction 

between Payne Road and Bow Road. Your Petitioners would therefore seek information 

from the Promoters as to what steps it intends to take to prevent traffic that is caught in the 

congestion from diverting through the nearby residential areas. 

21 Your Petitioners are also concerned that a church and a youth club will suffer significant 

adverse impacts as a result of the projected activities at the Payne Road worksite.  In 

particular the loss of parking in the area will result in reduced attendance at both 

organisations which will damage their viability. The noise from the construction will also 

interfere with the functioning of the church and the youth club.  Accordingly, it is 

respectfully submitted that the Promoter should provide information on how the noise 

experienced at the properties will be mitigated. Your Petitioners would also seek assurances 

from the Promoter that it will enter in to discussions with your Petitioner and the occupiers 

of the buildings to find possible solutions to the loss of parking in the area. 

Page 398



22 Your Petitioners are concerned that the proposed activities in the Payne Road area will affect 

the proposed residential development which will front on to Payne Road. Your Petitioners 

seek clarification from the Promoters as to how it has taken this residential development in to 

account in design of the sewer at the site. It is respectfully submitted that the Promoter 

should also provide information on its proposals to mitigate the impact of its proposed 

construction on the residential development. 

23 The proposed activities at Payne Road would take place in an area surrounding Bow Church 

that has been selected to be included in the Mayor of London’s “100 Public Spaces” 

programme. Your Petitioners seek clarification as to how the Promoter has taken account of 

the proposed development under the Mayor’s programme when planning its own activities in 

the Payne Road area. 

24 Meanwhile, the Blackwall Tunnel worksite will occupy two separate sites located on the 

A12.  The first, 300m north of the junction with Bow Road, will occupy the central 

reservation and three lanes of carriageway.  The second, southern site will be located at the 

start of the southbound slip road at Bow junction.  Although all working at these sites (other 

than during concrete pours) is due to take place only at night, there is obvious potential for 

significant disruption on the A12 and adjoining highways.  Accordingly, your Petitioners 

seek assurances from the Promoter that work will not be permitted under any circumstances 

to run over into the morning as this would cause major delays for those using the A12, and 

add to the already high level of congestion on that route which occurs as a result of traffic 

backing up from the Blackwall Tunnel to the Bow Flyover during the rush hour. It is 

respectfully submitted that the Promoter should discuss the timing of closures with your 

Petitioners and the Highway Authority with particular regard to the regular maintenance 

closures of the Blackwall Tunnels. This consultation should seek to avoid the diversion of 

any through traffic on to Borough roads. 

25 Your Petitioners seek information from the Promoter on its proposals to mitigate the impact 

of noise from the Blackwall Tunnel worksite on the residential properties that overlook the 

site from the west. 

26 The Promoter claims that the measures contained in the Additional Provisions will not cause 

any significant impacts on Manhattan Building, which is a Grade II listed property.  Your 

Petitioners are sceptical about that claim, however, and have requested further technical 

Page 399



information from the Promoter as a result.  Accordingly, your Petitioners would respectfully 

reserve the right to develop this aspect of their case further once they have received the 

additional information sought from the Promoter, and have themselves had the opportunity 

to carry out a detailed investigation of the potential impacts (including those likely to be 

caused by vibration) on the buildings and their foundations. 

27 Furthermore, if the Additional Provisions are implemented, access to Manhattan Building 

will be restricted on three nights of the week between 8pm and 6am.  Accordingly, your 

Petitioners would respectfully ask that the Promoter be required to give appropriate notice of 

this restricted access. 

28 With regard to the Tumbling Bay worksite your Petitioners seek confirmation from the 

Promoter that the highway areas of the site will be reinstated to a high level of design and 

quality to reflect their proximity to the Manhattan Building listed property. 

Eleanor Street Travellers’ Site 

29 Turning next to the Promoter’s revised proposals for the travellers’ site at Eleanor Street, 

your Petitioners strongly support the amendments insofar as they provide for a single stage 

relocation of the Eleanor Street residents to an appropriate site within the Eleanor Street area. 

30 However the Promoter has suggested that the revised scheme will not generate any 

additional significant temporary or permanent noise and vibration impacts in addition to 

those identified in the main Environmental Statement, published at the same time as the Bill.  

The Borough however strongly disagrees with that last conclusion because it believes that 

Eleanor Street residents will experience unmitigated significant residual construction noise 

impact as defined in the main Crossrail Environmental Statement. Consequently your 

Petitioners would respectfully submit that the Promoter should offer appropriate mitigation 

to the  residents through measures available in the Promoter’s noise and vibration policy. 

Your Petitioners are currently discussing the adequacy of the policy with the Promoter and 

may need to raise a number of concerns which affect Eleanor Street and other Crossrail sites 

with your Honourable House. 

Page 400



General matters 

31 As a general matter, your Petitioners submit that provision should be made for the Promoter 

to repay to your Petitioners all proper costs, charges and expenses (including the proper fees 

of such professional advisers as they may instruct) reasonably incurred in consequence of the 

Bill or of any provision made as a result of this Petition. 

32 There are other clauses and provisions in the Additional Provisions which, if passed into law 

as they are now proposed, will prejudicially affect the rights, interests and property of your 

Petitioners, and those who live and work in the Borough, and for which no adequate 

provision is made to protect your Petitioners. 

Conclusion 

33 Your Petitioners submit that, in the respects mentioned above and in other respects, the Bill 

fails adequately to safeguard and protect the rights, interests and property of your Petitioners, 

and those who live and work in the Borough. 

Page 401



34 Your Petitioners therefore respectfully submit that insofar as they relate to the matters 

mentioned above the Additional Provisions should not be inserted in the Bill and the Bill 

should not be allowed to pass into law in its proposed form. 

YOUR PETITIONERS THEREFORE HUMBLY PRAY your Honourable House 

that the Bill may not be allowed to pass into law as it now stands and that they may 

be heard by themselves, their Counsel, Agents and witnesses in support of the 

allegations of this Petition against so much of the Additional Provisions as affect the 

rights, interests and property of your Petitioners, and those who live and work in the 

Borough, and in support of other such clauses and provisions as may be necessary or 

expedient for their protection, or that such other relief may be given to your 

Petitioners in the premises as your Honourable House shall deem meet. 

AND YOUR PETITIONERS WILL EVER PRAY, &c. 

 

 

BIRCHAM DYSON BELL 
Parliamentary Agents for: 
THE MAYOR AND BURGESSES OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS  

Page 402



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\5\AI00005548\CrossrailPetitionAPCouncil21June06FINAL0.doc 
 

IN PARLIAMENT 

HOUSE OF COMMONS 

SESSION 2005–06 

 

 

 

 

 

CROSSRAIL BILL 

 

 

P E T I T I O N 

of 

THE MAYOR AND THE BURGESSES OF 

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 

HAMLETS 

 

 

Against, the Additional Provisions – On Merits – 

Praying to be heard by Counsel, &c. 

 

 

BIRCHAM DYSON BELL 
50 Broadway 
Westminster 
London SW1H 0BL 
Parliamentary Agents 

 

6 June 2006 
 
 

Page 403



Page 404

This page is intentionally left blank


